

THE GAME OF FANTASY BATTLES

ALL DE LE REAL DE LE R





The Game of Fantasy Battles

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION WHAT YOU NEED TO PLAY

MUSTERING YOUR FORCES

FIGHTING A BATTLE



THE RU	LES
OVERVIEW	OF THE GAME

MODELS & UNITS
Characteristics of Models
The Characteristics Profile
Forming Units
Removing Casualties5
Unit Facing5

GENER	AL.	PRINC	CIPLES .		
Basic	Rul	les and	Advanced	Rules	

THE TURN	
Tim Summary	

MOVEMENT	5
Movement Phase Summary15	
1. Start of Turn	1
2. Charge	5
3. Compulsory Moves	
4. Remaining Moves	5

MAGIC
Witards
Magic Summary
1. Roll for Winds of Magic
2. Cast
- Miscast Table
3. Dispel
4. Spell Resolution
5. Next Spell

HOOTING	38
Shooting Summary	38
1. Nominate Unit to Shoot	38
2. Choose a Target	39
3. Roll To Hit	40
4. Roll To Wound	42
5. Saving Throws	43
6. Remove Casualties	45

Cl	LOSE COMBAT	ы
	Close Combat Summary	41
	1. Fight a Round of Close Combat	41
	2. Calculate Combat Result	5
	3. Loser Takes Break Test	5
	4. Flee and Pursue	51
	Multiple Close Combats	5

PANIC .				63

SPECIAL RUL	ES	5
Fast Cavalry		8
Skirmishers		7
Deployment	Special Rules	,



TROOP TYPES	
Monstrous Infantry	
Cavalry	
Monstrous Cavalry	
Swarms	
War Beasts	
Monstrous Beasts	
Monsters	
Chariots	
War Machines	
Unique Units	
THE POST	

COMMAND GROUPS	
Champions	
Standard Bearers	
Musicians	
CHARACTERS	
Lone Characters	
Characters and Units	
Challenges	
Character Mounts104	
The General	
The Battle Standard Bearer	
WAR MACHINES 108	
Bolt Throwers	
Cannons	
Fire Throwers	
Stone Throwers	
BATTLEFIELD TERRAIN 116	
Hills	
Hills 118 Forests 19 Rivert 120 Marshland 121 Obstacles 122 Mysical Monuments 122 Buildings 122 Arcane Architecture 130	
Hills	
Hills 118 Forests 19 Rivert 120 Marshland 121 Obstacles 122 Mysical Monuments 122 Buildings 122 Arcane Architecture 130	
Hills	
Hills 11 Reners 19 Reners 12 Marshand 121 Obtacks 22 Mydical Moniments 24 Building 24 CHOOSING YOUR ARBY 13 The Anny Line 33 ALLED ARMIES 15	
Hills 11 Ferrers 10 Rorers 20 Marshland 21 Obtacks 22 Middings 22 Buldings 22 Robinstraw 13 CHOOSING YOUR ARMY 13 ALIED ARMIES 14 Transt Allies 15	
Hils. 11 Facets 19 Rorer 20 Machland 21 Obtack 22 Maldings 22 Baldings 22 Radings 24 Radings 22 Status 12 Radings 24 Radings 12 Acase Arbitentur 33 ALIDD ANDES 35 Timted Aline 35 Steptional film 37	5 7 8
Hills 11 Ferents 10 Revers 20 Marsbland 21 Obtack 22 Marsbland 22 Obtack 22 Maldings 22 Raddings 22 Arcana Architecture 32 CIDOOSNG YOUR ABOY 33 The Amy Lat 33 Trantel Allies 35 Septiona Allies 33 Despente Allies 33	5 7 8 8
Hils. 11 Facets 19 Rorers 20 Machiland 212 Obtactels 22 Maldings 22 Maldings 22 Maldings 24 Maldings 24 Acase Architecture 33 CHONSKY VIC RABIY 13 ALIED ARMES 33 Tortard Aline 33 Stopeiona Aline 33	5788

FIGHTING A WARHAMMER BATTLE 140

1. Battleline14	ŧ
2. Dawn Attack	5
3. Battle for the Pass14	6
4. Blood and Glory	8
5. Meeting Engagement	9
6. The Watchtower15	0

THE WARHAMMER	
WORLD	153
WAR UNENDING	154
AN AGE OF WAR	156
ANCIENT HISTORY	158
The Great Catachysm	162
Time of the Sundering	165
Rise of the Undead	
Sigmar Ascendant	
The Empire Endures	172
THE YEARS OF CONFLICT	174
The Empire	180
Bretonnia	
Dwarfs	
High Elves	
Dark Elves	
Wood Elves	
Warriors of Chaos	
Daemons of Chaos	

MINIATURES

HOWCASE
The Empire
Warriors of Chaos
High Elves
Dark Elves
Wood Elves
Vampire Counts
Dwarfs
Ores & Goblins
Tomb Kings
Bretonnia
Ogre Kingdoms
Daemons of Chaos
Skaven
Lizardmen
Beastmen

WARHAMMER

AS

в.	ALILES	.381
v	ARRATIVE BATTLES	386
	River of Death	.388
	Surprise Encounter	.389
	The Dark Monoliths of Zhulgozar	_390
	Loot & Pillage	_392
	Heroic Last Stand	.394
	Hired Swords	.396
	Raze & Ruin	.398
	Watchtowers & Buildings	.400
	Hold the High Ground	.402
	- King of the Mountain	.404
	Battle Royale	.406
	- Acropolis of Skulls	
	Invasion!	.410
	- Invasion of Chrace	.412

EXPLORING EVEN FURTHER 414

Creating your own							
Warhammer Scenarios							.416
A Time of Legends							.424
Games Masters							.427



CLASH ON THE WILD HEATH 428

LINKED BATTL	ES								. 4.
Something Wie	ked	¢	0	m	8				
to Hagersdorf									.4

CAMPAIGNS	. 442
GAMING CLUBS & EVENTS	444
EGENDARY BATTLES	450
SLAUGHTER AT VOLGANOF	452
They Came from the North	454
The Chaos Invaders	456
Ostland Under Siege	458
The Defenders of Ostland	460
Gaming a Legendary Battle	
The Slaughter at Volganof	
The Invading Armies of Chaos	
Order of Battle	
The Defenders of Volganof	
Order of Battle	



REFERENCE	479
FINDING OUT MORE	. 480
BESTLARY	. 482
THE LORES OF MAGIC	. 490
The Lore of Fire	492
The Lore of Beasts	493
. The Lore of Metal	494
The Lore of Light	495
The Lore of Life	
The Lore of Heavens	
The Lore of Shadow	
The Lore of Death	499
MAGIC ITEMS	500
Magic Weapons	
Magic Armour	
Talismans	
Magic Standards	503
Arcane Items	
Enchanted Items	
SUMMARY	506
INDEX	510









Proper thyself to catter a world of Daemoss and vile sortery of brute and details, of violater, and of underset. Chose infects this world like a undigatal disease from which there can be no recovery. Logic reason and sanity here no place face. Even the earth and the air are sufficient with the staff of reer magic cussing ganded lag-trees to come alive, men to devolve into monsters and catles of base surfaces and the air are sufficient with the staff of reer magic cussing ganded lag-trees to come alive, men to devolve into monsters and catles of base workers and horizon alike that vo staff list curve to the grees.

Look to the north - tribe upon tribe of barbarians and iron-clad immortals charge into the teeth of a thousand cannons before crashing into mile-long lines of brightly uniformed infantry. Behold the great equator, land of the warrior sun, where skeletal legions and armies of living statues rise from the desert to crush the crusades of plate-armoured knights. Across the Old World, bestial and nameless things pour out from the endless forests to besiege, burn and topple fortress-cities. Orc Warlords stand atop storm-wracked mountains, bellowing raucous battle-cries. A constant flood of savage greenskins, slime-skinned monsters and ramshackle war engines emerges from the caves below in answer to the call. In the earth below, scurrying Skaven infest the depths like a tide of filth in a stinking sewer. Their verminous hordes crashing into the unyielding shieldwalls of grim Dwarf tunnel-guards who fight daily for the survival of their cavernous dominion. In the far-off lands of the Elves, brother fights brother in a war that has raged for time immemorial, the skies above alight with the fire of a hundred duelling dragons. Stram-driven towers prowl the borders of Mankind's realm, each one garrisoned by a regiment of war-hardened veterans. Above them come flocks of war gryphons and flying galleons held aloft by sorcerous pacts.

Yet midst all of the fire, flame and fary, it is a world too of mighty herese, of bold deeds and of great course. These few champions stud against the exercaching darkness, nilying their various with acts of valour and hope of victory. The detacting toor of butter tress above them all, the sound of a thousand times a thousand meas crashing body, blade and shield against a horek of darmonic terrors from the bowels of hell.

The fate of the world, be it damnation or salvation, will soon be decided.

This is a world of cternal war and fleeting glory.

This is the world of Warhammer.



INTRODUCTION

Welcome to Warhammer. Sound the trumpets and beat loud the drums of war, for the weight rume you hold in your hands is your key to entering a dark and bloody land. It is a world of Daemons and sorcery, a brutal eru of warfare and conquest. Warhammer, the game of intravp battles, brings all the action onto your tabletop. You command armies of miniatures in a game that promises bold manoeurore, daring riposte and untold shanghter.

The game of Wuhammer makes you be general of an error of Craden minimums. Regulations of respectated High Elses, the ranged hards of the renewon strates. Notworks a Skoven, the Underd legions of the Vampie Coants or any of the other down army traps, march, amocover and charge into the fray on your orders. At your command, hals of arrows and delivith boths of magic are unleashed upon the foc. But it is in the broad close guarts of combat the most battles much be you, by stabuart troops and learnaft to be and the properties of the stability of the steardard battery.

THE WARHAMMER HOBBY

Warhammer is a game unlike any other because it is so much more than a game. It is an engaging and engrossing postime – a full-blown hodby with a back of different aspect. There are armies of Cindel miniatures to collect and paint, fastancical battlefields to model, a rich history to ceplore, and an unersoling list of gaming challenges. It is a hands-on hobby as wide open as your imaginition. If all this sounds like a lot of work – it is'l But glory won lightly is not glory at all.





This book contains everything you need to know in order to play games of Warhammer on your tabletop. For ease of navigation the book is divided into the following main sections:

The Rules: This section lays out the full rules for how to more, shoot, cast magic and fight with your models. In addition to the core 'how to play' rules you'll find rules for monsters, herces, weapon types, allies, army selection rules and, of course, how to go about playing a battle.

To clarify rules along the way you will find both illustrative diagrams and helpful side notes with practical advice scattered throughout the section.

The Warhammer World: The Warhammer world is a strange, magical realm full of battle and strift. This section provides histories, tales of the major epochs, and a glimpse at the mighty heroes and villains that have carved their legacies upon the world of Warhammer. Miniatures Showcase: This truby glorious section shows off a funtatic assertment of Citadel miniatures from the Warhammer nage. There are examples from every army and each model has been lavishly painted by a member of the world-famous "Eavy Metal team. Looking through this section should help you make the tough decision of which models and which army to start out collecting.

We have also included an introduction to collecting, assembling and painting your own miniatures and terrain ready for battle, with pointers to where you can find out more.

Warhammer Battless: The final section is all about patting the rules, background, and the models together to take your games even further. In addition to tips about setting up and playing your own games, you'll find all manner of exciting scenarios to play, along with advice on running your own campaigns, an exciting battle report and an awe-inspiring Legendary Battle.

Getting Started

It is not essential to read the entirety of this book in order to play a game. You can fight your first battle after skimming the first fore chapters of the Rales section.

What you'll come to makin, however, it shat the rest of the information greatly enriches your builds. Inspiration can be disease from askin tection – additional special rades, stories from Warkamour's pick history, amazing paint schowes, terrain complex, or more scenario to try. Such depth tarm a helps, and will make your builter, seen more researing.



WHAT YOU NEED

Between yourself and your opponent, you will need to have the following things to recreate the bloody battles of the Warhammer world:

ARMIES OF CITADEL MINIATURES

Both you and your opponent will need an army to burke with From fast, thick armins like Dark EVen that misinfrarty, courley, and monzers to the slow but wild infrarty lines and devantizing are machines of a Darkar army. Warhanmer has over a dones army types to choose from. Each force is different and chracterfall in in own right, thus best of all each army can be built in counteles combinations. Physics can choose their favorite models, capitor a favorite game tack or collect as their whims dictate. No two armisis need be alike.

It might take a while to amazu a large collection of painted figures, but a finished army glorioasily arrayed upon a battlefield is a recoarding eight and well coorth the effort.

In this battle on Empire army, including year machines and monoted buights, takes on an investors of Chaos Warriors belstered by hidenus beatts and even a Giant. The fate of this village hamps in the bolonce.

RULEBOOK

When first learning how to play you'll find yourself consulting the Rulebook fairly often during the course of a bathe. After a few matches, however, the balk of gameplay will become second nature and you'll soon find that you only need to check the book for occasional reference or to find clarification for an unusual game situation.

TAPE MEASURE

The bounce of a cannonball, the flight of a Griffion, the charge of a regiment of knights mounted atop giant lizards or the range of a wizard's fireball are all measured in inches. A tape measure or other measuring device marked in inches is therefore a necessity.

A BATTLEFIELD

What tamy spars the strates into hachefold is the addition of termin. This could count of any number of strange rangical fasters such as a finge fiber, a never of blood, and tampic to some dark power, or the harped additi-terms of a burbariners. This will lead of that is few strain protocol to plus Mahammer because the tractical demands that termin parts on commanders is an important and earting parts of the game (although who wyo's strating one, itsmer games are plus deformed to blank and that the of the blank to blank and the stratebility and plus end the first of the dark to blank to blank and the blank and blank the of the land to blank to blank the blank.

TEMPLATES

Some weapons, such as stone throwers or the highly feared Flame Cannon of the Dwarfs, affect a large area and can destroy many models at once. By placing the correctly sized template in place, players can determine how many models are hit.

A PLAYING SURFACE

Any that surface can become the battlefield for armies to fight over. A dedicated playing space is dical, but a kitchen table, flat workkench or even the floor will do. Try to avoid having to disassemble an ongoing battle to accommodate a family meal or, in the case of a "hoor wor,' having some of your troops trodden upon by uwary interlopers.

MOVEMENT TRAYS

In Warhammer a grouped formation of troops is called a unit. Some units can be firstly large, consisting of 20, 30 or even more models. Moving these models individually can take quite a bit of time, so many players keep the units 'blocked' together by use of a base or movement trug. These can be custom-made or booght and will greatly aid moving larger units – don't field a horde without them!



These units are ranked up on movement trays, making it easy for a slaver to move then around.

The gaming table shown here is the Gitadel

different configurations to yory your battles.

All the scenic pieces on top of the gaming table are plastic Citadel kits, assembled and painted just like the model soldiers themselves.

PEN & PAPER

In the midst of a bloody Warhammer battle it is easy to forget key information. Having pen and paper handy so you can jot down how many wounds have been inflicted upon large monsters, or which unit has been cursed with an ongoing spell, will allow you to get on with the game instead of trying to 'remember minutia.

DICE

Warhamer uses six-sided dice to work out effects such as combat and shooting. It's useful to have quite a few dice on hand as combats are tumultuous affairs requiring fastifuls of dice to be rolled at a time. A few differently coloured dice are handly to work out specific rolls for heroes. You will also need an artillery dice and a scatter dice to work out certain spell and war machine effects (see page 7).

MUSTERING YOUR FORCES

Warhammer is a game of armies clashing on the tabletop. In order to play, you'll need an army of your own, but which will you choose? Perhaps a black-hearted and moster-filled force of Davk Elves, on an army from Bretonnia, the knights bedecked in armour and magnificent heraldry, the magically animated Tomb King hordes or ironelad eithe Warriors of Chaos?



Nick Bayton, long-time fan of the Chans Warrises army, makes a selection from the Games Workshop Warhammer World store.



The new regiment of Chaos Knights assembled, undercoated, and with a first coat of paint.



Over a few more sessions, Nick finishes painting his new miniatures.

Right: An Empire army including infantry, cavalry, and a powerful Bright Witard.

Warhammer presents over a dozen army types, each with its own unique look, troop types, game rules, and defining attributes. For instance, a High Elf army is characterised by its relatively low numbers of highly skilled warriors, its wide choice of fighting elites, and its access to elegant, vet deadly monsters like Dragons and Griffons. High Elves are masters of powerful, but largely defensive magic. Conversely, the chaotic ratmen known as Skaven are a horde army - a fighting force whose common tactic is to swamp their enemies with an expendable tide of cheap troops. Mixed in with the massed assaults are devastating, but occasionally self-destructing arcane war machines. Skaven magic is wildly offensive but occasionally risky to its own side.

Not only is there a wide variety of different army types with varying characteristics to choose from, but each army is itself made up of many unique troop choices and options. It is possible to compose armies of the same type in countless different and rewarding ways. So how do you choose an army and how big should it be?

There are as many different reasons to choose an army as there are gamers. Some collect armies based on the look of the models, the army's tactics or special rules, or perhaps the force's background or ethos. Some players cart's settle on a single force and purchase miniatures from a spectrum of different armies. The only 'right way' is the method that feels right for you.



INTRODUCTION



It is possible to start playing entall games of Wahammer with a army made up of three to four units, including a model to represent the army's General-the here to revillain!) that is commanding the force. Such a game can be played within an hoar. There is no upwards limit to the size of an army and some pericularly aird collectors can field massive forces that include hundreds or even thousands of models. In addition, more players are fortunate cought to have ansead more than one army to game with.

WARHAMMER ARMIES

Physics seeking more information about a chosen array should reference the Warhammer Armies books. Each book in this supplemental series focuses on a single army providing in-depth background, a besing that lists all the topop types and their rules, plun new magical weapons and other items, septently painted easingle models, and an army list that will help you to organise your army.

UNBRIDLED ZEAL

Unless you too are bitten by the collecting bug, it is hard to understand (or explain) the passion a player will part into his army. Competitive players hone their forces by playing many practice matches, forever treaking their army equipment options. Top model painters lavish incredible levels of detail upon each and every model, spending particular attention to the contriputed players.

Some enthusiants read and re-read very scrap of background text, pondering how their force fits into the Warhammer world, perhaps even making up their own stories. Everyone studies the available Citalel miniatures and the inspirational examples painted by the 'Easy Metal tram. Many catalogue their existing collection (sometimes in their heads, sometimes on paper), plan our future purchases, and look forward with anticipation to their next painting or examing session. Aboxe: Jeremy Vetock's Orc & Goblin army has grown vary large indeed, and includes pieces of 'Orcy' terrain and specially converted monsters.



Nick transports his Choos Warriors army to battle safely in a figure case.



The new regiment fights in its first Warhammer battle – and dues rather well!

FIGHTING A BATTLE

So what is it like to play a Warhammer battle? The next few pages will give you a general idea – running through the stages of setting up the battlefield, deploying the armies, fighting out the battle, and determining if you have won glorious victory or suffered ignominious defeat.

SETTING UP THE BATTLE

E-1028-20 0000

Once you and your opponent have your armies mustered ready for battle, the first step in playing a game of Warhammer is setting up the battlefield.

Both players work together to place pieces of terrain on the tabletop, representing haunted forests, recky fulls and magical monuments. The best bartlefields not only pose tactical challenges to the players, but also look great. This is your chance to set the scene of your battle and bring a bit of the Warhammer world alive.

> Wizards in close proximity to Elven Waystones gain extra potzer.

As neither Mat nor Jervis yet knows which side of the table their army will start on, they set up the terrain so that bash sides have benefits and disadvantares.

This battle year fought between a Skewen army played by Mat Ward and a High Elf fore commanded by Jervis Johnson. Jervis and Max et up their battlefield to represent a oneoposeful corner of Ulthum, the island home of the High Elver. The obtains are Elven Waystones and the building in the conter is a Wisawi? Toroor, Elde table area secrets.

THE ARMIES DEPLOY

With the terrain set up it is now time to choose table sides and deploy armies. Each player rolls a dice and whoever rolls highest picks the side of the table he wishes his army to start on. The player that lost the dice roll will set up on the opposite side. The two players then take it in turns to place their regiments, war machines, monsters, et.

This is where you must start apphing tactical hought – from which direction will the energy troops advance? Is there high ground from which archers or war machines can rain death upon the foc? Can your models reach any special terrain features that grant useful benefits to your amy? In oldre words, how can you best exploit the lay of the land to give your amy a better chance of destrong your any?



Jervis places his Elven Prince on Griffon on the battlefield, ensuring this important model is out of the range of the dangerous Skoven war machines.

Some units, like these Shadow Warriors, have special rules, allowing them to set up outside of their deployment zone before the game begins.

Mat deployed his Shaven army with a strong attacking centre and fast expendable flanks. Jervis countered with hard, fast writs on his flanks and all his showing trongs around a hill in the middle.

FIGHTING THE BATTLE

Now that both sides are deployed it is time to fight the buttle Paylers take turns to at with their amise. During a turn a player will first manoeuver his units, perhaps charging some into combat with the foc. Neat he will unleash magical apells from his Warachs, and shooting attacks such as arehevy or cannochter. Ladly, any close combats are fought out, after which his um is over and the other player takes his turn.

During your own turn you will be busy trying to apply your masterful battle plan. You will be moving models, measuring the range of potential bowfire (or other missiles and spells), working out close combat results and generally trying your best to destrow your for's arms. During your opponent's turn, in addition to watching him trying to dismantle your forces, you will have to make various dice rolls, such as testing to see if your armour protects you, if you can dispel enemy magic or if any of your units panic due to the onslaught of the foc.

Casualties – models that are slain over the course of the battle – are removed from play and placed somewhere safe off the battlefield. Thus, as the game progresses, units dwindle in size or disappear altogether in the bloody fighting.

> Jercis used his Archers and Repeater Bolt Throevers on the hill to slay many Skaven.

During the game bath players kept up a steady steam of chat about the back and forth of the battle, the shortcomings of their plans, and their good (or bad) lack. There was even time for a tea break.

Mat's long-runged weaponry, Warplock Jezzails and a Warp Lightning Cannon, attempt to destroy the percerful Elf units before they can charge into combat. When selecting his army Mar chose a Grey Seer (a porcorful Wizard) mounted any the Seraming Bell, a notoriosa Shaven tour machine. He placed this poseful combination into a horde of Shaven Claurats, making for a very determition unit.

Battle Key

A The Elven flank takes canualties from Warplock Jezzails but advances into charge range.

202 238

- 3 The Rat Ogres defend the rear of the large Shaven unit.
- C Three Elven units line up charges against the formidable Skaven regiment with the Screaming Bell.
- D The High Elf Physenix Guard and Skaven
- Stormeurmin square off, ready for bitter combat. 5 Sneaky Skaven Gutter Runners advance into the Wizard's Torser.
- F A Dummoheel kills the Shadoto Warriors and crashes through into the Elven Dragon Princes.

Additional Shaven units more up to support the Doomscheel,

After shaking hands bath players retired to Bagman's for a drink and a chance to talk about the game - discussing the 'schust-iff' of the battle and lanoenting the failure of critical disc rulis.

VICTORY

After six turns, the Warhammer battle is concluded. There are set rules to work out who has won, but often it will be obvious – one side's troops will be mostly dead or fleeing, perhaps with their General slain.

Regardless of outcome, conqueror or vanquished, it is customary to shake your opponent's hand.

A fall Warhammer battle report – detailing the cat and threat of a game – as well as information on all aspects of Warhammer, can be found at:

tototo, games-toorkshop.com













THE RULES

This section starts with the basic rules as they apply to the most common type of model – infantry. This means you can get playing as quickly as possible, learning to move, east spells, shoot and fight in close combat with your models without having to read for hours first.

Don't worry about trying to memorise all the rules - you'll get by in most games with the basics of Movement, Magie, Shooting and Close Combat. Other 'layers' of rules, only come into play under particular circumstances, or in regard to other types of models, such as thundering charitos, mighty monsters, courageous heroes and devastating war machines.

From there, the only limits are your imagination and your dreams of conquest. This section, therefore, is more than a mere set of rules – it is your first step on the path to becoming a Wurhammer general...

Written by Mat Ward.

OVERVIEW OF THE GAME

This page simply summarises the sequence of playing a Warhammer battle, and points you to the relevant parts of the book that explain how each stage works.

1. MUSTER YOUR FORCES

You will need two armies to play a Warhammer battle, so the first thing to do is assemble your forces. You can simply use all the models in your collection, but most players use the system of points values and army lists to ensure their forces are evenly matched for a closely fought game. This system is explained in the Choosing Your Army chapter on page 132.

2. CHOOSE A PITCHED BATTLE

The Fighting a Warhammer Battle chapter on page 140 presents six 'pitched battles'. Each of these explains how to play a slightly different type of battle, ranging from a straightforward clash of battlelines to a fight in a mountain pass or the defence of a watchtower. Players can roll a dice to decide which pitched battle they will play or simply choose one.

3. SET UP THE BATTLEFIELD

Next, you will need a battlefield, be it the kitchen table, the floor or a fully modelled wargames board. The players set up terrain for their armies to fight over, representing haunted woods, fortified watchtowers and other strange features that make up the landscape of the Warhammer world. How to do this is also covered in the Fighting a Warhammer Battle chapter.

Each of the nitched battles includes a map

will take the first turn of the game.

showing you where on the table each player can

place his models, and also tells you which side

4. DEPLOY ARMIES

The two armies are deployed facing each other across the battlefield, ready to fight. Details on how to deploy can be found in the Fighting a Warhammer Battle chapter on page 140.

5. FIGHT!

Fight out the battle, with players taking turns to act with their army, using the rules that follow. This section starts with basic rules that apply to all models, and cover the standard sequence of moving, shooting and fighting. These basic rules are all you will need for infinitry models, and will get you by for your first game or two. They are followed by extra rules that apply only to certain models such as monsters, herces or warriors armed with unusual weapons. Finally there is a chapter that explains the effects of the funtatical terrain of the Warhammer world.

6. DETERMINE THE WINNER

Each pitched battle explains how many turns to play for and how to work out who has won the game. In most cases the victor is the side that has destroyed more of the enemy, and so it is often obvious who has won, as the other side's

The Most Important Rule

In a game of the size and complexity of Wardammer, there are board to be occasions where a situation is not covered by the rules, or you can't soom to find the right page. Even if you know the rule, sometimes at is just a rulity (soles call, and players don't agree on the precise outcome.

Notedy sustar to excite excluding gauge into arguing, as do proputed in interpret a distingtion of the system of the massive fielding system (in a sumer). If you find that you and your oppose cannot agree of appoint of the application of a distingtion of the application of a strink, real a dist to so whose interpretation of the application of a strink of a distingtion of the application of the of the applica-

army is in tatters – dead or fleeing! Other battles are decided by seizing enemy banners or capturing a watchtower. Whatever the outcome, only a rematch will give you the chance for further glory or sweet revenge.

MODELS & UNITS

The Citadel miniatures used to play games of Warhammer are referred to as 'models' in the rules that follow. Models represent a huge variety of troops, ranging from cowardly Goblins and noble Elves, to mighty Dragons, Each model is an individual playing piece with its own skills and capabilities. To reflect all the differences between such warriors, each model has its own characteristics profile.

CHARACTERISTICS OF MODELS

Cr. 20

Warhammer uses nine different statistics or characteristics to describe the various attributes of the different models. All characteristics are rated on a scale from 0 to 10 – they cannot go below 0 or rise above 10.

MOVEMENT ALLOWANCE (M)

Often called Move, this shows the number of inches a model can move on the battlefield under normal circumstances. For example, a Man with a Move of 4 (M4) can move up to 4st when moving at full rate. A horse moves far faster and therefore has M8.

WEAPON SKILL (WS)

This defines how accomplished or skilled a warrior is with his weapons, or how determined and vicious a monster is. The higher the score, the more likely the model is to hit an opponent in close combat. An ordinary Man has WS3, whilst a battle-hardened hero might have WS4, WS5 or possibly even higher!

BALLISTIC SKILL (BS)

This shows how accurate a warrior is with ranged weapons such as how or handguns. The higher this value is, the casier a creature finds it to thit with missile attacks. An ordinary Man has BS3, but a keen-cycd Elf has BS4. Some monsters have natural weapons that can be used at range (hey might spit venom, for example) and they often use BS to determine whether they hit or not.

STRENGTH (S)

Strength gives a measure of how strong a creature is. An exceptionally puny creature might have a Strength characteristic of 1, while a mighty Giant has 56. Men have 33. Strength tells you how hard a model can hit and how easily it can hurt an opponent it has struck in close comhat.

TOUGHNESS (T)

This is a measure of a creature's ability to resist physical damage and pain, and reflects such factors as the resilience of a creature's flesh, hide or skin. The tougher a model is, the better it can withstand an enemy's blows. A normal Man has T3, but a creature such as a Treeman, with tough wooden flesh, has an incredible T6!

WOUNDS (W)

This shows how much damage a creature can take before it dies or is so badly hurt that it car't fight any more. Most men and man-sized models have a Wounds characteristic value of 1. Large monsters and mighty hereos are often able to withstand several wounds that would slay a smaller creature, and so have W2, W3, W4 or even more.

INITIATIVE (I)

This indicates how fast a creature can react. Creatures with a low Initiative score (Ores, with Initiative 2) are solve and cumbersome, while creatures with a high Initiative score (Elves, with Initiative 5) are quicker and more agile. Humans have Initiative 3. In close combat, Initiative dictates the order in which creatures strike.

ATTACKS (A)

This shows the number of times a creature attacks during close combat. Most warriors and creatures have an Attacks value of 1, although some elite troops, monsters or heroes may be able to strike several times and have A2, A3 or more.

LEADERSHIP (Ld)

Leadership shows how courageous, determined, and self-controlled a model is. A creature with a low value is very unruly or cowardly, to say the least! Men have Ld7, which is average, whilst easily scared Night Goblins have a Leadership value of only 5.

The Spirit of the Game

You'll realise soon that Warhammer is different to any other game you have played. It is important to remember that the rules are just a framework to create an enjoyable name. Winning at any cost is less important than making sure victor - have a good time. What's more, Warhammer calls Your job int't just to follow the rales, it's also to add your ocon game. Much of the appeal of Warhammer lies in the freedom alleres, and it is in this spirit that the rules have been writte



Orc Boy M HS RS S T W I A La



Empire Halberdier



High Elf Spearman M WS AS S T W I A Id 5 4 4 3 3 I 5 I 8



Skaven Clanrat M WS 85 8 T W I A Ld 5 3 3 3 3 1 4 1 5

THE CHARACTERISTICS PROFILE

Every Warhammer model has a profile that lists the value of its different characteristics. The examples left show the profiles for an Ore, a Man, an Elf and a Skaven.

Asyon can see, an Ore and a Man are similar in many respects. They both more at the same speed (4°), and they both have the same Wagoon SSI and Rullins's SSI bullwas, which means they are very result much solid solid solid solid the same Strength what, so where can defore blown with opail potency. When it comes to Tanghness, however, the Ore wiss over the Man —the Ore's value is 4 compared to 3. This is not are differency, bullet the Ore, before able to withstand blows and gives it the edge in any hand-to-hand fighting.

Both creatures have I Wound, which is the normal value for man-sized creatures. The Orc loses out, however, when it comes to Initiative. This is not a terrible disadvantage, but it does mean that the Maan will get to strike his blows before the Orc does when they get stack into hand-to-hand fighting. Both races have the same Leadership of 7, which is average.

The Skewn is noticeably quicker than a Man or an Oev, with hold Movement and Limitative values higher. However, the Skawen ratines are distinctly conurolly, with their Leadership of 5. The Liff meanwhile is clearly superiors with above-average Movement, Weapon Skill, Ballistic Skill, Initiative and Leadership characteristics. Only Strength and Toughness remain at a normal level for these elive varience.

OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION

In addition to its characteristics profile, each model will have a troop type, such as infinitry or cavaley, which we discuss in more depth on page 80. It might also have a save of some kind, representing any armour or magical protection it might have, and it could be carrying one or more shooting or close could wapons (see page 80) or might have one or more special rules (see page 60). Davit worps, about any of this for now – for the moment it's enough that you know about these aspects of the model.

CHARACTERISTICS OF ZERO

Some creatures have been given a value of '0' (often shown as a dash. '--) for creatin characteristics, which means that they have no ability whatnesever in that skill. This usually applies to creatures unable to use missile weapons, so they have BS0 or BS-, but it might gengally well apply to other characteristics too. For example, some creatures or war machines my have no Attacks (A0 or A-).

If any creature or object has a Weapon Skill of 0 then it is unable to defend itself in close combat, and any blows struck against it will therefore automatically hit.

If at any time a model's Strength, Toughness or Wounds are reduced to 0 or less by magic or a special rule, it is slain and removed from play.



FORMING UNITS

The models that make up your Warhammer army must be organised into 'units'. A unit usually consists of several models that have banded together, but a single, powerful model such as a lone character, a chariot or a Dragon, a war machine and its crew, and so on, are also considered to be a unit.

A unit consists of 1 or more models that are arranged in orthogonal base contact with each other, which is a fancy way of saying 'edge-toedge and front corner to front corner'. See the diagrams below – it's much cleaver as a picture than in it is in words. All models in a unit must face the same direction.

In addition, all models in the unit must be arranged in a formation that consists of one or more horizontal lines, called ranks and a number of vertical lines, called files. This is why we often refer to basis warriors as 'rank and file' troops.

As far as possible there must be the same number of models in each rank. Where this is not possible it must be the rear rank that has fewer models. Once formed into a unit, the models move and fight as a single entity for the rest of the battle.

Facing From

It's wormally easy to tell which direction a model is facing - he'll (it'll?) be aligned spearely with one of his base's edges.

Sometimes, however, it is not as clear. This shows' tond to be a problem in a smit, where all the models are assumed to face the same tray (and a command group can sormally be found in the frunt road). If you have a single woodel, such as a monitor or character, works facing it sore devian, made sure that your opponent can still which same yi's facing—it could prove crucial in the kentle!

REMOVING CASUALTIES

Some of the models in a unit (probably quite a lot of them) will die as the battle progresses. When casualties occur, models are removed from the back rank of the unit. If the unit is reduced to a single rank, casualties must be removed evenly from either end of the line.

UNIT FACING

Last, but not least, a model has a forward, flank and rear are based on the direction that it is facing. We'll be using this later to work out what the model can attack, as well as calculating which side of the model an enemy will be able to charge as the fame fores on.

A model's forward (or 'front'), flank and rear arcs extend out from its corners at 45° angles, forming four 90° quadrants, as shown here. A unit's facings therefore are determined by the facing of its constituent models.





GENERAL PRINCIPLES

We're almost ready to dive into the turn sequence that drives the bloody business of Worknammer. However, before we begin, there are few basis ideas and game mechanises that it's worth discussing. These are essentially principles that are so broad that they pop up again and again while you're playing a game, so it makes a lot of sense to establish them before getting eaught up in the more specialised rules that you'll find are on.

MEASURING DISTANCES

In Warhammer, distances are measured in inches (*) with a tape measure. You can always check the distance before you declare an action, such as charging or shooting.

This allows you to check whether your units are in range of their target before they launch an attack. After all your warriors are all led by experienced campaigners and we can assume that they can accurately judge the range of their weapons, even if we, their generals, cannot (one does not, after all, keep a dog and then bark himself).

Distances between models and all other objects (which can be other models, terrain features and so on...) are always measured from closest point on one base to the closest point on the other base. Distances between units are always measured to and from the closest models in each of the units (see diagram below). Sometimes units will be mounted on movement trays for ease of use, and not the movement tray, as the reference point when taking your measurements.

So, for example, if any part of a model's base is within 6" of the base of an enemy model, the two models are said to be within 6" of each other.

Sometimes the rules will call upon a unit to move directly towards another unit, or some other feature on the battlefield. Where this is the case, draw an imaginary line between the centre of the unit and its destination, and move the unit forward along this line a number of inches equal to the distance stated.



DICE

You'll often need to roll dice to see how the actions of your models turn out - how effective their shooting is, what damage they've done in close combat, and so on.

Almost all the dice rolls in Warhammer use standard six-sided dice, also known as D6, but there are some exceptions as noted below.

ROLLING A D3

In rare circumstance you may be told to roll a D3. As there's no such thing as a three-sided dice, use the following methad to determine a score between 1 and 3. Roll a D6 and halve the score, rounding up. Thus 1 or 2 = 1, 3 or 4 = 2and 5 or 6 = 3.

ARTILLERY DICE AND SCATTER DICE

Warhammer uses two special dice: the artillery dice (marked 2, 4, 6, 8, 10 and Misfire) and a scatter dice (marked with arrows and Hitl symbols). These dice are mostly used to represent the effects of various war machines, such as cannon and stone throwers.



Note that, except where clearly specified, the artillery and scatter dice cannot be re-rolled. We've not talked about re-rolls yet, but we will do shortly.

DIVIDING TO CONQUER

Sometimes you'll be called upon to divide the result of a dice roll, a characteristic or some other value. Where this happens, any fractions should always be rounded up. So a 2D6 roll of 7, haived, would be a result of 4 (3.5 rounded up). Similarly, 10% of a unit of fifty one models, rounded up, would be 6 models.

MODIFYING DICE ROLLS

Sometimes, you may have to modify the result of the disc cell. This is noted as D6 phase or minus a number, such as D4+1. Roll the disc and all bits as a second set of the disc and all bits of the disc and all bits over (a supporting) to get the final result. For example, D6+2 means will a disc an add 2 to may also be tald to real a number of disc an add 8. Non my also be tald to real a moment of disc and all the scores right and the levens of an add the disc and all the scores right and the shore of a second seco

RE-ROLL

In some situations, the rules allow you to pick up and re-roll a dice. This is exactly what it sounds like – pick up the dice you wish to reroll, and roll it again. The second score counts, even if it means a worse result than the first, and no single dice can be re-rolled more than once, regardless of the source of the re-roll.

If you re-roll a single 2D6 or 3D6 roll, you must re-roll all of the dice and not just some of them, unless the rule granting the re-roll specifies otherwise.

ROLL-OFF

If the rules require players to rell-off, this simply means that each player rolls a dice and the player that scores the highest result wints the roll-off. If the players roll the same result, both dice must be re-rolled again until one player is the winner – any modifiers that applied to the first dice roll are also applied to any further rolls.

RANDOMISING

Sometimes you'll be called upon to randomly actes something - offen a model, but sometimes a magic item, a spell or similar. Where this is the case, simply assign a D6 result to each of the things the random selection must be made from, and rell the dire to make your random choice. If you have fewer than is items to randomise between, simply re-rell any unassigned results between, simply re-rell any unassigned results.

For example, a player has to randomly select one of five models. He assigns each model a number between 1 and 5, and rolls a D6, re-rolling results of 6 until he gets a number between 1 and 5.

Misfire!

Drivenson practice for Payers Drivenson practice for Payers in order to the artiflety does at weighter doe' - chelpy because you can genaration that Bit Trell a weighter at the seast integropping works weights Conversely, some superstitutes trellety does, simply because artillety does, simply because performance data weights in performance data weights a performance data weights is a weight weight of a consensition and a weight of a consensition is a sease of a sease of a sease of a performance data weight of a colores oper affect and a weights does observe the conversition weight of a sease o



Chaos Warrier



TEMPLATES

Some spells and war machines are so powerful that they don't just tarfet a single model or unit, but have an 'area effect' which might encompass (and often utterly devastate!) several different units. To better represent these, Warhammer uses a series of three different templates:

- A small round template (3" in diameter)
- A large round template (5" in diameter)
- · A flame template (a teardrop-shaped template roughly 8" long)

Copies of these templates can be found opposite. You can photocopy these if you wish, but plastic transparent versions can be purchased separately.



The templates are used as a way of determining whether or not models have been hit by an attack that has an area of effect or blast radius. When an attack uses a template, it will explain how the template is positioned, including any kind of scatter that might occur (scatter is discussed more completely next in this section). To work out which models are hit, you normally need to hold the template over an enemy unit or a particular point on the battlefield, and then look underneath to see which models' bases lie. partially or completely underneath the template.

Normally, any model that is fully or even partially underneath the template is hit automatically with the effect described in the special rules for the attack. Some models, such as characters riding chariots and monsters, might have several different locations that can normally be hit separately - in these cases a template is assumed to hit all the locations on the model. Remember that a model's base is counted as being part of the model itself, so all a template has to do to cause a hit on all the model's locations is to touch its base.

SCATTER

Sometimes a rule will call for an object (a template, counter or even a unit) to be placed on the battlefield and then scattered. When this occurs, follow this procedure:

Place the object on the battlefield, as instructed by the rule. Roll a scatter dice to determine the direction of scatter, and any other dice required by the rule to determine the scatter distance. For example, if something is said to 'scatter 2D6" in a random direction' then you'd roll the scatter dice for the direction and 2D6" for the distance. It's normally a good idea to roll these as close to the scattering object as possible, to minimise the inaccuracy that will inevitably creep in as you attempt to match the vector.

If a Hit! is rolled on the scatter dice, the object does not move - leave it in place and resolve the rest of the rule.

If an arrow is rolled, move the object in the direction of the arrow and the distance (in inches) shown on the other dice, ignoring intervening terrain, units, etc. unless the rule states otherwise. Once the object has scattered to its final position, you can resolve the effects of the rule.

Note that war machines usually use the artillery dice to determine the distance scattered.







Is it Natural?

You'll watter that some of the reader refer to it wannand dies watter teller to it wannand dies watter thie refers to the actual ange wondfiere that moffe apply. This phrase is quite unfel a shore are quite a fore due modifiers shohing around in the Winhammer rate, and to sometimes toant the dies corres hereaber (scialable the modifier) reade (including the modifier) reade (including the modifier)

CHARACTERISTIC TESTS

A model will sometimes be called upon to take a characteristic test. Such a test could be applied against any characteristic the model has, save Leadership. A Toughness test is a characteristic test, as is a Strength test or an Initiative test, and so on.

Models will not normally have a choice of which characteristic they must use – the characteristic to be tested will be specified in the rule.

To make a characteristic test, roll a D6 and compare the score to the relevant characteristic in the model's profile. If the score is equal to to less than the number in the profile, the test is passed with no lifetict. If the score is gerater than the number in the model's profile, the test has been failed, and something masty will occur, as detailed in the rule that called for the test.

Where a model (or a unit) has more than one value for the same characteristic, as is the case with cavalry, for example, a characteristic test is always taken against the highest of the values.

AUTOMATIC PASS AND FAIL

When taking a characteristic test a natural roll of 6 is always a failure, and a natural 1 is always a success, regardless of any other modifiers. However, if the model has a characteristic of 0 or - it automatically fails the test.

LEADERSHIP TESTS

At certain times, a model or unit might be called upon to take a Leadership test. This represents them drawing upon their courage to face disheartening circumstances.

To take a Leadership test, red 2D6. If the result is opal to c less than the model's Leadership value, then the test has been passed. If the result is greater than the model's Leadership value, a suitably dire consequence will occur, as detailed in the rule that called for the test. This will normally involve the unit turning and in a differing from the enemy. Note that a natural, unmofilier, duri taip d'a (i.e. rolling a double 1) is always considered to be a pass, regardless of any modifier that might apply.

If a unit includes models with different Leadership values, always use the one with the highest Leadership – warriors naturally look to the most steadfast of their number for guidance.

LINE OF SIGHT

Line of sight determines what a model can 'see'. Many situations call for you to determine whether or not a model has line of sight. A model normally needs line of sight whenever it wishes to attack an enemy, whether with sword, spell or bow.

Line of sight literally represents your warriors' view of the enemy – they must be able to see their foe through, under or over the battlefield terrain, and other models (friendly or enemy).

For one model to have line of sight to another, you must be able to trace an unblocked line from its eyes to any part of the body (i.e. the head, torso, arms or legs) of the target.

Sometimes, all that will be visible of a model is a weapon, banner or other ornament he is carrying. In these cases, the model is not visible. Similarly, we ignore wings and tails, even though they are technically part of a model's body. These rules are intended to ensure that models don't get penalised for having impressive banners, swords, and so on.

Namelli, you car't ask your models what they can so — they replace and model, so a reply minimum care and the second second second models and the second there's a full are building in the way, the energy induction of the second seco

SEQUENCING

Whilst every effort has been made to make sure that the sequencing of rules is untrily clear, occasionally you'll find that two or more rules are to be resolved at the same time – normally at the start of the Movement phase' or similar. When this happens, and the wording is not explicit as to which rule is resolved first, then the player whose turn it is chooses the order.



Wood Elf-Glade Guard

BASIC RULES AND ADVANCED RULES

Finally, it's worth remembering that the rules for Warhammer are broken up into two distinct halves: basic rules and advanced rules.

Basic rules apply to all the models in the game, unless specifically stated otherwise. They include the rules for movement, shooting, close combat and so on, as well as the rules for Panic tests. These are all the rules you'll need for your average infinitry model.

Advanced rules apply to specific types of model, whether because they have a special kind of weapon (such as a spear), unusual skills (such as flaming attacks or the ability to regenerate damaged flesh), because they are different to their fellows (such as a standard bearer or a mighty hero), obecause they are not normal infantry models (a knight, a cannon or even a Dragon). The advanced rules that apply to a unit are indicated in the entry for the unit in their relevant Warhammer Armies book.

BASIC VERSUS ADVANCED

Where rules apply to a specific model, they always override any contradicting basic rules. For example, the basic rules state that a model must take Panic test under certain situations. If, however, that model has a rule that makes it immune to Panic, then it does not test for Panic – the advanced rule takes precedence.

On rare occasions, a conflict will arise between a rule in this rulebook, and one printed in a Warhammer Armies book. Where this occurs, the rule printed in the Warhammer Armies book always takes precedence.



Decarf Warris



THE TURN

A Warhammer battle is a chaotic thing. Units of bellowing warriors charge and counter-charge, hacking at the foc with axe, sword and cleaver. The ground trembles to the hooves of galloping cavalry. Archers blacken the skies with arrows, cannons belch forth death and puissant sorcerers wield devastating magies.

In order to turn the machtrom of battle into a manageable game, players alternate moving and fighting with their units. So, one player will move and fight with his forces first, and then the opponent will move and fight. This process is then repeated, with the first player moving and fighting again, and so on until the game is done.

During his turn, a player can usually move and fight will all of his units. For convenience and flow of game play, we divide a player's turn into four main phases: Movement, Magic, Shooting and Close Combat.

This means you move any models you want to first, then cast spells, then shoot and finally resolve any close combats. This process helps to keep track of what is going on and makes it easier to know when one player's actions are over and the opponent can start his turn (and take his revenge).



TURN SUMMARY

1 MOVEMENT PHASE

Here, you move any of your units that are capable of doing so. See the Movement rules on page 13 for more details of hoco to do this.

2 MAGIC PHASE

In the Magic phase your Wizards can cast spells, whilst your opponent attempts to dispel them. See the Magic rules on page 28 for more details on casting spells.

3. SHOOTING PHASE

You note shoot with any of your units that are capable of doing so. See the Shooting rales on page 38 for more details on hore to resolve this.

4 CLOSE COMBAT PHASE

During the Close Combat phase all troops in close combat fight. This is an exception to the normal turns sequence in that both sides fight, not just the side colosis turn it is. More information on fighting close combats can be found in the Close Combat rules on page 46.

THE TURN SEQUENCE

In a complete game turn, both players get a player turn, each divided into the Movement, Magie, Shooting and Close Combat phases, as shown opposite.

One game turn will therefore comprise two player turns, each with its own Movement, Magie, Shooting and Close Combat phases. Whenever a rule refers to a 'turn', whether in this book, a Warhammer Armies book or an expansion, it means 'player turn', otherwise it will specifically state 'game turn'.

EXCEPTIONS

While playing your game of Warhanmer, you'll eccessionally discover exceptions to the general turns sequence laid out above, when things are worked out as they occur rather than in any strict ode, or perlays that both players will have to do something at the same time. Occasionally the actions of one player will trigger the sudden appearance of a particular troop type, or may activate some special rule or occurrence. When this happens, the exceptional rule will contain all the information you meed to resolve it.



Tomb Goard Standard Bearer

MOVEMENT

Mastery of the Movement phase is vital to your vietory on the battlefield. It is in this phase that you! attempt to ourmaneours your fore, by moving your archers and eavalry units to where they can best dominate the battlefield, positioning regiments to threate the energy flank and charfing your warriors into close combat when the time is right. The Movement phase is broken down into four sub-phases: Start of Turn, Charge, Compulsory Moves and Remaining Moves, as shown below.

Moving an army is an important and often decisive part of the Warhammer game. When opposing commanders are well matched, movement can be as challenging and satisfying as a good game of chess. However, unlike a chessboard, the tabletop is not divided into exact squares. Instead, movement is determined using a measuring tape or ruler.

This chapter starts with the common rules for moving units on the tabletop and making basic manoeuvres, before diving into the sequence of the Movement phase itself. The same rules govern almost all movement.

Any exceptions that apply to chargers and flecing troops are discussed in the relevant subphase. Also, a few units move in a special way (flying creatures for example). These are exceptions to the usual rules which, for the sake of convenience, are discussed later in the book.

MOVING YOUR UNITS

A unit can move straight forward any distance up to its Movement value (M) in inches.

In Warhammer, a basic move for any model, and therefore any unit of models, is to move forward a number of inches up to their Movement characteristic.

Remember that individual models are not permitted to leave their units and so a unit effectively moves as a single entity. If, for whatever reason, there is more than one Move characteristic in the unit, then the entire unit is treated as having the same Move value as the slowest model.

Units are cumbersome, and find it hard to change direction. Models (and units) must move forward in a straight line, unless performing a manoeuvre, which we'll discuss in a moment.

I' APART

Whilst moving, a unit is not allowed to approach closer than 1° to another unit, friend or foe, or impassable terrain.

This rule is purely for clarity. It's important to be able to tell at a glance where one unit stops and another begins. If they're too close together, this can be particularly difficult – sepacially if both units look the same. Similarly, in the case of two units from encyclose to an one other of an which case there will be an inch between them) which case there will be an inch between them)

You'll notice that this rule does not apply to the charge moves discussed later. This is quite sensible, as the whole point of charging is to gat sensible, as the whole point of charging is to gat charged the sensible of the sensitive of the sensitive Cocasionally, a unit will have approached to which i' of a unit i did not charge as the result of moving into contact with a unit it did chargemay wish to modge the units further apart to maintain a willbud degree of clarity.

Give 'em an Inch ...

For many pours, genera have model the area with working their opponents have min-measured, all the stabilite transition of the once previous. The transh of the marke measuring mistakes from the states of the stability. The marke measuring mistakes from the attabule is to be operative as one of the stability of the measurement, the informat of any genuine weakers of any provide and distances of the star of any genuine weakers of any provide and distances of the star of any genuine weakers of the star distances of the star of any genuine weakers of any provide and distances of the star distances of the star of any genuine weakers of the star distances of the star of any genuine weakers of the star distances of the star of any genuine weakers of the star distances of the star of the star of the star distances of the star of the star of the star distances of the star of the star of the star distances of the star of the star of the star of the star distances of the star of the star of the star of the star distances of the star of the star of the star of the star distances of the star distances of the star of the

opponent consistently tries to take

When norving models is in a common maintake to measure the distance from the front of the base and then place the model is the back of it has it on the far hide of the tape measure. This is incorrer, as it adds the entire length of the model's base (or the unit's base) to the famore more).





Dark Elf Spearman

MANOEUVRES

There are two specific manoeuvres that enable a unit to change direction or rearrange its ranks: wheel and reform.

As with a normal move, a unit cannot carry out a manoeuvre if doing so would take it to within 1" of another unit.

Also, none of the models in the unit may move more than twice their Movement rate as a result of a manoeuvre (i.e. Men with Move 4 can move up to 8").



Is tobed, one corner of the formation is norced forward while learning the oppoint corner stationary to act as a pirot. The unit raving round the wheel and completes the manuscurve facing a different direction. Here we see a unit making three wheels to more round a wood.



WHEEL

A wheel manoeuvre is a basic turn performed by pivoting the unit around one of its front corners.

Performing a wheel is often the best way of making a model thereinto to the direction a sunit in facing whilst still being table to advance. When performing a wheel, the leading edge of the formation mores forward, pivoting round one of the front corners. The unit swings round like the spoke of a turning wheel and completes the manoeuver facing a different direction. You don't end to measure the distance wheeled by a charging unit, but during the Remaining Mores and-plane, wheels are measured as follow:

When a usit performs a wheel, every model counts an having moved as far as the outside model. Once the wheel is complete, you may use any movement that the unit has remaining. A using that is not transfer and a several times during its move, and indeed can mix forward movement and wheeling, as long as it has enough movement to do so. Units are not allowed to wheel backwards.

REFORM

You can completely rearrange your unit, so that it is facing in any direction, by giving up all other movement and shooting.

A unit of troops can change the direction in which it is facing and rearrange its formation all at once by means of a manoeuve called a reform. The leader issues the order to adopt a new formation and the troops move to assume their new positions.

Keeping the centre point of the unit the same, arrange the unit into a new formation of as many ranks as you please, facing whichever direction you wish. Remember that none of the models in the unit can move more than twice their Movement rate.

A reform is a compliated manoeuvre and ordinarily prevent the unit from noving any further that turn, and also stops it from firing missile waptons in the Shooting phase. However, if wheren storing that if the unit has a musician, there is a chance it will be able to carry out the reform and still be able to more, and even shoot if it has the appropriate waptons (see page 92 for more details).

THE MOVEMENT PHASE SEQUENCE

Work your way through the sub-phases shown in the summary on the left. The units in your army can act in whatever order you wish within each sub-phase, providing that you complete one sub-phase before moving onto the next.

ACC.

Each unit will normally only be allowed to act in one sub-phase (with the exception of Start of Turn) unless it has special rules that permit it to do otherwise.

THE FIRST TURN

At the very start of a battle, it is unlikely that there will be any units in range to charge, and there shouldn't be any fleeing models just yet either.

This means that unless some specific special rules are in play, or you have a model such as a Choos Spawn that always moves in the Compulsory Moves sub-phase, you can skip straight to remaining moves in the first player turn.

1. START OF TURN

The player first resolves any actions or rules that must happen at the start of the turn.

Some warriors will have special actions they have to perform at the start of the turn (Orcs and Goblins have to test for Animosity, for example). Such rules are not common, and their details will be clearly stated in the relevant Warhammer Armies book. If you don't have any actions to perform during the Start of Turn sub-phase, it's worth using it as a tide break (or breathing space) between one turn and the next where you can remove strary casualties, errant dice and all the other bits of gaming detritus that builds up on the battlefield as the game serve on





MOVEMENT PHASE SUMMARY

1. START OF TURN

Some models have particular actions they must take at the start of the turn.

2. CHARGE

The player can now attempt to have his units charge into close combat.

3. COMPULSORY MOVES

Sometimes a player has no choice over whether or not or how to move a unit, most commonly when they are fleeing.

4. REMAINING MOVES

As the name suggests, this is where all other norvement is resolved – 'normal' moves, for would of a better phrase.


Chances of Charging

as maximum to your country in making a susceptibil charge, it's worth homening that your average charge range call be capaal as the unit's Moree values added to 7 (this bring the initiality most likely result of realing 2D/0, So, for example, a unit of Shareen (Moree 5) is quite likely to charge around 12". A shorter distance is a after bot, but of attempting a longer charge, you call need a bio of extra lask on your side.

2. CHARGE

The Change sub-phase is perhaps the most important part of the Movement phases - this is where youll unleady your forces to the bloody work of close cendrat. Battles can be won or lost on the timing of a change. Change too soon, and your troops will fer and lose momentum before they much the energy and the change will all short; wait too long and the energy will instead change you, but choose the right moment and the momentum of the change will sweep your warrises to glorious systep;

In this sub-phase, you'll choose one of your units and declare the charge you want it to make. Your opponent will then have the chance to have his unit hold its ground or react to the charge, either by standing and shooting or fleeing.

Once the charge reaction has been resolved, you can nominate another of your units to declare a charge, and so on, until all of your charges have been declared and reacted to – then you get to make your charge rolls and resolve the charges.

DECLARE CHARGE

The player picks one of his units and announces which enemy unit it will charge. The enemy must make its charge reaction before another charge can be declared.

The first thing you need to do in the charge sub-phase is to dockne say charges you wish to make. Except in a few unnual circumstances, you are never forced to charge. It's almost always your decision, so don't let a glib-tongord approxem tell you otherwise! However, charging is the only way for units to reach close conduct with the ro. If you want to attack an enemy then you must charge him – you simply cannot move into close combat without having declared a charge.

To declare a charge you must indicate which of your units is charging, and which enemy unit it is going to charge. For example, you might wish to declare that your Skaven Clanat unit is charoine the Hioh Elf Searmen.

You're always allowed to measure the distance between the charger and the potential chargee before declaring the charge, as this might well affect your decision whether or not to declare a charge! When you declare a charge, one or more of the models in your unit must be able to trace a line of sight to the enemy unit, and the target must lie at least partially within the charging unit's front arc.

CAN I CHARGE?

State State

Not all units can charge. The most common reason for a unit being unable to charge is because it is already fighting in close combat, but other circumstances, such as the eing, or the effect of a special rule, can also prevent a unit from declaring a charge. These other situations are fairly rare, and they will be clearly explained when you encounter them.

A unit cannot declare an impossible charge – ice one that it cannot possible complex, either because the enemy unit is outside of the chargers' maximum possible charge range, or because intervening, obstructions make it impossible for the unit to make a charge move that allows it to move into contact. Note that if mouse of the intervening unit will have not of the charges' way before the charge is complex, the charge is 'possible', and therefore can be declared (remember that you still need to see the target to declare the charge thought).

To make such a judgement, you'll need to know how a charge move is completed (see page 18).

CHARGE REACTION

An enemy unit that has had a charge declared against it must hold or perform a charge reaction – shooting at the chargers or retreating from the threat. Once the charger reaction is complete, the charging player can declare a charge with another unit, until he has declared all the charges he wishes to.

When you declare a charge, the target unit isn't necessarily going to sit there passively waiting for your warriors to bear down on it, oh no!

Depending on the target's armament and general fighting ability, it might choose to steel itself for the charge's impact, all the better to fight off the attackers, fire a volley of arrows or other missiles into the oncoming chargers, or simply decide to opt for discretionary valour and file from the fore.

CHARGE SUMMARY

- i. Declare a charge.
- ii. Resolve charge reaction.
- iii Go back to step i, until all units you wish to charge have done so.
- iv. Move all charging units, in any order you like.

The response your unit makes when a charge is declared is referred to as a charge reaction. As your opponent declares a charge, you can declare a charge reaction for your charged unit. There are two types of charge reaction: Stand and Shoot and Fleel A unit that does not make a charge reaction is always considered to Hold.

HOLD

If a unit Holds, it stands fast in place to receive the charge.

A unit will normally elect to Hold if it has no missile weapons and fancies its chances in the coming fight. Units that are already in close combat can only Hold. Holding units stay exactly as they are and await the charging foe.

STAND AND SHOOT

If a unit elects to perform a Stand and Shoot reaction it readies its missile weapons and gives the charging unit a swift volley. Obviously, a Stand and Shoot reaction can only be declared if the unit has missile weapons of some kind.

As the unit requires time to aim and fire its weapons, a Stand and Shoot reaction can only be declared if the range to the enemy is greater than the charging unit's Move characteristic.

For example, if a unit of Orcs (Move 4) declares a charge against a unit of Empire Handgumners, the Handgumners can only declare a Stand and Shoot if the Orcs are more than 4^{*} avvay.

If a Stand and Shoot charge reaction is declared, the unit makes a normal, although out of sequence, shooting attack against the charging unit (see the Shooting Phase on page 18 for more details on shooting attacks). Once the shooting attack, and any Panit test caused by it (see page 62), have been resolved, the unit is treated as having declared a hold reaction.

A Stand and Shoot reaction can be declared against an enemy with that starts its charge outside the firing unit's maximum range – the shooting is resolved normally assuming the enemy is just within maximum range of the shooting unit's shortest-ranged weapon. If the charge fails, for whatever reason, we assume that the charger closed to within the weapons' maximum range before being driven off. In most cases, there's no downside to a Stand and Shoot over simply holding. You'll probably manage to pick off a few enemies as they charge, so it's normally a good idea to shoot if you can.

FLEE!

Finally, a Flee! reaction is exactly what it sounds like: the unit turns tail and runs rather than receive the charge.

You'll normally want to declare a Fleel reaction if you think that your unit has no chance of surviving the ensuing fight. A Fleel reaction is not always voluntary – units that are already fleeing must declare a Fleel reaction, and certain terrifying creatures may force an otherwise steady to unit to Fleel instaul of other options (see the rules for Flerror on page 78).

If a unit chooses a Flee! reaction, for whatever reason, use the following procedure:

- Immediately turn the unit about its centre so that it is facing directly away from the centre of the charging enemy unit (ignore other units or impassable terrain). This turn is 'free' and does not reduce the distance the unit will flee.
- After turning, the unit flees 2D6" in the direction it is facing, as described under Move Fleeing Units in the Compulsory Moves sub-phase (see page 25).

It should be noted that a Flee! reaction does not guarantee escape from oncoming chargers. If the fleeing unit rolls poorly and the chargers roll well, the fleeing unit might yet be caught, as we'll discuss later.

Let me just get something from my wagon

Electing in h just the last resert of constant and accommercia. A convex general can use a timely Flee! to pull a har-bloaded money out of their hardleines and inste a trug, there to be powered on and annihilated. Of course, such measurem area? coildeant risk — your flering unit neight never raily and, course, coold

oren battleline.





Crupt Ghaul

REDIRECTING THE CHARGE

If the target unit declares a Flord reaction, the damping unit on two has a choice it can either attempt to complete the charge againstift nonbeing unit, or try to reflere this charge by making a Lackarship teet. If the test is findel, the charging unit must attempt to complete the charge against its original argset. If the test is paued, however, the charging unit can declare a freak chargen gainst norder viable target the horgen gainst charge a charge maxima as normal). If there are no other mishler targets to damg, a charging unit cannot test to reaffered.

Each unit can only make one redirect per turn.

FLEEING OFF THE BATTLEFIELD

If a fleeing unit touches the edge of the battlefield (or indeed has spilled over it), the entire unit is removed from play and counts as destroyed. We assume that having fled so far from the battle, the remaining troops scatter, regrouping only after the battle is over.

CHARGING MORE THAN ONE UNIT

A unit can normally only deducts a charge at a single energy unit. However, if there is no way at all of completing the charge against an energy unit without toaching another (sometimes also declare a charge against the other unit)). Each target unit must declare and needbe its own charge reaction (in the order chosen by their controlling placy). As normal, any units that do not declare charge reactions are assumed to hold.



THERE'S TOO MANY OF THEM!

A unit might well be called upon to make several charge reactions over the course of a Charge sub-phase, if it is charged by several enemy units.

A unit can only Stand and Shoot once in a Charge sub-phase – there is no time to reload. This is not to say that the Stand and Shoot must be used against the first charging unit – the chargee can opt to Hold against the first charge and Stand and Shoot against the second charge. It could even then elect to Flee! in reaction to a third charge if it wished!

A unit that Flees! once in a Charge sub-phase will have to keep fleeing if it has more charges declared against it, as described earlier.



For example, a sum of Night Goldmin delawar as hoper against a unit of High EJ Archiven. The Elser could stand and shout at the Goldon, but the hoper high Could have a start of the High Relevlation and the hoper high Could are reported as the Night Goldon charge, it is its men and, the Welf Koldon dasheen absourd approximation for the Night could have hoper and the hoper leads of the hoper and the hoper and the hoper of the hoper and have a start, a starting Goldon physical and Show, the Elsev advantshow from $4\pi^2$ there is a start of the Herl Well result and and Show, the Elsev advantshow from $4\pi^2$ there is a start of the Herl

ROLL CHARGE RANGE AND MOVE CHARGERS

With all the charge reactions declared and encoded, if's into use whether or not the charges were successful. There are many factors that can prevent a charge litting home. The unit might become disordered as it surgests forward, with warries (softia) are another in their laste to reach the prep. Perhaps the charging unit is simply unrilling to chow with the energy, and therefore hostiant in their advance. Or it may unity be a loss of momentum as the chargers time more quickly and was believed that they would.

Work through the charges one at a time, in any order decided by the player whose turn it is, calculating the charge distance for each and resolving the resultant successful or failed charge before moving on to the next unit (the only exception is when several units charge a single target – see page 23).

Unlikely Flights

Souncing vgall fjord that the for rdar crass umaxual itination, for example, a with ransing heading to morate the energy faces, or perhaps fiering from a small energy unit and harding ized joins the arms of a moch meri adagesture. For him receipt and harden with the instantional amaxuments — hely re any factatod with here much italiantional amaxuments — hely re appared homes the fight heat here deal it cognises other dangers and it is to balance

CALCULATING CHARGE RANGE

A unit's charge range is equal to 2D6" plus its Movement value. If the charge range is equal to or greater than the distance to the enemy unit, the charge is successful. If the charge range is less than the distance to the enemy, the charge is filed.

A sysa might expect, the charge range of a unit is loade on its Novelan – a faster unit can charge further than a slow unit, as a entriey sensible. That said, it is only right that units can charge further than their More value, as we're susming them to be going all-out in order to get to grips with the foe. To represent this, as well as the caprice of first, a unit's charge range is the same of its More value and a 2D0 roll in index or 2D0+4N. This can make charges somewhat uncertain at gratter distances – jout as they would be in rule life.

With the unit's charge range established, measure the distance between the charging unit and its target. If the distance is greater than the charge range, then the charging unit realises that if has insufficient momentum to reach the energy and instead makes what we call a failed charge. If the distance is less than or equal to the charge range, then the charging unit has reached the energy and makes a successful charge. If you're charging several energy units, remember that the rolled charge distance must be sufficient to reach both units, otherwise the charge can only be resolved against those units within range.

FAILED CHARGE

A unit that makes a failed charge moves directly towards its target a number of inches equal to the highest dice rolled for the charge.

A unit that makes a failed charge has started towards the enemy, but soon realises that it is impossible to cover the distance. The warriors in the unit lose impetus as the enthusiasm for the charge peters out.



Beautoman Gos



If a unit makes a failed charge it moves directly towards the target a distance equal to the highest score rolled on the 2D6 of the charge roll (i.e. if the dice showed 2 and 5, the failed charge move would be 5^{*}), wheeling around impassable terrain and units, both friends and enemies, by the shortest route.





Unexpected Problems Sometimes you'll declare a

charge thinking that it can be completed, but then discover data provinsive of where waita, and a provinsive of where waita, and a provinsive of the second mean it was by prevents the mean it was by prevents the mach errorsmitance, I find it was to streat the charge as thereing fields, using the rules thereing fields, and the premain of the second termination, and the second termination of the declare that the second terming is do it declare that the charge means.



MOVE CHARGERS

Successful chargers now move into base contact with the enemy. They move directly forward, but are permitted one wheel of up to 90° as they move, and another of unlimited are once in contact. As many models as possible from the two units must be brought into base contact.

If your charge range was sufficient, it's time to complete the charge and move into base contact with the enemy. A charging unit can move an unlimited amount – it's already been found to be within charge range, so we don't worry about distance from this point on.

That stail, the charge move is subject to an important restriction: the unit matter move straight abad, except that, during this move, it may make a single sheel of up to 90°. You are free to make this wheel in order to phase your suit there were you like against the facing of the enemy suit that is being charged, the enember that you must bring as many possible, from both usides! Therefore this wheel cannot be used an reduce the number of models in hose contact, unless of course you have no schice, and on reduce the number of model in hose contact, unless of course you have no schice, and you need to wheel for the unit to avoid intervening units and impossible terrain in order to couplet the charge.

It's important to note that a unit can move to within 1° of another unit when charging – not just the one that it is charging – this is the only time that this is normally allowed.

Aligning to the Enemy

On most occasions, moving the chargers in the manner described above sill know the charging unit and the target unit in base context at a pocular angle with an cod gap in between, which looks firstly strange. Of course, what would harpen in a real battle is that the warrisor of the two units would quickly more to attack their enemissand, in so doing, close the gap—so this is exactly what we do in Wethammer.

Once the charging unit contacts the enemy unit, it must perform a second, bonus wheel if required to bring its front facing into flush contact with the facing of the enemy unit that has been charged, maximising the number of models in base contact on both sides. We refer to this as 'closing the door'.

FLANK AND REAR CHARGES

Sometimes you may find that your models are able to charge an enemy unit in the flank or rear. This is particularly good because an attack from an unexpected direction gives you an advantage in combat.

A charging unit's position when the charge is declared determines whether it charges into the front, flank or rear of the enemy unit. If the charging unit is in the target's frontal zone when the charge is declared then it charges into the front. As units generally begin the game facing each other, this is the most common situation that will arise. However, if the charging unit comes from the flank zone, it charges into the side; if in the rear zone, it charges into the rear. Whether a charger is in the front, flank or rear of its intended target is determined before charges are declared, so make sure you check bofore charge reactions are declared.

If a charging unit straddles two zones, then the unit is considered to be in the zone where the majority of the models in its front rank are. If there is no clear majority, roll a dice.

Front to Back

Facing is hopefy important in a class conduct — if you'r attaching the enemy in the flank or reac you're much more likely to exin the fight. That's only at's absolutely created that, if here's babes at to exhich facing your wait well be charging you advant well charge is dealered — he might with rear!



UNUSUAL SITUATIONS

Sometimes a charging unit can more into contatt with its trace, but cannot chock the doer because something else less in the way, normally and the second second second second second hardware in the charging player should attempt to avoid the obstruction. This can normally be achieved by interacting or doer sing the amount should be the second close the doer with the chargest metra (second close the doer with the chargest metra) (second second second second second do in reality. If no amount of finagling can allow the unit to avoid the obstacle, the charge fails.

There is one important principle that you should always keep in mind when charging: under no circumstances can a unit use its charge move to move into contact with an enemy it has not declared a charge against.







both Costen units have declared charges against the Leoney, one have rulled sufficiently high to complete their charges successfully.

The Goldins' controlling player must wrot not the free tohest and alignment moves to bring an equal number of models from bath his units (or as near as possible) into contact with the Dwarfs.

CHARGING A FLEEING ENEMY

If, for whatever reason, a unit completes a charge against a fleeing enemy, move the charging unit() into contact with the fleeing enemy as described earlier and then the fleeing unit is run down by the chargers. Most of the unit is hacked part or trampled to death, and the few survivors head for the hulls with no intention of fighting further – remove the entire unit a scasalities.

A charging unit that destroys freeing troops in this way will often din is der Jurile out of position and vulnerable to ensumy counterdenges. Accordingly we allow the charging unit to attempt a reform by pussing a Laderchip text. If the text is fulled, the troops are so overcome with hacking at the fullen coppes that they do not have the chance to reform. If the text is passed, the unit immediately muscles areform manourve (see page 14). In either case, the unit cannot more there during the Movement relass.

MULTIPLE CHARGES ON A UNIT

If several units have declared a charge against a single unit, then onl the charge diames of these units at the same time. The charge moves of the charging units must be made as far as possible to equalise the number of models fighting from each charging unit. Remember, however, that your primary goal is always to maximise the number of models fighting — it is acceptable to how more models fighting — it is acceptable to the overall number of models futhing.

On occasion, exceptional dice rolls from charging units might mean that more units can complete the charge than can fit in base context with the target. When this happens, the controlling player of the charging units must nominate which units complete the charge against the targetFare control as having made a field charge.



Chaos Champion of Khorne



Flee

3. COMPULSORY MOVES

Generally speaking, a player can more his unitshowever he withse within the confines of the rules governing movement. However, sometimes troops go and control for some reason, either because they are control for some reason, either because they are completel by magic, or because they are disorientated (or just not very bright to begin with). The player has no control over the movement of such troops and so these are referred to as compasiony moves.

All compulsory movement is carried out after charges have been resolved, but before other movement takes place.

Fleeing is the most common type of compulsory move – only the luckiest general will not have to witness the unhappy specticle of his own troops attempting to escape the battle. Nou must resolve the actions of any fleeing troops before those of other compulsory moves. Happily, before your faithless dogs continue their flight, you have a chance to railly them!



Movement Etiquette

The nature of a game of Worknammer, the recent derivation is its forguest over and the stability of the model threaders means that it is interpreted as the measurement of transport second as inclusions of the stabtic stability of the stability of the fraction of an inclusion of the model, and the stability of the stability during tapes as in it shows to have during tapes as in its shows to have coperating about suscessful the spectrum of the stability of the spectrum of the stability of the spectrum of the stability of the spectrum of spectrum of the spectrum of the

RALLY FLEEING UNITS

The player takes Leadership tests for each fleeing unit he has. If the test is passed, the unit stops fleeing and immediately reforms. A unit that has less than 25% of its starting models left can only rally on a roll of double 1.

Battlefields are girm and deadly places, where the threar of death (or a fac worse than death)) forever harks. As the game goes on, some of your warriors will invisibly lose heart or be terrified out of their wist by the unremitting arrange all around them. It is a fortunate general who can redy on his men to press on through thick and thin, any matter what horress the day brings. All two often, warriors will break from the fight and the the hards, decing for a chance of survival over martial duty. Fortunately for you, during the Compulsory Moves sub-phase you are allowed a chance to whip some discipline into these cowardly curs and get them back into the fight, where they belong.

During the Compulsory Moves sub-phase, the player picks any one of his flexing units and tests to rally it (as explained helow). He then proceeds to the next flexing unit and attempts to rally it, and so on, in any order he wishes, until all units that are able to make a rally attempt have done so.

If the unit started to flee in this turn it cannot attempt to rally – there's too much momentum built up already!

A unit attempts to rally by taking a Leadership test, as described on page 10. If the flexing unit has been reduced in size to a quarter (25%) or less of the number of models with which it began the game, it can only pass its Rally test on a double 1, regardless of its Leadership value (the survivors are too demonilised to give all but the scantet consideration to rallving).

If the Rally test is failed the unit continues to flee, as described opposite.

If the Rally test is successful, the unit stops filtering. Order is resorted as cheffnins, champions and leaders lush a few heads together, or manage to bellow a few well-shoen motivational words (or lare-faced threats) over the thander of company few thild head to the thander of company few thild head to fully fighting fit in time for your next true. You may list to mark freshy railed unlist with a coin or construct of some description, so you don't get them confued with out root root root.

A unit that has successfully railled immediately makes a reform maneouvers, as described on page 14, so that the controlling player can at least get his troops pointed towards the enemy again, rather than the wild blue yooker. A railled unit cannot perform further actions during the Movement planes, and losses its opportunity to make a shooting ratick in the Shooting planes, as thet troops are too buay reorganising themselves after their headong flight.

MOVE FLEEING UNITS

Any units that do not rally must immediately flee 2D6" in the direction they are facing. Every model that flees through an enemy unit or impassable terrain must take a Dangerous Terrain test.

If, despite the player's best efforts, a unit continues to flee, it will continue its headlong flight for safety, moving 2D6" straight ahead in the direction it is facing. Some particularly swift units flee faster, but we'll discuss those later on.

As thering troops are assumed to have broken formation, they ignore obtained on any kind on shops stream. Flexing troops more through other main (fried on for) and impossible termin, as they are assumed to run around the distriction, or fore their way through, fuelled as they are by sheer desperation. If the fore more ound result in the fullerguint ending up 'on top' of or within 0" of another unit or impossible torizin, then it circits on flexing straight forward until it is past the obstruction, and will then halt.

Fleeing through enemies or impossible terrain is not without its dangers. Enemies may be quickwitted enough to capture or slay several of the fleeing troops as they run past, while the shere drops, deep water and dense undergrowth of impossible terrain present all kinds of hazards to a warrior more concerned about what he is running from than what he is running into. Accordingly, each fleeing model must pass a Dangerous Terrain test for each enemy unit or area of impassable terrain that it flees through. More information on Dangerous Terrain tests and impassable terrain can be found in the Battlefield Terrain chapter on page 116.

There are consequences for a unit fleering through friends as well – having allies stream past you in a panicked state is not conducive to maintaining your confidence in victory, after alli Any unit that has friends flee through it must take a Panic test; as described on page 62, as youn as the fleering unit has completed its move:

As soon as a fleeing unit moves into base contact with the battlefield edge, it flees the battle and does not return — we assume that its warriors scatter to the four winds. Such a unit counts as destroyed to all intents and, more importantly, all rules purposes.

OTHER COMPULSORY MOVES

Aside from flering troops, units that are forced to move in the Computatory Moves sub-phase otherwise fallow the normal movement rules, andless clearly stated. Any further rules that apply to units that have a compulsory move will be described in their entry in the relevant army look, for example, they will offen have to move at a set speed or in a given direction. These compalsory moves can be resolved in any order the controlling player wishes, providing that all fleed moves have already here completed.



fretonnian Grail Pilgrim





All the Right Moves

It's easy to soo remaining motion as being a little unimportant after the intensity of the charging, bay working could be further from the truth. It's here that you're guing in set up your motiong of this torvis magic and theoring attacks). Just researcher, that the clearry you move to the ensemp, the more likely he is to charge you in his following new.

4. REMAINING MOVES

With all your charges and computery mores attended us, you can not more the ref of your army. While it might lack the drama of the damage, the remaining mores sub-plane is no less important. It is here that you'll mancourte your unisis in order to see up your own charges of future turns, as well as attempt to deep fortudenges your opposent will with a make. Remaining mores can also be used to mancourte missile thoogs and wiranch's on that they have suitable targets, size important areas of the battlefold and so co...

MOVING YOUR UNITS

During the Remaining Moves sub-phase, units that did not charge, flee, rally or compulsorily move this Movement phase, and which are not engaged in combat, can now move and perform manœuvres as described on page 13.

The player picks one of his units and moves it a distance up to the unit's Move value (M) in inches. Once the chosen unit has finished its movement, the player can pick and move another unit, until all the eligible units the player wishes to move have done so.

MOVING BACKWARDS

Units can not only move forward, they can also move backwards. Moving backwards is a tricky proposition, and warriors tend to shuffle carefully rather than stride purposefully when moving backwards. To represent this, a unit that moves backwards moves at half rate, i.e. it counts the distance moved as being double what it actually is.

MOVING SIDEWAYS

To get a body of warrices to move to either flank is no small challenge, especially if you want to maintain a viable fighting formation (as you do). To represent this, a unit that moves sideways moves at half rate, i.e. it counts the distance moved as being double what it actually is.

Units may not mix forward, backward and/or sideways movement as part of the same move. Remember that units can only wheel when moving forwards.

For example, a unit of Elves (Move 5) would be able to move 5" forwards or 3" (2.5" rounded up) backwards or to the side.

MARCHING

Troops can move at double speed. If they start their move within 8" of an enemy, they must pass a Leadership test to do so.

Marching at the double allows troops that are away from the heart of the battle to move more rapidly. This represents the swift movement of reserves to a critical area by means of a rapid march and helps to ensure that units do not get stranded away from the fighting.

Marching troops move at twice their normal Movement rate, with wappons shatted or shouldered. They are intenally (going at the double'. A unit on the march is not permitted to referm, as this would disrupt it in snowment, nor is it allowed to move backwards or to the side. It can wheel as normal, as you might imagine a column of troops would in order to follow a road, for example.

It's also worth noting that a unit that has marched in the Movement phase cannot shoot missile weapons during the Shooting phase, so think carefully before you commit your missile troops to a march.



ENEMY SIGHTED!

A unit that is on the march is not prepared for comba, so troops are reductant to march while a potentially threatening energy in neutry. If you with a unit to march when a non-flexing energy unit is within 8°, it will first have to take a Landenkip text. If the ext is passed, the unit danggath the neutry for and marches a non-march and still more than the neutron of the start present and the start March and the neutry for and marches a non-march and still more than the neutron line start of a unit attrangts an Energy Signature tax and finks, it is in larmed as having marched, even if its controlling player then elses not to have the unit move at all.



Skaven Planne Censer Bearer

LONE MODELS AND MOVEMENT

Units that consist of a single model, such as monsters, chariots, lone characters or sole survivors of annihilated units, are mostly moved the same as other units.

They now, when and murch has like a larger unit. The one ecception is that a single mode can pixot on the spot as many times as it wishes over the course of its move. It can do so without penalty and so pixoting does not prevent models from marching, or even from shoring later in the turn. This represents the garater freedom of morement that an individual creature enjoys over its fallows in a ranked-up and disciplined int _ although so model that pixots on the spot does count as moving for the purposes of shoring and so on.

On some occasions, notably when charging, a lone model has to perform a wheel (when charging, a lone model must follow the normal charge rules, which do not allow pivots, only one wheel whilst moving, and another to 'close the door'). In this case, wheel from one of the front corres as you would for other units.

MOVING OFF THE BOARD

Except in the case of flecing troops (as discussed earlier) and pursuing troops (see the Close Combat Phase on page 56) units are not permitted to move off the board.

REINFORCEMENTS

Sometimes the rules will call for a unit to enter the battle. Where this happens, we refer to the unit entering play as reinforcements.

Units that enter the battle (also referred to as moving onto the board) as reinforcements are placed in lasse contact with the board edge (upon which board edge, and where, will depend upon the rule that triggers the reinforcements) facing directly towards the battlefield and with all of its rear rank touching the battlefield edge.

A unit that enters as reinforcements cannot charge, as it has missed its opportunity to declare charges, and may not march, but can otherwise participate in the game normally. It's worth bearing in mind that the unit counts as having moved for the purposes of shooting.



Daemsnette of Slaanesh





MAGIC

The Warhammer world is an intrinsically magical place, where moviated energy infrastes the very hand itself. In battle, magic is a force are and movem as a word black. The battlefield use of magics is limited only the imagination and shill of the Warard that wideh. It. Magics can be a subtle force, infrasting through wirands with the start of the magnetic her are power that is at the heart of magic's chaotic nature, summoning langer frastratoms of extrasting black of definite power.

With the Movement phase completed, it's time for your Wizards to unleash their powerful serveries. You'll find that the Magic phase taps into some of the rules detailed later in the book, so if you're not yet familiar with much of Warhammer be prepared to do a little flicking back and forth as you read through this section. As with everything in Warhammer, the more you play, the more you'll remember without having to constantly refer to the rulebook.

WIZARDS

Models that can cast spells are known collectively as Wizards, although specific armies might use other terms.

Before we get into discussing the Magic phase proper, it's worth shalling a life in time introduce the idea of Winards and their spells. Only icean happen some sensorm motal might can even happen to bend the powers of imagic to those manages that is a special straight of their manages of the special straight of their manages phase in the special straight of the manages phase in the special straight of the Warlammer, we commonly refer to a model and infrare power and out an abultants. In a Warlammer, we commonly refer to a model and the special straight of the special straight of these and these and enters are considered to be trose of Winard.

WIZARD LEVEL

Wizards have a level from 1 to 4. The higher a Wizard's level, the more powerful he is.

Naturally, not all Waards are equals – mastery of magic increases through dedicated practice. As one might expect, a showard-year-old High Eff mage will likely have more majoral poorer in the Importal Colleges of Magic has in his entire the Importal Colleges of Magic has in his entire body. We need? asymet for sorting between these levels of winardly potent; and that system is the Winard level. The higher a model's Winzer level, the more accompliabed a specificative his i. A higher-level Winzerd will know more spells than a lower-level Winzerd. Similarly, he'll be able to put more power behind his apells and receive higher bounces when attempting to cast them. There are four Winzerl levels, each more powerful and levered stars there. If you're unsure what -level any of your Winzerls are, refer to the relevant Workmoure Armins Dock for details.

SPELLS

Each Wizard knows a number of spells equal to his level, chosen randomly at the start of each battle.

In the Magic phase your Wizards unleash their magical power in the form of spells. Spells can be terribly destructive or powerfully protective, or might confer special abilities of some form.

Wizards are assumed to know dozens of different spells, or even hundreds, from complicated time-consuming rituals to party tricks, charms and minor alchemics. However, when it comes to a battle only a limited selection of magic is of any value.

The number of spells a Wizzrd takes into battle is equal to his Wizzrd level. Some powerful Wizards have more, but this is most definitely the exception to the rule. You must roll for each of your Wizards' spells before they are deployed to the battlefield – see the Reference section.



Shaven Grey Seer Thanquoi

THE LORES OF MAGIC

The Lores of Magic are lists from which Wizards generate their spells. Different Wizards have access to different Lores of Magic. The eight most common lores are presented in the Reference section.

As has already been hinted at, the possible applications of mangia ere many and varied, leading to a potentially vast array of spells to conversions: (to say nothing of our already tenuous annity vary few Wizards in the Warhammer world have the gumption to harress the full spectrum of magic, and instead concentrate on matering one or more magical disciplines, or lores.

There are many magical lores. Most represent fragments of 'pure' magic as practiced by the High Elves. Each lore has a particular character, which is reflected by each spell within it. The tace of Metal, for example, is grounded in alchemy, and its spells therefore at through the transmatistion of one substance into another. The eight most common lorse, scheding the eight discriptions that the High Elevs one et unglit to men, are collined at the lack of this look. About all races can use our orm ore discrelores, depending on tool. Many races alonger descent other orms, using expell lows, such as the forsemely distructive Wangkl magits of the relevant Warhammer Armite book will contain the necessary public force).

Choosing Your Lore

The choice of which lore each of your Wizard models know for a particular battle must be made when choosing your army, as explained on page 134.

A Lore unto Itself

Each of the Warknesseever spell lower (whecher printed in this look), or in a Warknesseer Arweice book) has its scen strengths and construsts. Bear this is mind when choosing the lower(j) you count to use. Sometimes it's from to pile a lower colicie is particularly effective against a carried group of armies bad, as you don't alonger known to have, you don't alonger known to have your on gainstat al may be best to ge for a lower colicie is god against all first.

THE MAGIC PHASE SEQUENCE

Now we've established the basic principles of Wizards and their spells, it's time to dive into the Magic phase. The Magic phase starts with both sides determining how much magical power can be tapped into this turn. The player whose turn it is (the casting player) will be seeking to draw down enough power to cast his spells, whilst his opponent (the dispelling player) will be gathering magical energy to dispel any spells being cast.

MAGIC SUMMARY

1 ROLL FOR WINDS OF MAGIC

The Winds of Magic are generated by rolling 2D6. The strength of the Winds of Magic will determine how many porcer dice the casting player has, as well as how many diped dice the dispelling player has.

2 CAST

One of the casting player's Wizards now attempts to cast a spell, using power dice. If the casting attempt fails, that Wizard cannot attempt another this turn.



3. DISPEL

If the spell was cast, one of the dispelling player's Wizards can wore attempt to commer the spell using dispel dice. If the dispelling player does not have any Wizards, a dispel can still be attempted, but the number of dice is limited.

4. SPELL RESOLUTION

Assuming the spell has been cast and not dispelled, its effect is now applied.

5. NEXT SPELL

Repeat steps 2 through 4 until the casting player cannot cast, or no longer wishes to cast, any more spells.



Empire Light Wizard



How many Magicians? In the Warhammer world, all manic is derived from the same source - the fickle Winds of Maric that still across the coord from the Realm of Chaos the Winds of Magic vary from time to time, waxing and pattern, Wezards must therefore barn to ale tabatever potter the Winds of Maric provide. whether in empowering their spells, or disrupting these of enemy surcevers. Thus, magic is not a sure strategy for any reneral, for phough it can runch avide entire armies when the

general, for though it can receip axide entire armies when the Winde of Magic are strong, it is almest without power when the Winds of Magic are halled.

1. ROLL FOR WINDS OF MAGIC

Roll 2D6 to determine the strength of the Winds of Magic.

At the start of each Magic phase, the casting player determines the strength of the Winds of Magic by rolling 2D6.

THE POWER POOL

The amount of power available to the casting player is equal to the total rolled for the Winds of Magic.

He takes a sumber of disc equal to the Winds of Magic roll and makes up a 'pool' of power disc to represent this reservoir of power. When a Witard casts a spell, he takes a number of disc from the power pool in order to make the attempt. Accordingly, each time a spell is cast, ho power pool will short it a firth, thus initing the number of spells the casting player can attempt each Magic playse.

CHANNELLING POWER DICE The casting player rolls a D6 for each of his Wizards. An extra dice is added to the power pool for each roll of a 6.

While a World cannot control the amount of borne present in the World of Maje, he may be able to channel what power there is and make it and the state of the state of the state of the gradient of the state of the state of the state result of a f, dre Warral has been able to isphere hereins and the power disc, which is immunitarily adds that are not on the haddedidd (for sharper remoti) are not able to to here one power remoti) are not able to be more than the state of the state of the state here of the state remoti) are not able to the here of the state remoti) are not able to the here of the state remoti are not able to be here on the state of the state of the state of the state here of the state of the state

POWER LIMIT

There is a finite limit on the amount of power a Wizard can control. The casting player's power pool can never exceed 12 dice at any point in the phase – any dice generated beyond this number are lost.

This limit applies to all power dice, regardless of the source, and includes dice gained through the Winds of Magic, channelling, from magic items, special abilities and so on.

THE DISPEL POOL

The dispelling player gets a number of dispel dice equal to the highest D6 roll of the two Winds of Magic dice.

With the power pool determined, the dispelling player now determines what resources he has at his disposal with which to counter his enemy's spells. By its very nature, disrupting magic energy is far more difficult than harnessing it, so a player's dispel pool will almost always be smaller than his opposite number's power pool. The number of dispel dice available to the dispelling player is equal to the highest D6 rolled for the Winds of Magic. So, for example, if the Winds of Magic dice are rolled and show a 2 and a 6, the casting player will get 8 power dice (the total) and the dispelling player will get 6 dispel dice (the highest value shown). These dice are then placed in a dispel 'pool' in a similar manner to power dice. Each time a Wizard attempts a dispel, he takes dice from the dispel pool to do so.

CHANNELLING DISPEL DICE Extra dispel dice can be generated in exactly

Extra dispel dice can be generated in exactly the same way as power dice.

The dispelling player's Wizards can now attempt to channel further dispel dice into their pool. Roll a D6 for each Wizard. For each roll of a 6, add an extra dispel dice to the pool. Again, as when channelling power dice, Reeing Wizards and Wizards not present on the burtlefield cannel disped the disc

DISPEL LIMIT

As with the power pool, the number of dice in the dispel pool can never exceed twelve, regardless of how those dice are generated. Any excess is lost.

For example, It's has easy of the Margie phane, and the example galaxer mits properate the Witsol of Margie. Here this has 2D0 and cores as 2 and 4.5. The margin layer hardwork and a start of 4 (3 (4-5)) power disc to his prob, which the hapdings phare disk 5 disped at two is haped. Furthermore, both phapers and have their Wixard atomout to chosend. The analog paper hardwork of Wixards atomout to the first and the start of the Wixard atomout to the phapers and have their Wixards atomout to the first and the start of the start of the start of the origin of the start of the start of the start of the one phase of the start, for start disk of the start of easy 1 Wixard, or start a single date, the start of the start of the start, for start and the start of the start of the start, for start and the start of the start of the start of the start, for start and the start of the start of the start of the start, for start and the start of the start of the start of the start, for start and the start of the start of the start of the start, for start and the start of the start of the start of the start of the start, for start and the start of t



Bretonnian Damiel

2. CAST

The casting player's Wizards can attempt to cast each of their spells once during each Magic phase, provided they have enough power and don't fail a casting attempt.

CONTRACTOR

Each Wizard can only attempt to cast each spell once per turn. Wizards cannot try to cast spells if they are fleeing or not on the battlefield.

To east a spell, a Wizard nominates one of his spells to cast, and declares the target of the rules of the spell before choosing, it's worth examining the rules of the spell to determine its maximum range – remember that you can normally measure to see if a target is in range before you try to cast a spell. Spells also have targeting limitations, as we'll discuss now.

CHOOSING A TARGET

Targeting restrictions vary from spell to spell. However, unless stated otherwise the following rules apply:

- The target must lie within the Wizard's forward arc.
- The Wizard does not need line of sight to his target.
- · The target must lie within the spell's range.
- Wizards cannot target spells at units engaged in close combat.

Some spells have a type that enforces additional casting restrictions, or waives others. There are five disinct types of spell: augment, direct damage, hex, magic missile and magical voetex. Some unique spells, or spells that are printed in older Warhammer Armies books, do not have a type – their text will contain any casting restrictions that apple.

Direct damage spells are deadly attacks that strike the for without warning. Direct damage spells can only ever be cast on enemy units. Sometimes a direct damage spell will use a template to determine which models are hit. When this happense, the template cannot be placed in such a way that it touches friendly units or enemy units that are in close combat – this is not to say that the template word's satter too friends later, depending on the spell. Magie missiles we soveren projectifish that the Warad harks at his Ge. Magie missiles can only be cast on enemy units. Unlike other types of pelles magie missiles de oregine in the Warad to be able to see his target. Accordingly, is Warad can only cast a magie missile at a sugert that lies within his forward are and to which he can true on eligible (plus at fill the warad was fitting a missile warpon). Magie missiles cannot be cast all if the Warad to fils ward was fitting a missile warpon), dragie missiles dawas fitting a drage cannot de the simulty is engaged in chose conduct. Magie missiles dwarys hit their tareet automatich.

Augment spells empower the caster's allies, protecting them with sourcerous wards and magically enhancing their fighting provess. Augment spells can never be cast on enemy units, no matter wards benefit the player believes he might get. Augment spells **can** even be cast noto units in close combat to give them a muchneeded boost. Also, targets of augment spells

Hex spells are the counterpoint to augment spells, weakening the enemy and making them easier to slay. Hex spells can only ever be cast on enemy units. Hexes **can** be cast onto units in close combat. Targets of hex spells need **not** lie in the the caster's forward are.

Note that bonuses and penalties from Hex, Augment and other spells are cumulative, but normally cannot take any characteristics above 10 or below 1.

Magical vortexes are rolling globes of magical energy that travel across the battlefield, wreaking all kinds of unusual (and often deadly) effects. A magical vortex does not have a target – instead it uses one of the round templates, which is placed in base contact with the caster and with its centre within the caster's front are, and then moves as described in the spell.

Unlike most other spells and other gaming effects that use templates in Warhammer, magical vortexes remain on the battlefield (unleas they move of it). At the end of every subsequent Magic plase, each magical vortex moves in the direction and distance stated in the spell. If a magical vortex ever ends its move over a unit, place it it byound the unit in the direction it was moving. Magical vortexes are layous runniar in day spells (see puge 36).

Spell Priority

In the Mayie phase it's a lot of fue blassing the enemy to smitherens, but that' nut the only visible tatti. A lot of spells, hence and augments in particular, can help your units wain fights in the forthcoming. Close Combut phase, or help them coesther the enemy Shosing and Mayie phase.



Wood Elf Spellsing

Targeting Lone Models When cheating a spell's target, remember that lone woulds are units in and of chemzelves, and therefore legitimate targets for many spells.

CHOOSE NUMBER OF POWER DICE When casting a spell, a Wizard can use from

when casting a spell, a wizard can use from one to six power dice.

Once the Wizard, spell and target have been chosen, the player then declares how many power dice from his pool the Wizard will use in his attempt to cast the spell. At least one dice must be taken from the power pool, and a maximum of six dice can be used on each spell.

CASTING VALUE

For a spell to be cast, the total of the dice rolled, added to the Wizard's level, must equal or beat the spell's casting value.

The chosen dice are then takes from the casting paper's power point and rolled. The results are added together, and then added to the casting level 4 Wizzard's level to give a casting result. So, if a level 4 Wizzard's attempts to cast a spell with three dice, rolling 1, 3 and 6, the total casting result would be 14 (+1+6=10 for the power dice roll, added to 4 for the Wizzard's level). Keep the dice in front dyous for the moment – you'll need the scores if your opponent attempts a discel, as well discuss later.

Each spell has an associated casting value, any number from 3 upwards. Spells with a higher casting value have greater effect, but require more power.

If the casting result equals or exceeds the spell's casting value, the spell is cast (though it may be subsequently dispelled and neutralised by the opposing player, as we'll discuss later).

If the result is less than the casting value, the casting attempt has failed. The spell is not cast.

For example, a Level 2 Empire Bright Wizard is attempting to cast Fulminating Flame Cage from the Lore of Fire. Fulminating Flame Cage has a casting value of 11 +, so the Wizard needs to score a total of 11 or more.

With this in mind, the Wizard's controlling player decide to roll three disc in the attempt to cast the spell, and zonrs 2+4+4 (for a statal of 10). This in itself is not cough to cast the spell, but by the time the Wizard'S texel is added, is given a statal of 12 (the 10 rolled on the disc plosi 2). The spell is therefore cast

BOOSTED SPELLS

Some spells allow the Wizard the option to focus more magical force into their casting, thus extending the effective range, amount of damage caused or area of effect. Where this is an option, it is clearly stated in the spell's effect, as is the extra casting cost required to achieve the additional effect.

Note that if the controlling player does not state otherwise before rolling the dice, a Wizard is assumed to be casting the standard (and therefore less difficult to cast) version of the spell, so be sure to let your opponent know if you're going to attempt a boosted version!

For example, the aforementioned Empire Bright Wizard could have cast Fulminating Flame Cage at a higher level, increasing its range from 24⁴ to 48², bat increasing its casing coulse from 11+ to 14+. If he had withhed to do not, his controlling player would have had to declare this instantion helper the disc core rolled.

NOT ENOUGH POWER!

No matter how powerful a Wirard might be, he cannot east a squid where the total of the natural dice scores is less than 1. A dice total of 1 or 2 is always considered to be a failure, despite the level of the Warard. This is true regardless of any homase, from any source. Even the mightiest and month learned Warard needs to coars a certain amount of raw power out of the Winds of Magie in order to cast a spell.

BROKEN CONCENTRATION

If a Wizard fails to equal a spell's casting value, or the total of the natural dice scores is 1 or 2, not only is the spell not cast, but the Wizard breaks his concentration and is unable to cast spells for the rest of the Magic phase.

For example, a Level 4 Wirand attempt to out the Eleck of Doom (using value 5+1, Aussing that his instant magnal ability (the +4 hous for keing a Level 4 Wirand) to afficient to ensure that the gell is much the controlling plager obscurs to use a single Do in the cauting tamped, has, the dist sources a 2 and, even though the cauting transle (2+4=6) is higher than the opedia cauting ratio (2+4=6) is fight. The Wirand will walk to also at any forthor goal that trans.



Empire Celestial Wizard

IRRESISTIBLE FORCE

If two or more 6s are rolled when easting a spell, it has been east with irresistible force. The spell will be east automatically and cannot be dispelled, but the Wizard has to roll on the Miseast table when the spell has been resolved.

Magic is fickle, and writhen like a thing alive core whilst a Warral shape it to this will. Magic always attrives to be free of constraint, and should the Wizard misperonounce a single word, or otherwise misacs the spell, the magic will shatter its bindings in a bars of incredible energy. Wizards can therefore be described as not trying to empower their spells, but to hold that same energy in check tosi to prove to be thir undoing.

If a Winad rolls invo or more unmodifiel 6s, when determining his carting result, the spell has been cast with irresistible force. When seeing if irresistible force has occurred, always use the actual disc scores, irrespective of f bonuses from special rules or magic items. If a Winard is called upon to re-roll the disc for any reason, it is the second result that stands, as is normal for a re-roll.

All dice rolled count towards irresistible force, regardless of whether the dice were power pool dice, or granted as a bonus from a special rule or magic item. For example, a Level 1 Wirand attempts to case the formidable Life magic (pdl), the Dwellers Below (casting value 18 + j and rell four disc, scoring 1, 2, 6 and 6 (for a casting total of 15 + 1 for the Wirand's level). As too do score rolled in the casting attempt, the spell is case with irresistible force – it deserves matter that the casting total is loreer than the spell's casting calue.

On the one hand, irresistible force is a good thing, because the unshackling of power ensures that the uncontained raw magic pulses through the Wizard's spell and empowers it in such a manner that it cannot be prevented.

A spell cast with irresistible force automatically succeeds, even if the casting total is not enough to reach the spell's casting value. More importantly, perhaps, a spell cast with irresistible force is impossible to diapel – your opponent cannot even attempt to prevent the magical mayhem soon to be unleashed – go straight to Step 4, Spell Resolution.

However, jrresistible force is also a very bad thing indeed. When irresistible force occurs, the wildly arcing magic inevitably proves dangerous to the Wirard and to anyone nearby: Naturally, the Wirard and to his best to contain the uncontrollable energy, but success is by no means guaranteed – this is what we refer to in rules terms is a miscast.



Chass Sorterer



Minimising Your Miscasts



As you're yndiadly antioed, the donno of garting a ministe ionrafaer andor rapidly the more paper die you we rehen attomptige ro aast a goll. Thin more paper die Waard aalt door, ak het aa lidde he in a he adde to coastel it. Players mil heeferte waat to bink aardfally hefers donte hink aardfally hefers donte hink aardfally hefers donte hink aardfally hefer donte het hein aantigeneer die Hwynei he allouat to a goll of swing invasitiefte feree, I alwany fiel i yn ja he tamgeen dwn a anouldering crater in the only heig I hee ei dig dermandt in

MISCASTS

When irresistible force occurs, first resolve the effect of the spell that the Wizard was attempting to cast. As the spell has been cast with irresistible force, the cashing player can at least enjoy the effect of his spell before something almost indescribably bad happens to the Wizard and everyone nearby:



Once the effect of the spell has been resolved, the Wizard now needs to roll 2D6 on the Miscast table to see what happens to him.

You'll notice that many of the results on the Miscast table call for damage (in the shape of automatic hits) to be caused upon the Warard or nearby models. Though we've yet to talk about how damage is worked out, you'll find all the information you need on page 42. Gue Wiland from the previous comple has promotify energing registrate advancements on the investigation of advancements have been advanced at the previous sector of two constraints investigation for the Marca table to discover the first of the marca table to the marka source for the Ward.

Note that some magic items and special rules talk of automatically triggering a miscast or irresistible force. This is the only occasion on which one can be had without the other.

So, for example, a magic item that caused a Wizard to miscast automatically would force that Wizard to roll on the Miscast table, but the spell would not be cast with irresistible force.

Similarly, an item that automatically generates irresistible force would not require a roll on the Miscast table.

MISCAST TABLE

2D6 Result

2-4 DIMENSIONAL CASCADE The summoned magics wreach free of the Wizard's control, laying waste to anyone unfortunate enough to be nearby. Centre the large round template over the Wizard – every model underneath the template (including the hapless Wizard – he is not entitled to a Look Out Sirl roll in this case) suffers a Strength 10 bit.

> Once the damage has been resolved, roll a D6. On the score of 3 or less, the Wizard is cast into the Realm of Chaos – remove him as a casualty: On a roll of 4-6, D6 dice are lost from the power pool instead.

5-6 CALAMITORS DETONATION In this burtle to contain the twing energies, the Warrad semulow manages to make the situation wares, feeding more power into walt promises to be a deveating explosion. Centre the small round template over the Warrad – every model understands the template suffers a Strength 10 bit (including the folds) Warrad – new that the is not enterted to a 1 Lock Oot Sit in this case). Additionally, D6 dice are lose from the roorer road.

2D6 Result

- DETONATION! The energy explodes without warning! All models in base contact with the Wizard (friend and fore, but not the Wizard himself) suffer a Strength 10 hit. Additionally, D6 dice are lost from the power pool.
- 8-9 MAGICAL FEDBACK. The Wizard disperses the excess magical energy, but the resulting feedback leaves him mable to harness the Winds of Magic for a time. The Wizard and every model on the same side that can channel/generate power of abjed dice suffer a Strength 6 hit as a result of the magical backhash. Additionally, 16 dice are loss from the power pool.
- 9.12 POWER DRAIN: Through a combination of luck and skill, the Warael manages to dissipate most of the spell's eccess energy, leaving him with a splitting headache and pervading annesia. His Warael kevel is personaterly relaced by DJ, to a minimum of a and he forgets a single spell for each Warael kevel lost (the first is always the spell that ways sut inscisat - ofther spells lost are determined randomly). The Warael cannot attempt to case further spells this phase.

3. DISPEL

If the Wizard was able to cast his spell (and it was not cast with irresistible force) the opposing player now has a chance to prevent the spell's effects by attempting to dispel it.

CHOOSE WIZARD

In order to attempt a dispel, the dispelling player first nominates one of his Wizards to make the dispel attempt. Unlike spells, dispels do not have a range and never require the Wizard to see either the target or the caster – you can simply pominate any Wizard on the battlefield.

If the dispelling player does not have an eligible Wizard to attempt a dispel (or simply does not want one of his Wizards to make the attempt) his army can attempt to dispel the spell instead.

CHOOSE NUMBER OF DISPEL DICE

When dispelling, a Wizard can use any number of dispel dice.

Once the Wizard has been chosen, the player declares how many disped dice the Wizard will use in his disped attempt. Unlike casting, there is ou upper limit on the number of dice that can be used in a dispel attempt – though you must use at least one dice from the pool if you wish to attempt a dispel.

DISPEL VALUE

For a dispel to succeed, the total of the dice rolled, added to the Wizard's level, must equal or beat the spell's casting result.

The number of dice chosen are taken from the player's dispel pool and rolled. The results are added together, and then added to the Wizard's level to give a dispel result, exactly as if he were casting a spell. If the army is attempting the dispel, no bonus is added to the total.

If the dispel result equals or exceeds the spell's casting result, the dispel is successful and the spell does not take effect. For example, if the caster scored a casting result of 15, the dispelling Wizard would need to score a result of 15 or more to make a successful dispel.

If the result is less than the spell's casting result, the dispel attempt has failed. Furthermore, the Wizard is so preoccupied by his collapsing

dispel that he is unable to attempt another later in the phase. Just as when casting a spell, a total natural dice score of 1 or 2 is always considered to be a failure, despite any modifiers. This is true regardless of bonuses, from any source. Note that the army can always attempt to dispel, regardless of pervisus failures.

For example, a Level 3 Warned is attempting to digid an oneony casting of Purple Sam of Xerceus. Fortunately, the poil locar not and art with irresimilite force, but with a casting total of 23, to a dispol attempt on the main. The dispolling Warned will its disc, rowing 1, 3, 4, 4, 5 and 6. Added to hit Warned Veed, his poil data a sing evaluate of 26, higher than the 23 required, no the dispol in succeeding and the poll does not take office.

DISPELLING WITH IRRESISTIBLE FORCE If two or more 6s are rolled in a dispel attempt, the spell is dispelled automatically.

If reas or more unmodified 6s are rolled when making the dispel attempt, the dispel is granted irresisable force and succeeds automatically, regardless of whether or not it beats the casing reals of the spell (aldwagh it still cannot help reals) of the spell was cast with irresisable force in the first place.) If a player is called upon to re-roll the dice for any reason, it is the second result that stands, as is normal for a re-roll. Note that a dispel that achieves irresistible force does not cause a miscast roll.

DWARFS AND DISPELLING

Dwarfs turned away from spellcraft long ago. As a result of this, there are no Dwarf Wizards, but their race has become highly resistant to magic.

Accordingly, when a Dwarf army attempts to dispel, the instate magic resistance of the Dwarfs grants the army a +2 bonus to all dispel attempts. Note that if the Dwarfs are trighting alongside a Wizard (either in the same army, or as part of an allied force) for whatever reason, this bonus is loat - the Wizard's presence disrupts the Dwarfs' natural resistance.

Dastardly Dispelling

dispel everything your opponent not likely to have enough dice to do so. With that in mind, that are really soing to bring your army to a screeching halt. Halou you're in mal dire straits, you can afford to lose a more than having your prize complat anit immobilized or weakened. As a final thought, if you think your opponent has best not to commit your highest Level Winand to earlier distels you're coine to need his dispel bonnes later on, and you toon't get it if he fails a dispel roll



Duration, Duration, Duration A dever sorverer takes note of



the deviation of this cpelle – divers 'no point exerging potent' on a goal data stand' grav yan og diget betteren om en and he men Marging plane. The only composite the binar 'normain in plan' graft. As their home strands for several narves, increasing a little potent into strands for several narves, increasing a little potent into the outer, has to do no do', point no rearres, past response can diged remains in play goals in large remarks on docs on a of sits potent or diged posts.

4. SPELL RESOLUTION

Follow the instructions in the spell's text.

If the enemy has failed his dispel attempt (or not even attempted one?), the spell is cast successfully and its effects is now resolved. Each spell in Warhammer provides all the information you need. Many spells inflict hits or wounds on your enemies – you can find out how to resolve these on page 440 of the Shooting Phase.

Remember that if your spell was cast with irresistible force, you'll need to go back and resolve the result of the miscast as soon as you've finished resolving your spell effect.

SPELLS AND PANIC

Quite a lot of spells inflict damage in one manner or another and, as with shooting attacks, if enough damage is caused, can cause the enemy to flee from battle. Damage from magic can provoke Panic tests, as described in the Panic elapter on page 62.

SPELL DURATION

Most spells are cast instantly and their effect is worked out at once. In this case, the spell has no further effect in the fame until cast again. Some spells last for longer than this, for one or more phases, or turns.

REMAINS IN PLAY SPELLS

Spells marked "remains in play" stay in effect indefinitely when east. They only come to an end when the target is slain, or else the catter is slain, chooses to end the spell (which he can do at any time) or leaves the buttlefield. The Warard can continue to cast other spells (but not the same requires only a limit concentration to keep a requisition only a limit concentration to keep a requisition of the generation of the same

If they are not dispelled immediately when they are cast, remains in play spells can be dispelled at any point during a subsequent Magic phase, using dispel dice as normal, or dice from the power pool as if they were dispel dice if it is your turn.

Remains in play spells do not rettain the energy of chrice casting, and so Watzerl does not need to best the original casting dice rull if attempting a doppd in subsequent turns, bar rather the minimum casting value listed in the spell's description (a to there is no need to make neut of each spell's casting end). For this reason, remains in play spell, and with iterasible force cast Watzerleader and the original energies that will during list own of the remain in play spell during list own of the remain in play spell attempts from the from the remain the play spell during list own of the remain in play spell during list own of the remain list play spell during list own of the remain list play.



SPELLS LASTING MORE THAN ONE TURN

Some spells do not specifically remain in play, but have effects that last one or more turns. Once in play, such spells cannot be dispelled, and remain in effect even if the caster is slain or leaves the battlefield, unless the spell description specifies otherwise.

A Vampire Lord - master of necromantic magic.



BOUND SPELLS

Some magic items, often rings and amulets, and certain troop types, have the ability to use a form of magic called a 'bound spell'. Bound spells can be used even if the bearer has broken his concentration or is not a Wizard at all. Possessing a bound spell does not make a character a Wizard – he just has an item that can cast a spell.

CASTING BOUND SPELLS

A bound spell is each just like an ordinary spell - using disc from the power poil (the model may do so even if it is not a Warzh). The regarder dasting value is equal to the bound spell's power level. Note that bound spells near benefit from any casting modifiers that the user might have (for Warzh Level, magitiming to your a bound spell does not break, failing to your a bound spell does not break common a bound spell does not break and require anything more complex than uttring a single world of activation.

For example, a High Eif Noble has the Rody Ron, of Ronis, a maji the balan outside the heart level of Fareball as a bound spell of proser level 3. Therefore, where the Noble attempts to sust the spell, the cating will man be equal to or graviter than 3. If the Rody Rong of Rain was instand borne by a Level 2 High Bi Mag, he now could need the cating will no be equal to or gratter than 3. – It counting will be be equal to or gratter than 3. – It

As in the example above, bound spells are often tied into a spell from a magic lore. Where this is the case and there is a choice of casting levels, the bound spell is always the easier 'unboosted' version with the lower casting level.

DISPELLING BOUND SPELLS

Bound spells are dispelled exactly as other spells – the dispelling Wizard must equal or beat the casting result for a successful dispel.



IRRESISTIBLE FORCE

A bound spell can be cast with irresistible force, just as a normal spell, by rolling two natural 6s in the casting roll. The bound spell is then cast automatically, and cannot be dispelled (but, of course, causes a miscast).

Miscasts

What happens when a bound spell is miscast depends on the nature of the bound spell.

- If the bound spell is contained within a magic item of some kind, the item crumbles to dust and cannot be used again during the game. Do not roll on the Miscast table.
- If the bound spell is an 'innate' ability such as those used by a Warrior Priest, for example, then the model simply cannot cast further bound spells during this phase. Do not roll on the Miscast table.



High Elf Mag

5. NEXT SPELL

With the spell resolved, the casting player can now have the same or another of his Wizards attempt to cast another spell.

Wizards can cast spells in any order, and a player is free to switch between Wizards at any time provided that he does not do so until the casting of the current spell has been resolved. Remember that, unless specified otherwise, each Wizard can cast each spell only once per turn. When the casing player has finished all his casting attempts, either because he has run out of power dice or has no remaining or useful spells to cast (or if all his Wizards have had their concentration broken by fulling to cast a spell the Magic plase ends, and the Shooning plase begins.

SHOOTING

During the Shooring phase, your army lets thy with the missile weapons at its dipond, be they hows, cannots or finantistical ware machines. Most armies will have a unit or two of archers, crossbowmen or mighty war machines, and use these missile units to thin the enterry maths before the bloody press of melseb befors in later turns. Other armies will field masses and masses of missile units, intending to size victory in the Shooring phase by obliterating the enterny at long ranke.

This section covers the shooting rules for common weapons and the majority of troop types. War machines and other, more peculiar, devices of distruction are covered in their own chapter (beginning on page 108). However, even the most colosal trebuchet is governed by many of the same rules as the humble box and arrow, so it's worth reading through this section before ulimbering your cannon or organ gan.

PHASE SEQUENCE

Nominate one of your units that you want to shoot with and select one enemy unit you wish your unit to shoot at. Once you have declared your target, resolve shooting using the rules described.

Then proceed to the next unit that is shooting and continue as above until you have shot with everything able to do so.

SHOOTING SUMMARY

1 NOMINATE UNIT TO SHOOT

- 2 CHOOSE A TARGET
 - Check the shooter can see the target
 - Check the target is in range of the weapon
- 3. ROLL TO HIT
 - Shooting modifiers
- 4 ROLL TO WOUND
- 5. TAKE SAVING THROWS
- 6. REMOVE CASUALTIES

1. NOMINATE UNIT TO SHOOT

During the Shooting phase, a model armed with a missile weapon can use it to make a single shooting attack. Models that have marched, reformed or ralled this turn cannot shoot, nor can those that have made a failed charge, are fleeing or are fighting in close combat.

WHO CAN SHOOT?

To launch a successful shooting attack requires a degree of preparation as most weapons take a long time to load or aim. As a result, a model that wishes to make a shooting attack must have had a relatively uneventful Movement plase. The most common reasons a model cannot shoot are:

 They marched in the preceding Movement phase – weapons will have been shouldered and ammunition secured while the unit advanced.

- They reformed, rallied or made a failed charge in the preceding Movement phase – they're too busy getting back into formation.
- They're fighting in close combat (and therefore for their lives).
- They're fleeing such models are far more interested in saving their skins than firing their weapons.
- The model is under the influence of a specific spell or special rule that prevents it from making a shooting attack.

This is, of course, not a comprehensive list. Other situations will doubless arise, due to spell effects, army special rules and other factors. Fear not! These will be explained by the relevant rule as and when they occur.



Ore Arner Bon

2. CHOOSE A TARGET

A model can shoot at an unengaged enemy unit that is at least partially within its forward arc, and to which it has an unblocked line of sight. The enemy must also lie within range of the weapon being used.

Now you've chosen the unit that will make the shooting attack, you need to choose a target for it to shoot at. All models in the same unit must shoot at the same target, so choose carefully.

CHECK THAT THE SHOOTER CAN SEE THE TARGET

A span might expect, to shoot at an enemy your survives need to be able to see it. We use two straightforward rules to determine whether or not an energy can be seen. Firstly, the target energy unit must lie at least partially within the shooting model's forward are; just as it would if your shooting model's fourward are; just as it would if (juya need to refresh your memory about forward ares, see page 5). Secondly, the shooting and def must a bab to trace a line of sight to the target (information on line of sight can be found on page 10).

Fire in two ranks

The rules given above allow front rank models to shoot, but we also want to allow models in the second rank to shoot (they take aim over crouched or stopping fellows in the front rank). Therefore, models in the second rank can use the line of sight and forward arc of the model directly in front of them for the purposes of all shooting attacks (including stand and shoot reactions). In simple terms, this allows units to fine in two ranks.

Models further back than the second rank of a unit are assumed to have their line of sight blocked by models further forward, and so will not normally be able to shoot.



CHECK THE TARGET IS IN RANGE OF THE WEAPON

All missile weapons have a maximum range that indicates the furthest distance they can shoot. A detailed summary of shooting weapons and their ranges can be found on page 88.

A model can normally only shoot at a target if it lies within the maximum range of the weapon it is shooting with. The one exception to this is when a unit Stands and Shoots – here we assume that the charging enemy has entered the weapons' range before the unit shoots.

WE CAN'T ALL FIRE!

All models in a unit have to show at the same target. Due to the relative positions of the shooting unit and the target, it might happen the some models in a fring unit and show the target while other models in the unit cannot the target may be our of their floward as or completely obscured by terring or other models). Sometimes, some models in the shooting unit will be our of range. In these situations, you're free to continue with the shot, but only those models permitted to shoot the target (and that use i within their vargon' range) will fire.

In such circumstances, we assume that disciplined troys such as Elves simply do not fire at all and conserve their ammunition. On the other hand, it's easy to imagine that more boisterous warrow, such as Gobling, lose their arrows in an impressive looking (but hopeless and impossibly incurate) volley. In either case, for gaming purposes, these models do not shoot.

SHOOTING INTO COMBAT

Models are not permitted to shoot at enemies that are engaged in close combat, for the simple reason that there's too much danger of hitting a friendl Remember that while a fight may look like two separate blocks of troops fighting beadto-head, it's actually a swirling melee where no one stays still ong enough to offer a safe shoot

Some war machine weapons, particularly those that use templates, can accidentally hit friends whilst aiming at the enemy. The key word here is 'accidentally' – you cannot purposefully aim a template so that some of your models will be hit. See page 108 for more details on war machines.

Target Priority





Dwarf Enginee

Remembering the roll To Hit

To Hit scores are only to remember if you simply subtractive BS of the shooter from 7. This usell give you the number you need. E.g. a model with a BS of 2 wood need a roll of so or woor to hit (7-2=5).

3. ROLL TO HIT

Roll a D6 for each shot fired. The model's Ballistic Skill determines what score they must equal or beat to hit their target after any modifiers have been applied.

Not all shots have the same chance of hitting. Some warriors are simply better at aiming than others, as reflected in a higher Ballistic Skill (BS). The higher the individual's BS, the greater his chance of hitting.

To determine whether you hit, you must make a roll to hit, i.e. you roll a D6 for each model that is shooting. Note that the number of Attacks a model has will not affect the number of shots – each model can shoot only once.



Count how many models in your unit are shooting and roll that number of dice. It is ensiset to roll all the dice at once, although you don't have to. If there are a lot of models shooting, you might need to roll several batches of dice. The following table shows the minimum score you will used to hit.

 Ballistic Skill
 1
 2
 3
 4
 5
 6
 7
 8
 9
 10

 To Hit score
 6
 5
 4
 3
 2
 1
 0
 -1
 -2
 -3

Each dice that rolls a number equal to or greater than the value required has scored a hit. Each dice that rolls less is a miss.

For example, you fire with five Empire Archers. Men have BS 3, so you need a score of at least 4 to hit. You roll five dice and score 1, 2, 2, 4 and 6, which equals two hits and three misses.

Troops with a high BS have a To Hit score of 1, 0 or even a negative number (as shown above). Of course, you cannot roll less than 1 on a 106 so in Warhammer a To Hit roll of 1 on a D6 abays fails, regardless of the dice modifiers and Ballistic Skill of the model.

SHOOTING MODIFIERS

Raw skill is not the only factor to determine the difficulty of a shot. Many battlefield conditions can alter the accuracy of missile fire, and we represent these with a series of shooting modifiers. Shooting modifiers are applied to the dice rolls before they are compared to the score needed to hit, making the shot more difficult, and therefore less likely to succeed.

Continuing the earlier example, if the free Empire archer: had a -1 modifier applied to their shoring attack, all of the dire vennel counts are utiling one point forces than they actually did. As a result, those dire toould need to score a point higher, and instead of meeding 4: to hit, they would new meed 5:. Accordingly, only one archer would have hit.

7+ To Hit

If shooing modifies result in a required score of 7 or more, it still possible to hit the target. As it is impossible to roll 3 7 or better on a D6, you will first need to roll 3 roll. Then, for each shot scoring a 6, you need to roll a further score as shown on the chart below. So, for example, in order to score as 8, you must first roll a 6 followed by a 5 or better. If you require a score 01 0 or more then it is impossible to hit the intended target – the shots are lost.

8 6 followed by a 5 or 6 6 followed by a 6 Impossible! 10 +

The shooting modifiers are cumulative (except when noted otherwise), and are as follows:

Moving and Shooting	-1
Firing at Long Range	-1
Standing and Shooting	-1
Target Behind Soft Cover	-1
Target Behind Hard Cover	-2

MOVING AND SHOOTING

Models that moved for any reason during the preceding Movement or Magic phase will have less time to aim, making their shots less accurate and suffering a shooting modifier of -1.

Cocked Dice

There'll be causainer schwa as die estil and ap on ohy ohy inflatwersnahly because it's get caught in a onder of levenise in orphysol ap againe a annt. Isad' schode dieder an optanet in optanet, and oblieder in imperator with more often share treitail anne. I find bedeet in imperator with more often share treitail anne. I fond helsen ta surf adauts, with a cocked date is to re-rell it ap the helse ta surf adauts, with a cocked date is to re-rell it ap these associations and the profound angelies help and the profound angelies help and profiles and profiles angelies hely and maching gare shery only rell disc.

FIRING AT LONG RANGE

Missiles lose power and accuracy long before they reach their maximum range, so any shots taken at an enemy that is further away than half the weapor's maximum range suffer a -1 shootine modifier.

For example, a short bace has a maximum range of 16". Targets within 8" are in short range. Targets that are more than 8" and within 16" are in long range and so the firers suffer a -1 shooting modifier.

STANDING AND SHOOTING

Having a bellowing enemy bear down on you whilst you're trying to aim is most distracting. Models that are making a stand and shoot reaction suffer a -1 to shooting modifier.

COVER

If the majority of the models in the target unit (inc) when firing against a single model, more than half of the target model) is obscured from the shooting model's view by other models (friend or enemy) or by terrain then an additional To Hirn models in the firing unit or howe something in the ways and fright. It is common for some models in the firing unit to have something in the ways and for hears to have a clear show. Where this happens, simply readve the two sets of shows (and thus the ways act of The models).

Target Behind Soft Cover

Soft cover offers a little protection against missile fire, but its main advantage is to hide the target from view. If the majority of a unit is obscured by hedges, fences, wagons or other 'soft' terrain, it is said to be in soft cover. Soft cover inflites a -1 shooting modifier.

Target Behind Hard Cover

Haid core represents cover of a more darable disk, like that offering by stone wills, loadlers, buildings and suchlike. We also court intervening the share location of the target, of course as a store of the store of the short of the short seconsel. If the majority of a target, of course as a such hard terrain, is said to be Hard core: Hard core: million a -2 shorting multilier. Note that do not million a -2 shorting multilier. Note on our make - in a start on the Hard core: a do not make - in a start on the Hard core of a start do not make and a core, simply upped a -2 shorting modifier for core.

Fast Dice Rolling

When a unit of models fires, all of its weapons are fired together, Sometimes there will be different sceapons firing, firers with a different BS or firers rabiect to different shosting modifiers. In this case, you'll find it easiest to use different coloured dice, so that these shots commandy crops up tohere some (but not all) of a shorting unit has the target at long range - I rimaly rull takite dice for the short range shots, and red dice for those shots subject to the long rance modifier. I always find red dice to be luckier (I'm not



Automatic Hits

Some unusual attacks (most commonly those made by magic missile spells – see page 31) hit automatically. Where this is the case, it is exactly how it sounds – do not roll for the attack, it instead automatically causes the number of hits stated within the wording.



If this stars the bands? yor visce' these The Soundmon (1) are employed within - show is starting in the stars, and are not or modifier apply. The Goanne (2) is more than all philades by the bailing as, what against at would angle from a -2 pointly for hand evers. Similarly, the Keighta (2) mould hengly from the 3ways have having for an over, which will be start. The Feigure (1) and its of post rate & models and, are identify some that builty visible, and it is not having for an over, balongs the majority of the Briefel Witself (3) to visible, be in it have ensure that a final rate of a model of post rates of a new hengle for an over, balongs the majority of the Briefel Witself (3) to visible, be in it have ensure that a final rate of a model of post rates of an over the start of the start The Association of the start of th

Memorising the Wound chart

The To Wound chart can seem a little baffling at first – it's got a hundred results to choose from, after all. There is, however, a method to its madness.

If your Screength is the same as the target? Tanghenes, you alongs need a 4+ to consud. If uit one point higher, you need a 3+. If your Screength is higher till, you need a 2+ (1s alongs) fail, dire all). Concervely, if your Screength is a point lease that the target? Tanghenes, you need a 5+ to cance a cocound, and if it's home still you'r guing to need a 6time is brank out the red disc.

4. ROLL TO WOUND

For each shot that hits, roll again to see if it wounds the target. The score needed is determined by comparing the Strength of the firing weapon with the Toughness of the target.

Hitting your target is not always enough to put it out of action – sometimes the shot results in little more than a graze or trivial flesh wound.

To determine whether a hit causes a telling wound, compare the weapon's Strength (not the Strength of the firer) with the target's Toughnoss characteristic. Each weapon has a Strength value, given in that weapon's description on page 88 – some examples are shown below.

Wington	Strength
Bow	3
Crossbow	4

Fick up all the disc that have hit, and roll them again. Then, consult the To Wound chart, crossreferencing the wapor's Strength (S) with the target's Toughness (T). The number indicated is the minimum score on a D6 needed to convert the hit into a wound. Any disc that equal or beat the score shown on the chart have successfully scored a wound! For example: An Empire Archer should his boto at an Ore: The soldier has a Strength 3 boto and the Ore is Tonghouses 4. The Archer therefore used to score a 5 or more to inflict a coound. If the soldier hard fired a Strength 4 crossboto instead, he would have meeded a 4 or more to inflict a coound.

Resolving Unusual Attacks

There are several circumstances in Warhammer that call upon you to inflict this upon an enemy – spells being an obvious example (the *Firsdull* spell causes De Strength 4 histos on an enemy unit), as well as things like the Impact Hist made by a charging chariot (covered in the 5 Special Rules charger). Such hist are resolved using steps 4, 5 and 6 of the rules for shooting attacks.

The only exceptions are hits caused by close combat attacks – these are discussed in the Close Combat chapter (page 46).



	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
1	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+
2	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+
3	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+
4	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+
5	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+
6	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+
7	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+
8	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+
9	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+
10	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+



Flamer of Tzeentch

5. SAVING THROWS

Each wound suffered may be cancelled if the controlling player makes a saving throw. There are two types of saving throw armour saves and ward saves. Armour saves suffer modifiers based on the Strength of the weapon, but ward saves are never modified.

Models that are wounded still have a chance to avoid a grisly death by 'avving' the wound. Hand your opponent all the dice that scored successful wounds – he then rolls these in an attempt to 'ave' his models. If he rolls equal to or greater than the model's save, the wound has been deflected by its armour or some other form of peotection.

Note that a model can never have a save (of any kind) better than 1+ for any reason, and that, even then, a roll of 1 is always a failure.

There are two main kinds of save: armour saves and ward saves.



ARMOUR SAVES

Few warries venture onto the battlefield without some measure of protection, be it only a padded lanker jarkin or battleff shield. Of course, the more elite or battleff shield. Of course, the quality of his armout is likely to be better, so some troops ware chain-, scale- or plate mail, dramatically increasing their chances of survival. The level of this physical protection is represented by the armour ave – the more armour a model is warring, the higher his armour save beames.

The value of a model's armour save is determined by the equipment it carries, as detailed in its entry in the relevant Warhammer Armise book. Light armour provides a 6+ armour save, meaning that a 6 must be rolled to save a wound, whilst heavy armour bestows a 6+ armour save. Some special types of armour, such as Choos armour or the Groundi armour of the Dwarfs, urant a formidable 4+ armour save.

SHIELDS

A model's armour save is boosted still further if it carries a shield. Shields are highly effective in battle, as they can be used to fend off both shooting and close combat attacks.

If a model carries a shield, the score it needs to save is reduced by 1 (though this can't take the save to beyond 1+).

For example: A Black Ore wears heavy armour and thus has an armour save of 5+. If the Black Ore also carries a shield, his armour save increases to 4+.

The table below shows the most common combinations, and their associated armour saving throws. Note that there are other armour saving throw modifiers to encounter in Warhammer – notably for riding a cavalry mount of some kind, as discussed on page 82.

Armour coorn	Saving Throw
None	None
Light armour	6+
Light armour and shield	5+
Heavy armour	5+
Heavy armour and shiel	d 4+

ARMOUR SAVE MODIFIERS

Some weapons or creatures are so powerful that they can punch right through armour. Such attacks inflict a modifier on the saving throw, just as shooting modifiers affect the To Hit roll.

An attack of Strength 4 inflicts a save modifier of -1, with the modifier growing a point higher for each additional point of Strength. Note that this means a model could be hit by an attack whose armour save modifier makes the armour save impossible to pass – in which case, the save is automatically failed.

Strength	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
Armour save modifier	-1	-2	-3	-4	-5	-6	-7

For example, a crossboro bolt (Strength 4) hits a coarrier towarring light armover and carrying a shield. Normally, the coarrier recould need to roll 5 or 6 to make hit armowr save and avoid laking the toward but, because of the crossboro's hitting porces, a -1 modifier is applied to the disc roll. Therefore, the superior must neer roll of 6 to sove.

Dice Overboard

I find it best to ignore the results of dice that have escaped the playing area for the vast and musty areas of carpets results (hopefully on the battlefield this time). Quite apart from the problem of convincing your for that, no, way into the most anlikely of nooks and crannies, and can prove extremely difficult to track down without the aid a a torch as well as copious amounts of time and patience bath of sphich are better employed in the spirited





Wood Elf Lord



High Elf Prince

WARD SAVES

Of coarse, the Warhammer world is a place of magic, of spellerfared armour and magical protection, where creatures can have an armor entilizes at a dds with a sometimes frail appearance. For such circumstances who we funanced area, A was due regressents some from of magical protection, let it a spill, enclanted a summer or perhaps some the initiat nature of a summer or generative strengtheres and by a model's maginerative - unbestance by a model's compared area by a spill and by a model's Damons and their ik law on nord to barfue themelow with weight armone, for example.

The value of a ward save will always be shown in a model's enrith in the relevant Workmanner Armise book. Daemons, for example, have a ward save of $5 + \mu$ meaning that a score of 5 ormore is required to prevent a wound. The key difference between ward saves and armour answes is that ward saves are never modified by the Strength of the matc. Just as with armour saves, a rul of a 1 is always failure, however and the save. Note that different ward saves cannot be combined to increase a model's chance of saving. If a model has more than one ward save, simply use the best.

More than one save

Sometimes a model has both an armour save and a ward save. Where this is the case, the model takes its armour save as normal.

If the armour save is failed (or modified to the point at which the model cannot pass it) then the model takes its ward save.

Instant Kills

Some special attacks don't inflict wounds, but require models to be removed as casualities (after failing a Ld or T test, forexample). Where this is the case, not only are no saves of any kind allowed (unless specified otherwise), but the number of wounds on the victim's profile is completely irrelevant – just remove the model from play, and hope for better luck next intel



6. REMOVE CASUALTIES

The target unit suffers casualties for any wounds that have not been saved. Casualties are always removed from the rear of a unit.

For every model that fails its ave the target unit suffres an unserved wound (any surve that were not possible because the modifier was too high have only a single Wound on their profile, in which case a single model is removed for each unserved wound caused. Individual warrios are not necessarily dead, they may just be too hadly wounded to fight. on. For our purposes, the result is the same, so we treat all casualities as if they were kilde and remove them from plays.

Although casualties would normally full amongst the front rank, for the purposes of game play we remove models from the rear rank of the unit. This keeps the formation neat and represents rear rankers stepping forward into gaps formerly filled by fallen contrades. If the unit is deployed in a single rank, then essualties are removed equally from both ends.

MODELS WITH MORE THAN ONE WOUND

Some particularly huge or hardy troops, such as Ogres, have more than one Wound on their profile. Should such a unit suffer wounds, you must remove as many whole models as' possible. You are not allowed to spiread the wounds throughout the unit to avoid suffering casualities, terming though it may be to do so.

In this situation, divide the number of wounds caused by the Wounds characteristic of the models in the target unit, removing this number of models from the rear-most rank. Any leftover wounds that were not enough to remove a model are carried over and will be added to the wounds inflicted by any subscrutent tacks.

For example A unit of Oper anglers 5 wounds from arrows fire. Oper are importantized and each model has 3 Wounds. So, 5 wounds equals on model doed (3 wounds) with 2 wounds of the over: The wounds if the over are use a wough to reave the wounds in our end area with a work that the based on affecting by the anil. If the own takes another wound from some other attack later in the ground, have being Oper and its in wranced.

HITS INFLICTING MULTIPLE WOUNDS

Some war machines, spells or magic weapons are so destructive that if a model suffers an unsaved wound from them, the victim doesn't lose only 1 Wound but 2 Wounds, or a number of Wounds equal to the roll of a D3, D6, etc, as noted in the weapon's rules. In such cases, roll to hit and to wound as normal and then take any armour saves and ward saves that apply. Finally, for each such wound that is not saved, roll the appropriate dice to determine how many wounds are caused. A model cannot suffer more wounds than it has on its profile. Should the model do so, it dies You'll notice a single hit causing many wounds works differently to multiple hits that each cause a single wound. This is quite deliberate - it's easy to imagine a volley of arrows falling amonest the members of a unit and killing several, but a cannonball that hits a single Elf should always only kill a single Elf, regardless of how mighty the blow.



MULTI-WOUND MODELS AND MULTI-WOUND WEAPONS

If a unit of creatures with more than 1 Wound on their profile is in the ya weqnot that causes multiple wounds, determine how many wounds are caused on each model individually (remember that each model cannot suffer more wounds than it has on its profile). Add up all wounds caused on the unit and them remove the appropriate number of models, noting any spare wounds on the unit.

This method is also applied if such a unit is attacked by a spell or weapon that causes a hit on every model in the unit.

SHOOTING AND PANIC

If a unit suffers too many casualties during the Shooting phase, there is a chance that it will panic and flee. Full rules for Panic tests can be found starting on page 62.

Wound Markers

It's allogges worth plasing a marker next to assumded model in order to remined you of the loca work denoming it has taken. While you'll not somewilly have many multi-Winned words on the battle haut if the head of latent hang for fargation who is not heatiff haut in the group as any movies or work of the head of latent heat heat for grant on prover social have regiment as the social heat regiment with mything the confined with my





CLOSE COMBAT

You've outmanneevered your foe, weakened him through spelleraft and shoutingpoint is that the faith the jok! The Close Combart phase is easily the most detestive part of Warhammer, It's here that working moless are resolved, as your warriors hack, disc and guround heir work phong the entern ranks. Make no mistake, a susceedable Close Combar phase can change for easily and the state of the susceedable Close Combar phase can change discussed and shouting phases, victory is likely to be your reverse.

Unlike other phases of the game, the combat phase offers both sides a chance to inflict damage on the foe, although you, as the player whose turn it is, will be the one choosing the order of the combats.

All close combats must be resolved during this phase – a unit in combat cannot choose not to fight, for whatever reason. After all, once your warriors have charged into the enemy, they are not going to simply ait down and amicably discuss their differences!



Oops, forgot

There's of the to think about the There's of the to think about the even the most about of an accumandly have there and from to the about a software, out a from to the about a software and about the software about a completely forget existence places to a software places and a software about the software about the software about about the software about the software

On the other hand, if you realize that you forget to do nonething in a previous phase of the game, you chould go on which the game and try to remember it next time. Back-reaching scenaria phases of a game is very impractical, if not impossible! Most combas involve a single unit fighting a single opcosing unit, so that's what we'll discuss first. Scatterines however, you'll est duy wish a multiple doce combas where there is more than one unit fighting no one or boh sinks. Multiple doce combas thave some additional rules, which you'll find discussed there also for a normal close combas also apply the rules for a normal close combas thave apply the rules for a normal close combas thave apply and the rules of the chapter (tages 99). As all the rules for a normal close combas thave apply apply and the combas of the close of the close the rules of the chapter (tages 90). As all the rules for a normal close combas thave apply apply apply apply apply apply apply apply apply the combas of the close of the close of the close of the close the close of the theorem the section.

CLOSE COMBAT PHASE SEQUENCE

The player whose turn it is nominates a close combat involving one or more of his units and fights a round of close combat using the rules described. Then proceed to the next close cembat and coordine until all units have fought. Resolve each combat completely, including any fice and pursue moves, before moving on to the next combat.

CLOSE COMBAT SUMMARY

1 FIGHT A ROUND OF CLOSE COMBAT

- Who can strike?
- How many attacks?
- Striking order
- Roll to hit
- Roll to wound
- Saving throws
- Remove casualties

2 CALCULATE CLOSE COMBAT RESULT

- Combat result bonuses
- Who's the spinner?

3 LOSER TAKES A BREAK TEST

- Taking a Break test
- Combat reform

4 FLEE AND PURSUE

- Restrain or parsue?
- Roll flee distance
- Roll pursuit distance
- Caught!
- Move flecing unit
- Restraining units reform
- Move parsuers







Dusarf Slaver

1. FIGHT A ROUND OF CLOSE COMBAT

Just as all eligible units (i.e. those in base contact with the enemy) must fight in close combat, similarly all models in base contact with an enemy must fight. Models cannot elect not to strike, nor can they normally be prevented from doing so.

Occasionally a spell or special effect will stop models from fighting, but more often will simply reduce a model's chances of landing a blow – the will to survive is particularly strong when a six-foot-tall, heavily muscled killing machine is laying about you with an axe.

WHO CAN STRIKE?

Models can fight if they are in base contact with an enemy model when it is their chance to attack, even if the models' bases only touch at the corner.

Even models attacked in the side or rear may fight. In such cases the models are not actually turned to face their enemy – we simply assume that the individual warriors twist around as best they are able in the tight press of warriors.

Normally, a warrior can only strike blows against an enemy model in base contact. The most common exception is if he is making a supporting attack.





These roos Droarfs are in contact with both an Ore and a Goblin, so can choose to direct obeir estacks at either unit.

HOW MANY ATTACKS?

Models in base contact with one or more enemics strike a number of blows equal to their Attacks characteristic.

For most troops this will normally be 1, although bonuses for additional hand weapons (see page 91), spells or special rules can raise or lower the total. More powerful creatures, characters and monsters will often have 2, 3, 4 or even more Attacks.

DIVIDING ATTACKS

Sometimes a particular model will find itself in base contact with two different kinds of enemy, perhaps warriors from two different units, or even a rank-and-file warrior and a character.

If a model is touching enemies with different characteristic profiles, it can choose which one to attack when its turn to strike comes (before any dice are rolled).

For example, if faced with an enemy character and an enemy warrier, you might decide to attack the warrier because he is easier to kill, or you could take a more hereic path instead and attempt to slay the enemy character.

Similarly, if a model has more than 1 Attack, it can divide its attacks as the player wishes. Only the most skilled, experienced or formidable warriors have more than a single Attack on their profile, and it seems sensible that such fighters would have the wirs to strike at more than one foe should the coportunity present itself.

There's no right or wrong in such a decision – just make sure you declare your intentions to the opponent before any dice are rolled.

SUPPORTING ATTACKS

Warriors in the second rank do not sit idly by whilst their comrades battle away, but muster forward to strike blows of their own. We refer to the attacks made by these models as supporting attacks.

A model can make a supporting attack if it is directly behind a friendly model that is itself fighting an enemy in base contact, as shown in the first diagram on the right. Supporting attacks cannot be made to the side or rear. Nor can they be made by models that are in base contact with enemies – they must fight the more immediate foe!

Of course, a warrior making a supporting attack is rather more constricted by the press of bodies than one who is face to the with his foc. To represent this, he can only ever make a single Attack, regardless of the number of Attacks on his profile, or any bonus Attacks he might otherwise be entitled to because of special rules or other unusual effects.

Supporting attacks are made against models in base contact with the front rank model that is being fought 'through'. If the front rank model is in base contact with two or more enemies with different profiles, the attacking player can choose which model to direct the supporting attack against (before dice are rolled).

THE HORDE

Any unit that is at least ten models wide is counted as being a horde. Warriors in a horde can make supporting attacks from the third rank, not just from the second!

This represents the crush of bodies driving yet more warriors into striking distance, as well as the back ranks surging forwards to assail the unengaged enemy warriors. If the unit drops below the minimum frontage it ceases to be a horde and loses the ability to make these extra supporting attacks.

INCOMPLETE RANKS

Strange gaps where models are missing from a rank do not prevent warriors from fighting.

If a unit is fighting to its flash, the models in the incomplete mark are moved into contact with the energy, here to fight and be fought commally if the unit is fighting to its ore or fighting to both 1 hash or the second second second the second second



CLOSE COMBAT

States and the second s

Drawn Initiative

Making attacks inmultanensity dasn't necessarily mean bath players need to rell bath stri of dice at once. You can, of course, make rimultaneous rolls, but it often gets a little confusing with so many dice ratifing around in one go.

A far triffer vary of reading drawn historics, is for one player (if drawn's matter which) is reporter Morea to is reporter Morea with his model first. When this has been completed, his oppowers realized bose made by hist models as if no canadities had been caused by the oppower's loss of reali. You'll field dhat resulting drawn Estimates in this mammer is much less conforcing that the alternative methods.

STRIKING ORDER

Blows are struck in Initiative order. If a model is killed before its turn to strike, it does not fight. If Initiative values are drawn, blows are struck simultaneously.

In the desperate hack and slash of close combat, the advantage lies with those warriors swiftest of mind and reaction. Slow opponents will often be dispatched by a faster foe before ever striking a blow. In essence, he who strikes first, strikes to the most devasting effect.

A model's Initiative characteristic determines who attacks first in dose conthat. Work your way through the Initiative values of the models, starting with the highest and ending with the lowerst. Models make attacks when their Initiative value is reached, assuming of course bounds and the start of the start of the start with a higher Initiative and that there is still an enemy in base contact. Where models have the same Initiative, their attacks are made simultaneously.

For example, a unit of Dark Elf Spearmen are charged by a unit of Orc Boyz. The Dark Elves have an Initiative of S₂ while the Orcs only have Initiative 2. The Elves will go first because of their higher Initiative.

T	0	HIT	CH			TS WE	APON	SKILL			
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
	1	4+	4+	5+	5+	5+	5+	5+	5+	5+	5+
	2	3+	4+	4+	4+	5+	5+	5+	5+	5+	5+
1	3	3+	3+	4+	4+	4+	4+	5+	5+	5+	5+
WEAPON SKILL	4	3+	3+	3+	4+	4+	4+	4+	4+	5+	5+
VEAPC	5	3+	3+	3+	3+	4+	4+	4+	4+	4+	4+
	6	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	4+	4+	4+	4+	4+
ATTACKER'S	7	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	4+	4+	4+	4+
IV	8	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	4+	4+	4+
	9	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	4+	4+
	10	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	4+

SPLIT PROFILES AND STRIKING ORDER

Where a model has Attacks at two or more Initiative values, such as a knight or other cavalry models (see page 82), resolve each set of Attacks in the relevant order.

If the model is slain before it can finish striking all of its blows (because one set of Attacks is at a lower Initiative than the energy) then obviously these are lost, just as a model with a single profile would lose all of its Attack a if it were slain before striking blows.

Similarly, on rare occasions, a model with a split profile might be unable to strike some of its blows because all eligible enemies have been shain. Take heart from the fact that such situations are normally caused by your warriors having killed a great deal of the fore.

ROLL TO HIT

Roll a D6 for each attack. Compare the Weapon Skill of the attacker and the defender to determine the score required to hit.

To determine whether or not hits are scored, rell as 16 for each struct, a model gets to make. The disc roll needed to score a hit on your energy depends on the relative Weapon Skills of the model striking Hows with that of the stacker and the target. Compare the Weapon Skill of the model striking Hows with that of the anget model and cosmit the To Hit chart (shown to the left) to find out the minimum score needed to hit.

If you look at the chart, you will see that equally matched models hit an enemy on a 4+, but if the attacker's Weapon Skill is greater than that of his target, he will hit on a dice roll of 3+. In the rare cases when an targets's Weapon Skill is more than double that of the attacker, a 5+ is required for a successful hit.

If you roll too low, the Attack has missed, and if you equal or beat the required score, the Attack has hit. Sometimes modifiers apply to these rolls, but a natural dice score of 6 always hits and a natural dice score of 1 always misses.

Continuing our earlier example, the Dark Elf Spearmon are Weapon Skill 4, whils the Ore Boyz are Weapon Skill 3. Looking at the To Hit chart, we can therefore see that the Dark Elves will require 31 to hit, whils the Orex will meed 4.

CLOSE COMBAT

ROLL TO WOUND

Roll a D6 for each attack that hit. Compare the Strength of the attacker and the Toughness of the defender to find the score required to wound.

Not all hits are going to harm your enemy – some bounce off tough hide, while others cause only superficial damage. As with shooting, once you have hit your foe, you must roll again to see whether or not each hit inflicts a wound. Pick up all the dice that scored hits and roll them again.

Consult the To Wound chart, cross-referencing the attacker's Yesreght with the definede's Toughness. Both values appear on the profiles of the creatures that are fighting. The chart indicates the minimum score required on a D6 to cause a wound. In most cases, you use the Strength on the attacker's profile regardless of what weapon they are using. However, some close combat weapon give the attacker a Strength hours, as we'll discuss in the Weapons charter on your §8.

Remember to roll dice separately for models with different Strength values.

Continuing the battle on the previous page, the Dark Elses are Strength 3 and Tooghness 3, while the Orea are Strength 3 and Tooghness 4. Looking at the To Woond chart, you can see that the Orea will need 4 to toomad, while the Elses will need 51.

TAKE SAVING THROWS

The enemy now rolls a D6 for each wound suffered. If the score is equal or greater than the model's saving throw, the wound is discounted.

As before in the Shooting phase, the enemy phage can try to show models that have been wounded. He rolls a D6 for each wound suffered by his troops. If he rolls equal to or greater than the model's save (after any modifiers have been applied) the wound has been deflected by its armouts. Ees upge 4.3 of the Shooting Phase if you need a reminder about the different types of save and how they work. Remember that wounds caused by Strength 4 or higher inflict a savine throw modifier on armour saves.

Strength	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
Armour save modifier	-1	-2	-3	-4	-5	-6	-7

REMOVE CASUALTIES

Casualties are removed from the rear rank, just like models killed by shooting attacks. Models that have stepped up to replace the fallen can fight, provided that their Initiative step has not passed.

With assing throws made or failed, you now need to vernoye the abin. Close control casualties are removed in the same way as shooring ones. Although we can imagine casualties failing amongst the fighting rank, warriers in the ranks behind will step forward to fill any gaps that appen. Casualties will therefore be removed straight from a unit's rear rank. This means that if a unit is big comogh, taking a handful of casualties will not reduce the number of Attacks the unit can muck back.

It can happen that a model causes more casualties than it has enemies in base contact. The excess casualties are removed as normal from the unit as a whole, representing the attackers fighting over the fallen focs.

It is a good idea not to immediately remove models that are slain from the table, but instead temporarily place them next to their unit – you will need to know how many casualties have been caused when working out who won the combat.

10

Fast Dice Rolling in Close Combat

Galois Contamination of the American Science Science Contamination of the Science and Physica of the American Science and Wappen Science Science Science Science and Wappen Science and Wappen Science and Wappen Science and Wappen Science and Science Wappen Science Science and Science Wappen Science Science Science Wappen Science Science Wappen Sci

TO	2	WO	UNI		HAF		HNES	s			
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
	1	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+
	2	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+
	3	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+
STRENGIH	4	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+
	5	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+
VIIVCKERS	6	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+
WHY	7	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+
	8	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+
	9	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+
	10	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+

CLOSE COMIL
2. CALCULATE COMBAT RESULT

Once all the models engaged in the combat have fought, this concludes what we call a 'combat round' or 'round of close combat'.

Now you must determine which side has won. Inflicting casualties plays a huge part in seizing victory, but other factors, such as the sheer mass of a unit, the momentum of a charge and fighting downhill, can also prove to be telling.



The winner of a combat is decided by the number of casualties, plus certain other bonuses. To calculate which side has wone the combat, we first need to work out each side's combat result score. We determine combat result score by adding up the following bonuses:

WOUNDS INFLICTED +1 combat result for each wound inflicted.

Inflicting wounds on the foe is an important factor when determining combat resolution – perhaps the most important.

Each side's basic combat result is equal to the wounds caused in the combat. It's important to tally up the number of wounds, rather than the number of casualties – most characters and monsters have more than one wound and it can take several rounds of combat to slay them.

Nonetheless, our warriors take heart from the harm inflicted on such powerful foes, even if they are not yet down for the count. Do NOT count wounds that were saved (in other words, only count unsaved wounds).

Attacks that kill almodel outright (made with a Killing Blow, say – see page 72) count as having scored all the slain model's remaining wounds.

CHARGE!

+1 combat result if the unit charged.

The momentum of a charge can give your unit a much-needed boost when breaking the spirit of your enemy. If your unit charged this turn, it receives +1 combat result.

EXTRA RANKS

+1 combat result for each extra rank with at least five models, to a maximum of +3.

The extra ranks of a unit's formation are not solely there to provide replacements to the fighting rank – they push the front rank forward and this momentum can swing a fight all by itself.

If your unit's formation is at least five models wide, you can claim a bonus of +1 combat result for each extra rank of five or more models behind the fighting rank, at the end of the fight, up to a maximum of +3. Note that this bonus can be claimed for an incomplete rear rank, as long as there are five models in it.

Disruption

A unit does not receive combat result points for extra ranks as long as it is disrupted.

A unit is disrupted if an enemy is attacking it in the flank or rear, and that enemy unit has two or more ranks of at least five models. Smaller units are assumed to have insufficient mass to cause disruption.

Sometimes, an enemy unit will begin the round of close combat with enough ranks to cause disruption, but takes enough causalies so that it no longer has two or more ranks of five or more models. In this case, it can no longer disrupt the unit it is fighting and the extra ranks are counted as normal.

STANDARD

+1 combat result for a standard bearer.

Most troops fight all the harder beneath the colours or symbols of their city, nation, tribe or god. If your unit includes a standard bearer, it receives +1 Combat Result.



Ogre Maneater

FLANK ATTACK +1 combat result if your unit is fighting the enemy unit's flank.

ACC STOR

Fighting a foc in its flask is a great advantage. The energy warrises cannot easily turn to combat their attackers, and the studden appearance of an enemy from an unexpected quarter has a psychological value all of its own. Therefore, if your unit is fighting the enemy in its flask, it receives +1 combat result. Remember that if your unit has two or more ranks of at least three models, with likely to disrupt the enemy formation into the bargain as well (see Disruption earlier).

REAR ATTACK

+2 combat result if your unit is fighting the enemy unit's rear.

Fighting the enemy in the rear has all the advantages of a flank attack, only more so. If your unit is fighting the enemy in the rear, it receives +2 Combat Result.

THE HIGH GROUND +1 Combat Result if the unit charged downhill.

The added momentum gained when charging downhill is a significant advantage. Therefore, if your unit charged and the majority of the models in your unit began the turn higher up than the enemy unit thut was charged, you receive +1 combat result. This might seem like an odd way to phrase it, but allows the rule to cover most situations.

WHO'S THE WINNER?

The unit with the highest combat result score wins the fight.

After adding together all the combat result bonuses, you'll be able to determine the winner, i.e. the side that scored the most. The other side has lost and might even run from the fight, as well discuss in the next step. If both sides have the same score, the result is a draw and the combat will continue in the next turn.

The higher the difference between the winner's combat result score and the loser's, the bigger and more decisive the victory. An 8 against 7 victory, for example, is only a slight win

UNCOMMON BONUSES

In addition to the combat result bonuses explained above, there are two other types of bonus that it's worth mentioning, but that wort' crop up so often in your games. Each is tied to a special rule that we'll be discussing in more detail later in the book, but for completeness they are presented here:

Battle Standard +1 combat result if the unit includes a Battle Standard Bearer.

Troops fight harder under the personal banner of their lord. Therefore, if your unit includes a bartlet standard, it receives +1 combat result, cumulative with any bonus for a 'normal' standard. See page 107 for more about battle standards.

Overkill

+1 combat result per excess wound caused in a challenge, to a maximum of +5.

When a unit sees their enemy's best fighter cut to ribbons, the carnage most definitely influences their will to fight. If a character fighting in a challenge kills his opponent and scores more wounds than his enemy has remaining, then each excess wound scores 4 +1 combat result, up to a maximum of +3;

Challenges are a special type of close combat performed only by characters, and are covered in more detail on page 102.

because the difference in scores is only 1. An 8 against 2 victory, however, is extremely decisive, as the difference in scores is a whopping 6. This difference is simportant because it is used when working out whether a defeated enemy stands its ground or turns and flees.

WIPEOUT!

Of course, if one side has been completely wiped out in the fight, the other side is automatically the winner. In such cases the unit automatically restrains pursuit and reforms (as discussed on page 57). Alternatively, if the unit charged this turn it can choose to overrun (see page 89). For example, a unit of High Elf Archers is fighting a unit of Gublins.

The Gebbins inflit 3 consists or the High Elves, and the High Elves inflit 4 cosmit on the Gobbins. Hencever, the Gobbins have four complete ranks in their unit, each rank beyond the first adding + 1 to their score, and have charged the High Elves, adding another +1, This gives them 3+3+1 = 7point against the High Elves' score of +.

The High Elsen have therefore lost the combat, even though they have caused more consultie – the vasit numbers of Goldins have overschelmed them. The High Elsen will more have to take a Break test to avoid Breing from combat.







Chass Marauder

3. LOSER TAKES BREAK TEST

The losing unit in a combat must pass a Leadership test or flee? This Break test is modified by the amount by which the unit lost the combat.

In the brutal hack and slash of close combat, it is rare for warriors to fight to the last man. Defeating the enemy is much easier if you can break the resolve of your opponent.

The side that loses a round of close combat must take a test to determine whether it continues to stand and fight, or breaks from the combat and runs away. This is called a Break test. Troops that are better led, braver, and more professional are more likely to stand firm, while wild, temperamental troops are far more likely to run for it.

TAKING A BREAK TEST

A Break test is a type of Leadership test. However, before rolling the dice, the difference between the winner's combat result score and the loser's is applied as a penalty to the defeated unit's Leadership. If the total is less than or equal to the loser's modified Leadership, the unit stands its ground and



settles in for another round of fighting – this close combat has finished for the turn. If the total is greater than the unit's modified Leadership value then the unit has broken and will flee. Note that this modified Leadership is used only for the Break test and any subsequent attempt to make a combat reform – see the next page.

From our earlier cample, the High Elver must be a Brank star with a -3 possily to their Landership, because the difference between the sources was 1. High Elvers have a good Landership value (θ) has with the extra -3 possily their Landership in charactor is β for his true, therefore the player will have a will β or lens trainal and fight. The player will 206 and survers 7 — this is greater than the wait's modified Landership, so the Elver have between and will file.

STEADFAST

If a defeated unit has more ranks than its enemy, it takes its Break test on its unmodified Leadership.

When at war, there's definitely something to be said for having van numbers at your disposal. Not only will your warriors be worried far less by the odd fallen comrade (there's plenty more where they cause from) but they'll also take heart from being more numerous than the enerny. To represent this in our games, we have something called the Steadfast rule.

Simply pure, a unit is considered to be steadfast if it has more ranks than its energy. As with calculating extra ranks for the purposes of more models wide for the unit to be treated as being stadfast. The last rank doewn! have to be complete, but must have at least five models. Similarit, the energy 'ranks also have to be five or more models wide to counter your unit from being stadfast.

Steadfast units can always take Break tests on their unmodified Leadership (or the General's unmodified Leadership if the testing unit is in range of his Inspiring Presence special rule – see page 107). It doesn't matter whether they have been beaten by 1 point or by 100 points, they still use their normal Leadership value. It should be noted that a unit does not lose its steadfast status for being disrupted. A flank charge might be able to disrupt a unit, but it can't prevent the warriors in that unit realising they outnumber the foc.

We example, a unit of Empire Hallorders is attached us he rear by a unit of Assami Bloudlatters. Uncurprisingly, the Halberdiers take apaine a bosting, and rule ap long the could be 77. Hencever, the Bloudletter suit has van by 12 models, arranged into two completer runks and a albuid runk of 20 Assamse, chielter Halberdiers and haves 30 modeld higt, gezing, them fore runks of 6 models. Ar Bloudlatters, they are Standfast and well text on their bloudlatters, they are Standfast and well text on their womedifiel Landership of 7.



INSANE COURAGE If a unit rolls double 1 for its Break test, it passes it, regardless of any other modifiers.

Occasionally, in the middle of a battle, even the humbles regiment becomes filled with stedy courage and discipline, deciding to stand their ground, no matter the odds! Such unpredictable courarences are represented in the game by the linear Courage rule. This simply means that if stand its ground, regardless of how badly it has lost the fight.

For example, a wate of Night Colobias to charged in the flash be a wate of Calon Knights. The conduct is resolved and the Chane Knights runs in he fight by 10 stars. The Night Coloris' Loadorship of 5 means that they quantify and the star of the stars of the stars, that they are as Stardias's, which is a devianely impactively. There still is a positis in writing that days are starting a natural, samofified, in a remark chance of relling a natural, samofified, starting 1, maxing that the Night Colline trought. A more array and the Night Colline trought is could be regulate a naturality (see findiality); and their grands.

COMBAT REFORM

Assuming that a unit doesn't flee the fight, its leader can attempt to bring more warriors to bear against the for. This is far easier for the winning side, as they have sufficient momentum, but a disciplined unit can manage this even if on the loxing end of a combat.

REFORMING FROM VICTORY

If your unit wins the close combat but the enemy does not flee, or the combat was a draw, your unit can immediately make a combat reform manoeuvre.

A combat referm is essentially a standard reform (upge 14) save for the fact that it can be made even though the unit is in close combat. The most common usage of Zombat referm is to anticked in the finals or verary, although it can able be used to bring more models into the fight by increasing the unit's frontage. There is ong sequit referrition on a combat referm, however $-\pi$ cannot be used to get a model (friend or fly was in ord base contast with the energy if 'm was can be in base contast with afferent energy at the end of the refermit 'y van with.

REFORMING AMID DEFEAT

If your unit loses the combat, but does not flee, it can still attempt a combat reform.

In this case, your unit must pass a Leadership text to muster the necessary discipling to their its formation. Note that this Leadership text is subject to any modifiers from having lost the steadfast (or has the Unbreakloble special rule sequers 3), the ext is knew on the unit's unmodified Leadership. If the text is failed, your unit cannot make a comhat reform. The text is passed, the combat reform can be carried out as described above.

UNUSUAL SITUATIONS

If both sides wish to make (or attempt to make) a combat reform, take any Leadership tests required in order to make the reforms, then roll off to determine which side makes all of his reforms first (the winner of the roll-off decides).

If a unit is engaged to more than one facing (say to the front and one flank), it cannot make combat reforms.



High Elf White Lion

Should We Stay or Should We Go

will almost always come down combat is spon. Parsaing a beaten for is always tempting, as thus handing you a significant name. On the other hand, a parsoning unit is likely to find anite passible surrounded by



There are other factors to turn, is there? That said, if there's no threat to your make sure? It's up to you to weigh the various factors in the schatever you decide, the dice because that's what dice do. At

4. FLEE AND PURSUE

If a unit fails its Break test it must flee and might be destroyed as it runs.

However great the slaughter that occurred in the clash of swords, the subsequent flee and flees from close combat, it does so with wild abandon. Warriors run from the enemy with all possible haste, casting aside anything that might encumber them and giving thought to nothing other than survival. For the pursuing down, captured as slaves or driven from the field of battle. A regiment that flees from combat, therefore, is almost certainly doomed. Only by outpacing the enemy do they have any chance of survival.



RESTRAIN OR PURSUE? The victorious unit can choose to pursue or restrain pursuit.

If the losing unit failed its Break test, it must flee, but the winning unit now has a choice of actions. It can pursue the foe, seeking to solidify the victory by scattering or slaying the survivors of the fight. Alternatively, the the precious seconds earnt by its victory to reorder itself and prepare for other fights to come. Restraining from pursuit in this manner requires a degree of organisation and discipline

ROLL TO FLEE A unit flees 2D6.

With the intentions of the victorious unit declared, it's time to see just how badly the losing unit wants to escape and calculate the distance that it flees.

It is difficult to say precisely how far fleeing troops will run because they are no longer fighting as a body but milling around in a frightened mob. Indeed, unless the fleeing troops are all of one mind, confusion is likely slow their escape, making it all the more likely they are caught by their pursuers. To represent the flering unit swiftness of foot and reaction, the controlling player rolls 2D6, the result is the Elec roll.

ROLL TO PURSUE A unit pursues 2D6.

Can the fleeing troops escape their pursuers? To find out, the pursuing unit needs to make its uncontrolled affair, so we roll 2D6 to determine if the pursuers were quick-witted and quickfooted enough to catch their prey.

CAUGHT!

If a pursuing unit rolls equal to or higher than the fleeing unit, the fleeing unit is destroyed.

If the victorious unit's pursuit roll is equal to or erreater than the Flee roll scored by the fleeing enemy unit, the fleeing unit is completely destroard where they stand. All the troops are cut down as they turn to run, or are scattered beyond hope of regrouping - remove the entire troops will have been slain, but any who've survived will be so broken in spirit that there's no chance of them fighting again this day.



Accordingly, if you wish your unit to restrain pursuit, it must first take a Leadership test to see whether or not its leaders have been able to keep it in order. If the test is passed, the unit conforms to your wishes and holds position, and can choose to reform once the defeated amount of bellowing or bullying will be sufficient to keep the unit in order - they elect to pursue the enemy anyway.

MOVE FLEEING UNIT

Fleeing units turn around to face away from the victor and then move directly forward a number of inches equal to their Flee roll.

If the fleeing unit rolls higher than the pursuers, or has not been pursued at all, then it has escaped. With a bit of luck, the warriors will come to their senses once the immediate danger has passed, and might yet play a useful part later on in the battle.

To resolve the flee move, turn the unit around about its centre so that it is facing directly away from the enemy unit (ignoring the enemy unit).

The unit then flees straight forward a distance equal to the result of the Flee roll. This is otherwise treated easily the same as a flee move in the Movement phase (see page 25 for details). You'll remember that fleeing troops are assumed to run around, force their way through or otherwise avoid other units and impassible terrain in their deserate flicht.

RESTRAINING UNITS REFORM

A unit that does not pursue can perform a reform manoeuvre.

If your unit elected to restrain and passed the test to do so, or wiped out the enemy and did not overrun, it can now perform a reform manoeuvre, as described on page 14 of the Movement phase.

MOVE PURSUERS

The pursuing unit pivots to face the centre of the fleeing unit and moves directly forward equal to its pursuit roll. It will stop 1" away from any friendly units or impassable terrain, and will charge an enemy in the way.

With the final position of the fleeing unit now determined, it's time to move the pursues. Turn the pursuing unit about its centre so that it is facing directly towards the unit they are pursuing — the pursuers then move straight forward a number of inches equal to the amount rolled on the dice.

Note that pursuers make this move even if the fleeing unit was caught, as described earlier – the 'pursuit' move in this case represents them surging forward to cut down any stragglers.



PURSUIT INTO AN OBSTRUCTION Unlike fleeing troops, pursuers maintain some manner of order and formation. Therefore, if the pursuit move would take the pursuers into contact with (or through) a friendly unit or area of impassable terrain, they automatically halt 1" wava;

PURSUIT INTO A NEW ENEMY

If a pursuit move would take the pursuer into contact with an enemy unit, then the pursuers must charge the enemy unit.

Carry out the charge as you would in the Movement phase, following all the normal restrictions. However, you do not need to will for the charge range —we already know from the pursait roll that these unwitting chargers have momentum to reach the fore, whether they wished to or not. The charging unit must whell and close the door in such a way as to maximise contact, as they would with a normal charge.

Naturally, the charged unit is taken by surprise by this impromptu assault – it is not allowed to take any charge reactions and must Hold.

If this enemy unit was already engaged in close combut, and that fight has not been resolved for this turn, then the pursuing unit will get to fight another round of close combat! If a pursuing unit is lucky enough to win a second fight in the same turn, it cannot overrun and automatically restrains pursuit (and can reform!).

If the unit that has been charged as a result of pursuit was not engaged in combat from the beginning of this combat phase, or if it was engaged but that fight has already been resolved in this combat phase, the combat is not resolved straight away, but in the combat phase of the following turn.

In the following turn's combat phase, the pursuers will still count as charging.

This night result in both sides having charging units in the same fight, in which case the charging units on both sides will get the normal bonuse; conferred by charging (e.g. casing ingert hits, benefing from a lance's Strength bonus, etc., and other bonuses described later in this Rules section). Also, both sides will get the +1 combat resolution bonus, which will effectively cancel each other out.

Pursuit into Fleeing Focs.

Even if the charged unit was already flecing, it still cannot take any charge reactions. Move the pursuers into contact with it as you would for a unit completing a charge against a flecing unit (see page 23). The flecing unit is then immediately destroyed and the pursuing unit is allowed one final reform.

OVERRUN!

If the victorious unit charged into combat and the enemy was wiped out, it can move 2D6 inches straight forward.

If a unit charges into combat and, by the end of that round of close combat, all its enemies have been wiped out as the result of the combat (rather than the pursait) the unit can choose-to make a pursuit more, even with mobody left after to pursue. This is an overrun move and represents the unit surging forwards, hungry to find more enemies to fight.

An overrun is essentially a special pursuit move. When making an overrun, the victorious unit moves 2D6⁴ directly forwards, as if they were pursuing a fleeing enemy to their front. All other rules governing pursuit moves, such as intervening units and terrain, apply to overruns.

SWIFTSTRIDE

Some troop types, such as cavalry, can flee and pursue more swiftly, as we'll discuss in the Troop Types chapter on pages 80-87.

PURSUIT OFF THE BATTLEFIELD

A pursuing unit that moves into contact with the battlefield edge moves off the battlefield. They're so caught up in their pursuit of the foe that their momentum earries them clean off the battlefield!

Unlike trougs fineing the buffeling, however, who parsures are good and kern to come back to the first, Accordingly, we allow them to reenter the board in their arct Movement phase, using the rules for reinforcements (see page 27). The unit is placed back as door as possible to the same point from which it left the burffelick of the same formation. Resemblish that and have all of an one rank traching the burffelick days we don't not have a start to heart and do the same is order to mark the position from which a suff is order to mark the position from which a start is order to mark the position from which a suff is order to mark the position from which

The Galaxie and the former of the former of

The Empire Spearmer's parsuit note could take them into contact with the Orea, to they must charge this new memy, wheeling to maximite

MULTIPLE CLOSE COMBATS

It is possible (indeed, rather likely) that more than two units can become involved in the same close combat.

A multiple combat is a fight that involves more than one unit on either (or even Johl) sides. Some examples of multiple combat are shown in the diagrams below. Offices otherwise tested, all the rules for a one-on-one close combat also apply to a combat with multiple units on each side. Ber in mind, however, that multiple combats offen creates situations not entrively covered by the rules. I've included a commentary of the most common occurrences here, but remember i in doubt discuss the matter wild.



MULTIPLE COMBAT RESULTS

Combat resolution works slightly differently in a multiple close combat. All the casualities inflicted by both sides (including overkill bonuses) count towards the result as normal, but most other modifiers have limitations.

Standards

In a multiple close combat, you receive +1 combat result if your side has one or more standards present in the fight.

Extra Ranks

Similarly, your side receives a combat result bonus based on the best rank bonus in the fight, not the total rank bonus.

For example, if a unit of Goblins (with 2 extra ranks) and, from the same army, a unit of Trolls (with 1 extra rank) are involved in the same multiple combat, then the Extra Ranks combat result bouss earned is +2 – the Trolls' rank is ignored.

Flank and Rear

Bonuses for flank and rear attacks can only be carned once per unit attacked in the flank or rear – having multiple units attacking the same unit does not grant additional bonuses.

Charging

In a multiple close combat, you receive +1 combat result if your side has one or more units that charged this turn.

The High Ground

The combat result for charging downhill can only be counted once, by the side with the highest charging unit (i.e. the one that started the turn highest up).





If one unit of Decarfs is attacking the rear and the other is attacking the flowh, they resuld receive a combined combat result borus of +3 (+1 for the flowh and +2 for the rear).



If the two units of Decarfs are attacking two different units of Ores in the flank, and these Ores were all part of the same multiple combat, then the Decarfs would soure +2 combat result (+1 for each flank attack).

LOSE COMPAT

Staying Sane Through Multiple Combat Resolution

As you employ expect, the more simplifying or investments of a simplifying combast, the greater to be a simplifying combast, the greater is in a galaxies and the simplifying combast development. The simplifying combast development of the simplifying the simplifying the simplifying combast development of the simplifying the simplifying the simplifying combast development of the simplifying the simplifyi

MULTIPLE COMBATS AND BREAK TESTS

All units on the defeated side must take a break test.

When the winning side has been determined in a multiple combat, you need to take a separate Break test for every unit on the losing side, using the difference in the two combat result scores as normal.

STEADFAST

Any unit on the losing side can use its unmodified Leadership for Break tests so long as its number of ranks is higher than that of any of the enemy units in the close combat – compare the unit's ranks to the enemy unit which most ranks in the combat. If even one enemy unit has an equal or higher number of ranks, then the unit must test using its modified Ld.

Note that this applies on a unit by unit basis – having one unit with a higher number of ranks does not make all of your units steadfast. Units that have more ranks than any of the enemy units are steadfast; units that do not, are not.

MULTIPLE COMBATS AND PURSUIT

It can happen that one or more victorious units have defeated several enemies that were engaging them from different sides.

Where this happens, bear the following in mind:

PURSUIT

Units on the winning side are each only permitted to pursue a single energy unit that they are in base contact with (defaults this before any For rolls are made). In addition, they cannot choose to pursue if one or more of the units they are in base contact with pass their Break tests. This is quite realistic - your warriors are hardly likely togo haring off after a broken energy if here are still freed, and eager fors to face. If there is more than one pursuing unit, the controlling playee can choose the order in which they move.

FLEE!

Fleeing units must roll greater than the scores rolled by all of their pursuers in order to get away. If even one of their pursuers equals or beats the fleeing unit's score, then the fleeing unit is cut down, and the models are removed as casualites.

DIRECTION OF FLIGHT

Where there is a choice of foes to flee from, warriors will always be more determined to avoid the most numerous enemy. The controlling player decides the order in which units flee.

Each fleeing unit pivots about its centre (ignoring enemy units) so that it is facing directly away from the enemy with the most ranks of five or more models (select a unit randomly if there is a tie). It then flees straight forward in this direction as described earlier.

You may find that this involves the fleeing unit turning so that it overlaps one or more other units in the fight. If this happens, don't worry. Simply estimate the unit's new position as best you can by holding it above the rest of the units in the fight. - if'll only be there for a moment before making its flee move, after all!



DIRECTION OF PURSUIT

Once all the moves have been resolved, resolve any parsare moves one at a time. In an order chosen by the controlling player, each parsare pixets about in centure so that it is faining directly towards the flexing unit of its choice, and them parsness, as described earlier. Note that this will sometimes lead to a pursuing unit 'ataching up' with a flexing unit that has rolled high enough to escape. In this case, the pursuing unit must exp 1³ sawy (see diagram opposite).





SHRINKING UNITS AND MULTIPLE FIGHTS

Qccasionally, a situation can arise when one or more units are no longer in base context with the energy, but at least part of the energy unit is all allow. This consult) occurs when an energy has been charged in the rear – as essuables come from the rear a rank first, this would in theory leave the attackers stranded from their fact, lead with site or to continue the first, and would not stop fabling if the energy was standing a few parces areasy so must survives on the strates but the standard but.

Whenever a unit becomes stranded in this manner, the attacking unit is immediately nudged (by as small an amount as possible) to bring it back into contact with the foc. This move cannot be used to alter the facing the attacker is in base contact with, nor is it an opportunity to change the attacker's formation or charge a unit not engaged in the fight. If the attacker cannot be moved in this manner, then the defending unit is moved instead.

NO MORE FOES

In multiple combust it can smortlines happen that at the end of a neural of close combus some units are no longer engaged with any centry unit (normally because the unit they were engaged with has been completely destryced). Such units are out of combust four all hurse abded to the fight responsite that unit south are abded to the fight for governish fluctuation and the abded to the fight for governish fluctuation and the abded to the fight for governish fluctuation and the abded to the fight for governish fluctuation and the abded to the fight for governish fluctuation and the abded to the fight measures, such as statistic, charges and so on are not. Note that such a unit cannot cancel out statistic in a mergin.

PANIC

The barderidel is a disconcering place, to say the least, full of confusion, death and monthing discummaters. Under such conditions, it's not entirely unpriving that treops might not perform in the manner that you wish them too. Faced with allies and comrades being dains at the hands of the foce, you may full that your warriors scatter and leave the battlefield, rather than fight on. In Warhammer we govern these simulous, and the likelihood of them occurring with the rules for panie.

Panic (and more importantly, resisting panic) is an important factor in Warhammer. Battles can sometimes be won and lost because an army panics and flees, even though it may not have been beaten in combat.

Troops who are nearby when their friends are destroyed or run away can easily lose their nerve and flee, causing other nearby troops to lose heart until the whole army routs in blind panic.



PANIC TESTS

In earlier sections I've hinted at the times a unit will be called on to take a Panic test, but now we're going to discuss it in detail.

A Panic test is simply a Leadership test, as described on page 10. If the test is passed, everything is fine, but if the test is failed the unit will immediately flee as described opposite.

Note that a unit only needs to take one Panic test in each phase (Movement, Magic, Shooting and Close Combut) even if there are multiple reasons to take Panic tests. Some Panic tests are, taken immediately, and in larger games you'll ' find it helpful to mark units that have already taken Panic tests, in order that you don't end up mistakenly taking another as the phase goes on.



Skaven Gatter Ranner

If two or more units from the same army have to take Panic tests at the same time, the controlling player chooses the order in which tests are made.

It's worth noting however that there are three circumstances under which even the most cowardly of units are not forced to take Panic tests.

- A unit does not take Panic tests if it is in close combat – the immediate fray blots out all, other events going on around them.
- A unit does not take a Panic test if that unit is already fleeing – fear has already lent wings to these warriors, the prospect of further jeopardy does not accelerate their flight.
- Finally, remember that a unit does not take a Panic test if it has already passed one earlier in the phase – its nerve has been tested already!

Assuming a unit is not subject to the circumstances described above, the most common circumstances under which it must take a Panic test are:

HEAVY CASUALTIES

A unit must take a Panic test immediately if it loses 25% or more of the models with which it started the phase.

This test will most commonly be taken as a result of shooting attack or damage caused by earny spells, but can also be triggered by other factors that cause cassallies, such as micrafts, misfires, Dangerens Berrain tests or other special rules. Rather than having a series of very special rules. For a Panie test, we set this as a 'task-all' to cover units that suffer high cassalities for any reason.

For example, a unit of 21 models is shot at by an energy unit and raffers four canadities – not enough for a Pauit text. Is the name phase, another energy unit fires against them, causing two more canadities. Six out of tworety-one is above 25%, so the unit must take a Panie text. A Heavy Consulties Planic test must also be latent (immodiately) by a charging unit if its centrins. Stand and Shoot and infile: 12% or more casualities. Where this happens, it can sometimes result in the charging unit pankcing their is still therefundly out of range of the centry units' missile weapons, which can look a miller odd. Under the circumstances, we assume the charging unit to have been shown at miller of the constraints' and the starset of range again - other than make all of these infinitial mores, we let the abstraction are units made complexiton.

NEARBY FRIEND ANNIHILATED

If a unit is destroyed for any reason, all friendly units within 6° must immediately test for panie.

This covers situations such as when a unit is wiped out by missile fire, magic, close combat, pursuit or indeed any other occurrence. Obviously, it's best to leave the annihilated unit in place until the tests are taken in order to give a point to measure from.

NEARBY FRIEND BREAKS

If a unit breaks from close combat, all friendly units within 6" must immediately test for panic.

Measure from the unit's position before it makes any flee move.

FLED THROUGH

A unit must immediately test for panie if fleeing friends move through it.

For simplicity, resolve the movement of the fleeing friends before taking and resolving the Panic test.

This is the most destructive form of panic, as one unit can panic and flee through another unit, which in turn might panic and flee through a further unit, and so on until your battleline is reduced to tatters.

DIRECTION OF FLIGHT

If a unit fails a Panic test:

- Brought about by heavy casualties. Fivot the unit on the spot (ignoring other units) so that it is facing directly away from the unit that caused the most casualties in that phase – it then flees as described on page 25.
- Brought about by any other reason. Evot the unit-on the spot (ignoring other units) so that it is facing directly away from the closest enemy unit, and then flees as described on page 25.

Providing that the panicked unit doesn't carry itself off the board with its first flee move, you'll have a chance to rally it in later turns, as we discussed earlier on page 24.



THE FOUNDATION IS COMPLETE

The Panic rules mark the end of the basic Warhammer rules. You should now know how the game turn works, and how to move, shoot and fight, as well as cast spells. It's perfectly possible to play games only with the rules we've just discussed, and if you're new to Warhammer it may be worth doing so to get them fised in your mind.









SPECIAL RULES

A Warhammer battle is packed with fantastic creatures and skilled warriors whose abilities are so inercedible and varied that the basic rules cannot possibly cover them all. For such circumstances we have special rules – uncommon rules to govern uncommon circumstances.

When a creature has an ability that breaks or bends one of the main game rules, it is often represented by a special rule. A special rule can boost a model's chances of causing damage, such as by granting poissoned weapons, or enhance its Strength. Alternatively, a special rule can improve a model's survivability, by granting it a better armour save or the ability to regrow damaged flesh. It is through the use of the special rules that Dragons breathe fire, Assassins strike with lightning speed and Giants cause bowel-loosening terror in their enemies.

WHAT SPECIAL RULES DOES IT HAVE?

It may seem devices, but unless studied observice, a model does on them as special rule. Most special rules are given to a model by the relevant entry in the Washmarer Armolis book. In addition, a model's studies, can gain special rules because of the coppinent it is using. Similarly as model might get pecial rules as the result of a spel that has been cost sport or perlaps even as the result of k is being on a perial rule as the fragment the coppinent, rule of a truth fragment the make finis cher. Unless otherwise model, the effects of multiple special rules are considered.

Most of the more commonly used special rules in Warhammer are listed here, but this is by no means an exhaustive fist. Many troop types have their own unique abilities laid out in their Warhammer Armies book. Remember, that if there is a conflict between the rules presented here and in a Warhammer Armies book, the latter takes precedence.

For ease of consultation, I've arranged all the special rules in alphabetical order. There's also a specific index at the back of the book to help you locate the particular special rule you're after.



ALWAYS STRIKES FIRST

Some warriors are fast beyond belief and can strike with supernatural speed. Whether this ability if ionate or the result of enchantment matters little to the foe, who is often slain before he has a chance to acknowledge the attack.

Models with this special rule (or who are attacking with a weapon that grants this special rule) always strike first in close combat regardless of Initiative.

In addition, if the model's Initiative is equal to or higher than his enemy's, he can re-roll failed misses when striking in close combat – he moves so fast-that he can land his blows with incredible precision. If the model with this value is fighting an enemy with the same ability, the Attacks are made simultaneously, and neither model by this rule.

ALWAYS STRIKES LAST

Some warriors are incredibly ponderous by nature, or else encombered by massive weapons that slow them down.

A model with this special rule (or who is attacking with a weapon that grants this special rule) always strikes last in close combat, regardless of Initiative.

If the model with this rule is fighting an enemy with the same ability, the Attacks are made simultaneously. If a model has both this rule and Always Strikes First, the two cancel out and neither applies so use the model's Initiative.

A Compendium of Special Rules

The reason I'm tabling about special rules to early is that many of the observation is that summy of the observation is the special rules given here. Rather than have the special rules constrered around the book, and here you housen back and forecard like a maddemod Sping Hopper, I've accumulated the majority here for easy reference.

ARMOUR PIERCING

Some attacks can penetrate armour with an ease that belies their meagre strength.

Wounds caused in close combat by a model with this special rule (or who is attacking with a weapon that has this special rule) inflict a further -1 armour save modifier, in addition to those for Strength.

For example, a Strength 4 model with the Armour Piercing special rule would inflict a -2 armour save modifier when striking in close combat, rather than the usual -1.

If a model has a weapon with the Armour Piercing rule, only attacks made or shots fired with the weapon are Armour Piercing.

BREATH WEAPONS

Some creatures have the ability to belch clouds of flame or nocious choking fames at their foes. Dragons are the most famous of such beasts, but they are by no means alone.

A model with a Breath Weapon can use it to make a special attack once per game. A model with two or more different Breath Weapons can use each one once. The form that this special attack takes depends on whether or not the creature is in close combat.

In the event that a model has more than one Breath Weapon attack, it is permitted to use only one in a single turn.

BREATH WEAPON SHOOTING ATTACK

Provided the model is not in close combat, it can use its Breath Weapon during its Shooting phase. A Breath Weapon shooting attack can be made even if the model marched or reformed during the same turn.

To perform the attack, place the flame template so that it lies entirely within the model's forward are, with the narrow end touching the creature's mouth, and so that it is not touching any friendly units or enemy units that are in close combat.

All models that lie even partially under the template are automatically hit, as covered on page 9. The Strength and any special effects of the creature's Breath Weapon will be covered in its rules.

BREATH WEAPON CLOSE COMBAT ATTACK

If the model with this special rule is in close an additional close combat strucks at in our combat, it can use the Breach Wegners to make many structures and the structure of the sysinflicts. D De automatic hits on a single energy unit in base contact with the model, the energy unit in base contact with the model, the other structures and the structure of the sysingle structures and the structure of the system of





DEVASTATING CHARGE Some creatures charge home with such fury that the very ground shakes beneath their feet.

Models with this special rule have +1 Attack during a turn in which they charge into combat.

ETHEREAL

There are creatures vehice physical bodies have long since rotted accay, if indeed they ever existed. Such beings are immune to normal veeqpons – only magic can harm them.

Ethereal creatures treat all terrain as open terrain for the purposes of movement. They may not finish their movement inside impassible terrain athough they can pass through obstructions of this side, they cannot linger. They are also never slowed by any special rule, spell or item that would otherwise reduce their movement or stop them from moving completely.

The close combat attacks of Ethereal creatures are magical. Conversely, Ethereal creatures can only be wounded by spells, magical attacks and magic weapons or effects. This is not to say that Ethereal creatures cannot be beaten in close combat by mundane troops, because combat results are not wholly dependent upon cusualizes.

Ethereal creatures block line of sight normally and cannot see through anything that would block the line of sight of normal units.

Characters that are not themselves Ethereal are not permitted to join units that are (even if they become temporarily Ethereal for some reason).

FAST CAVALRY

Fast cavalry (sometimes called light cavalry) are riders of exceptional process, trained in lightwing-fast mannexers and flank tatake. They are novel lightly around and aromard loave after cavalry, but make up for this with their flexibility. In battle, they act as seast and cabridler for the arony, and harry the flanks of courts formation.

VANGUARD

Fast Cavalry are inevitably at the forefront of any advance – Fast Cavalry automatically have the Vanguard deployment special rule (see page 79).

FREE REFORM

Unless it charges, a Fast Cavalry unit is allowed to reform as many times as it wishes during its move, even if it marches, provided that no model ends up moving a number of inches higher than double its Novement value.

CHARACTERS

If a Fast Cavalry unit is joined by a character without the Fast Cavalry rule, the unit loses the rule until the character leaves.

FEIGNED FLIGHT

Fac Gaulya are extremely good at exciping from the for and regrouping. A usi of Fac Gaulya that thoses to flex as a damge reaction and subsequently rallies at the beginning of their act turn may reform as normal, but is then also free to more during the reasoning moves part of the Movement phase. The unit is also free to shoot an normal (but always contants a lawing movel). Noth that if the flex moves of Fac Gaulya does not take them beyond the charge reach of their ements, the unit is caught and debroyd as normal.

FIRE ON THE MARCH

Fast Cavalry armed with missile weapons are expert at shooting from horseback (or wolfback!) and can therefore shoot during a turn in which they marched or reformed (providing their weapon doesn't have the Move or Fire special rule). However, the normal -1 To Hit penalty for moving and shooting still applies.

The Fast Carvalry rule is sometimes given to troop types other than carvalry – note that it does not change the model's troop type to carvalry.

EXTRA ATTACK

Through fury, extra limbs or being armed to the teeth, this warrior can strike more blows.

A model with this special rule (or who is attacking with a weapon that bestows this special rule) increases his Attacks value by 1.



FEAR

Some creatures are so large or disturbing that they provoke an irrational fear in the foe.

At the start of each Close Combat round, a unit that is in base contact with one or more enemy models that cause Fear must take a Leadership test, before any blows are struck.

If the test is passed, all is well – the unit has mastered its fear, at least for now. If the test is failed, the unit's fear goes uncontrolled and the warriors cover defensively from the horror before them – all models in the unit have their Weapon Skill reduced to 1 for the remainder of that round of close combat.

Models that cause Fear are themselves immune to Fear, and are not affected by any of this rule's effects (even if their unit fails its test, for example). This includes characters riding Fearcausing mounts, who count as causing Fear themselves (see page 82).

FIGHT IN EXTRA RANKS

These troops can fight in extra ranks, perhaps because they have been trained to do so, or because their sheer ferecity means they willingly trample their comrades in order to reach the foe.

If a unit has this special rule then supporting attacks can be made by an extra rank than normal on a turn in which the unit did not charge. Accordingly, a unit with this special rule can normally make supporting attacks with two ranks. Remember that supporting attacks cannot be made to the side or rear, but only to the front.

A horde with this rule will make supporting attacks with three ranks!

FLAMING ATTACKS

Fire is a fearsome thing on the battlefield, but some creatures are more vulnerable to it than others.

Whilst Flaming Attacks do not give bonuses against most troops (we assume the weapon blow to be far leadliser that the flames that wreathe it), they can be Fear-inducing in wild creatures, as well as prove fatal against some of the Warhammer world's more peculiar monsters.

Enemies with Flaming Attacks cause Fear in war beasts, cavalry and chariots (we talk about troop types starting on page 80). Flaming Attacks also have special properties against creatures that have the Flammable and Regeneration special rules, as explained later on.

Fire can be a valuable weapon for driving out the defenders of a fortification. Every model with Flaming Attacks rerolls failed To Wound rolls when shooting at or assaulting a building, to represent the added peril for the occupants of being inside the burning structure.

Unless otherwise stated, a model with this special rule has both Flaming shooting and close combat attacks (though any spells cast by the model are unaffected, as are any attacks made with magic weapons they might be wielding).



FLAMMABLE

Some creatures are naturally vulnerable to fire. Once flame has been set amongst such a beast's flesh, it voill run rampant, causine terrible harm.

If a model with the Flammable rule suffers one or more unsaved wounds from a Flaming Attack, each unsaved wound is doubled. So, for example, if an attack would normally cause 1 wound, the Flammable creature would tack 2 wounds. If the number of wounds are randomly determined by a dice roll, double the result of the dice, ralt, double the result of the dice, ralt, double the result of the dice, ralt, most excerts together.

I Bring Fire!

Flaming Analish don't come rino (fields serse (dash, dash tabes) they day they rankly pay off. Though Thomassile creating and the sense particularly common key renormal dy party (anosme hourise), against tabona any senseth adversatiog in sedo-anosame adversatog in sedo-anosameth keye scaligits aged tabon attacking a huilding – a knoch attacking a huilding – a knoch (arber ranks arreality are) combat and, in a huilding (cohere analys arrealits are knoch on camathier alone) this is doubly tran.





Savage Orc Champion

FRENZY

Certain coarriers can coork themselves up into a fighting frenzy, a whirkwind of destruction in which all concern for personal safety is overridden in favour of mindless violence.

To represent their fighting fury and lack of selfpreservation instincts, Frenzied troops have the Extra Attack and Immune to Psychology special rules (see opposite and page 69).

BERSERK RAGE

If, during the Charge sub-phase, a unit that includes one or more Frenzied models could declare a charge, then it must do so unless a Leadership test is passed. If the Leadership test is failed, the Frenzied unit must declare a charge against the nearest viable energy.

A unit that includes one or more Frenzied models cannot choose to restrain pursuit if it beats a foe in close combat. It will either pursue (if the enemy has fled) or overrun (if the enemy was wiped out in combat).

Note that if the enemy is wiped out in combat but the Frenzied unit did not charge that turn (or if the combat was the result of a pursuit or overrun charge in the same turn), then the Frenzied unit will reform as normal as it has no other choice of action.

In addition, Frenzied models cannot parry (see page 88).

LOSING FRENZY

Unlike other special rules, Frenzy can be lost as the game goes on. Models retain their Frenzy for the entre game unless beaten in combat, at which point the enemy have succeeded in knocking them into a less fanatical state and the Frenzy (together with all associated rules) is lost.



FLY

Some creatures of the Warhammer corld have exings and can fix, soaring quickly from one side of the battlefield to the other. Such creatures are often potent forces on the battlefield, able as they are to casily outmoscover classics, ground-bound troops.

Whether they fly or move on the ground, all flyers have the Swiftstride special rule (see page 76). In addition, because of their loose fighting style, flying units consisting of more than one model have the Skirmishers special rule (see page 77).

MOVING FLYERS

In Warhammer, flight is represented by a swoop or glide of up to 10¹⁷. The flyer starts off on the ground, takes off, flies to where it wishes to go, and then lands. Flyers, therefore, begin and end their movement on the ground. This is chiefly because it's impractical to suspend models over the battlefield, so we use the 'glide' for the sake of simplicity.

Units made up entirely of models that can fly can move or charge normally on the ground, using their Movement value, or instead choose to fly. A unit that flies can move over other units and terrain as it does so, treating the entire move as taking place over open ground. It may not finish the move on top of another unit or in impassable terrain. Depending on the flying model's height and/or position, it will sometimes be able to draw a line of sight over intervening units to a more distant target and make a flying charge over the intervening unit.

A unit that makes a flying charge does so using the glide move of 10" as its Movement characteristic.

FLYING MARCH

A unit that is flying can march as normal, doubling its flying move to 20", representing a particularly long swoop or glide.

FLEE AND PURSUE

Flyers always move on the ground when attempting to flee or pursue – there simply is no time for them to take off properly. Note that they still benefit from their Swiftstride rule as they flee and pursue.

FLYING CAVALRY

Some units, such as the noble Bretonnian Pegasus Knights, have the Flying Cavalry special rule – a particularly effective type of flying unit. In rules terms, flying cavalry are treated as Fast Cavalry with the Fly special rule. See page 68 for more details on Fast Cavalry.

HATRED

Emmity is rife in the Warhammer world, where many races have nurtured grudges and animovities against others for thousands of years, and overwhelming hatred is a potent force in battle.

A model arriking a hated for in close combat re-rolls all misses during the first round of combat – this represents the unit versing its pertup hared upon the fore. After this initial blood-mad hacking, the impetus is considered to be sport – the rest of the combat is fought normally. Sometimes a model will only Hate a specific for (rather than everynoe). Where this is the case, the type of for will be expressed in the completation of the sample Hared (Doursf).

HOVER

Some creatures do not fly, but rather hover on a cushion of air or magical energy.

Models with the Hover special rule follow all the rules for Flyers, but cannot march.

IMMUNE TO PSYCHOLOGY

There are those warriors who are especially brave, or are so jaded by the dangers of the world that they heed personal peril somewhat reluctantly...

If the majority of the models in a unit have the Immune to Psychology rule, the unit automatically passes all Panic, Fear and Terror tests it has to take. It should be noted that they have to take Break tests (and other Leadership tests) normally – being stoic does not necessarily make a warrior entirely heedless of mortal danger.

If the majority of the models in a unit have the Immune to Psychology rule, the unit cannot choose Fleel as a charge reaction. Pride, or a sluggish acceptance of the situation, prevents them from doing so.

IGNORES COVER

Some shooting attacks are incredibly precise, whether because they are magically guided, blanket the area with roiling flame or are merely aimed with impossible shill.

If a model's shooting attacks have the Ignores Cover special rule, they ignore To Hit penalties imposed by soft cover, hard cover and obstacles (other To Hit penalties apply as normal).

IMPACT HITS

The impact of a charge can itself sometimes cause severe casualties amongst the foe.

Some models, notably chariots, have so much impetus that they cause considerable damage when they crash into the enemy. To represent this, these models cause Impact Hits.

The number of Impact Hits caused varies from creature to creature, or troop type to troop type, but is shown in brackets after the special rule. Such as Impact Hits (D6+1) or Impact Hits (D3).

For example, a High Elf Tiranoc Chariot has the Troop Type: Chariot, and therefore causes D6 Impact Hits, as seen in the Troop Types chapter on page 86.

If a creature is granted two sets of Impact Hits, normally because its troop type and special rules both bestow Impact Hits, use the highest set, rather than a total.

RESOLVING IMPACT HITS

Impact Hits are only made on the turn the model charges into close combat. If the model with Impact Hits is isself charged, or is fighting in a second or subsequent round of combat, then this rule gives no benefit. Note that if the model does not complete the charge for any reason (for example, because it is destroyed) then no Impact Hits will take place.

Impact Hits are resolved at the very beginning of the close combat, before challenges are issued and attacks of any other kind are made. They hit a unit in base contact (if in base contact with more than one enemy unit, split the hits as evenly as possibly, randomising any 'spare' hits) if the model with Impact Hits is not in base contact with the enemy, this rule has no effect.

Impact Hits hit automatically, and roll to wound using the Strength of the model making the Impact Hits. The hits are distributed exactly as if they were shooting attacks (see page 42 for more information on shooting attacks, and page 96 for characters and shooting attacks).

Finally, as Impact Hits are close combat attacks (albeit of an unusual type) any unsaved wounds they inflict count towards combat resolution, just as any more conventional close combat attacks would.

Brace for Impact

Impact Hits cale scene pretty four-some token you're on the receiving end, host take loarer! If you can executher this initial, exell, impact, hon the combatshould trart to ge your evay. Most weddir outh the Impact Hist special rule rely on hereaking the energy on the durge. It subsequent rounds, they're likely to strengte ander other waits more in to support – you're go that long to take there out of action.



Dark Elf Corsai



Grave Guard Champion

Chop!

Make these is used by walk Make these is used by many and hear employed against either, hearing arowards fronger – the hearing arowards the better, as these memory and the better, as these around at the better, as these around a start – Galaries arowards around a start – Galaries arowards against ensemine starts Kalling Blocu, wir soards bringing adong against ensemine starts Kalling Blocu, wir soards bringing adong a that fudders to knoch trongs fisch have tability your shock trongs fisch classbor.

KILLING BLOW

Tales are told of coarriers coho can slay their opponents with but a single strike of a blade that socks an aroson's merest gap. Whether such an attack is wrought by skill or ensorcliment matters wit – the target is just as dead.

If a model with the Killing Blow special rule rolls a 6 to wound in close combat, he automatically skys his opponent – regardless of the number of wounds on the victim's profile. Armour saves and regeneration waves cannob be taken against a Killing Blow. A ward save can be attempted – if passed, the ward save prevents all damage from the Killing Blow.



Killing Blow is only effective against infantry, cavalry and war beasts – all other creatures are considered either too large to be felled by a single blow (monsters, monstrous infantry /cavalry/beasts, chariots and so on) or too numerous for a well-placed strike to slay them all (Swarms).

Note that if a Killing Blow attack wounds automatically, then the Killing Blow special rule does not come into play.

Unless otherwise specified, Killing Blow applies only to close combat attacks.

HEROIC KILLING BLOW

Heroic Killing Blow is a skill possessed by truly mighty warriers. It functions exactly like a normal Killing Blow, except it works on any creature, regardless of size and troop type, except for swarms. A model with Heroic Killing Blow can take the head off a Dragon with a single swing — its scally hide matters snaught



LARGE TARGET

Some mighty creatures tower over the battlefield, able to see and be seen over the heads of more diminutive warriors.

Large Targets are models that are especially tall, such as Dragons, Giants and Grenter Daemons, Such fores cannot easily take cover behind obstacles that would shelter lesser troops. Large Targets cannot claim cover modifiers for obstacles (see page 122 for more details).

However, if your General or Battle Standard Bearer is a Large Torget for is mounted on one), then the range of their respective Inspiring Presence and Hold Your Ground! addities is increased from 12° to 18° to represent the case with which your trecops can see them. See page 107 for more details on ' Generals, Battle Standard Bearers and their special abilities.

LOREMASTER (*)

There are some wizards whose knowledge of their chosen discipline is all-encompassing.

A Wizard with the Loremaster special rule knows all the spells from his chosen lore – he does not need to roll randomly. The lore in question is normally given in brackets as part of the Loremaster special rule. For example, a model with Loremaster (Fire) would know all the spells from the Lore of Fire.

MAGIC RESISTANCE (1-3)

Through natural quirk or potent artefact, some warriors have an innate resistance to magical attack.

A model with Magic Resistance has a bonus to its ward saves when saving against damage caused by spells. This bonus is based on the number shown in brackets after the Magic Resistance special rule. Magic Resistance (2) would give a +2 bonus (turning a 5+ ward save into a 3+ ward save, for example). Magic resistance can even give a ward save to models. that do not have one at all. A model with Magic Resistance (3) and no ward save normally would therefore have a 4+ ward save against damage from spells. If a character with Magic Resistance joins a unit, all models in the unit benefit from the Magic Resistance. If a model has two sets of Magic Resistance, the two do not combine, it uses the highest.

MONSTER AND HANDLERS

Some armies drive colossal beasts to battle, beastmasters hurrying at the monster's heels as they goad it into the for.

The handless aren't really a combat unit per w, so we ignore them for most gaming parayons, treating the moster stelf as the extent of the unit. When the moster stelfra an unswared wound, rula D.6. On a roll of 1-4 the monster suffres the wound as removed, into most of 0.5 < An indire model is removed, into moster must take a Monster Rackton test just like a ridden monster that bases its rider.

In close combs, the handlers can direct their monter. The handlers are otherwise assumed to monter. The handlers are otherwise assumed to monter the handlers are otherwise assumed to early out any actions like shooting, or casting apple, etc. In Addione the handlers cannot be changed, matched or otherwise affected separatelyfrom their monter – if they are found to be blocking movement or line of sight, the controlling paper simply alser their position, just as you would for may other hathfield number or counter the phonetone is resoured, so are its handlers.

MOVE OR FIRE

Some weapons sacrifice a speedy reload for hitting power, making them impossible to fire on the move.

A weapon with the Move or Fire special rule cannot be fired in the Shooting phase if the model moved earlier in the turn. This even applies if the model in question was forced to move as the result of a spell or other such compulsory action.

MULTIPLE SHOTS

Some cocapons are designed to fire a fusillade of shots, sacrificing accuracy for sheer volume.

A weapon with this special rule enables its wicklew to first several shock at a time, rather than a singleshot. The number of shots the weapon can fire will normally be given as part of its description. Such weapons can either the cone without penalty, or as many times as indicated in their rules with a 1-10 FH penalty (this is in addition to any other modifiers for range, cover and so on). All models Shots – the player cannot choose to fire single shots with open and Multiple Shots with others.

MULTIPLE WOUNDS

The most powerful attacks strike home with crushing force, and cause massive damage to their victim.

Each unaved wound inflicted by an attack with the Multiple Wounds special rule is untilpliced into more than one wound. The eacet number of wounds caused will vary from model to model and weapon to weapon, but will normally be shown in brackets as part of the special rule. For example, Multiple Wounds (2) would mean that each unaved wound would multiply to 2 wounds, whilts Multiple Wounds (2) to 0) would mean that each unaved wound would multiply to De wounds.

Where the number of Multiple Wounds is generated by a dice roll, roll a dice separately for each unsaved wound and use the total of all the dice rolled for the final number of wounds inflicted.

POISONED ATTACKS

There are many warriers who use deadly toxins to overcome their foes, turning an otherwise minor injury into a mortal wound.

A model with the Poisoned Attacks special rule wounds his target automatically if his natural dice roll to hit is a 6. Armour saves are modified by the Strength of the attack as normal. Note that if a Poisoned shooting attack needs to roll a 7 or more to hit, or hits automatically, then the Poisoned attacks rule does not come into play.

Unless otherwise stated, a model with this special rule has both Poisoned shooting and close combat attacks. Any spells cast by the model are unaffected, as are any attacks made with magic weapons they might be wielding, whether they be shooting or close combat attacks.

QUICK TO FIRE

Not all excapons are cumbersome – some can be brought to bear in less than a heartbeat, and let fly shortly after.

Quick to Fire weapons do not suffer the usual -1 To Hit penalty for moving and shooting – we assume that the wielders can aim and fire them withly enough to remain accurate. Furthermore, Quick to Fire weapons can always be used to Stand and Shoot against a charging enemy, even if that nemy would normally be too close for such a charge reaction to be declared.

Quantity or Quality?

There's an age-old debate about othem it's bost to fire Multiple Shots, and when it's must be shouldy. I alreavy fire Multiple Shots when given the choice – my courriors have already paid a point promised for the ability, and more shots means the possibility of owner kills.



Shink Warrion

RANDOM ATTACKS

Not all creatures fight with discipline, but flail about in an uncontrolled manner, with unpredictable consequences.

Models with the Random Attacks special rule do not have a normal number for their Attacks characteristic, but rather a foce roll, such as DA, DG or DE+1. Each time a model with this special rule comes to strike blows, roll the indicated diredinging any modifies shown, to determine the number of attacks that the model will make, then one model with Random Attacks, roll separately for each model, unless specified netwrise.



RANDOM MOVEMENT Some creatures do not advance in an even manner, rushing forward at one moment, only to falter clausely in the next.

Models with the Random Movement special rule do not have a Movement characteristic, but rather a dice roll, such as D6, 2D6 or 3D6. This is the distance they move, charge, pursue, overrun and fice – they cannot march.

Models with Random Movement cannot declare charges, and are always moved in the Compulsory Moves sub-phase. When the model direction in which you wish it to trace. Then, roll the dise shown in the model's profile. Finally, move the model directly forwards a number of inches equal to the tutal rolled by the dise. No other rivots can be made.

There's a chance that the model's peculiar movement will cause it to come into contact with an enemy, so messure the distance in a straight fine before the model is movel. If the move is found to take the unit into contact with an enemy, then it counts as charging, and this is resolved using the normal rules for charges rand using the distance rule did as in charge range. Charge reactions cannot be decired against enemies with the Random Movement special rule – the enemy find it impossible to recognise the danger until it is far too late!

If the random move brings the unit to within 1° of a friendly unit or impassable terrain, it stops immediately and cannot move further during that Movement phase.

If two or more models in a unit have the Random Movement special rule, pivot the unit about its centre, then roll the dice only once to determine how far the unit moves. If models in the unit have a different Random Movement value, use the slowest for the entire unit.

REGENERATION

Trolls and other particularly hardy creatures can regenerate damage at an incredible rate.

A model with the Regeneration special rule is permitted a special regenerate saving throw after it has failed any armour save it may have, instead of taking a ward save (if it has one). If a model has both a ward save and Regeneration, you must choose which save is used.

To take a regeneration save, roll a D6. On a 1-3, the wound affects the model normally, even its incredible constitution has not prevented this injury. On a 4-6, the damaged flesh regrows, leaving not even so much as a scar to indicate the injury was ever there – the wound is discounted, eachy as if that been saved by other means.

While the type of regeneration described above is the most commo form, some cratters do have a lesser or greater chance to regenerate. Where this is the case, the score required to regenerate will be shown in brackets after the special rule, e_{ab} . Regeneration (5+) would indicate that the model had the Regeneration rule, but that it only worked on a 5+, while Regneration (2+) would man that the creature would pass its regeneration save on a 2 or more!

Wounds caused by Flaming Attacks (as described earlier in this section) cannot be regenerated, and if a unit is wounded by a Flaming Attack it loses the Regeneration rule for the remainder of the phase (it can be used later in the turn, though – it just takes a short time for the Regeneration to overcome the flames).



Night Goblin Squig Hopper

REQUIRES TWO HANDS

Many weapons are cumbersome to wield, requiring a firm two-handed grip in order to use effectively.

If a weapon requires two hands to use, it is not possible for a model to use a shield or an additional hand weapon alongside it in close combat (although a shield can still be used against wounds caused by shooting or magics). We assume that the warrior in question slings the spare wargear on his back, or simply drops it, until the fight is done.



SCALY SKIN

Many creatures have gnarled, tough or scaly skin that offers the same protection as vorought armour.

The hide of some creatures, the reptilian Lizardmen in particular, forms a kind of natural armour that grants the model an armour save. The degree of the scaly skin save varies from model to model, and will be stated in the relevant Warhammer Armies book.

Scaly Skin can be combined with normal armour for even greater protection. To determine a model's combined armour save, take the value of its scaly skin save and modify it one point better for light armour, one point better for a shield, two points better for heavy armour, and so on.

For example, a model with a scaly skin save of 5+ could have a total armour save of 4+ if he also carried a shield, and 3+ if he both carried a shield and wore light armour.



SEA CREATURE

In the deep occars of the Warhammer world lark all manner of fool and wondrous denizens, from the Killer Kraken vis innous Eas Serpenst and Bakchscaled Leviathaus. Such creatures can more through the water as easily as a mon work to band, but are somewohat poolersus wohen out of their element.

Soa Creatures can more within any area of watter on the burtlefdel, including rivers and even deep water that players may have deemed impassible to other models, as if were open ground (see page 116 for more on terrain type). However, when out of the watter they cannot march. Sea Creatures are still subject to any special effects that specific terrain my have (e.g. we don't exempt Sea Creatures from the dangers of marches). Being a detiment of the dops used does not necessarily equate to protection from a choking oungamier.

SLOW TO FIRE

Some missile weapons are so cumbersome that they cannot aim swiftly enough to shoot a charging for.

Weapons with the Slow to Fire special rule cannot be used to Stand and Shoot.

SNIPER

Most shooting attacks are not aimed at specific foes, but fired indiscriminately into a knot of troops. Those shots aimed more carefully are greatly feared, for no chieftain or general is safe from their vengeance.

A model with the Sniper special rule can make a special Sniper shot instead of shooting normally. A Sniper's shot suffers an additional -1 To Hit penalty, in addition to any other modifiers, but can be aimed with great precision.

A model making a Sniper bot can shoot at a different target from the one choose by his unit. A hit from a Sniper shot is not distributed in the same manner as other shooting attacks. The Sniper can shoot at any model he can see, including characters or champions within a unit and so on - the controlling player simply declares which model will be the Sniper's target - 'Look out Sit' cannot be takm.

A Sniper shot can even target a character riding on the back of a ridden monster or chariot if he wishes, or indeed a specific model where the target is usually rolled for randomly (such as a character who has joined a war machine).



Aark Elf Harpy

The bigger they are

The Score provid rule is a great equator - a good rand of storphysic gain gener year neurant - good free starts consult robust, hopefully 's consult to vorcenae the comp' start the Score come or mind that the Score come or mind that the Score come or mind that the beside of comes to a forget and the store of the moment, and its mean all commission taken starts at the good moment - done before the commontant - done before the comsent - a-consult's.



STOMP

Some creatures are so massive that their sheer bulk is a threat all of its otom.

A model with this special rule can make a 80mm is addition to its other close combat matchs. A 8tomp has the Always Strikes Last special rule, and inflicts 1 automatic bin, at the model's 8serength, on one enemy inflattry, was bests or swarm unit in base contact with the model. This represents the centum cruabing the for benerath its ponderous feet, or knocking their broken bodies aside with one swerep of its mighty tail (probably while it's maring in a most imminding fabion).

Thunderstomp

Particularly massive monsters have an altogether more devastating stomp.

A Thunderstomp makes D6 hits on the target unit, rather than the single hit for a normal Stomp. It is otherwise treated exactly like a normal Stomp.

STRIDER

Some well-trained or naturally skilled warriors can traverse unhindered through the densest terrain.

Warriors with the Strider special rule are rare – normally, a model will have a subset of Strider, such as Forest Strider, River Strider or Manh Strider and the rule only applies in terrain of the specified type. Warriors with the Strider rule do not have to take Dangeroos Errain tests.

In older army books, this rule is presented as something along the lines of 'ignores movement penalities for 'chernia type>'. Treat such rules as being the relevant version of Strider. For example, 'ignores movement penalities for forests' equates to the Forest Strider rule.

STUBBORN

Whether because they hold themselves to be elite, or because they are too slow-witted to flee, some troops fight on almost regardless of casualties.

Stubbern units are always steadfast, whether or not they have more ranks than their enemy (see page 34 for details). If a character joins a Stubbern unit, he gains the Stubborn special rule as long as heis part of that unit. If a Stubborn character joins a unit, that unit is Stubborn while he remains smoogst is ranks.

STUPIDITY

Some creatures are so dull of mind that events on the battlefield can sometimes leave them rather distracted and confused.

Models that are subject to Stupidity are also Immune to Psychology – they just don't get frightened that easily, and by the time they do, it's normally too late.

Provided that they are not engaged in close combat, as unit that contains once evone models with the Stapidity special rule must try to overcrome its Stapidity at the start of its turn by taking a Lendenship test. If the test is passed, all is used – the creations have the stapidity of the test in fields, the warriors succumb to their stapidity and anthen forwards, perhaps decoding a linds, enting grass or cacking in silly voices, as explained above.

ME TEAD URTS

A unit that fails its Strapidity rota immediately assumbles Def directly forwards – this more is otherwise treated in eacily the same manner as a failed charge. The Stapid unit cannot take any further action that turn, so cannot declare charges or make a shooting attack. Warards there failed a Stapidity tot cannot ratempt to east or channel power dice or disped dice units assume that a stapid there is a star of the same wrang and charming, but for some reason the magic just charolt scene to work).

SWIFTSTRIDE

Just as not all coarriers are not equal in their might and resolve, so too are some fleeter of fost (or hoof).

When charging, units entirely made of models with the Swiftstride special rule roll 3D6, discard the lowest result, and add the result to their Move value.

For example, a unit of Harpies charge and roll 3D6, with results 2, 4 and 5. Thus they charge 4 (their Morement) + 4 + 5 = 13⁸.

When fleeing and pursuing, units entirely made of models with the Swiftstride special rule roll 3D6 and discard the lowest result.

For example, Dark Riders flee and roll 3D6, with results 1, 3 and 5. They can therefore flee: $3 + 5 = 8^{\circ}$.

SKIRMISHERS

Skirmishers are light infantry troops sent ahead of the main battlelone in a dispersed formation. Such troops are normally no match for a ranked-up unit, but can be used to harry and harass the foe.

SKIRMISH FORMATION

Skirnishers are deployed in a 'loose' formation, where the models are not placed in base contact, but are positioned roughly 1/2' apart. The models in the unit must still face the same direction and the unit will still have a front, two flanks and a rear – essentially the only difference is that the models are slightly spaced out.

This dispersed formation allows Skirmishers to move and shoot with greater freedom than other troop types.



SKIRMISHERS AND CHARGING

If skirninghens declare a charge (or a charge reaction that does not involve freing) the immodiately digitent their losse formation into a 'normal' formation leftor the charge distance is readed. This happens for first at the mountent the unit declares the charge or is called upon to make a charge reaction. The unit limmediate from runk = if the foot rank has an even number of models, and thereas the intervention of the content of Sterimberg' controlling player can algoore which of the two models the unit will form up around.

The number of ranks, files and the formation's facing do not alter as the Skirmishers tighten up – all that happens is that models that were previously spaced out are now in base contact with one another. This has the effect of rendering the Skirmishers' loose formation into a regular shape so that other units can fight them in the normal way.

If the Skirmishers are not in base contact with an enemy in the Remaining Moves sub-phase, the controlling player must move them apart so that they readopt their loose formation.

FREE REFORM

A unit of Skirmishers moves, wheels, marches and charges just like other troops. However, due to the incredible flexibility of its formation, unless it charges, a skirmishing unit is allowed to reform as many times as it wishes during its move, provided that no model ends up moving a number of inches higher than double its Move value.

FIRE ON THE MARCH

As with Fast Cavalry, Skirmishers are normally trained to aim and shoot more swiftly than other warriors. They can even shoot if they marched or reformed earlier in the trun (providing their weapon doesn't have the Move or Fire special rule). However, the normal -1 To Hit penalty for moving and shooting still applies.

LIGHT TROOPS

Skrimisher, 'utatral inclination to a sparse formation makes them much less likely to suffer his from suicide for-al allocations aimed at a unit of Skirmishers simply lack the necessary mass to push formard on the necessary and are casaly overheading by troops used to flipting in grinding meles. Skirmishers always count as hiving zero ranka and therefore cannot claim a rank bomus, be stadifist, or disorder an enemy with a flank or rear attack- they make sporting attacks as normal, however.

CHARACTERS

A character model that joins a unit of Skirmishers gains the Skirmisher special rule as long as he stays with the unit. A character on a mount cannot join a unit of Skirmishers.



Steady as a Rock

Understability arougs are great for holding a cubarable strain of year bastletime – they've capacially good for joining a ranginging course yunit in floate and gring you time to us up a construct-charge, or perings a good add/sahisoned awhork. For this to stark based, you'r gon Understabile and is file grough to abordy foreig clausillites – i i is desnysed before the trap is grown, the accessive could be

TERROR

There are creatures so large and horrifying, or supernatural horrors so anholy and terrible, that their mere appearance on the battlefield can cause the bravest and most stoadfast of veterans to turn tail and fice.

Models that cause. Terrer also cause Fars, as discussed arabier in the chapter. In addition, a model that causes. Terrer is so, well, territrigar, that other radies also apply. It should be noted at this point that Fears-causing models, being quite searching. Fear, rather than Terror – this is an exception to the rather Terror – this is an exception to the rather than Terror – the searching that the states. The should be also that the thermal-terror should be also models are thermal-bus immune to both Far and Terror. This includes characters rising Terror causing mounts, which count as causing Terror themselves (or uppe 105).

RUN FOR YOUR LIVES!

When a unit is charged by a Terror-causing creature, there is a chance that the warriors will abandon their position, fleeing before the creature rather than fighting it. If a Terrorcausing creature declares a charge, the target unit must immediately take a panic test to quell their Terror. If the test is passed, all is well and the unit can declare charge reactions normally. If the test is failed, the unit must make a Flee! charge reaction. Units composed entirely of Fear- or Terror-causing models are immune to Terror and so do not take this test. Note that, if the target unit is not allowed to take any charge reaction (if, for example, the Terror-causing unit charged as a result of a pursuit or a random move), then the target does not take this test.

UNBREAKABLE

Some creatures are atterly fearless, and will never give up a battle, no matter hore hopplets the situation. This is occasionally due to braver, hot more commonly because the troops in question are mindless, insame or magically controlled.

A unit composed entirely of Unbreakable models is Immune to Psychology and passes Break tests automatically, no matter the odds!

Characters that are not themselves Unbreakable are not permitted to join units that are (even if a character was to become temporarily Unbreakable for some reason, because of a spell or suchlike).

UNSTABLE

Many warriers in the Warhammer world are not alive in the true sense, but are magical constructs bound to the will of a wizard.

The magic that empowers Unstable creatures is prone to ebbing and flowing with the tide of battle. The more heavily beset the Unstable creatures are, the more likely that the magic that binds them will fade away.

Unstable units that lose a combat suffer one extra Wound for every point by which they lose the combat, with no saves of any kind permitted against these wounds.

If an Unstable unit also contains Unstable characters, or is an Unstable character riding an Unstable monster, the controlling player first allocates wounds to the unit/monster, then divides any remaining wounds (if any) as equally as possible amonget the characters.

Characters that are not themselves Unstable are not permitted to join units that are (even if they become temporarily unstable for some reason).



VOLLEY FIRE

Botes and other weapons can losse their projectiles in a high-arcing volley. Even warriors who cannot see the foc can contribute to the attack by following suit to their friends.

A unit with this special rule can choose to Volley Fire instead of making a normal shooting attack.

If it does so, half the models in the third and any subsequent ranks, rounding up, are allowed to shoot (in addition to the usual firing models in the front and second ranks). Models in rear ranks can use the line of sight and front are of the first rank model directly to their front for the purposes of Volley Fire.

A unit cannot Volley Fire if it moved earlier in the turn, or as a Stand and Shoot reaction.



Decarf Daemondaye

DEPLOYMENT SPECIAL RULES

Deployment special rules affect how a unit is set up at the start of the game, and cover advance scouts, units that arrive through magical means, and so on. It should be noted that deployment special rules may not be permitted in some scenarios. Where this is the case the unit can still be used, but it must instead deploy in the same manner as the rest of the army:

Some scenarios may add deployment special rules if it fits with the narrative of the battle – if this is the case, the scenario will explain.

AMBUSHERS

There are those troops who specialise in outflanking the foe, appearing from an unexpected quarter to wreak maximum damage.

A unit with the Ambushers rule does not deploy the stars of the bulk. Issued, from Tan 2 onwards, the controlling player rules a dica tath star of the turn for each unit of hin Ambushers full have yet to arrive. On a 1 or 2, the Ambushers have been delayed – but yet? It be able to roll for them again next run. On a 3 or more, the turn of Ambushers arrive, and will more, the stars of Ambushers arrive, and will sub-plaxe. If the Ambushers to not turn is pfothere entire game, they are assumed to have got lost, and are treated as having fled the battle for the purposes of determining the victor.

Arriving Ambushers enter the battlefield from any point on any battlefield edge, and move on using the rules for reinforcements (see page 27).

SCOUTS

Scouts are advance troops who sneak onto the battlefield in order to seize vital locations before the two armies clash.

Scouts are set up after all other non-Scout units from both armies have been deployed. They can be set up either in their controlling player's deployment zone, or anywhere on the battlefield more than 12ⁿ away from the enemy. If deployed in this second way, Scouts cannot declare a charge in the first turn if their side goes first.

If both players' armies contain Scouts, players should roll off. The players then alternate deploying their scouting units one at a time, starting with the player who won the roll-off.

VANGUARD

An army's vanguard troops advance to engage the for before their commades. Sometimes this is a point of howare, sometimes because they are eager to fight the for and occasionally because they are expendable, and their general eather to tire the enemy out.

After both sides have deployed all their other forces (including Scouts), but before either side has taken a turn, units with the Vanguard special rule can immediately make a 12° move regardless of their Movement value (they can't march, and are affected by terrain as normal). This cannot be used to move the Vanguard troops to within 12° of the enemy:

If both players' armies contain Vanguard troops, players should roll off. The players then alternate moving their Vanguard units one at a time, starting with the player who won the roll-off.

Units that have made a Vanguard move cannot declare a charge in the first turn if their army goes first.



Many player's use their Sonat and Vanguard troops as "Forlers Hyper's expendable with, nabled vanish taking and a versial enemy rour machines or character hefter being datas themselves. While, in theory, may suit can form a Forlers Hype, the special diployment rules for Sonat and Vanguard weake them ideally mitted. It's a burbless task, have one that can resing the course of the heatle.





FULL BUILDS

TROOP TYPES

So far, the rules we've discussed cover the most important and most prevalent of troop types indirers. We've started there because indirers are the 'standed' troop type in Merhammee. Of course, a Warhammee' buttlefield is home to all manner of we'de and swonderfal coreatures, from valentifie halfs its to sworting Gimms, milling rules attached to them, or use elements of the main rules in a different way to indirary, so let's that a moment to hold at them now.

In more cases if II be finitely obvious which troop type is ensued if the finite obvious which troop type is essentially an extension of the characteristic prefield. So will find the information in the relevant Worksmore Armien book. If the obvious the transmission of the transmission of the obvious transmission of the obvious the transmission of the locker volumes) then care with some of the idder volumes) then care with some of the idder volumes) then care with some of the idder volumes) that care with the transmission of the following types. Store precision we want that the intervention of the of the property want in this prevent them and only them, character vands in the prevent

CHARACTERS

In addition to their troop type, some models might also be noted as being characters. We're not going to worry about characters here, however - characters are such a powerful and important part of Warhammer that they have a chapter all to themselves later in the book (rase 96 onwards).

MODELS AND BASE SIZES

A model should always be mounted on the base it is supplied with. That said, some models aren't supplied with hase. In these cases you should feel free to mount the model on a base of appropriate size, or simply pretend that the model is on a suitably sized base.

INFANTRY

Infantry includes all units of foot troops, be they Men, Elves, Goblin, Orcs, Zombies or any of the other anthropomorphic races that inhabit the Warhammer world. Infantry will normally be the core of your Warhammer army, the troops upon which you rely to get the job done.

The basic rules of Warhammer are designed around infantry, so no further rules apply. Example infantry profile:

 M WS BS
 S
 T
 W
 I
 A
 Ld

 Empire
 4
 3
 3
 3
 1
 3
 1
 7

 Halberdier
 4
 3
 3
 3
 1
 3
 1
 7

MONSTROUS INFANTRY

The mostrous inflatty category covers things like Trolls, Ogres and Minotaurs - creatures that are man-shaped and fight on foot, but are two or three times the size of normal inflattyme. We could perhaps have honestly called this category 'Big Inflattry', but it does lack a certain gravitas. For the most part, monstrous inflatty work eactly the same as normally inflatty (i.e. follow the standard rules) but have a couple of extra facets to represent just how massive they are.

Example monstrous infantry profile:

	M	WS	BS	S	T	W	1	A	Ld
Minotaur	6	4	3	5	4	3	3	3	7

STOMP!

Monstrous Infantry have the Stomp special rule (see page 76).

MONSTROUS RANKS

As monstrous infinitry are to much larger than normal troops, they require fever variance to fill out a rank. Where most troop presenced free models for the rank to count towards make booms, statistist and so on, a unit composed party of monstrous infinitry models only three models. Essentially, whenever the rules any a rank of for or more models? the rait as reading a rank of three or more models? Following the same legic, a unit or monstroas infinitry only needs a frontage of its models to count as a holder, entref math neuronal tran.

MONSTROUS SUPPORT

A monstrous infantry model can make as many supporting attacks as are on its profile, up to a maximum of three, rather than the usual one supporting attack.



Hammer and Anoil

After infantry, cavalry are probably the next common troop type in Warhammer.

Whilst infantry are masters of the multi-turn class combat "grind", cavalry excel at delivering a hammer blow with a good chance of breaking the for in a single round of combat.

Hencover, because enemy infantry are almost always going to have more ranks (adu berefore he tocadfust) suben fighting my cavaley. I like to threes a ranked-og infantry unit of my soon into the fight, hospfally alloceing my cavaley to tear the eveny infantry to tear the eveny infantry



CAVALRY

The term cavalry refers to roughly mas-sized infer mounted on war boats - committyly warheness, or similar crattures. Good caurples of cavalry are things such as Bectomian Questing Knights, Ore: Boar Boar or Dark EEE Cold One Knights. Corally specifies in performing devasting charges, using the momentum of mount and rider to smash the enemy formation apart while skewering the unducy fore sith laces, spear or word.

SPLIT PROFILE

Although a cavalry model has two sets of characteristics, one for the rider and one for the mount, it is treated in all respects as a single model – the rider cannot dismount. When moving, the civalry model always uses the Movement characteristic of the mount, and never that of the rider.

Example cavalry profile:

				S	T	W	I	A	Ld
Chaos Knight	4	5	3	4	4	1	5	2	8
Chaos Steed	8	3	0	4	3	1	3	1	5

The rider and mount use their own Weapon Skill, Strength, Initiative and Attacks characteristics when they attack. Each can attack any opponent that the cavalry model is in base contact with.



The mount's Wounds and Toughness are never used. We assume that the enemy always strikes at the rider, so his Wounds and Toughness are used instead – if the rider is slain, we treat the mount as having fled the battle or been slain alongside its master.

Similarly, it is the rider's Weapon Skill that is used for the purposes of the enemy rolling to hit – the mount's Weapon Skill is used only when the mount strikes blows. We assume the rider to be in complete control of his mount, so the mount's Leadership is never used, unless a special rule states otherwise.

If the rider has a missile weapon, he always uses his own Ballistic Skill, rather than that of his mount (as most mounts have a Ballistic Skill of 0 anyway, this should be fairly obvious).

CHARGING, FLEEING AND PURSUING

Cavalry have the Swiftstride rule (see page 76).

CAVALRY AND SUPPORTING ATTACKS

When a cavalry model makes supporting attacks, only the rider can strike – we assume that the mount lacks both the discipline and the reach to fight through those ahead of it.

CAVALRY AND SPECIAL RULES

Unless otherwise noted, special rules that apply to the mount do not normally also apply to the rider, and vice versa. There are, however, a few exceptions:

- If the rider or the mount causes Fear or Terror, then the entire combined model is assumed to cause Fear/Terror.
- If either the rider or the mount is subject to Stupidity, then the whole model is affected by the result of the test.
- If either the rider or the mount are Immune to Psychology or immune to Fear, Terror or Panic, then so is the whole model.
- If either the rider or the mount have Frenzy, then the whole model is subject to the Berserk Rage, but only the element with the Frenzy rule gains an Extra Attack.

CAVALRY ARMOUR SAVES

If a cardiny model is called upon to take an amount save, it is in tidre's among save that is used. However, the rider does receive a model and protection from his independent. A combined protection from his middy model, with heavy are in there than correctly model with heavy arrows rand middle, who would anomally have a 4+ arrows area for being carding. Furthermore, if the mount has barding carding. Furthermore, if the mount has barding carding the model discribed and given the model side side and given the model discribed above a maximize 2+ arrow save.

Barding and Movement

Troops riding mounts with barding are better protected, as explained above, but the mount is slowed by the extra weight of the barding. Accordingly, a cavalry model with barding has its Move characteristic reduced by 1°. So, for example, a knight riding a horse can normally move 8°, but if the horse is wearing barding, he will only move 7°.

CAVALRY AND TERRAIN

Cavalry have to take Dangerous Terrain tests if they move swiftly over anything other than open ground or hills - see page 116 for more details.

Cavalry and Buildings

As we'll discover later, buildings can often be occupied by units as the game goes on. However, as you might expect, cavalty cannot garrison buildings – most riding beasts are too large to fit through ordinary doors, and the riders word tabandon their mounts.

Nevertheless, we do allow exatily models to samult buildings occurred in the Buttlefeld Terrain chapter on page 126). We assume that the richers telber thermounts a short way from the fight hefene charging home on foot – accordingly, the mounts cannof fight, only the richers (and clearly the riders will not receive any mounts area bonns from their mount during the fight). Obviously, should the assault successfully drive the defineder out of the building, the evalualy models cannot garrison the structure in their place.

MONSTROUS CAVALRY

Just as hone-sized beasts can be present moservice as mounts, so can their monstrous consists. Such montrous cavalry are incredibly rare, as most stuch creatures are so strong-willed that great patience (or violence) is needed to break them to the point at which they can asidy be used as a mount. This combination of mass and stubborn muscle makes regiments of monstrous eavalry a much-fasted force upon the butchefolds of the Warhammer World.

Example monstrous cavalry profile:

	M	WS	BS	S	T	W	I	A	Ld
Bloodletter	5	5	0	6	4	2	4	2	7
Juggernaut	7	5	0	5	4	1	2	2	7

All the cavalry rules apply to monstrous cavalry, with one exception – monstrous cavalry always use the highest Wounds characteristic the model has, rather than automatically using the rider's – indeed, this will normally mean that the model uses the mount's Wounds characteristic.

STOMP

Monstrous cavalry have the Stomp special rule (see page 76).

MONSTROUS RANKS

A rank of monstrous cavulry needs only three models to count for rank bonus, steadfast and so on, and only need a six model frontage to count as a horde, as described under monstrous infantry (see page 81).

In the name of Sigmar's beard, what is it?

The numes for the curious troop types have been purposefully chosen to washe them as selfexplanatory as passible and, hopefully, a model's troop type should be fairly obvious in must cases (let's be homest, it's hard to mic-classify a Dragon).

In a free cases, a model's troop type might not be so clear as all that. As previously mentioned, it's for this reason that there's a bestiary of perty much all the creatures and critters currently in Warhammer included in the Reference section at the back of this book.

As a bit of an extra guide, you'll also notice that plenty of creatures have been samedrapped into the troop type descriptions. If at all in doubt, these toos sits of pointers should give you all the information you you you all the information you need to classify your troops.

SWARMS

Swarms are seefing masses of small creatures, such as tast, such or interst, summode to the hatlefield by magical means and set loose upon the enemy. Individually, the critters in a swarm are little threat, but their sheer weight of numbers more than compensates for their size. Swarms are much of a number of bases. Each base includes many creatures, but counts as a single model with a profieli kiet the one below:

Example profi	le of	a 10	pare	151	lase:				
	M	WS	BS	S	Т	W	I	A	Ld
Rat Swarm	6	3	0	2	2	5	4	5	10

SKIRMISHERS

Swarms fight in a loose and shifting formation, achieving through animal instinct what other troops achieve through rigorous training. Swarms have the Skirmishers special rule.

UNBREAKABLE

Swarms are utterly unthinking, and completely devoid of self-awareness – they have the Unbreakable special rule.

SQUISH

Whils swarms are particularly nasty focs if the fight goes their way, it's easy for the enemy to infifte plenty of damage on the swarm once they've built up momentum. Most creatures in a swarm don't tend to die to weapon strikes, but are crushed underfoot once the fight goes against them. Swarms have the Unstable special rule (see page 7 8 for details).

Note that seconns who are subject to special combat result rules (such as Undead and Daemon seconns) do not have the Unbreakable or Squish! rules, but use their army's own special rules instead.



WAR BEASTS

Some armies employ hunting animals, such as hounds or wolves. Whilst not particularly intelligent, such creatures can be formidable foes in close combat, and cover ground at an incredible rate.

Example war beasts profile:

	M	WS	BS	S	T	W	I	A	Ld	
Warhound	7	4	0	3	3	1	3	1	5	

CHARGING, FLEEING AND PURSUING War beasts have the Swiftstride special rule (see page 76).

CHARACTER MOUNT

Some characters can ride war beasts, in which case the model uses the rules for cavalry (see page 82).



MONSTROUS BEASTS

There are many mighty and wondrous creatures in the Warhammer world that, whilst not large enough to classify as being full-blown earthshaking monsters, are still formidable foes. We refer to such creatures as monstrous beasts.

Example monstrous beast profile: M WS BS S T W I A Ld Great Eagle 2 5 0 4 4 3 4 2 8

STOMP

Monstrous beasts have the Stomp special rule (see page 76).

CHARGING, FLEEING AND PURSUING

Monstrous Beasts have the Swiftstride special rule (see page 76).

MONSTROUS RANKS

A rank of monstrous beasts needs only three models to count for rank bonus, steadfast and so on, and only need a six model frontage to count as a horde, in the same way as monstrous infantry (see page 81).

MONSTERS

Monsters are the largest beings in the Warhammer world, creatures so powerful that they normally don't form into units, but roam the battlefields on their own. Generally speaking, any single model bigger than a monstrous beast is a monster. This category includes Dragons, Greater Daemos and so on.

Example monster profile:

M WS BS S T W I A Ld War Hydra 6 4 0 5 5 5 2 7 6

THUNDERSTOMP!

Monsters have a more destructive version of Stomp, called Thunderstomp (see page 76).

MONSTERS AND BUILDINGS

Monsters are far too enormous to enter buildings, though they can still assault them.

RIDDEN MONSTERS

Some characters can ride monsters, as explained on page 104.

CHARACTER MOUNT

Some characters can ride monstrous beasts, in which case the model uses the rules for monstrous cavalry (see page 83).

CHARIOTS

A chariot is a wheeled war vehicle drawn into battle by beasts of some kind and crewed by warriors that are armed to the teeth.

SPLIT PROFILE

In a similar manner to cavalry, a chariot has more than one set of characteristics, one for the beasts, one for the crew and one for the chariot itself, and is treated as a single model. When moving, the chariot model almays users, although as the beasts are somewhat slowed by the chariot chasis, a chariot cannot march.

Example chariot profile:

	M	WS	BS	S	Т	W	I	A	Ld	
Lion Chariot		-		5	4	4	-	-	-	
Crew	-	5	4	4		-	5	1	8	
War Lions	8	5	-	5	-	-	4	2	-	

The crew and the beasts use their own Weapon Skill, Strength, Initiative and Attacks characteristics when they attack. Each can attack any opponent that the chariot model is in base contact with, abhough the beasts can only fight enemies to the front. If the crew models have missile weapons, they use their own Ballisci Skill when making Shooting attacks.

The Wounds, Toughness and armour saves of the crew and the beats are never used – hits are resolved against the charic's Wounds, Toughness and Armour Save. It is the crew's Weapon Skill that is used for the purposes of the enemy rolling to hit, just as which cavaly: We assume the crew to be in complete control of the beasts that pull the chariot, so the beasts' Leadership is never used.

IMPACT HITS

Chariots are huge crushing contraptions – they have the Impact Hits (D6) special rule. Some chariots are equipped with massive scythes and instead have Impact Hits (D6+1). This will be specified in their entry.

CHARIOTS AND SUPPORTING ATTACKS

Chariots cannot make supporting attacks - the rigid body of the chariot prevents other ranks from forcing their way through to attack the foe.

CHARIOTS AND SPECIAL RULES

Just as with cavalry, we assume that special rules that apply to the mounts do not normally also apply to the charitot or its crew, and vice versa. Remember though that there are exceptions, as detailed under the rules for cavalry (see page 82).

ARMOUR SAVES

Chariots have a fixed armour save, as detailed in their army list entry. Such an armour save takes into account the jurdiness of the chariot, the armour worn by the crew and any barding on the mounts (but barding still slows the model down).

CHARIOTS AND TERRAIN

Chariots are primarily created to operate over firm, even ground. As a result, a chariot that finds itself moving through terrain is likely to have a very bumpy (and possibly fatal) ride. See page 117 for details on chariots and Dangerous Terrain tests.

CHARGING, FLEEING AND PURSUIT

Chariots have the Swiftstride rule (see page 76).

CHARIOTS AND BUILDINGS

Obviously, chariots cannot enter or assault buildings - such actions would result in a very broken chariot for no tangible gain.

NO STOMP

Sometimes a chariot will either be pulled by monstrous cavalry or crewed by monstrous infantry. In either case, no stomp attacks are permitted (the crew carit reach and the steeds are hampered by their vokes and chains).

WAR MACHINES

War machines such as Empire Great Cannons, Ore Rock Lobbers and Dwarf Bolt Throwers are powerful units on the field of batte, able to pulverise whole regiments, breach stone walls or even slay fearsome monsters with a single, well-placed shot.

War machines form a distinct troop type. However, as their rules are rather unusual, and cover many different weapons that can be found in the Warhammer world, they are dealt with in their own chapter, starting on page 108.



UNIQUE UNITS

Some mechanical constructs or magical monstronistics are so hierare or unusual that they have rules entirely unique to themselves. Such troop types might well use some of the rules elements from outen, more common troop types, or else have entirely distinct rules that do not appear anywhere else. Where this happens, the unit entry in the relevant Warhammer Armies book will contain all the special rules and information you need to get your unique unit into the frat!

The Shaven Plague Furnace (right) and Night Goblin Fanatic (below) are good examples of unique units.

OOP TYPES
WEAPONS

In the grim and dangerous world of Warhammer, warriors employ many different types of weapons against a multitude of foes. From the fine swords of the Elves or the well-wrought axes of the Dwarfs to less-sophisticated choppas of the Ores or the huge spiked clubs used by Ogres, every race has weaponry fitted to its preferred syle of fighting.

It is usual for all the models in a unit to carry the same weppone. A unit of Spermen, a unit of Crossbowmen and so on. It is acceptable for a unit to include a minority of models that are differently armed for the sake of a varied and interesting appearance, but the unit still contra as being armed as the majority. Where models are varied in this way, it is important that the overall appearance of the unit is stor imleading.

Contraction of the second

HAND WEAPONS

Up until now, we've assumed that all models have been armed with a hand weapon. Swords, axes, clubs and maces are all hand weapons, as are more estorric weapons, such as punch daggers, brass knuckles and fighting cluws. We even use this rule to cover natural weapons, such as claws, teeth and horns.

We assume that all troops and characters have turned up to the hardne with a least one suitable fighting hand weapon each, although many troops are also equipped with one or more other, more specialized support. As the main rules assume that every warrior has a hand weapon, we don't need to discuss finther special rules – a model with a hand weapon fights precisely according to the rules laid out in entire sections. However, there are many other types of weaponry available to the warrise of Warhammer.



HAND WEAPON AND SHIELD

Remember earlier when I suid fighting with a hand weapon doesn't confer any special rules? Well, that's not exactly true – there is one case where it does. Some warriors carry a hand weapon in one hand and a shield in the other, a common combination which grants the warrior a fighting chance to parry or block almost any attack, no matter how powerful.

Parry Save

If a warrior is fighting with a hand weapon and a shield, then he has a 6+ ward save, representing his chance to party the blow – even the mightiest axe strike can be turned aside at the last moment if the timing is right.

This parry save only works against attacks made in close combat. It cannot be used against attacks made against the warrior's flank or rear (he doesn't have enough freedom of movement to turn around quickly enough), nor can it be used against Impact Hits or hits from Stomp attacks (there's no parrying something that big).

As a final caveat, the party save cannot be claimed by Frenzied warriors – they're far too bonkers to think overmuch about their own personal safety – nor can it be used by mounted models.

SPECIAL WEAPONS

We use the term 'special weapon' to cover anything that isn't a hand weapon. Special weapons include missile weapons, such as bows and throwing axes, as well as fearsome close combat weapons such as halberds and lances.

MISSILE WEAPONS

Normally a model cannot make a shooting attack unless he has a missile wapon of some kind – a box, crossbow or sling perhaps. If for some reason a model has more than one missile wapon, he is allowed to choose which one to fire during the Shooting phase.

Hand weapons for everybody

Why do two answer every much has a hard couple. The same programmer that leads a course in forwar the scapper early about the leads a course in forwar the scapper early about he is more a spire a short taneousl, diagory or sthere a short taneousl, diagory or sthere a short taneousl, diagory or sthere scapes taneousl, diagory or sthere scapes in Worknowsee, and diagong, This beach happen that after in Worknowsee, the time of the scapes, here the scapes in the scapes of the scapes of the scapes.

CLOSE COMBAT WEAPONS

If a model carries a special close combat weapon, be must fight with its in the Close Combat phases — he cannot cleer to widel his hand weapon instead. The reason for this is quite straightforward. Almost all varions train coulselvel with one carricular weapon, homing their skills of attack and defines with the closes that sharing to the first hy fighting with a seminitar, the spontful, weapon. Should the special wapon be destroyed then, and only then, can throe use the fund wazons.

The one exception to this rule is that if the model and carries a migal choice contribut respons of some kind, be will always use it in preference to other supports the carries. If the majoid versports is supported to carries. If the majoid versports is supported to the second strategies and the second strategies and the second strategies and the special close combart versports is also dorstrayed or the expected science. The second strategies are supported used and versports carrow to be destrayed event, the versport is also dorstrayed or support of regleteres are some that the sources are always able to immediately find pleary of regleteres are some of the dorst instrate the event instrate and be contained in the Befores section.

Two Special Close Combat Weapons

If the models in a unit carry two special close combat weapons, they must choose which of the weapons to use at the start of the first round of a close combat (the entire unit must use the same weapon, but characters can always choose separately). Whitelever wapon they set weapon then be used for the entire combat, unless the weapon they are using is somehow detroyed – it's no easy thing to change to a different weapon parready through a fight.

If an infantry model is armed with an additional hand weapon or a brace of pistols, these grant an extra attack. A model carit, however, wield a brace of pistols or additional hand weapon alongside another type of special weapon such as, say, a halberd.

WEAPON PROFILES

Each 'special' weapon confers a number of abilities onto the warrior wielding it. This will sometimes be a homus to their characteristic profile (normally Strength) or perhaps grant the wielder one or more special rules, as detailed in the weapon's rules. In order to keep a weapon's abilities nice and clear, we give each a characteristic profile, much as we do for a warrior. There are four sections to a weapon's profile: Name, Range, Strength and Special Rules.

Two example weapon profiles are shown below:

Name	Range	Strength	Special Rales
Halberd	Combat	+1	Requires Two Hands
Name	Range	Strength	Special Rules
Bow	24"	3	Volley Fire

Name

A weapon's name is what you'd expect, a descriptive title that distinguishes the weapon from other ones.

Range

The range tells you at what distance the weapon can be used. If a weapon's range is 'combat' then it can only be used in close combat. If the range is a number of some kind, it is a missile weapon and the number is its maximum range.

Strength

A weapon's Strength can take three forms. If the Strength is shown as a modifier, for example ± 1 , $\pm 2 \text{ or } -1$, then this is the modifier the weapon applies to the widdling model's strength. A Man (Strength 3) wielding a Halberd (Strength ± 1) would therefore strike Strength 4 blows when fighting in close combat.

If a weapon's Strength is shown as 'as user' then attacks made with the weapon use the wielder's own unmodified Strength.

Alternatively, if a weapon has a fixed Strength, then all attacks made with that weapon use the Strength value shown — the wielder's Strength is ignored. For example, shots fired by a Man (Strength 3) with a crossbow (Strength 4) would use the crossbow's Strength of 4, not the Man's Strength 3.

Special Rules

Many weapons confer special abilities on the attacks made by the weider, such as the ability to fight in an extra rank. Sometimes the special rule will be explained immediately after the weapon profile. Otherwise, details on these special rules can be found in the chapter of the same name, starting on page 66.



Shaven Assam

WEAPONS





with craubers

individual races or armies are covered in the You'll see that the spear has two different entries, one referring to the use of spear on foot and the other referring to mounted models (cavalry of all kinds and models riding

Listed on the following pages are some of the

many types of weapon used in the Warhammer

world. Unusual weapons that are specific to

army book for that particular race.

ROW

The bow is used extensively in warfare. It is a compact, long-ranged weapon that is cheap to make and easy to maintain.

Name	Ronge	Srogh	Special Roles	
Bow	24"	3	Volley Fire	

CROSSROW

A crossbow consists of a short, strong bow stave mounted on a wooden or metal stock. It takes a long time to load and wind a crossbow, but each shot has tremendous range and power.

Name	Range	Strength	Special Roles
Crossbow	30"	4	Most or Fire

FLAIL

A flail is a cumbersome, heavy weapon used with both hands. It consists of heavy weights, often spiked, attached to a pole or handle by heavy chains. A flail drains the user's stamina quickly, but is incredibly destructive on the charge, its impact smashing shields and splintering bones.

* A flail's Strength homes are lies only in the first round of close combat.

CREAT WEAPON

Great weapons are especially large and heavy weapons wielded with both hands. This includes great hammers, great axes, two-handed swords and suchlike. A blow from a great weapon can cut a foe in half and break apart the

Name Range Special Rules Great Wespon Combat +2

HAIRERD

The halberd is a heavy bladed weapon mounted on a sturdy shaft. The steel blade has a point like a spear as well as a heavy cutting edge like an axe. It is held in both hands and used to chop as well as thrust.

Name	Ronge	Strength	Special Rules
Halberd	Combat	+1	Requires Two Hands

HANDGUN

A handoun is a simple firearm consisting of a metal barrel mounted on a wooden stock. Some of the more advanced versions have levers and springs that hold the burning match or flint and release the firing mechanism to trigger the gun.

Handguns have a long range and hit very hard, making them value weapons indeed.

Name	Range	Strength	Special Rales
Handgun	24*	4	Armour Piercing, Mose or Fire

IAVELIN

The javelin is a light spear designed for throwing, too flimsy to be used in hand-tohand fighting. It is not a very common weapon as it has a short range, but the amphibious Skinks of Lustria use javelins extensively. A model is assumed to have sufficient javelins to last the battle.

Name	Range	Strength	Special Rales
Javelin	12"	As user	Quick to Fire

LANCE (MOUNTED MODELS ONLY)

A lance is a heavier, longer version of the spear, which cannot be used by models on foot.

None	Range	Strength	Special Rules
Lance	Combat	+2*	

* A lance is only used in a turn in sohich the wielder charved into combat. In subsequent turns (or if the wielder did not charge) the model uses

LONGBOW

A longbow is a dangerous weapon - a skilled archer can hit an enemy from a great distance with punishing force.

Name	Renge	Strength	Special Rules
Longbow	30"	3	Volley Fire



MORNING STAR

A morning star is a single-handed weapon that consists of one or more spiked balls on a chain. Like the larger flail it resembles, it is a tiring weapon so its advantage lies with the initial blow.

Nene	Range	Strength	Special Rules
Morning Star	Combat	+1*	

* A morning star's Strength bonus applies only in the first round of combat.

PISTOL

Pistols are small weapons that employ a noxious and unreliable form of gunpowder to propel a small lead or stone ball. Unlike other weapons, a pistol can be used as both a missile weapon and a close combat weapon, following the same rules as an additional hand weapon.

Neur	Range	Strength	Special Rules
Pistol (Shooting)	12"	4	Armour Piercing; Quick to Fire

Brace of pistols

If a model carries two or more pistols (a "brace") it uses them simultaneously, both in combat and when shooting.

Name	Ronge	Strength	Special Rules
Brace of Pistols (Combat)	Combat	As user	Extra Attack*

* Grants an Extra Attack to models on foot only.

Name	Range	Strength	Special Roles
Brace of Pistols (Shooting)	12*	4	Armour Piercing, Quick to Fire, Multiple Shots (2)

SHORTBOW

Shortbows are small, short-ranged bows that are favoured by Goblins. Some cavalry also carry a shortbow because it is easier to shoot from horseback.

Name	Range	Strength	Special Rules
Shortborz	18"	3	Volley Fire

SLING

Slings consist of a looped string of cloth or leather into which a stone is placed and then thrown with surprising strength and accuracy.

Name	Range	Strength	Special Rules
Sling	18"	3	Multiple Shots (2)

SPEAR (FOOT)

Spears are long shafts of wood with a sharp metal tip. Because braced spearmen can fight in an additional rank, spears are ideal defensive weapons for infantry.

Name	Range	Strength	Special Rales
Spear	Combat	As user	Fight in Extra Rank*

*Does not apply on a turn in which the model charned.

SPEAR (MOUNTED)

Riders armed with spears ride down footmen. spitting them as they gallop into their ranks.

Name	Range	Strength	Special Rales
Spear	Combat	+1*	

* A spear is only used in a turn in which the wielder charged into combat. In subsequent turns (or if the wielder did not charge) the model uses its hand weapon.

THROWING WEAPONS

Throwing-weapons, such as stars and knives, are small, easily concealed weapons and, consequently, they are favoured by assassing and lightly armed infiltrators. A model is assumed to have sufficient throwing weapons to last the battle.

Name	Range	Strength	Special Rules	
Throwing	+ 6°	As user	Quick to Fire	

THROWING AXES

These weapons are keenly balanced so they can be thrown accurately despite their weight. Even so, the strongest warrior cannot throw such a weapon very far, but if a throwing axe hits its target, the effect is devastating. A model is assumed to have sufficient throwing axes to last the battle.

Name	Rage	Strength	Special Roles
Throwing asp	6"	+1	Quick to Fire

TWO/ADDITIONAL HAND WEAPONS (MODELS ON FOOT ONLY)

hand, and can rain down even more blows on their enemy. An additional hand weapon cannot be used by a mounted model, or by a model that has a magical close combat weapon.

Name	Range	Strength	Special Rules
Two/Additional Hand Weapon	Combat	As user	Extra Attack







Black Ark Corsain with two hand spea



COMMAND GROUPS

So fac, we're assumed that all modek in a unit are equal – that they are all ranks and fact troops with identical influence on the fres. However, it is commonlates for warriors to march into bartic under the leadership of a sergenat or other champion, with hanners fringing roud in the mist-atreno air and the ratte and pounding of drams driving the varriors onward. A unit's champion, standard bearer and musician are collescively referred to as the unit's communify droug, and that's what we're going to discuss in this section. Before we debe into the nity grity of individual relies for command group models, let's cover of the basics.

FIELDING COMMAND GROUPS

Many units can include a command group of minimume that are available, and detailed in the relocant Warkammure Arminis book. Most units can take what we refler to as "full command" – a dompine, standard lever and municina—while others will only be able to take perhaps one or too of these optima. Light moop, face cample, the off the set optima. Light moop, face cample, moving a big graph day. Command group models are always chosen as sugraphed propmodels are always chosen as sugraphed to normal rank-and-diffe models.

WHAT'S IN A NAME?

In most army books, the term standard bearer is used throughout, though the model in question might actually be carrying an icon, pennant or other such token. Similarly, a musician might be carrying a drum, horn, nither, hurdy-gurdy or some other weird and wonderful instrument – hell still be described as a musician.

Champion, however, are a different kelle of the XuoT arrey find a champion option referred to as simply a champion – he'll be listed under the rank or anne given to the champion of that particular unit. For example, the champion on an Engire F Placellith Webstud is known as a Phophet of Doom' while the champion of a Restmain Passare However unit in seller 4 or Willeir'. As you can see, there is a left potential for confision here; as champion in nor to chardy identified as a standard barrer or a maxican. Fortunate, this distinction males the champion easy to identify – if a unit has a champion option, it'll be the one that isn't clearly labelled musician or standard bearer. Furthermore, a champion always has a slightly different characteristic profile to the other troops in a unit, so if in doubt you can always identify him that way!

POSITION WITHIN THE UNIT Command groups must be placed in the unit's front rank and move automatically if the unit reforms.

Champions, standard bearers and musicians can always be found in the forefront of the fighting, as is entirely fitting as they lead their comrades through personal example.

Any models that make up a unit's command group must be placed in the front rank of the unit, unless there is not enough room for them to fit. Where this happens, as many command group models as possible must be placed in the front rank and any remaining models are placed in the rank behind.

If the unit changes formation then the command group automatically pushes its way back to the front. Accordingly, when a unit reforms, the models of the unit's command group must be repositioned into the unit's new front rank as described above (regardless of the distance).

Now we've got all that out of the way, let's take a look at the command group's members.



High Elf Phoenix Guard Standard Bearer

CHAMPIONS

CHAMPION PROFILE

A champion always has a slightly better profiletion his fellows, having improved his skills over the course of several battles. Normally, this the case of a champion whose unit specialises in close combat) or an extra point of Ballistic Skill of the champion vult methyos champion ranged weapons). In some more unusual cases, a champion will have other characteristics bonuses, in which case these will also be shown in his characteristic profile.

ARMS AND ARMOUR

A champion model will normally have different wargear to his fellows, in order that he should stand out from the crowd! However, he counts as having exactly the same weapons and armour as the other members of his unit.

That said, some champions do have the option to take equipment that is not available to other members of their unit – where this is the case it will be clearly stated in the appropriate Warhammer Armies book.

CHAMPIONS AND SHOOTING

As you might expect, a champion uses his own characteristics when he shoots. If making a shooting attack, the champion must shoot at the same target as the rest of his ionit – you'll normally want to roll different coloured dice for the champion's shots if he has a different Ballistic Skill.

A champion cannot normally be targeted by enemy shooting attacks – he can only be removed as a casuality if there are no other rankand-file members of his unit left (not even the standard bearer or musician). The only exceptions to this are shooting attacks that do not use the normal shooting rules, specifically shooting attacks that use some form of template (such as cannons, stone throwers, breath weapons and so on).

Fortunately, in these cases, a champion is so beloved by his unit that ordinary rank and file troops will attempt to save him – as represented by the "Look Out Sir!" rule (see below).

CHAMPIONS AND CLOSE COMBAT

Unless a champion is slain by a direct attack, then he must be the bat rank and file model to be removed as a cassally. So if a unit of three models suffers 3 or more unswed wounds, the champion is removed as one of the casualities. In sessnee, wounds inflicted on the unit can overflow onto the champion, but wounds inflicted on the champion cannot overflow onto the unit.

CHAMPIONS AND CHALLENGES

Champions can accept and issue challenges in the same manner as a character. If you want to read more about challenges, you'll find the information on page 102.

"LOOK OUT SIR!"

If a charging is hit by a template as described above, there is a good chance a contrade will bound a varating or physically prohib mick ord or finctioning harms. Rell 10: Ko on 1, the charaption fails to bact the warning, or is too far away. He is hit and dramage is resolved against him as normal. On a 2-6, the charaption dives class or its showed anide — bein too hit by the strate. Unformately, another member of the unit takes the arrite meant for the charapten (normally the noble scal) who maded the character of a class - strates the tagainst the unit instead.

A "Look Out Sir!" roll cannot be made if there are less than five rank-and-file models (including the musician and standard bearer, but not the champion) left in the unit.



Dark Elf Corsair Champion



STANDARD BEARERS

A unit of troops often fights below a standard or tunner of some kind, a glorious token of their allegiance, history and pride. Such a standard is much treasured by the soldiers that fight and die beneath it, and they will butle on all the harder whilst it still files.

PROFILE AND WARGEAR

A standard bearer always has the same profile as the other rank and file models in his unit. Similarly, we also treat him as being equipped with the same weapons and armour as other models, although the model itself might not be armed the same way.

In reality, the standard bearer model will probably lack which, or will have exchanged a probably lack which, or will have exchanged a standard bearers of the shell other burdlens in order to keep the flig flying. The standard's the important thing after all — we can well imagine the bearer setting asked other trivial bardens to allow the might relia to be held shoft. We furthermore take this deficiency in wangear to be compensated for by the sheer fighting skills and tenacity of the warrior in question. Only the toughest soldier in a unit will be given the bonour of carrying the standard, and therefore we assume the standard bearer fights as if he has the same equipment as his fellows (which makes things far easier to keep track of).



COMBAT RESOLUTION BONUS

As we already discussed in the Close Combat chapter, a standard bearer is almost invaluable in a fight. If a unit includes a standard bearer, it will be more determined than ever to beat its for, and so adds +1 to its combat result. Remember that in a multiple close combat this bonus is limited to a maximum of +1 if any unit has a standard, not +1 for each one present in a fight.

STANDARD BEARERS AND CASUALTIES

We assume that if the standard bearrs is skin, another warrie yoil type forward to raise the fuller standard diof. Accordingly, the standard bearr cannot normally be removed as a causally unless only he and the champion (if there is one) remain the unit. This applies even if the standard bearrs in the target of an effect that affects only a match and works and a subgerous territor its st. or a match made with the and the standard bearr is the target of an effect that affects only a match and works and the standard standard bearrs in the target of the only other remaining model in the suit is the champion, the standard bearr must be removed as a causalt before him.

Last Stand

The only time a standard beare can be removed and sile noted is if the unit breaks from constant. When this happens, we assume that the standard bearer fights to the very has, definiting the honour that the rest of his suit have abandoned in their fight. If a unit breaks from combant, the standard bearer is shall immediately — remove the model. His place must be taken by a nais-and-file model from the rar rank of the unit, if there is one available. The victorious energy can all our-rest or places as somethal.



COMMAND GROUPS



MUSICIANS

When an anny marches, it does so to the best of drums and the call of bahring homs. These instruments are used to announce a unit's presence on the battlefield, bringing fresh hope to friend and avery to cennics. More than this, a unit's musican is crucial to keeping order when the unit attempts to change formation or should it need to rally. For trained troops, a purranged sequence of notes can carry as much information as a bellowed order, and can do so one clearly and with greater speed.

PROFILE AND WARGEAR

As with a standard bearer, we assume a unit's musician to have the same characteristic profile and wargear as other models in the unit, with the warrior's skill and determination compensating for any lack of equipment. An enemy can suffer unit a nastw wallop from a drumstick, after all!

"ONWARDS, MEN!"

If a combat goes poorly, a unit's muscian plays over budce, to rouge the spirits of his fellows and drive them forward into the fray with greater viguor. As a result, the side that has a muscian in its front make of one or more of its units wints any drawn close combat by 1, unless the oppoing side has a muscian also, in which case the redoubled efforts (and almighty clamour) cancel each other out.

'FORM ON ME!'

A musician forms a clear and vital rallying point for a fleing unit and can spell the difference between a brief retreat and a beadlong flight. If a fleing unit has a musician, it gains a +1 bonus to its Leadership whenever it attempts to rally. Remember that Leadership, as with all charateristics, cannot exceed 10.

MUSICIANS AND CASUALTIES

As with the standard bearer, we assume that if the musician is slain, another warrior will retrieve the instrument from his corpse and continue to play (probably not as well, but near enough for our purposes).

The musician cannot be removed as a casualty unless only he, the standard bearer and the champion (if either are present) remain in the unit. If only the standard bearer and/or the unit champion remain beside the musician then the musician must be the next essualty.

SWIFT REFORM

A unit that is not flexing and net engaged in combact can attempt to make a with reform during the Remaining Moves who h-phase, if that a moves. If the test is passed, the unit immediately moves a with reform — if field, the unit makes a normal reform instead, with all the penalities but payly (as described to page (14). A with reform is trated eastly like a reform manocrore, however such is the pend and efficiency with which the reform was carried out that the following exceptions apply:

- A unit that has made a swift reform can immediately make a full normal move, even though a reform would normally prevent it from doing so. Note that a unit that carries out a swift reform cannot march – they haven't been that swift!
- A unit that has made a swift reform can still shoot, although it will count as moving, whether or not it moves further after the reform has been completed. This means that it will suffer the -1 modifier for moving and firing, and will not be able to shoot Move or Fire weapons (such as crossbows).



COMMAND GROUP CASUALTIES SUMMARY

- Rank-and-file models are always removed first.
- When no rank-and-file models remain, the musician is removed.
- If there is no musician, or he has been slain, the standard bearer is removed.
- The champion is always removed last (unless specifically targeted by an attack).



Dwarf Ironbreaker Musician



CHARACTERS

The Warhammer world would not be what it is without the presence of great lords, valiant heroes and mighty wizards. Such powerful individuals add a new dimension to your games of Warhammer, either as inspiring leaders or skilled warriors able to trounce hordes of lesser fighters. Such potent personages are called 'characters'.

Characters are generally known by different names appropriate to their nation or rac. Orc characters, for example, are known by suitably 'Orcy' names such as Big Boss and Warboss, whilst the leaders of the Empire are Captains, Warrior Priests and Engineers.

The types of character available to an army will vary with the personality of that army. Most races in Warhammer can call upon the services of powerful fighters and puissant wirards in equal measure, some have unique types of speciality character, and a few have jack-of-alltrades characters that are adopt in many different aspects of war.

CHARACTER MODELS

Characters are a special type of unit that can either operate on their own, or join another unit from the same side. They often have superior characteristic values compared to ordinary members of their race, for example:

	M	WS	BS	S	T	W	I	A	Ld	
Man	4	3	3	3	3	1	3	1	7	
Captain	4	5	5	4	4	2	5	3	8	

As can be plainly seen, the Captain is far superior to the common man in almost every way – a powerful force on the battlefield if he is used correctly.

LONE CHARACTERS

Being dangerous and canny fellows, characters are permitted to move around the buttlefield as individuals, fighting a solitary batte against the foe. Indeed, many characters excel at this role, having the raw power to take on entire enemy units and still prove victorious.

Characters that have not joined another unit are treated as a separate unit of the appropriate type for all rules purposes. They move, shoot and fight as described in the relevant section of the rules. For ease of reference, we will call such models 'lone characters'.

SHOOTING AT LONE CHARACTERS

Characters are tempting targets for the machemic in the enzymm army – one well-placed volleg and a powerful fac can perhaps be brought down before hear hat character towark rain. However, picking out a lone character in you might think. At a distance it can be hard the midde of a clamorous buttle is hardner than you might think. At a distance it can be hard to tell efficient and common soldiers apart, particularly when units are advancing, marching and charging all around you, so we give lone characters a little protection to represent this.



If a lose character is hit by a shooting antack of may kind (including) bases first d using hubbles, skill, (requires and so on). Tack due Stiff was a straight of the star of the absorbance of the straight of the straight of the straight of the other human straight of the straight of the straight of the successfully forewards of non-straight of the straight of the character is more than one eligible unit within 3^o, the control ing physics can character within a straight of the straight the control ing physics can character within a straight of the s

You'll notice that the chance of this "Look Out, Sirl" roll succeeding is far slimmer that the one discussed elsewhere. This is only fitting as it's far harder to warn a friend from a distance than if he's stood a few paces away.



The most useful thing about a character is his ability to join other units. The character receives a greater degree of protection for being in the unit, becoming far harder to assassinate from range. In return, the unit gains the character's formidable fighting and leadership skills – all the better to help them crush the foe. The Herald of Nurgle (1) is too far atoay to gain any henefit from heing near the Plannebearers.

The Bloodthirster (2) is a monster, and therefore receives no protection as the Plaguebearers are infantry.

The Masque of Slaanezh (3), hercoever, is infantry, and close enough to receive a 4+ "Look Out, Sir!" against shosting attacks.

CHARACTERS AND UNITS

WHAT UNIT CAN I JOIN?

Most characters are allowed to join certain types of unit over the coarse of the battle. A character is normally permitted to join units of infantry, beasts, cavalry, monstrous infantry, monstrous beasts or monstrous cavaly: Characters can also join other characters belonging to one the troop types listed above, thus forming an impromptu unit entirely made of characters.

Unless otherwise stude, a character cannot pins a unit of monext (soo much danger of being stock on), a unit of flyers (too many flidiospinden wings beinffing the sky), a unit of charins (soo mach, danger of being entrop int of swarms (soo much danger of being entrop distancied). Smithly, a character that is itself a distancied of similary (soo distance) and a stock pins other units - aff i pins too dangerson for the members of the unit in question. A character cannot pins a unit that is already engaged in done combat or is thering.

JOINING A UNIT

To join a unit a character must move into base contact with it during the Movement phase. Once a character has joined a unit in this way, neither character nor unit can move further, so it's a good idea to plan your moves in the correct order. As a unit can move only before the character joins, it's better to move the unit first and then have the character move to join it. A unit which has been joined by a character in the Movement phase only counts as having moved if it has itself moved, not if a character has moved to join it.

POSITION IN THE UNIT

When characters join a unit, they are placed in the front rank (regardless of distance). Rankand-file models, except for the command group that must remain in the front rank, are moved to the back ranks to make room for the characters. If there is no more room in the front rank, some characters will have to go in the second rank.

SPELLS

When a character joins a unit that is under the effect of a spell that affects the entire unit, the character only benefits or suffers from the effects of the spell whilst he remains in the unit. Similarly, if a character is the subject of a spell that is capable of affecting a unit, the effect will also apply to any unit he joins, for as long as he remains part of it, and the spell lasts.

CHARACTERS IN FLEEING UNITS

If the character has joined a unit and this later flees, he will count towards working out if the unit is still at or above 25% of its initial numbers for the purposes of Rally tests (see page 24).



Shaven Chieflain

Rank Width

Two and the standard rule as the example as this applies to most trop types, but remember that nonstrones inflantry, nonstrones beasts and monstrone cavalry units only need to be three models while to count rank bonn, etc.

DIFFERENT-SIZED BASES

Most of the time, a character is mounted on the same size of base as the unit he devide to join. In this case, the character can simply be added to the front rank, displacing another model as described above. Nurnally, this gaves a finte more involved if the character has a differentsized base to the members of the unit. Here we have to use a little common sense to make everything work.

If a character's base is larger than one model, but has exactly the same size area (or 'footprint') as two or more models, simply displace those models to the back rank and position the character in their place.

When Footprints Collide

If a character's footprint does not fit neatly into a unit, place him on the edge of the unit, beside the front rank, facing the same direction as the rest of the unit, as shown below. In this case we do not assume the character's footprint to be filled by rank-and-file troops, and the character is ignored when working out the number of ranks in the unit and if it counts as a horde.





For example, this Chass Lord is riding a Chass Stead, so has a 25mm x 50mm footprint. He can still join the Chass Warrior unit, but will displace two models as the Chass Warriors have a 25mm x 25mm footprint.

If your character(s) fit into the unit in this manner, work out the unit's ranks (and therefore its rank bonus) as if the space was filled with rank and file troops.



For example, all the units shown above have three complete ranks, and therefore a rank bonce of +2.

Neither of these characters' base footprints fit neatly into their units, so they are placed at the side instead.



In the examples shown above, the first unit could count as having three ranks, as it is free models toide (the character is ignored). In the second example, the unit dues not count as having ranks, as they are not free models uside without the character.

There's No Room!

If a character cannot be placed within the unit, or beside the front rank, then he cannot attempt to join that unit. This is obvious, perhaps, but worth saying nonetheless.

COMBINED UNITS

Whilst a character is part of a unit, both he and the unit (including any other characters that have joined that unit) are treated as a single combined unit for all rules purposes, save for the exceptions listed here.

MOVEMENT

A unit always moves at the same rate as the slowest model, so when the unit moves, charges, flees or pursues, always use the lowest Movement characteristic and rules of the slowest troop type. Similarly, if the character is solvect to any movement restrictions, then those restrictions apply to whole combined unit whilst the character remains part of it, and vice versa.

SHOOTING

Normal 'shouting attacks – by which we mean to say shouting attacks that use the form's Ballistic Skill – cannot hit a character in a combined unit 'fhere are five or more rank and file models from the same troop type (including musician and standard bearer, but not the champion) left in the unit. We assume that the energy cannot pick the character out. All hits are allocated not be unit's rank and file models.

If there are fewer than five rank-and-file models left in the unit (or the character is of a different troop type) there is a chance that any characters in the unit could be hit – the controlling player decides who is hit, but must allocate one hit on each model before he can add a second hit on a model; he must allocate two hits on each model before he can allocate a third, and so on.

Unusual Shooting Attacks

The only exceptions to this are shooting attacks that do not use the normal shooting rules, specifically, shooting attacks that use some form of template (such as cannons, stone throwers, breath weapons and so on).

If a clurater is hit by such an attack, and he is in a unit of at least 5 rank-and-file models (excluding the champion, if there is on?) and he is of the same troop type as the unit, then his controlling player is permitted to make *1 Look Out Sit?" roll to save him from harm. This works exactly sate *1 Look Out Sit?" role described for unit champions on page 93. Simply put, on a 101 d 2 or more, the hit does not strike the character, but intead is allocated to a make-and-file model. If there are less than 5 rank-and-file models, the character does not get a Look Out Sir! roll and is hit.

CLOSE COMBAT

In the Close Combat phase, enemy models in base contrast with both the character and one or more models from the character or the unit, or split their attack between them. Show need to declare where attacks are being allocated before dyes are rolled. If the character is shin, any excess wounds do not carry over onto the rest of the unit but are simply lost.

Remember that models can only attack enemies in close combat if they are in base contact. Therefore, if enemy models are only in base contact with the character, then they can only attack him. If enemies are only in base contact with models from the character's unit, they must attack the unit.



Empire Engineer

High King Thorgrins Grudgebearer, with a retinate of Dwarf Ironbreakers.



MAKE WAY!

Should a combined unit be fighting in close combat, it is only right and proper that a mighty hero will push his way through to the fighting. At the start of the combat (before Impact Hits are resolved) if a character's unit is in combat. but the character is not in base contact with the enemy, the controlling player can swap his position with another model that is in base contact. You can exchange him with rank-andfile model(s), including the command group, that are in base contact with the enemy. If there are one or more stranded characters on both sides, the players roll off and the winner decides which character makes his Make Way! first, Players then alternate choosing characters to do their Make Way! moves. Only characters whose footprint is compatible with the unit's rank and file can do this.



For example, the Gohlin Big Base is not in base contact such the enemy at the start of the combas, and so is allocoed to perform a Make Way! more to get into contact.

Making Way to Another Rank

Characters can use a Make Way! move in order to move to another rank – most commonly if their unit is charged in the flank or the rear. Once the unit is no longer in close combat, such characters automatically return to the front rank of their unit at the start of their following Movement phase.



For example, these Decarfs have been charged in the flank by a Dragon. The Dragon is not in contact with the Decarf unit's front rank, so the Decarf Thane is permitted to more to another rank in order to fight it.

LEADERSHIP TESTS

As we already mentioned way back on page 10, Leadership tests are always taken using the highest value present in the unit. In the case of a combined unit, this will normally be the character, but might occasionally prove to be the rank and file of the unit themselves, particularly in the case of elite warriors.

SPECIAL RULES

Unless otherwise noted in the text of the rule intelf, a special rule applying only to a character does not apply to the unit, and vice versa. Most special rules are there to represent specific skills or powers – you couldn't learn to shoot a longbow by standing next to someone who could, so why would you become able to perform a Killing Blow, deploy as a Scout, and so on?

On the other hand, many spells and magic items bestow special rules and other effects on units. In this case, everyone (including the character) in the combined unit will be affected.

I Think I'll Sit This One Out, Chaps.

c) constraints on atomic row (c) constraints of the first, and only first year loss of the first, and only first year loss row and here an atomic row of the only only only on the weak of the second atomic allowing the second row of a class quarters around if they can manage it, and or can be classified on the second row of the second second row of the second row of the second row of the second classification of the second classification of the second row of constraints in a second row of the second classification of the second row of the classification of the second row of the constraints of the second row of the classification of the second row o

LEAVING A UNIT

Whilet a character might well stay with a unit for the entire course of a batts, there often comes a time when he departs for pastures new. This might be because you need your character to take charge of another section of the battlefont, or because the character's current unit has been so mercilessly batchered by the energy that ke's no longer safe within it. Whatever the reason, we're going to need rules

A character can charge out of a unit, by declaring a charge in the relevant phase – in which case, he will move and his unit will stay still – it is not permitted to declare a charge of its own, though it can move during the Remaining Moves phase.

If a Stand and Shoot reaction is declared against a character charging out of a unit, the shots are fired at the character as if he was a separate target – he does not gain the same protection as being inside a unit, but he does get a 4 + "Look Out, Sit!" if the unit he is leaving is the same troop type as he is.

Alternatively, a character can leave his unit during the Remaining Moves sub-phase by moving away from the unit before that unit makes its own move. If the unit cannot move in this phase for any reason, the character may not leave the unit.

For example, a character cannot leave if:

- · His unit is fleeing.
- The character himself or his unit is not permitted to move by a spell or other effect.
- · If the unit is in combat.
- · If the unit has made a failed charge.
- · And so on ...

When leaving a unit, the character reverts to his normal rules for movement. The distance of his move is worked out from his actual position in the unit before the unit moves. He can even join another unit as part of the same move if his controlling player wishes, and the character has enough movement, although the unit he joins cannot move if it hasn't done so already.





CHALLENGES

No matter hin race or allogitance, the quickest and casier route for summer to come glory and a dread router to be yielding enemy between does constat. I door mean through a choice object the bortail crush of maker- after all, even the most consumption of the start through an enemy warderd's back, should be get the opportunity. Now the Tw referring the absenced upper work that the start of the start of the opportunity is bound to make a space through an enemy warderd's back, should be get the opportunity. Now the Tw referring the start of the opportunity is bound to make a space through the start of the start of the start of the start end to be a the start of the start of the start of the start end to be a the start of the

Challenges are one of the most dramatic parts of Warhammer, representing as they do the final showdown between opposing warlords or hated rivals. It's not unusual for the result of a battle to hinge on who wins a challenge!

ISSUING A CHALLENGE

Challenges are issued at the start of the combat round, before any blows are struck (but after Impact Hits). Only one challenge can be issued per close combat – the side whose turn it is has the opportunity to issue a challenge first. If that side chooses not to, then the other side can issue a challenge

The player issuing the challenge nominates one of his character or champion models to issue the challenge. If he does not have a suitable model in the fight, a challenge cannot be issued. Similarly, if there are no characters or champions in the enemy units, a challenge cannot be issued – there's no one to fight?

Quite how individual warriors issue their challenges varies from race to race. An Elf or Man might salute his opponent, whilst an Orc bellows insults at his foe. To issue a challenge, choose one of your characters or champions in one of your units in the combat - this is the model that issues the challenge. Proceedings will be enhanced considerably if you actually frame a suitable challenge, perhaps along the lines of "Who's a-comin' out tae fight me, va scurvy, no-good, cowardly rat-infested spawns o' unmentionable descent. I can smell va fouled britches and hear va knees a-knockin' together with fear!" Once one challenge has been made, further challenges cannot be issued in that combat

ACCEPTING A CHALLENGE

If your opponent has issued a challenge, you can now accept it with one of your characters or champions whose unit is in hose contact with the and containing the issuer of the challenge. Note that a character does not have to be in hose contact with an enemy to accept or issue a challenge, just part of a unit that is. The two models will now fight, as described in Fighting a Challenge.

REFUSING A CHALLENGE (BOO! HISS!)

If no energy character steps forward to meet the challenge, one of them must retire in ignomity. This character is nominated by the challengertheough term goot nominate a character that design the major and the steps of the steps of the character is a step of the step of the step of the design of the step of the model into a rank where he's not induce the model into a rank where he's not induce the model into a rank where he's not induce the model into a rank where he's not induce the model into a rank where he's not induce the model into a rank where he's not induce the model into a rank where he's not induce the model into a rank where he's not induce the step of the step of the he's not induce the step of the Landership cannot be used for any Landership tests that the place that trank.

Once a challenge has been refused, the issuer can fight normally in that round of combat.

Nowhere to Run, Nowhere to Hide

A character cannot refuse a challenge if his model cannot be placed so that he is not in base contact with an enemy model – he carlt evade his opponent and so must fight for his life. This most commonly happens if a lone character is the subject of a challenge, or if his unit is small and engaged on all fronts, so that every model in the unit is in base contact with an enemy.

FIGHTING A CHALLENGE

If a character accepts the challenge, move him into base context with the challenge—after all, what good is the neurative of a challenge without the visual reality? If, for whatever reason, this is not possible, assume that the two models are in base context (this might require a little gamption to use dot, as, or it bosts to move the model if you can). These two characters must direct all of their attacks against each other – they cannot be attacked by any other model for that round of close combar.



Empire Warrior Pric

Overkill

If one model slays the other, then any excess wounds they inflicted above and beyond those needed to slay the opponent, up to a maximum of +5, are counted towards their side's total number of wounds for close combat resolution. More on this bouns can be found on page 53.

Note that this is an exception to the rule stating that a model can only suffer a many wounds as it has on its profile. This time you need to add up all of the wounds inflicted on the victim, even those from a weapon causing multiple wounds, or by repeated Killing Blows (each successful Killing Blow sorsets the same amount of wounds the shain character has on its profile). etc. This is great or in, abitic a little one-sided.

For example, a Chaos Lord fights a champion in a challenge. He idegs the champion before he has a chance to attack and causes serves conould. The combat renult score is 1 (the original cound of the champion) plus 5 (the maximum overkill bonns) for a total of 6 combat renult points. The last of the serves wounds it extacted.

Round Two?

If both competitors survive a challenge, and the combat continues, then they will continue to fight in the next round of close combat. Further challenges cannot be issued in that combat until the existing challenge has been resolved.

Challenges and Mounts

If a competitor in a challenge is riding a mount, then that mount (including the crew of a charico, if the character is riding one) must direct its attacks against either the other competitor or that competitor's mount (if the is riding one). If the opponent is shin before all of a model's attacks are made (because a competitor and hits mount strike at different limitative steps, for example then any excess Attacks are lost and cannot be directed against other models.

Excess wounds caused against mounts count for the purposes of overkill. If a character is slain but his mount is not, the mount will (after taking its Monster Reaction tests) continue fighting in the challenge until it or the foe is slain (or flees).

The Emperor Karl Franz and his Griffon Deathclato battle against a mighty Chaos Champion of Khorne.



CHARACTER MOUNTS

Many characters fide into barlle on a mount of some kind. Character mounts can range from the fairly common and straightforward, such as witchness, gaint works or a chardor of some kind, through to the rare and wonderful, such as colosal Dragons, clockwork steeds or biazere Daemons. Many mounted character models are anailable, while occasionally Warhammer Armies books will include further options that you might with in Ornald up yourself.

As a general rule, character mounts are broken down into four types:

- · Cavalry
- Monstrous Cavalry
- · Charint
- A High Elf Prince, riding a mighty Sun Dragon.
- · Charles
- Monster

A character and his mount are treated as a single character model for all rules purposes, except as noted below.

CAVALRY

A cavaly mount is the most straightforward thing a character can ride – this category includes things like horses (and their mechanical or undera equivalent), giant workes, bavas and other horse-sized or shaped attecks. As with the eleminion for the cavally troop type, a cavaly mount's key definition first in the fact that it has any a single Wound. Therefore, if a character is riding a nount with a single Wound, he is riding a cavaly mount.

If a character has a cavalry mount, the whole model is treated as having the troop type 'cavalry' and follows all the rules for both characters and cavalry models.



MONSTROUS CAVALRY MOUNT

Very rarely, a character will have the option to ride a monstrous beast. In this case, the whole model is treated as having the troop type 'monstrous cavalry' and follows all the rules for both characters and monstrous cavalry models.

It's worth noting (as the wording is rather similar) that the rules for Ridden Monsters do not apply to monstrous cavalry mounts – they are two distinct troop types.



CHARIOT MOUNT

If a character has taken a chariot as a mount, the whole model is treated as having the troop type 'chariot' and follows all the rules for both characters and chariot models. Characters riding on chariots cannot join other units.

A chariot mount otherwise follows all the rules for ridden monsters (see below), save for the fact that a chariot does not need to take a Monster Reaction test if the character is slain.

RIDDEN MONSTERS

Monsters are often employed as mounts for characters — an Ore Warboss could be riding a Wyern perhaps, or an Elven Prince a mighty Dragon. If a character model is riding a monster, it does not use the rules for cavalry or monstrous cavalry, but rather those given here.

If a character has a ridden monster, the whole model is treated as having the troop type monster and thus follows all the rules for both characters and monster models. A character on a ridden monster cannot join other units.

Whilst a cavalry model is treated as a single model for the purposes of hitting and wounding, a character and his ridden monster can be attacked separately. As the battle goes on, the character may find himself unborsed (well, un-Griffoned, or un-Dragoned anyway) or the monster might have its rider slain from off its back.

RIDDEN MONSTERS AND SPECIAL RULES

We assume that special rules that apply to a ridden monster do not normally also apply to character riding it and vice versa (with the same exceptions that apply to cavalry models, which are listed on page 82). Likewise, ridden monsters are still monsters, and benefit from the rules for monsters as well.

RIDDEN MONSTERS AND ARMOUR SAVES

Just as with regular cavalry, a ridden monster affords its rider an element of additional protection. A character on a ridden monster counts his armour save as being 1 point better than normal (see cavalry on page 82).

SHOOTING AT RIDDEN MONSTERS

As a single model, the monster and its rider are considered to be a single target. It is not possible to shoot specifically at either the rider or the mount unless the shooting model has the Sniper special rule (see page 75).

Once you have established how many hits have been scored, you must apportion them between the rider and the monster. For each thi scored roll a D6: on a roll of 1-4 the monster has been hit. On a 5-6 the rider has been hit. If a monster has two or more riders (a very unusual combination) then on a result of 5 or 6_i randomise any bits among the riders.

Roll to wound the monster and rider as normal, remembering to roll the dice separately so you can tell the two sets of hits apart. Once you know how many wounds have been inflicted on the monster and the rider, they can each take any saves to which they are entitled.

Templates

If you use a weapon or yell that uses a template agains a monster mouth, both the relates and the mount are automatically hit if the mometry has included by benchmark that the interplate (note that this includes bouncing cannotballs), be the case of a bouncing of the start of the start that Strengths, only one model will be hit at the lighter Strength strength strength stores of the for a showing attack, to see whicher one of the theirs or the mount is unaday couple to take the bigher Strength have based.

Riding High

Desing a dimeter on a most more trick all hade of advantages, the gets a letter advantages of the gets a letter of the second and self gets on ploton gets and the second second gets proversion of the second second second second to any second second second in conductance of the second s



Casualty!

The character and his ridden noonter taill inevitably die at different stages of the battle, leaving you with the problem of heres to represent the survivor nove that his comrade has soffered a messy death.

Sometimes your character model will not be glued onto his moment, so if be vlaim first you can just remove him. Honoroor, at most of as glue our characters in place, this is not always possible. In these circumstance, I wormedly just makes a neet that the character has been slaim, leaves the mometer in place and leaves in a that.

Shauk dare reverser happen (Latie character waller) in somet je dre character weller in somet je dre character well in somet je dre character well in somet je dre somet somet somet har van somet somet somet somet har van somet somet somet somet in somet somet somet somet somet in somet somet somet somet somet somet som somet s

MONSTER MOUNTS IN COMBAT

In close combat, the monster attacks using its own characteristics, and the ride attacks separately using his characteristics. As the monster and rider are likely to have different Initiative values, they might strike their blows at different times. These attacks are worked out entirely normally, one batch for the rider and one batch for the monster, against any enemies in base contact with the model.

When it comes to attacking back, enemies in base contar with the monster have two potential targets: the rider and the monster. The enemy can choose to direct bia stacks against either the rider or the monster, and can distribute attacks between them in any way he likes. The opposing player must state how many attacks are against the monster and how many are against the rider; before herolls any dice, otherwise all attacks are assumed to be against the monster and

Attacks are worked out exactly as normal, and the score required to hit will depend upon the relative values of the monster or the rider's Weapon Skill and the attacker's Weapon Skill.



EXCESS WOUNDS

If a character is slain and suffers more wounds than he has on his characteristic profile, excess wounds are discounted. They are not carried through onto the monster, nor onto a second trider if one is present, although they do count towards overkill in a challenge (see page 102 for details on challenge).

Similarly, any excess wounds inflicted on the monster are discounted; they are not carried over onto the rider, although they do count towards overkill in a challenge.

SLAIN RIDERS OR MOUNTS

Wounds must be recorded separately for the rider and his mount. If the mount is slain, the rider continues to fight on foot.

If the rider is slain, the monster must immediately take a Monster Reaction test: take a Leadership test on the monster's own Ld. If the test is passed, the monster fights on as normal. If the test is failed, roll a D6 and consult the Monster Reaction table.

If a Stand and Shoot reaction kills the mount during a charge, the model is replaced by a foot version of the rider and attempts to complete the charge normally (i.e. using his own Movement value and special rules rather than the mount's). If atk the rider, take the test for the monster and then finish the charge if possible.

MONSTER REACTION TABLE D6 Result

- 1-2 UH? Free of the will controlling it, the monster now has to think for itself and might find its presence on the buttlefield extremely confusing. The monster fights on as normal, but is subject to Stupidity for the remainder of the game.
- 3-4 GRRRRR. The montre stops moving immediately, remaining where it is to guard the false hody of its matter. From this point oraces, the montre is Usherakable. The montre is Usherakable. The montre is may any starts to face towards the closest energy in its Movement phase and use moving instants of the montre is suggainst the closest energing in face movement within marging the possible. If the monster is suggainst a field on the montre is suggainst a field on the montre is suggainst field.
- 5-6 RAARGH The monster is maddened by grinf and argue at the dash of its master, or simply reverts to its feral institucts. The monster fights on as mormal, but is subject to Ferenzy and Harred of all enemies for the rest of the grave (it can never loss its Prenzy, even if defanted in comhuty and will always charge the closest eligible enouwy target.

THE GENERAL

Every army is led by a General, a heroic character to whom command of the various warriors, war machines and wizards has been centrasted (or who has seized control over the any by brute force or enfairons means). The General model is a miniature representation of you as the controlling player – he is your physical avatar upon the battlefield and the heart of your army:

SELECTING THE GENERAL

The General is the character in your army with the highest Leadership. If more than one character share the highest Leadership value, you must choose which one is the General and tell your opponent before deploying your army.

INSPIRING PRESENCE

Warrises fight all the better under the stern gaze of their General, king heart from his noble presence (or perhaps feating his anger more than the blades of the cenny). Providing that the General is not flexing, all friendly units within 12° use his Lacelership instead of their own (so rally year General first). Remember that a General with the Large Target rule (or who is riding a Large Target) has his Inspiring Presence runes increased to 18°.



Se .

Black Orc Warbos

THE BATTLE STANDARD BEARER

Armies often include a Battle Standard Bearer – a trusted warrior who holds aloft the General's personal heraldry. A Battle Standard Bearer is a rallying point for the army, from which friendly soldiers can take heart and draw strength.

The Battle Standard Bearer Model

A Battle Standard Bearer is a heroic model carrying a particularly impressive banner, and it will be presented as an option in your Warhammer Armies book. The battle standard is carried by a character model and, unless specified otherwise, the model that carries the battle standard cannot be the General.

Unlike normal standards, the battle standard is lost if the bearer is shain – other models cannot pick it up, even if they are in the same unit. As with other standard bearers, the battle standard bearer is automatically killed if he flees from combat – he dies on his feet, defending the precious standard to his last breath.

Combat Result Bonus

Like a normal standard, a battle standard adds +1 combat resolution in a cloce control if it is in a friendly unit. Unlike a normal standard, a hattle standard adds this +1 even if another standard is present. If, by some unusual circumstance, there are two battle standards on the same side in the contlut, you can only count the bonus for one (this might happen with allied armise, see page 136).

Hold Your Ground!

To represent the buffle standards witch strakying presence, fixeding Wardsh within 12% of the Bartle Sandard Bener re-cell failed Leadership tests of any kind, including Panic tests, Break ability cannot be used if the Bartle Sandard Bener's himmelf Heing – no one takes heart from the sight of a covard. With this in mind, it's always best to taken pit on ally avar Bartle Sandard Bener before you take other Rally tests, if you can.





WAR MACHINES

War machines are mechanical constructions that hurl massive projectiles at the foc. Bolt throwers, cannons and stone throwers are all war machines, and there are many other bizarre contraptions to be found in the Warhammer world.

War machines are very powerful and can vary granzhy in form and function. For simplicity and sanity, we therefore divide a war machine's rules into two parts. The first part of rules pertains to the rules for the war machine troop type – essentially its chassis and crow – which apply to all war machines. The second part consists of the rules for how each specific type war machine frees (and how it shapehers your foc).

As with all units, it's worth checking the Bestiary (in the Reference section) so you can be sure which troops are classed as war machines.

Example war machine profile:

	M	WS	BS	S	Τ	W	I	A	Ld
Mortar					7	3			
Crewman	4	3	3	3	3	1	3	1	7

Split Profile

War machines have two profiles, one for the war machine itself, and one for the crew.

Yea always use the Movement, Waqon Shil, Ballinis Shil, Smerch, Jimarho, Hancka and Ladorship of the cress. The Toughness of the the majority Toughness of the crew's surgour against close combat tatacks. The crew's surgour agent close combat tatacks. A war machine's Woands are always considered to be equal to the number of remaining crew models (which is stated in the war machine's entry) – the Wands value on its profile is included only out of completeness.

Characteristic Tests

War machines automatically fail all characteristic tests, save for Toughness and Leadership tests.

THE CREW

A set machine unit compress the machine field plus in screec As, the core and relativity constant units per s_i, we ignore them for most order of the set of the set of the set of the set machine units of the set of the set of the set machine units in our set of the set remaining of the set machine is network of a set of the set of the set of the set of the set remaining of the set machine can be set of the set of the set of the set of the set remaining set of the set machine.

The crew cannot be charged, attacked or otherwise affected separately from their war machine – if they are found to be blocking movement or fine of sight, the controlling player simply alters their position, just as you would for any other battlefield marker or counter.



Empire Mortar and crew

THE WAR MACHINE

War machine encleds do not normally have bases, and so the usual convention of measuring to the model's base cannot be used. When measuring to and from the war machine, measure to or from the body of the machine, by which we mean the closest part of the classis, wheels or the weapon itself (ignore any spikes, piles of cannonballs, sprockets, banners and so on).

There is one notable exception. When firing a sur machine's wappen, ranges are measured from the muzzle of the gun (in the case of a canone, volleg upon or similar) or the crossbar (in the case of a stone thrower or similar campably. If your war machine is particularly unusual and does not have any of these features you should choose a suitable point from which you solid measure all your shooting attacks, so long as you are consistent.

MOVEMENT

We assume that a war machine's crew are able to wheel or drag it short distances at a sime. The war machine can move using the rules for lone models (see page 27). Use the crew's Movement characteristic to determine how far the war machine can move. Remember that all distances are measured from the war machine model itself – move the war machine and then place the crew within " of it.

War machines can never charge or march: they're too ponderous for the latter, and the crew too keen for their own survival to attempt the former – and who wouldn't be if armed only with a sponge on a stick?

If charged, a war machine can only choose to bold – even in mortal danger the crew are kotthe to abandon their pride and joy. If forced to flee (because of a failed Break test, for example) the war machine is destroyed. In such cases we assume that the crew subotage their war machine to prevent the enemy making use of it, before fleeing the buttle with no intention of returning.

War machines treat all terrain other than open ground and hills as impassable. That said, a war machine is permitted to deploy in a building or terrain, buil if it does, it cannot move during the game except to pivot on the spot. It should be noted that this rule is intended to allow players to deploy their war machines in sensible and dramatic locations, such as a cannon in a wood or a mortar on top of a tower. It should not be seen as licence to deploy war machines in absurd locations, such as putting a stone thrower inside a roofed building, for example.

CHARGING A WAR MACHINE

As a war machine does not have a base, units charging a war machine do not have to 'close the door' to align – they just have to complete the charge in such a manner that they are touching the war machine's body (as defined in 'The War Machine' above).



SHOOTING AT WAR MACHINES

When shooting at a war machine, resolve the stack as ormal, using the Toaghenes value of the war machine. – the crew are doubless toro and timber hide to preserve their adogether more fragile ones. The crew's armout save is all used to attempt to prevent any wounds inflicted, as it is they that the attack is attempting to alsy.

SHOOTING WITH WAR MACHINES

Unless specified otherwise, all war machines weapons have the Mover or Fire and Slow to Fire special rules. Each type of war machine weapons infred differently, a doscribed in its own set of rules. Lise of aghts in always share from the chosen firing point (i.e. its muzzle or crosubar, in the same way as for is mago) – before you fire the war machine, pivot it to face your chosen target (its) doesn't count is moring). For war machine weapons that require Ballinic Skill, use the highest Balliets Skill among the crew to resolve the shot.

WAR MACHINES IN CLOSE COMBAT

War machine crews are not especially known for their valour, and will normally defend their machine from behind, beneath (or within) its frame. This is a valid defensive tactic, as there is a limit as to how many enemy warriors can physically crowd around a war machine.

At the start of the Close Combat phase, before any blows are struck, the player whose unit(s) are attacking the war machine must choose six models who will fight in the combat (the assault party, if you will) – the rest cannot get close enough to land blows.

Only six models can be chosen per war machine being fought, regardless of the number of units that are fighting. Obviously, some models are bigger than others, so monstrous infantry/cavalry/beasts each count as three models when selected to fight a war machine, while a monster (including any rider) counts as five models.

All models chosen for the fight are considered to be in base contact with the war machine. Models that are in base contact with other enemies cannot be chosen to be part of a war machine's assault party – they're too busy fighting their more immediate foes. The combat is otherwise resolved normally. In particular, casualties are taken from the 'back' of the unit as normal – models step up and join the fight in place of fallen comrades, assuming there are enough survivors to do so. When it comes time to fight, the war machine makes a number of attacks equal to the number of surviving crew models, using their Weapon Skill, Strength and Initiative. Enemy models strike at the war machine normally, resolving their attacks against the crew's Weapon Skill and Toughness. The crew can then take any saves to which they are entitled.

A war machine does not have any flanks or a rear for the purposes of combat results. If a war machine manages to win its combat, it is not allowed to pursue and restrains pursuit automatically. The crew always hold their ground and continue the business of operating the machine. If the war machine loses the combat and fails its Break test it is destroyed.

WAR MACHINES AND PANIC

If a war machine fails a Panic test (due to friends being destroyed within 6" and so on) it does not flee. The crew dive for cover underneath their machine and cannot shoot in their next Shooting phase – this does not prevent the crew clearing jams or other misfire results.



BOLT THROWERS

Bolt throwers are huge crossbows that shoot a spear-sized missile. A crew of two or more is required to wind back the powerful torsion arms and position the huge bolt ready for firing.

Name	Range	Strength	Special Rules
Bolt Thrower	48"	6	Multiple Wounds (D3)
			Ignores armour saves*

*Armour saves are not permitted against wounds caused by bolt throwers.

FIRING A BOLT THROWER

To fire a bolt thrower, select a target according to the normal rules for shooting.

With the target chosen, roll to hit using the crew's Ballistic Skill, just as you would for a normal missile weapon. All the normal To Hit penalties apply to a shot from a bolt thrower – it is essentially just a massive crossbow, after all.

If the shot misses, the bolt hits the ground or sails into the air, only to land harmlessly some distance away from the target. If the shot hits, damage can then be resolved using the rules given below.

Resolving Bolt Thrower Hits

It the target is a unit of five or more ranked-up models, the bolt will always strike a regular trooper (as opposed to a champion or character in the unit) in the unit's first rank if the bolt thrower is in the unit's front arc, or the last rank if the bolt thrower is in the unit's rear arc. If the bolt thrower is in the target unit's flank, the target's files count as ranks for the purposes of resolving the shot.

Bolt Throwers and Characters

If the rank hit by the bolt is made entirely of characters and champions, or if the total number of rank and file models in the unit is less than five, it will be necessary to randomise which model in the rank is hit.





The sheer mass of a bolt thrower shot means that it can hurtle through several ranks of troops, piercing each warrior in turn. If the shot hits, resolve damage against the target using the bolt thrower's full Strength of 6. If this model is slain, the bolt then hits one of the warriors in the rank behind, although it will have been robbed of a little force – this next warrior is hit with -1 Strength (normally Strength 5). If the second trooper is slain, a model in the next rank is hit at -2 Strength (normally Strength 4) and so on, until either the unit runs out of ranks or the bolt fails to slay a target (remember that all hits, at any Strength, inflict multiple wounds).



WAR MACHINES

CANNONS

Cannots are devastating, if sometimes upperdictable, weapons whose manufacture is limited to few races. When they work, cannots can shatter the most determined memy, slamming roundshot after roundshot into massed formations. However, cannots can go wong. The black powder charge can fail to ignite, or explode prematurely. Worke, wakenesse in casting methods can laver minute cracks or other deficiencies, which lead to the cannon exploding when fired.

There are two different kinds of cannon profile, representing the differing size and power of various cannons.

Name	Range	Strength	Special Rules
Canton	48"	10	Multiple Wounds (D6)
Name	Range	Strengti	Special Rules
Great Cannon	60"	10	Multiple Wounds (D6)

FIRING A CANNON

Cannons do not use their crew's Ballistic Skill and instead rely on their crew's expertise in judging distance, elevation and the correct amount of black powder to propel the shot the desired distance.

CHOOSE TARGET

Nominate a point within the war machine's line of sight and that is not outside the cannon's maximum range. Nour target does not have to be an enemy model; it can be a point on the ground if you wish. Remember that war machines are allowed to prior in the Movement phase, the better to bring your chosen target into the wearon's line of sight.

When choosing your target point, it's best to bear in mind that, unless something goes wrong, the cannonball will always overshoot by between 2" and 10", so you'd be well served to aim a few inches short of the enemy you wish to hit.

Note that you are not allowed to make a cannon shot in such a way that it has a chance of hitting a friendly unit or an enemy unit that is engaged in close combat.

When you have chosen your target, place a small coin or counter in the correct position as a reminder of where the shot is intended to land.

FIRE!

Using your tape measure, extend a 'shot' line from the cannon's barrel all the way to your target point. Roll the artillent with a start the line away from the cannon the number of inches shown – this is where your cannonhall strikes the ground (see diagram below).

If you roll a misfire, something goes wrong when the cannon fires. You'll now need to roll on the Black Powder War Machine Wisfire chart to discover the seriousness of the situation. Regardless of the result rolled, the cannon does not shoot this turm.

BOUNCE

Assuming that the cannon did not misfire, then hopefully the cannonball will bounce straight forward and crush any targets in its path.

To determine how far the cannonhall bounces, roll the artillery dice again. If the result is a misfire then the cannonhall does not bounce – it thads into the ground and comes to rest. Any model under the spot where the cannonhall comes to rest is hit, see below for details of how to resolve the hit, but he is the only victim!

Assuming you don't roll a misfire, then the cannonball hounes the distance rolled straight forward – extend your tape measure a distance equal to the roll of the dice. If the cannonball bounces into impassable terrain that would, in reality, stand in the way of the shot, such as a sheer cliff, it stopy immediately.



WAR MACHINES

WHO'S BEEN HIT?

The bounce of the cannonball is treated exactly like a special kind of template, which we assume to be about the width of the cannonball itself.

On most occasions, any model whose base is between the point where the cannonball first strikes the ground and where it eventually comes to land is hit automatically! However:

- A maximum of one model per rank struck can be hit. If the cannon is in the target's flank, the target's files count as ranks.
- If the cannonball bounces into a monstrous infantrybeast/cavalry or monster, that model suffers a hit. However, if the monster or monstrous infantrybeast/cavalry model is not slain, the sheer bulk of the creature robs the cannonball of all momentum and the shot travels no further.
- If the cannonball bounces into an obstacle (see page 122) then that obstacle is destroyed, but the cannonball travels no further.

The cannonball strikes the Wyzern, kills its rider, but not the monster, so the shot doesn't go through the Goblins behind.

BLACK POWDER WAR MACHINE MISFIRE CHART

D6 | Result

- 1-2 Destroyed! The gun explodes with a thunderous noise. Shards of metal and wood fly in all directions, leaving a hole in the ground and a cloud of black acrid smoke. The war machine is destroyed.
- 3-4 Malfunction. The charge fails to ignite and the barrel must be emptical before the war machine can fire again. The war machine therefore cannot fire this turn or in the costrolling player's next turn. Either turn the war machine model round or place a marker of some kind to indicate this.
- 5-6 May not Shoot. A minor error has occurred, perhaps the fuse was not properly set or the crewner mishandled the boading procedure. The war machine is unharmed and can shoot as normal again in the controlling objace's next turn.

The cannonball strikes the wall, destroying it, but travelling as forther



GRAPESHOT

Instead of firing normal shot, cannon crew can opt to fire grapeshot. They do this by loading the gun with rusty nails, handgun bullets and other small projectiles – effectively creating a huse blunderbuss.



FIRING GRAPESHOT

To fire grapeshot, select a target according to the normal rules for shooting.

With the target chosen, roll an artillery dice to find out how many shots are fired. If the artillery dice result is a misfire, roll a D6 on the Black Powder War Machine Misfire chart to find out what has gone wrong.

Assuming that a misfire did not occur, roll to hit the target with a number of shots equal to the number rolled on the artillery dice, resolving any successful hits using the grapeshot profile.

FIRE THROWERS

Though its designs are many and varied, a fire thrower always consists of an airtight copperlimed barel and a fluid chamber filled with a sticky alchemical sludge – normally a mixture of sulphurous compounds, black powder and combustible oils.

When triggered, the fire thrower sets loose a burst of these noxious chemicals, which immediately set light upon contact with the air, incinerating anyone unfortunate enough to be caught in the blast.

Unless otherwise specified, a fire thrower has the following profile:

Name	Range	Strength	Special Bales
Fire Thrower	n/a	5	Flaring Attacks

FIRING A FIRE THROWER

Place the teardrop-shaped template with its narrow end touching the fire thrower barrel and the large end ained at any target in line of sight. Roll the artillery disc and move the template directly forward the number of inches indicated – this is where the burst of flame lands. The template can overshoot a target, representing the crew firing in too high an arc.

All models underneath the template are hit automatically. Wounds caused by a fire thrower have the Flaming Attacks special rule. A unit suffering any casualties must take a Panic test.

A misfire means the weapon does not fire - roll on the Black Powder War Machine Misfire chart (see page 113) to find out what went wrong.

STONE THROWERS

Stone throwers are destructive weapons that lob large rocks into the air, sending them crashing down into the enemy ranks. The largest stone throwers can hurl a projectile big enough to flatten monsters or knock down city walls.

Unless otherwise specified, a stone thrower has the following profile:

Name Range Strength Special Ruler Stone Thrower 12-60" 3(9) Multiple Weards (D6)

You'll notice that a stone thrower has two Strength values, one of which is in brackets – don't worry about this for now.

FIRING A STONE THROWER

To fire a stone thrower, take the small round (3") template and place it anywhere completely within the war machine's line of sight, outside of the stone thrower's minimum range and within its maximum range.

The template cannot be placed over friendly models, or enemy models from a unit that is engaged in combat, as the crew refuse to deliberately target their allies (although the shot might well go wide and hit friends by mistake as well discover later). If placed over an enemy unit, the hole in the middle of the template must be placed over a single model.



SCATTER

Once the template has been placed, roll for scatter using a scatter dice and an artillery dice. If a misfire is rolled on the artillery dice, something has gone wrong – roll on the Stone Thrower Misfire table to discover just what that is. Regardless of the result rolled, the stone thrower does not shoot this turn.

Assuming that you didn't roll a misfire on the artillery dice, it's now time to find out whether or not your shot was on target.

If a hit is rolled on the scatter dice, the shot has landed on target – any creature foolish or unlucky enough to be nearby is going to regret it very soon. In this case, we ignore the number shown on the artillery dice – the hit is all we need.



Dwarf Grudgethrower Crew. If an arrow is rolled, the shot has missed its original target and scatters off elsewhere. The full rules for scatter are given on page 9, but in summation: move the template a distance in the direction shown on the scatter dice.

DAMACE

Regardless of whether or not your shot landed exactly where you intended, it's time to see who's been flattened by it.

The model (if there is one) under the template's central hole is unlucky enough to be hit directly by the stone thrower's massive pavload - he takes an automatic hit at the higher of the stone thrower's two Strengths (normally 9). If the template has scattered, there's a good chance the centre hole will lie over two or more models. Nonetheless, only one can be hit by the higher Strength, so select one randomly,

Other models wholly or partially beneath the template avoid being clobbered by the main loose rock and, after the payload has landed, fast-moving chunks of battlefield (and possibly bits of the warrior who took the full brunt of the shot). Such models are hit automatically at the stone thrower's lower Strength (normally 3).

The stone thrower's Multiple Wounds (D6) special rule applies only to the high-Strength hit caused against the model under the template's central hole - unsaved wounds from the low Strength hit are not multiplied. This makes the stone thrower very good at disposing of enemy monsters and other resilient models as well as dealing horrendous damage to massed ranks of



FIRING INDIRECTLY

As a stone thrower lobs its shots in a high arc. it can be used to attack enemies that are hidden from its view. Such shots are inaccurate at best, as the stone thrower's crew essentially have to quess where their foe lies, working from fragmented and often unreliable information provided by other warriors.

If you wish to fire indirectly, declare that you will do so before taking the stone thrower's shot. An indirect shot does not require line of sight but is otherwise treated as a normal shot and has the usual requirements (the target needs to be in range and outside the minimum range of the stone thrower).

An indirect shot is not as accurate as one where the crew can see their target. If an arrow is rolled on the scatter dice, resolve the scatter as normal. If however, you roll a Hit! on the scatter dice, the shot does not land on target (as would normally be the case) but merely scatters less - how much less depends greatly on the skill of the crew You'll notice the Hitl symbol has a small arrow at the top of it - this indicates the direction of scatter for an indirect shot - the distance travelled is equal to the score shown on the artillery dice minus the crew's Ballistic Skill characteristic (to a minimum of zero!).

Other than the aforementioned inaccuracy of the scatter an indirect shot from a stone thrower is treated exactly according to the rules given for normal shots given above.

STONE THROWER MISEIRE CHART D6 Result



allowed. This problem can only be fixed by partially dismantling the war machine and so the stone thrower therefore cannot fire this turn or in the controlling player's next turn. Either turn the war machine around or place a marker of some kind to indicate this.

4-6

2.3

May not Shoot. A minor error has occurred, perhaps the stone was dropped or part of the machinery jams. The stone thrower is unharmed and can shoot as normal again in the controlling player's next turn



BATTLEFIELD TERRAIN

A Worhnammer battle can take place anywhere, on the edge of a town, amid cursed ruins, in the uttermost depths of a Dwarf hold, on the treacherous and frozen slopes of a mountain pass or even amid the upper minarets of an Elven eity. The Fighting a Warhammer Battle chapter explains how to set up your battlefield. Here you will find the rules for the many types of terrain and building you can fight over.

TYPES OF TERRAIN

In the Warhammer world, even something as familiar as a stone wall can offer all manner of possibilities. Granted, the wall might just be a boundary line of some kind - but there's probably more to it than that. It might be the remains of a mighty Bretonnian castle warded against the Undead. Or it could be that the wall was made from stolen grave markers, and unquiet spirits linger nearby Perhans the wall is the remains of some calcified Daemon just waiting for a manical charge to being it back to life. There are dozens upon dozens of possibilities. and that's just a wall. You'd be hard-pressed to find something more ordinary in the normal run of things - but this is the Warhammer world, and almost nothing here is normal.

Over the next few pages you'll find some complex of terrain rules, covering the mundance through to the arcane. Many of the terrain pieces in the Warkammer range base specific rules that apply to them, and you'll find that whatever you have in your terrain collection there will be suitable rules here, or at least impiration for devising your own. The rules for placing terrain pieces on your tabletop can be found on page 142.

OPEN GROUND

Open terrain is the most prevalent type of huntlefeld terrain and thus the 'default's string – any terrain not specifically classed as something else is to be treated as open ground. All the rules as presented thus fin assume that your game is being played on open terrain – grassy fields, sundy flays, sun-petided earth, and so co. It therefore doesn't affect the game, and we don't need to servide are further detail.

IMPASSABLE TERRAIN

Impassable terrain covers those areas of the board that or warrisp sphysically cannot enter as a matter of coarse, or to which they cannot exect entry without an immediate and probably messy death. Impassable terrain therefore covers uch thing as lare fields, deep lakes or chasms. Units cannot voluntarily erner, more or cross work of the second second second second second around. Remember that units can flee through impassable terrain, though thry will have to take Dangerosa Terrain texts if they do so (see page 25 and opposite for death).





High Elf Champion

MYSTERIOUS TERRAIN

Not all terrain surrenders its secrets to a mere visual appraisal – sometimes the only way to find out its properties is to venture inside...

DANGEROUS TERRAIN

Some areas of terrain are incredibly treacherous and present a very real risk to life and limb. When a model marches, charges, fnecs, overruns tream, it is called upon to kac a Dangerous Terrain test – roll a D6. On a 2-6, the model accessfully negotiates the dangero of the terrain and reaches its destination after and suffered a terrible resistance of the stream of the stream around a sufference of the stream of the terrain and reaches its destination after an avoid with no aromour aves allowed.

A mounted warrior has many advantages over his footslogging commdes, but does risk being thrown from the saddle when riding at speed. A galloping home can trip on a tree root, hurling the rider into a boulder, or can duck low under a branch, but also not quite low enough for the rider... As such, varyler, montrous cavally and charios trent all terrain other than open ground a being dangerous terrain, as described above. A chariot that fails a Dangerous Terrain test suffers De Wonds instead of 1.

The Importance of Definition

Always agree the types and boundaris of your goning, tervain width year apponent before the basile begins. This is perhaps obvious, but what can users like a fairly uninportant deall at the same of the game can quickly become a matter of victory or defait. A frew winnets' distantion to cover othat and piece of terrain represents could area a lot of petential confusion (and even arymemeth) as the game worldshi

Defining the terrain on this band case straightforward. There are now Arease Roise (1) served mult firsts (3: 6: 6), and a long form (3) obtains have been able by posibles two smaller forests together. Though there area's any rules for a caree (6), twe're chosen to trent it are a Hausset Maximus. The band is compared by two buildings, resided but capable, garrison (7 and 8), a longth of wall (9) and a Warast's Theore (10). On the following pages you can find the rules for all of the terrois monoismal have.

HILLS

Hills are natural outcrops of rock and earth. Few pieces of terrain are as strategically important as a hill. From its slopes your troops can rain missile fire down upon the foe, or form a battleline upon its crest.

All hills use the rules given below.

HILLS AND MOVEMENT

Unless otherwise stated, hills are treated as open ground. Amongst other things, this means that hills do not cause Dangerous Terrain tests in cavalry and other mounted models.

HILLS AND SHOOTING

Models on a hill are more likely to be able to trace a line of sight past other models on a lower level, making hills practical vantage points for your missile troops (see page 10 for a reminder of how line of sight works).

HILLS AND CLOSE COMBAT

Remember that if your unit charged and the majority of the models in the unit began the turn uphill from the enemy unit(s) that were charged, you receive ±1 combat result.

EXAMPLES OF HILLS

Hills have almost infinite variety. They can be different shapes, varied heights and composed of diverse materials.

ANVIL OF VAUL

The legrads of Ulibaus toft that when the Domous for brack in the work, the motivoped Vial domendary from the heavenet. It is said that he trended to every once of the globe, assign some awestil, from the Tering rock apon which he capital dated of great patterns, which the EVers and to defaul their realms. Though the coopons and their vanishes the trendent is use parts and a second of the avestil remain. More prunings na an Avesi of Vialo heavest a survively support with investillar constantances.

Any unit within 6" of an Anvil of Vaul has both magical attacks and the Flaming Attacks special rule.

SCREE SLOPE

The slopes of this hill are covered with loose shards and splinters of rock, making the going incredibly treacherout. Many approaches to Decarf holds are flanked by such slopes, providing an extra layer to their defence.

Models charging, marching, fleeing, pursuing or overrunning up, down or through a scree slope must take a Dangerous Terrain test.

TEMPLE OF SKULLS

There are many solvely sites dedicated to the scorrhip of the Chase Goda and this is but one of them. Rain and scorr may have laid it totate, have scattered its traphies and tambled its grim statues, but the gazes of the Dark Gods still rest upon its battered stores, hungeily seeking a weae champion to bend to their perverse assumentst...

At the beginning of each player turn, any character or characterison on the Tample of Skulls can choose to emberse the favour of the Charo Gods. If the does, roll a D6. On a roll of 2-6, one randomly chosen characteristic increases by D3 points. On a 1, the Charos Gods take his soul or his purcheateric comades turn on him) – remove the model as a casualty with no saves of any kind allowed.

A Chaos Sorcerer and an Empire Captain face one another atop the Temple of Skulls – will one of them call upon the Chaos Gods for aid!

FORESTS

Forests are excellent places for troops to lurk in ambush – the choking foliage offers a great deal of protection against missile fire.

and the sol

All forests and woods use the rules given below.

FORESTS AND MOVEMENT

If a cavalry, monstrous cavalry or chariot model marches, charges, overruns, flees or pursues through a forest, it must take a Dangerous Terrain test (page 117). Models with the Flyer special rule that begin or end a flying move in a forest must take a Dangerous Ferrain test.

FORESTS AND SHOOTING

A unit in a forset counts as being in off cover (see page 41) provided that the majority of its models are within the forset. Similarly, if a model in a shooting unit has to trace its line of first through a forset (because it's shooting at a target beyond the forset), then the target benefits from soft cover. This applies even if during the game you rearranged a forset's trees around a unit, or even removed them – just imagine the trees are still in their original position.

This penalty does not apply if the shooting model is drawing a line of sight out of a forest it is in.

FORESTS AND CLOSE COMBAT

It is difficult to form tight ranks when fighting in a forest. A unit with the majority of its models fighting in a forest can therefore never be steadfast (unless it is Stubborn.) On the other hand, units of Skirmishers (and hone infantry characters) are always Stubborn if the majority of their models is in a forest – light troops excel in the unevent terrain of woodland.

MYSTERIOUS FORESTS

Forests are mysterious terrain – who knows what hellspawn lurks in there? As soon as a unit enters (or deploys in) the forest, roll to determine what sort of forest it be.

De

- 1 It's an 'ordinary' forest. Phew!
- 2 Abyssal Wood.
- 3 Blood Forest.
- 4 Fungus Forest.
- 5 Venom Thicke
- 6 Wildwood.

ABYSSAL WOOD

A cloud of malice lies over this wood, provoking irrational fears and dark imaginings in the minds of those that enter.

A unit with the majority of its models within an Abyssal Wood causes Fear.

BLOOD FOREST

Though these trees slumber fitfully through the cycles of the coorld, nearby use of magic infuses them with bloodlust...

Whenever a spell is successfully cast by (or at) a model in a blood forest, all units wholly or partially within it suffer D6 Strength 4 hits as the trees go into a feeding frenzy.

When any hits have been resolved, the Blood Forest moves 2D6" in a random direction, moving around any intervening terrain features by the shortest route. This does not move the models that were in the Blood Forest, it simply 'valks' off, and leaves them behind.

FUNGUS FOREST

These trees are infested by a chromatic array of muchrooms. It's best not to breathe in too deeply...

Any unit at least partially within the Fungus Forest is subject to the rules for Stupidity. Any Goblin unit at least partially within the Fungus Forest is also Stubborn.

VENOM THICKET

Poisonous creatures abound within. Provided you do not succumb to it first, their wenom can be used against the for.

Any model in a Venom Thicket has the Poisoned Attacks special rule (applies to close combat attacks only). However, any model moving through a Venom Thicket must take a Dangerous Terrain test, to represent their attempt to fend off the venomous critters within.

WILDWOOD

To walk beneath the twisted boughs of a Wildwood in folly indeed, for the trees are wrathful.

Roll for any unit at least partially within the Wildwood at the end of the Movement phase. On a 4+, the unit suffers D6 Strength 4 hits.



Forest Goblin Spider Rider



River Trol

RIVERS

The reassuring and impeding flow of a river can help an army protect its flank or otherwise slow the enemy advance. Launching an assault across a river is no easy task, and often the fords, bridges and other crossing points become crucial objectives for the opposing armies.

All rivers use the rules given below.

RIVERS AND MOVEMENT

The crushing weight of the water makes it impossible to march through a river. Movement is otherwise unaffected.

RIVERS AND COMBAT

River make for very treacherous footing and, as such, are about the last place a ranked-up unit wants to conduct its battles. A unit at least partially in a river can never be steadfast (unless they are Stubborn). Additionally, units even partially in a river cannot chaim rank bonus.

BRIDGES AND OTHER CROSSINGS

Most rivers have at least one place at which they can be crossed, such as a bridge or a ford. Such crossing points should normally be treated as open terrain, but only if the unit attempting to use the crossing point is in a narrow enough formation to fit across, otherwise treat the entire unit as being in the river! Whether or not a unit is narrow enough will normally be fairly clar.

MYSTERIOUS RIVERS

Rivers are mysterious terrain – it might look like water, but is it really? As soon as a unit enters or deploys in the river, roll on the following table to determine what it has put its collective feet in.

- Even though the rules presented here refer to rivers, they can also be used for other shallow coater features that might appear on your battlefield, such as takes, pouds or the tidal relation of a for earthing

Not only rivers

For example, you could model the forbidden Lac Sarquinasis in Beretonnia, volone shores are the rules for the River of Blond, or allocs your models to usade through the coopy coaster on a coastal gaming board, using the Raging Torrent rules to represent the surf.

It's probably just a normal river. Don't drink the water though.

- 2 Boiling Flood.
- 3 Necrotic Ooge.
- 4 Raging Torrent.
- 5 River of Blood.
- River of Light.



BOILING FLOOD

This river's waters are boiling with incredible fury – it's best to cross quickly, lest you never leave the river at all.

Any model at least partially in the boiling flood at the end of any turn suffers a Strength 4 hit with no armour saves allowed. Models that are immune to Flaming Attacks do not suffer from this effect.

NECROTIC OOZE

Only the stench of this thick and lifeless sludge can compete with its toxic wiralence. Those crussing this river had best hold their breath.

Necrotic coze counts as dangerous terrain for all models. Additionally, a unit that moves through necrotic coze gains the Poisoned Attacks special rule until the end of the following player turn, so vile are the waters that cling to their blades.

RAGING TORRENT

The icy rivers of the high mountains run clear, pure and very swift indeed.

A raging torrent is dangerous terrain. However, such are the invigorating effects of the icy waters that any models that are in the river (or left the river earlier in the turn) have +3 Initiative.

RIVER OF BLOOD

When the rivers of the world turn to blood it is a sign that Khorne has regained ascendancy at the head of the wholy pantheon of the Realm of Chaos. The time of the Blood God has come!

A unit that moves or charges through a River of Blood is counted as causing Fear until the end of the following player turn, so ghastly is their blood-slicked appearance.

RIVER OF LIGHT

This is no mere river, but a revirling and seething mass of Light Magic.

When a unit enters a River of Light, it is immediately the target of a randomly chosen Light Magic spell (see the Reference section). The spell is automatically cast and cannot be dispelled. If the spell has a choice of different casting values, it is assumed to be cast at the lower value.

MARSHLAND

A battle in a marsh can easily end in disaster – the footing is unstable, the mud clings to weapons and as many warriors drown as are hacked apart by the foe. Marshes are therefore best employed as traps to suck your enemy into, rather than bastions from which to fight.

All marshland use the rules given below.

MARSHLAND AND MOVEMENT

Marshland is dangerous terrain for all units, other than those with the Skirmish special rule. Cavalty, monstrous cavalry and chariots that enter marshland fail their Dangerous Terrain tests on a 1 or 2, rather than a 1.

EXAMPLES OF MARSHLAND

Although all marshland is dangerous, its nature (and degree of the peril) can vary greatly.

EARTHBLOOD MERE

Rate magical power of the lifewind Ghyran bubbles through the waters of this marsh.

Any unit with the majority of its models within the mere has Regeneration (6+).

KHEMRIAN QUICKSAND

The burning desert hides a multitude of traps. Many an uncoury courrior has been sucked to his death by the shifting sands of Khemri – the larger the victim, the more certain the fate.

A monster, monstrous infantry or monstrous cavalry model that fails its dangerous terrain test for Khemrian Quicksand is removed as a casualty with no saves of any kind allowed.

MIST-WREATHED SWAMP

The vapours of this secamp hang in the chill air, hiding those within from the gaze of their enemy. Yes who knows what horrors lurk within the mist, just waiting to pownec?

If the majority of a unit's models are wholly within a mist-wreathed swamp, the unit counts as being in hard cover.

However, at the end of each Movement phase, the unit must pass an Initiative test, or have D6 models dragged to their doom by the monstrous Fimir lurking in the mist (the victims are selected in the same manner as the allocation of shooting hits).

Dwarf treasure-hunters risk the wrath of the Tomb Kings in order to seize the secrets of the Nehekharan Sphynx!



Over the Hedge

When you're fighting a case over a wall or hedre, wa'll have to apply a little summing in order to spork out which models can fight, and tabo they can strike bloces against. The reason? Well, as your two units aren't actually in base contact. the base contact resuld be if the scall speren't there. The solution? Well, if the reall int? rlund down to the hattlefield then you can just techick it ateau units into true base contact to resolve the issue. Once you know who's fighting, put the units and the scall back in their original positions, and have at it

OBSTACLES

This category covers all long and narrow terrain types, such as fences, walls and hedges.

All obstacles use the rules given below.

OBSTACLES AND MOVEMENT

If a cavalry, monstrous cavalry or chariot model marches, charges, flees, pursues or overruns over an obstacle, or charges an enemy on the other side of an obstacle, it must take a Dangerous Terrain test (see page 117).

Obstacles do not otherwise impede movement. If a unit ends its move with some of its ranks or files on different sides of the obstacle, simply place the models appropriately on both sides of the obstacle – the unit suffers no ill-effects.

OBSTACLES AS COVER

An obstuck offers a greater measure of protection against mixils free to model histing behind in If a firer is shooting at a model that is behind an obstuck and in base contact with it, the target model cours as in cover (of the appropriate type), regardless of how much of its validle above the obstack. We assume that the warrior takes shelter behind the obstack. When mixes the behind the obstack in order to benefit from this additional protection.

Firing models that are themselves in base contact with an obstacle may ignore it for the purposes of line of sight, just as if the obstacle was not there – they will lean over it as they fire.

OBSTACLES AND COMBAT

If one of your units is charging an enemy who is touching the other side of an obstack, the obstacle counts as 'defended'. Measure the charge distance to the obstacle, rather than the enemy unit. Similarly, if the charge is successful, move your unit into contact with the obstacle rather than the unit itself.

Essentially, we assume the enemy push forward to fight over the obstacle — your models count as being in base contact with the enemy behind the obstacle, as if it wan't there, and must charge in such away as to maximise the number of models from both sides that can fight, using the normal rules for charging that are presented on page 20.

To represent the formidable defensive position offered by the obstacle, any models from a changing unit that are in base contact with an obstacle (or are providing supporting attacks for a model in base contact) will suffer penalties depending on the type of obstacle. This modifier only applies when the unit charges, not in subsequent rounds of the combat.

If the charged unit is not in contact with the obstacle, treat it just as you would for the purposes of movement. If threat sin't room for a a rank of charging models to fit between the obstacle and the charged unit, it is perfectly acceptable to remove the obstacle whilst the combat goes on (put it back again as soon as possible).



EXAMPLES OF OBSTACLES

Here are a few examples of obstacles you can use in your Warhammer games – this is by no means a definitive list, but should prove a fertile starting point for your own imagination.

BLAZING BARRICADE

The original blazing barricades were magical obstatics called into existence by High EJ mages as they fought for neuroical during the initial deaenonic invasions. Though that was nove thousands of years ago, the magic that evasted the blazing barricades still deadly within the ground.

Blazing barricades grant soft cover to units behind them. If a unit completes a charge against a defended blazing barricade, it immediately suffers one Strength 4 hit on each of its models in contact with the obstacle.

BLESSED BULWARK

It is common practice in the Empiry for a Warrise Practice Volcas and viscolis might here to surve in the hattle against the feal restature of Chaus. Such evolutions to large the distribution of the statil itself. Many farming field and fortress reads in the Empiry are Bounded by studii. constrained of station fragment from the Board Indiversity, and retain a proving of that posters.

Blessed bulwarks are obstacles that grant hard cover to units behind them, and a -1 To Hit modifier to charging models in base contact with them. In addition to this, models from the Forces of Destruction (see the Allies chapter on page 136) that are in base contact with the obstacle must have their Initiative.



FENCE

Fences are gnarled and twisted constructions of wood and lath, Though fences are chiefly designed to keep herd animals in a particular location, determined warriors can also use a fence as a rough balwark in order to keep enomies out!

Fences are obstacles that grant soft cover to units behind them, and a -1 To Hit modifier to charging models in base contact with them.

GHOST FENCE

A Ghost Fence is a barrier with little physical mbstance – merely a series of poles or posit upon vehich are hang accursed feither and totems to which daronomic or Undead spirits have been bound with forbidden spell. Only a brave or foolish coarrior crusses a ghost fence without good cause – or veithus powerful protective varials.

Ghost Fences are obstacles that grant soft cover to units behind them. A unit that is defending a Ghost Fence causes Fear in the first round of any close combat.

WALL

Walls are a common sight, serving as boundaries between fields, estates and even hurial sites. Though such a scall is seldom more than checkheight, it makes for an incredibly effective impromptu definitive position, and can save the coarrisor shelening in its lee from otherwise fatal encounters with arrows, crossboro bolts and bouchtor.

Walls are obstacles that grant hard cover to units behind them, and a -1 To Hit modifier to charging models in base contact with them.



BATTLEFIELD TERBAIN
MYSTICAL MONUMENTS

Thousands of years of struggle and conquest have left the Warhammer world stream with mystical relics, monuments and ruins. A battle will often be fought for the control or the defence of such a place, and for the awesome power it commands.

This is essentially a catch-all category for things that don't fit comfortably in other sections. Mysicial Monuments are best rearded as impossible terrain for the purposes of movement. Particularly large or complex Mystical Monuments might be made up of several terrain elements, such as hills or obtacles (see pages 118 and 122 for details).

EXAMPLES OF MYSTICAL MONUMENTS

As with the arcane architecture that follows later, the sky really is the limit for Mystical Monuments. Who knows what mighty magical constructs await discovery by your armies?

ALTAR OF KHAINE

Though his worship is now relegated chiefly to the chill land of Naggaruth, many altars conservated to the Elvon god of murder remain throughout the world. Warriors who fight in Khame's shadow do so with bloodbust accelemed in their smalls.

All units within 6" of an Altar of Khaine are subject to the rules for Frenzy – as soon as a unit moves out of range, the Frenzy is lost.

ARCANE RUINS

The stones of fallen temples still resonate with magical energy centuries after their final celebrants crumbled to dust.

Any wizard within 6° of an arcane ruin can choose to roll up to four dice when channelling, rather than one. However, if three or more dice come up as 6s, the wizard must immediately roll on the Missast table.

BANE STONE

Not even the most harmed of scholars borous the origins of the Bane Stones. Some folk maintain that the Boarmon valued them in tribute to their blasphenous gods, others that they are jagged hards of magic made monifor through correless sovers. Whatever the truth, to battle in a Bane Stone's shaders it is invite reaff dash, for the stones are hangery and first noals are their food.

Hits made against units within 6" of a Bane Stone have a +1 bonus to wound.

CHARNEL PIT

In a useful quarmining user a down brind is meeting provad to any the lackiest. Here the remainder, terral or proceedings and the stars, and ready and the stars of the stars of the stars, and roundy issues to down above the belowing of various days of the doad. Also, was made chared up its attract Neurosancer and other dark surverse file, end, down to rearrism. But in the stars the below printed with the ge? sometar, it is user to be limit fielded to the the ge? sometar, it is user to be limit with the ger stars attracted day, it prevers with lood poers and a largering which gainst that its star. If for its all has the benerat varies.

All units within 6° of the charnel pit suffer a -1 penalty to their Leadership. Undead units within 6° of the charnel pit have the Regeneration (6+) special rule to represent their easy access to replacement parts.

> A Dark Elf Sorceress calls upon the dread power of the Altar of Khaine.

ELVEN WAYSTONE

There are consultes Elever Wayshous instituted droughout the exord, ancient measurements the once debugshousing dipy of the children of Uhlman. Yet these treeying edifices are more than more marker of a number of pair. It is through the Waysmers that the Eleva inform execut magical energy from the world. A learned energy derained on an pin one Muganne's magical accreta and thus parlism its energies for his own sus.

Any Wizard within 6" of an Elven Waystone adds +1 to his channelling attempts.

IDOL OF GORK (OR POSSIBLY MORK)

Pour to agrant hatle, Ore raise crade ided of their franking date to that their division information of the amazement in the forthousing detructions. Many of these toking as completed from most and dates, and m are quickly scown aways by the elements. Some, though, are maple, hower from hatlese or the defaued nature of other races. There can stand against the susables for construct, allowing Mark (or possibly Gork) as assumerry that grandandar circe of the massive control of armst.

Any warriors fighting under the grim gaze of Mork (or possibly Gork) are infused with the greenskin gods' lust for battle. Units that start the turn within 6° of the Idol can re-roll a failed charge distance roll.

MAGIC CIRCLE

Ancient mannish ruins, raised to empower primitive rites, magic circles can dissipate harmful sorcery and offer protection to those nearby.

Units within 6^{*} of the Magic Circle have the Magic Resistance (2) special rule.

SINISTER STATUE

Willess teatchmen, set to stand sentinel over secret shrines by an aucient and unknoton force, these sinister statues take exception to interlopers in a most forceful fashion.

At the start of each player turn, roll a dice for every unit within 6" of the Sinister Statue.

On a 4 or more, nothing happens – the statue either doesn't notice the unit, or recognises it as an ally of its forgotten master. On a 1-3, beams of light blaze out of its stone eyes – the unit suffers D6 Strength 4 hits.

SORCEROUS PORTAL

A sorcerous portal is prone to appear where certain contours of hill and walley funnel the Winds of Magic in unexpected ways. Many are caged and harnested by ambitious sorcerers, but wood and stone cannot easily contain rato magic.

At the start of the Magic phase, after power and dispel dice have been generated, but before spells are cast, the sorcerous portal belches forth energy in the form of a spell. Roll 2D6 on the table below each time to see what spell is cast.

- 2-4 Soulblight (Lore of Death)
- 5-6 Wyssan's Wildform (Lore of Beasts)
- 7 Plane of Rust (Lore of Metal)

8-9 The Speed of Light (Lore of Light) 10-12 Fireball (Lore of Fire)

The spell does not need line of sight, always targets the closest unit (regardless of range, if the unit is in combat and so on, is automatically cast and cannot be dispelled. If the spell has a choice of casting values, it is assumed to be cast at the lower value.

WYRDING WELL

It is said that Wyrding Wells are set upon sites where the blood of the world bubbles to the surface. This amber liquid has magical, if unpredictable, properties and is a prized ingredient in many potions and elixirs.

Providing it is not in combat, a unit within 3" can drink from the well at the end of its Movement phase. Roll a D6 on the following table to discover the outcome of the unit's incaurious imhibing:

- Magical Poisoning. Models in the unit cannot make any voluntary action (including shooting, casting spells, channelling, using magic items and so on) until the start of the following turn, whilt crosinous voniting ensues.
- 2-4 Ailments Banished. The unit immediately recovers 2D6 wounds' worth of models, as described for the Lore of Life Regretation spell (see the Reference section).
- 5-6 The Gift of Oddreion. The coursing earthblood erases all fear and sensation from the minds of the drinkers. The unit is subject to the rules for Stupidity and is Unbreakable for the remainder of the game.



High Elf Man

BUILDINGS

Buildings are, evidenta doubt, amongst the most important pieces of terrain on a buildfield, They offer substantial perceives to those wisels, are a good contage point for models that can make ranged attacks. Warriser firmly encouned in a building can only be driven out by a determined assault.

As with other terrain elements, players should identify at the start of the game all pieces of terrain for which they are going to make use of the buildings rules given here. This is important, as during the game these rules may give a clear advantage to some units.

As with any terrain pieces, a small amount of common sense will go a long way when dealing with buildings. Players may agree to treat some buildings as impusable (very small once, voltose with a stange shape, for counsel). Similarly, players may want to divide very large buildings into sweeral parts, each of which counts as a separate building for the purposes of the following rule. We'll discuss that in a little more detail later – for the moment, let's take a look at the overall rules for buildings.



BUILDINGS AND MOVEMENT

For the most part, buildings act as impossible terrain (the rules for which were given earlier in this chapter). Thus said, we do allow units to enter buildings and 'garrisof' them. This might seem a bit strange, but's hice and clear in terrms of rules. Basically, we don't want units moving through a building as if were not there, and nor do we want them 'sitting' on top (in fif's) a building and you're a unit, you're either garrisoning, or not in contact with is – mice and clear.

GARRISONING A BUILDING

A unit can enter and garrison au unoccupied building if it can move into base contact with the building during the Mecement plane. Some members of the regionest are just to big – members of the regionest are just to big inmembers of the regionest are just to big inmention and warms can garrison a building famember that ursu we heats, monitorias beasts and warms can garrison a building in garge 10%. Units cancer garrison a building in weifing gening a formation of readed up torops into a building in one easy.

When a unit gerriene a balding, you'll sommly find that there's not enough room for the models in or on the structure (or that placing them in the balding just to kook silly). It's perfordly acceptable to place as representative model from the unit in one or next to the balding to remind you that the unit is inside unitand hearmar such beats for infinity, and place the next of the unit aside from the address in the lower companding through a statistic in the lower companding through a statistic in the lower companding through and your encoment as the ensure news on.

ONLY ROOM FOR ONE

Each building can hold a single unit of any size and any characters that have joined it – once garrisoned, no other units can enter the structure unless the previous terams have left (or been driven out). Note that characters can join a garrison unit by moving into base contact with the building.

BATTLEFIELD TERRAIN

ABANDONING A BUILDING

A garrison unit can exit a building in their Remaining Moves sub-phase, though not in the same turn that it garrisoned the tructure. Place the unit it any desired formation, with at least one model in (its year rank touching the buildings to model in the unit may be placed more than twice its normal Movement distance from their building. The unit may not move any fraction of their building. The unit may no move any fraction of their building. The unit may no move any fraction of the narm that it exits a building. The 's to builty excertising its building there a building to team of the gar out of a building, for example.

A unit that is Frenzied, or is otherwise forced to charge, still cannot do so if it is in a building – it must instead exit the building as close as possible to the enemy instead of charging.

BUILDINGS AND MAGIC

Buildings do not offer any additional protection against magic missiles, spells that affect the entire unit, that target individual models, etc. Spells that use templates and damage inflicted by Miscass will follow the rules given later for templates, hitting D6 models. Wizards inside a building may cast spells as normal following the rules for line of sight and range given blow.

BUILDINGS AND SHOOTING

Most buildings can easily be pressed into service as impromptu firebases. Most have plenty of windows, doors or otherwise gaping holes in the structure through which a warrior can poke a crossbow or other such ranged weapons. Even if there aren't any pre-existing firepoints in a building, the garrison can normally knock their own loopholes in the wall as needed.

A garrison unit can shoot in the Shooting phase, tracing line of sight from any point on the building. The forward are of the garrison unit is assumed to be 360 degrees (i.e. all around) so we don't need to worry about that either. The range for a garrison's shooting attacks is always measured from the closest point of the building.

FIVE PER FLOOR

When a garrison unit shoots, there are only so many vantage points to shoot from. We normally assume only five models can shoot per floor of the building, although you may want to agree a different number with your opponent before the game begins.

SHOOTING AT A GARRISON UNIT

Energy models can shoot at the building's apprices, provided that they can trace line of sight to the building and that it lies within their forward are. Naturally, we assume that the building included provides a certain amount of protection, so we tract the garrison and sheing in hard cover, - shots are otherwise nesl-build protection, and the garrison unit is considered to be too spread out to be affected ranks, such as bolt throwers - shooting attacks of this name will only the one model.

TEMPLATE WEAPONS

Weapons that use a template, such as a stone thrower or cannon, inflict D6 hits on any unit in a building this touched by the template. If a building is hit by a stone thrower, these hits are resolved at the higher Strength only if the centre of the template lies over the building, otherwise the lower Strength is used instead.

For example, a building is hit by a canoonball. The unit inside suffers D6 Strength 10 hits. As the canoon has the Multiple Wounds (D6) special rule, all unsaviel vounds will multiply to D6.

ASSAULTING A BUILDING

The only way to take an occupied building is by the blocky thetic of commig in with one of sysur units. This is called an assuit, Each occupied building may be assued by a single unit during each. Moreover, phys. C. The same the during each of the system of the same takes and the system of the same takes and the system is impaired to survey the takes and the charges a gainet a building, as the sea smalling units is impaired to survey only one can complete the charges of the controlling pleyer design the same the complete building. The set of the system of the controlling pleyer design of the system o

An assault charge is resolved just as if the building were the target unit. If the unit's charge distance is equal to or greater than the otherwise the charge is failed as normal. A unit that is assaulting the building, it is successful, otherwise the charge is shown of the starcharge another target at the same time $-\pi$ must wheel to bring as many models as possible into contex with the building and close the door in such a manner that it does not contact any enny units whem the charge is completed.

Just how many can we fit in here?

You'll whice that the rules do not place a limit on the unsuber of models that can fit in a particular bolding. This is quite deliberate – remember that a garrian does not have to look like it's capable of fitting in a building – some of the varrious could be in a baument, or standing garant outside.



CHARGE REACTIONS

A particum unit can only choose the Held or Shoul and Shout's izonat choose to Fleel – it would take far longer for the garrinos to cit the building than for the energy to flow around the inferrent text will not cheer a garrinos to Fleel – if's better to face a mind-numbing peril with fore solid walls around upot Accordingly a garrino that fails in Terror text does not free a sourcell, but is forecast of Held. It flows, however, counts a kaving automatically field in Face true at the storing the combined conduct.

FIGHTING THE ASSAULT

An assault isn't resolved in the same manner as a regular combat, as the two units involved are not in base contact with one another. Rather, we assume that a swirling melee takes place around the building's door, windows and other entryways, with the best fighters from either side pushing their way forwards into the fray.

It's hard to maintain the impetus of a charge in a confined area, so models assaulting a building lose all charging bounses. This means, for instance, that they do not receive the normal +1 combat result, gain no bonuses for lances and similar weapones, and do not make Impact Hits.

Who Can Strike?

At the start of the Close Constant phane, before models from their unit to form the comprose sumplays are structed, both players choose ten models from their unit to form the comprose sumplay that will apple in the assault (of the unit numbers less than ten, there is no choice). Most of the time that will mean ten identical warrison, or at least atime warrison and the unit chaption, will form the assault party on each shift in the samalt, have short here are bottomer year jargenerat. When it makes its difference, players should real of to determine which is die picks have sample party first.

We is Bigger dan Dem ...

As we limit the number of models due to a lack of space brought on by the cramped surroundings of a building, it would be unfair to allow, say ten Ogres to attack in the same space as ten Goblins. Therefore, monstream infinity/covalry/beats models each count as there models where selected for a sawall party, and a monster (including any riders) counts as free models.

Allocating attacks

Blows are struck in Initiative order as normal and, unless the player specifics obtrives, are directed against any rank-and-file models involved in the assualt. If characters, champions, or other models that can normally be singled our of they are in base contact are involved in the assault, then up to half the enemy models can bloose to attack them (as often such hereas will be performing derring-do in the thick of fighting, at downsy or attop attavells).

Note that casualties are taken from the 'back' of the unit as normal. If one side suffers casualties before it fights, extra models are assumed to step up and join the assault party in place of failen comrades, assuming there are enough lett of hight, assuming there are enough lett to do sol



Challenges

A single challenge may be issued and accepted as normal, but only models chosen as part of the two sides' assault parties can issue, accept and refuse challenges – you can't use the challenge to increase the number of models fighting.

Special Attacks

For special attacks (such as stomps) and items that affect models in base contact, a model fighting in a building is assumed to be in base contact with one enemy model nominated by the enemy player unless fighting in a challenge, of course, in which case they are in contact with the model they are fighting!

COMBAT RESOLUTION

The victor of an assumi is aclassified as for a points can only be scored by inficiency counds (including overlath) woods coved in a challenger; if there are any). Standards, ranks, finds, and rare brouses, and so on do not apply (the last two primarily lecutes a unit in a building cannot rarally be aid to have a flank or rara). A musician will still win a drawn combus, however th sparsh this follows on to gratter efforts). Otherwise, the close combat result is build query or a standards.



Lizardman Temple Guard

Defender Loses

If the attacker wins, the defender must take a Break test. Note that units garrisoning buildings are always considered steadfast.

If the defender fails the Break test, then the garrison unit is placed outside, directly opposite the assaulting unit, as described for a unit abandoning a building (see page 127). If this cannot be done, place it as near as possible to this position. It then makes its fleeing move as normal.

The attacker cannot pursue, but can enter the building if its controlling player wishes (and is of a troop type that is permitted to enter the building). If the unit does not enter the building its moved directly backwards 1".

Other outcomes

If the garrison doesn't flee the building, either because they've held the attacker to a draw or beaten them, or have lost the combat but passed their Break test, then the attacker must windrawn from the assual, and is madged directly backward 1⁻. The close combat ends, and the he wishes another attempt at driving the garrison out. The assaulting unit does not have to take a Break test if the combat was lost. The warriors in the attacking unit know full well that the garrison cannot run them down if the combat goes poorly and automatically retreat in good order with no chance of a rout.

BUILDINGS AND PANIC

Units garrisoning buildings take Panic tests normally – measure distances to the edge of the building. If the test is failed, they flee as described for units that break from combat.

In the same way, a unit that breaks from combat in a building, is destroyed while garrisoning a building, and so on. can trigger Panic tests in friendly units as normal.

MULTIPART BUILDINGS

The rules given here assume that your building is of a fairly small size (less than $\delta^2 \propto \delta^2$) and composed of a fairly homogenous structure (i.e. is made out of the same kinds of materials). None of this is to say that you carit use bigger or more complicated buildings in your games, but you'll probably want to break them down into several sections, each to be treated as its own building, which can be occupied and assumbed separately: The fortified manor below is a large and impressive building and taill certainly require defaulty before the game begins. We've decided to split it into the fullocomy sections:

Using their appearance as a point, the version backed are transate are walk (1), forces (2), and Riscal Balewick (3), as detailed use page 123. The trees which are page 123. The trees which are page 123. The trees which are page 14. All (2) is more the second back (2) is new of the means statistic are of the means statistic is and afferent statistic appreciase in accord to statistic appreciase in accord and display the statistic appreciase in the statistic appreciase in accord and consider that a statistic back (2) and (2) and (2) and (2) is allowed a limit a strain angle the node (2) and (2



ARCANE ARCHITECTURE

Buildings of great power or importance are plentful in the Warhammer world. Sometimes, this prominence comes from the magical nature of the place, at others, it comes from the resonance and sanctity awoken in the hearts of its defenders. Regardless, a battle fought over such a building will be a slaughter indeed.

A piece of arcane architecture can either be treated as a building or as impassable terrain (the doors are sealed by the defenders). Models that are inside Arcane Architecture are automatically in range of its effect.

EXAMPLES OF ARCANE ARCHITECTURE

Only your imagination can limit the types of arcane architecture you will battle over. Perhaps it's worth considering the kinds of buildings over which your army would be eager to fight?

ACROPOLIS OF HEROES

This ancient place was built long ago – perhaps it was rever valued by the Old Ones themselves. Amongst its wealls, half-buried by mess and rabble, lie the statues of fallen kings and hernes whose hold estence linger on.

Units within 6" of the Acropolis of Heroes are Stubborn. A unit garrisoning the Acropolis of Heroes gets +1 to hit in close combat.

DWARF BREWHOUSE

Description in the plane that more and roughe afferberrouges in the total of the Wardsmanner world. Todord, extrin armite have been beeness in make a disease it a herease; in order to parchase (or, more summally, acquire hy force of errors) a napply of boadly Donard (no. It is in largering, herebry, that must Donard (no. It is index accords hereing), that must Donard (no. It is index accords hereing of dong, hat and are careful to plane accords hereing of dong, hat highly interesting ade, beyond the stalls as some as a marching army reserve view.

All units within 6° of a Donar Bererbouse have the Immute to Psychology and Stubbern special rules (the rich blend of hops, malts and secret ingreeliness renders them almost study insensate to normal form). During under a single defensive of it that brenebous are so finatically defensive of it that they are Unbreakhol, but must first pas a Landsreling test, with a \le modifier, if they want to move out of range of the building effects.

GRAIL CHAPEL

Grail Chapels can be found throughout the world. They are hull upon site schere Bretonnian Kuipht have encountered the Lady the Lake. Though Grail Chapels are often seemingly abandoned and ruinal, the power of the Lady permosate every store, focusing energies of remeval and reletisth.

All units belonging to an army from the Forces of Order (see page 136) within 6" of a Grail Chapel have the Regeneration (6+) special rule. Bretonnian units within 6" of a Grail Chapel also have the Stubborn special rule.

HAUNTED MANSION

Many an abandoned toxoer or mansion was once the abade of a Neuromancer, whose dark sorveries could only be practised in secret. The Neuromancer may be long gone, but the polterguists and revenants remain – a any who enter will doubless discover.

A haunted mansion is normally a building of some kind, but here's no reason why it car't be a ruin, or a cave. At the end of the Shooting phase, all units within 6° of the Haunted Mansion suffers D6 Strength 1 hits to represent the spectral strikes of the mansion's guardians. Due to the ghoot nature of these attacks, armour awsves cannot be taken against them. A

NEHEKHARAN SPHYNX

Long ago, the rulers of Nehekhara bound the trickster spirits of the deserts into great templet. Legond tells that those who entreat a Sphynes receive great poncor – if they can quench the spirit's thirst for trickery and deception.

At the start of each player time, the player whose time is is on choose of his characters within 6° of the Neichkaran Selyen to challenge the start is a radifice poorts. The challenger most take an individual selection of the challenger should the model suffers a woond, with no armour asses allowed. If the test is passed, the challenger reactions one of the following special methods, determined methods, for the rest of the radies, determined methods, for the rest of the challenger reactions one of the following special methods of the selection of the selection of the challenger reactions one of the following special methods of the selection of the selection of the method of the selection of the method of the selection of the s



Josef Bagman



SIGMARITE SHRINE

Signar Heldenhammer fought many battles to defend the nascent Empire from the forces of distruction. Though Signar has long insce passed, the folk of the Empire still believe that he voather over his land. This might be thought user superstition, save for the fact that will creatures seen rather more vulnerable cohen they draw news to a Signarity. Surine, ...

Any models belonging to an army from the Forces of Destruction (see the allies rules on page 136) must re-roll successful ward saves if they are within 6" of the Sigmarite Shrine.

TOWER OF BLOOD

The sealls of this torver constantly onze pulsing gore. The unnatural stench has a profound effect upon even the most feeble of fighters, engorging bloodlust and so transforming them into voracious slanghterers.

Units within 6" of the Tower of Blood have the Hatred special rule. Units from the Forces of Destruction within 6" of the Tower of Blood also have the Frenzy special rule – as soon as a unit moves out of range, the Hatred/Frenzy is lost.

WIZARD'S TOWER

Wizards are solitary folk, little able to abide the simplistic minds of the mundown multitudes. Little wonder therefore that the mightiest wizards construct great towers to serve as ladging, library and strongolod.

A Wirard who is within 3° of the rower at the start of the Magic phase is assumed to ramackthe tower's illenzy in search of additional spells — he is treated as knowing all the spells from his chocen lore(s) of magic for that phase. If more than one Wirard is within 3°, randomly choce which one has control of the tower at the start of each Magic phase (no room can hold two wirardly each) march of knowlede).



CHOOSING YOUR ARMY

So you've read through the rules, and now you're itching to start putting your generalship to the test. It's time to build an army.

ARMY BOOKS

Each of the races or realms in Warhammer has its own Warhammer Armies book.

In addition to being crammed full of history, information and inspiring painting guides, along with all the rules and characteristic profiles for the army in question, each Warhammer Armies book also contains an army list that you can use to forge your miniatures into an army:

POINTS VALUES

Every model in Warhammer has been assigned a points value, given in the relevant army list. Points values reflect a model's worth within its army.

The higher a warrior's points value, the better that warrior will be – it might be stronger, tougher, faster, have higher leadership, wear better armour, and so on.

A humble Empire Spearman is a fairly average soldier, costing around 5 points, whilst a mighty Dragon costs in the real mod 300. Most warriors have a basic cost that increases as you upgrade their equipment and abilities, giving you a wide range of options that you can choose to spend your points on.

By adding together all the points costs of the working you have selected you can find out the points value of your army. Kowing the points value of your models is important, as it gives you a handy way of rectoning your army's effectiveness. A housed of you handerd Gobbins can be just as mighty a force as a score of heavity amount Knights ---monthing not necessarily apparent from looking at the models themelyets. Most games of any equal points value.

SIZE OF GAME

To play a game of Warhammer, you and your opponent will need to decide the size of battle to fight – the larger the game you want to play, the larger the total points values of your armies. The total points value determines the maximum points you can spend on your arms.

For example, you may decide to play a 3,000point game, in which case the total points value of all models in each players' any must come to 3,000 points or less. Normally, this will mean that the armise will actually be a shade less than 3,000 points, as it's quite hard to spend every last point.

Quine what that value is will depend upon how how yow wart the game to take. At 2,000 to 3,000 points per side you'll have encough model of the harding, yet sum cough to be down in the an entertaining game, bar yet append at 1,000 points, or even lower. Soch harding somewilly take arrand an hour – perfect for a smaller warhanding games, or yet project. Such tarbing somewilly take arrand an hour – perfect for a smaller warhand in games, or yet project and the project at 1,000 the propertication's barrels, barrels are as a set of the propertication's barrels, barrels are as a providing encough ministruc rearge to occupy a goodly pertine of a day.



In the Balance

On a slight sangent, it's courds monitoring at this range that your gunne durk harve to be belanced - i.e. you dow't harve to harve the same nomber of points on bob rider. This is quite worstal, bandens you that samel by a hogheshy communeered defender a social charge of Light Brigade' propertions, or simply impose a handheap or a more experimental dayser.



Older Books

At the inne of veriting, some Warhammer Armite books contains a afferent army solection system from the one presented lows. Homewor, and in a one-off contradiction in the principle stated under Basic Rules and Advanced Rules (see page 11), the system included here replaces and takes precedence over solutierer system is printed in your Warhammer Armise book

THE ARMY LIST

With the points total agreed, players need to pick their forces using the army list in the relevant Warhammer Armies book, and the system presented here.

THE GENERAL

An army must always include at least one Lord or Hero to be its General.

Every army must have a General to lead it into battle. The General represents you – he issues the orders that lead to the moves, shots, spells and attacks that your troops make.

MINIMUM THREE UNITS

An army must always include at least three units in addition to any Lords and Heroes,

An army just isn't an army unless it has plenty of warriors in its ranks.

UNIT CATEGORIES

Each army list divides the forces available into several categories. In a standard game, players are limited as to how many of their points can be spent from any particular category.

LORDS

You can spend up to 25% of your points on Lords.

Lords are the most powerful characters in your army, individuals possessed of fearsome martial or magical might.

HEROES

You can spend up to 25% of your points on Heroes.

Heroes are lesser characters, not as intrinsically deadly as Lords, but still worth a score of ordinary warriors.

WIZARDS AND SPELL LORES

Some Lords and Herees are Wizards, and have access to one or more spell lores. Although you worf generate the spells that your Wizards know until you start to play your game (see page 142) you do need to make a nete in your army roster of which spell lore each of your Wizards will use. Fy you have a Wizard that is allowed to choose specific spells, you must select which spells they are at the time you give your arms

CORE UNITS

You must spend a minimum of 25% of your points on Core units.

Core units are the heart of your army, the iconic troops who make up the bulk of every warhand and warhost. Unlike other types of unit, there is no maximum to the proportion of your points that you can spend on Core units.

Some Core units do not count towards the minimum points you must spend on Core units (sometimes written as 'do not count towards the minimum number of Core units you must includde' or variations thereof) or indeed the minimum number of units you must include in your army. In fact, such units don't count towards any category just the points value of the army:

SPECIAL UNITS

You can spend up to 50% of your points on Special units.

Special units are invariably elite troops, capable of anchoring a battleline of lesser warriors, or performing great deeds in their own right.

RARE UNITS

You can spend up to 25% of your points on Rare units.

Rare units are the most unusual warriors in your army, mighty monsters, weird war machines and elite soldiers of unsurpassed skill. Rare units are often fantastically powerful, but often require a canny general to get the most from them.

SPECIAL CHARACTERS

The Worknammer Army hooks each include the rules for several Special Characters within their pages. They are famous, named war leaders and mighty mages, takes of whose legendary (or nefrations) deeds have travelled far and wide, such as the Emperor Karl Finne, Grom, the Paunch of Missi Mountain, the infamous Vanpire Lord Viad Mountain, the infamous Vanpire Lord Viad

Special Characters are exceptional individuals but, more importantly for our army selection purposes, they are unique – each can be included in an army only once.



Vight Gohlin Warburs

DUPLICATE CHOICES

An army cannot contain more than 3 Special choices of the same type and 2 Rare choices of the same type.

To further represent the scarce nature of Special and Rare choices there is a limit on how many duplicates of each troop type you can include in your army. This is only right and proper – while not every Empire army will contain the same number of Great Cannons, say, there will be an upper limit as to how many such machinery will be available. Remember, this limit applies only to duplicat Special or Rare unit choices of the same type, not to the total number of Special and Rare units overall.

For example, an Empire army with its maximum allocation of 3 regiments of Greatswords could also include a couple of Mortars, a pair of Great Cannons and some Pistoliers too – provided the points don't run out, of course.

Note that this limit applies to the basic troop type and ini't dependent on the size of the unit or optional wayzer. If a High Elf player takes one unit of 20 Silver Helms with shields, and one unit of 10 with shields, or one unit of 20 without shields, then he has still taken two units of Silver Helms – the difference in unit size or equipment does not matter.

Two Units For One Choice

Some units are listed as taking up a single choice, for example 1-2 Chaos System can be taken as a single Rare choice. As implied, this means that these two units count only as one choice. So a Warrison of Choas arm of 2,000 points could contain between 1 and 4 Chaos System. If it included 1 or 2, they would count as a single Rare choice, if it included 3 or 4 they would count as two Rare choices.

GRAND ARMY

In a grand army, you can include up to 6 duplicate Special choices and 4 duplicate Rare choices.

If choosing an army of 3,000 points or more, we consider this to be a 'grand' army, with enough patronage, cash or muscle to get a larger supply of scarce units: up to 6 duplicate Special choices, and up to 4 duplicate Rare choices.

For example, if the Empire army we discussed earlier was increased in size from 2,000 points to 3,000 points, it could then include as many as 6 regiments of Greatwords in addition to its other Special choices.





High Elf Noble

ARMY SELECTION SUMMARY TABLE

You must always include at least three non-character units, plus one Lord or Hero to be your General.

	POINTS LIMIT	DUPLICATE CHOICES	
LORDS	Up to 25%	No limit	
HEROES	Up to 25%	No limit	
CORE	25% or more	No limit	
SPECIAL	Up to 50%	Up to 3 (6 if a Grand Army of 3,000 points or more)	
RARE	Up to 25%	Up to 2 (4 if a Grand Army of 3,000 points or more.)	

HOOSING YOUR ARMY

ALLIED ARMIES

Worknamer is normally a clash between two mighty armies, striving for dominance yoon their chosen burfletchk, but this doesn't mean that it is a game solely for two players, on no: By combining several players' armies into alliances, if's possible for any number of players to join the burkle. Cannes involving allike will often traffier all wish to invest a narrediev to explain the transmission behind the alliances, or simply decide not to work about it and get struck in the game. It's entries you to you.

To forge your alliances, split the players into two teams. The teams don't need to have the same number of players, but if you're playing a game that uses points values (see page 132) it's best to give a findt hought to the relative sizes of the players' collections when assigning teams, so that you can be happy that the balance of the game is as you wish it to be. The players can now pick their armiss and hogin to play.

For example, five players (including the humble author) decide to play a multi-player game, with 5,000 points per side. Phil collects Ogres, Alessio has Skaven, Jervis has a Tomb Kings army, Jeremy has Orcs & Goblins and I collect Wood Elves.

We want to create a story to explain how this battle come about and decide that the Tomb Kinga sumy represents the Undead varies of an ancient harrow-king that was buried at the edge of the forest of Athel Loren – home of the Wood Elves. Covering the warpsone artefact that, according to legend, was buried with the barrow-king, the Skaven have bribed an Orc. The and hired an Oger encremary hand to sack the barial grounds. However, the Skaven have noc counted on the holsel reaction that their presence so close to Athel Loren would incrubab cause in the Wood Elivinbatrans.

Based on our narrative and the size of each player's armis, we therefore agree that 2,000points of Skuven 2,000 points of Orcs & Goblins and 1,000 points of Ogres will be on one side. On the other side there will be an unlikely alliance of 2,500 points of Tomb Kings and 2,500 points of Wood Eves.

ALLIANCE AND ALIGNMENT

Not all armise make natural allies – the Warkmanner work's history of blood and battle (to say nothing of dorp-held grudges, rampaging milhiles and incompatible worldrivens) ensures that some army combinations will mark for stronger alliances than others. To work out how harmonions and allance between two more different armits is likely to he, we first need to discuss the alignment of the Warhmanner world's armits – the age-did division between Order and Destruction.

THE FORCES OF ORDER

The armies of the Forces of Order are considered to have the same broad goals as one another (though the details may be different). Essentially, they are builders, not destroyers. The Forces of Order want prosperity and pace for their peoples, to build (or rebuild) their realms. It should be borne in mind, however, that bysaci's are sharine term. The Forerso of Order are not a united front, and spend much of their time pursuing border wars and settling matters of diplomitic insult with one another as they do buttling the Forerso of Destruction. Nonetheless, when dire times are loose upon the world, the Forees of Order inevitably set aside their differences to fond off the larger threat.

The Forces of Order are: the High Elves, the Dwarfs, the Wood Elves, the Empire, Bretonnia and the Lizardmen.



No.

White Liss Standard Bearer

THE FORCES OF DESTRUCTION

The Forces of Destruction seek only to topple civilisation, to shatter the shining cities of the High Elves, burn the towns of the Empire and despoil the Dwarf holds. Where the Forces of Destruction march, they leave only carange and sorrow in their wake. This should not be taken to mean that the Forces of Destruction are any more a unified alliance than the Forces of Order.

They are just as likely to battle amongst themselves as with a common foe, whether in appeasement of an unholy god, to further some despicable scheme or simply because their boiling blood lusts for constant battle.

The Forces of Destruction are: the Skaven, the Warriors of Chaos, the Beastmen, the Daemons of Chaos, the Dark Elves, the Vampire Counts and the Ores & Goblins.

NON-ALIGNED FORCES

All the realms and races we have discussed so for have been fairly easy to categorise. Politicking and backstabbing aside, each race presents a united front - their armies march either in civilisation's defence or to its destruction. There are, however, a handful of races whose alignment is not so easily judged. Opres, for example, are famous (or perhaps notorious) sell-swords and mercenaries, happy to fight for any master provided that the gold and orub keeps flowing in equal measure. Elsewhere, the Tomb Kings are less a united race than a series of ancient kingdoms, each acting to the dictats of its ruler. Such armies can march to war in service to the goals of either Order or Destruction

The Non-aligned Forces are: the Ogre Kingdoms and the Tomb Kings.

'But in my Army Book it Saus...'

Allinkain invariably trigger miller queations, monthly is du earbh kone he rules from som wards house he rules from som somey sinetaria ratio house of anorder milled armsp. With an anong special rules at them, 2D is impaciable at the source every kind of partial gata have to agreen a spatialise earbh year a sugment (1) andialises earbh year a sugment (1) andialises green in retion earties and allow green in retion earties and allow green in retion earties and have people allow (1) house during the the investment of a shark are people at in your grow, hour hy all ansaut find another may.

TRUSTED ALLIES

Units from different armiss, but which share the same alignment (i.e. either Order to Destruction – nonaligned units are always treated as being suspicion alike, as detailed later) are considered to be 'trusted' allows when they fight in an aliance. They are butting towards the same goal (or one so similar as makes to difference) and this common cause is likely reinforced by centurieseld oaths and the wight of a shared instory.

Trusted Allies units are treated as 'friendly units' from all points of view. However, if a rule only affects a specific race, it will not affect friendly units of another race.

This means that, to give some examples, Trusted Allies units:

- Can use an allied General's Inspiring Presence special rule.
- Can be joined by allied characters.
- Cause Panic tests in allies when they are destroyed, flee through allies, and so on.
- Are counted as being 'friendly' units from the point of view of targeting spells, abilities and so one. E.g. They can be targeted by augment spells, but not hex, direct damage or magic missile spells, and so on.

Bound by Blood

Trusted allies can use an allied battle standard's Hold Your Ground! special rule, but only if they are from the same rac/realm as the allied battle standard (in other words, chosen from the same Armies book). For example, a Dwarf unit could not use an allied High Elf army's battle standard, but could use an allied Dwarf army's battle standard.



MAGIC

If the alliance contains only Trusted or Suspicious Allies, power and dispel dice generated by the Winds of Mugic can be split between the allied armies as the controlling players wish, but this must be done before any spelleasting is attempted. Dice generated by channelling must only be used by the channelling Wizard's army, as must any dice generated by magic items, social abilities and so on.



Goblin Wolf Rid

SUSPICIOUS ALLIES

Units from the non-aligned farces are always considered to be supprisons allies – one can never entirely rely upon them. That's not to say either party necessarily has any reason not to trust the obter – they just cart'quite bring themselves to do so. This is true even in an aligne between two such armiss – u¹⁶ quite easy to imagine two Such armiss – u¹⁶ quite taking his eye off of the other even in the midst of battle.

DESPERATE ALLIES

Order and Destruction only find common cause in the most desperate of circumstances. Units from the Forces of Order always treat units from the Forces of Destruction as being desperate allies, and vice versa.

Units in your army treat desperate allies as enemy units that cannot be charged, shot or targeted with spells. The only time that desperate allies count as friendly units. In this case the desperate allies will be damaged as well, just like friendly units would.

MAGIC

If the allines contains one or more desperts alles, the power and disped for generated by the Winds of Magic must be split a sequilly as possible between the various alled armies. If the disc cannot be split equally, roll of the adactar any space theor. Doe generated by channeling must only be used by the channeling with and sample and by the generated by magic items, special abilities and so on. Not thet Wararks are not permitted to disped an enson yself that targets only despent allies.

FRAGILE ALLIANCES

Some races, specifically Skaven and Dark Elves, are so untrustworthy that not even their own kin can trust them for long. Worse, their manipulative presence tends to sour relations between other allied parties. An alliance that includes Skaven or Dark Elves is automatically a fragile alliance. Suspicious Allies work exactly like Trusted Allies, except that they:

- Cannot use an allied General's Inspiring Presence special rule.
- Cannot use an allied battle standard's Hold Your Ground! special rule.
- Characters cannot join units of Suspicious Allies.

This means that, for example, desperate allies units:

- Cannot use an allied General's Inspiring Presence special rule.
- Cannot use an allied battle standard's Hold Your Ground! special rule.
- Cannot be joined by allied characters.
- Have to take Dangerous Terrain tests when fleeing through allies.
- Are not counted as 'friendly' units from the point of view of targeting spells.
- Do not cause Panic tests in allies.



All relations in a fragile alliance start out normally, according to the various alignments. However, each player in a fragile alliance must roll a D6 at the start of his turn – on a roll of 1-3, all of that player's alliances immediately become one step worse for the rest of the game (unless they're already desperate allies).

1 State

Dark Elf Standard Bearer

GRAND ALLIANCE

The slips rules can be used for battles of all scales, from skirnishes of a few hundred points to shanghtere many thousands of points in size. To help lead a suitably epic scale to these larger armise, sue allocate that contains at least three armise, such of at least 2,000 points or more, is considered to be agrand alliance under the shreved command of a particularly charismatic or mightly hero. A grand allance uses all the normal ally rules presented earlier in this section. In addition, each side nominates one of their Generals to be their supreme commander – the head hondo by whose will the assembled warrior flight and die upon the field of combat. Such is the supreme commander's force of personality and voice of command, his Inspiring Presence range is doubled for the course of the battle!

Forces of Order	Forces of Destruction	Non-aligned Forces	
High Elves	Warriors of Chaos	Ogre Kingdoms	
Dwarfs	Beastmen	Tomb Kings	
Wood Elves	Daemons of Chaos		
Empire	Vampire Counts		
Bretonnia	Orcs & Goblins		
Lizardmen	Dark Elves		
	Skaven	1	

Trusted Suspicious Desperate		
		No
ies .		No
Yes	No	No
Yes	Yes	No
Yes	Yes	No
No	No	Yes
Yes	No	No
	Yes No	Yes No • No Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes No No

* Only if they are chosen from the same Armies book.

Orre Mancate

FIGHTING A WARHAMMER BATTLE

So you've read the rules, assembled your glorious army and are even now champing at the bit to unleash a smiting upon your opponent. That being the case, it's time to set up and play a Warhammer battle.

Two armies, met by chance or purpose, must now battle for supremacy? Who knows what grim deeds have brought them to this bloody ground? Whether they fight for glory, vengence, justice or the act of alungher itself bagin, and only the elimination of the for or the fail of right will bring it to an end. Of course, not all battles are the same – quite the opposite in fact – so we vary certain details, such as deployment and how the winner is determined. Doing this allows us to reflect the particular situation of the clash – classic battlelines, a fight in a mountain pass, the defence of a watchtower, and so on – creating a "scenario" for the game.



Cher of the grout kings about Marchanneer is that there are has of ofference stays to fight a halfs. Usiking grout like clear or checkers, takers abort is only one of the starting of the starting of the startifield over vehicles you will be as and be autofield over vehicles you will be as and fight will be different in every grow in fight, on usets to coperinse stability to summarize deployments, army start and even and growit makes are pushfilter radly are nedless. Utilisately, are imaginated in the low fill limit

FIGHTING A WARHAMMER BATTLE

The scenarios given on the following few pages represent pitched battles, where the armies are of roughly the same size and the situation gives neither side a particular advantage. They are each designed to give both sides an equal chance of winning, and have few, if any, scenario special rules. The second method is to discuss the matter with your opponent and agree which battle you both want to fight. This gives the maximum amount of choice and ensures that you don't end up in a scenario that neither of you wants to play.



There are two ways that you can choose which pitched battle to use. The first is to pick randomly; by rolling on the Pitched Battle table shown below.

- D6 Pitched Battle
 - 1 Battleline (page 144)
- 2 Dawn Attack (page 145
- 3 Battle for the Pass (page 146)
- 4 Blood and Glory (page 148)
- 5 Meeting Engagement (page 149)
- 6 The Watchtower (page 150)

Each pitched lattle contains the information you need to get at up and physite, barbon down into the following categories: The Armies (this will nearmally he no armies of equal points value, chosen using the system on page 132). The Barthefold, Deployment, First Turn, Game Length, Victory Conditions and Scenario Special Rules: This format governs all Warhammer scenarios – not just the ones froud in this values.



Impromptu Terrain

retting started. We've all used a or books and haddhoets to represent hills. The important phing is to get alcase of terrain on the table -Warhammer institubly alast

THE BATTLEFIELD

With your armias salasted the part thind you will need to do is to set up a suitable battlefield using the wardames terrain in your collection

Place at least D6+4 pieces of terrain upon the battlefield, choosing the pieces from your terrain collection (selecting which of the rules on mores 116-131 you will use to represent each piece).

Alternatively make at least D6+4 rolls on the Random Terrain Chart to determine what kind of terrain your army will fight over

RANDOM TERRAIN CHART 2D6 Result 706 Result Settlement of Order D3 buildings, D3 sets of obstacles, plus one roll on the Obstacles Steadfast Sanctum part of the Random Terrain chart roll a D6: 1 - Fence Steadfast Sanctum Roll a further D6-2 - Wall 1 - Grail Chapel 2 - Acropolis of Heroes 3 - Wizard's Tower 5 - Ghost Fence 6 - Roll again 4 - Sigmarite Shrine 5 - Eluen Waystone 6 - Dwarf Brewhouse Sinister Structure 10 Roll a further D6: 1 - Altar of Khaine 2 - Charnel Pit 3 - Bane Stone 4 - Haunted Mansion 4 - Sorcerous Portal 5 - Wyrding Well 5 - Idol of Gork 6 - Tower of Blood 6 - Marie Circle 11 Marsh Hill Roll a further D6: 1. 2 or 3 - 'Ordinary' Hill 4 - Temple of Skulls 5 - Scree Slope

Building A watchtower, mansion or other similar 'ordinary' building.

5

Mysterious Forest

Three 6" sections of one of the following obstacles -

- 3 Blazing Barricade
- 4 Riessed Rohwark

Mysterious River

Magical Mystery

- Roll a further D6:
- 1 Sinister Statue
- 2 Arcane Ruins
- 3 Nehekharan Sphynx

Roll a further D3:

- 1 Earthblood Mere
- 2 Khemrian Quicksand
- 3 Mist-wreathed Swamp

12 Encampment of Destruction

D3 buildings, D3 sets of obstacles, plus one roll on the Sinister Structure part of the chart.

Once you've determined the pieces of terrain your come will use roll off with your opponent Starting with the player who scored the highest. the players then alternate placing terrain pieces (or group of terrain pieces) until all the terrain has been placed on the battlefield.

Note that the Watchtomer scenario specifies the first piece of terrain that should be placed. If you roll this scenario and do not have a watchtower to hand, you'll need to use a different building or roll again for a different pitched battle.

DEPLOYMENT

ARC AND

With the armies chosen and the terrain set up, it's now time to deploy. Typically, a pitched battle will have two deployment zones marked out on man, as well as instructions governing how the forces should be deployed. Before you deploy any of your Wizards, remember to generate their spells, as described in the Reference section

ALTERNATING UNITS

Where a battle calls upon you to alternate deployment of units, roll off to see who sets up the first unit, and then take it in turns to deploy a single unit in your deployment area. All an army's war machines are set up at the same time (taking just one of the player's 'turns') but can be placed at separate locations in their deployment zone. All characters must be deployed last, again taking up just one turn, but may be set up in separate locations or units in their deployment zone. When using this method the players roll off to see who gets the first turn. but the player that finished deploying his army first is allowed to add +1 to his dior roll.

RESERVES

Some battles call for units to enter play as reserves. These units use the rules for reinforcements given on page 27. The following additional caveats also apply;

- · Units that are not normally allowed to move (certain altars or war machines spring to mind) are placed touching the table edge.
- · Characters can choose to either enter the battle on their own or as part of a unit they are allowed to join. If the battle uses dice to determine when and where reserves enter, state if the character is joining a unit before making any rolls. If so, make a single roll for both.

FIRST TURN

To find out which player takes the first turn, follow the instructions in the scenario. Different battles use different methods to determine which player takes the first turn. Some instruct you to roll off with your opponent, others depend on which player set up first.

GAME LENGTH

Most pitched battles run for six game turns, at the end of which the winner of the battle is determined using the Vietory Conditions. Some scenarios use alternate methods to determine the game length – where this is the case it will be clearly outlined in the scenario.

If should go without saying that if one player concedes the battle, the game ends and victory goes to his opponent. At this point the only gentlemanly thing to do is offer him a rematch!

VICTORY CONDITIONS

Each scenario has its own Victory Conditions by which players can judge who has won.

VICTORY POINTS

Many pitched battles use victory points as convenient shorthand for calculating the winner of a battle. In order to win you must either wipe the opposing army out completely, or score at least twice as many victory points as your opponent – any other result is a draw.

Victory points are, first and foremost, awarded for deatroying enery units, but other pivotal actions, such as alaying the enemy General, or capatiring their standards are also assigned victory point values, to represent their effect on the burth's uncome. Essentially, awithing that enheartens your army or demonalises your opponent's curs is worth victory points. Ar the end of the game, you are awarded victory points for the following achievement:

Dead or Fled

Each enemy unit that has been destroyed or has fled the table is worth a number of victory points equal to the number of points it cost to include the unit in the army.

For example, a unit that cost your opponent 351 points to field voould be voorth 351 victory points to you. This means you earn more points for destroying porcorful units then you do for weaker ones.

The King is Dead

If the enemy General is slain or has fled the table, you score an additional 100 victory points.

For example, a General that cost your opponent 234 points is worth a total of 334 victory points to you if he is dead or fled (234 victory points for his points cost, and 100 for being the enemy General).



Seized Standards

You score an additional 25 victory points for every enemy standard bearer that was removed due to the Lask Stand rule (see page 94), or was slain in close combat (remember this can only happen once the rest of his unit, except the champion, are dead). If the enemy Battle Standard Bearer is slain under these circumstances, his death instead scores an additional 100 victory points.

For example, a Battle Standard Baster that car your opposed 55 points to work a nated of 1955 viewer points for ho point can also also the points of the points paints for his point can also 1100 for how for the mere Battle Standard Barrey). Note that if a standard hower of say his his Wild by a showing tanks, spel for a synthysic doe nativide of does combat, there extra visitar points are not scored (the energy is asseed to visitar heir prired basters stray hefers your troops can get abid of 101.

Underdog Challenge

If one of your unit champions slays an enemy character in a challenge, you score an additional 50 victory points in recognition of his deeds.

For example, if one of your champions slays an enemy character coorth 92 victory points, you score 142 victory points (92 for the character's points cost and 50 for the Underdog Challengs).

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES

Some scenarios use unique special rules that confer extra abilities, restrictions or effects onto your games. We group all such elements into the Scenario Special Rules section, where they can be fully explained.

Building a Better Battlefield

While you can just plank your most out of your name you'll need to employ a little none. A burdefield not only dues this make the same more exciting, but it does a much setting. Similarly, you might poant to group similar terrain tieces mother to create a partitive for the buildings as a small village and use the wealls to define the edges of perhaps arrange your hills in such a toay that your armies stall be fighting across a valley or mountain nau? All of the hattlefields in this book have been set up with such a pumbilities are endless...



BATTLELINE

In the Warhammer world, disputes are settled upon the bloody field of battle. An abortive raid by an unruly warlord, a dispute over a piece of territory, or any number of a perceived slights can lead to two nations going to war. The conflict will he settled in a battle between the rival armies with the spoils soins to the victor. and death and dishonour to the loser.

THE ARMIES

Each player chooses his force using the army list from a Warhammer Armies book, to an equal points value agreed before the game.

THE BATTLEFIELD

Set up terrain as described on more 142

DEPLOYMENT

Roll off to see which player nicks the half of the table they will deploy in. The opponent will deploy in the other half

Players then take it in turn to place units on the table, using the alternating units method of deployment described on page 142. Units may be placed anywhere in their deployment zone that is more than 12* from the centre line.





FIRST TURN

Roll off after deployment to see which player takes the first turn. The player that finished deploying his army first adds +1 to his roll,

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for six game turns, or until a time limit agreed by the players is trached. whichever comes first.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

Use victory points to determine the winner of the battle, as described on page 143.

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES None.



A Timeless Classic

option, is a good choice for

standard, and, being the simplest

your first few names. It can be argued that all other scenarios

are a modified survive of this

DAWN ATTACK

When two armies first encounter each other they will usually make camp and wait until the next day before taking to the field of battle. As the first rays of light sweep the borizon the two sides will march forth, advancing through the doom towards the battle positions their generals have decided upon. Sometimes units will become confused and look (forcing their commander to modify his plan of battle.

THE ARMIES

Each player chooses his force using the army list from a Warhammer Armies book, to an equal points value agreed before the game.

THE BATTLEFIELD

Set up terrain as described on page 142.

DEPLOYMENT

Roll off to see which player picks the half of the table they will deploy in. The opponent will deploy in the other half.

The player that was the roll off must deploy his and rear may first. Before deploying each unit, roll a disc and refer to the Deployment table to see means the start of the start of the start of the means of the start of the start of the start deployment is compared. Character may either deployment is compared. Character may either deploy and the orange start of a unit they are discuss (see in the start) or start of the start deploy in the orange start of a unit they are allowed in playing (the start of the start for start allowed in playing (the start of the start for start densets with the start of the start for start of character with deploy.



Once the first player has deployed, his opponent must do likewise, rolling for each unit as described above.

FIRST TURN

After deployment, the player that set up second rolls a dice. On a roll of 6 he can choose who has the first turn. On a roll of 1-5 the player that set up first chooses who has the first turn.



GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for six game turns, or until a time limit agreed by the players is reached, whichever comes first.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

Use victory points to determine the winner of the battle, as described on page 143.

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES



Wood Elf Highborn

Deployment Table 1: Left Flank. The entire unit must be placed in the player's half, more than 12" from the centre line, and within 18" of the narrow table edge on the player's left.

2: Right Flank. The entire unit must be placed in the player's half, more than 12" from the centre line, and within 18" of the narrow table edge on the player's right.



3-5: Centre. The entire unit must be placed in the player's half, more than 12" from the centre line, and more than 18" from either narrow table edge.

6: Choose. The entire unit must be placed in the player's half, anywhere more than 12" from the centre line.



BATTLE FOR THE PASS

Many of the kingdoms of the Warhammer world are separated by towering mountain ranges that can only be crossed at the occasional mountain pass. These narrow defiles are of vital strategic importance, and present a defender with the perfect location to confront an invading arms.

THE ARMIES

Each player chooses his force using the army list from a Warhammer Armies book, to an equal points value agreed before the game.

THE BATTLEFIELD

Set up terrain as described on page 142. It's worth keeping in mind when setting up the terrain that the battle will be fought down the length of the table, in a narrow pass with impassable mountains just off each of the long table edges.

DEPLOYMENT

Roll off to see which player picks the half of the table they want to deploy in. The opponent deploys in the other half. Note that in this pitched battle the game is fought down the length of the table rather than across its width, as shown on the deployment map below.

Units may be placed anywhere in their half that is more than 12" from the centre line.

Players take it in turn to place units on the table, using the alternating unit method of deployment described on page 142.

FIRST TURN

Roll off after deployment to see which player receives the first turn. The player that finished deploying his army first adds +1 to his roll.

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for six game turns, or until a time limit agreed by the players is reached, whichever comes first.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

Use victory points to determine the winner of the battle, as described on page 143.

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES Bottleneck

The batte is being fought in a narrow pass enclosed by high Ciffs Because of this, the long table edges count as impassible terrain. Eddowing the normal rules, flexing units can force a vary through the impassible terrain and disaspert from the table (or disc trying!). Other unsis (including reinforcements) may no enter or laves via long table deg unless they are Ethered or a Flyer. This means that Etheresia and Flyers, must stop 1" away from the long table edges.





Chasen of Chase





BLOOD AND GLORY

The battles fought in the Warhammer world are bloody affairs. Eventually, worn down by destruction, one of the battlelines will break and flee, leaving their opponents in control of the field

THE ARMIES

Each player chooses his force using the army list from a Warhammer Armies book, to an equal points value agreed before the game.

THE BATTLEFIELD

Set up terrain as described on page 142.

DEPLOYMENT

Roll off to see which player chooses the half of the table they will deploy in. The opponent will deploy in the other half. Players then take it in turns to place units on the table, using the alternating units method of deployment described on page 142.

Units may be placed anywhere in their half of the table that is more than 9" from the centre line, and more than 9" away from either narrow table edge.

FIRST TURN

Roll off after deployment to see which player receives the first turn. The player that finished deploying his army first adds +1 to his roll.

GAME LENGTH

The game ends at the end of the 6th game turn or as soon as an army breaks. An army immediately breaks when its Fortitude is equal to or less than its Breaking Point (see below)

VICTORY CONDITIONS

The first army to break the enemy wins the battle (see above). If neither army has broken by the end of the game, or if both were to break simultaneously, use victory points to determine the winner (see page 143),

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES

Breaking Point: An army's breaking point is equal to one for every thousand points in the army, rounding any fractions up. So, an army of up to 1,000 points has a breaking point of one, an army worth 1.001 to 2.000 points has a breaking point of two, etc.

Fortitude: Any army's fortitude is equal to the current number of standards in the army (including the battle standard), plus two for the General. Fleeing units and units that are only temporarily off-table still count.

For example, a 2,000 point army (breaking point 2) has three unit standards, a hattle standard, and a General, riving it a starting fortitude of six (3+1+2=6) It mould break as soon at its fortitude was reduced to two.





m Standard Rese

Table Size

Generally our maps are presented as a 6' by 4' proportions, these maps can accommodate any table size. Note that the abart from each other should remain the same.

MEETING ENGAGEMENT

20.5 20 20

It is not uncommon for two armies to come across each other and immediately deploy straight from column of march. More often than not, the fighting starts while elements of the army are still marching towards the battlefield. In such a battle there is little time for careful consideration or planning.

THE ARMIES

Each player chooses his force using the army list from a Warhammer Armies book, to an equal points value agreed before the game.

THE BATTLEFIELD

Set up terrain as described on page 142.

DEPLOYMENT

In this scenario the table is divided into two halves from corner to corner, as shown on the deployment map. The players roll off and the winner chooses the two opposite corners to be used and which half of the table each player will deploy in.

The player that won the roll-off must deploy their entire army first. Before deploying the army, roll a dice for each separate unit, including each individual character and war machine. On a roll of the unit must be held back as reserves (see the special rules for Reserves on the right). After all lumits have been rolled for, those that are yet reserves can be deployed in their side's deployment zone, anywhere that is more than 6⁺ away from the centre line. Once the first player had deployed, his opponent does likewise, in exactly the same manner.

FIRST TURN

After deployment, the player that set up second rolls a dice. On a roll of 6 they can choose who has the first turn. On a roll of 1-5 the player that set up first chooses who has the first turn.

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for six game turns, or until a time limit agreed by the players is reached, whichever comes first.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

Use victory points to determine the winner of the battle, as described on page 143.

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES Reserves

Reserves are not deployed at the start of the battle. Instead they can enter play on any turn of their player's choosing, using the reinforcements rules described on page 27. They may enter at any point on the long table edge of their deployment zone.







THE WATCHTOWER



A wise warlord will protect his territory by building watchtowers at strategic locations. These fortified towers will have a small garrison, whose duty is to watch out for enemy incursions into their ruler's territory. They are expected to hold out long enough for the rest of the army to arrive and bring the enemy to battle.

THE ARMIES

Each player chooses his force using the army list from a Warhammer Armies book, to an equal points value agreed before the game.

THE BATTLEFIELD

Set up the watchtower as described below, and then set up any remaining terrain using the method described on page 142. The watchtower counts as the first of the D6+4 terrain pieces that must be set up.

The Watchtower

A building must be set up at the centre of the table. Any building model can be used, but a Warhammer Watchtower is ideal. If you don't have a building model, use any other terrain feature of your choice.

DEPLOYMENT

Roll off to see who controls the watchtower at the start of the battle. The player that controls the tower may deploy a single Core infantry unit of no more than 20 models in the tower if they wish to do so. The unit is not allowed to voluntarily leave the tower until after the first game turn of the battle has been completed.

The opposing player then picks the half of the table they will deploy in. Players then take it in turn to

place units on the table, starting with the player that doesn't control the watchtower, using the alternating units method of deployment described on page 142. Units may be placed anywhere in their half that is more than 12[°] from the centre line.

FIRST TURN

The player that does not control the watchtower receives the first turn.

GAME LENGTH

Roll a D6 at the end of each game turn, starting with the end of game turn 4. Add the turn number to the dice roll. If the score is 10 or more, then the battle ends immediately. If the total is less than 10 then the battle continues for at least one more game turn.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

At the end of the battle, the side that controls the watchtower is the winner. The watchtower is controlled by the unit inside or, if it is unoccupied, the closest unit that is not flexing. In the unlikely event that neither player can claim to control the watchtower, use victory points to determine the winner of the buttle, as described on page 143.

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES





Empire Captain







THE WARHAMMER WORLD

0

The world of Warhammer is a battle-scarred and dangerous place, host to glorious armies and deadly threats without number. This section takes a look at how the Warhammer world came to be, the eataedysnic events that plunged it into the embrace of Chaos, and the races that constantly battle for supremacy over what remains.

The chapters that follow deal purely with the rich stories and farmatic rivalities that lie behind the conflicts we enact upon the battlefield. Purthermore, this part of the book not only sets the scene for your own battles, but also gives you a taste for each of the races and factions that you may encounter over the course of your wargaming career.

The secrets of the Warhammer world are there for the taking, so read on, and remember – no matter whether you are scouring the taint of evil from the lands or forging an empire of merciless slaughter, it always pays to know work enemy...

Written by Phil Kelly

WAR UNENDING

This once was a world of purity and splendour. An ice-clad jewel in the heavens, slowly nurtured into a paradise by beings older than Time.

To look upon this world was to winness the hospes of that unknowable race made real. Luchs visus of chenes ingule smalled the lands, wingled lineards sworged lands' through the multicoloured mists. White-created mountains soared through sosamer clouds to graze the hearens, their unduried depths short brough with thick visus of precision metal. Occans the as appliers caressed the lands under endless turenoise kines. Templ calaboxed metals dots, their certain. For a while, the world know harmony.

Then came Chaos.

The Great Catachyan shook the firmament with such force its echoes still pervade, and always will. All semblance of tranquility was blasted away in an instant. A screaming gale of raw magic enveloped the lands and the beasts that dwelt within. It remade them into forms disturbing and uncleans, shaping them like elay in the hands of a demented artist.

Where once yous beauty there is now a vision of insanity. The erumbling faces of ancient kings, heren from granite effits in acrony any speak badewards untruth deviced purely to riddle a must to madness. Endless forests of gaurled and sentient trees grab and strangle those that stray too close, their ences hang with thorefule corpors. Towering etables of home and introbury to purely their ences hang with thorefule of prosp. Towering etables of home and introland optit to very and at the commands basinitg laws. Monstrom terrors proved the middle and the strate of the strate of here the material basing laws. Nowhere is usified.

Upon this precarious foundation are built the sprawling nations of the world. The kingdoms of Mankind are triumphs of hope over constant adversity, their bushing fortress-cites breathtaking in size and accomplishment. And yet there can be no peace. The corrupting taint of Chaos yields discord as a field yields crops, and three are always warlords willing to reagi to blody harvest.

Ever onwards come the barbaric and murderous tribes of the wilds, flowing together into an immense horde that blackens the lands. The electric promise of conquest enadles in the air. Hell-spawned fiends boil out from the night, desperate to enalsee and destroy. Roaring behemoths lumber out of their lairs, evil wardocks summon searing conflagrations of raw magic that turn entire battalions to ash.

Marching to most them are armise beyond counting, their enchannel bunners streaming in the wind. The rising an unraws red a humber disussing acquiragionis. Its rays burnish the armour of commanders hump's for coallist. And yet Man does not stand alone in his war aginast the darkness. The provide works of the elder races stread out form their ameainer mealurs, resplendent and majestic. Each warrior is the equal of a dozen lesser mortals, and yet none expect to see the down.

Under storm-wracked skies these surging legions clash. Battlelines slam into each other with the force of tidal waves. The muted roar of warfare resounds from the unearing peaks.

The gods of strife shall feast upon this day, and every day hence, until the end of time.





Grand Master of the Easter



Warland of the Asabite Ons





AN AGE OF WAR

This is a dark age, a bloody age, in a world seething with conflict. Breathe in the stench of constant bloodshed. Listen to the agonised screams of the dying and the harsh criss of the triumphant. These conflicts have raged for thousands of years; every nation and race is locked in a struggle for supremacy. And yet, victory can still be wrested from the fires of battle...

It is the time of Empower Kurl Franz, Lybnice of Abdorf and celebrared leader of the OAU Wold. The armins of the work matter once again for the ware to and all ware. In the spraving cities of the Empire of Man, every collekid stores in shoroged with solidary annusing for the new errande. Every store acide which where Every analysis heart is the production of works, new and pitter mail the collection of the functions of the theoretism of the solical solitation of the other solitation of the other solitation of the other solitation of the other solitation of the sol

Arms the breakh of the Ensign, rivers are jield by amounds larger whose corellations briefle who vollenges and a part cannon, fighting for every mile of possing signitum the Collins and Beatmen that infers the backs. Alles long columns of the origin of minimum built. Consist exploses a stranger of the stranger of the stranger of minimum built. Consist exploses contex characteristic stranger of the stranger of minimum built. Consist exploses a stranger of the stranger of the stranger of minimum built of the stranger stranger of the stranger of the stranger of the stranger of the stranger stranger of the stranger of the stranger of the stranger of minimum built of the stranger stranger of the stranger of the stranger of the stranger of minimum built of the stranger stranger of the stranger stranger of the stranger stranger of the stranger stranger of the stranger of t

The magnificent annies of the Energies stand unstel by the ratio of Kuel Fister, as tempered by the star as the majoral structures at a bind, structure the structure the preved various of the Eben and the Dwarfs per and the third major the structure the preved various common fice. Arrises of Orgens and Hellings, their alignation toophild but by the first quantermannees and chiefs the Engenere can provide, line updangiad the version at heary of the structure of frame structure of the structure of the structure of the structure of the structure of frame structure of the structure of the structure of the structure of the structure of frame structure of the structu

Karl Franz is a warrior as well as a king, just like Signar two and a half millensia before him. His wins are as sharp as the takens of his griffion steed, Denthclaw, and his appearance upon the battelield is a portent of have sub-to imministent victory. Whispers fills the alloways, the temperature large and be course – is Karl Franz the light that will drive back the darkness? Is the Emperor, lord amongst men, the Simur of a new steel

THE EMPIRE BELEAGUERED

For all the hope that Kucl Fanze embodies, there mutuins a world of mence and despirit that spreads mutual and strongouth the civitisor frame. Within the deep world of the OLI World World evaluates hung and foci, the staff of crone's tale and madmark's signtmare. Cockatrice, Jablenlythe, Chon Sponse, Chinner, Georgen, and still viel exhan's syst summaries. While inductions more source like and to huld new fortnesses and tomples, scant longous usey the warkerds of the Beastmen tear down all issues of civiliance and transples set. Genesis in the strongen set of the strengthere and transple set. Genesis in the strengthere and the strengthere are strengthere and the strengthere are strengthere.

In the dask context of the OM World, sumpletes practice dark rites in tristod, machter carlles, their hissing incarations raining whole arms for ritering carlwars from the perty and the Spectral forms descend upon teckly monoheams into far-flung villages, their touch graviting latures; or shirteriling their vice into the data. World with and caramilde (crypt fichals stills identification and plague sites, carsing the warmth of the living. In the land of the nercommerce, dath is no ecapter from the toke of war.

From the vales of Bretomin in the west come crusaling knights by the thousand, knocs and voices raised, their datacdoons left threadbare to ensure their weapons of war are as true as their hearts. The star fills with colour and splendour as skyborne cavaly sour to hardle upon mixing winged bears. The even the protect kingdoor of Bretonnin is infested – counties Gobin three skulk out from the valleys, the grasshing, threading bears of the co-word following in their wake. Across the workly, howing relates of hrand Dees poor doom from the foothills of thre-lefted montains, united by an unquarchalche lither for their land any physes, higher Kings with chinoso laps at takks are transles stalls our from the forest, garanted Suppix basis two crashing arallerly to zero to find the frame line, indentification attaches from the horizing remains of Douri Herearies, spacing for a fight. Anongot the generalization attaches to the horizing remains of Douri Herearies, spacing the start of the start energy and being concess training in their weak.

A WORLD EMBATTLED

A river apacks in the twill: valyes of far-off Ubhum – no normal river this, but a great gibtering in our High Ebesc, a dain hour and parce white. The evening high gains not from the creas of succes but from the blacks and helms of their glorisum planlames. They go to war once more, for the inter of reasoning is a thand. Burch a league away, as over Black Dragness are strict from their torgid along the great the success of the success of

In the crunking subterment empire of the Dwarfs, stout througs of Chaumen and Longburdt much forth in grin makers a thru take the fight to the hatd Gohima of the vernious Skaver. Barthe is joind, a thousand masterpices of Dwarren weaponcrift cut deep into traglodyte (bah), put the Villainus boless are without number. The peri becomes first – runs-readed trasmiss are raided for the most macient of magical weapons, experimental war engines unaerhed, runss of desperation strek. Accessive goal grandbe thrie commands, and now become are forged.

Still stranger sights are to be seen in the lands even further a field. In the how-strewn deserts of the study, heiring volume good helds from stranger of elemental flues are the best of sile-tod soverers. Undeak disgue command their monuments and strates to abale off the sands and harch into life, the down ending underforts at they abatese theorem calles arowed or undeaked abatesens. In the Dark Lands, the balackmithm of Chaos emerger from their citadek. Amongst them come larsa-spessing around any strategies balake banded with the mark of the Enthéer of Darkness.

From the northern wastes come allian giants clad in isicles and hourfrost, ripping up pine trees in their hunt for the blood of man. A monstrous hour of Trolls shambles southward, their vomit-stained King bellowing his horrible intent. Armies of blubber-clad Ogres hugh putturally as they smash aside whole ranks of lesser warrises with clab, fist and gut, making veteran soldiers seem no more than infants by comparison.

To the weat, vergeful forces pull up their roots and shamhle to weat, their advance as inexitable as the onset of winner. The boughost of central-off three spirits share with may as the Even of the word duri into hash formation, each of their arrows finding a throat, no eye, a heart. A mile from the Event tourser that start and tentidia upon the costs, an arranda of Norsen midser corsease the Sea of Classe, intered on Evinging war to the rich and temperate lands of Karl Francy Empire. A fleet of heared approximation is interest prime course, and hardin is joined in the midd of a standerstorm.

THE ARMIES OF UNREASON

And yet in the far north the darknows grows ever blacke, the turrows it conceals butching out from the out like disensity easies of prior hilder near the Standovshack homesing, hell-claid manaions share and mones as they write, across the land, spilling out damonkini in gord spurse like blocd from a morell wood. Meromaters channel lipping from the thandberchash above, string as being conduits to blast apart the gateboxes of their pey. Upon the crest of the word, mutant warrise damber arous hinders of distarted, gateboxes gateboxes and the string. Blatt and arm the frours of thirting gateboxes gateboxes are been approxed the thermal Blatt and arm the frours of their gods. Farsin in the clouds above, the gods wage war amonget themelyes.

Against this panophy of disaster the forces of order fight harder than ever before. All the manifold events of a long and blody history have led to this crucial point. The races of the world stand upon the brink. Will the empiris of Karl Fraza and his allies overcome the evils that threaten to consume them? Is this the dawn of a new age of progress and conquest, or the threshold of catastrophe? Only one thing is sure.











Districh von Dohl, the Crimson Lord of Sylvania

There will be war!

ANCIENT HISTORY

The world was an ice-locked and desolate place until the coming of the beings known as the Old Ones. They melded and wrought the substance of the planet until they had fashioned a utopia, which they populated with new races of their own creation. Then came the Great Catachysm, and the history of the world was changed forever.

THE TIME OF DRAGONS

The binory of the world bigsin kape fastion the rate of Mnn fragel their empire. Explosin ago, the world was populated by giprice biasts – highing circle Magneth, channel-worling Mnracchs, segmented Lexindan, and even stranger creatures. The new of Dargens were according to the highing and articular kineth and high stranger the rings in generation of the world. show the largest of their analysis is not provided and the transmission and annual stranger and the dargent and the strategiest and the stranger strategiest and the strategiest and the characteristic and the strategiest and the strategiest and the strategiest and the characteristic and the strategiest and the strategiest and the strategiest and the characteristic and the strategiest and the strategi

Then cause the Odd Oma, a separation and near-consistent race who pilled the depths of speece interest abips and arcs polyers pint as more water of the origin of the second of the second second and the pint of the second. By their reducing, this world would pipt an important pirt in the dense of the autrence. So is was the they task to intering the pinker's pint incombines that the second se

They knew not that, with these acts, they were cultivating their own demise

CHILDREN OF THE GODS

Amongst the many skills of the Old Ones was the ability to shape whole new lifeforms, creating new beings that brimmed with potential from the most imperfect of materials. It was the Old Ones who brought into being the races that now dominate the world.

The first of show were the Siam. The Siam's stud-like and corputer blocks belied a merall poper that could advanter mountain, secret hi whiles, ne fold reality in upon itself. The first Siam were mere servants to the OM Ones, but nonetheless they were mentally advanced beyond the wilded dream of show bow old sever them in turn. Girdl survants one and all, the Siam of the first spowning were innecessly powerful mages, able to blast part the monstrant durings of the productics: work with the mixth of a weldering or a a scatally blackd word of power. It was they who interpreted the wild of the OM Ones and committee their instructions out surely alphages.

The Shamin turns near served by the Linzbane. First amongs the Linzbane were the Staroxy, regulins avaries owned in their million of the thirding pools hours the Shami tample. The Staraw were physically strong, fix and resilicate, perfectly obseluted means the shaming the stars of baseless histored to bail great premised tample-cities, the Saroak brought order to the princeal world with signed class and just-coorded histor. See some throught order to the princeal minimate underscaling and against seven the base of the simulation minimate the simulation of the simu

As the Lizzedmen's labours neared completion, the paradise the Old Ones had fashioned was crowned with a geomantic web of power – a glittering network of nodes and conduits that stretched across the planet, allowing the Slann to traverse it or shape it at their whim. And shape it they did. The creator-geodes suiled upon that which their minions had wrought, but they were still hot statisfied

Visionable Lard Krask tone the first of the Slame Mago-Prints to be operated open the world. It is arrites that Lard Krask and his port stages that the ancestro of the Elses the major effects of the Slame Slame Slame effects of the Slame Slame Slame effects of the Slame Slame Slame Ango-Prints, man scheduler dyne the dash of the hody to phonous a Rich Prints. Startmag to his optic that is stall dings to the manifest of and slame Slame Slame the slame Slame Slame Slame Slame the slame Slame to dook.

THE NEW RACES

From this crucible of civilisation, yet more races and species were brought into being. None truly know why the Old Ones populated their paradise with such a diverse array of sentient creatures. Perhaps the Old Ones raised up the young races from the primordial jungles in defence of their new readm. Their movies will forever remain shrould and unckar, for the Old Ones are no more.

First amongst the new races were the Elves. Exceptionally dextrous and intelligent, the Elves were given the siland continent of Ulthuan, which they tamed with arrow and hunting spear. The Elves had an affinity for the magical energies wielded by the Old Ones, but sadly, they did not prove as resistant to the corrupting effects of magic as the Old Ones had hoped.

After the Elses came the Dwarfs, a doughty and stalwart folk, resistant to raw magic yet able to craft masterpieces inbucd with supernatural power. They also fell short of perfection – the very qualities that made them determined survivors gave rise to stubbornness, avarice and insularity.

The races of Dwarfs and Elves were long-lived and patient. The Elves became masters of the ocean, and built their elegant civilisation upon the islands and coastlines of the world. The Dwarfs burrowed deep into the mountains, carving our magnificent subterranean halls and palaces.

From the wilderness cane the greenskinned Ores and Goblin, their insidious sports perhaps unwittingly introduced to the world your the tart vessel of the Odd Ones. Later can the nee of Men; adaptable and profilis, so vial and ingenious they would be able to adjust to almost any environment. Latly were perhaps the non-uniniable of all the Odd One's retainess the somewhat valgar nees of the Halflang and the Ogres – malcially different in size and strength, but similarly find of food, and resistant to the balfel and the off the off the other world.

The creation of the new nece was not the only grant work embarked upon by the O4d Ones. They had raised stellar gateways to a dimension of pure spirit, known as the Realm of Chaos, at either pool of the world. By passing through this realm the O4d Ones could travel immense distances in a heartbeat. Their boundless annihiston had a terrible cost. Whatever entities dwelt in that dimension emended the intravision of the O4d Ones, and slowly formed plans for an intravision of their own.



The sprinting tempti-cities of the Lizardown were constructed spon necessos of magical energy that, when linked by the Old Oner' magic, spread across the world in a thramming net of eldritch force.

Truly precentful sortcerers such as the Slame Mage-Priests are still able to tap into the metwork of arcane force that girdles the coord. With this potters they can toork the greatest of rituals, shift continents and rise up momentain from the earth.






THE GREAT CATACLYSM

They were as varied as thought itself, soaring and clawinghowing and shricking in a triumphant cascade of madness that drowned everything in its path."

- The Visions of Loukh

Just as the world scened scale, a critical mass was reached in the reals of spin that by behind they out. The Oki Okee and the spice for their intramisms. The protectional above the poles of the world, each larger that as monstain, colloped in an epoch-shartney imploiton. They wave replaced by a boing so of chose where mains and the observation developed, as a used provide the scale of the The faces of the imploints distanced an entire continent. At the size of the distance, a hall of chose matter – known as suprotes – spin in the sky. Thus was been Morrish, the Chose moon.

With a tremendous fast of arcase might the Slam Mageprists manged to limit the lesions in the fabric of the material tealm. Only by the sacrifice of hundreds of first generation Slam was the uture destruction of the world averted. And yet, despite the best efforts of the Liarahmen to constrain the catachyon, a billion finds bust outward from the pulsing wound that creted the world. Green file by the industrues of matrix conscionting arming of demons run rampart across the

Given like by the nightmares of morthis, columning and index of lands on some or the second s

CHAOS EMBODIED

A their same partial caligned, the OAI Ones discoperard, No.core know whether they field or were denored, but they was constants or after and the, and the Damons of Choos were anotherm to them. The skine filled with bining contrails an great chaoks of warpstrone hummers down arrows with the surface of the physics. Because and the backs of the strength of the physics with the strength of the physics of the strength of the strength of the strength of the physics with the strength of the physics of the strength of the stren



subconcious minds. So it was that the Beastmen were born, the first Skaven crawled out from their vermin-infested marshes, and the monsters of the world were brought into being.

In the stamming jurgels of Latrici, the Lizardnen did not give up. Resolut, the yook the folge to the darmosic leight to using every one of the formidable vergeons at their disposel. Comparation repeiles enabled into tituna of living lenses, forthered latack-large breathed lightming into the ford and the darmosic leightmice of Startmin Sofie against behavioring. Durrent behavioring. The surviving Startmin Market and the startmin software and the startmin software in the market into a living events for the store darmosition and the startmin software in the latachteness and the Darmoon label only just begins, for through many temple-cities vere loss in the Latachteness and the Darmoon label only just begins, for through many temple-cities vere loss in the first for days, other software through many temple-cities vere loss in the first days. In the store of the store

A SAVIOUR COMETH

Across the jewelled ocean in the far-off island continent of Ulthuan, the race of the Elves were also caught in a struggle to save themselves from the ravages of the daemonic incursion. They suffered terrible losses with each and every engagement, for their weapons were designed for hunting, not warfare. The doom of the Elves was nigh.

It was during this time of blood and shanghter that Anearion structor out of the waters. Tall, like and strong, he was a precelens warrive who had hardied across the length and breadth of the world. Sening the dependion of his popel, Annarion took up the mantle of definited or Ulthuan, and as under negod ontaic hardning proper forwards at the Shiroi of Anaryan for the strength to oppose the sightmartish daemonic herder. He implement the Ebient of Anaryan for the strength and was met with sightmartish daemonic herder. He implement the Ebient paraheon for strength, and was met with sightmart of the strength of the strength and the strength and was met with

Finally, in despire, Aenarion threw himself into the incandescent flumes. Though agony wrecked his body, Aenarion survived the ordeal, proving his purity beyond doubt. More importantly, he had become imbade with the raw might of Ausyma the Creators An ord up on his high, Aenarion too kou his spear and strode out of the Shrine. He fought his way through the rampaging Daemonic horde and shew the Daemon King at his head with a single devasting throut.

Over time, Aenarion guthered a massive army of Elves to his side. Clud in a suit of invidable armout wrought within the legendary Anvil of Vaul, Aenarion was like unto a god of war. The Elven thirst for vengence proved deadlier than any blade. With his new army thew hundreds of Dragons, alless of the Elves since the dawn of that race. The skies themselves came alve with their number, and the Daenons were driven tack in disarraw before their wath.

Though Aenarion undeniably saved his race from annihilation, even the armies of Ulthuan could not fight for all eternity, for Daennons cannot truly be killed by mortal weaponry. The war against the Daennons raged on, eventually reaching the hearlands of Avelorn. Aenarion's consort, the Everqueen, was kain, and their kildren lost.

THE PRICE

Wracked with grief, Aenarion vowed to slay the Daemons once and for all, no matter the cost. He summond his steed, the great dragon Indrauguir, and flew to the fabled Blighted Isle at the north of Uhlman. Agains the counsel of his firend, the archmage Caledor, Aenarion soughts to draw the Sword of Khaine from its great black alar at the heart of the island. This was unspeakable folly, for the warpon was no interded for moral hands, and to draw it was to damn oncell forever.

In his rage, Aenarion cared not. He became all but invincible, scattering the Chaos armies before him. All feared his power, be they mortal or immortal. Aenarion had become not only the avatar of Auryano, but also a conduit for the bloodlust and fury of Khaine, the Bloody-Handed God.

The price of this new power was high indeed. By seizing the Sword of Khaine, Aernarion had condermed his lineage and that of his people to an inescapable curse that would plague them until the end of fine. So it was that the seed of corruption was introduced into the High Elf race.

Yars later, King Acauzian rescued the mysterious serrers Morathi from a coren of Chaos worshippers and took her as his second wile. She bore him a son, which he named Malekith Marawhile, runnour began to circulate of darkness and cruchy within Aenarion's court. Unrest fermented, and many decried Aenarion's merciless persecution of all who defield him, but soon after Uthana was threatened by asother deemonic invasion. We rad cores to Uthana once more.



Thoogh the Lizardwen convertatached the Danmonic legions with unresulting fury, the power of Chaos formed ever stronger, and many of the Tought–Chins fell within the first fees vecels of the vene. The Lizardwase empire has sever trady recovered.



Marathi, boozo in later contaries as the Hag Sorcerus, is considered to the the root of mask of the ceil that goarded at the Phoneic Court of Ulthans. It wass Menubi who founded the insidence calts that complete many of the Elsen in days goor by She still plaques the tourid cours none, for through her mastery of the Dark Art and varies past motio doaronsic beings, her lifetpan has stretched acress the constraints.



THE VORTEX COMPLETE The greatest mage of that era, Caledor

The generation, layer would not show use only one use yound y deface the factor of an index use only one use grand plan to denin the swining galax of magic that grand plan to denin the swining galax of magic that workly, no channel these etheric forces into a grant spin of energies and found them have into the Realm of Clause. It was an audicious and desperate layers of the state of the second second second would puy with its fift. Such was Uthana's plight that its ranging council fift they had no choice.

Caledor and his archmage acolytes repaired and expanded the ancient spiral network of standing stones that had stood upon the island continent of Ulthuan since the dawn of the first days, magnifying the flow of energy around Ulthuan a hundredfold until it was visible even to those without mage-spike. The stage was set.

At the Bartle of the Isle of the Dead, surrounded by immerphic armies of the ravenous and the datametic, Caledor Dragostamer finished hing guest work. Incredibly, the archmage's final ritual was successful. The resultant cosmic vortex drew the rolling essence of Chaos from the world like poison from a wound, slowly at first, but with gathering speed until a hurricane of energy raged across the kids.

REDEMPTION

During the choice gauge of the burk, the magnet of Ublum field univ one ly one, there lies for first is nonerar the vortex's comprises. Moreovally, there with non-first data prove located in burke gauges that the surveying Green's discussion and has firsticle approximately and the list burtering data the surveying Green's discussion. See the surveying Green's discussion and the surveying Green's discussion and the surveying Green's discussion. See the surveying Green's discussion and the surveying Green's discussion of the survey discussion and an extra discussion discussion and the surveying Green's discussion of the surveying Green's discussion and the surveying Green's discussion of the surveying Green's discussion of the surveying Green's discussion and the surveying Green's discussion of the survey of the surveying Green's discussion of the struct discussion of the survey of the survey of the survey of the struct discussion of the struct dis

Barreed and bleeding, Accuration climbed upon the wounded Indrauguir one list time and commanded him to fly back to the Blighted Isle – a journey that proved too much for the noble darke. Indrauguir gore a greet shudder and ided upon the backhes of that dread island. Accuriou's last act was a pligrimage to the Alar of Klaine, where he thrust the curved sword back into its altar in the hope that the age of blookable would finally come to an end. His loody no merer found.

With the completion of Caldeo Dragostaner's vortes, the foll powers that standing the Dragostaner's vortes, the foll powers that standing the Lizards in the contrast cases and anget the Lizards in the contrast cases and anget the standing the the lizard standing the the standing the

have vanquished he daemonic hosts and iven back the roiling clouds of Chaos that plaqued the lands. Let the world rejoice, for we have won its sanctity, and the air bears not the foul tang of the Daemon But at what cost to us, the valorous and the brave of Ulthuan? What sacrifices have been made upon this, the altar of hope?

> The Lamons of Bel Shanaar

> > CIENT MINTORY

TIME OF THE SUNDERING

In the scient of Amenico's dash, his one Phone Makida's may nessed over as the new Phoenix Karg, and the mode H& Sharam crossed in its high-chicklish moders, burneli, was forking, and a seed of hitmense localized of mility beyone princips. Item: Nonetheless, Makidath abided by the court's devision. Item and the science of the science

TREACHERY IN THE PHOENIX COURT

After sixteen hundred years of general valour and heroism. Makkiki undial the great works of this illustrious career to one right of huse tracknery. Amaritori successe, the Plooms King Red Shanan, had made the journey to the CM4 Wold to meet with the Dwart Fligh King Shorri Whiteheard, and danging the greeting ceremony took pairs to starbis that Makkikh was a mere envoy to the range leaders of Ufbham. The wound to Makkikh yaride cut deep, and upon his return to the jakand continue, in morber Morthis removed that if the total and deepend into a blire harter. "A scratch from an envenomed dagger, a sip from a poisoned chalice, a slight to a proud warrior's borour

In time these things may do far more grievous harm than the broadsword or the axe, my love...

> Morathi, the Hag Sorceress





Malakibi'i dawonsi allion torreeven more regrammat than these of the Grane Catacham, has this time the heats of Ulbasons overready for them. Arrayed against the Dawoon heat came lagens of data naktor: claim in glasming battle another: claim in glasming hastle another and disciplinal, faurtus lobot & Elecon sparrows, their strongh bolistered by Dragon Mages, focies of Grane Eagles, and cherists in mourers that the ground shaddherd at third harpes



During the War of the Beard, the High Elves wet their match in the studdorn and headtroop Dwarfs, who refused to yield to Elven supremacy even when the coast war fleets of Ulthum work brought to hear against them.

Years later, in an act of perfidy so base it echoes throughout time, Makshin attempted to take the Phoenic Coron by force. After accusing Bd Shanar of covert Class workship and poisoning him in the resultant confission. Malcish anthoused the Phoenic King within the Shirt of Astrony and cut time down without mercy. Like his findre before him, Malcish phanged into the first of the shirts, eager for Assurarsh besing: Both search dimension of Assayra rejected Malcish, burning thin meridily

A blackned and using chool in its former will, Malchikh field back to his home protone of Mangruch, his followers in two There is backled the enderso of researchine it howe who had listened to his malicion theoretic – including those hidden cubs to forward by his moder. Notenth Soch was regreted across a spreming schedulo back set to doth the Error for even Cruit our empetid across (Ubassa and bencher thread upon border. The Eff force two spreme fictions, the Higd Direct of the Priori. Thread of the Higd Terror to be shown had back to be the spreme field of the Priori. Thread of the Direct origins would be written a present backet of the Argon and the Socher Higd Terror of the Socher damp was noted to written argon in worked written a present backet of the new Protein King. Calcher III, et the store-socied bartle of Malcher Malchikh come backet for high of Mangruth. Socher King Wigh Socher Terror of the Nice Argon given backet of the Argon Terror Socher Terror of the Nice Argon given the substrate the store socied works in the Socher Terror of the Nice Argon given the store the store or the store backet of the Argon Terror of Nice Argon the store the Socher Terror of the Nice Argon given the store of the Argon Terror of Nice Argon the store the store or the Nice Argon the store store of the Nice Argon the store the store store of Nice Argon the Socher Terror of the store the store store of Nice Argon the store of Nice Argo

A RACE DIVIDED

The oraging harmon the "Promit Court and the follower of Mulcidu was not to be reliable on a multi-scale - using the Dirac has create with could be The Southers for Mulcidu and Multiand with justices, Mulcidu phanel the using purposed and the Multi-scale and the Multi-Mulcidu committed the unividual is a beam of the Multi-scale and the Multi-Mulcidu committed and unividual is a beam of the Multi-scale and the Multi-Dragoname. For present has been the Durance legislation approximation of the Interface Dragoname and the Multi-scale and the Multi-scale and the Multimulti-scale and the Multi-scale and the Multi-scale and the Multimulti-scale and the Multi-scale and the Multi-scale and the Multi-scale and the Multiscale and the Multimeter and the Multi-scale and the Multi-scale and the Multiscale and the Multimeter and the Multimeter and the Multi-scale and the Multimeter and the Multimeter and the Multimeter and the Multimeter and the Multiscale and the Multimeter and the Multiscale and the Multimeter and the

No corner of Uthuau was untrached by the resultant dianter. The backhoh of magical power caused a great table wave that regulific Nagarythe. Much of northern Uthuan disappeared under the waves, and the lawl weld of Timore was lost a malifice carregis destanted the lawds. They fain the Dark Elses and their disensorie allies were ultimathy driven off by the glosts of those who had given their laws to complete Caldedre yource, the damage was done. Malkeith Verengli had brought much destruction.

At the behest of their master the Witch King, renegade wizard princes from the coarts of Saphery harnessed great sections of the splintering continent's jagged cliffs. They sterred these new 'Black Arks' northwards to the new Dark Elf kingdom of Naggeroth. From these floating fortresses Makleith's followers would plaque the world in centuries to come.

With this great act of malice Malekith divided the race of Elves forever, and the High Elves and their evil kin the Dark Elves have been locked in bitter and merciless battle ever since.

THE WAR OF THE BEARD

The using answed by Malekith rescalery was not limited to Ulthura, for the Work King was decison index D-open the relabution of the biomclach, struch the floarsided between the Elsen striters and D-nart holds arous the OM Workl, for each of the nears were matter crushmo in heir own way. One of lind, D-nard rading arrays were matched by Davie Elsev points at their coulins from Ulthura, and then precison cargo achiev. Corrugal by this supercolled marks, the D-nari probaseds, sceling introduces to King Calcius H of the same variable of the probased probased with the structure of the same variable of the same variable of the same variable back as their holds – floaring the structure of the same variable structure of the same variable back as their holds – floaring the structure structure of the same variable structure of the same variable marks in and the Davie. Now it are an attrue of houses: The could be only one outcome.

This bages die Wie of the Bend, or the Wie of Venguesce as the Dearls prefer to all it. The over-scalaring conflict head for almost free carries. Though Key 20 Caldes rest atoms his entire fleet, the Dearl empire proved practically integraphic, and their warries never gover up even while forge crain deard. The war calculated with the Fourteent Steges of The Alessi and the deark of Caldes II as the hands of Xing Grouck Starbenice, both the Portice Grown from his field response are composed for the Davie induces. Son first, the anima of Ulhama were forced to restera to define the Davie induces. Son first, the anima of Ulhama were forced to restera to define the Davie induces. Son first, the anima of Ulhama were forced to restera to define the Davie induces. The Portuge Core mices remained in the values of the Davie Hold of Expression et al.



THE GOBLIN WARS

The War of the Beard took a tremendous toll on the races of Elf and Dwarf alike, and their empires lay in tatters. The damage to the once-mighty Dwarf realms was further compounded by the most severe chain of disasters ever to befull the Odd World, which the Dwarfs all the Time of Woes.

Across the occan, the Shan were will enacting as bost they could the grand plans of the Old Ones, realigning the continents with earth-shattering sets of arcane force. Perhaps as a side effect of these actions, the Worlds Edge Monntins — in which the Dwarfs had built the heart of their empire were reven by a series of earthquakes. Parions of the underground network called the Underway collapsed, and many Dwarf strongholds fill into ruin, their lower level holds with magma.

Taking advantage of the unstall descruction, the greenshin ratios that devit in the monutinis and using peticially investidated be previously investigate and the Davier's Cell these the Coldina Ware, thought in runt they fought against amins of Ores, Coldina, Tralls and the runt of the Cell and the Cell and every Davier's (The Longeltar al baseline) to brandling, you go not an effective and a devery Davier's (The Longeltar al baseline) to brandling, which are the Cell and the Cell and the Cell and the Cell and the standling and the Davier's field that the Cell and the Cell and the Cell and the analysis of the Cell and the Cell and the Davier's figure to runnihe.

For almost a thousand years the Dearth fought on, estivity axing mor pixing quarter. Sometimes the Dearth's would have their way hakk into the moscreli fortenses that had here toulor from then by the vile generations, sometimes they would astatin horrestook losses at the hands of a new Orestream and windower transfer hores sends to be one of the swaper these that powerd out of the bonestream and windower transfers horons as the Ballands. After early a millenian of Auth, three Dourd fields field in the particular of this practice that the hard for the antistream and attract darks in the Greey Monatian. Now made round power of them, show tourned wert and attract darks in the Greey Monatian. New track rounds were opened and new allies found in the viles of Mon that round the pianis, but all the lefts for the original Dourd empire reader. So it is that todge the Dwart radms are locked in a constant war for the immesurably pare subtremans that hown from the mountime by the history of their veneration encorten.



Decarfs are the most resolate and hardy of tearriors, clad in fively-eccought mits of starmeeta areaear and exciding harmmers and axes forged by onsater artitans. They are famous for their tenacity and stubbornness even token hattling against overscholming edds.



The Montany Cale of Khomir monarchit is compared while and, over a monarchit of a second generation of research, they generation of Linke Privite did and agid sheet like years lattle and agid sheet like years lattle some rhase briege, scaling corpus, Soch was there many over think and second ther monarchite contaries, that there many the intervers more consider contaries, that their readiration trained if magic in their wall.



RISE OF THE UNDEAD

Top out all add showed pero before the lives of the Enspire, there existed a human civilization of the showed on the orders our core the sum as their servers. Hochkness it was called the showed on the sum showe on their servers all the world was high before them like an orderate of each faint result to per hacked. It which framtancial radius was distributed of detruction by the negativation of its kinga and priority, most sittinuous of all Nagash, the Greet Sweerer, whose recorrecting the situation of the kinga and priority, most sittinuous of all Nagash, the Greet Sweerers, the second situation of the kinga and priority, most sittinuous of all Nagash, the Greet Sweerers whose second situation of the kinga and priority in the blockbast and condensities in the perior the lines of the line

AN ETERNAL DYNASTY

Rising from the sands of the far south, Nehekhara was a land of magnificent architecture and noble dynastics. Its warrier kings led their golden armies against the burbarian tribes and greenskin armies that threatened their realms, crushing all before them in displays of martial brilliance until their dominions stretched from the replay-instituted Southlands to the dense forests of the north.

Settra, the first Priest King of the mighty city of Khenni, was like unto a god in human form. Tall, handsome and proud beyond measure, it was he who conquered the other kings of Nehekhara and united the lands under one throne. It was not long before his name was feared across half the globe.

Yet Settra was aggrieved that his time upon the throne would one day end, for Death was one enemy he did not know how to conquer. Determined to rule for etermity, Settra ordered his priests to find a way for him to live forever. So it was that the inflamous Mortuary Cult was born.

For checked the priority of k-neural behaviord with tradits and incutations, studing remedies of their direct such fast concernstantial of the studies of th

IN THE CLUTCHES OF NAGASH

The tuning spirit in Nebelaran sciency came continues later, when a child of Dark Elf mages and seconsense one diverse of a self-science people block find most up on the un-laked dwors of Nebelaran. Recovered by the agents of the incumbert High Privet of Khenri, Nagaba, they were turned until the agreed to tach the secons of Dark Might. Nagaba, laredy an experiment the impactors of the Mortany Casha, proved a nove than app spirit. He reinsignent himself, prolonging the finding worth and the of his accives that the neitist detailed from the blood of wirgins.

A teh Li-ke bleach lifeguas stretched out across the centrative thy legant to dara the studigkt, appending their acrossing of the dark challens of their trappending their acrossing the studies of the trappending their acrossing of the devised back of the dark life d

THE BATTLE FOR NEHEKHARA

Negady virging of hormor small are constants includingly. Faring Nagady orderworkly power, the Boye King Finn the low cricks of Archiken formed a part coefficiention against the low of Kinema and his undying armis. Under ause also the two forces mer in harfs – the galach bosts of the Physic King, bohow areas of the dow and gamels and horme are constructs, fought against brands or ganza hidding was used. The bound of arcsection of the star of the Archiven and the star of the Archiven and the star of the star of the star of the star of the Archiven and the star of the Brain and Archiven and the star of the Brain and a star in the star starbards with the star of the Archiven and the starbard area was an explored with the starbard starbard and the star of the Brain and the starbard starbard and the starbard starbard starbard starbard starbard and the starbard starbard starbard starbard and the starbard starbard starbard and the starbard starbard starbard and the st Whilst the Priest Kings of Nebekhara cleansed the Black Pyramid of Nagash's minions, the Queen of Lahmia secretly stole Nagash's most exteric tones from his sanctum. With the knowledge held within, she distilled her own version of Nagash's elixir; imperfect but powerful enough to confer a bloodthirsty immortabil of a sort. So it was that the first vampires were born into the world.

Neighb because ever more montrum and cell as he fol upon the plentifit arraymous of Crippe Pack. Bolstrets by the sumptice over on the Lamina Daven, the Green Nerromancer award war once more upon, Neideham. However, the gloriona armiso if the doest were now united under a second and second second second second second second second second and second s

Enraged at the constant failure of his captains to wrest power from the Priest Kings, Nagash unleashed a terrible plague that poisoned the River Vitae, polluting the deserts and draining all life from the land. Looking out across the vista of diseased corpset, the Great Necromancer raised an army of the dead of immenses size. Acadizzar was quickly defeated and brought in chains to Nagash.

Gagged space hadrid energies. Nagah repeared his most poweful spell. If in intraduct to cast the force malwaring, and poweful energy his resurrent every compare in the entries word in all hind them under his incorted. Sensing the danger they were in, the mysterious reterms that covered the symptome under CGPP beach from the energy term to the any strength and a power in the Fellblack, a smell singul of purest surgestone. Through there force of will, Alcalizzar fought in way into the theore room at the hashes. Through there force of will, Alcalizzar fought in way into the theore most mice hands. The immediate them was noded, and Alcalizzar fought were to bit sets.

But the dead do not sleep easily in Nebekhara. The energies of Nagash's ritual had prematurely awakened the entombed dead of the pyramids, including King Settra himself – reborn not as a orden ancel, but as a mummiled corpse. His worth was great, and his era of conquest bgan anew.

Battissa

There will be no escape, no blessed oblivion. I can end your life as easily as and the escape of the your corpus is cold, I can reach out and grasp your sond. You will be my slave for all eternity, and I shall lawgh at the depths of your pain.

Such is the power of Nagash."





SIGMAR'S HAMMER

Ghal Maran, meaning Shull Spiliter, it the two-handed hammer pasted down from Emprove in Europerse: It is a magnificent rane-foregod maniput that combedies Mausing that endedfield Mausing and the standard to the hitle Shull Spiliters for the Empirit's rates have even that their pople to built upon the field of stan.

SIGMAR ASCENDANT

Nehekhara was not the only realm of Man to make its mark upon the world. Over the past three thousand years, a new and vital force for order has risen – a nation of humanity's finest soldiers, Battle Waards, Engineers, Warrior Priests and noblemen. This nation is known as the Empire, and its founder, the barburain king Sgrang, lives forever as a god of men.

A NEW ALLIANCE

When the Workle Edge Monstains crapted in filmes sharing the Time of Wors, an old enemy ware to ice in strength and anothers the gravational. A beligneric, thirthounger new of acquest, the Ore and Gobins these none hold a two by the Dwarf holds flooded into the GM World from the east. These vision thrones war macric crossins of the Dwarf, and with the paths to the world coupling field upon the shartneric holds and the lands beyond with deadly frevene. As the Dwarf realms reled from this new attack, maw without cross magnetized moder mast and and the for their to do homelands.

The races of Dwarfs and men recognised a common cause and banded together in the face of this new menze. The humans looked upon the weapons and armaments of the Dwarfs with envirous wonder, for their ever-sharp xxes and machines of war smote generation by the dozen. The Dwarfs in turn saw a great visibility and spirit in the hearts of men. Before long the two races had became allies.

The detailed results of the Denet people tell of the most of the "fine as a force and batteric trees (def) in first and implements, their wardhest behaves have battering battering and point the most of the CAM World were listen more than a departer confision of trutes, backed in hubble with the generalizen and Backenster for possession of the wardlys, relevant and plabs. The previous amongst them ward Sparsent and the short of the struct spreases and plabs the previous amongst more structures and the backed upon him could see that Sparser was marked for apartness, though more short who backed upon him could see that Sparser was marked for apartness, though more subsystemicity, les world transcripts in morthly services.



THE FORGING OF THE HELDENHAMMER

The One and Gohims were not without their own horses, however, distribut and worksh posended *in multicurve* coming as well absorb trength. In one instance the Ones captured no less a potenta has Kargan Invelored, High King of the Daraff, as he and his household mude their sup thready the Gory Monatins. This was the ind of the Urbergers, and Signar and has the field agoen the One anny with great frag, docinnific phenoma hoursing their corpus upon a great pro-King Kargan marked his granula by a system with a struct washummer mande Gial Marker. With this gift, and a solorm warrier's handbalks, the two leaders became friends. The alling between the data.

Over the next for years the load between the two nexts became ever strenger. The lightning damps of the human cardy and the ubursand fractivity of their harbarian forteddhefers were in stark constrant to the methodical advance of the variarie Dwarfs, but in conjunction the two forces were meen formidable that never before. Knowledge flowed from the Dwarf realms in one their do dram, new hatthe discrimins were perfected and scerets of the forge brought to light. Stoon the human trabewer armond with true test-and and subject the area should be the dama in their syste.

Upon the death of his father, Sigmar became chieffain of the Unberogen tribe. He proved to be a visionary leader as well as a warrior of exceptional valour and strength. Sigmar united the twelve greater tribes of men, driving the greenskins from the lands and earning the epithet Heldenhammer, which means Hammer of the Goblins. So it was start the seeds of the Empire were som.

THE BATTLE OF BLACK FIRE PASS

When the realmas of the Dwarfs toked once more to be overwhelmed, King Kargarn sett the once however that the Mat as a messager and called upore Signar once more. A prart tife of Orea and Goblins server marching upon Kargar's ancertard home, an army ten times the size of any that had gave before. Their single bases of ward ackned the bases, the cover-centures they had beaut to their service lambered through the valleys, Signar's armits united with those of the High King at Black Files Pays, the only points at which the converse to the Black Manninis. Financiel into the pays, the Ores and Goblins could only bring a function of their narrow azims the collidors of me and Daviet.

The day had been won, and the Dwarf realm saved from slavery and death.

THE AGE OF SIGMAR

In the wake of the bathe, the two meancules source an early of eternal fauly that has been housened bin days. Signare was calcular as the first expersor of Man and grifted a magnificient corose by King Kargan himself, whilst the Maker Ransemith Alaris the Mad Jegan the long process of corosing the twelve source known as Marafingare, one for early of the tradid indefinition of the first processing the tradition of the source and the source source and the source of the larger of the source relation (Squarer's constants in the source source) and at the realm of Man formind an avery the form.

Records of Sigmar's reign are scant, for the Dwarf historians of that time turned their attentions to the rebuilding of their own empire. All that is really known is that Sigmar eventually put aside his crown and journeyed eastward, perhaps to rejoin his old friend Kargan Ironbeard, perhaps to slay the Gobbin Kings and Ore warderds of the crags and mountains.

If Sigmar ever arrived at his dostination, history does not tell. He passed into legend, becoming a figure of working for his poole. Temples and shrines were built to his memory and the Cult of Sigmar great vectorenest hum as the Empire's founder. Whithin a generation Sigmar usa openly workingot as a god, and the faith that revered him became the most powerful in the land. So it was that the ther of Black Ferro Bas took Fiss pices in the paratheous of the Empire.



Thoogh Signear proceed to be an exceptional rules; poststand of bach vision and charitona in advandance, he want at warrier and a warrlend. Some bidiree that is latter life Signear grows tirred of the patty sepathbles of court, for eighty years after his birth he set soat into the east in search of advantarie and the blood-spoonding theriti of combact

ULRIC

Signuar himself consolutions Ultrin, the goal of coast, toolwar and cointer: Ultric is one of the most analiseit guls, revered by perioritive homen triba long before the Unberraport tribe cause to presentance. Indeed it coast Ar-Ultric, the High Prices of that prioral creed, solve corrorad Signuar as the first Emperor.

It is said that in times part Urie led the Wanagen tribus to the heart of the deep forest, meaching assuder to the peak of all mountains with the fits and learning a flattened platness in its plate. This is theorem today as the Fanoklag rock. It is here that the great city of Maldenheim thrives, holding fast against the resils that stalk the CldH Wirkd.

ANCIENT HISTORY

THE EMPIRE ENDURES

Since the time of Sigmar, the Empire has endured a dizzying number of disasters and threats, both from without and from within. It has held fast against the ranges of anarchy and plague, the rise of the treacherous Skazen under-empire, countless greenskin invasions, the terrifying curse of undeath and, perhaps most duanting of all, the dread incursions of Chaos.

Arise countys end-q and, may Empower care and were, detectin in pool finds by the construction of the other of the second secon

THE SKAVEN WARS

Descipt the copylingly incomposent rules of Empiret Resci, the land we hold which by paritive sizes in order for the hyperal incurst twice in disturbed lawny. In sumino englected, the Empire was in no state to watther the gravest catastrophen to heff the Empire — the Black Plague of 1111. This here, the discuss a lawn specifically concered by the Starest to upon Hin widdler upon the winds. By the sime it had run is concer, fully after quarters of the Empire, but must be duel, including Borie Galdpark humod. The Starestron, tolking and of the Maynetin in the watter of the parademic systematically rand and endwed the laddense statements in the Empire. All was due to the sime the end of the Empire quarter and a sum block downside creader. All high the surviving more of the Empire quarter and a sum block downside on the dawn statement of the Makation and the state of the main dawn statement of the Makation and the state of the the state of the main dawn statement of the Makation and the state of the the state of the the state of the statement of the Makation and the state of the the state of the the state of the main dawn statement of the state of the the state of the the state of the the state of the main dawn state of the main dawn statement of the state of th

A MOST UNCIVIL WAR

After Engener Mandred net ni ingueninisso end at the hands of a Skaven assissis, the Electric Constructed out organ participal succession, including the infinitional traditional Time of Three Engeneses. From the clergy of the realm collipsed into intrinsicin fighting. At the Battle of Rowings Rock, sight handbed Sgamier Warrier Bivers how cleand up only the superisor of the Const Timple of Manane. The resultant battle uses the sands statical rel with blood as surfammer classed is gained participal intert Magning of Manine and Constraints and the same statication of the subtraditional statication of the same statication o

THE GREAT WAR AGAINST CHAOS

Of all the invasions and conflicts to befall the Empire, one alone is known as the Great War - a war which looked set to herald the end of the civilised world.

The Gener War against Chaos counted around a vest incursion in which the warded Assure Kull Gener a familes how of Chaos Warrison, Danssons, monters and Beatsmen from the froma rulation of the sorth. In the winner of 2020 Kull how fought in way arous the Niver Luwk and petertridi depution the sonsy wardes of Kulex. The six-food (or QF Paugu was the first to feld the wirth of Kula and his immunerable hurtilizons. Through sheer forecity and determination the fores or Chaos acked the covering citizens were modeled with the walks of their own religns. Sono Paug remembed something from the forest denses a drived hurck. It has no as in of the durand over wince.

Moving south, the horde sacked several more fortnesses and Dwarf keeps on its way to the capital city of Kislev itself. There began a bitter size which took a horrendous toll upon the city's defenders Bloody though it was, the size bought the Empire time enough to muster its armies and retaliate.

EMPERORS FAIR & FOUL An incomplete succession 1-50 SIGMAR Signar is control Emporer by the High Prices of Ulric.

SI-100 HEDRICH I Emperer Hedrich is presented exish the magical Ramefangs by the Rameonich Alaric the Mad

479-505 SIGISMUND II

defeat of the Rod Wasaagh! by incentive sate of folcom messengers to coordinate all eighteen of his armies.

677-732 SIEGFRIED I

The current Empered Singlino falls out of the saddle at a critical ownerest during the Battle of Falter and is burnt to a crisp by his stan desgen in the confusion.

109-1115 BORIS I

"Fat" Borte Goldgabher is soriesreadly revisfed. He dies during the Black Plague. There is souch rejnicing in the structs.

124-1152 MANDRED I Mandred Shavendayer is killed by the blade of an assassin.

1152-2304

Anarchy reigns across the Empire. The succession is disbanded and the persinces rule themselves.

2304-2369 MAGNUS I Magnue the Pone is declared Emporer after the Great War and eshibites his court at Nalm at the first of the Griffin Euterers.

2411-2429 DIETER IV The isoempetent Dieter IV is deposed following the scandal of the collusion with the city-port of Marienburg, which Dieter albere to secole from the Empire in enchange for an expression answerd of gold.

2429 WILHELM III The creater passes to the Princes of Atalant, Wilhelm's arrowing quickly become famed for their pike blacks and heavy carsuley.

2502 KARLFRANZ Accession of Karl France, the reigning Emperor A new age of The Chaos incursion was eventually halted and repelled by a grand alliance of Dwarfs, Elves and Men, united by the legendary hero Magnus the Pious of Nuln.

After the force: We, Magnita was crossend as the new Emprone, regarring the succession. It is proported the Elsew Achemage Teslito to test the solvalor of the Empirico host to mainplate and control the Woods of Magie, that they might letter resist the damonds: therat the lacks at the dago the world. Teslic suggests to this length rate, the for know that whold Worksind fill as Chaos, the American the theory of the second strate the theory of the Magie that the American theorem and the second strate of the entry of the Magie that the American the American theorem and the Empirican the American theorem and the Bartier Marcel of the Cadlego of Magie have have the relation of the Second Sec

THE AGE OF KARL FRANZ

A man of action, Karl Franz is not afraid to take the fight to the enemy. When Castle Vorghaus was besieged by the massed tribes of Goblins that infested the forests all about, the Empire garrison therein laughed at the greenshins' bitful attempts to breach their walls. Their laughter died when six

giganic spilers stalked out of the woods, ranshack howards full of Gobin Christians mounted upon their backs. The giganic spiders trapped line veteran troops sent to intercept them with prot gobber of webbing and setuited over the high walls of the castle with case. Just as all seemed lost, Karl Para plunged from the skies upon Dathchan, below him a bodynard of Demicryphe-riding knights. The avain beasts tore into the arachnid monstrosities with back and case, and the Gobin tribes were soon routed.

Karl Franc has also established himself as an impuriled statusmon. When a freezisel horde of Monotaux stormed through the western reaches of Winselmand, fluctuage everything on their way between the second horizon of the second status of the Bases of the woods, theored the puth of the Reve forced to more back into the Engine Karl France effects of the second horizon of the second status effects of the second horizon of the second Eff court, and such was the passion and conviction of its speeches that the Karlog of the against the rampaging title. Tapplich the boas mains was a imply viety against the bases.

Under Karl Franz's rule, the Empire has become a well-coordinated and disciplined engine of war. In his heart, Karl Franz knows it can be no other way; for these are desperate times.

e Empire must abide We may be weary, we may be a loss may from home. But by Signar, we will resist the sail forces that would see Maskind fall with every drop of our blood over threat of our blades, every raceed breath. There can be no failure in this battle for the fate of the world. If the armies of the Empire do not emerge victorious from this long war, then there will be an world left to win."

Emperse Karl Franz, addressing his troops at the Battle of Mount Eyrie

Below: Emperar Karl Franz I, mounted upon Deathelaw.



THE YEARS OF CONFLICT

The long struggle for dominion stretches over millennia, the scars of its passige covering the lands from end to end. The word is littered with the detrinus of a hundred thousand battles. The bones of the dead lie scattered in shallow graves. Every vale, ford and copes has seen the blood of warriors spilt, and for each battle paid homage by the minstrel's lute there are a multitude that lie shroulde in the mists of time.

Yet in this world of everlasting strife there are battles so great they have been seared into the fabric of history, stories of heroism and brutal violence so widespread they are known to vaunted kings and lowly pessants alike. Their underlying message is as clear as a herald's call – in this violent and, soarese world, dentalance is certain. This is the false of Vasar – heed it well.



-6000 TIME OF DRAGONS

The skies of the world are ruled by great deales. Even the majestic Emperor Dragots of the present day are as newborns by comparison.

C-5900

The Old Ones arrive. The name of the world are named up to inherit the lands

C-5600

THE GREAT CATACLYSM Chass enters the sportal Darmonic

Costo entery one corrue, Lanemann, handes barrt impe die material dimension and even rampant acrust the lands. The civilization of the Litaerdown and these of the new resce created by the Old Own are brought to their knew in the resultant catastrophe and the battle that fullows.

C.5000

The Densel's begin their dues submitted of the White Edge Manustains. As any of industry darsa sources the surroy parks as the Dasafe figure end duper in march of guide and yoards, following could in autorensous onglowing. Evol hears and Damoni huasts for black depth, ho among the Damof, mark hears and a Groupsi, Valaya and Groinst, and the Dasafe hear source related as fight. These hears for source dashes

-4500 A HERO ASCENDANT

On the island continent of Ulthuon, the Elf-hero Aenarian is recognized as the chosen of Assergan.

-4460 to -4420 THE RITUAL COMPLETE

At the Battle of the Isle of the Duad, Caledor Dragontamor fonishes his groat usede, surrounded by innumerable armies of the ravenues and the daemonic.

4119

The Elves of Ulthouse traverse the scanes to land in the Old World.

C-4000

Contact is last herecore the Datarfy of the Worlds Edge Mountains and the Datarf autometer in Zere Urlahl, Bershow by their people and their gold, the actors Datarfy zero to the strendpile of the Father of Darbuen, Harbut. The forst citadels of the Chase Datarfe rained in the pollitet deploy of the Dark Larke.

-289

The temple-city of Chapayul didat under the tracted during a materies tectomic sphearcal. Distactiongly for the Slame, this event is not prophesied in the plaques of the Old Ones.

-2751 Malekish, phe Witch King, attempte to

take the Phoenix Crown by force.

-2750 THE GREAT MAW

A shawic warpatnee neterrite planmats from the sky abere for Cashay and Jamu has the komelands of the Ogre triker prograg opon shar great nation. Howdredl of showcards of Ogres die in the exoning impact. When the dust clears, a great fang-lined warp hondreds of leagues acrus dominant hondreds of leagues

THE YEARS OF CONFLIC

A NOTE ON CHRONOLOGY

Though the elder circultuations count the parage of the decader in their rans fashion, the datar before are told in the redoming of the Imperial Calendar. Year One of the Imperial Calendar marks the foreign of the Empire by the Igendary keys Signar. As such, many of the datar here are lated with a negative momber, as the general before this typemate date. Such is the imperature of Symar is the small of Markind.

-2749 to -2725 THE SUNDERING

Civil taur erupts acress Ulthuum. At the caloninasion of his master plan, Malohish astrongts to dearroy the asonic vortex hull by Caledor Dragontanore.

-2523

The Ogne trahe of Badg Legenter houst derem and decours the phonoid horde of Ghalg Stathenas after hearing that Holgohlin flesh 'states a bit like beef'.

-2500 to -2000 RISE OF NEHEKHARA The desert kingdows of Nehekhara fourisk inte acondance.

-1968 to -1750 DARK SECRETS IN THE DESERT

A cabul of Dark Elf mages and severences teach the ways of Dark Magic to Nayash, setting in mation the events shat will see Nebekhara reduced to a land of the living dead.

C-1600

The Sharcon emerge as the masters of Sharconblight, and the Under-empire logism to spread across the rooteld like the roote of a gigantic and anexhilesome exced.

-1500 A NEW COLONY

The bax Eff army departs from the Od World to reinforce their onkatiled besterne, loaring behical only a free thousand hardy consists to be reflue to loare the verdant forests and declore thomselves independent of the Phoneix Threms. The rosailland realm what will become Abde I serve is bunded.

=1499 THE GOBLIN WARS Or: and Gables tribes electedly invade the

previously impenetrable Desarf realms.

-1095

THE BATTLE OF LOREN

Is the dark depth of viewens, the Boasmon of ohe Odd World was forth to depted and pervert the sylvess readin of the Wood Elves. Battle is joined at the edge of the format as line after time of Wood Elves form up to repel the massed heard of Morphon, Lord of Shalls.

-917

Nebebbara is invested by the Lizardonon of the Southlandi. The giant reptiles of the Lizardonon vaributist are eventually slain values the Licke Priests ficus the rays of the new through the intervend prieses of being gold-capped pyramids.



-2500 to -2000

The great city of Mankind that toill one day become Sharweblight group ever more populau until it is the largest city in Old World.

C.2500

FIRST REIGN OF KING SETTRA

Settra computers the entirety of the Nelsobharan continent from one end to the schere. Upon his death bed Settra is servinised eventual reservction.

-1997 to -1560 THE WAR OF THE BEARD

War erspit between the roces of Doose and Eff. The two empires grind each other to a standatall, abaugh victory is attimutely claimed by King Gareb Starbreaker of the Datarfs.

-1578 MUSHROOM SURPRISE

The Dark Eff direct host known in the Children of the Black Lata documed an unaxe upon the black Gaf string of Night Gablias. In desponsion, the behasport Night Gablian cuty their meiner harvest of madage mathematic into the Corex Spaig peor. The resultant samsage sets a smat suffigieling stratement by the Dark Eleca lafers the formatiof, freibling Spaign zures apon their Gablias matters.

-1500 THE SHATTERING

The Slaven Mage Lord Quese realigns the continents visib a great ribual, causing maxime aphenrals and empires to crawhle. Lord Quese reasorab behandly with a july blaubattle before lapsing back into transcendental meditation.

-1367

Warlord Urk Gringfang, balatered by hie informas Orc Borna Beyn, seites the previous hold of Mount Silverspear from the Droarfs. It is thereafter known as Moure Grinofian.

-1151 THE AWAKENED ONES

The Tomb Kings of Nehekhara attaken prematurely from their deathly slambers

-1125 THE WINTER OF WOE

A huge Orc and Gablin arrey manages to ponstrate Ashal Laren shrough abore eccipte of moniters: Arrival and Orion become King and Quaren of the Wined, and just as it aroun all is lans, Orienie's porcer manifests fully. He shoughters the Ores visibent mores as the head of Vish Wild Hume.

-732 BLOOD ON THE SNOW

During the reign of Tablia the Slaver, Malekish makes a last delth attempt so artic Uthans from his remains by lanushing a outset offensive protected from the being cald by fill magic. Had armine cat a randow across the lead before being engged fally at the inflamma Steps of Far Lehan. There are no survivors on inform falls.

C-513 THE EIGHT PEAKS FALL

After a long and bitarily contexted ware, the stone-heren fertresses of Karak Eight Poale fail one by one, eventually successfolg to the underhanded statics of the Shareen and the perpetual ide of devians generation evening the Decorf relations.

THE YEARS OF CONFLE

-15

A NEW ALLIANCE

King Kurgan Ironbeard is rescord from the greenshins by Signar and, in gratitude, Kurgan gifts the runic hammer Ghal Maruz to the barbarian obieftain.

THE BATTLE OF BLACK FIRE PASS

A massive horde of Orez and Gohlinu are defeated by Signur and his Drearf allies in a battle of such scale it changes the course of history. The Empire is forged in its reads.

1 THE ACCESSION OF SIGMAR

Signar is crystoned Emperor and his tractice Chiefbains become the first lords of the Empire provinces.

101 THE WAR FLEETS SAIL FORTH

Settra calls for his Khemrian tsar flots to be valued and made surrorthy once more.

176

K. 5-70-0/00000

"B gasted against incursions of the action of Chaos in the north, the Dark Elson India a ortics of jugged establishers across the moderne benefits of their models. They non person their worth, forecauring and Innex allocating the armitics of the Dark Elson in overcome a Marsadar instains.

554

A Dark Eff cursair flost is dragged locath the startes by an ostilongie of subsersible craft that appear to be hall obje and half trades. Only our of the Drachit cursairs survives, and his take of usualle-funged supervises from the deaths are dimined as and-machenic

888 to 954 THE NEW WORLD

After the Norcaus captorer Laterichans descreen the jungle environe of Lateria, a analy face of railers creates the scene to phonder the raises of the Lateriabans ougher. The Status thes a dim screes of the and craft the incuders with arreise of Sarray, campaging Sixyahon and maxite excelsants. Rather than deriving of the Norcaus this moving screes to roisoner nore Warriser of Claus mode the junners across the course in screet of givers.

SALO CO

THE WAR OF THE NOSES

When the vaim Skarson Warlord Ratgat has his long and ethichered nonat act off by a captive Galidia, he declares notal vane upon all Galifankinal. He fondly release vales: Galidia Warlow Magrad-Fangermath agrees to forfeit his oron vanty une are a condition of scorender.

THE BLACK PLAGUE

The trile Sharten unleach their Black Plague agun the Empire. Three quarters of the Empire's population is trajpal out by this most deadly of decence.

C1450 to 1452 A WAR OF SAND & STEEL

The Knightly Orders of the Empire mattern from Japane the correspt and soverenas Statum Juffer of Aradys. Hunderdo of Unsusandi of Navights free Easting from Japane Y Astehon, and Sater that your they take the fighte into the reline downes of Aradys itself. Despite his control of the and dyness and forcy ofteness of the downer, Juffer's congire is determed a remark him.



15

Also Magash estimated his compires of the dead. Despising the weakling rate of wars, he invokes the weakly-founded empire of Signar, aided by several of the vampires that resears from calle to fight adongside their local. In a steamic duel Nagash is claim by the havemer of Signar and the vampires by the havemer of Signar and the vampires

50 A NEW ACE

After decades of relatives prosperity, Signer vanishes into the east, never to be son again. Is the jalax the system of Elestor Canast is established, valuenty the previousial leaders elest one of obsir another to be Emperence. Their hadges of office are the magical Randfangs, forged by the Desart Ransemble Marie to Mad

619 THE BATTLE OF MOUNT FIREHEART

These Efficient of Ubbase hand a lot of the III de Doron quest to define that of the III de Doron quest to define the III de III de organ of the visual steps of Monet and Step and Step and Step and Step and December of Deal III de III de III de III de Carlos meng and step and III de III de Carlos meng and step and III de III de Carlos Meng and step and III de Deage, she means inform with the step by the physical means the tem to the mean first the statement deal by the physical means the inform and the means the statement the statement of the inter except and the Statement Statement the statement of the statement deal statement deal statement for the interstatement and the statement for the inter statement deal statement for the inter statement of the statement for the inter statement of the statement of the statement of the inter statement of the statement of the inter statement of the statement of the statement of the inter statement of the statement of the statement of the statement of the interstatement of the statement of the statement of the statement

976 to 995 THE LADY AND THE KNIGHT

In the One-optimal and of Strömen, Union I Bornen is visually for Lady of the Lade. She blenne him and his convestis, allorating these to drive from her second duller and heatening upon them apportant protect. They unlie the disparate orihes of the Brotomi, forming the Grand Companion and driving the Orael Companion and

100-

During the optimic of Thin-Iper, the recent Stain Lord Matalementh finally concludes his studies of the plaques of Huadi. He raises the Gorg Generations monotain range in the path of an onormous Dark ES increasion that is costing a routhe through wardners Lustria, causing its creatual donies in the worknerst jungle.

1520 THE RAVAGES OF CORTHOR

Gorbor the Boatlord, environry of the Dark Godi and the most deality Reactman ever to have led his armits from the forest, invados the Empire. Hir sampsping border utterly derivey the sity of Hergig and bring two entire pervisions to their kness.

1681 NIGHT OF THE RESTLESS DEAD

Nagash resurns to life once again, 1,666 spars after he total slobe by the more-god Signar: The death site and total the look, dampines tange totar spon the living, and moire tallages and private holes are overrow by arrans and spirite hefter the deaths fouldy heads out the god of andatus mobile.

THE YEARS OF CONFLICT

WAAAGH! GORBAD

The USE Water of Lorenza de Tomains The USE Water of Lorenza de Tomains Data School and Agenetic and School and Data School is all might and assering that Marketing shall be also services and designs annotability also full asserts of Solida at the School and School and in TEARS Const. It is also services and the School and School and an TEARS Const. It is also for Solida at the School and School and School and TEARS Const. It is also for Solid School and School and School and School and School School and School and School and School and School School and School and School and School and School and School School and Sch

A MAIDEN'S SWORD

The Chaos Lord Kharom loads bis innumene plague flort to the coast of Berromoia, The load is sorred only by the heraizen of Repanse de Lynnesse, the Dannisoffie de Gaerre, who skays Lord Kharow is single combast and leads the Revenuins to a universitour without

205

The Signuaritie prophet Gunther von Linten sets fire to his ocen beard whilst lighting his pipe. His screams of pain or in motion the Flagellant Schirm and plange Stirland into religious war?

2271-2304 THE GREAT WAR AGAINST CHAOS

The forces of Chaos unite in the north and march south to accoil the Empire

ATTACK OF THE GOBLIN KING

Gron the Possenk of Mitry Monostrio Tanda hi Wasagi Monog he India of the Dangi, screme the merit and meri the Engine, name the merit and merit of OM World, you have no haide a rannohable face from the monostra of his comparts. Grows i grow mandas anothere ends age incuding: University and the screening of the second fights hand of grownham rangen antern Ubhana hofter king daptad hy the service of Ethomas the Grows.

2441

Queen Ariel of the Wood Elves concludes that isolationine will lead to the altimate destruction of her realm, and directs her armies to p forth in battle against the servants of Chan in the world.

2515

THE BLACK-IRON REAVER

The Chase Lord Martikis, leader of the Hill Legion, invade: Oxtand at the bload of an invenence bench. Allied neith the first damgon Shalex the Great, Marthin's forces shaughter the defenders of Kidev and forge southeards to the city of Wegong instead upon yth more batchery.

THE CORONATION OF THE EVERCHOSEN

A one-philipli Signarite print learns a terrible rank and turus is the scorehop of the Raiwan Phores. Taking the mann Archaon, his quest ster from recover all eight of the dark netificities of Closes from the frac coverse of flow torold and beyond. Decader laters, in the year 2519 he is creational Exercisions, the shiftmate accorded for a score and of the Closes much



1730

The elder Shagguth, Kholok Samater, is frend from his glacial prism by the rugue Chass Surgerer Malufex.

1797 A RED DAWN

Viad ton Carstein become toe jurit Vianpire Caunt of Sylvania, gradually corrupting and infiniting the aristocracy of the province with the curse of tumpirism.

2000

A recisi-scaled came soury across the night skin. Som after, a ginet meter reader doese in the middle of the city of Martheim. Interpid treasure hunters from many different races venture into the hunted strengt to claim the hunty of specificuse role that lise scattered about.

2301 BATTLE OF FINUVAL PLAIN

During the Grant Way, Davie Ellevi imma Utiliana mare winn offen direction is and if of their Ghave-merchapping allies. The Dansense Network in ware and accura Utiliana, astrophing in ellevisate the lessing of Assertian data with the Beine of Assertian data in the Network Steine of Assertian data in the Network Steine of Assertian data in the Network Steine of Assertian data. The Assertian Steine of Assertian data is the Inverse of Having and Davies, but Witch King Ing in digitat of Tachawal Davies, but Witch King in digitat of Tachawal Davies, but Witch King in digitat of Tachawal Davies, but Witch King in digitat of Tachawal Tachawa Instein (Davies in the Assertian Steine Steiner astick Human in the OAM Medial.

2500

Lonen Lenneneur is crotened king of all Bretennia, and protes to be both a suggeous ruler and a firre general intent on renetzing the crussel against the force of darkness.

2502 REIGN OF KARL FRANZ

The accession of Karl Franz to the thron sees the Imperial armies revolutiond and threast into your against the exils that plague the Old World.

2503

Karak Azud is attached by the voorband of Gorgang Bogus, valo breach the hold, defences by means of a hidden toward." The king's one, Kazurik, is observe and mailed to his father's threase as an ionale to the old king before the Orec make their escape work beire contrars.

21

PRIDE AND POWDERKEGS

The Importal Solid of Engineers Labor shear bear impossing strangeness that of balar Denard allars, loading to ranging argoments. The resultants (field training contrast staathen tabien auch side discider to field of constart-states free. Before long the size in field a sub-intervention, and side helitatore models, while a sphelology, from monitors and al description aughts and helitatore results, while a sphelology, from monitors and al description aughts and text asymptotic aughts and text asymptotic aughts and text asymptotic aughts and and text asymptotic aughts and text and text asymptotic aughts and the sphelology.

2522 STORM CLOUDS GATHER The armies of the world master once we

for a new era of mercilen conflict.





THE EMPIRE

The Empire of Man is the greatest nation of the Old World, spanning the conincent from the southern Brodre Princes to sourcedad Kisle's in the north. Over two millennia of bloodshed have passed since the coming of the Empire's founder, Signar, 'Et thanks to the discipline and determination of its armise, the Empire has grown strong; a realm of progress and eivilisation anidet a see of swapeer.

AN EMPIRE UNDER SIEGE

Though its underskiph the mightest of all human rudins, the Empire is in constant turned, best on all addes by the surgest of the tubes of the first inference of the tubes of tubes of

THE LANDS OF MEN

Though the Empire might constantly present ineff as a single constru unified under the three of the Empiret, the that is far none compared. The tricks of the Empiret are undoabtedly the jenels in the antiark around, where the pinatch of human achievement is clear for all to see. Generosciences are accounted by transformed the glicked minators of aroan universities, and the parts the Empire is a hand of supervision and finth adrift in an endlow sea of forces. So dense in the france that are not a transformed to a compared to a single of the si

Nometheless, the Empire is a truly vest nation, and all the more powerful for it. Each province has its own forces, we machines and difficult ecologophyce J can be Electric Course that rade over and province have their own first from which they hall. The capital stars we difficult the forms for its regularized of the Constrainty of the stars of the stars of the star from one of the stars of the Constrainty numerical ingold stars were as Reakhed is then aufform a stars of difficult the stars of the stars of the stars of the stars from a stars of Geffining, whereas the particular providers of Stirland is found for its hustness. Instanced Subferences they call house As it is the values the same of stars of the for particular the base. Instanced Subferences they call house As it is the values the same of the form particular the stars magnificant in conceal instant to bringing vieways to the ratio of man.

EMPEROR KARL FRANZ OF ALTDORF

Since the time of Sigmar, some of the Empire's rulers have turned out to be wise and just, and some corrupt or tainted by madness. Thankfully, the current incumbent is of the former variety.

Over the course of the ring, Experser Karl Fanza has proven to be an incredibly name backtion that increased, has a hardwork forces an increase of Chara Warrols from the next. Rell Fanza led the Imperial names deep into the Stadowlands in a different sampler that the theory of the match, they varies of the Charas instances of the an exact has the same the same of the match, they varies of the Charas instances before it had even began. When the Ebos of Ulhuma bengdu same of a Dark Elf Fanza france and the course of Namilla, Alf Fanza was eady to meet them more it has been for the back of their Half Elf allow at the Relle of Reldford, the Tanjee reverpoing the back more and particle Tank at the Rell of Reldford, the Tanjee revertion of a same life the same part of the the theory of the theory course more of the same instance of the the same in the same of the same theory of the theory of the instance of the the same instance of the same theory of the same reverse of the instance of the same theory and theory particles. The same reverse of the course of the instance of the theory of the same particles of the same theory of the same reverse does not could be the theory of the same of the same reverse of the course of the instance of the theory of the same particles are used to for same the same thesa th



THE EMPIRE

The Engine is a land dominate by deep dark jurnets stresses with spiker codes on this sum-covered remains of the failure. Its humrilands are implead with all wind of perili, from the arrange Bastames to meanading generations. These forests are parameter by the pairs of extra and the stress and pairs of extra and the stress and the raisin of generapate DJ cities datroyed during the War one to the isor of forer human, were the last of forer human.

The unsubser and externs lands give Engine on wears forsilized, weah sumerous forsilized in built along the magnificant Krew Rolt. The Reddond is the board of the Reddond is the board of the Engine, and Assam the current capital along shall be the Ather The Dispute Scheduler waldersons that rises into the work dangerone. In wild and Pathers Lieft, Montanios is far wore dangerone. In wild and Montaned Pather three of hardy Fighters took form the hardboard of many of the Engin's arresian

AN ALLIANCE RENEWED

When the Duraf King Kolograde Zhafer nas an around and the Zhafer nas and and start and the start of the



THE GRAND MUSTERS OF THE EMPIRE

Though the armies of the Engine therboars a flarging profession of sparrise and specifics of different stripes, the bard of event any in the most of uniformal diricity at in cortre. Each province keeps a vare body of rate troops active and rady for ware, prefersional solidarie dailled in the body card of a https:// Example.com/engineers/armie/arm

THE INGENIOUS MACHINES

The various institutions of the Engine have flowinded under Kull Franziv rade, and the Imperial School of Engineers in so concrine. Experts in the call of such the Engineers more construct to observe error to deadly and dahematily manch machiness of downstrein their source backback and listics one the Heinbarer Valler Gauss and Heistone Rocker Hanton's to complement the neure traditional Genat Cannons and Mentra produced by the Gaussery School of Nuka. The exercise Kaughers who crutice study and dovices reports handpara, genated handwide Mukaler Hanton, while the Menta and dovices reports handpara, genated handwide Mukaler Hanton, Hennis Wanaker Japano School and dovices encloy Heavy are not machinal experiments on an study are deployed some. Nath and the sparse flat. The mathemation and domitors of the Engineers from trave ansults conclosable by the grane direct. The Machinesian and domitors of the Engineers from trave ansults for experimental and trave and the direct Model School and 2010 area guidely forgetten after the first good dompone. Meria II, their machinesia or Neura are direct power for from powerfal complete for factors and the sparse direct. The mathematica and the theory of the Engineers from trave smally conclosable by the Darmon Cannors and the Andretter Madel School meria.

THE KNIGHTLY ORDERS

The Knight Orders of the Engine are another powerful too in Karl Frank's milliong second. Each Order has a people bringment and history, and many of them are freered with host all are freely devoted to the Censon. It is the Knightly Orders who provide the heavy cavely of the Empires, all land read Masters of the Knightly Orders had here runs ford, gallering towards the first preveaby judged Masters of the Knightly Orders had here runs ford, gallering towards the first preveaby indepenting and they drive the Orders and its the order of the Charles or and the Snightly Orders had the runs of the Angel and the second se

FIRE, FURY AND FAITH

These near superiors of Imperial institution, the Collago of Majić, also was strong under Koll Fanzy' raike, Funded by Magnus the Poss and antened by the Evan enchange Telia for Uthuna, the Collago of Majić teach those with sovery in their isolot how to harnes and alare their spellund trapk become fully fileding Mattel Warner. Though the directs Calloga wild porcers taken from the cight different Wards of Majić, all are deviating to wintens upon the field of Hante. Some and strong body on encourse, one for the source of the strong teachers of the source of transfermation and any and a so early their body to the table to the source of the strong fully of the strong teachers of the strong teachers of the strong teachers of transfermation and any and a source of their bodies to take body ends in the strong teachers of the first body of the strong teachers of the strong teachers of the strong teachers of the strong teachers of the first body of the strong teachers of teachers of the strong teachers of teachers of the strong teachers of the strong teachers of the strong teachers of teachers of teachers of teachers of teachers of teachers of teac

The realm of the supernatural is not the sole province of the Bathe Warards. The Signumatic creed is alwe and well in the armise of Karl Franz, its practicioners dealing out rightcoase retribution with thme and hammer to the manifold early of the world. The first Wardrov Prives of Signum are formidable combatnas as well as workers of battlefuld minicks, leaking by example at the front lines or, in the case of the Arch-Lectors themeelese, riding to battle upon a towering WarAltar of Signum 4 and and the super solution of the solutio



BRIGHT WIZARDS

These turbs varied the Lars of Fire, gloen called Personancers, channed the Wind of Apply, They are the most destructure of all Bathe Wizards, for saving flaves is theirs to commondel Unfortunately for them, the voind Apply is upperdictable and wold, Hence is in not anomal for a Bright Wizard to invested to histoff wolds a single mitplack histoff with





AN ARMY UNITED

A view chain once noted that the Empire of Man thress because of in differences, not in optic of them. This has proven to be expectively recurs unce field of varsa Monda invisuoling army manage to weather the faithfules of black powder weapons, concating magic and storm of arillery first while the faithfules of black powder weapons, concating magic and storm of arillery first while the distribution of the spears and blacks of the start troops not denoty the for complet, the Knight O-Oters will hand the drouges, finallying with lines what was arred with creakes both and lacd hole. In the data shous che the start troops not denoty the for increakes the band hand hole. In the data shous che the start troops may may and all the while amount of the Empire are a deally as they are downed, with the wite and will of the finet general holing these through the transmitted barras.

THE UNUSUAL DEMISE OF LORD VETHRIC

When the grand army of Tablebaland mattered in huse shown and datary do suggest Sourcer Lard When the grand army of Tablebaland mattered in huse theorem and datary do suggest Sourcer Lard Copital Lance had mattered use only his exterior order bat also one sour regiments of order do that storing the dynamic structure of the control of the control of the storing of the storing of the storing of the storing of the control of the storing of the story has storing of the story has story of the sto

With a muffled thanderclap, a stampede of black-tongued Daemons riding atop musclebound crimom bulls burst out from the ether and cruthed into the Empire army's flank. From the voods came gigantic blade-legged centipedes and fleshworms the size of wagon trains, catching up Odo's

knights with southe-like mandibles and science them abart. The Empire army counterattacked with susto, refusing to horn before the Sorverer's commoned levions. The daemon capalry met its match in the Carrobury Greatstoords, scho stood fast even in the face of the most punishing assault, but schen a flamecoreathed meteorite of warpstone thundered out of the heavens and obliterated the best part of the Empire army, the struggle seemed hopeless. Then sounded Ancient Fury's tooin great cannons, and trundling forward the Steam Tank plourhed headlowr into the section of the citadel already weakened by its cannonade before exploding spectacularly. With almost unbearable slowness, the Sorcerer's citadel toppled downtoard into the battle below. flattening several more regiments but in the process crushing Lord Vethric and silencing his conjugations forever.

There was a grand victory feast in Copperfinger's halls that night, but it is runnoured that there were fewer than twenty survivors able to attend it.



THE IMPERIAL

MENAGERIE Emperor Karl Franz has few

when a second state of the second state of the

Overlasf: After the avariations Border Prince von Hogklaut returns from his lacrative treasure-howing riskl into the far south, the city of Gosthelburg is foreat to defeed itself from the terrifying legions of the vongeful Khonrian monarch King Aphet II the Exernally Undergring,







BRETONNIA

Rectamins in the land of chivalry and honoux. Its huidts are the most valuma candigment in the Odl World, watched over by a mysterious goddess known only as the Lady. In times of war, each of the noble lords of the realm summons his returne of thousands of loyal huidts = a truby majesic slight in their shining armour and percod heralidic liveries. The charge tories that their shining armour and percod heralidic liveries. The charge tories with hone, hond and blewed blade.

RISE OF THE BRETONNI

Cover these successings, the critical values of the literation coupled the territory that like between the force where successing the critical values of the literation coupled the territory that literation of the survival against numeralizing brocks or derivations. Robing numerics of generalizing every estimates they found literation of these despersions in their works of the physics of the subscripts of the territory that they are subscripting every estimates of the survival against survival successions in their works of the subscripts of the subscription of the literation survival task back when we regulated interactions the structure of the history data structure and the back when the subscription is an array of leader and the innexers. He would take the literation involution the back when the surgebulk theorem leader and the innexers. He would take the literation involution the literation is a structure of leader and the innexers. He would not the literation involution the literation in the literati

The brave locks soon joined their forces into one single mighty army and embarked on a great crusade to rid the lands of the Brettomi from the evils that plagued it. Preparing for the next day's bufte against an immense Orc borde, Gilles and his Companions took their rest near a lake on the dage of the enchantel Forest of Chilom. Upon its hary shores, a fey vision appeared before them.

THE FAITHFUL REWARDED

As Gilles rested, a woman of incomparable beauty and mystery emerged from the mists covering the lake. She approached the Companions, moving over the waters without once stirring them. In her deliate hands he bore an ornaute golden graft birmining with holy power.

Gills and his Companions have his pixon humility and, recogning the Lady as a drive measurgan they drive most has be service. In network, belows the meen by allowing them to drink from the Grail. Infrared with supernatural corregies, Gills and his (companions were forever drink above the level of mostl services. The immunor heat perplandent and imperentiable, their blades and latence sufficient the descrutive power. Though they had kords a barbaric hovemen, they new as node humples. or the role are listen to the Lade.

UNIFICATION AND CONQUEST

Led by such association declargings, the trains of the Brennin conjuent all, fighting their way across the hard and all been from person grade non-the field arctitest the beet them. Many waynes, across the hard and all field intermet of that and the new results that the beet them. Many waynes, and more tools, filled with over fitting hard that fills for the bay received, came forward with their and more tools, filled with over fitting hard starking for the bay received, came forward with their Companies in the twelve major thaties of this scared ware of unification became length, forming the scale of the Brennin Code of Cabalty for the interview of the precision. It is also fit the metricular Code of Cabalty for contrast to come . The hard scale of the Brennin set functions are functionable and the scale of the s

Eventually, the land was free from evil. Those dark creatures not destroyed by Gilles' crusade were forced to hide underground, or in the heart of wild, untamed forests. Thus was the Kingdom of Bettonnin formed, united by Gilles and defended by his harve kinghts.



BRETONNIA

Bretomia lies to the south and toest of the Empire, betcoem the Grey Mountains and the endless reaches of the Middle Soa.

Each of Bretonnia's provinces are readed over by dakes subsec coeather-stained castles rise into the air in imitation of the abandoned Elf totvers along her northern cast. Like much of the country, they are under constant regair and reconstruction.

Compared as the teaching rotate of the Engine, the sumformed of Pertennia are particular, the down and improvemential. The land beats to use at a formating with modeline supportion of parameters and brocks patient down the enable codeling, and the greater part of the construct source is down the enable codeling, and the greater part of the construct source is down the enable codeling, and the greater part of the construct source is down the order benchmark of the boson on the phondow of its building, for colours a fine approxement is just as important as the boson of oge of encound and lance.



Suffig Guiles was taken from his people, strack down by a controlly was regaring furthermolecular to the people of the strate of the people of the strate o

ON THE ROSE OF BRETONNIA AND ITS THORNS

Since these glowines times of similarcian, the bislowy of Bretnmin has been one of constant stranged and star. Were against the controls whothow _ myrehy aggresses who violate the subscript of the Land of the Lank; intent on plancher or composets. We segainst the control within _ — the debased diathers of the Dark Cods who shoy and harms in the names of their cod' all wers, are those where highly fight against taight, dalk against duke. Fostered by minimum, wine pick, hereng, has then adjusted and a gread, the interestic strift has have the the core of Brennanis more than any other energy. Only the rule of a strong monarch can strop the historing adjusted tacks, setth their quarters has all direct the powerful energy of a united Brennanis against the real energy. When this happens, the aution's haightly armites ride out on node crauseds, whether within the boldens of the real nor to fire of lands.

Throughout the contrainty, was then of Anights have: crosed the moutation in the Enzipic, Teach, Teach, Endoe Tevinces and the Endots, or have embedded upon general galous that have carried the warriers and their networks into fizzenzy lands. A Norcea, Araby, Albien and even the moutations land of the Deal Thrue, in the braining least of the Medhama desert, galant knights have done hubbs; with the Undying Lagoin of the Tionk King, glorious formations of homemotanding through densing sequences of a startistic sequences and the start of the start and the start was the carding through densing sequences of the tion for the start of the start was the starting donesand by produced lowar and the start and the start was the start sector that enzymes and the start of the start of the start of the start start of the start in the start sector that enzymes and the start of the start of the start start of the start in the start. Mounteenal Betonain fortness have been thin in these foreign lands in order to counted renzor provises in the same of the Kenzym based to be even yield for the finance and the start at exect.



A THE CLARP PARE

History has sprend again and again the truth of the action Brenninin adage. The realm and the King are out? Truth the lines have without and utilized under the other them of correng or avan dures one only has to look as first as the caused city of Monillion to use the truth of thin - but has thread well by a strung King with solvoyids the fixour of the Link of the Link. The Maniler actuation of such a man, one shows vitrues rived these of collises. It Betters hinself, is the current rule of Bettershin in Regularized Bettership and the structure of King and Sender Sender and Regularized Bettership and the structure of the structure of the structure of the structure structure in the structure of the structure of the structure of the structure structure in the structure of the structure structure in the structure structure of the structure stru

THE PAGEANTRY OF WAR

The greater mass of each Dack's warmy is comprised of Knights of the Realm. Organices in a street focula hierarchy, those shurts-emproved warms in the to the field data is the interpose units of emmour overhaid with rich liveries that are endbacaned with their finally herafalic devices. Alongiads these becoming infinitely of Knight of the Realm. All first year and sorrage Sarene syn their in their vision ranse the local of the Realm of the Realm. All first year and sorrage Sarene syn their in their vision ranse the local of the Electron each in three with briefford line for herafield and the local real of the local of the Reare and the strength of the local real and the local of the Reare she that one with briefford line of the strength of the strength of the local real and the local of the Reare she to an early the data of a danard's braced with which these warraws spent much of their time training in the jurits. So shall have the kinght that they can be a strength of the strength of the data of the data of the strength of the thread of the Line of the local of the Linear theory is the local of the Reare brace of a data of braced with the data of the data of the data of the strength at the local of the thread of the theory line of the line of the line of the local of the line of the local of the line of the line of the local of the line of the line of the local of the line of the line of the local of the local of the line of the local of the line of the local of

The Bretonnian cavalry is unstoppable upon the open field, but it is also invariably in control of the skies above. Formations of knights mounted upon Pegasi and Hippogriffs will challenge and engage the skyborne lords of the enemy force before driving down to impale the rank and file of the for.

The dukes and barons can also call upon the Men-at-arms that normally garrison their castles and even the shabby pessants that till their fields, men who smell so pungent that their odour is a weapon in its own right. Such men are employed where the terrain is not suitable for horses, or used as expendiable folder to pin an enemy long enough for the knights to deliver a decisive charge.

THE FAVOUR OF THE LADY

Whilst a Bretonnian knight fights in a noble and pious manner he is rewarded by the protection of the Lady of the Lake. Imbued with this divine energy, he is almost invincible. His armour will deflect shot and baleful curse, his lance will pierce through steel and bone, and his charge will smash another the tighter blue block or most solid shield wall.

Before the buffet, even as the energy begins its advance, the Beronnian ramy remains where it has amongs its diffe for hard The winght of movem, threat their works that the ground and lacel before them in sitting and proger. The morning mit coalesces into the image of a lady of grant beauxy and treffice and the subscription of the subscription of the subscription of the sitting of infinite, them with her supernatural power. The knights frame remeved in their anicating them with finith in the behavior, involution of the sitting of a lady of program their node testeds, lower their vision and gallog bounds the energy, gaining upped and unstoppable impetus as they spar into find sharps.

The force of the Lady is not only manifest in visions and scrace work, but also in the form of the gamplicent Knight of the GraIL. They are text-dampion, the fee spin source with sevenced in their personal Quark for the GraI and are allowed to drink from the chailes as a reward, becoming the prander of children in the mostl work. On Eladysh are always by for number that, as proven by Gillas in centuries past, each of these supreme varions is able to high holes of lower cratters with near. In their was come processions of drouced hard's Papiers and Stranger will, here are leaded by appending for meters, hists and other maturing lacks to all the Betonnians -otherworkdy gamedians, ghostly howevers from ages part the souid of Engolsen trainings, and error to translasser, they for the land helf. They has in ald hard meters in a buf always of chinary of the manalesser appiers of the land helf. They has a supremeter of the souid of Engolsen trainings, and other matures. In their section of the sing helf and they the souid of Engolsen trainings, and errors and the single section of the land helf. They have a supremeter of the single section of the chinary



THE GREEN KNIGHT

When the black of plantic most disk of plantic most and plantic plantic plantic plantic plantic lengths of the advectory most plantic plantic of the splatic plantic plantic plantic of the splatic plantic pl

Corelagi Tah hendidi desiang di pina cabarata Brassminian Piladatu, Leftwart ana be area biranya di abata di Lenfri Ratatiagen (Lynama Galar) di ber agida hakatana ensonieri taha ing panggi kebanan Galar di ber agida hakatana ensorieri taha anganan (Lina Kanghan) Anganan (Lina Kanghan) Anganan (Lina Kanghan) Angana (Lina Kanghan







DWARFS

The Dwarfs are a venerable and proud race, born from a long distinguished line of warrior thanes and vengeful kinds. Craftsmen beyond compare, they dwell in great subterarnean fortresses far from the light of the sun. The traditionalist Dwarfs have much in common with their stony kingdoms, for every one of their number is as subborn and unyielding as rock.

THE GLORY OF PAST DAYS

Sance name immemental due Dourd empire has been centred upon the Werkle Edge Mountains. Moring the examenees broundary of the OU Workl, this vise and forbidding mountain range is scorared by Bizzards and six storms of such facre that their halfs-sharp halitones can Huy a mity statistic from his fields. This bodtens the Doursfor out all, the three downain is almost entirely underground. Beakden, as any Doursf would be keen to tell you, such trifling concerns as weather are of fight issue to a near to study that be some of Grompsi.

During use the generate manys, smallers and explores in all the world. A the height of their, empirit, their manages undergrand strongholds syread from the first root to the distant seath - a parts habened of smalls, here and forteness that held the warge howdras at bay. To bis sidy their undergrander particulation, here and forteness that held the warge howdras at bay. To bis distance and here and here and here and his hough hidden from the world at large, are true wordcers of architecture. The curvators holds of Karza-Karak are the most breathading of all –even the ensates half a large cought to wordlow the Grand Temptor (50 grann in Abder) where see.

Tagacity, the gloy days of the Dearf race are long gone, for during the Time eWees a series of catchyonic exchanges and valcain errorison cripted at oral by the fortnesses and keeps of the dd civiliations but abs the extension. The accord terms of the Dearf race have taken every opportunity to capitalize upon this misfortune, constantly fighting to trac down and down what is kef of the Dearf empties. So is that the last remains of the DWarf races are properably locked in hards against OCess, Golina, Tunili, Savera, Dragons, Dramons and the drag monotyne more than the active approximation of the OWarf control and their monotyne stress that against of the OWarf during the stress of the Dwarf empties. So

SONS OF THE ANCESTOR GODS

It is so small worker that Dworfs are at hance in the tanable that homeycouls the Coll World. They have no fast of althouses of confident dynamics, they are about althoused, allowing that the tanget full effect over in the most charatropholes into or laboritati, and their evolution is prioritagly alware over in the dynamic of the hash that yours benerative the earth. Rule with an surged pith and and manuschar limits, Duarks are protoned in feast possible that an surged pith and surtain the dynamic and the start the dynamics of the start that with a start of the start that the start manuscharatrophone and the start that with the start. Rule with a start of the start manuscharatrophone and different piths in their constraints matter and the start that the start of the start

All baseds of sepace age, weakh and aking practicing tren and traditions housed to perfection over thousands of years. All we can entropy the device that multiple depended on the known his reverse beam assemblies, or traily audentical the soutric from of counter-hattery firm. Lonstat the Douris look to these divides and antimeters. If of shown are growner sources Each of the Douris holds to also an entropy of the state of the perfect on the source of the state of the Douris is pointed assemblies of permission-strength at hofters in stories assemblies that the first provide assemblies and the perfect on the stories and and the total state. The perfect on the stories assemblies the before in stories as assemblies the stories and the rest perfect on the stories and the total stories assemblies and the stories and the stories assemblies and the stories assemblies and the stories and the stories assemblies and the stories assemblies and the stories assemblies and the stories assemblies assemblies assemblies and the stories assemblies assemblies assemblies and the stories assemblies assemblies assemblies assemblies assemblies and the stories assemblies astress a

Though they would accur admit is, Dearfs have sevent vices and flaws. All Down's low modifyse present and derivating advoid in the company of their person will they are not of check and ready of none. They are also find of a good prantile, expectively when aimed at those younger than however, because and their hashly respect to their clock and their substrop for a count the measure of their hish phe length and spin-flow or of their beard. The clokes of their number laws bursis with at manys, beard and spin-flow outily bound in mater analyzed pairs or of about bracks. In amount of the more materies to hisk, a long and heavity bladde beard is considered a suggest bracks. In a more of the more materies to hisk years a lowerly bladde beard is considered as weights.


THE DWARF HOLDS

East of the Empire vise the asscient, successpeed peaks of the World Edge Monstains. Along their length, ridge after jagged ridge branz ever opposed, dividing the civiliant coord from the Dark Lands. Extinct and still moniting valuences mark the great fault line that lier doep bounds the coords? surfice, and the Darcesf deve doep to find the rich coine of moment councils that lie there.

In record pare, suby one atray is a made to the ange-mer from the mass of the streng strength from the Drack all the scope drawn for Karaka Drack concerted there is part complete the strength of models approximate regime in the strength of the strength of the strength of the strength of the Cammon. The Engineers as and disloging they runs no strengt of the strength of the provided by spherical dependence there allower with protocol Report.

The tractator engine's finant hour came solves the Engineers and heirs new tore annialed by the heardly arreward Black Ores of Red Ery Momatainthe coming Engineers picoted the tractator engine's crune arm is that its giant ranic locatone, originally introded for ground Ores of the adge of the Ores of the adge of the somethin path.

10

We sons of Graagii may have druak deep from the bitte waters of misfortune, but we single Dwarf draws breath, we will fight the evils that assail us, and we will never, ever give up--*Hengis* Snewledly,

- Hengul Stonebelly, Dwarf Longbeard



THE ARTISANS OF WAR

The pinnacle of Dwarf skill is reserved for the forging of weapons of war. The herces of their realm carry at their sides perfectly balanced hammers and ever-sharp axes bound with magical rung of strength and destruction. In recent years the Dwarfs have reverently taken the legendary weapons of the Ancestor Gods from their treasure vaults, each capabel of Felling a Giant with a single blow.

Respective of a metal and stone. Deark look down upon those who use periodiable materials such as soon and day – is Manuali, their anise usenge, the world for manualir is the sum as the world for shadgy. The Elses of Ufihama maintain that it is the Doarf low for things of leasing that is their generative values, as a low store that thinks due to rearrow, and it worst a diagnoss warries. The Doarfs counter that the Elses are merely jackas of their material skills, and show who have end the rain encours of the Doarfs in a scino will maintain that they are quite right.

THE GREAT BOOK OF GRUDGES

No one holds a gradge public like a Drassif All Dransf take matters of honour extremely arrivally, and twoe brilds the ally that allowears a part or renegre apon their promise. Each rach transgression it painstakingly transcribed into Damonaz Krw, the Great Rook of Gradges, and the debt well econtails be suitted in blood, even if it takes several generations to do no.

THE LORE OF THE RUNESMITHS

The Dearks are not migical by nature, and they cannot channel arcane power through their resistance against such forces, and the stuff of Clusso finds littly purchase upon them. However, then it is the stuff of the stuff of Clusso finds littly purchase upon them. However, then it courses to the diaring of margin cino the verspoon of sex, the Doarfs have no negati. Their is a rank force, a library of potent sight that, when properly wrought, can transform an ase from a might weapon into an uncleft of electrifying potency. Dipending on the skull of the attraints who forges it, a simple scored can be enchanted to clove through bedrock, and a suit of grownill plate can be are uncle than their its weart's while its first library as to store.

The greatest of these Russeniths are known as Randents, highly respected super, matters of the forge and keepers of the Jeer. Once magic is properly turned and bound, the Randerds say it becomes a useful weapon, able to alsy those comiss that simple metal cannot touch. Their claims are proven beyond doubt by the mighty Arnils of Doom that the delest Randerds take to battle, upon which are forged superne runes that can call down destruction upon the for.

Rane of





OATHS AND VOWS

For a Darrell immedia hava a construction of the second second second second studies of corresponding to the second studies of corresponding to the second s

DWARES



THE TOOLS OF DESTRUCTION

Though all Dwarfs are expert craftsmen, it is those of the Engineers Guild that are the most gifted weaponsmiths. Over recent times they have become infanous for their runaway successes. To truly understand why, one must first understand the dilemma facing the Dwarf race.

Dwarfs value tradition and protocol, and have a deep-seated mistrator of anything new and ungrowen. After all, what good is a weapon if it can let its wielder down at a critical moment' Sadly, every decade the Dwarf enpire dwindles a little more, and more beleaguered holds fail to the evil armise that ream the mountain passes. Such is the Dwarf race's plight that the luxuries of circumspection and cantin are refere part askie in favour of more dractic solutions.

Trach head, doping the missiping of the more tradinal equivers, the modern experimental properties has do non-serious advancements in Duarf millitary science. From the Engineers Guild has sprange and only the blackpowder werpon, pintoskingly perfected in the form of Duarf handgens and run-experimedia canoso, but also advancements on trachinal ballistic werpons. These include doplosprang metal consolous, muchanical ball-handyng arillerp interes, curlibered stores howevers and even stranger and more potent muchanisms of warf. Itse was the Engineers Guild that pioneers due to proceed by the first-bending leases of the high process. These first Canoni, mission by the first-bending leases of the high proceeding balls, the Pinne Canoni, mission by the first-bending leases of the high proceeding balls, the Janess stame, powered war engines frequent in the linear strate of consons in its own right. The lates constrained heat balls of the first-bending leases of the high proceeding balls, the prostame power of are engines frequent in the linear strate of consons in some right. The lates constrained heat balls are the linear strate of constrained and the multi-barreled Organ Guan, powered of the first-barrelinear distant. The lates of the high processtioner barrelines the strate of the linear strates of the art proceeding balls, the prostame, powered ware engines frequent in the linear strates. The check Duark linear barrelinear balls was been balls the dolline of the interpose to an extra the interactions of fordardy promises the balls to be first the balls, the just may be then examples to canonical fordabard production balls are barreling and productions to balls the doclinear distant regard production are canonical and balls their distant dial down.

THE THRONGS OF THE DWARF EMPIRE

Dwarf society is divided into many clans, each of whom have proad traditions and customs as well as distinct heraldry and iniginia. Though many of the clans have long-standing rivalries, these can usually be put aside for the good of all, as the crumbing Dwarf empire is assuide on all sides.

Descriptions of all arises generally prefer to fight in the namer of their ancentor — both local finally planet logo the ground, else prified on, neutros-reful quencing in hand and the interdexing shields of their bordness-names attenting away to either stade. This gene doubly for the vertexa of the Dorar families, the Longeberch of the main the line, the Humanes that at an the King's bodygeand, and the Insubsecken tafget accid day to keep the tunnels clear of Gohlan and Skene instance. Clear in the director of amount the final family of the Dorar learness of King's bodygeand, the director of amount the final family of the Dorar learness of the final structure materia. The director of amount the final family of the Dorar learness of the final structure and the learness of the structure of the structure of the structure of the structure of the stade of and like a wave ensking against a cliff scattered and driven back by an unyidding bubwark of medi, muck can down the reuper.

GRUDGE WAR

The last few hundred years have seen the Doards weaging comparison you on a doard fronts. Each doard in the Book of Condega is share to be scaled to audity in block. The current Fight Ning, Thougain Condegationera, is observed with obtainably settings one ancient parallel after another. Borre to user spont the ancient. Theorem of Power, Thougain lands his globors and rise to histli, thousands of booled feet stronging enclusivity along the winding passes and reads of the Ock World in surest of the Monte of Ran Deep resonance and the strong of Ran Astrona Konst have a wave the Monte of Ran Deep represent Blochynest, and between the undead minimos of the Strips stronger World Heis Monte (Transform Conders) for all stronger the Strips of the Strips stronger World Heis Monte (Transform Conders) for all stronger.

Dwarfs have long memories and no word for forgiveness, and for hits reason it is quite common for a througe to fall upon a settlement contaries after the offending event. Through a gradge may be something as small as a monetary doet nongportponend drinking contest, more often than not the story-fixed armies of the Dwarfs seek cold revenge for evil deeds perpetrated by the long-doad ancestors of the hupdres victims.



THE LOVE OF ALE

Many haves and that the Dampf lorg gild smooth at life instit, and only the trady larened howen that is growned that Damarf price above all other meant. Henceese, there is one advance that is closer to histore nears. Henceese, there is not advance that is closer to Baymard set. Damarfi like advance and the second price advance of the second price advance of the second price days in missing or situajettering and a few dawn print of Baymard YAXXXX a Legendary heres paster results.

> "I call you out, Magaus, son of Megain, son of Murbad! Gather your armise if you can, for your head is mine to hew from its neck, just as your grandsire took my father's hand a century hence today?

1000

 Thrundal Barrelbeard, settling an old debt

HIGH ELVES

Hanghry and proud, the High Ebves are steeped in ancient margies, and their marrial skills are unsurpassed. For thousands of years they have ruled over the vast island continent of Ulthana, sometimes vying for power against each often, but always uniting as one if their realm is invaled. Stuck their backets their degant flexts rule the high scan, carrying the armises of Ulthana to every corner of the world.

MASTERS OF MAGIC

When the OAI Ones came to the world, they first cratted the Slam and the Lizardmen as concadiant of their weld workmin. The next resch by raised up were the Elves, the discondents of whom call themselves the Asus, but who are known to man as the High Elves. Confident in their own superiority, the High Elves consider themselves to be the rightful indivition of the world now that the OAI Ones are no more. At best, the High Elves view the younger races with condecension, and at worst with ouriging contempt.

Perhaps because of their holes, the basesy of the I20en is one of near constant war. At first, however, the Elsew new mysics and scholars rather than warrants. Of all the ness introduced to the world, the Elsew had the greatest affinity for the primal energy known as Magic. The O4I Ones versatals a kingdom for the Friber, nating the ide of Ulthaum spin from the cosm flow. It was in this version ratio that the Elsew fact learned the art of manipulating magic from the O4I Ones, and here, millionia later, there rules will.

THE COST OF VICTORY

The thousands of years since U bhann was created have not here itside to the Elves. The first contrapple to using the was the collapse of the vest partial bind by the OAI Obes. As the gates collapsed, the OAI Obes vasished—none knew why or where they upst—and the world was included by magnical energy and the reas world of othes. Unstantial contrast segment into existence as if from somhere, and the children of the OAI Obes were suddenly best on all sides by monstrous finds and dimension emission.

It was the Elves that rose to this almost overwhelming challenge. As the tide of Chase crashed upon the shores of Ulthum, and the other inhabitants of the Warhammer world covered in what makehist sholtens they could find, the Elves stood alone. Led by the first and mightishes of the Phoenis Kings, Anarion, and protected by the mugical spells of their mighty mages, the Elves were able to first half and then turn back the original incursion of Chaso.

It was a victory bought with blood and sacrifice, and though they know it not, this was to be the greatest addivergents of the EIF race. But it was a strony that was tainted, for in order to achieve it Acoustion these to work the Swood f Ndhain, bringing the exact of madees upon this media and his decendents. Furthermore, their grant victory field the vanity and ego of the EiNes, who since them have considered themselves pre-eminant amount all of the races of the workl.

ENDLESS WAR

The biasop of the High Ebres size that time has been one of almost constant buffer and warfare. Only since of the Dwerine Kkaps that have rold ber High Ebres bave ided peacefully, the rest have failms in high the biasophilic of the High Ebres bave ided peacefully, the rest have failms in high Ebres boyen is the size of the High Ebres bave bave in the mightest opposent of the Class powers, but almost an annup have been brought above bower magnetic, Mata initiation of these were the civit size at the above bave the magnetic material size of the size bave to the mutual size bave in the David Ebrigolon, an ongoing stranged that has rapid for thousands of years and consumed counterles legislands around the Odd Obias.

These wars have torged a race very dimerent to the mystos and schutars adown to the Old Ones. Although the High Elves are still the supreme exponents of the magical arts, their armies have become the most professional and disciplined of all in this new age of war.



ULTHUAN

The island continent of Ullmann is initiated in the Great Westers Ocean, horneous the Old and New Worlds. It is divided note a number of induced net High Edit Hangdown, and is relatd over by the Plonein King and his construtor Everymen. Ullhann is a land of colsise-created momentains and deadly magical humat, against schoos the High Even Jangen their martial occillones.

The defining energies of maps that promotion the careful are reconsully dense to U.S. Unano like treatmer in a simulation of the second second second treatment of an analysis in the second of an analysis in the second second by Calabol Despectrum a second of an analysis in the second second second second second second treatment of the second s

THE ECLIPSE WARS

Every rank you of hours of the energiness performs a site of the energiness performs a site of the energiness performs a site of the energiness of the energiness of the period of the energiness of the length of the period of the energiness of the period of the energiness of the the energiness of the energiness of the the energy of the energiness of the the energiness of the energines of the energiness of the energiness of the energiness of



THE GLITTERING HOSTS

All High Direct transfer how no as weapone from an early age – it is still they harm how to show a backform they can read, and how to widel a now blow they can write. The skills help sharm in their yeahs means that he High Direct are expert warrisely the time they reads matrixely. This Backford of Direct Menni and Backford and State Menni and State Menni and State Menni and Backford and State Menni and State Menni and State Menni and Backford and State Menni and Menni and State Menni and Menni and State Menni and Menni and State Menni and Menni and

We for all their protects, these estimates address are but the rank and file of a High Ell army Complementing them are may or off off communos whose smarth 2018 in truty exceptional. While other races may beast Eghters that are physically superior in terms of row strength, there are note that community the document elegance and Eghters that are physically superior in terms of row strength. The strength that can mark the document elegance and Eghters that are physically superior in the strength elegance and the strength elegance on physical strength elegance and elegance and ended before the hearth headboard on physical strength elegance and the strength elegance and the strength elegance on physica strength elegance and the strength elegance and the strength elegance and the strength elegance on physica strength elegance and the strength elegance and the strength elegance and the strength elegance on physica strength elegance and the strength elegance and the strength elegance and the strength elegance on physica strength elegance and the str

More numerous of these their torougs are the finances. Show Helms, the robk Ebron knights who finds in the surguage of every Higher El arous. The injet of a sulfight eligning from their faces and highly poshed armous brings layers where all secreed loss. Four sell are the grandful Reser could be grand the shows a Ellyme, whit are a bundle Ebron sends as an string a specifican as the lightest raphy. The horizon that is any spect, their major all arrows reasoning the could be reasonable armout the string of the string of the string of the string of the string strings. The theoretic staffs is any spect, their major all armout reasoning the coupling strings. The strings of the strings profering strings are string string of the string strings of the strings are strings from which are some horizon that the strings are string strings are string strings and the strings. Riding alongside these cavalry formations are charioteers from Tiranoc and Chrace, the latter drawn not by Ehen steeds but by the ferecicus white lions that provid the mountains of that mystical realm. Beast-taming is a respected art in Ulthuan, for the Elves have a natural bond with the noble creatures of that slind, ibon, eagle, and drake are loyal alles, and they bear the Asur to war gludly.

The couply and characters of the High El Kingdoms are matched both in volume and kill by their dite infinitely. The even-inter Posenic Analer, and end vision be Anaryan himself, each know the manner of their own domine and yre defend the Elven tody with their lives. The supremy which dispersion and the formation of the superior and the superior

Tigh E ramins are led to built by the grounds hence of the sam. The general of a High EI arms will be studied the art of sure from infinity, committy to hence the easy and treatments hald own by the ground High EI commands that cance before him. These works, written by the Blos of Caldork the First and B-K-Studiek, mean that a High EI general case all on a store of million of the case of the same strength of the same strengt of the same strengt of the same strength of the same strength

It is this combination of exceptionally killed trongs, expert landership and consummits rescery human for a FLBg the flare may use has deally free. With these finds based wave the HLB. Even impose their will upon all corners of the world, be they on land or was, for their fleets are unmatched in speed and power. Conscript and product synchronized wave and validied in all the matched are sware, the FLBg Elses have no comparation about using unstepable force to achieve their ends. They have it is their dealation to shape the face of the world, and we take and their any that them in their way.



Ithilmar is a rare metal found only in one place on Ulbhann. The waves measure shy silver?, for the weetal is solid to be as light at the sky and lastrons as polished silver. The High Elven use Ithilman to forge armour and tocapon which are harder than the front stee yet posses an extraordinary lichness and theribility.

DRAGONS

The grant drakes of the Dragonspice Mountains are the dishida and long-serving alles of the High EVes. Most High Eff amine includate latest one of these ancient beats, who will even allow High Eff Horses maps to ridie into hardt-upon their backs. Dragons are massive, serpentine crutures of enormous strength, capable of training any fee to pieces with their formidable claws and fings, and able to immodate entire regiments of troops with a blact of their free breath.

This world is ours to rule as we wish. We canned this right at the dawn of time, when it was we, and we aloas, that defared the forces of Choos and deve them back to their foctiof rails. The lower races must keare this lesson and submit to our rule - if they do not do so willingly, then we will make them do so by forces of arms."

Dragon Prince of Caledor







DARK ELVES

The Dark Errs are the cruellest of all mortal races. They are being whose emhittered souls relish only harter, malice and spite, for the pits of their black hearts are blanted to all other sensations. Only by inflicing pain can a Dark Eff experience something aids to jor. The armites of desolute Naggaroth revel in the minery they wave and rule all the world, or else see it burnt to ashes.

THE MALICIOUS AND THE PERVERSE

Dark Elson are binter, visions killern that detest all the creatman of the world, including others of height back In the dehated outset of Suggendro why the strongent and most rubules survive for long. The Droublin, in they call themselves, an diskinding, spirielf degenerates and mutchers who delight in the degrin they spond across the world. The JDAr EEI divers its sourd sweeter than the sequisted 1, scrams of their fors, no dranging westert than the blood of innocents laced with the tang of terror, and no signit more transed than the dark threes of their emission.

In battle, the Dark Elves are aggressive warriors that mercilessly cut down their opponents with viciously sharp weapons. They move through the character reaches of the battlefield with a skill and fluid grace that leaser montals could never hope to match. At these times the Dark Elves are most emovered by their harted, and they shout their prizies to twisted gods as they vent their malice.

The Dack Here are a defide, arguing topole who believe that all other months circumstry to be equivalent, enhanced and howed is need to trill the DackWit even yillin. It is in the nature of the DackWit to be reacheness and scheming at all fams, for howor is an alten covery in the land of Magnetok. From their devideding circled the run of our across the work, projet to ware in vara radiug how that plander energy nations and burdler which circle. Where the armine of the Dark Elses set, the Dark Else set of the plander and the start of the dark of the out of the start of the chance to upil the blood of the work. Ultimately shough they do so for power, for the spadia of ware are the Dark KHere grant stores or wirkin and an sour on origin dark positiant of all powers is sure sign of the DarkEls's passing. As the Dark Elses return to their dockine realm, by leves are unit of occus in the wirks, enclosizing passes and property and reglicing in with terror and doch.

THE DOMINION OF THE WITCH KING

The bintry and first of the Dack Elsen is intercively linked with that of Makikhi, the dended Wich King of Nggaron and undisperdent relief of the Dacks. Makikhi was once a reversed hero amongs the Elsens people, the son of the first Plasmin King linked and her apparent to the three of Ulhanas. Eldowing herarchic disappearance during the coming of Ulanas. Makikhi was symether or the state of under the state of the state and endpoint coil at an state would become known as the Sandring Tutter were stall appear to this days the state of the state of

Though Makkish and Its failowers were driven from the $\frac{1}{2}$ -monolands of Ulhaus, the Wirks Kang wood reverses on the High Elses and source to take hack in inpidit kingshum. For forthous any Makkish, a forsource varies and powerful sources, has using of ware repeats Back Doops, a hyperback is used on the source of the source of the source of the Back Doops, a hyperback source of the source of the source of the source of the monole of the source of the for function of the source of the for function of the source of the for functions of the source of the for functions of the source of the sourc



NAGGAROTH

The Lock Store wie over the star of any Magnetis the share of the star Magnetis mass is Land of the star Magnetis mass is Land of the the Magnetis mass is the star of the star Magnetis mass is the star of the star mass of the star of the star of the star mass of the star of the star of the star mass of the star of the star of the star mass of the star of the star of the star mass of the star of the star of the star mass of the star of the star of the star mass of the star of the star of the star of the star mass of the star of th



Forenets anongst the ville gold, of the Dark Elsen in Khaine, he bloady-handed God of Marder. In his name are thousandly acception decay day. Many are hilled on the alter of the hattlefield study, but others are essentiat in theoples and iderine, slain in the craullat stars the the Bridles of Khaine.



THE BLACK HOST OF NAGGAROTH

At the load of each Dack Eff sum stands one of the Dreadbach, rathless warriss who have sugged sum open a hundred hundred has an advantage of the dreadback of contants of contrastical Dreadbach has left as moutains of corpuse behind hun in his accession to power, yet hubit preductable range more truty high. Dreadbach command dreaming of Ngugenth through form and terror, and grave hosts of disciplical Dark EF Warrisses much to obey their matter's will. With hilded spaces and contraling-baseding reads are composed by the space of the share of the struct sources as the influence. Cold Dark hubits reads in a histoger action mounts. Marchine Dark Hokers galarge facts on the contrast of the structure of the structure of the Hoker Structure pathoger has a structure of the structure of the structure of the Hoker Structure galarge facts on the contrast of the structure of the structure of the Hoker Structure galarge facts on the structure of the structure of the structure of the structure of the Hoker galarge facts on the structure of t

Amongst the serviced ranks of Dark Elves are those that have devoted themselves to a lifetime of bloodshed. Beaufiful but maniscal Winh Elves enter a fremride orgy of violence as they hard themselves upon their enteniss and labor out with furiosa shandon in the name of Khane, God of Mardze In cold contrast are the Executioners of Har Ganeth, they show spill blood in the name of their fell god with precised efficiency, every blow is aligned spits aimed to seve thed from neck.

THE CRUEL AMASSED

The Dark Elves do not fight with silvered steel alone, for Malchith's dark sisterhood of Serversses, steeped in fielded magical lare, widd the rare power of Chaon itself. A Sorceros can blast the meat from her fos' hose or summon field harmonic spirits to decour the souls of her enemies. Using stranger sourcies still, Malchith has learned to influe armourd steel guints with the soul's of fallene, creating field moduments of Khainet har carve through the mix of thote born of fish and blood.

The Durk Elves trap and enslave not only the lesser races, but also all manner of unnatural beasts. The Durchii are adopt at hending almost any creature to their domineering will, and they have harnessed the creatures of the land, air and sea for their wars. Leonine Manicores sour through the sides on bar-like sings, enormous War Hydras and Chimeras are driven into battle by the bladed whips of their Beastmatter keepen. From the dark depths of the Bolling Sea repulsive sac creatures drug themselves onto blood-soaked shores, summoned by dark sorceries and driven into a fremry by the clysing sector (blood, Beasts more dangerous still lark in covernous lairs beneath the Blackpun Mountains, colosal slime-skinned monstroaties of acons past that the Dark Elves delight in unleaking upon their remnise.

Of all the beats under the Dark Ebw' control, it is perhaps the Black Dragness that are the most fromed. These obsidiance-added rakes are non-degradary contrasts prossessed of a malign intellex, able to bekk pareat clouds of corrosive gas and conjoure a primal dread in their fores. Malckelw's forwards grannsh, the ferences Dradlards of all, have spent contrast instanges these beats and housing their skills in arrial combat. It has been known for entire armies of these Dragno Lords to rouge the shows of the COM World, having the click of the lesser next to closels in orange the summa house.

Yet for all the legions of Naggareth, the eldrich power wielded by its Sorceresses and the timin beasts that accompany Malekith's hosts, the Dark Elve's greatest source of strength remains their bondless hatter for all other creatures. This loathing burns on forcely in their black hearts that it lends stedy determination where other mortals would surrender to pain or fingue. With hared as their strength, the Dark Elves will ensue and dominate the world, or die in the attempt. Pluck out their eyes, burn their flesh, flay the skin from their backs: I want to hear them scream before we cut out their tongues."

– Knurstk Blackhoars, Dreadlord of Har Ganeth

BLOOD ON THE SNOW

In the milecular of 1728, the worknew reaches of Nagarwik were invested by a long array of Cohan-workshipping hortowisms that one of the second strategies and the second array of the second strategies and the array of the distribution of the interlopes, control by distribution of the interlopes, are to the detaraction of the interlopes, control the workship of the second for their nucleus, Malchith these communded the Rostmatter of nearby Korond Kar in Janual & nonzer-bicrossim days into the Janual & nonzer-bicrossim days into the Janual & nonzervence.

Into the exacts control on a strop of y to complet Davids, linking and a strop of all y to strong the Davids, linking and the strop of the strop that presented the Statebasets and there impraced for the Rosensaters and here prepared for the Rosensaters and here implicit in the transmission of the strong the hardware strong the strop and there implicit in the transmission of the strong the hardware program of the strong the strong the strong of the point and the strong the hardware program of the strong the strong structure of the strong the strong the strong structure strong the strong stro









WOOD ELVES

The hards-gred Wood Elses are the secretive defenders of the great forest of Ahel Loren. Their armies are ever on the march, carrying spear and how against the agents of disorder and ruin. The sentinels of ancient sites across the Old World, the Elses of Adrel Loren fight a never-ending battle of vengeance against the lesser races that trespass upon their lands and the ever-spreading corruption of Chaos.

In their prime, the High Eiron maintained many choices and outposts throughout the known workd. Northere was time more truch was within the bounds of Ebbla Arcan, the Odd Weld – yet it was not has. When dissers belief the folds of Uthana, when the treackery and betrapid of Makish the Arcanea the Des their macroscope and the strapid area and the strapid which the Arcanea the Des their macroscope and the strapid area the High Ebrosc had limit choice har to abandon their holdings across the sea and treatm itoms, les the defonding both streams they would have the result of Hidd Leven, those who mainted behind were the EH choices that the theoret for set read of the Leven, those who remained behind were the EH choices that the stream unais to Hidd. and the Leven, those who remained behind were the EH choices that the stream unais to Hidd. and the Leven, those who remained behind were the EH chains the divertion and main the stream of the Wood Ebras a power in their own right.

THE KINGDOM OF ATHEL LOREN

Athel Loren is not as other forests. Its ancient trees long ago found vigour and voice, and they learned to hate the lesser beings who swarmed about the forest's caves, grawing at their verdant majesty with ace and flame. Few intruders survive unbidden within Athel Loren's bounds, for its tree-peiright 'vigilance is matched only by their intense loathing for interlopers.

That the Wood Elses were not consumed by the vengeful spirits of Molel Leven is one of the postain accident of history. The alliance between Elsewhead and brings forcet was hown our of a shared peril, for at that time the Dwarfs of the Grow Mountain presed hard upon the forest's bodres, felling trees to feed hangs? framewas and alwips [Erex was any attrack The Elses of that region were few and the Dearfs mays Ooly through combining their forces could the Elses and the engines the factor.

A STRANGE ALLIANCE

One dreadful night a tremendous battle raged by the flickering light of the logging fires. Outnumbered now by the combined forces of the Elves and the thorn-limbed forest spirits defending their realm, the Dwarfs fought with desperation. Elven arrows whistled from the shadowed shelter of the trees, finding marks in Dwarfen throats and eves, their aim precise enough to seek the gaps in armour even in that ruddy twilight. Lithe Elf warriors flitted through the trees like phosts, running sure-footedly through the upper branches before launching themselves at the Dwarfen battle lines below. Landing cat-like, the Elves braced their feet upor Dwarfen shield and helm, stabbing their long blades through eveslit and corslet before vaulting away before their foes could react. Time and again, the Dwarfs charged into the woods, hoping to catch the Elves before they could reach safety. The woods that had parted before the Elves closed around the Dwarfs, binding the interlopers with vine and root, bludgeoning them with bough and branch. When dawn came, only shattered Dwarfen shields and patches of scorched ground remained to show that a battle had ever taken place. For weeks thereafter, in the deep holds of the Grey Mountains, Dwarf sentries looked westwards for some sign of pioneering armies that would never return. In Athel Loren, the battle against the Dwarfs had forged an alliance that would forever endure. So it was that the Wood Elves were born from the fires of battle.

From that day forth, the fates of the Elves and those of Athel Loren were intertwined. What begans as an alliance of survival has become something far deeper and more pervasive. With veryr passing generation, the Wood Elves become in character more akin to the forest they inhabit, wrathful and signorous during the summer months, torpid and somnolent with the onset of winter.



The kinbands must march to war. Blood must be spilt."





ORION, THE KING IN THE WOODS

Crimin in the King of Abid Levers, a diverse of reflect and the posterior of Kortwan due the posterior of Kortwan due the second of the second second neighbourse in the second second committee of the second second committee of the second second second midications for diverse of the second midications for offen thimself operations. A midication for given the second for the second second second second second second second second second for the second second second second for the second second second second for the second second second for the second second second second second for the second second second second second for the second second second second second second second second for the second second second second second second second So too have they taken on the tree-spirit's capticisaness and distantifications: One can neve the forestly such too Note 2012 will street, for the hangels and researching. bound as they are to the forestly required to Note 2012 will street, for the hangels and researching. bound as they are to the exploration, the Elson Shearn extremely house to the outside workly, bound as they are of their runkin only to workly bloody retribution upon those who have aread their displayment or is defined blooking of sources and the spirit street street and the street street street street street blooking of sources and the source areas are negatively the source with shear sources are street and the source street mere wrapful. Their denies for soluble has been solubility of sources the source of the street street and the spirit street street street solubility of the source street mere wrapful. Their denies for soluble has been solubility of the source street mere wrapful. Their denies for soluble has been solubility of the source street mere wrapful. Their denies for soluble has been solubility of the source street mere wrapful. Their denies for soluble has been solubility of the source street mere wrapful.

So it is that the great forest of Athel Loren is now not merely the Wood Elves' dwelling place. It is their ally, their protector and their ward, and the Elves are bound to it, body and soul. Those outsiders fiolish enough to set foot within Athel Loren risk not only the wrath of the trees, but also the predations of the keen-systel Elves who watch every path and stand guard over very glade.

A REALM APART

The abott Wood Ebyes are isolation in the externs, caring angular for the affitism and travella of other mains and access that from the other than the core is the new isolated in the dones while the second secon

Not all such thems need be ended entirely, but merely solution to warkness or redirected upon a difference pub- one had does not lead to Abrill Learn's bodyers. It is formulate that it is no, for the Wood Dirac mapping on interminable leargh. Beneric that can be helf is carried by the strength doesn't for an antimum effects: any and Oc. Warlerd, and his confines or firstless in a slikely to near helf approximation of the provide in a range. Learn Helmemer where learn the difference in the most or the provide in the strength of the Beneric warden can be definest or of a morphic. Learn the strength provide in a strength, Learn Helmemer warden can be defined or of a morphic in the Wood Dirac Bene have routed in the strength of the strength or the strength of the strength of

In near years the signs of elements have been many, for the makef, powers of Clausa zero the function. The anxietic factorian multiply extra the Old World and hepothy, quereal from the dark hards of Quasa-tained wouldnach. From the north come three of worlds men and hosts of darkenic terrors, instruments and the main structure of the origin of the Markey Outers of Abel Lensen, understands full will than inactivity in the face of cell ultimately lash to defact, for more terrained SA Markey Fields, the domains of the Elevs will be excit. To this reason the unities of the Wood Deco marke abeaud in numbers greater than ever before, waging their coret wars against those in the usery of the Raisone Dewon structure they may be found.

THE DEEPWOOD HOST

Unlike the defilled and trained victures soldiers mixed by their Dark Elf and High Elf consins, the Wood Elves have linkle in the way of formal military. Instead, an army of Abdu Loren's is an alliance of kinabads and class, summoned by the warborns of the hant. Each individual varrior brings martial skills of Dow and blade housed in the dangeroos environs of Abdu Loren, skills that combine with the Elsev^{*} inherent grave and speed to create varries as a dashed as any to be found the world over.

When called is use a Wood DEF army can trevel grant distinct in the space of a single night, for there are nytopical physical black data. Lense to the many forces of the word HE Wood Elses can tread these paths, appearing without varing many handreds of loague distant, easily circumventing defenses, varganish and patrixes. So due the Depended Host of Abdle Loren avoid draws sour confrontation by means of starbh and illusion. Where other atmiss fight extended campaigns to reach their for, the Wood Elses write at the heart of the cenny with the way first black.

As the army advances, phalanxes of Eternal Guard, veteran warriors whose wits are as sharp as their glinting two-headed spears, tread close about the lords and princes that command the host. Unfiltnching and unvikiding, they are swore to defend their lords even in the face of certain death. On the flanks, Glade Ridgers and Wild Ridgers your their streds convards, very altert for a gap in the enemy formation. They gallop swiftly forwards, during between the first spears and sworth to wreak have on the flanks and trear of the earny battle line. Elsewhere, tatnoed Wardancers strike deep into the enemy ranks before leaping away; every thrust and parry an act of working to the trickter god Lose, every fland movement another sign in the sladwardware that birds and destroys.

Warhuek riders suscep and sour overhead, diving down to assail enemy war machines before returning to the skies clad in the blood of their prey. There can be no refuge when fighting the Wood Elses, for no severt path or refuge can be hidden from the sight of the Waywardters. Better a clean death on the open plain than to be hunted down like vermin. Perhaps most famous of all are the archers of Athel Loren, the Glide Gauxi, whose deadly aim has become legend the wedd over.

Tere the Wood Elsevi so nor fight alson. The part that black the Wood Elsevi to dried Mehl Lener base imsplich fast foret arguints further after size. Abova and around the forward of the forset fit reasons Spites, their spindly limb belying unboly strength, but these are the lease of the upits of the wood. Dirk theory is one or of the relation to the their place mainted the Wood Ell's marks. Drashs darm band, their generatin al willowy forms belying the malket in their sy planets. Starety by the individual strength and the size of the spites of the spites of the spites of the spite of the spites of the spite of the spites of the spite of the spites of

Such is the Wood Elf army at war, a force of nature roused to terrible destruction against which no mortal enemy can hope to triumph, as merciless and unforgiving as the deepwinter frost.

THE REBEL PRINCE

There are an a Direc King who only on poll of Uhiasa dipo ha moder ang part to shard here under Alba and here under Alba and here under Alba and here and here and here and here and the here and here and the here and the here and here and



WARRIORS OF CHAOS

From the frozen wastes of the far north come the Warriors of Chaos, musclebound killers with hearts of iron and souls as black as coal. Armed and armoured with hell-forged steel, these servants of the Ruinous Powers possess inhuman strength granted to them by their unholy patrons.

THE MEN OF THE NORTH

The decoses of Chaos are the most intrinsifiing of all morth survives. The scopes and legands of the world decode them a nighe-nontrophytic from one host assess the Newhorm fight will carry the sight to his grave. The contents tables are forged of hardy stock, born into a mortice will brease shower neary and comparison are regated to the sub-toolsees and undergoing justice. Their name and the factors tampend by a filtering of banks. A Notice host filt is a constant, using the mortice of interfaces the tampend by the stock of the stock of the stock of the stock of the examples of the stock trade is non-tendence of the stock of the stock of the stock of the examples that the stock of the

It is when the near of the north give threadway over wholly to the Dark Gods that they become true Werries of CLaws. These are not that have left the confirst and concerns of a normal list helmid forever, stilling their humanity to the Raincon Eversen in exchange for the raw strength to dominant and datrys. They have no family other than howe that fight at their side, no lows new that they reserve for their blacks. A Class Werrier is no longer truly human – he is instal a listing wergen, given body and out to the grap beams of slaughter.

THE SHADOWLANDS

The repaparat domin known as the Radin of Chaos was brought into being arons ago, at the inter of the Gert Catachysm. This field systematic structure down the order the methods and the pointing great starshes of foreas continent with the staff of raw change. It is corruption is wident indowe sho live in studency a heighted region called the Stabouhnab. While physical matrixen is a rare and often final signar in the civilied south, it is very common in the tribes of the south stars of the south theorem of the starshess the starshess the south starshess the south star of constant at all final the cold hemselves.

The tribes that live in the Shadowlands are numerous bycond counting. They differ greatly in customs and traditions, and even in appearance – the Norscans are fair-latired and tall, with hong hier and briefing beards, whereas the vicious Kargan hones-tribes that bodier the Realm of Chaos are swarthy and robust. These tribes range from groups of a few hundred normals to hondes of budynizms that reid the attains of the OM bythed with their number.

Regardless of trahal affiliations, the methods of the North are investibly this loss and macachael function cragge faces are covered with a mass of ficial hairs and their using must are absorbed in tophones or even stranger designs. A Northmark skin is larkner-tongh and weathereates from source of harting desorbed by this larkner and and single growm serviced access, and be gamed hereinfor provide the stranger design of the stranger and and single growm serviced access, and the gamed hereinfor large data and the stranger data and stranger and stranger data and the stranger based by the stranger data and the stranger data and the stranger data and the stranger based by the stranger data and the s

Regardless of station, each Northumn is possessed of a ferricions hutfletst. This is not because of some terrible blight of the soal, but rather a result of the hands hundcape in which the Northumn live. The laid is as hard and barren as stone, forcing the tribles to runn far and wide in search of the spoils of war. Each summer the wolfships of the Northuren set sail and whole tribles of Marandes pillage the coastitation of the wolf.

In comparison to the dreaded Chaos incursions, the constant raids of Chaos warhands are but an ominous prelude. Each incursion is an apocalyptic time of battle where hundreds of tribes march to war and the Warriors of Chaos pour down from the crest of the world.



This map portrays the Warkammer could as if the viewer over looking abram upon the workdermann crust of the roord, where the Realm of Chase roccess throng, spreading out in all directions across the globe. It indicates the rough dispatision of the many workers trike that roum the Subdordard in search of case:

No matter subore a traveller started his journey, if he wore to head due worth he woold eventually find himself in the Chaos Waster. It is a harsh landscape that blights the worth headscape that blights the worth he trapasser trade.

As use traveller present further in an William, the world field binned? bioarcing broads a binned? bioarcing broads and bioarcing broads and the set of th

> The tide of Chaos pours down from the creat of the world like blood from a freshlyscaped skall. We shall make the shall make the southers foods and reforge it in an image pleasing to our eternal masters. André Strates



Each incursion is brought about by a legradary champion known as the Evertskown, a warrier of unorquened all who has fought his way to be very joinschef of his multila acting, and who widdle potent articles of magical and damonic origin. The Evertshown show has the force of percentage multiple and the start of the multiple and the start of the multiple and the start of the

When a Chaos incursion comes youring out of the wastes, the world trenkles. In its wake comes the Realm of Chaos itself, bleeding ever convard until it threatens to drown the world of the same in anarchy and minute. It is as if Chaos self, and just those in its thrall, seeks to conquer the world. The learned men of the world fore above all that with every incursion, the end of the world comes a line (coster, and hat the Warrison of Chaos will ultimately be the choon of all.

THE EYE OF THE GODS

Though the unified sociaties of the south consider the Duck Cods to be creatures of legand and fibble meant to scare the galifiest in nobelinear, the Northmen Koom Watte defines are immediate and real, taking a direct hand in the tranggles and trainpho of their fivoured supplicators. For this reason the hardwarm there do the Shadowinds do confra dark. Theirs is a warries society that prives lary above all fixes, and not without good reason. The field derives workspaced by the tribes of the Shadowinds eternality line for the strongest of contonion, firthe agest workspace and power in the otherworld of the Realm of Colum. There is no more potent a draught than driffered up by the working discide Shadowing the commander and the battle-mapy, turning their badies and line of these runs. To this grantess on the Alkandia' enclosure are the and potentific. For this reason the galar reased the warrise, the commander and the battle-mapy, turning their badies on these effects are also the strength of t

THE PATH TO GLORY

To excel as the eyes of the gods is to climb a steep and treacherous path indeed. With truly great visconics come peopular rewards - those who can down the remention of their patros gods manifest superstantant powers and lethal trength. Eventually, bloadd they somehow survive the constant regions of a lifetime of batts, they may start univariability beyond and perhaps even immortality. However, the path of the Chass Warrior is a read fraught with peril, for to fail the Rainous Powers is to condemo noise! To arcumost metal.

Once a warrior has proven himself, perhaps in some great quest or the slaving of a champion of a rival deity, he may catch the eye of the Chaos Gods. Such a supplicant will transcend the struggles of

rival deity, he may catch the eye of the Chaos God his peers to become a Chaos Warrior, the very embodiment of the merciless killer. His allegiance is no longer to his tribe, but directly to the Ruinoux Powers thermselves.

Should be continue to excel in the pursuit of this purton goal' mytections and traffick agendiss, be may be fortunate enough to become one of the Chonge – those Chouse Naviron whose bodies implies and well with power or econcust with work of the start of the start of the start of the property carter bodies. The start of the property carter bodies, the start of horizent carter bodies are start of the Alternativity a Chonge Worker one up on to fight on horizentake as a Knight of Chonge work of will mere this faste as one of the corpus streem will mere this faste as one of the corpus streem of the start of the corpus streem and the start of the core.

A survive who proves strong enough to excel in the lathratic work of the north may find himself changing still further. From this body hatch new and deady mutations, from multicoloured skin to veryal closes and sampting tentedes, from wraths of mem. The strongest of these favoured ones go on forming films to exit aveys that per prints the sould of mem. The strongest of these favoured ones go on princes who never in or warken, relations in their quest to hum down and distruct the horses of those samines that oppose them.

THE SIEGE OF THE GREAT BASTION

Dening they are 1116 a same of ourbaptics counds pot of the Grank kanine of Galary to a distance of Galary and Same Marine and the distance of Galar Marines that a distance of the distance of Galary and Marines that a distance of the distance of Galary and Marines that a distance of the distance of the distance of distance of the distance of the distance of the distance of distance of the di



MARKS OF CHAOS

Many Verhams user größe mang und einer Meiner (die heter mang und einer Meiner (die heter mang und einer Meiner (die heter mang und einer Meiner mang und einer die heter mang und einer mang

THE FATES OF THE FAITHFUL

These whose and found starting in the vertice of their gold logits to multife such displanet in their hepsical forms. Their minds degenerit until they are like and these of bents, and their bodies become visio of aspect, protospec fassions of man and monorer huming out from the remnants of ourses which Chaos amount. Though they none expected a position of pre-meanine, their fullence to appear their threading dates has proved outly indeed. All that remnants for such as more these threads the starting of the such as the starting of the meaning has the starting of the starting of the starting of the starting has the starting of the meaning has the starting of the starting of the starting of the starting has the starting has the starting of the starting has

If a surface sums to many matterian from his careless parts, or displays his matter partyle to any final his hish characterian given see a substantiant of the heringer regression materiants have to the schedule of the Tangier to Chara Spann. Amongst the rabit of bibbles, manuscriptical and plants of here an either the series of the scheduler regression transfer and plants of here an either the series of the series of event series of the scheduler series of the scheduler of the scheduler series of the scheduler series productions. Each series in a start of an end to its sceny tab. The first of a Spann is to the out of the scheduler scheduler scheduler between the thirding disbubble. The time of the schedule scheduler and heritic baster, rather they rate the three than the scheduler therm and adjustice them to better works the limit of bibble track. For the start material and heritic baster, rather they track the start of the scheduler data and adjustice them to better the starts and the rate.

Very occasionally, however, a swarfor will prove mighty enough to survive the indicitots curve of the gods. By sweaking over graterizer finds of adaptict, these frozened billere overatually become Choso Londy, manual has till the mighter for it, carving their own lagrads in the blod and flesh of anison. The generate Choso Londs may utilizatively be recarded bits demonits approximation becoming concetting akies to a god. So it is that the Daenon Princes of Chass are born, ascending to fait at the side of their belowed matters for the rest of finar.

Even this most vaunted of destinies is ultimately a curse, for it represents an eternity of war and pain as a puppet of the Chaos Gods. Yet the men of the north willingly embrace the worlds of mutation and unending battle, viewing even Spawnhood as a gift of a surt. For is it not better to live a short and visiont life marked by the glory of the gods than to languish and die in obscurity?



THE HORDES OF CHAOS

In the cold ratches of the north the tribes pather used by the promits of comparts. When the war horns sound, burbaric Maranuder tribearised through the source along the arrow-field Chasa Warries and along, broading Chosen. Chasa Warries and along the source along the foundation of the source of the characteristic of the collision of the control of the Choso bardes—control boresones Pather and the foundation of the control of the Choso bardes—control boresones pather in the bard bardes part and the low control the bard bardes part and the control of the Choso bardes—control boresones pather in the low barder of the control of the control of the bardes for the source of the low control the baraset for birth control in the low bard

A train gowerful Chaos Lord will have even stranger and more powerful creatures straining to war under his bauner, monstrou being draw by the promise of carange, competible by ancient delass or inaply lasting after the lare of greater delays. From the iccoled wates of Tiol Country and the dathest valleys core studies greatures when the the straining and the straining event one care blazers matations with every from promise of battle, rooting in the event promise of battle, rooting in the event form promise of battle, rooting in the crede tonger of their race and helpine how yment dubies, the most



forward of their number dash in grant main of balachend plane. Foulds will are the towering Dargen Dorges that descend from the highest packs to just for the more Langending that scores their meanminus hims, each of these primeral bases is ready to earn yst another lifestam in the verse's of the Darke, Sol. The iddees of them randow, the storm-dash langesthat, are the verse source constants that fought arguing the rate of Daragesh are stored by the light store of the store of the tracks. The store of the store one store of the store

And systems are far from the must knarre of the horners that descend upon the hands of the same fillerinoing times of most fields. Denotes constrained to built will be higher, and the solution of the same minde on the must improve the constraints of signal resk. Horners of wireld notes have classified that didy gravity, each host on a overs of Sourcerra, and half-real ingiturance hornes after by the wirely of Channess when the command of the host of horners have and half-real ingiturance horness in the signal regulations of Channess when the command of the host of horners have a signal of the signal signal of Channess when the signal signal signal horners have a signal when the composition of the signal signal signal horners have a signal si

The only true way as brack apart such an incursion is to shy the Chaos Lord is its heart and byes that the inherent major and disorder of the hook leads it to communited. Maret all, the Bhainons Poners hold rivalies that span arcsens time and space, and they are ever ready to blame the failure of the fractional alliance upon each other. Histopy does indeed recent with fract- notable, the Centr War against Chaos, where Magnan the Pons show book the arms of Asowa Kin, and the recent and the structure interpret scale Thrus that the straider and the recent scale of the structure interpret scale Thrus that the straider and the recent scale scale scale of the structure interpret scale Thrus that the straider and the recent scale scale

There can be only one side ultimately triumphant in this long war - the war for reality itself.

"These are the End Times, when the jugged claw of Chuos tears out the heart of the world, and the Dark Gods feast upon the doom of mere mortuls..."

Liber Chaotica

THE RUINOUS POWERS

At the heart of darkness are the Powers of Chaos, moving to a ceaseless dance of death in the souls of the weak. First one leads and then another in the pavane of evil, a stately measure played out to the beating of human hearts. The shrieks of the dammed are its joyous melody. Still the godd stance, and their bellows of triumph shake the world...

The Gloss Goda are unknowedle desize who play with the lives and dreams of men as if they were so more than imguinfloat trays they designed are disconted at a whine human's and primal, these gods studie in attack context to the civiliand deficies of the south. They are made real horizon they are unwintingly created in the missio of moretak. The foor grouts of these are the manifested which reads on the mission of the more more in the mission of moretak. The foor grouts of these are the manifested which reads on the more source in a context, in the mission of more the the sources.



KHORNE, THE BLOOD GOD

Known, ohe soon powerful of all the Chaos gods, is the embodiment of advantue and amedicanous valence. Reliabing the shedding of blood above all, he brings the down of everything and everyone in his reach. It is there goes of the killer, and Klorner to whom the champion shouts his success hard goes when the red main is you point. Burenarily and wardless hardlergy when the red main is you point. Burenarily and Klorne's moods wringing from simmering anger to epoch-ending farry, and his bellows of earch can be lead a town works.

Khoren in often depiend as gentengaby muchel, hourd-beded gint in humque plate arrow of allen oligin. He visit brooding upon a great brow theme, his eccentros tro-handel word at his side – a blade capable of spitting alist and undering radiaties. The throw in turns was nog a neuroing mountain of blood-shicked shalls, the haque remains of those shows drig mountain of blood-shicked shalls, the haque remains of those shows and great fractions are more the ensugh shalls hid at Klonne's for, for though each one feeds his glory. Klonne's thirst for blood is suggestedballs and infinite.



Tamatch, also known as the Changer of the Ways, is fine embodied. Here an advanced names and faces, and tail matery over the physics of magic, insigne, desting and subtriffing. From his cayral labyrith at the base of the mailtness the spins an infinite work of decirit and confinition, delighting in distorting the lives of those he catches with his hollow promises. Trearest, thus a strong chinn over all those who wouslip Chans, for without the power of transformation, a varieric cannot acced to grantenses, the polic cannot bears the right just, and the living cannot dis-

Treaseds often manifests as a doal of magical light that coaleces into 2 gaugh and admentational giant. This with which with reflected faces that nocks and here at the onlocker in knowing contempt, each echoing in at braining had brange the words that yield from his mouths. If his head sits packered and growing in his chest, and his great horns rise from his shadlers rather than his how. Around lim writhe sepress of liquid magic, for Tzeench is the matter of the arcane, and ultimately all mages one their powers to his art. The form taken by the multification and diverse Clause Peterses are many, varied and wildly Haners. In fact, when they do appear in domain or vision, it, is the helder that give too the sympler of the Chara Code Hoyed, comprehension. A Characa can appreciate only a time fraction of the helder that give too the sympler of the Chara Code Hoyed comprehension. A Characa can appreciate only a time fraction of the complexity len his samely be Mated aroug it was instant. These workd ange and weyking to the hereines and database good the samere of the Chara Code Characoed only its instanting the severiblement startis of the constance of Characa Many around the characae of the Characae Characae of the site starting the severiblement of the characae of Charac-Many around the characae of the Characae Characae of the site of the Charase Holder, there is working in end that the terms at the site shows the diport of the Anisone Poerse Characae.

The held of the world's population chosen to hair and four three auxient definis without any attempt at understanding—their appendition and autimum at headed denses from monther to child with operation frame. Yelf for all his, there exist them remains the Chang gody, accepting the mastery of hear vast and allow mitinis in the hope of a quick read to prove. Though they pay the highest of prices for their accendance, the number the most proverful accentran can all enverents in all of history.

NURGLE, THE FATHER OF PLACUES An ancient and well-established god, Nurgle has a claim to all material

The micro mass wave-structure group variage on the work of decay. The dark damages for nothing as they limitate to the burch of decay. The dark annuclar and good good, often called Granfaffare by his acobyse. His earthy jointly sits at cdds with his gruesome appearance, for he appears as massively board, obsee jaggerature of fieln that festers with boils, porces and supporting sores. His skin is split and torn, and indescribably make organ board and split to hang around his forme like entiting drapes.

Though he is the Lord of Deases, Nargle cherishes all life, from valing dirat to bloohney can be has as generous eithy the strate plages upon-the lands of mortal men with abundon, for within his great rusted catalhon R Nargle has gifts enough for all. This followers, inured to pain by the denses that range their worken frames, rejetive to see the gravity works of their master unfold. For what use is it to rail against the corest of entropy, as implicable and incirculus he as the passe of time itself?

B

SLAANESH, THE PRINCE OF EXCESS

Shanesh is the level of luxarinese in all things. The youngst of the generic Than Goche, he is the parton on music, art and passion, hus take of sadium, prevension and crudy. Alwave all, Shanesh loves to see virus fail to view. He is the methodisment of indiquences and greedy obser in all its forms, and his name is whitspeed in a thousand hildden cults and covers arrows the world /O will all the Chane Goche it is Shanesh who enjoys the worship of the Elven cults, for the heightened sensibilities and passions of the Elven rea mark them easy perve to Shanesh's sedactive wells.

Divinely beautiful and introiceningly alluring, the hermaphrothic Slanneh ecudes a palpable and irresistible charm that causes all who see him to fail uterly in his thrull. He appears most frequently as a shender and radiant colossus, male on one side and female on the other, and he teases the souls of mortals from their bodies, laughing mockingly as they gare with haples longing into his lustrous black cyse.

DAEMONS OF CHAOS

There is a tear in reality at the top of the world, a pulsing wound that grows larger and more livid with every passing year. From this dread portal spill great hosts of Daemons, the stuff of nightmares given form, each fiendish warrior hell-bent on transforming the entire world into a Realm of Chaos.

THE RUINOUS AND THE VILE

The Damoin of Chan are a form of determine the world like to other Damoin are not true remainst at illubration the strength of compression and enuisoing picture strends form. It is impossible to study like 1 Damoin, for they are forever tied to the arbitrary discussed layons as the Randin of Chan. Free instript description of the piptual form are morely handles then the bott of the outer dumin, where they give their average for a handless, har executably that are Damoin will be the strength of the vergence of main layon when the then bott of the strength of the the strength of the vergence of main layon when it does not.

Demons are how of the still of Class. The finder they haved from the source of their power, the weaker their connections of the manifold have beccasse. It is promotify the fact that has prevented the weaker that the source of the source of the source of the source of the two compares a bosons to a source and a source on the source source of the source of the theorem on physical vacues that are manifold humanical in nature, this is only because of the limited imagination of the source that have a significant source of the source of the limited imagination of the source that have a significant source of the sourc

THE REALM OF THE DAEMON

The lead of the Theorem is surreal and sickning, its bidding theore and finemations as field e as a domator out. The Read of Clams is no sides, we thereagily moreolitic, the constrained and a domator is a strained or the strained strained and the size of the size of the strained strained strained strained strained strained strained strained and theorem of blood and fifth goah spratch, the size rained blood of Shores and Hund bolls why learning then. Such a radius the Van Chaois, and belong edge of the Damoni domation and the strained str

The table much not not that the hearhed on a convertional map. Every year the Rahm of Chosen waves and waves, provide the convertibulity of the table of table of the table of tabl

BLADES OF THE BLOOD GOD

The Daemons of Khorne have searing hot, drum-taut skin coloured in the vibrant have of gore. Be they slick crimison or livid purple, attential red or clotted black, each of these terrible creatures lives for the act of slaughter. They are the embeddiments of rage and fury. Every drop of blood split, be it digon the visits of firsting of noe, empowers Lord Khorne upon his throne of brass.





Kneeré fondámi, kozon a Biodietro, se cuming and rong. Their bolin are true curve of whycond music. Their long perhavior longen fiber and work, senting for the start of boli. When they get due to their per boy what ad adas with their long Hubbales at the vial regness of the stress the best rest organism of the stress of the distribution. Other Demons of Khoner as in fire, so which, tensacial angines of awates destination that scream biodxectifing warcies to their divise matter as the particle mode on halfs, prass-boling language that the stress period ware and the particle and the stress of the fire stress and the stress stress the their stress and ware in the thunder for avail in their tasts transmission grant and angines and and ware fire in their ware in the thunder for ward in their tasts transmission grant and and ward in a the Center Damons of Kloren, the Biochliners, towering, asswelding monstroities that some yron part backmat.

FOETID CHILDREN OF GRANDFATHER PLAGUE

The Densons of Naugle are the none partial and repulsive of all. Each is patterned with the base of davag and riddled with poses, again and moment have well and harving waters. So diverse are the myriad diseases unleaded apont the world by Constitient Naugle that it takes contarlos logicos and appearence to calculate the maximum of the second second

CACKLING MINIONS OF THE GREAT ARCHITECT

Trenesh is a fields and supercloaded god, being the suscer of mattaion, and this in reflected in the approaces of this Darmon. The Path Hermory of Trenesh defy charactions, all fulling limbs and approace, blocking Trenes that accompany the Horns to sure are every bit as peculiar, lauding haddre into the thickest concentrations of the feas and sense hording in matic satisfication when their viscom and into materiang and trenesh are softeness. The sense of the strenged dy shader into the thickest concentrations of the feas and sense hording in matic satisfication when their viscom and into materiang and trenesh are set from . The set rifts with the theoring of systam, when the strenge of the strenge strenge and the strenge of systams. Only the aviant Location from and a separation to refer strengt charge up on the universe.

PERVERSE PRACTICIONERS OF EXCESS

The protoc of Shanesh is necess in every concervise form, from glutture to have to correversing right. The Domeson Shanesh was graceful and week, althring of micrositopic while at the same time possessed of singular hideousses. The Demension Shanesh embody this contradiction, using committing of the loss mere who show the body bar to zero of the viscuin lag global their cell many committing of the loss mere who show the body bar to zero of the viscuin lag global their cell mere starts and the same start and the same start and the same start and the same fitting in the same start and the same start and the same start and the same start fitting high start and gradient at they graded and starts the more what althe alguing the blues the triggingent size, supplied for Longdinet Keeper's Of sectors one with a list alguing the blues the triggingent size, supplied for Longdingent size is the same start and the same start and starts the mark of the supplied for Longding the Keeper's Of sectors and a greedly scoping up the remnant supplied for the same start and the same shart and the same start and starts the same start supplied for the same start and the same start and the same start and the same start and the same start supplied for the same start and the same

EVIL UNBOUND

The allegiances of the Discremenic hosts are as fluid and changeable as the vhims of the Dark Gods. Scone discronoic armies are utterly devoted to a single deity, whereas others are a shifting kalcidoscope of colours and attentions, a catalogue of ferrors where all floar of the Kainous Divers are represented. Regardless of logalities or parts, the Discronos blick their time, for they know with each incursion they come a little closer to beir deally and influmma goal. The Grand Ball of Significations roots on event of shocking dobaschery. The mobility of biot corner of the Empire, ever a decadent and perverse lat, made part of inveiting the gude themselvers to take part in their bangest.

As the whole large who ergs of the caracy, every numeric who had paratosis in the strangemapping of the set of the strangemapping of the set of the set of the and paratosis in the strangetist of the set of the set of the strange of the set of the



Blosdletter of Khorne



Skulltaker, Slaver of Kings



Risshhirts



Flesh Hound of Khorne



Bloodcrusher of Khorne



Sharbrand, the Exiled On



Karanak, Hoand of Vengeane



Vink Harrier of Tzerntch



Flamer of Tzeentch



Lord of Change



The Changeling



creamer of Tzeentch



The Blue Scribes



Kairse Fatetoerter



Ku'Gath Plazwefsther



Herald of Nurgle





Great Unclean One



Plaguebearer of Nurgle



Beast of Nurgle



Daemon Prince



Choos Pury



Fiend of Slaanesh



Desenverte of Slarnes



Keeper of Secre



The Massue of Slaanesh



Seeher of Slagneth



BEASTMEN

The Beastmen are the true children of Chaos, Grotesque hybrids of beast and primitive man, their domains are the huntred woods and blighted forests that cover the Old World. Within their warped hearts simuers an interace bifterness and hatred for all other neces, a primal raje that can only be sated by giveous acts of defilement and savajers. The world none belonged to the Beastmen, and their harbaric armies gather across the lands with the single-minded intention of tuking it back.

THE CLOVEN ONES

Was halons charges were wongdown by the collages of the warp gates will nove truly be known, but the descendant of the first, the Borness terms and the states of the world. In the states of the states and excension of states the state and metal and and subshown crutators. They are will and these with states the states of the states of the states of the states have states which has gate their first states of the states of the states there within states the states of the states of the states of the states there within states the states of the states. The states are predicted with the states of the s

The upper of this primitire next hown so bounds, and the Reatmen induge themselves by reacting due to have minimum whereas the places. Above all due remotions, though the due place above and the due to the test of the second second

When the armiss of the Bonnesson ange from from the shadow-sheended forests, they do not tore down civilization harmonic game and more Water environments frequency the herving advance structure of the sheet of the darkness – more vital in nature than the more of BH and Darking and Bondering than the nations of Mankeida, and Berrer data the Sheet Mankeit beneath the earth. When the armiss of the Cleven, Osco go to any the civiled would shadders with the memory of that which has gone before and will invisible your game again.

THE DOMAIN OF THE BEAST

During the coming of Chaos, the great forens were unquestionably the domains of the Boartman. Most of the Old World is swathed in darking woods, and the domains of the Choven Ones went unchallenged for almost five carting. In their ancestral memoists the Boartman remember that thiss, and resent that this is no longer the care, for to them the lands are now infrasted with the spoor of Mankind – an ungurant nee of surgery a wakings and theres.

Subject to terreloved gains that Manihad has made since that ancient time, the wild words remain hanging standard on thin day. Were the hand of the OAI World words from high above, the proval Engine of Mans world separate as little more than filtering inspiration of light, shands of barry maintained using in used, hadk are of forest. The drard relation of the bests outside acts toom and village choose with the howling of Juriarious tribus under the full moon, the growling of numeless things that stills be engine, and the paraked screams of the virtuins.

The balance of the Barsmann new call balance the QM World is rightfully thints. They enforce theme inglish a real-our variance with balance gas to determ variance, for Barsmann succity, if it can be referred to as such, has alarpen forward the strong. Even the grand amiss of the evident strong and any strong structure with a field without a class are are only strong of an and turbiho of apacet, has also more manneous than the states in the sky. The fact that needs evident and a strong strong structure of the strong the structure of the sky. The fact that needs evident for the probability that the structure of the structure of the structure of the structure fact and the fact the structure of the structure. But with evident the structure the structure fact the probability of the structure structure of the structure within.


THE DARK OMEN

The Bran-Shaman Malaren also known as the Dark Omen. has a reputation as the partons of the entire province of Ostland accore to find a member of each femily micing and a tile of bloods bones in front of the hearth In cutrane the prosts of the realm rule out into the forest: to find the calterity, the flichering Tight of their turches seeming to Rottle ener joined, and countless marriers died from each side in ambush, Worse still, Malagor set fire to the tinder-dry forest with a armat shell. As Empire soldier and Beastman fought each sther amongst the flames, the of hell. The Empire troops broke and raw from the woods, the laughter of Malarer echoing in

CIVILISATION BESIEGED

Only by danging the world Existing and crossning into an age of blood and violence can the Bontone data back their substrates which having down and having the trappings of infinitions on the Christian control of the property of the OAH World. The Bonton these for the algo when they will compare the proposed models of the other sections are and the Christian on the Christian data and set their christian christian of the other sections are an effective and the other other other other other other other other and the section of the other other other other other other other of their discover gains have not estimate the section of the other sections of the other of their discover estimates or the solid set by foreout, for with every maining entiting becomes comprises, and every tour crutambles to rabble. It is then the Beastmen shall take back when it with theirs.

THE HORNS OF WAR

The Easter of Man premiers the Beastern as surely beings with the vis only to read, tear and higher. Understanding for eleva, this is a delay starthy, for more undersimate the Beastern and lives to till of it. When the Beastern march against their fore, it is not as new raining parties, byta model, and have been appendix the based for war. The brows charm the grands to mark at help bare down upon there texts. As the based for war. The brows charm the grand to mark at help bare down upon there texts.

At the based of each many netices a load of the Based skin, fearnesse is nature and possessed of an anomal noming. It is the strength of the strength of the variable, the mark masses of the three follows these Research and the strength of the strength of the strength of the strength of strength of the strength of the



violent lusts inflamed by the prospect of claiming the first kill, whilst malicious and nimble Ungors melt through the forests thated to cut off the fore's escape. Ramshackle chariots hurtle across the battlefield, pulled by heavily-muscled Tuskgors or even a bristle-backed Razorgor drawn from its lair with offerings of raw human flesh.

The shock roops of the braphends are Minorany, bill-backed gainst whose blyeid antonins have been growly woulden by the toto of Class. Led by the largest of their number – the bloed-obseesed Doombulls – whole thiels of Minorans stamped towards the energy hattlicine, belowing with unsertained butletat, their bioreal back lowered as they charge into the five with bost-crutching force. The erg of gord-mark feasting that investibily follows such charges is even more sikening than the valence of the kell lim fedf.

The number of Minoture shaphering their yan across the Old World is currently at an unprecedented level, and the legend of Tauros, the Brass Ball; spreading like wildfire – a monstrous blade-horned giant of Twing metal win over rests in his quest to kli. Entire armise of Minotures now coverege upon the city of Talabetim in the heart of the Greast Porset, though nose bar the Bray-Shaman that accompany them truly know the reason why:



THE MONSTROUS HORDE

Beind the Gong, Ungen and Minotauro of the hords come over larger and more truttrying leasts, Cyclopen monotronic loss of horner bound to the coust of the Bearman by stoped Broy-Shuman-Cyclopen monotronic hords, scelage of the diright and of strained loss of the Bearman Hords and the strain strains, scelage of the diright and of strained loss of the direct strain from their limit, their fattness on blooms that to look sport hem is to be early mind forcers. Waves of imaging works for early head here and the more strained for the direct strained for the strained for the direct strained for the strained for the strained for the strained for the direct strained for the strained fo

When the trubes units under the greates of Beaulords the ground shakes at the Braylerd's possing, for with such a grand mostre cores and manner of strange and forgettra bases. Observe fusions of large true and grants must shirld from dozens of mouths as they starts by their peri in their pissions truth. Cherever semiclination rule with space "Encode and the Belle and the Beaulow and the true bases from the northern forces thunder out of the night to small spart time gates and pixels there from the northern forces thunder out of the night to small spart time gates and brack has glader for the blocky frant to count. There is go and to the mensagirie of nerrow that spaces from the advect has rest. There is go and to the mensagirie of nerrow that

And yet even the most timine beast of the deep forest is little threat compared to the writh of the Beastherd itself, a rage that becomes ever stronger should the Beastmen suffer defeat. The Cloven Ones are the doom of civilization incarnate, an inexhaustable army of monsters that will batcher, defile and burn all in their path until they have scoured all evidence of order and sanity from the Old World. "They blend cunning and spite with a savage bestial fare half

with a savage bestial fury; half man, half beast, yet wholly the servants of Chaos.

> Heiros Ghale, Quillmaster of the Drakscald

ORCS & GOBLINS

The Ores and Goblins are a scorafe upon the lands. They are ferocious midder that great war to every corner of the world. The greenabilis are so eagler for bartle that, when lacking a foc, they will gladly attack each other. So numerous and wartike are the Ores and Goblins that should they ever stop fighting themselves and unite into a cohesive force, they would sweep away all opposition in a brattal tide of violence.

TRIBES BEYOND NUMBER

Ore and Gohins, or greenskins as they are often called, how is warrier tabes or warhands. These groupings range from no more than a few of anomal orientials that supergrouping year herefores that cover the labels in hereing and or green 16 sumbles. Note that table is led by the integers of more potential Go. Calculating in heads matter manerous lesser throw to fight under their humer. This is because no tribe sensitivity in the structure matter matter and the structure of the structure of the because no tribe sensitivity of the structure of the structure of the structure of the structure of the beginning the winnih idde to work a decreased parametility. Might in always right, and large tribes of mathematic structure of the stru

Over and Goldan trabes can be finding throughout the world and, disconcertisity for prease-setting of Lastrin to the methem in which the adjuscing thermation cannot three. From the settermin pargles of Lastrin to the methem Chaon Waten, from the block hand of Nagaresh to the mysterious flucture, a traveletic cannot hope to avoid them. The prevalue stress three particles, the setter of the

BRUTAL AND BELLIGERENT

The dispersion and the presented at sensith both much like an Ore. Bender and more muscular them a man, these graval-mind brats hums large bands, yourding lines, but lowes, and gravet taklike teach. They are thick- lowed in terms of trapheteral dist and in their inability on allowed by a madritum of visioner and biochded, more Ores will patiedly become bend. Second patheness with the more advantances instruction of the second second patheness with the more advantances instruction of the second patheness with the more advantances instruction of the second patheness with the more advantances instruction of the second patheness with the more advantance instruction of the second patheness with the more advantance in term of the available second patheness with the spectral for distribution of the site of the spectral form distribution of the site of the second patheness with the second in the spectral form distribution of the site of the spectra form distribution of the site of the spectra form distribution of the site of the spectra form distribution of the site of the site of the spectra form distribution of the site of the spectra form distribution of the site of t

Not all Ones are conside equal. Indeed, the largest and strongest of their its indiquickly rise to lead the tables, inspecial how all through bernom, might rad houd brillowing. The Risk, Ores, a adaptesis known for their dark green or even black skin, are by for the more notable and fearonse. It is generally known the Risk, Oxe are wide all ord, and they go to use aread to be tweft. The largest of their skin can often be found as lackers, accompanied by a bodygmard of fillow Black Ores banger for use. Many of the most notable imminus me led by Risk. Ores notables





CRAFTY AND VICIOUS

Smaller and more nimble than ther thraghed by Counces, Goldina are sensky and comparatively intelligent. Wild Poor are broad-cheeted and bulk, the not-rooted Goldina are gaugity and screensy of finits. In direct controt to Orse who communicate will gover and grants, Goldina are gardinos and mrinting, with Horse-piched voices that the sense of the sense of the sense of the sense Goldina are weedy compared to other greenskins, they are often poor to extrum est of counties. However, hintory has proved time and time gain that a Goldin horse and pulled will be more redoublate if foot through weight of numbers. Viccious and mean-spirited, Coblins for profets of angle from bulking of an dimensional bound to bulk the stress of the low are time.

Having adapted to the varied lands they live in, there are several distinct vulnepcies of Cobin. The Forses Gohian can be found wing for upercomparity that Restances in the glowary tract of words within the Empire. In the many caves that riddle the Worlds Edge Mountains are livit of the blackrold Night Cobing, acrients threat the Hourd' Kingdom and work dure cross the highland purses. There is an ancestral harter between Dwarfs and Night Coblins, and the two races constantly lattle for domination of the dark halls become the mountains.

Despite the many differences between Ores and Gobins, they naturally congregate together and it is a rare the that does not include both types of greenkin. Although the Gobins most often suffer under flews you of the more powerful Ores, such a symbiotic arrangement has its advantages. The Gobins can rely on their stronger cousins to take on the really scary suff in an enemy arm, and the Ores lawse choose such as fettings, carring and cooking trackist to their smaller kin.

A GREEN TIDE OF SHEER VIOLENCE

All Dres and Gobbins are natural mikers, hunching attacks from out of their lains or oradic campoints of the occasions where many of the fractions and unraly tracks are unreliable lay nonvertile Warkson into a single coherence fraction of the discharge source in a source of the start of the

The indextone of a Wanghi is made of mole durin mole of Oce Boys, marriers gathering under learning housens and gain metases. More formabled will me regiments of Block Poors, moreout dilluters that display a stern milliary discipline their is lighly numual in a genemaken may. Some during Oces rick to waray energy and yours a rule in ginyraphile and discal anding constraints. These Bandwig' dilluter much changing amongst the greensitis forologgers. Mart colored if all are the moles of Stoger Ores, minimizer these hat may no milliamize structures. The structure of the structure of the structures of the greensitis forologgers. Mart colored if all are the moles of Stoger Ores,

The Goldam provide even grater mankers, a wide spectrum of modely troops and weepon of war like-ideal bight Goldam sums in lange models that, when approached, will send out prephotics halfind when weighting Franciss that can smash through heavily armoured brights like kinding. Malffrank and the sender model and an effect that the sender of the sender of the sender of the Goldam Archive areas in the sender of the sender of the sender of the sender of the frank and the sender of the frank and the sender of the bight grate of the sender sender of the sen

Luckify for their enemies, Orcs and Geldins have a flaw that has key the world from being overran completely. During battle, a greenskin army's cohoison often breaks down as the disparate bries fead and squabble amongst themselves. But even after a deleta, the greenskins can never truly be written off, since they are only one exceptional Warloss away from leganning anew. And so the green rulpsies of orchis invasion begin to spread again, unal none more a Waagail is undushed.

WAAAGH! GREYTUSK

The Black Ore Warland known as Grentuck years a legend in the His skin was nich a dark rrum it your almost coal-black, and he not-black too. maderine him almost invisible in the dark of might His paties trike followed his coantile, as did the Goldine of the nearby peaks, painting themselves nitch. Thus canonafland, the matics Hissouhl staushtand their attacking at night to ensure the maximum confacio in successful that the errorukius courses. 'Huse out's see us?', at the two of their voices before each attack. This eventually led to their docenhall tohen the Wasaph! antenached the borders of Athel Loren, A few well-blaced flaming tar aflame, bathing the erroroking into blazing light and posting the

> "Ot" bellowed Gook Helm-dents, the Orc Boss of the Broken Skulz mob. "That isn't one of those Skabby boyz is it?" he growled, referring to a rival mob.

1

For a brief moment the mob of Orcs stopped kicking the beaten and bloody form in the middle of their circle. "Er.course not Boss – it's just one of us lot."

Grok glared at the group. "Well, that's alroight thes" said the Boss. "but I better not catch you taking it so cary on one of them lot?" He growled to emphasize his point and then stomped back into the camo.

Able to regain their breath during the pause, the mob of Orea got back to their kicking with reserved real and fervour.

ORCS & GOILIN





TOMB KINGS

Ancient and vengérdi, the Tomb Kings of the southern deserts have avoken from their millennial slambers. There is the wards of the cheated, for they were promised an eternity of beauty, but were instead reborn in the form of lideous, leather-coulds addwers. The Tomb Kings energi at a terrible vengennee upon those who would plannler the treasures of their aird homelands. At Whethkara and murch forth to recommer the world.

AN EMPIRE OF SAND

The civiliancian of Nedekhara was welder beyond imaging when the new of the OAI World still derive a cross and mothen. It was alimited brought low by the mogeneous of its high sparsed the berrapy of its Fligh Pieter, Nagash So strenged in civil antibion was Nagash that, frrength its meconanies magies, but also arrende cares of datash or early the lasks. The entropy of Nedekhara without and doad, careed is an any adapted sheaft how to the civit of the rest protection. This does properly description of the same strengt sheaft how to the civit of the rest protection. The sheaft sheaft how the same sheaft how the civit of the same strengt in the same strengt in the same strengt sheaft how the same

Tadap the empire of Neickkan is a burren see of used dame, a scorching desert radded with the readil architecture of a circlination obsecution the dame. React their their what and deserted valleys for counties gibled articles and triakets berief amonged offs of human how. Each of their many thousand through their of the artial language contains is kelly reason in joweller and agemutation of the start of the start language contains is kelly reason in joweller and agemutation of the start of the start language contains is kelly reason in joweller and agemutation of the start of the start language contains is kelly reason in joweller and agemutation of the start of the start language contains is kelly reason in the start of the start start of the start of the start of the start of the start is at dimes.

THE ETERNAL ARMIES

Should a commander he henre or foolink enough to trepuss into Notekhara and leadh is more into the search use of the highly, he would whence a treather herenomene. As they pursishing middly sun Bharedown upon the introlepare, the stands heigh to shift, and thousands of sparsprism piece the endlow tracts of other like a context op thrining after as rate in 1600. Kifting and provide the field of the Notekharan earth corne the undying legions, ratek upon tanks of Sheitrat Warrisor rated by tail like transmost in the same of the marches commanders. Some Backed shifting strength and pulling from entry or societs at they breach the surface of the denset. Holding our correl shops hades, parmond and liquicity forms marks from the hadmore, forming up not diver againment with a pretromined in disposite and coordination that listing surfaces could never hope to markle. Usuall a stress could also used they one theory three hyperback points and the surfaces of the denset had hope on listing sources to could never hope to markle. Usuall, there is denset in the hadron denset is the stress of the dense come with of playningh bat their ideality shares the trendset. Corning the dama come with a lightweight har denset when the firsting a morter to play the stress data (stress, etc.). The stress there ideality sources the trendset have the stress of the data come with a lightweight har denset when the firsting a morter to play the stress of the data come with a lightweight har there ideality theorem is the trends of the play.

A CONQUEROR'S WRATH

And yet these are merely the initial defences of the lands of Nehckhara, those who protect the outlying tombs and settlements from the greedy and the insolent. The true glory of the armies of the Tomb Kings is only now being revealed.

Settra, the almighty God-King of Khemri, is upon the path of conquest once more. Cheated of the eternity of paradise promised him by the Liche Priests who call forth his armies, the Lion of the Desert intends to reclaim the lands that once belonged to him, forcing the usurpress of the Old World to kneel before his might.



SETTRA'S VENGEANCE

From the over of glue could-new mass, King Strem also Importunitator engineering and an automic imperveptible and Arrayed about him waver reno insudned of its Reyal Gaard, about glued duraries antimoled by the das of the Badlands. Beleve into the black place are covered from each on also in culture regiments of placetal address, perfortly arrayed in the badle frammation becomes in the Abouthar as at the Ling Inter. Note on of the covering reas a hair's breaddh out of place. The Ore tribes would be so match for the dissifiest of Strend's Lingson.

The Black Golf marcheder with Nethelbanes trace hexpers and bread-decked galley, ide underd armite they how formed up on the booked of the sone-fortill lands that the growthme has infected. Even were team of sheldend figures, reserving the insert, hand the barraward y Settri's dever rules adver from the larger shops in the armada. The finit drives of the Licke Prioriti incatations carried upon the institute to the Timb Krey' patistice, and the stame yields into 10 fig. scenator assumed for their colocal limbs at the formed into regiment of their event.

Array the bread plains of the Baillands came the crade Orc tribes, their instituded numbers seedled by horders of hubbing Tells. Behind them came tasked care beasts and granning, creaking engines of easy public to the front lines by a class of momered Ginst. Settri's recogniting lines with a class of hubbe his hordel signal the advance. The barbaric greentime had never been afrained of a fight.

With military precision, the Nehekharan legions marched forward in clockwork unison, a hundred thousand skeletal warriors spreading outward across the snow-covered wastes to envelop the wanguard of the Orc horde. As Settra had known they would, the greenskin tribes took the bait.

The fremzied Ores sprinted forward, cries to their primal gods resonating from the cliff upon which Settra and his chariots had taken position. The Tomb King raised his blessed blade and, with a single grand gesture, he bade the storm clouds part.

And part shary diel. The none god Peros blazed doesn onto the baullefield, reflexing from the gilled silidid of Settra's conviron and danzling the Oeros at that critical moment. The systest logious of Neichhara stepped forward and thrust with their spoars at one, and the Oer compared cost docimated in that single instant. Then, with a great crash of second and are upon shield, the two baulieges alamond together.

To the encore, a strike of statuned Strange Oris term moderne helding does more an iterative Boo Giastar polynolis in their Intas, the ranging of the undeal polishi stransmen is helded. Stormer of horizontal polishi stransmen is helded. Stormer of horizontal polishi stransmen is more than the original one is a horizon term or to policy to possible area (horizontal and horis. The same the Black Core date, their Workshell mountal appear a cast million provers the stransment and and a cast the strange origins of the stransment of horizontal term of the strans, and horizontal term of Names Stransment. The Black Kong and his chariterer charged area to the strange of the monit, and horizontal charged terms the lander of the Orie horizont. Years was next.





At Setter 3 behet come million-strong legions of Undend varrises, marching in unending tick from the black would of one-hypornuls so ull that each glidle peak shinners in the skins like the latt flare of a dying sun. From the studies so ull that each glidle peak shinners in the skins acceptagic act in the form of exorgions that sing and lace in tho wolf flash of the living. Dut of the tombs come towering god-statues, jerking and lacethy the soft flash of the living that one start gain. They are also the skin shows been long at the million of the tombs of the like the instantions of the Like Prices, magnetors of the dotal who load and tume the surrally Winds of Magie with the disking shall fract dotareneous constraints. The prices mark each shows white the same teach works works of generoses and ormate coins. Some carry great curved scinitans, some massive jewelles works of the coments, of how and which specializing the argents of their owners, with which so must the fiel. One thing these living statues have in common – all are terrifying spectratic actions quarters.

Nor all the unded construct of Neldskina are humanoid. Prowling, leonine monsters and brooged behemdes data in the rainner of kings hown above the seas of Skeldow Warries that march incorably towards the lands of Man, each giganic war-beast milead with strength enough to car down the pifield cated on the lesser civilizations. Above them, hower birthed warburgues ail majoritably above the sands in mockery of the laws of nature, hasks of cars strings the dra an whilst facts of giant valuers. The Carries of relies their value in a party of flight.

Before them all come the Tanik Kinga themselves, hundering across the study of goed gilded suc-charlos. They zero in dvirk their accharated black-deep through the hearts of those that oppose them, for after their long also given play are filled with the need to conquer and destroy. Munnified and ancient beyond impedinge and orgation, the Tanik Kinga are summitting in their eternal wara yout those who have the tennerity to live in the sum whils their rightfard reals magnessing in the weight of our dates. Their leagues are beattacking to belod – to compare a trainide placeted to a speet-characted corons. These are beattacking to belodd – to forming a very strained of the northern mercommers to those of Neckedura is to compare a trainide placeted to a speet-characted corons. These are the trae monarches of the data. Their generatics armines are beyond counting, and they are coming to reclaim their rightfall dominon over the kingdoms of the brings.

NEHEKHARA

Nobelson is a year, land of year-dyy and and an the signed remnants of a oncs-mighty memory and and and and and open in the reliant data and and a civiliants, min discharmerged atom to the area shortly decound data civiliants, min discharmerged and a civiliants, min discharmerged remnans and abore, first her panishing me glaren doen like the eye of the method and the size of the large-min discharmer of this realm farmeng tarea doen like the eye of the method and the size of the large-min discharmer of the trainer data method and the size of the large-min discharmer discharmer of the data method and the size of the large-min discharmer of the trainer data method and the size of the largedata method and the size of the largedata method and the size of the large-

The God-King has vorced that his realm well be restored to its former glory, even if it takes the blood and screat of all the mations of the woorld to accomplish it.

> Battiss Lord of the Earth Lord of the Sky. Ruler of the Four Horizona Mighty Lion of the Infinite Desert. Great Hawk of the Heavens Rediant Sun King of the Shifting Sands Reigning till the End of Time, Eternal Scorreign. Vanquisher of Enemics, He Who Holds the Sceptre, Khemrikhara, Settra the Imperishable

> > and titles of Settra, first and greatest of the Tonb Kings of Khemri



VAMPIRE COUNTS

In the cobwebbed eastles of the Old World lurk the Yampire Counts, masters of undeath and a sourge upon all firing things. Far stronger than mortal men and seprent-fast, 'unprices are frightennigh accomplished warriors. Raw dark magie flows in their veins, and at their command great hordes of decayed and rotting Undead warriors rise from the drave to wake war upon the living.

THE DAWN OF THE VAMPIRE CURSE

It was Ownen Noterin of Labins who first unleaded the carse of vanspirint upon the work, and the state of the state of the stress of the Green Noterians of the Green Noterians (The Green Noterians (The Green Noterians) and the state of the stress of the Green Noterians in the dotted to cheat death, for the laboration of the stress of the forestimation in the stress of the forestimation of the stress of the stress of the stress of the forestimation of the stress of the stres

The Laboran overse under Course Neferant kept indfo the baddons of their grant promit dry, drawn pastring dire are preserve. Cantralis mends, but relationtly of dato or go annoticed that the high quesce of their realm, paler and creatile than evers, seemed not to age at all. The armins of the seems Their Kingay we much hadded concerns. The overse of Taupings on their an at gene seeming the direct and presentially disaptrened bandwides of the Netherlature real gausst earts to destroy them insing them at gauge and concerns to flagt anguates their issues maters. But the Netse Kingay were not window magics of their own, channeling the power of their sum and earth gold, their armitis consumabering theore of the Laborain same gains over. The cover was driven into relik.

A long and bitter war of attrition raged for an entire decade, with prither the living nor the data able to secure supremacy. The Vampire captains used every tack: and vile strategy their damned powers could afford them, taking a borrific toll on the armines of the Pites King of Nebekhara. In one last produgious effort, the shattered remnants of the Nebekharan armise united, defenting the method over of the Lahming Queen and put their groussen minions to final rest.

In face of their one existence, the Vangires field conducted, highering to word pursuit and hilling in the distant entropy of the forest. That and did the Vangire Constance must the conductions of the ORM World, its humanic facers and leavely settlements a perfect humaning ground for creatures that thrive in studence. Each of the Magnites careford out an empire of their own, and isn'd a line of pursuities successors, grifting the Blood Kins to those they deemed as worthy companions in durkness. These are the gravity durations of the Wingel constant of the plaque the world of the lineing to this day.

THE MIDNIGHT ARISTOCRACY

Vampires are tail and abhater-skinned, long of claw and fang, many times as strong as a mun and faster than the mortal eye can follow. A portion of their number care muss for human in dum lighty indeed, many deal molecular in the hol-blooded bosons of the cities of the Odd World. There they pous as aritotextns and eccentric lorks, slowly bleeding day the populate at large, who go about their humdrum lives completely inspared to the dublical terrors in their middle.

Proceeding improvision to harm, Manytien are framestellarly adapt warrior with contrasts of outfile in which to sharpe their hypotecic powers and matrix provems. Indeed it is wild here are only one ways to kill a Vampier, the most commonly known of which are to transfer it through the kart with hypotecal hardworn or belocked it with a silver black. Though encourse and scholars tell that it is blood that removers and encryics the Vampier Counts, its roully the mange that there with that is the occet to their powers. They are also be summous phonoles of the dard which do with they affect the sodden earth to fight again, their fencior preservent while their compansion and humanary is the blood in the empty game.



SYLVA NIA

forgabon by the oude than unindusbitable, Subvania's forests are diwre conver of moisted halfrated trees that class what and crappy hills supersuate the clouds that seen docon from the

Subsania lies in the farthest out province of the Empire, for since the coming of the Vampire Counts, dominion over its haunted that it is considered a realm apart, and these peasant vallager. perpetual terror of the ninht.

However many ye send to stoppe me, foolysh priest. I shalle send upon ye the same tally of corpses and more. I warn ye now, ye may find them ille upon the eye, and yet they

will be most familiar Come thyself if ye have the hearte.

to yr.

I will show ve mastery over flesh and bone, be it quick or be it dead.

I mean to have my feast mortalle, and not even the gods above can stop me

nple of Sigmar prior to the



Any scholar of the black arts worth his bloodstained salt knows that it is their terrible ambition that makes Vampires so truly dangerous. Unlike the fleshy automatons and unquiet spirits that serve them, the lords of undeath are possessed of a burning desire to conquer. They work in the shadows to see Naoush's vision realised, for all truly sentient Undead lust after one thing above all - a worldwide necropolis where all are subservient to their will, the living slaughtered like cattle and raised back to

THE DEAD THAT WALK

When the Vamnines seek to expand their territories into the realms of the young races, they practise great rituals that drag hordes of decaying corpses from their deathly repose. After all, the Old World has been the site of fierce warfare for many thousands of years, and its peaty soil is thick with armoured cadavers and the skeletons of warriors from long-forgotten regiments. Virulent diseases have swept the lands many times, and plague pits and gravevards heave with carcasses outside almost every settlement. Therefore it is a relatively simple matter for a Vampire to summon and reinforce armies of the Undead time and time again, even during the midst of battle. Furthermore, each time a warrior falls to the clawing hands and rusted blades of the numberless hordes, his corpse can be raised to join the Vampire's ever-replenishing legions.

The vast bulk of the Vampire armies are comprised of shuffling, moaning Zombies; incomplete bodily remains given a revolting semblance of life and reinforced with wood, rusted metal and the occasional spare limb. These loathsome composite creatures shamble forth in great multitudes. dragging sickening Corpse Carts and bone-clad siege engines to the front line, pulling down the enemy soldiery with sheer weight of numbers and filling the air with the foetid stench of decay. As questing tendrils of Dark Magic flow over the lands, armoured Skeletons clad in the raiment of onceproud warriors from before the time of Sigmar, come to life and climb out from their lichen-covered tombs, rusted blades and battered shields clutched in their cold, dead hands. The tortured spirits of tyrants and murderesses flit from their sarcophagi, longing to close their freezing ethereal claws around warm human flesh. Wight Kings, entombed within the barrows and crypts that lie scattered across the hills of the Old World, burst from their burial chambers and ride forth upon skeletal steeds. Nothing that lies behind the veil of death is beyond the power of a Vampire

TRAITORS TO THE MORTAL COIL

It is not only the truly deal who match to war when Merrillo is full in the sky Deagenera phone and from the kir has more to the summous [warperic k-lowing] call, shappenel losses in their hands and terring grains twisting their needle-flauged features. Grouply avoides has and response these such startered warpen hand and stree from hans, the light of the most hielder data of a by exceeding assumes of their smaller that no less thirty counts. The more U Could not a by exceeding assessment of their smaller that the light of the low starts of the street of the low start whose view hattleflow the low theta warpen start for the low starts of the low starts and the light has then were used as the low start warpen warpen of their harmens].

Even other Vampires answer the call to war. Measurean Vamplafis, their from reflecting the board that hasks inside every Vampire's soil, having the hardfeld in each of fresh block. For less swage bar consummately deally, the milliaristic and horour-board Kaights of Block Kep ride from from their decrept foreness in such of new callingens for their vampies trength. Their lines are ever ready to genere the hearts of those foolith enough to oppose them, for a controi of mounted Vampires arrowed in the full paper of determine the new other.

HORROR EMBODIED

The memory of the Margine Contant are released and aligneds: The Underd do not need to along the origin of the Margine Contant are released and they are tably important solves to pain. But it is not the contains of the night that kill in the name of their vamping immetry that are the foremost weapon of the Underd armine, for even 2. Zmath: Dengen or sourcing Hollwarian case bain by the exclusion blade of a rene here. Rather it is the cripping terms that accompation from, the Const realized and the alian counsides at the first of the own boyong the Wargine's will live up from their pools of bladd granding and monsing, pulling their former friends down into the dire one by one will all see modulus meets that the middles. Moderation approved to Analise's Underd from 1.

ON THE NATURE OF DARK MAGIC

To understand the matter of Nerromacy, one must first materians that of Der Marje. Galer of ways digits fore spees from the resized garway of the for worth, and must of digiters around the first Thrus set to the thrust the thrust digiters around the first the thrust the thrust the thrust of the Europer. Since of the fores, hence remains al Dark Magie, public, public and obliging in places of grant maximal distortheme. The grants associations of Dark Magie, gathers at max proves, hattifield and plagetified institutions: the sounder bases and abattire of foreight dimensions and damating to manifest in the mailful or dimension.

A peokar pouling of this scale avery is that like attrasts (iii), and places of quarks and dark coronally averse as much Dark Magic that is crystallian into the cell and the start of the start of the start of the start darkstare evened by the proverheary of all irrars, but by the Skorea alove all. It is a single nature for a Vanger start darkstare interest of the proverheary of all irrars, the prover even Dark Magic, harvassing the vill energies that the Skorea alove all. It is a single nature for a Vanger end device and an end to be corpus, physica all defenses that the leader of the start of the start of the start of the life bound the form is over then. Only the Privat of the start of the start



Hawthorn bound and sharpened true,

Silvered blade the neck must hew,

Garlic, bloodwort, witchbase too,

Keeps thine flesh yet fair to view.

Blessed lance speared through and through and through.

Holy verse will fiend undo.

If thou wouldst see dawn anew,

Harken well these lessons few.



GEHEIMNISNACHT

Every year, as the harvest fingers of frust grasp the land, there falls a night deadlier than any other. Geheimmismacht it is called, when Morrslieb is at its weat full. On nights such as these, the Winds of Maric bloco with the force of a gale. Even rate tener crackling around him - strange magical beasts are summoned by the antesise, torbid monstruities are reased from their dumbers and the civilised folk of the lands ensure unboly niehts, and every regiment from every province is the endless hordes of shambling dead that room the lands in Eventually Morrslieb slinks below the horizon once more, but in its wake it leaves villages strenon with corport and the cloying stench of fear



A BLOODY DYNASTY

The von Carstein Vampires have had their claws dug into the soft underbelly of the Empire for thousands of years. They have bled the province of Sylvania white since time immemorial, turning whole swattise of the region into a realm of dread where the living are forced to skulk in fear.

The foundar of the two Carstein dynamy was Viad, at IIIand white-haired figure who appeared noninging at the scale of the hand Carst Oftwo Non-Ku. No Tark's damperi, tabelint, was no heantiful as the new damp, and in his prick own Drak had vowed he would rather see her work to a daemon that stars of the gravity observation of the scale that her scale of the gravity and a scale of the scale of the scale of the scale of the scale that her scale of the scale scale of the scale of the scale with the Block Kus.

After tuming lashelis into a creature of the right, Vial sport the next few contributions on the object of Systan, Vialor at Jackeli and Lash Systan is for hundreds of years, skoty expanding their empire until they had commons armiss of Unded under their control. One by one the ringit of Systan, Vialor at Stateki and work on both the state of the order net mysterious dentis. Cantarias later they had been replaced by a whole cader of inhuman Ungaries, one after the order gives the Block Sista until the von Catarias took control of every major cates and fortness across their new domain. Thus were created Frist, Hans, Petr, Kornd, and Minafel von Cartenia. Id whom would much their mark on bintory.

THE SIEGE OF ALTDORF

Eventually the incredible longevity of the von Cartonia stratend the notice of the Wuch H Hutters, and it was not toge before their secret was one. One Gedenimistance of the year 2010, Wall revealed the dire rubt to the world. He total upon the hardments of Cashe Deskenhol and instance a term of the theory of the theory of the Wall revealed the direct total term of the dash, the work Cartonian invaded the Odd World, cutting a souther of distruction through the lands of the terrefield Electric contact. These and again measurements was also that there will be full and were all bott unsupplied. Vial was assembly Vialled several times – decapitated by annex, set almane by measurements of the terrefield electric contact terrefield and the terrefield electric contact measurements and there is the terrefield electric contact terrefield and the terrefield electric contact and the terrefield electric contact measurements and the terrefield electric measurement and the terrefield electric measurement and the terrefield electric contact measurements and the terrefield electric measurement and terrefield electric measurements and terrefield electric measurements and the terrefield electric measurement in the terrefield electric measurement and terrefield electric measurements and the terrefield electric measurement and terrefield electric measurements and terrefield electric measurements and terrefield electric measurement and terrefield electric

The seemingly unkillable Vad was finally hid low at the segies of Altoori. The city had been surrounded by a vast disch filled with sharpened stakes and the Reik redirected to form the largest most Mankind had ever seen. And yet it was not encough. Great sigge engines built of fused human remains humbered forward, animated by Dark Magie. Vlad gave his ultimatum one last time; surrender and serve him in life, or dies and shave for him in death.

The Grand Theogenist of the Cult of Sigmar, Wilhem III, convinced the would-be Emperor Ludwig not to surrendre. He claimed that through fervent prayer he had uncovered the secret of Vlad's immortality. The greatest thief of the age was dispatched into the Vamjires' camp at noon, whils the aristocracy of Sylvania were dormant in their sarcophagi. His task was to stad Vlad's precisions ring from his dead land, and anothen grant the status-sill senties, stud it he did.

When Vail a woke that night, he feer into a great rags, and ordered an immediate tratk. The skies field with haveinged mices a she muckad an juncalest a fill-acies sings. Snowdsmo thatfed Skelenson on the burtlements, Zonbik Dragons dragged Grand Masters to their death, spirith fooded the stress. In the or got the storm Vall bullent with the Grand Thougonii above the gate of Albdoff majoral blade against holy hammer. Man was on smatch for Vampire, however, and in desperitorin the Grand Thougonish thang history have input of the stress of the store of the walk. Vall was impated on a stake at the wall's four. Write an avail a cream Vall withered and net in fain dated, for without its imagodi ring the was fundy values for the years flags.

In grief, Isabella flung herself to her own doom, and without their leaders the armies of the von Carsteins crumbled and slunk away. But their stain upon the world lingered still – Vlad and Isabella had sized five other von Carsteins, and their leagues still plague the world even now.



Vlad von Carstein was the first and greatest of the Vampire Counts of Sylvania.



Isabella von Carstein was utterly devoted to her paramoaer and mentor, Vlad,



Kowrad the Blosdy, known as the Beast, was a battle-crazed maniac who lived to kill,



Manufred von Carstein was the last and most cunning of the Vampire Counts.

VAMPIRE COUNTS







Atrophus The Gan of Hal For



Mannfred von Carstein Mann of the Black Arts



Madame Elize von Carstein Drywe of the Red Abbey







Comtesse Charlotta Jacoba Quere in the Vale of Darbury



COLOTAL)



SKAVEN

The Shaven awarm beneath the skin of the world in untilnkable numbers. Hidden from the eyes of the surface dwellers in their sprawling underground warrens, these treacherous, craven rat-men constantly fanwa ut the roots of civilisation. They pioto, scheme and multiphy, planning for the day when they will boil out of their tunnels and drown the lands above in a tide of discass-ridden fith.

THE VERMINOUS THREAT

Scatter and slighter than som and processed of a fartly broad survival ionisis of them many world call consultate, a single Scatter is like them to the world a large. The stress are the first to schnitt this, for they have a healthy respect for the first art of running young and far prefer to planging a kulls in the bulk than oppose as for directly. In fast, their intersectivity thrives on their under the single of the running of the Skarm, known as the Concol of Thirtnen, works had to orne all sign of their range classicate from the rescales of the surface theory with an 6 scatter of the skarm. These range classicate from the rescales of the surface theory with a scatter of the skarm prove takes Theorem theory of the skarm proves the subling version pose rule. But the Skarm rest extually mathematics that these values in the discharm for the side large to rule.

It is the Sknewn way to figure structures that the time is register to actuat with absolute and uterriting fractions. When the Sknewn temperatures the viscous transportance is influenced particle in small it becomes a desperate need to kill. A Sknewn registerious transportance in termination of the structure is the structure the structure i

CHILDREN OF THE HORNED RAT

Comparison by abort-based and to other mees, Skeren have a hypericitien metholism that makes them contambly iterate and arrows, much us pring out of hum's way at a month's notice. Their long, were-like and constantly threah and jeck this way and that, their far briefles at the lightest mole, conformation. It is this constant state of argony and heightest mole, the state of direct conformation. It is this constant state of argony and heightest mole, the Skere and again and shift contamous. Their refrestors are thought and mole the Skere and again and shift contamous. Their refrestors are too and an any analytic light contains, the Skere and and the state of the skere and the state of the state of the skere any angle shift failers. It has been known for Skeres to data is fue to standed, may for a blade blad in the ner samely preventive this well sponsored and buy their life in the opponent's neck.

At all times the Skaverh pointed, veing ears are pricked for the sounds of danger or the crise of the vulnerable, and their winkled pink more forever null four the scents of those who could provide an eary neal. So totichy are the Skaven that many of their number have doveloped a radiamentary 'sixth sense' allowing them to react to a threat before it has even manifested. The more societic orders of Skaven societiv tweelerands to how this half, until it is for their protection that may which.

THE CURSE OF THIRTEEN

The origin of the Skreen are thought to trace back to the ancient human (by of Karav in Tiles, Lengend has it the Karav in origing a polyton gas of polytoping and cooperation with their Doard alles. In hands, in population worked for generations to raise a great moment of their ambient oversample constrained for the share their polytoping and infinited. In despite, they accepted the help of a superime garve shall stranger to how provides the strained strained on the strained strained strained with polytoping and could raise in the strained for the share of a superime could work polytoping and a the could raise in the state they are an undersken have of white store topping their momenter, and as the insert to strained back of the strained strained work polytoping the strained strained as the could raise and the hey are an undersken have of white store topping their momenter, and as the strained back of the black of the store topping their momenter, and the strained back of the store of the black of the store topping their momenter, and the store are a strained back (black etc) are store of the store topping their momenter of the store of the store of the store back (black etc) are store of the store topping their momenter, and the store of a start heat back (black etc) are store of the store topping their momenter of the store to the store to the store of the store of the store of the store of the store topping their momenter.





times, heralding a deluge of black rain that drowned the crops and flooded the nearby cities of Man and Dwarf alike. Bloated rats ran through the streets, getting larger and fiercer with each midnight tolling of the great bell, and when ia desperation the men of Kazvar turned to their Dwarf alies they found mught but graved bone and scraps of cloth within those proud ancestral halls.

The men of Karwar met a dark fine indeed, and the city became the first to pass into the calws of the vermin that superstitious men call Staven. Since that time the number thirteen has been sarred to the artenne. Such the significance of the late to the Staven that they cast great bells of warptonelaced alongs wherever they nest, and take them to war on great carriages of wood and stone, the surrounds, ear-splitting darkh lated of the Sterraining Bell sounding the doom of the Shaven⁷ fors.

THE UNDER-EMPIRE

The only real factor that keeps the Skowen in check is the constant interaction warring between the many data of diff arcs. The Under-Empire structures arcsone algolds, from the city of Skowebhight in the nambes of Tikla to the plaque-ridden warrens of Larstin. This subtermann civiliation is how many handfords of dim, some riduridy subt, once to slaving that they count namenous bear datas amongs their namber. The var najmetry of these are known as the Warleed Claus, each ridde varies by a tyranical and metricles warries how do no constantly does and scheme to retain his position and worsen that of his richs. Because Sknew nehre neily survive for long, thew Warleed Laus, each wall do you fully in our toget and the subt, base is explored as well, beause explored yearbly or and period.

The chain in their num are relad over by a body of mysterion overheads known as the Control of Therem, whose red is its much the chain against the Skower's ensuring and interpret the will of the Horned Red. In bruth the Council of Thirteen are far more interested in parsing there one radions from and schemes, multiplicating the lesses of the source and provide the dightest strange the make with a set of Applicity and Indevatibility. Gaming errors there is the one of the provide the transfer of Applicity and Indevatibility, chaining errors the views way:



- an excerpt from the Tilean filk tale 'The Doom of Kazvar'





There remain four Graz Claus sho have amound such power that they only a permanent position at the highest cheldron Schwenn sciency. The Graz Claus have their own obsension and adultions, and each have a representative upon the Council of Thirtnen. These Shaven overheads consider the memory for the structure of the structure of the structure of the structure of the council of the Claus to the structure of the structure of the structure of the council of the Claus to do his dary work, whereas the council of Lot 25 sord, the sensi-thermal hydrox of Claus Tables, read to the structure Subscher Shale.

THE BLACKENED BLADES OF THE FAR EAST

The smallest of the Great Clam is also the most mysterions. Clan Eshin is perlaps the most valid the schemes of the Constant of Thirtenes, for its Delinh tark provides the subscrav and infinitors of the trencheous Shoven race. The exigns of Clam Eshin is in the far sats of the world, and chaid of grants are extrassivily simular that and grant matrix in of the orient: The Shads-chaid Cattere Entances and Assamed of Claim Eshin are a suchtary as hadows. They can spring a step transport from the step of the the step of the step of

DISCIPLES OF PESTILENCE

The newest incomhete amongs the four Green Clans, Clan Peshiens, came into being while the pingle continer of Lossin. The webtering heat and retrity expetitions of that land made a perfect breeding ground for dimense, and when the Skewen found thrite way to that continue they spread dimension for at the area growine super-pages on the by breed in their growt ranking called from the ways of mainternas Skewen society, Clan Pesheim Bornished, lecoming true acolysts of dispose and surging 1 and batter ware growthe as unitar Lindemin native to the deep imples. When Clam Pesheim extranel to the Cldi World, it munitared many thousands of firsthing, rhidd the structure of this ind along from angles Pagnet Ammers that helds not warpstone-load finance. It is only a matter of time before they breve the perfect plaque that will infect every bring thing and ber the Sawara to compare the world in its ways.

MASTERS OF MUTATION

Clan Modellar specializes in the crustion and trude of generospace bases of war. In the depth of their montenens fasters, BeHT, BeH, the matter models of the Skave broed over larger and more bitrare montensities with which to avail the surface dwellers. Many of these are unledy fastions of two different species, such as the wolf-like Ganter Man and the Malking, physe-ageneroise Rat Ogers which Clan Modeller openly tracks with in rivals in exchange for precision warpaction. Others have groung directly from the ranks of models, such as the normous, maximing HeHI PK Monimations that squard from dozens of billed hadea, as they differe and squarish test more than the models and the start of the sime base in the relation.

THE DIABOLICAL AND INSANE

When the Great Clans combine their forces, the Skaven army becomes nigh unstoppable, a seehing mass of mangy for and rusted blades that pours across the battlefield. There will come a day when the entirety of Skaven society rises up against the surface dwellers, overthrowing the order of Man, Elf and Dwarf, reducing their clies to ruin and covering the lands in anarchy and plague.



THE HORNED RAT

The Skewes searching a detry however as the Hermod Rat. Incredibly manipulatives and pusced of a detrible insulted, the Harned Rat embedies the matter of the Skewen rate. The Skewes may possible of other data, and hence accept a president patision is Skewen verrifield of the student of the thorned Rat himself.—In life, thereasing rate-densess hermed Rat himself.—In life, thereasing rate-densess Lords.

Overlapf: The Battle of a Thomsond Pillare, in which the Slaven first atiliaid enermous aige engines to protect their elite Source crassing for a first Azal. The battle range for engine works before the Slaven, unable to bread through the tradborn Draset (domact, brought a great section of the anderground palaete rund conting alores noos Source and Durang failse.





LIZARDMEN

The Lizardmen are on the warpath, marching abroad into the world once more after millennia of isolation. From the primeval jungle continent of Lustria they come, disciplined cohorts of saurian warriors with giant scaly beasts in their midst, led to war by the unbelievably powerful wizards known as Slann Mage-Priests.

THE LEGACY OF THE GODS

The Lizzedmen were the first race created by the Odi Ones, and to thin day they obey an order that dates from the earliest prehistory of the world. Each species of the Lizzedman race was brought mine first gains a specific role in mind by their near-commitgent creators. The most vial task given to the Lizzedmen was to impose the law of their masters the world over, and a such they strive to hold back the servitor idde of Class that threaten to consume correcting in their path.

The Limitshow were one as perfects functioning using, shaping the developing world that had become certral to be (30 Long) counting indications. The Limitshow County, however, their engine has fractured in the counts having against Chaos. The Limits engines are more present with their based counts insteaded, for theory likes with hard they requires the present of the present start of the second start of the second start is and the present of present of the same start of the second start of the present of the heart of Limits is staft may frame start have present in the achievement of the program energy, and their rules are staft present of present operation present of present operations and their rules are staft present of present operations are also been present operation operations and their rules are staft present of present operations are also been present operation operations and their rules are staff present of present operations are also been present operations and their rules are staff present operation operations are also been present operations are also been prese

Caided by the bland, and king blangshearmages known is the Stam – being of announinguid experime and a true frankraination compared to the first of their rac. – the survivos of the Linardsam origination is the constrainty of the deep insight and the direct rac. – the survivos of the survivos of the survivos of the direct of the deep insight and the direct rate of the world, hearing that one emp hold a clue to the platest's instead doublet, When the first hand a prophese they madient upons of the Cold Ober from the world as a survivor in the the survivos of the direct material structure and the survivos of the world as a survivor in the survivos of the direct material structure and the survivos of the survivos of the survivos of the three direct material structures and the survivos of the survivos of the survivos of the three direct material structures and the survivos of the survivos of the survivos of the survivos of the direct material structures and the survivos of the survivos structures and the direct material structures and the survivos of the survivos of the survivos of the mathematic structures of the survivos of the survivos of the survivos of the mathematic structures and the survivos of the survivos of the survivos of the mathematic structures and the survivos of the survivos of

THE LEGIONS OF LUSTRIA

The survice case of the Liandman and issues as the Saman, hubing Liand-centrates with hary setfinance that cashic thread has the bought back impaired at Liantwise sing theor trust fractors. Liake all the survice-stars of the Liandman, the Saman an red bieled but instead spawned, creating failance and the survival stars and stars and the survival stars and the stars and the stars and the stars and the survival stars and the stars and the stars and the stars of stars and the stars and

Their marked process is not learned but coded into the very bodies and work of the Surrar. They indiractively have been to fight, surraying and crushing with their long crocediling in you and surjeng using pract mascular traits even as they lary about themselves with vickedly-karbiel chilts. Their channess, old-blooded bolks are are well work to define an ethy are to marked, and each sparsing of Surara knows how to lock their crested shalls and bladed creeness thields into a scaly wall of bloom, how and meat when the encoursy matters a counter-change.

The dior druk huma species, known as Tampie Gazari, exceptify the durifiel but leftal nature of their lead. Watting based balan fashiond more hashed of forestone bases, the Hample Gazard and easily at a boltgazarks for the Shara upon the but-field blue also stand sentinel over the acted place of their hondrachs. Energie Gazard can and statute-till frazer as at a time, their only genomenant being the excasional fields of on exclud. Should an interloper approach have blue have been discover and a standard statute to the state blue resulting immobility. Perhaps the only true warkness of the Sauras is their a brink obelience – a unit of Sauras workshould excluding starks into the first of half if stars and end to the off blue of their Saura marker.



LUSTRIA

Learns is all the served in the data of the served in the served rest of the served field served in the served field neutral LTo States and Annual CTo States of the served field neutral to the served and annual of the served field served and annual of the served field served and annual the served field prime to a produce of the just and the produce of the just and the served field prime to also produce of the just and the served field prime to also produce of the just and the served field prime to also produce of the just and the served field prime to also produce of the just and the served field prime to also the served field prime to also produce of the served data prime to all the served field prime to also of the logistical prime of the logistical prime of the logistical data is have been been of the logistical prime of the logistical prime of the logistical data is have been been of the logistical data is have been been of the logistical data is have been been on the logistical data is have been data also been been been on the logistical data is have been on the logistical data is have been on the logistical data is have been been on the logistical data is have been on



LIZARDMEN WEAPONS

Lizardown worspose are herm frow a meteoric rock called obsinite, jet Back in colouration and harder thus steel. Though they may look primitive at from typens of the pairing contarts. They are seen routed or shall of edge, and ends to sapable of crucking a month home with a switch knowner them.



The waveleafters of the Saura, howen as Sau-Vertern and Okhlobek, also have a limited indices. Their vocabulary is the a few handred words wergs, and and all of these words are related to image concepts such as hund', will and viceford', shough turky and functional r and in favor sourcelless. To solve still concisions on the field of Matte. Okhlobed have an inferent manager, of how to engage the field, how to coefficiant effective start and where it are significant on an empirical starting. It is discussion of the field of Matte. Okhlobed have an inferent manager of the start and when the field of the start and starting the starting of the start and the start of the start of the start of the start and show the field of the start start of the start start of the start of th

The Old Ones knew that true civilisation needs its functionaries as well as its warriors. Small and nimble, the Skinks are the scribes, orderlies and priors of the Lizardmen empire, but they also make excellent scouts and skirmishers. It is the Skinks that see to the needs of their obese Skann matters as the Mage-Priors cast their minds along the tangied web of futures that may yet befull the world.

The Stake' diministry into block their parsesy upon the hardfeld. They are metters in the art of onion poisoned means, patie blockpings and optimis filling even the largest of flow with the concentrated scenar of the black forge and the trutic devillage. It is common for the Skinks to context the encoding on contraints-bases have one a Strokping the bits real-scenar Strokping and explain for enabling several exemises with a single weige of their heavy obstitute means. Furthermore, the introlution and adapted bits are adapted as guiding the wave-bases of Luttria into hitty, hording insociale Rutreds Rauredson and florer, ensum-spitting Salamanders towards the ecsemilians.

Some Skinks ride to war on even stranger jungle creatures, soaring through the skies on winged lizards or mystical feathered serpents. The priests and herves of the Skink race ride in howdahs mounted upon mighty Stegadones, the ground shaking as these monstrous horned beasts stampede towards the foe. The oldest and most implacable Stegadons sometimes bear upon their backs arcane war machines, devices capable of channeling the energies of the Old Ones themselves. In times of desperation, Lizardmen have even been known to ride scaled behaviors to battle, the near-immortal thurder lizards of the deep jungle that leave wardses of bloode/detruction in their wates as they releateds systemy their way through the enemy ranks.

THE GREAT WORK CONTINUES

The introduction for some that structures areas the works is still the primary tool of the Sham in their project goats to more also denote the buyered is the instructure that also been Lincolevan armine access tool for datasets markens of the planet, reasoling along hidden paper from temple-eity and along without wranging and how who would not how our of their ansatz that. Though there exerpts is har a reflection of its none palitie majors, the survivous of the Lincolevan are released to all implanels in their source of their structures. The survivous of the Lincolevan are released to all implanels in their source of theory. Should the Lincolevan survey the survivous 'beardings or the source the work of data of all out they revealed that all out-theory hosticitons or replet.



Who a sloped ysong Renormain height annumbel da heradhar Disport da annumbel da heradhar da consense, hey war with field an annumbel da heradhar da annumbel da heradhar da an angaland angaland an an angaland angalan citiking an and an angalan citiking an and and angalan citiking an and and an angaland an angalan and an angalan angalan angalan an angalan citiking an and angalan angalan angalan angalan angala angalan angalan angalan angala angalan angalan angalan angala angalan angalan angalan angala ang angalan angalan angalan angala ang angalan angalan angalan angala ang angalan ang angalan angala ang angalan angalan angala angalan angalan angala ang angalan angalan angala angalan angalan angala angalan angala angalan angala angalan angala angala angalan angala angala angalan angala a

The beingits get rather more lines they happings of fit. Scorning out of the joingle came a scatt array of Landmonn, exclution and Schwart Schwart Harrises and Schwart Schwart Schwart Schwart Schwart Harrises and Schwart Schwart



Blood Plaque of Sotes feer a two knowled year debate about the fine mints of its meaning



OGRE KINGDOMS

Far to the cast of the Old World lie the Mountains of Mourn, home to a race of man-ening monsters known as Ogres. Possessed of an instatiable hunger, even a single Ogre can devastate a village when its boulder-like belly is empty. Such is their voracious appetie that when the Ogre tribes are on the march they can devour armies, erush eities, cripple empires and still have rooms for more.

THE INSATIABLE BRUTE

Open are dim-winds cratares obsend with two hings, enting and fighting, and the latter oranity only house there is a good mod at the end of i. Corputed and fields, Open will obselve down anything they can showed into their module with their grant graving lands. They are eternally hungs, and over the interim subset gas are capilale of digetion gap subject from Jarves cald warrises to the briefschaired manmodule that roum their hometands. It is often said that the only way to asse yound from a researce Open it to covince thing you can provide more food alse that dead.

These the height of a maximum grimen more chargeron, an Oger's body shape been significant membrance the program in which he makes this. His Haupen, benevic frame is swelched in greet roll of hildbeet acting both in insulation and a cruck form of nutural arrows. His arrows that may membrane the program of the structure of the both of the both and has built do set and are are covered in a steky grease, for higher is a foreign coverpt to an Oger. Amp this moutantia of iron-hard maches and roll-greet in a historication of the both of the odd and has built do set and are manner of the hardware three. Under a cragge howe glast region of protor of hash black has in the manner of the hardware three. Marker a cragge howe glast region of protor of hash black has in the manner of the hardware the obstant crass of solening term that coverpand and are structured within a createrous and ne folded modern to reso of y dooling term that coverpand are and grind.

Ogens are applying for refined, beloing and centriting their way through the time when they are not croing in momony hand or publicity or corps. They are financially show on the update, but have a certain index when it comes to matters of sure, for Ogens are born into conflict and light for dimension every day of darfs lines. This is an indipenditor refit work where the strong even strong the strong event of the strong event of the strong event of the strong event Stronger and largest of all are the Ogen Tyrants, severing iterus that coffsect their will with an iron first. Iterus, iterus, even the strong events that coffsect their will with a intertion of the stronger and the stronger of the stronger the stronger that the stronger stronger and largest of all are the Ogen Tyrants, severing iterus that coffsect their will with an iron of the largest stronger stronger stronger stronger that the stronger stronger stronger that the stronger stron

The sequence and the Queue herean starting matching of their schemester. However, the sequence of the schemest resonances, includent and the regarding resonance and a schemest are combined to the schemester of the schemester of

THE COMING OF THE GREAT MAW

Ogres do not originally hail from the Mountains of Mourn, but came from a land even further east, bordering the oriental empire of Cathay: There the Ogre race dwelt as primitives for many thousands of years, fearing nothing and feeding on anything they could find. Then came the catastrophe that wheel out two thirds of the Ogre race and changed the fate of the survivors forever.

Some scholars believe the terrible disaster that befell the Ogres was due to the displeasure of the Chaos Gods, others that the Ogres had preved too long on the children of the Cathayan empire and that the astromancers of that land took their revenge. What is certain is that a warpstooe meteor of unprecedented size hammered from out of the sizes and into the Ogre homelands, annihilating the





majority of the Ogre race in an instant and learing a gignitic, publism grave in place of an impact crater. Where once roamed the Ogress of the plains is now a tooch-ridged nooth many miles across, with a pulsing gullet that stretches into the core of the world. This goographical horror is known to the Ogres as the Great Maw, and they revere it to this day, for it must have been mighty indeed to decour so must in such a short time. A new god was born, for the Ogres and fmally found somehing to for an

THE BLOODY TRAIL WEST

From that day on the Ogres were completely in thrall to their appetites. Their hunger, always a defining characteristic of their race, became unnaturally pronounced, and the Great Maw onawed at their souls. In their panic, the surviving Ogres fled west into the mountains. They fought their way through Ice Dragons, living blizzards and even through a civilisation of Sky Titans that lived above the clouds. Though their race had suffered a tremendous blow, there were still tens of thousands of Ogres left, and the Opre armies were ultimately victorious, cating their way across the mountain peaks and leaving nothing but devastation and broken masonry in their wake. Some staved in the warpstone-dusted peaks and mutated into Yhetees, white-furred beasts of snow and ice, but the majority migrated onward in their haste to escape the Maw's lure.

Eventually they came upon the primal reaches of the Mountains of Mourn, a range of peaks that harboured a dizzying profusion of gigantic, hairy cavebeasts. This was like the promised land to the Ogres, a hunting ground where they could googe themselves on titanic carcasses and make

The Ogre Kingdoms Gelgins Tak 711 1 1 ANCIENT ANT LANDS Files Cay CHRISTO UNTRY UNT

their lairs in the wintry crags without the constant remainder of the Maw clusting at the back of their minds. Nonetheless, the Ogres still venerate the Maw to this day, communing with their deity's endless hunger through shanning illochers, adorning their gut plates and January with jue toothed icons, and throwing the best cut of meet into stake-lined pits before their veice-daily feasts. So it is that for Ogress the set of eating and of workship are one and the same.

In recent times the Ogre race has grown numerous once more upon the tough, dense meat of the funan inhabiting the Mountains of Mourn. They have learnt the value of gold, and many of the tribes have grown rich from gathering together into great brutish armies, smashing the living dwights out of the soldiery of other necss and taking anything they cannot eat for themselves.

Creations of standerlist, Oper minis have sharp's segard war in the far content of the world in search of new and coring failups to advoce their natural ability as writes and realimentary grapp of monetary system makes them highly scapel-ariter mercensies, for Opers fight as good sight better that beyouth. Einstein and the state of the state state of the Odd World with the express institution of thing and cating exercising the state of the state.

THE MOUNTAINS OF MOURN

To the east of the Dark Lands are the Mountains of Mourn. It is here that the Ogres wake their bowe, heating, eating and sometimes riding to tear upon the corebrasts that dwall there – shagg Rhinos and Mannooth being the most common.

In the footbills of these reacentains live the Gookhars, a switcilling, big-most pectes of Gobins no coask to protoset themselves from the produces of the Dark Lands. They do all the fetching, carrying and in return the Gookhars recises a measure of safety, heredly recises a measure of safety, heredly
GLORY AWAITS

And so the armies of the world gather anew for war. The promise of victory hangs heavy in the air. Prophest gashs and wall, tearing at their hair and preaching visions of doom to any who will listen. Seers curse the heavens above for massacress yet to transpire. Merciless generals made devisous battle plans, heroie commanders inspire their forces and warmongering kings bellow fery rheatoric that heats the blood of men.

So it is that Empoore. Keel Financ enders the grand mutter room error. Christe transports sound, and from the water colonautische Stadigungen et Aldord' conset a curdual of Venethatisking spherology, one handred horsenson alsense. Every Knightly Order's is there in force, the forozoldenis of the Empower and the stadie in the regularized presence. The uniform of the Engine soldiary blangs are should be fare sum. The decided the execution of the Composition of the Composition of the state of the character of the composition of the Composition of the Composition of the state of the character of the character of the composition of the Composition of the Composition of the state of the character of the character of the character of the character of the Composition of

From the user rides the Greet Created of Bettemini, led by the belowed King Lancource. Every the height of that first most minich as assisted in black and political its immort to a hight down, determined to earth the cyo of the immortal Lady and care her blowing in buffer. The thunder at moment of these bindeness rides in the single around a solution of non at user the formations of their heightly-capational charges. Above them fit earther divisions of Physics Reightly counting these blowed Downsk that are bold as only in the single around your simulations. Theraph the mark and manner below come the postanti of each dukadom, a ray-sag arouy of the imporvesived housing to come aligned or values at the site of their matters.

THE BATTLE BELOW

Armine found share on the part-addied Bretramin presently stills for underground labyritish birth horoground the work Windle by uscerdly breinderks from bycognic the work (the Courd) of Theiran has faulty reached an accord – our is the time for the Skaren to stells. Reasted caldbrane block and spit are completely of the Bretter works of the Bretter Nove. Athibitons Skaren Waderds apper calch other on to near-hysterical burlichts, marshalling great tides of chintening services to the Britanese, calc determinist of calcholar and the Skaren nee gather in numbers unbiability, respective to unlash their most disolacial inventions yet.

The reads helow is not the algorous of ord, however, for in their ancestral halls the Durari agid hemavlow for hole one more. To the hore or 3 in a shows, Ha Kung Tongrin Gradgebaren has network for the norm of the shows. The ancient suppose of the Ancoset Goda have been lowaged or of not neight regiment ideose, have how a function of the board deday. For such power houdd as to be strengt helps, when these waveling each of these materies at distancian. The drinking halls are filled with the disapproving gravables of the board deday. For a house related the strength of the distance of the board stocks, a breach of protor obuild as the whide obtaining boards. The the simulation grows to despirate for such sensitivities. The through mang to be war with every weapon at their disposil if they are to survive the area used gravitat and all hype to relation the housdards.

THE HEROIC AND THE CRUEL

While the Durafi program for use in the darkness, the first of Ufbinan set all under the bining some The iterations belower that the Discont miting happing the forms of disorder; plut it is their dark to use the world once gains from the incursion of Choos that therefore to coaption reality dark of the start of the dark there is the dark of the memoder entrum with the start of the dark of the dark of the dark of the dark of the memoder entrum of the start of the dark of Undersoment to the Elbory, the Linardmen of Lantis' are going forth into the world with the suma cances - to bring output to the matterial parts before it is to late. Worlding sergence of Starum Warriors round over and about the continuents once more, javas equing wide to wallow the armins of the synager more. Packed of partiting Carmanous carry fravorum Starum Okhdovs to the fore full in, timate thundre lizards storm straight through castle walls without pause. Slann Mage-Priests rules used diffs of intome behind the for to care of their except.

To the next of Latria, the Winh King of Nagaroth is poind to strike. Malchith Dark Elli fugnon seg practer than once before, wellby the run normous wave-bases of Kink Evand and the formind Cuth of Khnine. His secrets model well has hargined with damons, and she knows well that a timely similar of automation of the force culd hand the word line as partial of each blockshed from which there could be no eacyse. The time is now, she tells her cold and bitter somrake whilt the despite Elevs of Uthman are vulnerable, and caim dominion and all bitter somrake whilt the despite Elevs of Uthman are vulnerable, and caim dominion over all.

The task themshows are not without their deficience, however. In the reliafyt, the Elves of Athel Loner source the OM which, and the forser runs with them. The Reyal Courd or O'ron and the long near too sup, but not for them the splendour and poong of their cousin-in-mars. No matter their matches the WoodE leves pass without race, for they travel within the diffigure words and regulators and illusions. An army of Ores could pass within metres of a Wood El' worbs and will remain unsurvey, thinking lart farssing alongiate attoristic firster. Whole unsuring the trees become a lattle line, vegerful upirits and WoodE leves bust from their concellment and plange into the forg. Coulding their sciences in a word, bud and hole you hole before disoparating in the metriss occe more.

THE RUINOUS HORDES

We the loss of a single army is of an import to the Oros, for the generalities are preduced to the summarian of all the assess means to fail the second results of the summarian of the second results of the second secon

Such facional straggles are bypoint the leads of undersh, for they seek nothing less than to turnal instead creatures in their unliving always. Series the Imperiabile less table in solution instead of the flow of the leads of the strandard in the hole of these nonzerols fooling enough to oppose him. He would see the nations of the world knote leads the magine, and they did in ages yoak, but this time for all entries its strandard in the possibility of the strandard strand

Eventson at anomaly Starth's many enemies are the sparse of Nagash, in particular the Vampie control of Systami. The nuterior of the inplict two enditions plans to their owner, labor that grow insere finitions with every mew most. The villagers of their foraken radius have beguns to tell of dark conclusive disting the mountain posses every might of vivolge mounds of corpus hearing through the labor for the strength of the strength of the strength of the strength of the labor for the strength of the labor for the strength of the strength

And from the north come the hundles of Chaos. The footsaddern of the Nationa Plovers are too may to coast, trivie go northe of hardnarm variror nait out-call nuteries all the tripies of the endally market and the second hardness of the second se

This world has ever been afire with conflict, and yet this new age of battle will eclipse all that has gone before. The armies have been mustered. The battlelines have been drawn.

20//0/000

All that remains is to wage war







⊆@\\2

MINIATURES SHOWCASE

On the next eighty pages or so, you will find a gallery filled with literally hundreds of Warhammer Citadel Miniatures.

Every one is painted to the very highest standard by Games Workshop's famous 'Eavy Metal team. Each colour-scheme is carefully chosen to evoke the character of the army in question, and each piece of detail and heraldry skifully applied.

Poring over these glorious examples will give you plenty of ideas for your own miniatures, and perhaps even help you to choose your next army.

Introduction by Alan Merrett

Citadel Miniatures

Citadel Miniatures, a sub-Arriving of Games Wirehon your founded in 1978 with the express purpose of making and of fantary miniatures. In these days fantasy miniatures score not particularly commonplace, but hobby, spearheaded in the UK In Games Workshop, and some chlendid innorsative desirns from the likes of Alan Perry and Citadel to the forefront of fantary raming, Within a couple of years reputation for its highly detailed, charismatic models. The demand added to the team, and in 1981 Citadel published the first collectors could play names using all of their models at the same time. The success of the game is measured by the fact that you are reading its modern counterpart today. Not lowy after the publication of the first edition of Warhammer, Citadel and and later moved on again to the Lenton, Nottinoham, The sohite metal cast and plastic injectiontendaced by Games Workshop still proudly carry the name Citadel and the famous little castle loss still appears on all of the bax sets and blistercards.

MINIATURES SHOWCASE

For a model salidar entruminet there can be forhings more exciting that two fishelouoly plainted miniature ramies clushing over a spectrachally modeled hattfielded. For someone with a kern interest in Workmunner, this tabate is mode error versions of the mounters, winnerh and all of the other functiated entrutes and peoples of that imged workd. On the following pages you can view a small selection from the many hundreds of models that comprise the Workmunner range. This armies of Workmunner and a sa inspiration farse.

The creation and collecting of model soldiers has a distinguished and honoznable past, and features throughout the entirety of human hintory. Sets of carved succeder soldiers have been recovered from ancient Egyptian tombs, there is evidence that the Romans cast soldiers in lead, and various royal princes of Europe in the 17⁹ and 18⁹ centuries were presented with minitature and soldiers and the soldiers were presented with minitature end of the 18⁹ century German designers were boginning to mass-produce lintle twodimensional tin soldiers known as Zinnfiguren intended for more popular consumption. These are the forerunners of the modern model or ups soldier tradition. By the middle of the 19⁴ century the fully round cast metal miniature soldier had become commonplace and collecting them already a popular pursuit.

The organisation of formal battle games using model soldiers, as opposed to the naïve childish pursuit of merely 'playing with toy soldiers', is a relatively recent innovation by comparison. Prussian officers of the 19th century were trained for real war by playing the Kriegspiel (The War-Game), However, H.G.Wells seminal book Little Wary is widely regarded as the first description of organised gaming with model soldiers as a pastime and that was published in 1913 Miniatures wargaming is such a natural extension of collecting armies of military models that one suspects it may have an origin that is even more ancient than Wells' book. In any case, Warhammer continues what has become a fine tradition and presents a thrilling new slant on the, now venerable, hobby of tabletop wargaming.



The Warhammer world is populated with all manner of migola and monstrons centures. Ores and Gollimi infect the mountains, vile fastgemon forces of Clause gather in the sylatent set of the set of the set of the set of the array of the result of the set of the set of the array of the result of the set of the set of the mains of these races include the most maxing range of montres and certainers ever to table to war. Even the staunchly hereick human arrises of their ranks (brieflow), Griffins, I typespyly hand their ranks (brieflow), Griffins, I typespyly hand their ranks (brieflow), and wardrey rejects.

Lackikj for fans of Warhannere all of these incredible characters and creatures, and many more besides, are recreated in miniature and can be included in the many amines that feature in the game. This is largely thanks to the efforts of the Cinad designers—the skilled creaters of the miniatures are produced as white metal costing diminares are produced as white metal costing design runs, as anyly demonstrated by the models on display whith this showcase, have proven themselves to be matter olvold edging of the dioptine. The detail and fine quality of the plastic injection moulded kits is particularly networthy. Modern design technologues have been alled to years of experience and the team ow regalarly produce miniature guess that cannot be discerned from metal castings once assembled and painted. Citadel's metal castings have always enjoyed a reputation for superb sculpting and characterisation, a reputation that we would like to think is now shared by all of the design team's output.

The Warhammer game currently boasts fifteen different armies shown here in all of their miniature splendour. This amply illustrates the huge amount of variety the game offers and the breadth of choice that this presents to the budding collector. There are also pages showing selected models from various Golden Demon tournaments and from the personal collections of the 'Eavy Metal team. Every model here has been painted to the most exacting standards by the best figure painters in the world. Aspiring painters should not be daunted by this, but should instead take inspiration from the efforts of these fabulous practitioners. Who knows, one day your painted Citadel Miniatures could be sitting alongside these little masterpieces. We can all dream

GOLDEN DEMON

The Golden Denson Plaining Jearaments are regular fixtures of the Games Days bosted by Games Workshop on an annual basis in cides around the world. They are generally open to auyone attending a Games Days with separate categories for the different types of Cindel minitures, including dedianted Warlnammer sections. A Young Blooks Competition for younger painters and an Open Competition for younger painters are usually mudoneside the Golden Denon tourment.

Golden Demon has a long and venerable history: The very first tournament was held on the 27b June 1987 in Notingham, and the goal of that event and of all subsequent Golden Demons was to showcase the talents of the best figure painters in the world. This has proven to be so successful, and the standard so high, that the tournament is regarded as the most important figurepointing event in the calendar. Gold, Silver and Bronze Demon statuss are smarchel to the winners in the various categories and one entry is adjudged as the Bea in Shoot, "winning the much-coveted "Slayer Sword". A small electric of our freeouries Warhammer models from some of the Golden Demon tournaments of the parts freey wara are fastured on these pages. The models shown illustrate the sheer brillance directarity of the painters and modellers who enter, and are clearly the reason for the competition's lower's and an oclearity in the source of the state of the s

Jacques-Alexandre Gillois, winner of the Slayer Sword, UK Golden Demon 2004.

99 2 2 2 2 m



What is 'Eavy Metal?

It enas in White Depart manazine that the term 'Eavy Metal spar coined - the syre first such article appearing in issue 78, published way back simply showcase the very best painted miniatures and to illuminate miniatures painting techniques. This proved to be so successful and popular that it became a regular feature of the manazine and has appeared in most issues ever since The name 'Easy Metal ratidly became synonymous miniatures. Hence it may only natural that the team of expert figure painters employed fulltime at the Device Studio came to be known as the 'Eavy Metal painters.

'Eavy Metal Painters

The 'Eavy Metal team are Games Workshon's Rased at the company's headquarters and a part of the Design Studio, the members of the team are widely reparted as being some of the very best miniatures painters in the world. The majority of the models featured in this book) have been painted by the 'Eavy Metal team and their the Warhammer Armies books and on the bax fronts of the Citadel Miniatures range of Warhammer models, Their painted miniatures also appear every month in White Dwarf demonstrating various profiles of individual painters.

THE EMPIRE



The Emperor Karl Franz on his loyal Griffon, Deathclass.



Ludtoig Schwarzhelm, bearer of the Emperor's standard.



Marins Leitdorf, the Mad Count of Averland.



Kurt Helburg, Grand Marshal of the Reiksguard Knights.



Warrior Priest of Sigmar.

A Handrunner receives the blessings of Signar.

Captain of the Empire.



Captain of the Empire.



Captain of the Empire.



The Emperor Karl Franz this model was created using spare components from various plastic Empire kits.



Empire Archers and Huntomen.



Altdorf Stoordiman. Talabheim Spearman.

Middenheim Halberdier

Swordsman of the Stirland Ostermark Spearman. River Patrol.

5000



A regiment of Nuln Handgumers,

The state troops of the Empire spear the coloury of the province in solich they spere recruited, for example red and blue for Altdorf or black and white of Outland. These Handgunners display the black livery of the city state of Nuln. In their case, this has the added bonus of hiding the sout stains from their deadly black perceder tonatons.



When war comes, bands of cruzed Flagellants gather on the battlefield, certain that the end of the world is upon them.





Averland Greatmoord, Stirland Greatmoord.



Ostland Greatmoord.

THE IMP



Middenheim Greatmoord.

Altdorf Greatespord.





Bright Witzand



Celestial Wizard.







Imperial Steam Tank.



Master Engineer riding Mechanical Steed.



Helstorm Rocket Battery.



Helblaster Volley Gun.



THE IMPRE

WARRIORS OF CHAOS













Chaos Lond.



Sorcerer of Nurgle.



Surcerer of Tzeento



Surcerer of Nargle.



Prince Signald the Magnificent



Walfrik the Wanderer.



This model was inspired by the cover of the 1st Edition of Warhammer; and is foully known as 'Harry the Hammer'.

WAREORS OF CH.



Lord of Khorne on Juggermant.



Lord of Nurgle on Daemonic Mount.





Chaos Warriors toear suits of eldritch plate mail.



23









Marauder Horseman champion.

Marauder Horsemen.



WARBORS OF CHAOS



Chaos Chosen are the favoured sparriers of the Dark Gods.



Chase Knights.



Chase Maranders launch raids from the frozen toastes of the far north.



WARSORS OF CHAOS



These pages show a selection of winning entries from recent Golden Demon tournaments.







Dwarf Longbeards by Paul Capon (Silver, UK Warhammer Regiment 2003)



Le Sheriff by Joe Hill (Gold, UK Warhammer Single Miniature 2005)



Orc Warrior by Albert Morets Font (Gold, UK Warhammer Single Miniature 2006)



Ogre Bull by Jakob Nielson (Bronze, UK Warhammer Monster 2006)



Gui le Gros & Hugo le Petit Diorama by Dave Thomas (Gold, Chicago Open 2008)



HIGH ELVES



High Elf Mage.

Eltharion the Grim, Warden of The Yversse, riding his Griffon, Stormwoing.



Tyrion, Defender of Ulthuan.



Teclis, High Loremaster of the White Tecoer.



Caradryan, Captain of the Physnix Guard.





High Elf Noble.

High Elf Princes.



High Elf Mage.



High Elf Battle Standard Bearer and Prince.



Phoenix Guard champion.



White Lions of Chrace.



Korhil, Captain of the White Lissu.



hu

High Elf Prince mounted on a Dragon.





High Elf Noble, converted to ride a Great Eagle.



High Elf Battle Standard Bearry.



Lothern Sea Guard.

Stoord Masters of Hoeth



Alith Anay, the Shadow King.



Shadow Warriors.







Tiranse Charists pulled by Elven steeds, and a mighty White Lisn Charist of Chrace.





Dark Elf Sorceress mounted on a Cold One.



Morathi, the Hag Sorceress, riding her Dark Pegasus, Sulephet.



Draich-master, Executioner champion.



Dark Elf Assessin.



Lskhir Fellheart.



Dark Elf Dreadlord





Black Guard of Naggaroud. DARK ELVES



Dark Elf Master, converted to hold this hand-painted hanner.



Dark Elf Shades.



Black Ark Corsairs.





Cold One Knights form the elite shock cavalry of the Dark Elves.



Dark Elf Warriors.

Har Ganeth Executioners.

WOOD ELVES



Orion, the King in the Woods.



252 00

Treeman.





Wood Elf Highborn.

Wood Elf Spelltoeavers.



Drycha, Handmaiden of Coeddil.



Dryads, spitcful forest spirits of Athel Loren.





Glade Guard musician and champion,



Glade Gaard.



Wood Elf Battle Standard Bearer.



00



Naestra and Araham, the Sisters of Taslight, riding the Forest Dragon Ceithin-Hax



VAMPIRE COUNTS





Vampire Lord



Count Manufred von Carstein wields the Sword of Unholy Power.



Konrad von Carstein.



Necromancer



Aristocratic Vampire.



Zombies are the corport of the freshly dead, revived by Dark Magic.



Crypt Gloads. VAMPIRE O


Wad von Carstein, greatest of the Vampire Counts of Sylvania.



Varghulf.



Skeleton Warrisez.



Grave Guard act as guardians for the Vampire rulers of Sylvania.



Blood Knights charge into battle upon barded Nightmares.



VAMPIRE COUNTS





Chaos Warrior Standard Bearer by Mihael Dwisholz (Silver, UK Warhammer Monster 2006)



Empire Hero by Seb Perbet (Bonze, UK Open 2003)



Sorceress (Lucrezzia Belladonna) by Thomas David (Silver, France Mounted Figure or Monster 2000)



Ogre Maneater by Steve Buddle (Gold, UK Warhammer Monster 2005)





Grombrindal, the White Desarf, carried by Gotrek Gurnisson and Josef Bagman.



Decarf Thane carrying the Battle Standard.



A Dwarf Lord borne inte battle by Shieldbearers.





Dwarf Runelsro



Dwarf Lord.





High King Thorgrim Grudgebeaver and the Throne of Power.





Dwarf Londs

DWARFS



Daennon Slayer.

Slayers dye their hair bright orange and seek a glorious death in battle.



Hammerers.





Longbeards.



Duarf Warrisrs.





Dearf Miners.





Thorek Ironbrow and the Anvel of Doom, with two Anvel Guards.

Kraggi, the most able of Thorek's assistants.



Dwarf Balt Thrower:



Master Engineer:

A Cannon and its Dyparf cress.



A Grudge Thronser hards rocks inscribed with runes and curses across the battlefield.

ORCS & GOBLINS





Goblin Warboss on Great Cave Squig.

Azhag the Slaughterer mounted atop Shallmancha the Wyvern.



Ore Shanan.



Night Gohlin Shannay. Black Ore Warbox.



Gringer Irenhide.

ORCS & CO



Gorbad Ironclato astride his toar boar, Gnarla.



Sharonik, Warlord of the Eight Peaks, and his pet Spaig Gobbla,





Night Goldin Spaig Hoppers.



Forest Goblin Spider Riders.



These Ore Boyz fight under the distinctive 'Evil Sun' banner.



A Spaig Herd is made up of Cave Spaigs and Night Goblin Spaig Herders.



Black Ores are the biggest and strongest of all Ores and always get the best weapons and armoust



Night Goblins wear distinctive pointy-booded black robes.



Goblin Wolf Riders.



Goblins are createdly, but danterous in large numbers.



Traff.

Bulls are found throughout the world and can physically vary by region, however all Trolls are don-woited, fervious and hard to kill.



Stone Troll.



River Troll.

ORCS & COBLINE



A Rock Lobber hurls projectiles to oppath the for. It is crewed by Goblins led by an Orc Bully.

TOMB KINGS





High Queen Khalida.

Settra the Almighty, Timb King of Khemri, Raler of Nebekhara.



A Liche Priest calls forth spells from the Cashet of Souls.





Timb Kings.



Tomb Guard are the personal budyguard of the Tomb King.



Sheleton Warriors. e



A Base Giant, mightiest of the Tomb Kings' sertuants.



Ushabti.



Timb Scorpion.





Skeleton Charist.







King Louen Leoncoeur, mounted on his faithful Hippogryph, Beaquis.















Bretonnian Lord.



Bretonnian Paladin.



Daniel of the Lady.





Questing Knights set aside their lances and voorldly daties in order to search for the Grail.



by Joe Hill (Gold, UK Warhammer Single Miniature 2003)



Empire Clock Maker by Ben Jarcis (Gold, UK Fantary Single Ministere 2009)



Bretonnian Mercenary by Joe Hill (Gold, UK Warhammer Single Miniature 2004)



Orion, King of the Woods by Matt Parkes (1st place, UK Open 2001)

Prince Tyrion by Jakob Nielsen (Gold, UK Warhammer Single Miniature 1999)

OGRE KINGDOMS





Greasus Goldtooth, Overtyrant of the Ogre Kingdoms.



Slaughtermaster.





OGRE KINGDOMS

Ogre Mawaters.



and a 1

Skrag the Slaughterer.



Leadbelcher and Gnoblar attendant.







Gushlar Fighters.



Geoblar Trappers.



Ogre Irongut.







The ramshackle Gnoblar Scraplaunchers are pulled into battle by bad-tempered Rhinsues.







Ogre Balls.

Garge

DAEMONS OF CHAOS











Skulltaker, Khorne's Immortal Champion.





Plaguebearers of Nurgle.



Bloodletters of Khurne.

Daemonettes of Slaanesh.





839



Plaguebearers are rotten and diseased Daemons, tohose skins are slick with pus and ooze.



Daemonette standard beares:

Fiend of Slaanesh.

Beast of Nurgle.



Seeker of Slaunesh.



Bloudcrusher of Khorne, a Bloudletter riding a rampaging Juggermant.

DAEMONS OF CHAO





Vermin Lord.

Warlord Queek Headtaker.

SKAVEN





Packmaster Skuoed Gnatotooth, with his Welf Rat Gatmagger.

Clawrat standard bearer.



Shaven Claurats bear a range of treapons and tattered equipment scavenged from the battlefield.





Plague Priest with a plague censer.



Poissed Wind Globadier.



Plague Monks bear disease-ridden tomes and scrulls



Stormvermin are elite fighting regiments that bear heavy armour and halberds.


LIZARDMEN





Saurus Battle Standard Bearer.



Slann Mage-Priest, with specially modelled base to make the Palanquin 'float'.



Tiktag'to, Master of Skies, mounted on his Terradon, Ztong.





The shields of the Lizardmen are made from the scaly hides of mighty jungle beasts.



Chakas, the Eternity Warden.



Skink Print.





Kroq-Gar, Ancient Scar-leader, riding the Carnosaur, Grymlog.

Kraxiger.





Skinks, armed with blowpites.

Chameleon Skinks.









Ghurrus Warboof.



Doorsball.



Morghus; Master of Shalls.



Malago; the Dark Omen.







Bestigers seize their pick of the toeapons and armour piled around each Beastman herdstone.



Horned and cloven-horned, Gors form the bulk of the Beastmen bordes.



Battle Standard Bearer.





Miestaur







Ungorz.

EAVY METAL

These special individual models are intended for display rather than play – the 'Eavy Metal team have created scenic bases to mount their miniature masterpieces on.



Celestial Wizard



Flagellant by Anja Wettergree



Gold Wizard by Joe Tomarzeroski



Dark Elf Lord



Caradryan by Darren Lathan



Sigvald the Magnificent



Forest Goblin Spider Rider by Neil Green



Skink Chieftain by Keith Robertson



Amber Wizard by Keith Robertson



Chaos Lord (Gamesday 2009) by Joe Tomaszewski



Fzeentch Sorcerer by Anja Wettergrou



High Elf Prince



Warrior Priest



Harry the Hammer





ASSEMBLING AND PAINTING

There's much more to the Warhammer hobby than just playing games and collecting mighty armies. Assembling and painting Warhammer miniatures is also an absorbing and enjoyable pastime. This section offers a starting point for aspiring hobbyists.

The Warhammer hobby is all shout assembling. nainting and gaming with Citadel miniatures. One of the things that makes the hobby so fulfilling is the sense of accomplishment that hobbwists feel as they transform finely detailed Citadel miniatures into individual, personalised gaming or display nieces. Every hobbyist remembers the first miniature they finished painting and the sense of satisfaction that it gave them once completed. This is magnified when you finish an entire regiment and even more so when the fruits of your labours begin to yield a fledoling army. Of course, there are other considerations too - what miniature will you choose for your army general? Do you want to include mighty monsters or deadly war machines? Assembling, painting and collecting miniatures is an integral part of the hobby.

That, then, is what this section of the book corese: the holdy assembling and painting your Worknamer miniatures. Don't fet support fool you into thinking that achieving great reasols will be easy or that abortcoss will be worth känging there is no substatute for penetrement and experimentation. Producing beautifully painted Cindel miniatures takes commitment and imagination. There is no comparable autification to displaying and paining with your fully painted army.

The Games Workshop website contains scores of articles covering every aspect of the Warhammer hobby, including assembly guides and an array of painting tutorials:

www.games-workshop.com





Every Warhammer hobbyist's ambition is to occu an army that is not just fan to play with, but also looks stumme.

WORK DESK

A well-ancided dark is a bono to every holdyist, providing a space where here or here an quickly perfect the modeller's and painter's art. Of apart for such activities, and so we make do with a tray or Paint Station set up with all the tools and equipment we need, ready to be taken out from a cupboard or from under a bed when it's time for some holdy'.

This desk belongs to Chad Mierzwa, a veteran hobbyist who keeps his desk here in the Studio in a permanent state of happy anarchy – there's always an array of miniatures in various stages of completion scattered across his desk!

DISPLAY CABINET

Building and painting armies of Citadel miniatures really is its own reward and, as any hobbyist from the greenest initiate to the mostestablished veteran will agree, there's something very satisfying and enjoyable about having a collection of miniatures that you can both play games with and display for all to see.

The cabinet you can see here is packed with models that have been lovingly painted by Alan Merrett over serveal years. Such a collection is a living display – it is both used on the battlefield and is constantly added to as a showcase of Alar's ever-growing collection as he displays the newset additions alongside the rest of his army.

GAMING ROOMS

Probably without exception, every Games Workshop hobbyist wishes for a bespoke games room – a veriable Aladdin's cave of gaming boards and scenery, with painted armies filling shelves and cabinets, and walls adorned with evocative attwork, banners and mans.

The gaming room shown here is the belowed butteground of Alan Perry and Mikhael Perry, two life-long hobbytists who not only sculpt also enjoy playing Warhammer. Yans of assembling and painting miniatures and scenery (dong with collecting all manner of militaria) has produced a well-stocked gaming room that is the envy of their colleagues and firends. The "basement" as it's known, has been the site of countles bloody thatis and thriling games.







Plastic Catters



Hobby Files













Using a vice such as this one can save yoor fingers from a world of disconfort and injury. Use its of firstly and safely held any miniatures or components that you need to cut or save vehile you are preparing them for assembly.

ASSEMBLING YOUR MINIATURES

Before you can paint and game with your miniatures you will need to assemble them. Taking the time to prepare your models prior to painting them can dramatically improve your finished result and can be an enjoyable and rewarding part of the hobby in its own right.

Most holdysist paint their first Warhammer models as quickly as they can – sfrer all, there's aral sense of excitnence getting your sew Cinadel miniature out of the box, assembled, part of what drives all of us as holdysist and is part of what drives all of us as holdysist and is why the carf of building and pointing Cinadel miniatures is such a compelling aspect of the Warhammer bobby:

Over the following few pages we'll look at the basics of preparing your models for painting and offer a few tips that will help you get the best out of your Citadel miniatures, and have them ready for action on the gaming table.





Remember, though, that as with any aspect of the Warhammer hobby, you work necessarily be an expert straight away – and that's fine. Most find that with practice and dedication their skills quickly increase, enabling more adventurous projects. Don't be afraid to experiment.

Of course, all advice and information pertaining to preparing and assembling your miniatures must be treated with common sense and an eye towards personal safety. Remember at all times that many of the items of equipment and the tools that you are using are potentially dangerous, and if they are used in a careless manner, injury can result.

PREPARING PLASTIC MODELS

Plastic Citadel miniatures are supplied on frames, so before you can build them you'll need to carefully remove the relevant components. The best way to do this is to cut the pieces free from the frames using a pair of Plastic Cutters – not only does this give a 'clean' cut, but it's nice and safe too.

Many hobbyists like to cut all of the spare parts off the frames and store them in a 'bits boo' for later use. You never know when spare components will be useful in the future, and it means you can dispose of the empty frames.

CLEANING MOULD LINES

One of the inescapable side-effects of the plastic moulding process is that mould lines and flashing are sometimes visible on your miniatures. These can easily be removed by 'scraping' along the seam with a Hobby Knife, or by gently filing them with an appropriately line file.

Diligent hobbyists take care to inspect all of their models thoroughly, and remove any mould lines prior to painting – there's nothing quite so annoying as discovering an unsightly mould line half way through a really good paint job!

ASSEMBLING PLASTIC MINIATURES

If you've never built a Citadel miniature before, the process might seem a little daunting. Don't be perturbed, however, as each plastic box set comes with clear assembly guides for you to follow and the Games Workshop website is regularly updated with easy-to-follow assembly instructions.

Most hobbyists use plastic glue (also called polystyrene cement) to build their plastic Citadel minitatures. While super glue will also provide an effective bond, plastic glue gives the strongest possible join, and has the added advantage that it takes a few moments to set fully; allowing you to adjust the parts to ensure you get the fit and pose you wart.





Command models, such as champions, standard beavers and musicians, can be found in most regiments, and are often more detailed and complicated to assemble than the rank and file.



As you build your regiments, make sure that your models can 'rank up' in the unit effectively. Experiment with this as you go along to make sure your finished unit fits together.



Here you can see the finished unit assembled and ready for painting. While building a unit such as this is a satisfying undertaking in its own right, it is even more enjoyable to behold once it is painted and ready to transfe over, your opposal's army!



Many gamers like to mount models on 'multi-bases'. This makes it much easier to move the unit around on the tabletop, and to change formation in the midst of a battle. Especially large units can really benefit from this, as any seasoned Gebin or Shorem general will tell you!

PREPARING METAL MODELS

While plastic miniatures form the mainstay of almost every Warhammer army, there are also many wonderful metal Citadel miniatures available. From elite regiments to legendary heroes, and even monsters and war machines, there's a wealth of choice. Preparing and assembling these models presents a slightly different challenge.

PREPARING YOUR MINIATURES

Just as with your plastic miniatures, you'll find mould lines and little bits of flash on your metal miniatures too. You may also notice timy 'worms' of metal that spour from corners of the miniature. All these can be quickly and easily removed with a pair of cutters and a hobby furfic, and ground savay with a suitbhy fine file.

REMOVING TABS

While assembling metal models, you'll notice that sometimes extra components may come attached to a small metal larg - just cut them away from this with a pair of cutters. Nou might also find you need to straighten some of the components, this is easily done using a pair of modelling pliers (wrapped in tissue to avoid leaving pressure marks).

GLUING METAL MODELS

Metal models require a different solution to plastic miniatures, so you'll need to use super glue to fix the pieces together. As a contact adhesive, you won't get the same time to 'fiddle' with the parts while the glue sets, so make sure you have a dry run to ensure you're happy with the fit before applying any glue.

TAB KINKING

Ghing your meth minitures into their detta bases can prove problematic if the tab is too narrow for the kote – the model may not stand up properly and it can be very hard to get it to stick in place. Should you have trubule, one way to get around this is to 'finit' the table of your mean models. This is just that it stouds like – using a pair of pliers or clippers, gently bend the tho yea that has a higher crock in it.

After doing this, you should find that the tab on your metal model will fit much more tightly into its slotta base, and will glue in place more easily. If you have kinked the tab too much or too little, just go back and adjust it a bit more.













Empire Captain.

LARGE MODELS

The Warhammer world is filled with monstrous creatures, towering beasts and brutal war machines. These spectracular models are logical centrepices and focal points for your armies. They also present the most complex challenges when it comes to assembly. Every hobbyists develops techniques that help them when they're building complicated models like these.



Large plastic ministures, such as this High Elf Dragon, are aften best accomblad in stages, alloccing the plastic glue to fully set on one element of the model hybric programming to the next. Here you can such that clastic bands have been used to bind the piezes together. This is a handy technique if you cusuat to build other component while one sets, or if you imply dow't funcy holding the part in place for a long time.



Elaborate metal models can be among the most impressive of all Catadel miniatures. They are also the most complex to build. You'll find as you gain more coperione assembling uncertainly complicated models, that you adopt all sorts of noglid tricks and tips. This Durk Elf Hydra has been seatorisely pound and "green staff" has been noed to strengthen and mosth over sint.

PINNING COMPONENTS

The rigues of the batthefield can take a toll on your models, especially delicate multi-part metal minitures that are wont to break at the joints if dropped or knocked hard. Reinforcing the joints of these models by pinning them together (using a small drift, such as a pin vice) with a length of meal rod will provide much-needd strength. Doing this when you are assembling the model will dramatically improve its survivability.

SMOOTHING OVER GAPS

Larger models often have visible scans between parts, even once you've gload dhem into place. While these will be disguised, to an extent, when the model is painted, many hobbyists like to smooth over these gaps with a modeling patty affectionately called 'green stuff'. Tinal, error and a little dedication can perfect this ar and after experimenting, you'll soon find that you can make such sense disappear completely.







"Green stuff" is a two-part patty that, when mixed together, sets within an hoar or so. This is the material that many Citadel miniatures are scalpted from.

ASSEMBLING AND PAINTING



PAINTING MINIATURES

The skills required to paint Citadel miniatures to the standards shown within this book are not easily acquired – in fact, it's fair to say that they are gained only through dedication. Thankfulls, the process of learning to paint is enjoyable. As your painting skills increases through practice, you'll find any painted miniatures hock better and better. These pages introduces the painted miniatures hock better most better. These pages introduces the painted miniatures hock better most better.

BASICS

Many of us wish for a beyoek painting desk to week at, with high-paulity lighting and equipment on hand, but few start our painting is that you have a selection of decent braches, the relevant paints for your ministares and somewhere you can paint without causing undar moss and disorder! With those few things gathered up, you're reach you alseah your creativity and hone your theme. All you'll need to perfect you are is painteen. All you'll peed



The complete range of Citadel Paintbruches includes ten high-quality, hand-made bruches of various sizes.

PAINT STATION

Here you can see an example of a well-equipped Citadel Paint Station. A sturdy wooden booth, stocked with paints, washes and brushes, provides a great work area, and can be easily moved from a cupboard to your table when it's painting time.



CITADEL COLOUR

Citade Colour paints are the staple tools of the Warhammer hobbyist, presenting a range of vibranc toolurs with which to paint your models. The complete range includes more than 45 colours, including the metallic paints, all of which can be easily mixed together, further enhancing your choice.

FOUNDATION PAINTS

Foundation paints are high-pigment colours that serve as the perfect basecoat for Graded paints. Using Foundation paints eliminates many of the difficulties attached to painting with light colours over a dark undercoat (and vice-versa), their superior coverage allowing the painter to focus parely on technique.

CITADEL WASHES

Gitadel Washes are an invaluable tool that help painters with shading their models. Applying a Gitadel Wash to a model will create convincing, natural shading on your miniature. Skilled painters often put Citadel Washes to other uses, such as applying glazes to their models.



MODELS UNDERCOATED BLACK

Undercoating your models in black provides a strong base for models that boast a dark colour scheme, or that have a large amount of metallic armour. Here you can see three examples of miniatures that have been undercoated using Chaos Black Spray.



Priming your model black is as simple as spraying the miniature with Chaos Black Spray, or applying a coat or two of Chaos Black paint by hand.



This Orc Boy is an obvious candidate for a black undercoat; he has dark green skin, large metal veapous and much of the model is covered in dark cloth.



This Chase Warrior is clad in large areas of flat armour plates. Armoured models such as this rely on the areas of shade found in folds and recesses for contrast.



Dark Elves wear plenty of chainmail, along with dark robes. A black undercoat is by far the most effective starting point for painting dark metallic armoor.



For holdspirts looking, for more detailed help and information on here to auscuble and pairs Gitadd winistarres, Hore to Pairst Citadd Winistarres present an invaluable resource. Nat only is the book packed full of aucful tips and information on techniques and pairing sythes but in includes many coamples of hore to pairs to reits models ton.

MODELS UNDERCOATED WHITE

Models that are to be painted in light, bright or vibrant colours are often best undercoated using white, where a single layer of Citadel Colour and a wash can provide spectacular results. Each of these examples shows a slightly different purpose behind using a Skull White Spray undercoat.



Using Skall White Spray to prime your miniature produces a smosth and even undercoat that vooald take several, careful applications by hand.



Painting white over a black basecoat is very hard. It's often easier to undercoat in white and then paint on darker colours at a later stage.



Large areas of pale or light colours, such as areas of flesh and green cloth on this Wood Elf Wardoncer, are best served with a vohite



Rich, wibrant colours such as the blue skin og this Lizardmen Skink can be easily built up from white, and will look clean and bright.



Using Citadel spray undercoats is an efficient way to get a smooth undercoat that will take paint easily.

Be sure to spray in a wellventilated location (outdoors is a good start), and to follow all the safety instructions on the can.

DON'T PANIC

Throughout this book, and in countless other sources, you'll see examples of painted miniatures, instructional guides; illustrated heraldry, icons and much more. Don't think that you have to paint your own collection in any one particular style or colour, or be an expert overnight. It's OK to experiment and develop your skill as a painter in your own way and time.

PAINTING REGIMENTS

While painting individual miniatures is an enjoyable and great way to hone your skills, there's no satisfaction quite like unleashing your creativity on an entire unit. On this page you can see two units that have been painted using specific techniques.

These Vampire Counts Skeleton Warriors were painted using Foundation paints and then washed with Citadel Washes. A simple process that has very impressive results and could be applied to a host of models.



HONING YOUR SKILLS

As you might expect, many techniques can be combined for even better effects. Here you can see the benefits of applying a wash to a model that has already been drybrushed. While the drybrush has captured the detail of the texture, the wash glazes the colours and shades the recesses.

By applying several layers of paint through successive drybrushings, you can build up a highlighting effect. This works especially well on furs and similar surfaces. A wash over the top glazes the colours and completes the look.



PREPARING GROUPS OF MODELS

A stick, with double-sided sticky tape to attach models, is a great painting tool. Easy to hold, rotate and angle, it makes spraying miniatures simple. There's also the advantage that if your spray misses one model, it's likely to hit another – more economical than spraying one at a time.

PAINTING MODELS TOGETHER

Assembling your miniatures so that they are on multi-bases not only makes your units easier to deploy and move around the tabletop, it also helps when painting – you can easily work on several models at once, and it helps you see how the finished models will look in their unit.



Night Goblin Boss

ASSEMBLING AND PAINTING

EXAMPLE REGIMENTS

On this page you can see three regiments, each painted using a different painting technique. As you paint, your skills will steadily develop. Not only will you learn new techniques, but you'll know which you enjoy using the most and what models, or areas of models, they are best suited to.

IN ALL CERTS ALLAD

HIGHLIGHTING

The armour plates and sharp edges of models, such as these Chaos Chosen, can be clearly defined by applying stark highlights. This technique is known as edge highlighting and works by picking out hard edges using contrasting colours. Here the edges of the armour plates have been picked out with lighter metals, such as Mithril Silver.



LAYERING

The large flat areas found on these horses and the brightly coloured slashed sleaves of these Pistoliers are ideal surfaces for layering. By building up successively lighter layers of paint on raised areas, leaving the darker colour showing in the recesses, you can achieve very effective results.

WASHING

These Plaguebearers of Nurgle have been washed, to provide additional shading in their festering recesses. Not only does this add colour for things such as bruises and rotten flesh, but it adds to the impression of moistness and the Daemons' generally slimy, sickly appearance.

ASSEMBLING AND PAINTING

STAR STAR

PAINTING BANNERS

Banners are an intrinsic element of the look of Warhammer. Regiments of soldiers marching beneath their chosen standard just look fantastic, and a well-painted banner can dramatically enhance the appearance of a unit. Here we'll take a look at banners in the Warhammer hobby, and how you can add stuming standards and icons to your own collection.

BASICS



Almost every unit in Warhammer has access to a binner or icon of some description. Banners can be large or small, replete with imagery and initratie incomgraphy or largely unadorned. Whatever you choose for your own regiments, banners are a grave way of providing a strong identity to your troops and, if you choose to use mem access your whole force, the can unify your entire collection into a cohesive and impressive-looking arms.



STAGE-BY-STAGE BANNER

If you have an unadorned banner, a little practice and experimentation can yield impressive results – here we show how straightforward it can be to paint a stunning banner using a few simple stages. It always pays to first sketch out your design on paper to make sure you get the design right before painting it onto your model.



 With a firm idea in mind, paint on the basis framework of the design onto yoar bannes: Don't courry too much if you make mittakes at this stage, since you'll be able to paint over any errors at a later point.



 Next, start to flesh out the overall design of the hanner. Here, for example, the inside of the circle has been painted over with Chase Black, the same rays have been thicknesd and a rough skull has been painted in the centre.



3. Additional details are note added. See hore Chase Black lines have been painted outs the sundurst to enhance the design, and the skull in the centre has been painted with Skull White. You can see a fine-fine pen to add details such as their if you field it nasie.



4. Final touches, such as the teeth and eyes on the shall, are added to complete the overall banner – a striking, yet relatively simple overall design that could easily be replicated with a little practice and patience.

BANNER SHOWCASE

It's amazing where inspiration for a new banner design can come from. Every Warhammer army book features lots of fantastic banners, and this book boasts scores as well. Historical examples of standards and flags can also serve as a valuable resource. Here you can see just a few examples of the stunning banners painted by Games Workshop's renowned 'Eavy Metal team.



Dwarf Standard Bearer.



The details on these standards have been painted on by hand.



Lizardman Battle Standard Bearer.

Ore Boy with Evil Sunz hanner.

PAINTING SHIELDS

Shields provide much more than an added defensive bonus in the game, they're an avenue for lavish paint jobs, the opportunity to paint striking heraldry and to create an enhanced unit identity. Some hobbyists like to paint intricate designs onto unadorned shields, while others prefer shields with pre-seulpted details. On these pages we caplore the different options.

BASICS

Detailing the shields on your Warhammer regiments can be as simple as dividing the field with two bold colours, or as complicated as painting detailed free-hand iconography. Even units equipped with simplific, complementary shield designs look impressive on the gaming table, while intricate patterns or designs on shields often become the focal point of na narmy.

PAINTING SHIELDS STAGE-BY-STAGE

While many miniatures come with details embosed onto their shields, others are supplied with clear, unadoened surfaces that are ripe for some kind of free-hand design. Here we show one example of how you could go about building up a fantastic hand-painted shield.



Carefully paint the basic shape of a dragon head, using red over a white basecoat.



Next, paint on the sea, adding toaves tohere the dragon head breaks the toater.



Add fine details to the dragon head, and highlight the sea with a lighter blue.



You might like to consider applying further details like these shown here.



SHIELD SHOWCASE

On this page is a collection of some of the many impressive miniatures painted by the Studio 'Eavy Metal team, each equipped with some sort of shield. Some of these shields feature embossed details sculpted onto the miniature, while others are decorated with either free-hand painting or with an appropriate waterialide transfer.



Empire Stoordrman.



High Elf Champion.



retonnian Man-at-arms.



Bretonnian Knight of the Reals



Ore Boy



Lizardman Temple Guard.



Ducarf Lord on Oathstone.



Vampire Counts Graveguard.







Vampire Counts Skeleton Warriors.



Dark Elf Warrisez

BASING YOUR MODELS



Surgerer of Chase



Phoenix Guard



Bloodletter of Khorne

Bases

The only limiting factor on here you have your models is your creativity. Anything its possible from recreating the learny floor of a Reibland forest to the num-bleached sund of Kheuri. Even the tortored assil of the Chaou Watsto or the Ireast post Chaou Watsto or the Reastor of Chaous is parsible. Basing miniatures is a subject worthy of lengthy discussion. It is, for many, the way to complete the look of your miniatures - the icing on the cake, as it were. For some the choices that go into how your miniatures are based are as important as the army's colour scheme. Whether you are using a simple technique, such as gluing and to a base, or exit, it's an important decision that will inform the overall appearance of your miniatures.

BASING

The first consideration when busing your models, is obviously what itad base to put them on. While the rules (and the bases provided when you bay your miniatures) govern the size of the base your miniatures) govern the size of the base your miniatures (your which are 20mm square, have space enough to be docorated with some errand erfails. Larger bases, such as those used for chariots or monsters, are ripe for exat nations and Mediande.





REGIMENT BASES

Regiment hases have enough room for several models to be placed on the same base. Primarily this is useful for players who are fielding large music (Gobing percess), for example, guickly find these invaluable). Using regiment bases not only makes moving and reforming large units much casier, but it also provides plenty of opportunity of space to add extra detalls to the bases of your models or even to pose your models in a different way.



MOVEMENT TRAYS

Movement trays are another handy aspect of basing models that many players utilise. Large plastic bases, utilise. Large plastic bases, of miniatures are stood, movement trays allow collectors to quickly and easily move entire units at opportunities to model stars opportunities to model stars styling your unit to portray a specific theme.





Each of these bases has been decorated to complement the background of the miniature.



The addition of skulls have given these bases a simister appearance.



Foliage, leaves and static grass have been used to decorate these bases.





The scalpted detail on Archaon's base reflects the warping power of Chaos.

CONVERTING MINIATURES

A common attribute many hobbyists share is the desire to personalise their miniatures. Altering poses, swapping weapons and mixing parts across kits can be very enjoyable – it allows you to take on the role of a Citadel miniatures designer, and build a completely unique model. All it takes to start personalisming your own miniatures is to have a *a*.

BASICS

Almost every plastic hox set sold by Games Workholey contains not just the parts you need to make your model, but also lots of spares. Components such as these spares are the backbone you'll rely on when personalising your models. Of course, there are a few other tips and all manner of skills to be picked up, but the most important piece of advice is "Seen your spare pieces".



KIT-BASHING AND CONVERTING

Kit-bashing is the skill of taking pieces from one or more kits and reassembling them in an interesting and unique way. Converting, on the other hand, is the art of dramatically altering your models, perhaps mixing parts, creating bespoke pieces or even sculoting new elements.



This Dark Elf has been kis-bached – parts from several kis, including the Dark Elf Corsairs and Cold One Knights, have been combined operflor. The overall effect is this dramaticlooking character, an ideal unit champion.



This Empire soldier has been converted, with a peg leg and a bespoke bomb-launching gun. A subtic combination of gare parts from different kits and sympathetic converting and modelling make for an excellent conversion.



This would has been heavily converted to enable the owner to field Karl Franz on foot. Its contains parts from two box sets, and has had sculpting work done, using green staff, to make the alterations blend in yearderb.



The real art to converting Giadel ministrures is to make your changes to solidi that, eahen painted, it's impossible to tell for sure that any alterations have been made. Every holdgist forses to be told: "Dee more seen this model before!"

CONVERSION SHOWCASE

Whether you choose to personalise your miniatures to enable a specific weapon combination, to allow an alternative unit choice or just for the sheer love of the hobby, there is a wealth of components on hand to use. There's also a world of inspiration, as these examples of lovingly converted miniatures from around the Studio show.



Keith Robertson has added vile matations to this Hellcannon crets, sculpting tentacles and other monstrous additions from Green Staff.



This Empire Duellist has been kit-bashed from several kits.



This Night Gohlin Warbass is borne aloft by a pair of enslaved Decarf Shieldbearers.











These Empire champions have been extensively converted and kit-bashed by Citadel ministares designer Mike Anderson.



Mike Anderson's Giant is made from all manner of plastic parts

BATTLEFIELD TERRAIN

Your chosen battlefield is, in many ways, one of the most important aspects of your collection. It will be the site of countless battles, enabling thrilling contests of skill and generalship. It will also be the backdrop to your hobby, the place where you and your friends spend happy hours enjoying games together. Here we look at battlefields, and how to get the most from yours.

There's no doubt about it – every hobbyist from the most wirered and experienced wargancer to the fresh-faced recruit wishes for a battefield worthy of legend. In our minds we all picture storening carde walks, bistiling with defences, or mounting passes streem with rocks and boulders. Such arguintons will, for most of us, remain solely the demester of our drams; we mortals most mixed to with a roll-our gaming mat on the diming room table, and some lovingly painted scatter terrain. Perhaps, if we're lacky, we're goe space lower up a permanent gaming boand. Whatever your ambinon, if's fair to say that we all want the best possible bartlefield to play our games on. Here we'll look at a range of different types of gaming board, from the sublime, to the simple (and quite a few gaming boards in bereen).



This fully modelled battlefield is shown in more detail in the Warhammer Battles section.

BATTLE MAT

For many of us, our first battlefields look something like this – a Citadel Gaming Mat and a selection of Citadel Terain, including the Warhammer Fortified Manor House, walls and fences and a couple of Citadel Woods. Simple to collect and prepare for battle, and to store afterwards, a battlefield such as this is a brilliant addition to any Warhammer Collection.

REALM OF BATTLE

A more impressive set-up than the one above, this battlefield is centred on the mighty Realm of Battle Gamebaard, a modular gaming surface that can be painted and decorated in almost any style. Made from robust plastic, and easily broken down and stored at the end of your game, the Realm of Battle Gameboard is the answer to many game's pravers.

Both the Citadel Gaming Mat, the Realm of Battle Gameboard and all the scenery shown on them here can be parchased from Games Workshop, enabling any holdysis, schatever their skill level, to have a builtefield to be provad of.

ATTLEFIELD TERRAIN

CREATING YOUR OWN BATTLEFIELDS

Warhammer battlefields can be as varied and interesting as you can imagine and build. While some players seek to make one-of-a-kind, bespoke terrain sets, others enjoy the convenience that commes from using items from the Citadel terrain range. Of course, the third way is the one that many of us embark upon, starting our terrain collection with 'from the box' pieces, before gradually becoming more adventurous with our battlefield.



This seatchrozer has been overran and 'improved' by Ore investers. The model has been converted and kinbached – a bit of imagination and quite a lot of shill has produced a unique scenery piece that will make a great contrepiece for any Warhammer battlefield. For shore tobo fancy andertaking even more complex projects, the sky really is the limit. The Warhammer world is packed field quark and zoostepfield places and this book, as well as the Warhammer any books, are rejus more for impiration. This institute hausted maxims in boall from parts taken from a range of Catalel terrain kits, as well as materials, and as each back, parchasel from a shoky store.

OTHER BATTLEFIELDS

For players who enjoy the background, history or imagery of a particular race within the Warhammer workd, there's a lot of funt to be had in theming your terrain to suit them. This way, when your opponent comes to do battle, the game will feel like an invasion of your homeland, rather than a battle on entral territory!

> This Khemri battleftield is built agon a Realm of Battle Gamobaard, caith all manner of scratch-built scenery added to it. Any game played on this board coill feel like a battle in the Land of the Dead!

This impressive jungle beard could be used to represent Lustria, the humid and murderous homeland of the Lizardmen. Perhaps a game on a beard such as this will feature special rules, agreed by the players.



The Realm of Chaos is an otherwoorldly domain, a place of relemitess warfare and unimaginable horror. This board has been modelled with cracked ground and large flores to represent the house of the Daennons.



In the frozen worth, where the Warriers of Chass worship their Dark Gods, the winters are bratally cold. This Realm of Battle Gameboard has been painted with ice, winter colours.

DWARF THRONG

Gabrio Tolentino's Dwarf army is a collection of minitures that has been steadily growing since way back in 1994. A work of singular dedication by a long-time vetera of the Warhammer holbs, the army includes models bought when Gabrio was first starting out in the holbs, which now rub shoulders with some of the latest Dwarf releases. First and foremost, Gabrio's army is a gamer's force, a battle-hungry band of Dwarfs who are always happy to take to the battlefeld.

Gabrid's collection has here assembled over a long period of time and includes many models hat are older than some of our younger habdpitts – just the sort of boart a grunnby old Duraff would make. In fact, some of the older models are now valuable collectors items the older or unitable, and much sought after by other collectors. Even so, Gabrio is constantly adding new models and units to bis collection – his army will never be complete, and there are lawsso some new reinforcements on the way! Although the army has been built up over many years, Gabrio has been careful to make sure that all of the models are painted using similar tachniques, paint schemes and basing methods. This ensures that even models which were painted years apart still look like they belong to the same army. In particular, note how the blae and yellow heraldry used on many of the units gives the army avery coherent appearance, making the collection look like a single army rather than just a selection of different units.



-YBKYH-

This Drowyf Lord was painted at a gift for Gabrio by 'Eavy Metal maetro Darren Latham. It carrently sits in pride of place amp Gabrio's computer momitor.



Gabrie is a dis-band gener suban effort be nor bringing his Davad frinnen to battle. One of the things he is mare proof of it sharts he may it in large, and battle is mare groups in large, and battle is mare groups that he can isherry pick' the wetth that he mark here pick' the wetth that he stands is not groups against a dissolution of a hardly drawning force and a Britmanian, hell machine, while if he's employment machines, while if he's employment are based as the Underd are Dansens about the Tell Stoperare he forts to assume the call.


ORC & GOBLIN WARBAND

Mart Toone's Ore & Gohlin collection is a wonderful example of a Warhammer army that is based faithfully on the information and background gleaned from years of enjoyment of wir Warhammer army books. As a result, Matt's force includes a wide variety of units, carefully selected to canture every aspect of the character of the Orcs and Goblins, from the outright madness of a Night Goblin Doom Diver to a brutal regiment of Orc Boar Boyz or the serried ranks of Goblins, armed with spear and shield. Over the years Matt has found enormous amounts of enjoyment playing with an army as diverse as this, and though on occasion (normally when he's being pasted in a game) he finds himself wishing for an army that is 'honed' to be especially deadly on the table, when the heat of battle has dimmed, he's always glad he's got a collection to be proud of.

The gride and joy of Matt's collection, not to mention his ace in the hole on the battlefield, is more other than Gerbal Irondaw. This mighty Warboos is renowned as the greatest Ore general to have ever lived and Matt includes him in his army because he loves the exploits of this greensigned villatin (put of him also hopes that Gorbad's hair fore generaliship, and getting the most from his hopes, will rule off through two;

Mat's painting technique is woodefully crips and precise, and the colours he has chosen show the same attention to detail and faithfulness to the source material as his army selection. You can see this diligner in a number of places, . Forces for obline to de darker skin tomes shown on the Ore Boyz. The result is a picture-perfect representation of a classic Ore & Gobin horde.



Gorbad Ironclate is the contentiece of Matt's arms.

WOOD ELF HOST

Rich Richer is a profile Warhummer gumer and the proad course of a number of impressive Warhummer armiss. This Wood Eff boot is a fantatic example of how a simple idea — in this case using any any activity of the armiter of give an army a strong character and umpan appearance. If plat gives to show that taking the time to carefully consider the overall appearance of your army before you start unaiting is time well gent.

Richard has used a limited, muted, palette for the army, which captures wonderfully the look of a forest just after the leaves have started to fall. Clever basing emphasises this overall theme, creating an army that both looks cohesive and is full of character.

The automn theme is continued on the bases of Rich's monsters.



SKAVEN HORDE

Caline Grayson is a member of the talented Citudel miniatures design teaman expert sculptor who is responsible for designing many of the miniatures that we know and lowe. With such talents at this disposal it's not really supprising that his army is full of wooderfully converted miniatures and beauts docens of scratch-built figures. It's first ros ary that this force is a force on a Warhammer army.

Colin's Skaven collection is a fantastic example of an army that is as much a hobby project as it is a gaming army. Although Colin cheerfully fights battles with his Skaven – and a tough opponent he is too – the main reason he has collected the army is for the modelling and painting challenges it presents.

Colin had two starting points for the army. First of all, he wanted to create an 'underground' Staven army, one that looked like it inhabited the tunnels and warrens the Skaven have built under the Warhammer world. Secondly, he wanted to use a mix of the metal and plastic Skaven models from the Citadel range, and see what he could come up with by combining the two together. Colin was also keen to reate apamy that two sterifying and hud a truly rat-like appearance. As you can see, he has achieved all three of these goals magnificently.

K



The inspiration behind Colin's collection is the concept that the whole Skaven host is an underground court, with a brood mother as its queen - a menagerie of strange and horrible beasts that constantly travels the byways of the Skaven Under-Empire. Every model in the army fits into this narrative, from the Warpfire Throwers who scour the tunnels with their arcane weaponry to the converted Rat Ogres who claw their way through the fabric of the earth. There are even small vignette pieces that represent envoys from some of the great Skaven clans, such as Moulder and Pestilens - these are great and characterful models that not only further Colin's great story, but also serve on the battlefield as characters, and an excuse to include troops from the other clans.

Of course, with background and narrative as compelling as this, Colin is already plotting his next addition. Even (or should that be especially) Colin's Warp Lightning Cannon has been extensively converted into the hidrons monter-machine hybrid yes can see here.











WARHAMMER BATTLES

This section of the book is all about the myriad ways you can bring the Warhammer world to life on your tabletop. The following chapters will look at the many different options when organising your own battles, and present a host of scenarios that vary and build on the pitched battles presented in the Rules section.

You can aim to slangther all that dare stand before you or play a heroic last stand, where your goal is to make a bloody ending worthy of a saga. There are invasions to plan, multi-player free-for-alls to hack through, and the amazing recreation of a Legendary Battle. You can play every battle through exactly as written, try out the glames that most hyper as inspiration for inventing your own battles.

May your victories be monumental and your losses steeped in glory. Now, onwards to battle...

> Written by Jeremy Vetock and Jervis Johnson



WARHAMMER BATTLES

This section is about exploring the fantastical, battle-filled world of Warhammer in your tabletop games. You'll find loads of scenarios to try out and ideas to get you started, from the desperate defence of a Dwarf hold to a stealthy Skaven raid to an epic Chaos incursion.

Whether you are trying to best your first?s many caring to present the many challenges that Gobbs Warheld Gerom overame when how many sacked dag energy the trying of the how many sacked dag energy the trying of the backet skinnishes to massive investing armise, backet skinnishes to massive investing armise, backet skinnishes to massive investing armise, backet skinnishes to an safe for an how of game the how one of the rajes confined to the the arkinstrum of the rajes confirm from with the raje content from with the rajes confirm from Wathammer's block and storied history. This section of the book is split into different chapters, each one dailing with an aspect of setting up and physing your como battles. There are many camples of the different ways to phys. Instance of the different ways to physical physical physical setting and physical radies that you have to foilure to fight a Wachammer battles. The creative freefoods and open-andodness this offers is one of Wachammer battless transford. This section only happen to sentiab the battlese of the study and the setting of the difference of the study and the setting of the difference of the study and the setting of the difference of the study and the setting of the difference of the study and the setting of the difference of the study and the setting of the difference of the study of future battless.



The General's View

Jeremy A. Muchanner leafs: in the chance to show my netroil a methy, to put my painted may on disping and to make the hadgemad come alises on my halders. In networy Washmanner game I play, there are sevent things I always try to do, whether I am pipting a straightforward competitive game of I m pipting in a larger and more complex seconds full of specially make tremin and special fraching game, why invested rules. After I have set up my any on the tablemy, but before the game to the special. Their two the matter (turns my may thin the first) much tremin fract of gamed models may also the special model. The special special matter is a special to the special of gamed negatives the field of galaxy for the true may now now the hight, play the true in fract of gamed negatives to the field of galaxy for the true may also the true through on the opposition.

During this time my mind whirls with tactical thoughts. Are my flanks vulnerable? Which of his units will give me trouble? What style of attack will my opponent be most likely to employ? I also play out the battle's story in my head. Is this a raid or a clash between age-old adversaries? After the onshught, will my victorious army push into the hinterland of my vanquished for?

Once hatte is joined it is more difficult to step back and appreciate the grandour of k. In other to suborded by more proving near-h -how can my built standing and general possibly be everywhere they are needed? How will my centre hald? It is a sit, in the hast buttle, is go the end of the buttle. Which will my centre hald? It is a sit, in the hast of buttle, is and end will be a site of the buttle. Which we have the horemore 11 always try to show down and edges is the end of the buttle. Which we have mader means of whatever half-forsakes strategy 1 employed are still visible, Like the document general topy of halfs matches and lamening where it went some. Whenever kind of Warhamper general play. Loth meanwer its naccous by victary or low, but instead by how means the respondent and lamoved approxements.



Defender of Ulthuon







NARRATIVE BATTLES

The Warhammer world is a dark land full of heroie deeds and astonishing tales. Adventurous players can organise their battles to fight out these characterful stories in their tabletop games. This chapter provides many examples of narrative battles to inform and inspire.

Det of what makes Warhammer grant is the richly described and vibrant background. Imagine your game taking place within the mist-shreaded Theil Country where the hillings are crossed with the raises of accient temples, browding with secane power. What if the unexpected occurred — say a new threat arrives in the misds of a battle, such as packs of Ghoules creening in from the edges to foat on the fallen of both sides. The possibilities of what could Happen during a Warhammer built are limitless, but how can you add such events into your games?

The term 'narrative battle' describes a battle that seeks to add background or special rules to the game in order to bring the Warhammer world more alive on the labletop. This can be done in a number of ways – by adding a story that sets the backdrop for the forthcoming battle, by adding scenario special rules or victory conditions that



make the characters, armies or environment better evoke the background. In this way the ensuing battle finishes the 'tab' begun by the scenario – the king throws down his usurper, the invasion is defiated or the lost artefact of great power is recovered. A game of this type lives beyond mere victory or defeat.

The Story of a narrative butten need play no put besides that of an entertaining background for a clash between balanced armies. For cample, two players could simply invent an interesting story as they set up any of the pitched multi-meaning found in the Rules section. This instandy turns a battle into more than just a competitive game to the the generability of ach player, but also provides a chance to explore the Malamaner workd. Conversely, it is calledly introduce a range of new rules, storps, torrain, or dispetitive, player located to being the Warlammer lockground to tilt, Players can explore absorbing located buttes (fighting for explore absorbing located buttes (fighting for hunks of half-baired warpstone or larners of Bagmah XXXXXX-A. He finget of all Dwarf brews), new terpini features (a Choso monibil the soluces visaria) of Osho sides with beguiling promises of ower), political intrigues (the strained alliance between risel Engine Elector Counts), macker-defender statustons (a Golin on the soluce strained and the solution of the field binory. Physes are encouraged to make fielded hinory. Physes are encouraged to the motion of the solution baths, staking inspiration from their focuutie stories and incorporating them into their own baths.

The scenarios that follow start with small variations to a pitched battle – changing the deployment rules on the victory conditions, for example, to better reflect the narrative of the cash. Later battles alter more elements, adding specific stories, special rules and even models created for the game, culminating with an enormous Lagendary Battle telling the tale of a *Loss* incursion into the Empire. For wast Japers, the best surrative battles centre arrand their scen arraise and terrain collections. For instance, Dark Ef Japers taol to appreciate rules for san ansutters more than player usib Decarf arouisel For this reason, players should ase the following scenarios as inspiration to create similar surphilling scenarios haved around their own collection.





RIVER OF DEATH

The Warhammer world is criss-crossed by rivers and waterways, from small streams to mighty torrents. There are many times when two armies will find that all that separates them is a fordable river. The opposing sides will deploy for battle on the banks, and then sayie towards each other. Within moments the river will be running red with blood.

THE ARMIES

Each player chooses his force using the army list from a Warhammer Armies book, to an equal points value agreed before the game.

THE BATTLEFIELD

Set up a river as described below, and then set up any remaining terrain using the method described on page 142. The river and its crossing points count as the first of the D6+4 terrain pieces that must be set up.

The River

The hatchfield is split by a new that enters from one narrow table days and exits from the ether, as shown in the deployment diagram. The river should be 3" to 9" wide. There are non coming pains on the river, one in each half of the table. These can either be bridges or fords, and seed to be log encough for a unit fore inflary models wide to cross (ic, at least 125mm). They must be placed to cross (ic, at least 125mm). They must be placed more than 18" way from either table edge. Note that the coming points are the objective for the scenario.

DEPLOYMENT

Roll off to see which player picks the half of the table they will deploy in. The opponent will deploy in the other half. Players take it in turns to place units on the table, using the 'alternating units' method of deployment described on page 142. Units may be placed anywhere in their half and on their side of the river.

FIRST TURN

Roll off after deployment to see which player receives the first turn. The player that finished deploying his army first adds +1 to his roll.

GAME LENGTH

Roll a D6 at the end of each game turn, starting at the end of game turn 4. Add the turn number to the dice roll. If the score is 10 or more, then the battle ends immediately. If the total is less than 10 then the battle continues for at least one more game turn.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

At the end of the battle the winner is the side that controls the most crossing points. A crossing point is controlled by the side that has the closest unit that is not flecing. If neither side controls more crossing points, then use victory points to determine the winner of the battle, as described on page 143.

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES



Mysterious Rivers

The Warhammer landscape is not alreavy as is zerow. What looks like waters wight turns out to be something altogether more dangerous. Because of this, about the first unit enters the rives, a random rull will determine what type of river is really is (se page 120).

River Crossings

Rivers form barriers between nations, prevines, and often the collect country hopped creditation. It is no amprise that all acruss the Warhammer ward arwise clash even these natural closhe points. The bons of countless warriers litter the river banks, wounds of rasting coapoes and armoor sinking itoraly into the reverbed.

Makeshift River

trying this tactically

eary to cut some coloured paper to phape. Line the

from your parden and

ready to battle.

SURPRISE ENCOUNTER

Not all battles are carefully planned. Sometimes patrols foraging ahead of two armies will stumble upon each other, encountering an enemy where none was expected. What starts as a bloody skirmish will quickly develop into a full-blown battle, as additional troops from each side are drawn towards the sound of conflict.

THE ARMIES

Each player chooses his force using the army list from a Warhammer Armies book, to an equal points value agreed before the game.

THE BATTLEFIELD

Set up terrain using the method described in the Rules section on page 142.

DEPLOYMENT

The table is divided into six equal-sized areas as shown on the deployment map below, and the players then deploy three units each. Roll off to see who goes first. The player that loses the roll-off must place a single non-character unit so that it is fully within any one area of the table.

Their opponent then places a single non-character unit in any of the remaining areas, and so on, taking turns until both players have deployed three non-character units and there is a single unit in each of the six areas.

Each player in turn may then place a single character with one of their units, if they wish to do so. All remaining units and characters will enter play as reinforcements (see the Scenario Social Rules section below).

FIRST TURN

Roll off after deployment to see which player receives the first turn. The player that finished deploying his army first adds +1 to his roll.

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for six turns, or until a time limit agreed by the players is reached, whichever comes first.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

Use victory points to determine the winner of the battle, as described on page 143.

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES

Units must pass a Leadership test in order to declare a charge during the first game turn. If the test is failed, the unit can still move normally.

Reserves

Reserves can enter play on any turn of the player's choice (including the first), using the rules on page 142. They enter at any point on the table edge of one of the three areas in which the player deployed his units at the start of the battle. Roll a D3 to randomly determine which of the three areas the unit must use.



Shatim Assassia

The Fog of War

It is easy as a coarganest commander to look over your ministance statiefield and take in a Griffond-regtives of the landscape. But on the field of battle, the astrong generals have on such laways. Weather conditions and interposing terrain can hide vable ecomy armises andit they are right on go of each other:



Surrounded

This battle requires quick decision and coill recourd commanders that are adept at thinking on their feet. It is notorioally hard to prosteet your, flanks, and you'll need to keep an eye out for any opportunities to outflank your for.





THE DARK MONOLITHS OF ZHULGOZAR

Lord Zhulgozar, a Chaos Sorcerer and disciple of Tzeentch, was for a time one of the mightiest of all mortal magic-users. Zhulgozar's thirst for more and more knowledge led him across the globe in search of arcane lore. He would join any warhost if it brought him closer to a source of raw power or a lost mystical tome.

Using heirons mapies, Lord Zhalgara scupit to make himself wiroche, for he kave his quest for mystical lore would eventually prove deadly. When the great Chaos Sorcerer first died, his fallen body was immediated alsotted into the ground. With a tremulous shudder the surface cracked and a store monothin pushed its way upsards – a massive monument to the fallen sorcerer. Those girlfs with the witchsight could see that the edifice glowed with hardy contained magical power.

And yet Lord Zhalgazar lived again. Bebern anser in the Ralm O Clous, Lord Zhalgazar returned to his quest, vowing to our day return to the sites of in data the how in increase. And so centrate passed, with new moments it may abarye the sourcess of low of the theory data abaryes the sourcess of low of the theory data abaryes the sourcess of low of the theory - ange the houres hills of Field Country, the mini-chousded forces of Sylvania or traing out of the houres passion of Sylvania or traing out of the hourse hills of Field Low trains the house the train of the house tremendous rower.

THE ARMIES

Each player chooses his force using the army list from a Warhammer Armies book, to an equal points value agreed before the game.

THE BATTLEFIELD

The largest hill you can muster is placed in the centre of the gaming table. Atop the hill sit the ancient ruins. Set up any remaining terrain as described on page 142. The hill and the ancient ruins count as the first of the D6+4 terrain pieces that must be set up.

DEPLOYMENT

Rell off to see which player picks the half of the table they will deploy in. The opponent will deploy in the other half. Players then take it in turn to place units on the table, using the 'alternating units' method of deployment described on page 142. Units may be placed anywhere in their deployment zone that is more than 12[°] from the cortex line.

FIRST TURN

Roll off after deployment to see which player receives the first turn. The player that finished deploying his army first adds +1 to his roll.

Narrative Battle Maps

Unlike the maps for the pitched battler, the marrative halfs maps tend to have example torrain placed on them. The battlefield description well advice tokich terrain is couly the hill and the rains in the course of the table are required, the table terrain is optimal and its showned weighter terrains



C(r)

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for six turns or until a time limit agreed by the players is reached.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

The player that controls the ancient ruins at the end of play wins the battle. The ruins are controlled if one of your non-fleeing units is within 6" of them, and there are no non-fleeing enemy units also within 6" of them. If nobody controls the ruins, the game is a draw.

SPECIAL RULES

The rules for the Monolith of Zhulgozhar are the same as the Arcane Ruins (see page 124), with the following additions:

Any Wizard within 12" of the ancient ruins gains a 3 + ward save and can add an extra power dice to his side's pool in his own Magic phase. Additionally, a single Wizard that is in the unit that controls the ancient ruins can cast the Dark Whirleind of Dault spell (right) in addition to his normal recordire.

Dark Whirlwind of Death

Cast on a 4+

By raising his armes and speaking a long-lost songue of barbarous men, the Witzard summons a corithing cyclone of magical energy that funnels deconceards from the roiling clouds above.

The controlling player places the large round template anyohere on the built-field and scatters it 2D6⁺. This is tochere the schieling bernade from the skies touches the ground. Over placed, the template coil immediately more a farsher 2D6⁺ in another random direction (cell the scatter dic agins) offer withdrawing hack two the hearems.

Any amit touched by the template as it morres takes 3D6 Strength 4 hits. Enemy Witsards that are touched by the template must pass a Leadership test or be immediately sucked up into the eldritch found and removed from play.

If the spell is successfully cast, the casting Winard must pass a Landership test or successed to the furtice schippers from beyond. Failure of this test means that the Winard must roll on the chart before.

D6 Result

- Sucked into the Vortex. Remove the model from play and treat it as a consulty. Bud lack.
- 2-3 Whispers of Zhulgozar. The Wizard is now subject to the rules for Standility for the remainder of the battle.
- 4-5 Blessed with Unholy Power. As long as the Witard (or the unit he is in) controls the raisonal temple, add D3 percer or dispel dice to your peol at the beginning of each Mayie phase. This is in addition to any other boware.
- 6 Divine Inspiration. Pick an additional spell from any lore known to the Wizard and add it to the Wizard's spells.



NARRATIVE BATTLES



LOOT & PILLAGE (Oi, that's my ale!)

This battle pits opposing forces against each other in an attempt to elaim a vulnerable supply train delivering Bugman's XXXXX, an ale as valuable as gold (and far more thirst-quenching?).

THE ARMIES

Each player chooses his force using the army list from a Warhammer Armies book, to an equal points value agreed before the game.

THE BATTLEFIELD

Roads lead to a crossroads in the centre of the gaming table where an inn resides – in our case the Inn of the Sum-ailed Comet. Next to the inn is a supply cart stacked high with barrels of Bugman's XXXXX. The trest of the table is sporafically lining the roadways (no more than two of 'sections in a row).

DEPLOYMENT

Each player has a deployment zone as marked on the map below (6' in from the long table edge). Roll off to see which player picks their deployment zone first. The opposent will deploy in the opposite deployment zone. Players then take it in turns to place units on the table, using the "alternating unit" method of deployment described on page 142. Scouts deploy as normal, save that no models can start the game inside the inn.

FIRST TURN

Roll off after deployment to see which player receives the first turn. The player that finished deploying his army first adds +1 to his roll.

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for six turns or until a time limit agreed by the players is reached, whichever comes first.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

The victor in this battle is largely determined by which player can claim the most Bugman's XXXXXX at the end of the battle. There are two sources of Bugman's XXXXXX – the inn and the supply cart. Both have rules that govern how they can be claimed (see right).

If claimed at the end of the battle, the inn and Bagman's delivery cart each count as 5 victory points. A single victory point is also earnied for each enemy unit destroyed or fleeing at the end of the hardt. The side with the most victory points is the winner. In the case of both sides claiming the same number of victory points, the game is a draw.

The Bloody Centre

The ion in this scenario is the focal point for victory, as it is potentially the source for the words barrels of Bugmen's XXXXXX. Therefore is is essential for players to agree the copacity of models that can garrison the ione before the battle starts.



Bugman's XXXXXX

Famous the world over, the Duarf brew known as Bugman's XXXXXX is blindingly strong. Duarfs recently its and a free pints will keep them fortified for days.

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES Bugman's Delivery Cart

At the start of each player's Movement, before charges are declared. Buoman's delivery cart will move D6" directly away from the nearest unit. The cart cannot be affected by missile fire or spells (who would risk damaging such a precious commodity?). It will never move into contact with a unit, cross an obstacle, or enter any piece of dangerous terrain, choosing instead to skirt around such blockades, as its movement allows. Bugman's cart can be charged by both sides, and it always declares a 'flee' charge reaction, moving 2D6". If caught by a charging unit, Bugman's cart is not destroyed, but is claimed by that unit - place the cart at the back of the claiming unit. The cart no longer moves of its own volition, but is moved with the unit. The unit claiming the cart cannot march, fly or enter the inn. If the unit claiming Bugman's delivery cart is beaten in combat (regardless of whether the unit fails its Break test or not) the delivery cart is claimed by the winning unit

(simply move the cart behind the appropriate unit). In the case of multiple combats, any unit on the winning side that is in base contact with the unit with the cart can claim it. Should the claiming unit flee for any other reason, the delivery cart is no longer claimed and is left behind before the unit flees.

Ransacking the Inn

A unit garrisoning the inn when the battle ends claims the Bugman's XXXXX stored within.

Drinking Bugman's XXXXXX

A unit claiming, Bagman's delivery curt or that is miside the in must pass a L-ackerbally test at the start of their turn. If passed, all is well. However, if the test is fialled, thus uith kan consumed a small portion of the potent brew and the models suffer a 2 penalty to their Weapon Skill, Ballicis Skill, and L-ackerbalje for the remainder of the game. Effects are cumbative, to a minimum profile score of 1. In addition, the unit is now Stubbern and suffer from rearricularly strong biccups.

The Inn of the Twin-Tailed Comet

At the edge of the wilderment this into was used to a rough croud, but when an army of Beastmen emerged from the Forest of Shadora: everyone knews there was going to be treadde. Especially as it was delivery day for a news batch of the stream Development Foreston Brownie / XXXXXX.



Delivery Cart

The Bugman's delivery vehicle, a heavily laden posy-drawn cart, was bailt from spare plastic components.

Something Worth Fighting For

Capturing objectives is a classic way to decide volve has voon and markes for a fun, tactical battle. The more characterful the objective, the more the 'story' of the battle emerges.



HEROIC LAST STAND

From his rocky vantage point, King Unitor Grimbeard watched the enemy apprasch. His Gilon Poars's were contambered beyond count. It did not matter. Deathsong's had been sung. All knew what must come. Yet if the warriors could hold out long encoudd, turthor knew the essenjar fertigees would reach the safety of Karak Anal. Though few in number, each Dwarf har cennairde was a stabart champion, a veterar of many hour its obless clan's and errours, heirdoarn of a once mighty household. The clan might fey, but the memory of their last stand would live on.

THE ARMIES

Each player chooses in a rawy from a Warhanner Armis book, but one player must be nominated as the Overwhelming Attacker and one must be the Heroic Underdog. The Heroic Underdog receives only 33% of the Overwhelming Attacker's points total, but does not follow the usual army restrictions. There is no need for the Heroic Underdog to use the normal minimum of at least 25% Core or be restricted by any of the maximums (up to 25% Lords, for instance).

THE BATTLEFIELD

The hutfrelid has been chosen as the best paper for the outsmahred force to make their last stand, therefore the scenery should be set up by the Hencie Undersidg. A hillow, the remains of a village or a minod temple will work well. Any buildings should be considered ruins and not able to be genrinoned. Scone walls or other linear obstacles (hedges, fences or even piles of deal bodies) can be placed, but are not allowed to fully enclose any space (so three sides are OK, but not a closed square). It is intended that the Heroic Underdog has chosen a site with a few defensible positions, not a specially fortified enclosure!

DEPLOYMENT

The Heroic Underdog must set up his entire force within his deployment zone – a square with sides 18° long, right in the middle of the battlefield (see map below). The Overwhelming Attacker may then set up anywhere else on the table, but more than 8° away from any of the Heroic Underdog's models.

FIRST TURN

The Heroic Underdog receives the first turn.

GAME LENGTH

The battle automatically ends when, at the end of any player turn, the Heroic Underdog has either been wiped out or has no remaining nonfleeing units in his deployment zone. Players may, of course, give up at any time.

Prolonging Defeat

In this scewario it is the wordership's role to hold out for as long as possible. This requires the defender to think hows he can spend the lives of his troups to best delay his for. Actual survival for the underdog is probably too much to ask for!



Rally to the Flag

Spare modelling bits can make useful markers – in this case the planted colours of the defenders.



VICTORY CONDITIONS

It should be a foregone conclusion that the Heroic Underdog will be wiped out to a model; however, they can still win the scenario by surviving as long as possible.

Underdog

sult			

1-2 turns Crushing Attacker win 3-4 turns Attacker win 5-6 turns Hard-fought Draw 7-8 turns Underdog Victory 9+ turns Conceivable, but we don't think you can do it!

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES

Before deployment, the Herois Underdog phaces a marker anywhere in their deployment conce, representing the army's most precious colours planted firmly in the ground. Any firendly unit within 6° of the planted colours is Unbreakable. If an enemy unit contacts the planted colours, the marker is avairantically destroyed and any bonuse gained from it are immediately lost.

Despair

The Heroic Underdogs are all too sware of their imminent densits, and the less stabutar amongst their numbers are likely to the eit drey find themselves separated from their comrades. Any Heroic Underdog units that stray more than 12° from their deployment zone must take a Londership to with a -2 modifier at the start of each of their turns. If they fail, the unit is removed. They have panicked and thef, or have simply taken the opportunity to break out of the encircling foe.

Untold Numbers

The Overwhelming Attacker can 'recycle' any Core unit that is destroyed or that has fled off the table – the models are used to represent new troops arriving on the battlefield.

This recycled unit has any options that it originally started with (equipment, command group, etc), however any character that was in the unit at the time of its demise is lost. Recycled units can some back on any table edge using the normal rules for reinforcements.

Bitter Battles

Since King Rologen has resurred in Karak Expl Paoks to reclaim the best realing of all particulators, the heardy of all particulators, the heardy funghe counders heatled against funghe counders heatled against former active method and and oblights. The Daron function is a counter start of larger their ancient exceeded and hearge any start of the start of the resurreshed by grant of start addem to us a huttle volver they addem to us huttle volver they addem to hear defpase (of accumentary and they are



HIRED SWORDS

Baron Schwarzbaum cast a wary eye on the right flank of his army. He wasn't sure if he trusted his supposed allies or the mercenaries less, "We'll see who stays with me when the bloodletting starts" the Baron thought to himself, as he signalled his troops for a general advance towards the enemy.

In the grin and battle-filled lands some commanders must make having agreements with less-than-ideal partners. This could be two different armies not noted for civil relationships between thir respective races (like Empire and Vampire Counts) or even between two factions of the same army (org, different thirds of Orea and GoBins or rival clans of Skaven). Either way, these once-bitter rivals have buriefield hatchet in the face of a greater threat – at least for the moment.

Less reliable still are mercenaries – that is, warries who have wold their fighting services for merc monetary resend. Such sellsword bands runn freely about every region, although the more professional types tend to be found in areas of constant strife (such as the lands of the Bonder Princes). Soil, for the right pay (often gold, but occasionally requests such as fresh meter or warptone), it is possible to hirse serious muscle into one's army. But will they remain low?

THE ARMIES

Each player chooses his force using the army list from one or more Warhammer Armies book, to an equal points value agreed before the game. Both sides must declare 25% of their noncharacter units as either Mercenaries or Treacherous Troops (players choose whichever fits best).

THE BATTLEFIELD

Set up the terrain using the method described in the Rules section on page 142.

DEPLOYMENT

As per the Blood and Glory scenario (see page 148), except players must evenly divide (by number of units) their Treacherous Troops or Mercenary units between the two halves of their deployment zone.

FIRST TURN

The side with more Treacherous Troops or Mercenary units can choose to go first or second. Roll-off in the case of a tie.

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for six turns or until a time limit agreed by the players is reached.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

The player that scores the most victory points at the end of the battle is the winner. Mercenaries that have switched sides count as casualties to the side that originally brought them.





SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES

Treacherous Troops units are controlled as normal by the owning player, however, their battle focus must be tested at the start of each turn. Unless already in close combat, any Treacherous Troops unit must pass a Leadership test at the beginning of each of their turns. If the test is failed, roll a D6 on the Treacherous Troops table (see right) and anoth the results.



Mercenaries

All Mercenary units suffer -1 to their normal Leadership characteristic. During the battle, Mercenary units are controlled as normal by the player that included them in his army, however, there are times when the loyality of the warrioorfor-hire will be tested. If a Mercenary unit fails a Break test, roll on the Mercenary Loyality table (see right) and apply the results.

Treacherous Troops Table

Neither side of the alliance trusts each other and at close proximity old grudges, or sheer loathing sometimes flares up, despite the best intentions.

06 Resul

- 1.3 Treacherous Indexed. Oil gradge flaw and the unit worse to threaten its condul-be ally. The with that failed in Landership trat cannot worse, show, showy, or cast public for the durations of the turns. All Friendl yeaks (but not softword) Frencherous Trough cutohin 6 + DO of the unit angle Do strength 2 hits from stray turarriser Invaking ranks a fight or through nearby projection.
- 4-6 Merely Suspicious. The weit is distructed by its so-called friends. The weit that failed its Landership test and all friendly weits tablin 12" (Tracherous Troops or not) suffer a -1 Londership penalty for the remainder of their turn.

Mercenary Loyalty Table

When things start going poorly it is not unheard of for the less reliable sell-swords to switch sides in the very midst of a conflict.

D6 Resu

- 14.9 Wereing Lovaky. The summaria and yue of the help south heir applied help due for all of the balance of the help of the hereinstein and an additional +2 of the help opend in the help of the hereinstein and an additional +2 of the help opend in the help of the hereinstein and an additional +2 of the help of the month in hereinstein (17 which are not the help help help at the interval month in hereinstein (17 which are not the help help help hereinstein month at the hyperbalance (17 which are not the help help help hereinstein month at the hyperbalance (17 which are not the help help help hereinstein month at the hyperbalance (18 which are not the help hereinstein and and are the month discover, and, adding the year month help hereinstein and are multiph and the month discover (18 which are not the hereinstein and are multiph hereinstein).
- 5-6 Soldier On. The mercenaries flee, but remain leyal for the moment. The unit fleet as normal.





RAZE & RUIN The Ruination of Glumhof

On a small crossroads along the Old Forest Road lies the tiny village of Glumhof. Here brave citizens have dared to settle, facing the horrors that live in, and ramping through, the Drakvald Forest. But even though they are protected by stout walls and a watchtower built and garrisoned by soldiers of the Empire, there is constant dange of sudden and ruthless attack.

THE ARMIES

In this scenario one player must be the attacker and one must be the defender. Each player chooses a force from a Warhammer Armies book to an agreed points value, however, the defender receives only 75% of the attacker's points. So, for instance, if the attacker has 2,000 points, the defender will only field 1,500 points.

THE BATTLEFIELD

The defender should place terrain for this battle this battlefield is meant to represent the defender's outpost. This could be a camp, defender's outpost is represented by between one and four buildings and a similar number of defended obstacles (walls, hedges, or hashigh thrown up hurricado). Addisionally there is a single, purpose-bailt watchnower meant to provide a defended position to the outpost.

The defender can place his buildings anywhere in his half of the battlefield, but not within 6" of the long table edge or 12" of either short edge.

DEPLOYMENT

The defender places his entire army first. Up to half of the defender's units (rounded up) can be placed anywhere on his half of the table. The remainder of the defender's force must be placed within 6" of his long table edge.

FIRST TURN

The attacker takes the first turn, entering play from his own long table edge.

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for seven turns, or until a time limit agreed by the players is reached.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

At bank's end the side controlling the majority of the buildings is the winner (if there is no majority, the game is a draw). The watchtower counts double. Buildings are controlled by the closest unit within [12] (garrisoning units are always 'the closest'). A unit cannot control more than one building Buildings that are destroyed cannot be controlled, but add +1 to the aracker's total.

Attacker/Defender

This scenario is exciting to play as both the attacking arrey and the defending one. The forces of goal are meet office brought of a defending, but also only the those iterestype limit year great battle. No 'goal' array coool digit to ast if they located a searby Ore campaire, Skaven ward.



Ruined Buildings

Placing some rubble or specially wodelled rained buildings toill help keep track of he battle and is immensely satisfying for the attacker!

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES Destroying Buildings

Normally it is convenient to assume buildings cannot be destroared by conventional weapons but with a few simple Scenario Special Rules you too can experience the joys of demolishing Glumbof! Buildings except for the watchtower (which has its own special rules below) are considered Toughness 7 and will take a minimum of Strength 5 to damage. Units must choose whether to shoot at the building or any unit inside. Templates that strike buildings will affect the building itself as well as any unit inside it (see the rules for templates and buildings on page 127). Each building can take 5 Wounds before collapsing. Collapsed buildings are counted as Dangerous Terrain. Units that are in buildings when they collapse take 2D6 Strength 4 hits.

Buildings that are garrisoned cannot be attacked in close combat, instead the building must first be assaulted (as per page 127).

We have shown an Empire settlement under attack but it is easy to substitute in a decelling of any of the other Warhammer races. Imagine battling over a Decorf mine, Bretonnian chapel or Elven manor.

Rained building

Unoccupied buildings can be attacked by a single unit, with the attacking player choosing 10 models exactly as when Assaulting a Building. The building is hit automatically, there is no need to roll To Hit.

The Watchtower

The watchtower is specially built for defence and so gains several advantages. The watchtower is Toughress 8 and hase 6 Wounds. Because of the extra loopholes and firing positions, up to 10 models per floor can fire out of a watchtower. Additionally, models can always Stand and Shoot from within a watchtower, regardless of how close the chargers might be.





Citizens of the town of Glamhof are extremely dow. The small village has an air of inccapable gloom, perhaps due to the longsuffering the ill-fated handled has unitained over the years.

- 1114 Glumbof sciped out by Black Plasse.
- 1450 Entire population joins crusade, never again to return.
- 1560 Glumbuf destroyed entirely during Empire circl war
- 2022 Overran by Undead daring Vampire Wars.
- 2303 Glumbof population exten by vengyful Beautoeen returning from the Great War Against Chaos.
- 2511 Barnt to the ground by Forest Gablins.
- 2522 Recently rebuilt tocon collapses into unexplained toomels. Only guarced boxes remain.

The watchtoneer is hard to destroy and makes an excellent defensive position.

A horde of Ghoule emerges from the woods to attack the Empire village of Glamhof.

WATCHTOWERS & BUILDINGS

All reses of the Warhammer world build some form of defensive structure. This creates fantastic scope for hoth modeling opportunities and for giam rules – after all, the sender and elegant towers of the High Ebres belie their adamant nature, while the erude and ramshackle edifices of the Ores & Goblins are petitid and encrusted with spikes and icons, but not necessarily built up to health-and-safety requirements. On this spread we have included some examples of both modeling projects and the rules we have used for them in our games.



SKAVEN WATCHTOWER

The isotroping more of natures hown as Sharen often build their need-introping the rains of anterior bioartons. For example, the clash-solid proceedings of the Wardes K registers upgraded this wardbower with a nation-begging array of inframed advices. Supercontext by just-yeaged prova and patch-of-spectree writing (often grower), the Shaven machines on the top level of this tower have the cognitry to five on their of our by [http://ng. The courds as 8 Ward. *Lefthoug* bound specific works the distribution of the clownish, the state of the wardbower is somework thigh-field and this courd's 5 Wards.



This watchtower was bailt by Dwarfs – well known for bailding sturdy stone structures – long before the Shaven moved in. As such, the watchtower is Tourhous 9.

GLEAMING SPIRE OF ULTHUAN

Elves, in their quest for a perfect harmony of form and function, have developed a distinctive architecture over many millennia. The thin and elegant nature of their towers and battlements belies their strength. This Elf tower is Toughness 8.



HOLD THE HIGH GROUND

With the advantage of high ground many commanders are willing to make a stand, even against superior numbers. Indeed, the hills and tops of mountain passes are the bloody sites of a great many battles, both famous conflicts of legand and others nov long-forgottent. Armises that are driven off the high ground often end up as seattered bones, left by the victors atop the windwayet heights.

THE ARMIES

In this scenario one player must be the Attacker and one must be the defender. Each player chooses a force from a Warhammer Armies book to an agreed points value, however, the defender receives only 75% of the attacker's points. So for instance, if the attacker has 2,000 points, the defender will only field 1,500 points.

THE BATTLEFIELD

The goining table is divided into stracker and defender deployment zones in the same way as the Meeting Engagement pitched battle (see page 149). The defender then places the largest hill available anywhere in his own deployment zone. Then set up the rest of the terrain as described on page 142. The hill counts as the first of the D6+4 terrain pieces that must be set up.

DEPLOYMENT

First the attacker sets up his entire army in his deployment zone. Next, the defender sets up in his deployment zone. This represents the defender using his commanding view to adjust his battlefine to best advantage as the foe approaches from afar.

FIRST TURN

In this scenario the attacker gets the first turn.

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for six turns, or until a time limit agreed by the players is reached, whichever comes first.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

The player that has scored the most victory points at the end of the battle is the winner. There is a key victory point addition for this scenario that may prove pivotal. 500 victory points is awarded to any side that commands the summit of the hill in the defender's deployment zone (see Commanding the Summit at right).

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES The Battlefield is Ours!

Friendly troops can take great courage from the fact that it is their army that is in control of the butthehd. The safe that commands the summit of the hill in the defender's deployment zone adds + 1 to their total for every combat resolution on the battlefield. This can be used in combination with all of the usual modifiers (such as high ground and so ofm).

Hill Placement

During must playtests of this scenario the largest hill was placed in the far corner of the defender's deployment area, as we have threen on the way.



Blood-covered Hill

Because the scenario places such a high bonus (a special rade and extra vectory point) for holding the top of the highest hill, the game offer owner drown to a last-disch assault in the final turns. All (forst must be made to scize the hill or, once loss, to counter-satuck and retable it immediately.



Commanding the Summit

To command the summit of the hill a unit must be on the top level of the hill and there must be on commy units on it. If there is an enemy on it, the hill is contested and no bonuses are gained by either side. Units that are fleeing cannot command or contest the summit.

As veryon's terrain collection is different, player should discuss what determines the toplevel of the hill before the game begins. For players with classly startified or strepped link is is often obvious which level is the top, but it stip the top level of your hill is particularly large (our of the top level and use a marker (a cons will do wer 12 wide), it is less to nominate the centre of the top level and use a marker (a cons will do wer 12 wide), it is both of our disago to hethere were strength of the the summity. This method will also work for constant supelverse constants hills. Warkus Grizit grimand exitly as his filtene Vight Golfson – the pointy-near tores maximizing articiple into his trap. With an ear-splitting rous; the grown-trivined logism should drawn of viciniting grown-trivined logism should at the start of model EJ coursers, house torus mapped and model and course and the High EJ lines. The ballman endowed the Golfson role has had show the ridge, porting and lamating an they trampled horiridge, porting and lamating as they trampled horiridge, forcing and lamating as they trampled horimen fallow in their haste to reach the tap.

Saddeny, the ranks of the High Elsen flocad days in receila a phalans of high-rectand tearriers, their shining greatsmoth flashing can the Fonnia and severing their areas at the recrist with mucany timing and precision. Ralli, and chains redulted back through the size its third and chains redulted back through the size its third anomobilit. From his meety classing perch on the very assuming of the hill, Great spical posedings in the sky, design handlings texands him.

'Oh, zog it,' thought Gizzit, shortly before the Griffon's jagged beak closed around his bald head.



Collin Worker

KING OF THE MOUNTAIN

High up in the Worlds Edge Mountains, nextled in the valleys and passes below the snow-covered peaks, can be found the fabled stone-chiselled halls of the Dwarf kings. These ancient strongholds have been laboriously carred out over the ages and many races cover the fabled riches, piled treasures, and hoards of matchless arms and armour that even the poorest of Dwarf elans greedily anass within their mountainous mansions.

Ores and Goblins see Dwarf lodds as ideal targets, promising of both rich plunder and a good scrap. Thus, from the most venerable fortress to the smallest mine-workings, every Dwarf settlement up and down the great range of the Worldk Edge Mountains regularly comes under size by a storm of greenskins. We set this game up using the Hold the High Ground scenario, from the previous page, but we've adapted the game in a few notable ways. First off, there is no hill as such, but instead the 'front porch' of the ancient Dwarf stronghold is used as the summit. We've also used a Dwarf lighter-than-air warship.

The extra effort that went into building this terrain, from the mountainous backdrop to the ormately carved name to life.

BATTLES AMIDST THE PEAKS

The nominin and passes of the Wahammer work have seen than or flobogy confine. The Dwarfs of the Wahah Eggs Monation are halvepressed to defind the remaining insplant of his plane of the flow passes of the of greenkins and Sherner, High-bowered for tensors grant the passes having into the himefault of the Engine. Due to the system may hattle have been found to or the passes, although the WahA. High on the flow flow flow passes that the system of the target having to the passes of himman nations of the CAU WohA. High on the flow flow flow passes that have been found to constrain the flow flow passes although the to the present of human nations of the CAU WohA. High on the flow flow passes that have have the flow flow flow flow flow flow flow passes that have been found to compare the flow flow passes and the the Wayner's Courts of data manifest constants of the character of human nations of the CAU WohA. High on the flow flow passes that have have the flow flow passes although the character of the system of the character of human nations of the CAU WohA. High on the flow flow passes although the character of the system of of th

The Thunderbarge is a lighter-than-air warship almost perfected by Dwarf Envineers. See rules for the mights warship on page 425. The 'summit' point for this An alcohol-faelled War Pub See page 424 for more about

NARATIVE BATTLES



The earliest way to handle

teams. The Allied Armier

chapter (page 136) has

multiple players is to divide into

suggestions for hore to split up

the marious forces. This scenario,

hotpetyer, is not about team plan.

tron sides. Each arway is tokelly

is using for its ocen victory. Any

alliances are purely agreements

between the players.

BATTLE ROYALE

Duke Tremambert reined back his steed and raised a gauntleted hand to call a hait to his cantering bodygaard. There, rising from the sand covered plateau were the erambling runis that must house the fabled treasart of the Dune Kings of old. Yet from the rising dust clouds on the horizon, his was not the only army that had reached this destination...

THE ARMIES

This scenario is for three to five players. Each player chooses his force using the army list from a Warhammer Armies book, to an equal points value agreed before the game.

THE BATTLEFIELD

The gaming table should be set up using the method described on page 14.7 Then each player sets up an objective as follows. Each player setting up his objective first and the remaining players placing up his objective first and the min decreasing disc source order. Objectives can be placed anywhere on the table but not within 12°.

DEPLOYMENT

Each player must roll a dice, with the lowestscoring player immediately setting up his center army in the center deployment too (as marked on the map). The remaining players, starting with the highest ower and then proceeding in decreasing dice score order, must then in turn choose a free thale dega and immediately set up their entire army (minus any modeh held in severe) within 6² of his chosen edge and more than 10" away from any enemy unit. Each player (except the player in the centre) can leave any number of units in reserve.

FIRST TURN

The player who set up in the centre moves first and the remaining players move in the same order in which they deployed. Note, that the normal Warhammer turn sequence is not in use (see Scenario Special Rules opposite).

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for six turns or until a time limit agreed by the players is reached, whichever comes first.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

The Barle Royale scenario has special victory conditions, as follows. Playres can only score points by controlling objectives (see the Scenario Special Rules opposite for how to control an objective), which are worth one point each, or by shying an enemy General, which is worth one point as well. Having your own General survive the barlet is also worth one point. The player with the highest total at the end of the game is declared the winner.

Multi-player Games of Multi-player games of Worknammer spring spo for all binds of reasons. Sometimes it can be a practical solution for an odd swather of players, a wood to yool reasories for a large game or because one of the players of the many share a single coargoning table. Regardlest, the their excitoment of many different armsie clashing makes a great game.



Placing Terrain

This map shorean on terrain so too can fit in all the degloyment zones. However, such a multiapportunity for narrative elementa - such as many armies consign to a Desarf mine to steal god, claim a anagic item from a Lizardmon temple or capture highly Terrain can help at ap year stary!

NARRATIVE BATTI

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES

To accommodate additional players, this scenario alters the normal turn sequence of Warhammer. This has the advantage that it keeps everyone in the action, rather than waiting for long intervals for your turn to come around again. However it has a drawback: it can get jumbled up in a hurry. Here is the new turn sequence for this scenario:

In the Movement phase each player takes it in turn to complete all his movement. The order in which the players have set up determines who goes first – the player going first moves his units, then the next player moves his units, and so on unit every player has moved in turn.

Next there's a single Magic phase, with all players joining in. The player who went first rolls two dice for the Winds of Magic. Each player uses this roll to determine both his casting and dispelling dice (be careful not to mix them)). The player who went first can cast a spell or pass, then the next player, and so on until everyone is out of power disc or everyone passes. Anyone can try to dispel a spell, but only one attempt in total can be made. The player targeted by the spell always gets the first attempt at a dispel, followed by the other players in turn sequence. If there is example, follow the turn sequence for the order of diapel attempts.

In the Shooting phase each player takes it in turns to complete all his shooting.

Finally, a single Close Combat phase is fought, with all players joining in. The fights are worked out in the order in which the player who set up in the centre dictates.

Controlling an Objective

An objective is controlled by the closest unit within 12". Units that are fleeing cannot control or contest an objective.

Whose Turn?

By altering the turn sequence of Warhamswer the game takes on a voloole new feel. This makes for an enjoyable change of pace, especially volem the on-thespet alliances and investighte backstabbing really starts to take place!

Be coarned, hercorcer, that players will have to make a fero interpretation, as many things like spell effects or magic items are voristen specifically for the established turn sequence.



ACROPOLIS OF SKULLS

Deep in the wastelands of Khenri, the remains of a once proud and dominating eviliation can will be formed. Leendes abound about the fabluots treasures that still remain deep underneath such temples and burial grounds. Many have searched for the fabled Aeropolis of Skulls, a site that was reputed to harbour both global and mystical secrets in prodigious quantity.

This scenario uses the Battle Royale scenario with a few additional special rules and adjusted victory conditions. By altering a few details it is possible to better match an invented narrative or make use of any inspirational terrain you might have (or want to build). Our battle featured four armies – Tomb Kings, Bretonnia, Skaven, and Ogre Kingdoms.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

Unlike a regular Battle Royale, with its multiple objectives, the winner of this battle is the player that has the most units on the Acropolis of Skulls at the end of the game. Every unit on the top level counts triple.

> The advantage of being the player in the middle is that you start the game in the winning position – however, the disadvantage is that everyone will immediately come after you!

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES

The Protection of the Fallen

The protective magic of the temple is still strong. Every model that is on top of the highest platform of the Acropolis of Skulls is granted a 4+ ward save.

Haven for the Dead

If a Wizard that is on top of the Acropolis of Skulls casts a spell that summons Undead, the number of models summoned by the spell is doubled.

The Power of the Skulls

If a Wizard from any army is on the top of the highest platform of the Acropolis of Skulls, the sorcerer can cast the Saudblast spell.

Sandblast

Cast on a 8+ Suddenly arcare of a sentient power, the Wizard speaks words of a long-dead

This magic missile spell has a range of 24" and causes D6 Strength 4 hits with no armour saves allowed. Additionally, any unit struck is moved backwards D6" directly away from the Wizard that cast the spell. They will immediately stop if they hit another unit or terrain, taking an additional D6 hits.

> The Rectonnian force makes a formidable attack uthill towards the lotter levels of the Acropolis of Skalls.

This fantastic terrain, with its high walls and stepped temple, can provide feto brief conversations toe easily resolved charges, high ground and tohere entertaining terrain, and score rewarded with a particularly splendid and



INVASION!

When the moment for subterfuie and more cunning attacks is over, it is time to unleash a head-on and overwhening attack. Such brutal invasions are marked by a surging tide of invaders bent on crushing all opposition in their ways, and conquering of edstroving everything before them. It is essential to secure a beachhead, clearing the wn for the subsequent attack waves. This beachhead, clearing the wn for the subsequent attack waves. This ensemt vertors:... turing wave all defences and holding ground in this

THE ARMIES

Each player chooses his force using the army list from a Warhammer Armies book, to an equal points value agreed before the game. One player must be the attacker and one the defender.

THE BATTLEFIELD

The gaming table should be set up by the defender. The defender can set up or designate three defensible areas or watchhowers (if available). Each must be at least 16° apart from each other and at least one should be in each hulf of the gaming table.

DEPLOYMENT

The attacker deploys first in his deployment zone, as marked on the map below. The defender can then set up his army, placing models anywhere on the tabletop, but not within 12" of any enemy model.

FIRST TURN

The attacker always goes first in this scenario.

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for eight turns or until a time limit agreed by the players is reached, whichever comes first.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

This scenario assumes there are hordes of imarders in the standard's wake and it is the job of the lead forces (the attackers on the tabletop!) to clear the area of defenders and establish a tochthid. Casualism and losse do not matter to either side, the only winning factors are controlling the three defensible leadmarks or watchtowers and doministing the table quarters. Each of these factors rewards the controlling side with a single point, meaning there are a possible serve victory points in this scenario.



NARRATIVE RATTLES

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES Waves of Attack

The attacker can 'recycle' any Core unit that is destroyed or that has fled off the table – the models are used to represent new troops arriving on the battlefield.

This recycled unit has any options that it originally started with (equipment, command group, and so on), however any character that was in the unit at the time of its demise is lost. Recycled units can come back on from the attacker's deployment zone or any table edge on a board quarter that is currently dominated by the attacker (see right), using the normal rules for reinforcements.

Watchtowers and Defensible Areas

It is commonplace to find watchtowers or defensible areas along any border in the Warhammer world. The watchtowers use the rules on page 401. If you do not have any watchtowers, place some terrain in such a way as to hinder the attacker's charge or aid the defender's set up. These could be stone walls to slow down the attacker's charge, a specially constructed moat, or any other type of obstacle such as a Blazing Barricade (see page 123).

Controlling a watchtower or defensible area can be done by being the closest unit within 12° of the building or defensible area. Units that are occupying the feature are naturally considered to be the 'closest'. Units that are fleeing cannot control a building or defensible area.

Dominating Board Quarters.

Divide the entire playing surface into four equal quadraturis. In this scenario a player is considered to be 'dominating' a board quarter if he has more than twice the number of units in the quarter as his enerny (single models, other than Monsters, do not count). Units will count wounds whichever quadrant contains the majority of models. If this is equally divided, the owning player, can fredy choose.

Invader Tactics

Because the plager in the stateker role want both advance quickly, but alim out his for out of dipdoedd armar, he cull model a wise bandigaarter, but voll huntifeld and diominating hoard quarters, but voll turgels to divise an exemp soat of a vouthbrowce Blocks of diato inflasters or twar machines are ideal for block and diato inflasters a turateking a diplanet or twar machine are ideal for hoar and smake to constat the gamba both of distant of of a kantifeld.



NARRATIVE RATTLES.
INVASION OF CHRACE

Chrace is one of the Outer Kingdoms of Ulthuan, island home of the High Elves. Because of its northward facing and its proximity to the cursed kingdom of Ngaprythe, the land of Chrace is one of the main invasion routes for Davik Ell armies. Its needy shores are lined with watchtowers and its hardy eitzen soldiers stand ready to repel the invaders before they can move inland towards the more vulnerable island interior.

Sometimes the idea for a great battle is obvious – an archetypal clash between two bitter foes. Dark Elves versus High Elves is one such classic match-up. This scenario has been creating by adding thematic special rules to the Invasion scenario.

The battlifeld case based on descriptions of Ubhann – depart travers also a redge oscillan, protective cosystems and green hells relling down to the white-capped curves. The Dark Elver, assurably, goe the slook drogon-protect drips, coards of the sea monster, and a wrytical fig that which di their landing, during Tarn 1.

An armada of ships lands the Dark Elf invasion force onto the coast of Chrace and then serves as a mechanism to rapply reinforcements. We also created zone rules for the sea monster.



Cold One Knights charge into the spears of the High Elves

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES

Reavers of the Sea

Each Reaver ship moves 12° and can depoint up to 50 Dark Elves onto the backhaid. Each also has a Renper Bolt Thrower (that can fire even if the loan moves that turn). The ships are Toughness 7 with 6 Wounds each. Once reduced to 0 Wounds, the ship will sink, slasing everyone about. All recycled? Gore units (the Waves of Attack rule) onter play about a Reaver ship and must sail to the coast.

High Elf Watchtowers

These watchtowers use the rules as presented on page 401.

spaterfall, keen eyed Archers rain death on the

Elven Waystones

The coasel Maystones use the rules for Elsen Waystones (page 123) but the complete line of Waystone mean that along as all the Waystones are in control of the High Elses, they can all an additional + 1 losus to all their rolls to dispel. However, should control of all single Waystone Ie loss, the wynergy is interrupted and the Jonus is also los. Should the Jark Elses gain control of all the Elsen Waystones, the gain a + 1 losus to to their cating rolls. Waystones are controlled by the neurost unit within 12² (cocuming lening units).



Mighty Dragon riders lead the defence.

ARRATIVE BATTLES

EXPLORING EVEN FURTHER...

Some players like to dolve more decept into the Warhammer world. Rechang you want to explore the earners hencemt the Worlds Edge Montaining? Uncover the latest and most diabolical inventions of the Slaven Warhole Engineers? Perhaps you yearn to pursue the pintest that infest the riverways of the Empire or unlock the lost treasures of the Old Ones? If so, there is only one thing for you to do... make it up yourself.

As the Warhammer World section of this book shows, there is a vast wealth of stories and history just waiting to be explored. So if you're the kind of player who wants to experiment with different battlefield environments, create new kinds of gaming chillenges and model the extremes of the finatsitical Warhammer world, where is the beat place to start?

Every Warhammer Armies book gives a long account of its chosen subject, detailing heroes, adversaries, major wars and legendary battles that alonged the next. These supplements are stop manifers one for game impiritional material to turn into accimp lattics. That's certainly what we've dong for the previous lansies of Chraces buffs, simply particle, lansies in Chraces buffs, simply participations are stop and the stop of a consolution, board, the defensive magical abdid of Uhlman) straight into our buffs. The arrowst in these backs is its boardware of declayment, a lot of Warhammer's history remains in the shadows, landing at percitors, backware difficus and integration are well. On the other land, even with the strain of declayment, a lot of Warhammer's history remains in the shadows.



light. There are many unexplored gaming threads to wonder at or perhaps, one day, to explore?

Take Denrifs, for example, What Dourf phase em as phe sint the lass the temped to play one of the many hattes of the long underground ware To enclaime even a sinter of the ancient insightment the Golden Age of that proval race? To be revenged upon the methics. Shown on the released to the sinter sinter are so many combilities, so many interesting dements to develop for flipting such battles, deep in the pteldes. There might be accession, flore-similar develop for perlapse new some of the technological montes of the Dours, shanning the could by more be prevented to cell by the fault develop of the disological devent memo.

There are a host of sources for coming up with great ideas to add to your own battles. Realworld history can serve as a jumping off point. The barbaric hordes of greenskins surging across the frozen Reik to overrun the civilised Empire, the desert-bound crussdes launched by Bretonnian Knights, or assaults upon templecities rising from the jungle are scenarios inspired in part by historical counterparts. Fiction, computer games, and movies are other places to seek inspiration, but no matter where you look for ideas – the scenario, the terrain and the special rules will have to come from you.

HERE BE DRAGONS!

Before you get carried away building steampowered, cog-driven Dwarf-engineered devices we thought it fair to warn you that this way lies madness! Making your own scenarios, special rules and creatures is heady stuff, but it can all go wrong. Not every Warhammer player is interested in expanding their games outside of the published rules. While you may have built your own mighty monolith to the Dark Gods and come up with some great rules to go along with it just as importantly you'll need to find an opponent that wants to fight a battle using your creation on the table. Springing such an invention onto an opponent expecting a pitched battle probably isn't going to go well. Setting up such a game as a special occasion will work better. In fact, clubs or gaming groups sometimes put on extravagant and highly themed games, on occasion even taking them to show off at major events such as Games Day,



Black Library produces an extensive range of norvels set in the rich background of the toorld of Warhammer:



If you've ever agreed a few extra rules subh au opponent böfer, (or during) a gane, then you've altracht startad in design your own scarring. Graning sconaria doest't have to be any soor complicated or formed bhan that. If you do start making up wore complex scenarios then you way need to write them decres so you can researcher all the details.

CREATING YOUR OWN WARHAMMER SCENARIOS

This section takes a look at the many options available to players wishing to make up their own Warhammer scenarios.

Whether you aspire to play a straightforward clash to destroy your opponent's army or you want to try out something more outlandish. such as casting down the arcane idols of your dark fors there are some universal questions that should be addressed before you take to the field of battle. Existing scenarios routinely answer these questions for you, however, if you want to invent your own scenario, you'll need to work them out for yourself. Once you've answered these basics, you will have created the framework for your game, you will have defined how you'll set up and fight the upcoming battle. To begin with, we recommend that you make only small changes to the nitched battles. As you gain experience, there are a host of game variations you might want to consider trying out.

BATTLE CHECKLIST

Before you can fight a battle, you need to answer the following questions:

- 1. Armies how will you select your forces?
- Battlefield how will you set up your terrain?
- Deployment how are the armies deployed on the tabletop?
- First Turn how will you decide who goes ' first?
- Game Length how long will your game last? What determines the end?
- Victory Conditions how will you decide who has won the battle?
- Scenario Special Rules will you use any scenario special rules, and if so, which ones?



ARMIES

The first thing to consider when fighting a Warhammer batte is how you will pick the armise taking part. The collision of armies is what the game is about and, if, by a few twists or alternions, you can add more challenges or character to participating forces, you'll make your buffe even more enzymber. The standard way to choose armies is to agree a points value with pour opponent and use the Warhammer Armies books to spect. Such this is not the only way open to you.

First off, does the battle you are planning need formally picked armies? Newcomen often plays with all the models they own, although once players begin using Warhammer Armies books they often forget about this simple method. This is a shame, as it is still enjoyable to fight a battle using your entire collection of Citadel miniatures. In such a free-for-all three is no worrying about whether your Empire army can really include that Treeman you bought and painted.

Some versum forgo army lists altogether, amply enting up buttlet hanged what looks digit. This ioif a random as it sounds, as many veteran players become attact a crianishing army sizes. These players simply use their experiments to roughly assue opposing armics are equal, given the terrain and victory conditions of the security. For example, and advantage in terrain might be contend with an extra unit or two for the other aids. Such a system allows players to quickly get to battle without having to spend time adding up points values. When recreating a game from the rich background of Warhammer the lists in the Warhammer Armise books can serve as a jumping-off point. You may want to adjust the army lists to fit in with the background of the scenario or take into account the troops or heros that historically took part in the fighting



For instance, two rival Warriors of Chaos armies battling in the forlorn Troll Country might each be allowed to take Trolls as Corre choices or even at half points cost. Such a simple twist can really make for a memorable battle.

About 2,000 years before the coming of Sigmar the Dwarfs battled the High Elves for possession of the Old World, in the War of the Beard. If you were building a Dwarf army to fight during this period you could tailor your army list accordingly. During such ancient days a Dwarf army would not include such devices as the Flame Cannon, as these engineering marasely are relatively (at least to Dwarfs) modern inventions. On the other hand, the Dwarfs would have even more access to magical rune weapons, as the craft of runesmithing has faded over the ages. You can almost hear a stodgy old Dwarf grumbling "things were made better. back in the old days". For more ideas about recreating armies to fight a historic battle, see the Legendary Battles chapter on page 450.

Same or Different?

Some players nae the same format for all of their hatte, with weaksaging rathe for all-squares, deployment and victory conditions. Other players crave wairly, never playing the same bailite traine and contantly program an exellers hast of terrains sea-squares hast of terrains sea-squares hast of terrains sea-squares hast of terrains sea-squares hast of terrains and seahast of the seahers hast of the seahers to one degrees are analytic.

Warhammer Armies books previde the standard army lists for most gamers, but players should feel free to adjust the lists tohen designing a themeal or historical battle. The termin fue this book cross modelled and painted by our holdy have, cuterasti saith years of experience. While these are the kinds of houtefields we all supre to houtefueld and play on, most of a stanted of playing on the flow or hischen table. Jerois first heather using terrain constituting of racks and range.

BATTLEFIELD

The addition to set up and crater trains for your hardredid is in interactional properties of for players designing their owns scenarios. For radie formense, northing chiefe has the ability to wisually change as accurate like the terrain can. The ballefield set the scenes for the game and wellhild out scenery turns a gameign their into a similar of of the Withmanner wells. It simply backons for minimum ermits to fight own it. So signing the look high for the game you want to fight is worth cardial counting up a framework ballefield set the scene of and makes a game look spectradare. Xwell find more information on look spectradare. Xwell find more information on look games. The scene of the set of the set of the set of the modeling and pointing terrain on your 370.

One of the casiset alterations to a scenario is to change the relate for setting up the buildedd. In a standard Wurhammer built, physres take it in these are jointy of other possibilities. Nor there are jointy of other possibilities, which is the start of the start of the start of the start and the other player to beyone the twentian and the other player to beyone the twentian and the other players to beyone the twentian their other starts with the added advantage that is allower a host to set up in builtfalling of the successful of the start of the starts of the start of the start of the start of the starts of the start of the start of the start of the start of the starts of the successful of the start of the start of the starts of the successful of the start of the start of the starts of the starts of the successful of the starts of the starts of the starts of the starts of the successful of the starts of the starts of the starts of the successful of the starts of the starts of the starts of the starts of the successful of the starts Placing terrain can be a huge advantge. A common convention in scenario a presenting analocki difedder ainations, it to allow the appent to conside the bits array and his native, allowing lim to set up terrain that will best during the standard bits array and his native. allowing lim to set up terrain that will best mainded Wahasamer player can make great use mainted Wahasamer player can make great these assessing fields of for and can use over friendly troops is an obvious tetric, hot plating the proop within buildings, using obstacles to default against energy charges or any sumbord of default against energy charges or any sumbord of theory and difficus.

Other ansula and encing butbes can be made by adding more trent in than normal, by grouping termin of a specific nature or by forming a large, domining termin pice on the tablency, perhaps even making if the objective of the game. The termin rules (on page 116) provide many excellent options. This about clustering three woods in the centre of the bond and refighting the Baulte of the Bond Ferret at on Christian lar previous lade of Gack to possibly Merck. Investing your ons termin (specially if themed to your army) is enjoyable in in own right and can really add character to any stuffs.

The terrain featured below, as well as the gaming table itself, is available from Games Workshop.

It Starts with the Battlefield

The apposing Chass and Empire battle lines look even more impressive taken arrayed acruss a szell-presented and carefully loid out battlefield.

DEPLOYMENT & FIRST TURN

These two scenario-defining categories are often interrelated, which is why we have covered them both together on this page.

The simplest way of deploying is to divide the table in half down its length, and for the armies to set up in the opposite halves of the table about 24° apart. Altering the deployment zones or the method in which the armies are deployed is an easy way to create new scenario challenges. Some methods are simply alternative rules mechanics, which may be faster, more involved method in the structure. Other methods the in more strongly to the story of the lattle and can be used to great effect in a marrative scenario.

Alternatives include dividing the table in half carces its width, digonally or by any method you prefer. Having one or both sides move onto the table in their fart turn, using the reinforcement rules, is an enjoyable alternative, although it can favour more manouverable troops. It's also possible to split each army into two or more parts, with each part having its own set of deployment restrictions.

For example, you might say that one part of the army has to set up within a certain distance of an objective, or that it won't arrive until after the battle has already started, and so on.

Once deployment zones are established, it is on to the deployment of armiss. A quick way of doing this is that one player deploys first (roll off to decide who) and alo gosts to take the first turm. Then the other player deploys second. A second to roll a De after he has deployed his army. On a 6 they visite the initiative and get to take the first turn instead, while on a roll of 1.5his opponent goes first a normal.

Far less common than other methods, but one preferred by many of the Warhammer players here in the Game Workshop Studies, is to use a screen. This method requires the players to erect a screen made of cardboard or something similar between their deployment zones. This laws both players free to deploy their amins fully without being observed by their opponent. This adds an element of drama. You doth toow what is waiting for you on the other side of the screen. It could be a unit of

RESERVES

An interesting deployment option is to have some troops (from one or both sides) held back, to move onto the table later in the game.

Often the scenario will use dice to determine when and even where these reserves enter the tabletop. This can represent such things as Slaven troops emerging from under-tunnels or nearby troops arriving to join the fray. Using randomly arriving reserves can certainly be dmantic and sets up classic situations such as the heroic cavalry arriving just in the nick of time to avert certain disaster.

battery of cannons! Once both sides have set down all their models, the screen is removed and the players roll off to see who gets the first turn.

A slightly more time-consuming deployment variant is for each payer to draw a map of the battlefield and then secretly note down on the map where their units will deploy. After both payers have completed their maps, the armies are deployed in the positions indicated on the respective maps. After both sides have placed all their models they should roll off to see who gets the first turn.

Another variant for determining deployment and who goes first is to have the side with the slowest troops set up first and the side with the fastestmoving regiment receiving the first turn.



Using a screen means you must set up your army without any idea of hoto the enemy is deploying his forces.

Releven: This maps near dereven for the battlyfield set-up on the provinse page. On it are Empire players has surrented his deployment plane. The lass speed for a hard control and [16] fields for a hard control and [16] fields could not have been been could be a starting be more lasser. They empire her more lassers, but half have to scatte the county in string up opposite the county in string up opposite their adoptionent seages and their deployment seages and their deployment seages and the page.





Skeleton Warrin

Some armies have an unmatural advantage in hautes that out cohon the last trougher is destroyed. Vampier Counts armies, for instance, can rannonon new warriors to the battifield. To reason face an endless horde of Undead, field and shay the spell-outing Vanteire or Newsmanner.

When luck runs out

There are times token battles go horrisky cornerg quide early in the game play; In such cases, it is the home player's decision collector to call a halt to mach colleminous happenstances or collector to 'longit it ani,' home go and 'a horeic anderstog comoback! When on the cosming aide of such hopsidal games the true graduesm of homour call angest an insonches

GAME LENGTH

Now haver's finished creating a scenario if you haver's though how how how they the hull et will have. Before a hurtle hegins, agree with your copromet the point at which the game will end. Perhaps the most time-bosometry any of ending reached. Heally the config time will leave needed. Weally the config time will leave needed. Weally the config time will access to the how how the two the scenario and the scenario way have needed with your exponent. Viceory on which for the scenario with your exponent. Viceory on which friends

RANDOM GAME LENGTH

A simple but dramatic variant for ending a battle is random game length. A dice is rolled at the end of each game turn starting with the 4th. Add the dice roll to the current turn number, and if the total is 10 or more the battle finishes, it being assumed that night has fallen, exhaustion sets in or something else has occurred that brings the battle to a close. A common alternative to playing to a time limit is play for a set number of turns. Another method that can be used to determine the length of the game in to base it on 'bracking' the enemy army by destroying a certain number of units or points. The amount of while of the army's starting strength, usually a fraction of the army's starting strength, usually either a third or half of the army. For example, you might say that the game finishes one half the units in a mary are destroyed or have field. This ties into Victory Conditions (see more below).

Games can also end based on the scenario objectives – such as finishing as soon as an important character is slain (like a king), a herrific Daemon is summoned (or the high priest destroyed), or a vital objective captured, and so on. A very bloody game could be had if opponents agreed to battle it out until one side is completely wijed out.

It's easy to combine some of these methods. Many tournaments stipulate that a game will last for six turns or until a time limit is reached, whichever comes first. The same method will work very well for your own games.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

There are many possible victory conditions to choose for a scenario, but the most important thing is that both players understand what they are before beginning a battle.

The most common way of deciding who has won and who has lost a game is simply to look at the tabletop after the last turn has finished. It is often fairly obvious at a glance who should be declared the victor. Between familiar opponents this leaves room for enjoyable debate and "whatifs" with your opponent after the game!

Sometimes, however, players denen it more important to determine wirtch who has won and who has hot. For example, mort tournaments usually require that there is a dara-rot winner and lone. If you are playing a game where the apply of the hundre is housd on breaking the opposing army or capturing an objective, then achieving these things will also determine the winner. In the absence of victory conditions like eachieving these things will also determine the winner (a the absence of victory conditions likes, the 'victory pairs' system was invented (see page 143). The player acting the higher amount of points is detarded the winner. For those seeking even greater clarity, a chart like this can help:

Difference in VPs

More than three times as many points More than twice as many points Between half and twice Less than half as many points Less than a third as many points

Result Major Victory Minor Victory Draw Minor Loss Major Loss

So, for example, if you scored 1075 victory points, while your foe earnt 450, it would count as a Minor Victory for you, and a Minor Loss for your opponent.

The more that players involve themselves in a marrative biff, hen more likely it is that they will shy away from victory points. Instead, players will lead to gravitate more towards storybased objectives, such as saving a captured hereo, destroying an enemy suchknower or toppling that been as the start of the start of the start of the for a lart to their fundament. Dark Goods. And all this leads us nicely into the next section – Scennic's Special Males – because toppling allarts is not something that is covered in the Warhammer rules!



SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES

Perhaps the most exciting tool for anyone making their own battles is the scenario special rule. Scenario special rules are game-specific rules that cover unique situations, tactics or abilities that you wish to be represented in a particular game.

As stated in their name, as scenario special rule is nire a definitive rule for Warhanmer, but instead applies only for a particular battle. Such one-off rules can range from a straightforward to complex. For example, if you were fighting a battle set in the frome wastelands to the north of Kileky you might want to include scenario appearinces by froncious Ice Trolls or perhaps the excessional bitrard sweeping over the table.

While the scenario special rule is an exciting tool, it is also a potentially dangerous one. There is no limit to the number of scenario special rules that can be used in a game, but one or two characterful ones is usually plenty and can be readily absorbed by players. Too many 'new' rules can quick/overcomplicate a battle, changing the focus from playing an entertaining game into an exercise in remembering all those extra rules. Use them sparingly and only to add character or theme to a battle.

On the following spread you'll find a host of scenario special rules to inspire you about the kinds of Warhammer battles you can play.

HOUSE RULES

The term House rules' is most commonly used to refer to changes to the core game rules that groups of physrs use in perty much all of the games that thy phys. For example, your group may decide that instead of rolling 2006 for House (making magic much less of a factors), or 1006 (making magic much less of a factors), or 1006 (making magic much less of a factors), or 1006 example, some physics visibalise that area distantly and the set of the set of the set of the set that is also also the flow a stormatically count as a rules are much set of the set of the set of the set rules are much set of the set of the set of the finals on decide. A cave that studdenly disporges Night Goblins when approached too closely is an example of a scenario special rule. The nasty premaking will gleefully charge the nearest feel

CATEGORIES AND EXAMPLES

Scattered in the scenarios throughout this looks can be found a host of scenario special rules. If you cere wanted to find out what the magnelifted plains of the Nark Lands were like, or fight out as merciless gradge burles in the tannels benefat a Durrh hold, then scenario special rules are the tool that can help you do it. We have itself out source connect cargories and further examples (opposite). This is by so means an outer advection. It must be a start of the starter advection the same of the start of the starter advection. It must be a start of the start and advection that the start of the start of the starter advection. It is a start of the start of the start advection. It is a start of the start of the start of the start advection. It is nearly a gray row-thinking like. These are the kinds of rules you can invest.

Additional scenario special rules can be found in many White Dwarf battle reports and we will publish even more in the future. Don't be tentative about making up a few scenario special rules yourself. Suggest a few simple rules to your regular gaming opponent before your next match – it might be just the kind of game you've both been looking to play.

WARHAMMER IS YOUR GAME

The world of Warhammer describes and suggests a staggering host of gamming possibilities. If you get excited by a particular iand of burtle or you'd lake to play a certain scenario, then ty creating it youned? The's really the hind of game we've all hoped to develop—one that yours is fins and enthusiants to build apop its finneswerk, taking it to whole nee levels. Many playes are more than content to play the game excely how it was written and they's usefit too. Note all, it's your gamel



A game fought in an underground cavern might include rules for cave-ins or wild Squigs.

DEPLOYMENT

An area ripe for special rules, deployment can cover how armies are set up on the tabletop or how they arrive later in the battle.

Reserves: During deployment each player is allowed to keep units in reserve. These units enter play at the start of any turn the player desires, using the rules for reinforcements (see page 27). These units may enter play at any point on the table edge that is part of the player's deployment area.

Stabiling Ambushers: Due to advance warning or gine plain suckness, one side has liad an andwah. To represent these hidden warries, one side can withhold up to two infantry or monotrous infantry units from normal deployment. These units are placed as Scouts, but as they are hidden, do not place the models themselves on the hidden, planted place markers (assigned numbers or letters to correspond to the unit they represent). Additionally, now Take's markers (Helded D for Decoy on the bottom) can be placed at this time as well, or entities a strange, lacewise, they must be received if a remine approach within 10° of the marker. Until that inc, the markers cannot be clarged or damaged by solido or models for solidors and strange of units of the solidors. Units this, the markers cannot be clarged or damaged by uselido or models for the solidors and the solidors of the marker. Until that inc, the

ENVIRONMENTAL

Such rules can cover general happenings, like weather or rockfalls, or more specific environments of the Warhammer world. These rules can be used in computation with the terrain rules (page 116) to create exciting thematic battlefields, such as the parched Khenri destris, underground warfure in caverns, or the chill lands of Naggarath.

Stormy Weather: Roll a D6 at the start of each player turn. On a roll of a 1 it begins to pour down with rain that turn, and all shooting To Hit rolls and all charge rolls suffer a -1 modifier.

Rain of Dearth: It is said that so much dark maps lay over the cursel provise of Sylvania that it periodically gets absorbed into the low and fichilding clouds that hang so oppressively over the black hands. Noll a 10 of the star of each player turn. On a sell of 1 it begins to pour down with rain that turn, as per Somery Weinher. However, in addition to the regular effects of such a cloudburst, any regiment of Undead gains a +1 homus to its Movement Characteristic for that turn.

MULTI-PLAYER BATTLES

Most games assume the battle is fought between two players. However, additional players allow for some interesting scenario special rules.

Messengers: Once the battle starts, communications become nearly impossible. To represent this on the tabletop, gamerelated conversations between players on the same side can only happen through messengers! This is not to say that you can't ask for a rules clarification or second opinions ("can my archers on the hill see over that tree or not?") or non-gaming talk ("who needs another drink?"), but all tactical talk between allied players is forbidden unless they use their precious messengers. Penalties for those who, in the heat of battle, forget the 'no tactics talking' rule, should ensure that any such collusions fail.

Each player has two messengers. They can be used at any time and on a D6 roll of 2+ the message is received and players may converse for a short amount of time (3 minutes works fine). The messengers are assumed to be clockwork pigeons, giant bats, messengers-Squigs, and so on a sappropriate to the amove. A roll of 1 represents the messenger failing in its duty, being destroyed, or some other equality clamitous occurrence.

OBJECTIVES

Objectives that more or are hidden (or possibly fight back!) are alreasy interesting territory for scenario developers to explore.

Prisoners: A group of prisoners have escaped their captors and are fleeing in blind panic across the battlefield. One army is trying to recapture the escapees while the other attempts to liberate them. You will need six prisoner counters (a fantastic modelling opportunity, but a marker or coin will do as well). The players take it in turns to place prisoners anywhere on the tableton that is at least 6" away from any unit and at least 12" away from other prisoners and the table edge. Prisoners move 2D6" in a random direction at the start of every Movement phase. Remember that prisoners are just counters, so cannot fight or be harmed in any way (they fall to the ground, duck or otherwise escape damage). If at any time a prisoner touches or is touched by a unit, the prisoner is claimed and placed behind that unit, moving with it. Claimed prisoners will be 'freed' (placed 1" from the unit, in a random direction) should the unit holding them be forced to flee or be beaten in combat. A freed prisoner moves randomly as before, until claimed again.

Typically, claimed prisoners are worth extra victory points, although players might decide to say that the player with the most prisoners at the end of the battle is the victor.

INTERLOPERS

The Warhammer woorld is a dangerous place and not even battlefields are safe from predatory monsters. Or perhaps the battle has unintentionally disturbed some hidden lair or aucient evil?

Unwanted Visitors A the start of each player turn roll a DE On roll of a 1 a pack of prevening centures has been attracted by the blockhed. Use a single unit (about 150 points) worth) of Ghouds, Tolk, Dire Wabes on any other suitable models you have to hund. The player whose turn it is decides which beard edge the newcomen arrive from and moves them for the rot of the game. The interlopers must always move towards the nearest unit, charging it if they can.

A TIME OF LEGENDS

The Warhammer world contains titanic monsters and wonders beyond description. Leviathams stalk the depths of the seas, behemoths haunt the impenetrable depths of the darkest forests, and the mechanically minded races have invented devastating machineries of destruction.

There are more creatures, feats of engineering and warriors of mythic prowess than we could ever fit into our rules and army books. And that's just the way we like it! Why? Because the Warhammer world is a vast place where anything can happen. Even better, it gives everyone that enjoys Warhammer a chance to 'make stuff up'. When Games Workshop first produced Warhammer (waaasaaaw back in 1983) there were so few fleshed-out armies or model ranges that it was assumed that Warhammer players would have to make up a few of their own. While, thankfully, there are now many army books available and a matchless range of Citadel miniatures in both metal and plastic to support them, the raucous joys of 'scratch-building' your own monstrous beasts of war have now been (mostly) forgotten. So we thought we should point out that if you want a Black Kraken from the icy waters of the Sea of Claws, an enormous Megasaur from Lustria or some nightmarish wonder-weapon of the infernal Skaven, then your best bet is to scratch-build it and invent your own rules.

These need? creatures, engines of destructions or heres of legand should as the created by vin the game or you'll quickly faid yuards? shour of gaming exponents. Instead, they should be interesting, characterid, neijvable to play with sud, more impartantly, to play against, Such creations have a way of unablancing burthing, and use are not tailing boart the time when the Inso-Colomson of Nucli fail over and destroyed an entire enginest of Inperprise and sectory. So if you are going to use acrach-balancing burthing, you might consider each side having one, or some point are creation confidence used and having have an operaturity for level modeled your Dwarf hadding is, there all, more parts to scenarios? and fail your opponnets while and the play of the size scenarios and all your opponnets while and the play of the size scenarios and all your opponnets while any size hold parts (20).

Some examples of the models and rules we invented for use in the scenarios in this book are given on the next few pages.



WRATH OF THUNDER

The Doard Tagineers than or the distance of th

Cranal Dynad Donorf Enginer Soon Handlröge, het Werds of Thunder is ske third fighter-show-a ske sky of the Thunderbarge class is to be Ianochod from Zongber. The Thunderbarge class is to be interest extend one in flavor doring the bount of Ricck Valo, the acoust has use restrand from a record goal cell, journey he Nahu, and the built, the prole of Secon, is the Werth to in several builter, mass recently boosting the Kanada Strenger tries of Core 2 with



M WS BS S T W I A Ld inderbarge - - - 6 10 - - w 4 4 3 3 4 1 2 1 10

Troop Type War Machine The Crew 10 Dwarf crew.

Special Rules: Unbreakable, Large Target, Magic Resistance (3), Ward Save (6+), Hover.

High Flyer: The Thunderbarge can only be charged by flyers.

Gun Platform: The Thunderbarge may fire its Organ Guns and drop Bombs even if it has moved.

Bedecked With Cannons: The Thunderbarge is armed with five Organ Guas. One Organ Gun may be fired per two crew, rounding fractions up. For example, a Thunder Barge with 5 crew left could fire only three Organ Guns. Trace the line of sight and range from the Organ Gun's Jarrel. Bombs Away: The Thunderbarge is fitted with neck of bombs, and the crew are skilled at using the momentum of the Thunderbarge to 'lob' the bombs at targets on the ground that ile near to their flight path. One thunder bomb can be hunched each turn, following the rules for firing a Store Thrower, and using the following profile. The range of the attack can be measured from any point on the Thunderbarge's base.

Name	Range	Strength	Special Rules
Thunder Bombs	3-12"	3(6)	Multiple Wounds (D3)

Misfress: If either an Organ Gun or the Thunder Bombs misfire and then roll a Destroyed! result, then the Thunderbruge suffers D3 wounds (remove crew models as you would for any other type of damage), and that weapon may no longer be used. Other misfires are dealt with using the normal rules.

Disaster1: When the Thunderbarge is destroyed it scatters 3D6" in a random direction and then crashes to the ground. Any model under is final position suffers a Strength 8 hit.

DOOM ENGINE

When the forces of Chaos hands a major invasion they often ball cruck sing to zeros or entrat denomics aids for more potenengines of war. The smoke-specing machinerics ball by Hudgar, the rengardle. Chaos Dourd Storester of the Forge, Hudgar, the rengardle. Unsub and Storester of the Forge delepoptlede, power by starm and, one use, damonic paces. With single-impresentable iron plating, these Doon Engineer and deminister and there disquees a layon of hoops. Laskiby and includant montroticits are merby seen, although none know Hedgard's wherehouses or who might the hings his services.

The destruction of the coalled toron of Karshinstadt and the atter callague of the Sharon lain-next of Gribblehook are attributed to the classing, grinding, and palverining toan totters built by Hathyan. It is runnared that the renegade Chaos Dranet fus one again been embraoid by the powers rations Dharr Naggrand.

Siege Toweer: The Doom Engine is essentially a mobile building, and is treated as a building for all rules purposes except where modified below. This means that units can enter the Doom Engine as if it were a building, or assuult it as if it were a building, and so on. It can be destroyed using the rules on page 339, and has Toughness & and 20 Wounds.

Movement If the Doom Engine is accupied by a unit, then it can move in the Remaining Moves sub phase. Prove the Doom Engine to face in any direction, and then move it straight forward 200%. Should this bring the Doom Engine into contact with a unit or terrain feature, then it will stop. The Doom Engine may not move in the same turn it is occupied, and a unit inside may not exit in the same turn that the Doom Engine moves.

The Grinder: Should the Doon Engine move into contact with a unit (friend or foc), it will inflict 2D6 S6 hits. The unit that has been attacked is then moved 1" directly away from the Doom Engine, so that it is no longer in contact with it. Obstacles moved into by the Doom Engine will be destroyed and are removed from play. Other terrain features stop the Doom Engine from moving, but have no other effect.

Assault Ramp: If the Doom Engine moves into contact with another building, then the unit inside the Doom Engine can assault the building. At the end of the assault, the Doom Engine must back away 1° from the building that was attacked.

GAMES MASTERS

One of the best ways to introduce new rules or a bespoke scenario into a game is with the help of a games master. A games master (or GM for short) is an optional organiser and the rules judge who presides over and runs a particular battle. The GM helps the players by setting up the scenario and interpreting - or even making up - the rules meeded.

Games masters offer fantastic opportunities for Warhammer players to vary their games. GMs are a neutral party who can coordinate any number of entertaining gaming options - such as truly 'hidden' set-up or ambush possibilities. Just like real commanders, the players won't know where their enemy is (or in some cases, solar their enemy is). Imagine a battle interrupted by a monster, disturbed by fighting too close to its lair, or the sudden realisation that the ruined altars atop the hills still contain great power. Having a games master can really put the players into the shoes of a 'real' Warhammer army general and offers great scope for creating Warhammer battlefields where nothing can be taken for granted. Hidden objectives, secret agendas amongst players, or competitive rivalries between allies are all scenario rules best coordinated by a GM

A games master is not to be confused with a tournament umpire, who is there to act more as rules policeman and dispute settler. Being a games master should be more about fairly enacting good ideas from the players ("can my fireball light set the woods ablaze?") than double-checking whether a unit has the correct angle to charge an opponent (although invariably most GMs will get asked to do this as well). Being a GM is really more aboat setting up the game and then applying common sense, dice rolls on secret charts and making up new rules on the spot.

If you are interested in coming up with new scenario ideas, rules twists or ideas for new creature types then try making up a game for your gaming group. It is a good idea to stick to armies you or your friends have, and add a few creative touches such as a new terrain feature, scenario special rules or a specially created monster. Even rigid, by-the-book players are more comfortable adding a few new rules mechanics or monsters such as a mammoth-sized war-spider with a howdah full of angry Forest Goblins - when the game is presided over by a GM. This has a way of ensuring balance, as the game isn't just dominated by one player over-eager to try out his new modelling project. The key to being a great GM is to remain fair and impartial while at the same time ensuring all the players have a fantastic time.

Keeping a Hand In

Just because you are a GM doew't mean that you can't get involved in the battle and roll rome dice! The scenario might offer a neutral force to control, rome third party faction or rown a monster that emerges from its lair.

Everyone Give it a Try

Some gaming groups use a revolving system, so that everyone gets a chance to both play and GM a game. In fact, there is often some friendly competition to see tobo can run the best and most exciting game.

Large games featuring scratch-built models are ideal battles for a games master to run. Here Jervis acts as a GM for a battle between Mat and Graham.

-



A hattle report is a detailed, blocs-by-bloc account of a particular game, for gray may a real soure of the able and find of the hattle and are great for

of the battle and are great for picking up tactical hints. Wh Drootf – Gaussi Workshop's noothly magazine – features regular Warhammer battle reports in its pages.

CLASH ON THE WILD HEATH

This battle report shows a games-mastered scenario with four players. It features hidden objectives, special rules and other surprises.

Jeremy: The best way to see the appeal of a narrative battle is to play in one yourself. The next best thing (a distant second) is to read an example. So we decided to write up of one of the games that we played in the Studio during the writing of this book.

Jervis suggested we 'show off' a gamesmastered scenario to give readers insight into how such battles work. As we all discussed possibilities of what such a game could be, Mat Ward said shar hed like to field Wood Elves, and Snadio editors Graham and Andrew chipped in by suggesting we tue the Allies rules. The next step was to sort out a scenario – the agarese master, as I had thought of an interesting objective-based game with a few entrathing twists. I gave the players a story to set the scene (on the right), an outline of the scenario and then asked them to make a 2,000-point army list so we could start.



When Morrslieb coas at its fullest and shone docon its sickly light, the night sky blazed with comets that left green trails of fire in their wake. Many eyes tracked the plummeting meteors.

In the mondorns and mystically cleared view of Athel Loren the Elves marked the comets with trenidation Nothing wholesome ever came from such portentous occurrences. If the path of descent had not been near the borders of their forest, the Elses smuld surely have left the comets well enough alone. When the schole of Athel Loren shuddered from the resounding impacts of the multitle landings, the Elses knew they must act swiftly to remove the meteors before they stained the lands. The mightiest of warping agents, the pure lumps of Chaotic energy would quickly corrupt the natural world and attract all manner of evil creatures. Already the mutating effects assailed the consciousness of the forest and Athel Loren recoiled anainst the perper of the fallen debris

The Bretomians near Athel Loren noted the luminous meteorites loading near the Wild Heath. There very legends that the strange rocks from the however ever made of a metal that could turn even the mrest of lance strikes. Lord Josuo Ie Grande voteed the comets would not fall tota evil hands, or, even worse, his rapealium mighbour, the Duke of Paraveous.

Other, more sinitare sets tore also coatching, Unity as a array of optic-nohances, the hosty-speed Sharow upled the fulling comets from their nastlars atup the Grey Monstaina. Surely this casa compation, though famously greedy Grey Seer Skriskas. Yet he coas not alow. Kast-guik Spikeail, a worten smattermind and Warlend of the Ghaok (and, also save the comets and withed them for his zero.

Many armies set forth and the race to claim the meteorites was on... To 'not the score 'for the apcoming battle this is the story that games matter Jorenny Vinted gave to the four players. Of course it into necessary to add this kind of detail to a game, but entire game, bat entire game, bat entire the character game and often impires the courses portal rules and neighte even such player's array scleation.



There are free transpose meteors baried in furrored impact rites scattered across the shallfield. This scenario is a battle between two sides to scita the highly covered nateors before the other side can. The visioning side twill be the one that controls the nost meteors at the end of the battle.

To make watters more difficult, the commanders each have their own wright hidden dijectics. And they don't know that the teargeness effect on troop that dangermas effect on troop that control them, and might even have an ill effect upon the march foreit tuell.

CLASH ON THE WILD HEATH

Is that meteor glowing?

As the ratinen hoped, the failen dervis is pure coarpotone. Any unit controlling a wettor at the start of its turn must made a Leadership test. If passed, the weigical substance conser something annual to happen – roll a Die

 Very Confused. The smit inmodulatly makes a full source array from the metors: It cannot waves, when, or case spells for the remainder of the turn. If the smit is already in coordeat its members do not fight back, but will take Break tests as wormal.

 Duh! Until six next turn the unit acts as if it has failed a Stupidity test. If in combat, the unit is treated as having Weapon Skill 1.

3. Slathering

the constructions adjuct to Frenzy. If the unit is already subject to Frenzy, it adde +1 Attach. If a unit loses its Frenzy, them it will also lose its additional bowasts.

4. Bursting with

Energy: Exergist coarse through the unit, causing several members to fall variabing as their hearts stop. The unit takes D6 Strength 3 hits and gains +1 Strength for the rat of the some.

5. Heightened

Anticipation. The unit gains a sudden precognitive ability. As long as the unit controls the meteor, no opponent gains any charging bonues to thatsorever enament it

6. Surging Power. The ambridled Chaos energy

grants great percers, but at a cost. The unit raffers D6+2 Strength 4 hits with no saves allowed. Roll once to see what mutating effect it had on the surviving neuroders (this will last the duration of the battle):

1-2 +1 Strength

3-4 +1 Tagbaess

THE SCENARIO: Along with the story giving some background to the battle, Jeremy the games master told each player the victory conditions and provided some secret deployment options. He then allowed them to look at the battlefield set-up before choosing their deployment option (but players could not confer with their ally).

THE ARMIES

This battle pits an alliance (of sorts) between two Skaven armies, one commanded by Graham Davey (Warlord Katt-quik) and one by Andrew Kenrick (Grey Sert Skrikas) against Wood Elves commanded by Matt Ward (Lord Valerin) allied with a Brettonnian army wielded by Jervis Johnson (Lord Ionson & Genade).

THE BATTLEFIELD

I set up the battlefield to represent the Wild Heath – rough grasslands that border the forest of Athel Loren. One long table degle was lined with the edge of that great forest. I placed free objectives to represent the fallen meteorites (see below). A large Bretonnian keep, a few huts along a roudway and a giant mutated tree combleted the battlefield.

DEPLOYMENT

I decided that the forest table edge was the deployment zone for the Wood Elf and Beetonnian players and the copposite table edge was the Skaven's. I asked each player to secretly choose one of the following deployment options and let me know.

Forced March: By marching day and night the army is pashed so its forward elements will arrive upon the bandefield very quickly. The player gets to deploy up to 12° in from his table edge, but only with half of has many (by number of units, rounded up). Remaining units will enter play on a diff 3 + at the start of each following turn, entering on any friendly deployment edge using the rules for trainforcements. March: The army advances as a whole, but maintains regular speed. The entire army can enter play from anywhere along its deployment board edge at the start of Turn 2. Units that enter play in this manner do so using the rules for exinforcements.

Flank Attack: The player can move up to half of his army onto the table anywhere along the table edge of his deployment zone at the start of Tam 2. At the start of each subsequent turn roll for each remaining unit. On a score of 3+ the unit can come in from either their own table edge or either flanking edge. Units entering play in this manner use the rules for eniofrecments.

FIRST TURN

If only one side uses Forced March, they can decide who receives the first turn. If both sides have used Forced March, the players roll-off: The winner will decide who deploys their entire army first, keeping in mind that that side will then also receive first turn.

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for eight turns or until we run out of time.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

The allied side that controls the most meteors (see below) at the battle's end can claim victory.

SPECIAL RULES

Controlling a meteor: A meteor is controlled by the nearest unit within 12" (not counting flecing units). A unit can control more than one meteor at a time. Units that control a meteor at the start of their player turn must take an Is That, Meteor Glowingi test (see far left).

Even without any troits added by the games master, the scenario is an interesting one, with allied armies racins to control the fallen meteorites.

THE SECRET BITS ARE EXPLAINED...

Jeremy: I wanted each player to have their own secret objective, something that was in the character of their army: Here you can read everyone's secret objective, although, clearly, each player only saw (or knew about) his own. Players were instructed not to tell their allies about their secret objectives.

THE POWER OF THE FOREST

Wood Elves. The tree-spirits have sent word that two enemy armies and an ally will reach the meteors at about the same time as your own force. Your Spellweaver quickly channels the illusionary powers of nearby Athel Loren, the spell works as follows:

The Power of Illusion: Secretly draw on a map the position of a 'hidden' meteor (more than 6' from other meteorites and at least 12" from your own table edge). It will automatically appear at the end of the game or immediately if your Spellweaver dies.

This means the other players will not know of this metror. You should be able to obser through a relatively unchallenged part of the barthefield, where they might not draw the violent attentions of the Skaven. You cannot tell your Bertoniani ally – let them fight dependely, while you are safe in the knowledger that you already have one of the precision commodifies warped up. It sint that you don't entirely trust or care about the humans. Well. ... it probably is.

A MATTER OF HONOUR

Bertonnians. No other Bertonnians have arrived to stake a chim, but a force of Wood Ebvc on the seen emerging from Athel Loren. Perhaps they will add your cause 'The bud news is that several arrive of traines are also example to strike your prine. However, isomehing far more important than more reckfrom the sky has arrive. A small keep has been exceed on the Wald Henhi, although in soccupants have abandsond in. This upper space melteneous El round only the two counded, the Dake of Paravoon. The dugt It is an affront of the highest order! Wish kave been fought one yets.

Regardless of the meteors, the battle will be disappointing to the Bretonnians if they cannot claim possession of the keep. If the building is not iny our control at the end of the game, then your personal level of victory goes down a level – i.e. a victory equals a draw a draw a defeat, a defeat an embarrasment, and so on. Compared to honour, the meteors are secondary.

A PLAN WITHIN A PLAN

Clan Ghank. Enough warpstone has ploughed into the Wild Heath to pay off your enormous debt to Clan Skryre and still leave you the richest Skaven in the Grey Mountains. That's the good part. The bad part is that other armies are vying for the meteors too. A force of cursed man-things is approaching, and the hard eff-hings are coming out of their work. To complicate matters further, you have an alloy downs. It is Skrikos, the Gray Seer. He is not to be trateful as far as you can threa black of the set of the set hard that? You have Sorkias with him holding ALL, the warpoon of H is one compatible you with him holding ALL, the warpoon of H is one compatible you with our balance of the set of set of the your personal level of victory will drop a level. Perhaps a fee delays will dow down scritts and all your cance?

How Did That Get There?: Secretly choose D3 units from the Grey Seer's army (tell the GM) and those units will arrive to battle a turn late due to pitfalls and tunnel collapses.

The Secret Below the Earth: There is something that the for, or even wily Steknad, doen't know. Your Clan Skeyre warstone detecting instruments inform you that, deep under the man-thing's structure, is another lode still buried from a meteor atkle in age pass. Whichever side controls the keep can claim an additional objective. The warpstone has no ill-effects upon the controlling unit, as it is to for underground to cause any harm.

BIG TROUBLES FOR THE GREY SEER

The Army of Grey Seer Skrikus. How you crave waynshore Blav wain-sin, you are not alone. First off, that rebellions Warlord Kutt-quik and his Clan Ghank are bound have seen the falling metrors. And survey the man-things and larbox seen to falling metrors. And survey the man-things and gathered your freezo at of Pesterspik and set off immediate Using all your supply of warpstone (there will be more scont) you have cast a might spell.

The Spell of Deception: One of the warpstone meteors is NOT real, but it is an illusion that will look, smell and act eachty as per the real thing. You can choose which of the objectives is not real and must secretly tell the games master. Should the Grey Seer die during the course of the lattle, the objective will immediately field and disappear.

By Order of the Commell of Diricreme By numdorspite that your mission is used the presentation discrete of the Control of Thirtners you can a, a Grow Sers are swort to do, that meanly arguing the given can. B, again with the instruument that is controlling a metric type may use provide the Singly announce you chain this supports the sa Dor of of 1+. This is done at the by causely the problem of the Singly announce you chain this supports the Single remote. The same barrying the objective does not have to make an appeart tom.



Jervis and Mat are a formidable term



Graham and Andreto play Skaven and therefore don't trust each other!

Refere the battle began stor defaued the know would be treated as two distinct "building" – the courts pard (including the gatobasis), and the treever the schaptin that attacking the knop (weight is buildings of the schapting the tree of the schapting the startic logit) should be a little tongher shaw attacking one of the Brownian hut. Is the end sco said Jervic' start the knop could "Stand and Shoot", infiniting IOS Strength 3 hits, representing throase works, benefits and the lithe

HOW THEY DEPLOYED

Each player's deployment and their battle plans are as follows:

The Wood Elves chose to March to battle.

Lord Valerin: My clite army is small and I don't want to arrive pieceneal or sustain early casualties from Warplock Jezzail fire. With this in mind I chose the deployment option for my entire army to arrive at the start of Tarra 2.1 plan to advance in the centre as I know there are not one, bat two meteors there.

The Bretonnians Forced Marched to battle.

Lord Jonson: I am worried about security the keep. That's going to be a tough fight and I don't have that many infantry regiments to occupy the building. Therefore I want to deploy quickly, so my troop bott the speed? Skaven into the keep. That way I can wear their numbers down by standing and shooting and it will be easier than me trying to expel them! I deployed infantry first – the cavily can arrive later to save the day!

> Free courpoints meters were apparent to all the players, however, thanks to Grey Ster Skribus' pull, meter sumber 4 was williation – but only Andrew and the GM howev thiel In addition Katt-publichers there tous more competence broadsh the http, and the Wood Elect and hidden a meter, twistolike in the freed field.

The Grey Seer-led army Forced Marched.

Grey Seer Skrikus: I anticipate a doublecross from my 'ally', so I chose to do a Forced March. With half of my army deployed from Turn 1, I have a good chance of beating my rival, Warlord Kutt-quik, to the warpstone.

The Warlord-led Skaven army used Flank Attack.

Warlord Kutt-quik: Flank Attack is cunning – I'm hoping my ally turns up to the battle first to blust the energy and (hop-fully) take lots of casualities. I can arrive later, with a devastating flanking manoeuver, to 'win the day' and claim the warpstone for myself. Flanking on the side near the castle will also let me go for my secret objective. I an ant-genius.

THE STAGE IS SET

And so four armies descended upon the battlefield, each seeking to claim the meteors. The players had their own objectives and some, despite all the secrecy, suspected their allies were up to something.

Eften Warstones

OPENING MOVES

Because of the large table size (I set up a 10' by 4' board so there would be lots of manoeuvring) and the gradual arrival of troops, the opening turns were quick but really set the stage for later. Jervis deployed and went first, sending Peasant Bowmen and Men-at-Arms towards the keen and Mounted Souires to harass the large blocks of oncoming Skaven and Giant Rats. It was Skaven Turn 1 when the players realised that the meteors might prove problematic! A unit of Skavenslaves had claimed the meteor on their far left flank, but failed their Leadership test for the Is That Meteor Glowing? rule. The Skavenslaves became woozy and wandered backward so they no longer claimed the prize! More fortuitously, the unit of Giant Rats that claimed the downed comet outside the keen failed their test and gained Frenzy. The highlight of the turn was Grev Seer Skrikus casting Sourch to slav two Mounted Souires. causing them to Panic, Run-run, man-things!

THE POWER OF WARPSTONE

Turn 2 opened with Jervis rolling successfully for everyone to arrive save for his Knights of the units!) The newcomers entered the battlefield just as the floring Mounted Souires rode off it. On the plus side, Jervis advanced a unit of Peasant Bowmen into the tower and his Men-at-Arms into the keep's courtvard. Mat deployed the Wood Elves and it was clear that, with Jervis concentrating on the keep and the limited numbers of the Elves, the good alliance was stretched thin. Only ten Wardancers munded the right flank, where two of the meteors lay. In the Shooting phase a few arrows fell amongst the Skaven, including two that damaged the Screaming Bell. The frenzied Giant Rats failed another test and rolled the same result meaning they now had Frenzy with an extra +1 Attack. They charged the Men-at-arms in the courtvard and easily drove them out. The frothing superrats now occupied the courtvard themselves!

The mutated tree.

As Grobon (Kara-paik) deployed half of his fores at the start of Time 2, Anderec (Grey Ster Skrikau) amaraticully sizk "151 safe for the Wardend to come on new" which sparshad Grobons to crophy "Wild MY plan is cortising – shely're soloring everything at you?" Regardings of the funding, the Schwert were heading formidable, even web half of Grobons fore yet to dippe on the battelione.

Mat Ward coas coary of the matutal tree. He asked GM Jeremy several times if it coas alive and coas only anrecered that "it certainly does appear strange and matuted." His four second be confirmed in the ment turn!

A Grail Shrin



Frenzied (topice) by the meterry the Giant Rate proved to be deadly little killing machines!

Even when the superior martial skill of the Bretonnian Knights prevailed, they could not seem to break the large units of Shaven.

IOCKEYING FOR POSITION

Tim 3 began with the impressive unit of Knights of the Realm, led by Lord Jonon himself. The Knights of the Realm advanced just outside de charge range of the hord pushing the Scraming Bell. The Men-ta-arms ralled, while the five GraH Knights charged into the Plague Monks that had moved to support the metroraldelds Skreenburst on the fir side of the kery.

Mat's Glade Guard failed their Is That Meteor Glowing? test and went Stupid, meaning the Screaming Bell could advance without being peppered by bowfire. The Wood Elf Snellweaver left the Eternal Guard and used Transformation of Kadon to turn into a Hydra. The monster's breath weapon slew several of the Gutter Runners. The Grail Knights' charge slew many Plague Monks for the loss of only a single Knight, but the pox-ridden ratmen had so many ranks they remained Steadfast, refusing to break. In the Skaven turn the frenzied Giant Rats, still 20 strong along with two Packmasters, charged across the battlements at the Peasant Bowmen. Although they took some casualties from the Stand and Shoot reaction, the 10 frenzied Giant Rats that fought in the keep still generated an surprisingly, the Bowmen were slain. Menacingly, a Doomwheel arrived behind the Grail Knights, blasting one of the Bretonnians with its ratgenerated warp lightning.

THE RATS BEGIN TO RULE

To start Turn 4, Mat's Glade Guard failed a test scriin, the haleful meteor now making the Wood Elf archers frenzied. Hoping to break the Plague Monks, Jervis charged his Pegasus Cavalry to the aid of the embattled Grail Knights. The foulsmelling Clan Pestilens Monks held again and even slew another Grail Knight. The Wardancers charged the Clanrats on the Skaven right flank, themselves on the snears of the ratmen. The Menat-arms who had recently reoccupied the keep's courtyard were again brutalised by the ferocious Giant Rats. This time, however, the Men-at-arms did not flee. Perhaps most worrisome of all, the mutated tree came to life. With a horrific roar great tendrils erupted out of the trunk to attack all units within 12" - putting a wound on the smaller, non-mutated Treeman. The lone high point for the forces of good was Mat's Wild Riders smashing through the Rat Swarms and causing the Globadiers to scamper off the tabletop.

In the Shaven turn the Night Runners charged and cored a wood on the Tereman, the Dosombed crashed into the Pegaras Knights and destroyed them uttreft, Even Canham's two fields Miener tests had positive results for the Skyron – both the Skyrenslaves and the Rat Ogres gained +1 Toughness due to meteorcaused mutations. The formired Wood EIF archers disputched Andrew's second unit of Gainer Rass (not the mutated ones in the keep)).





At the end of Turn 5 the givent metatod tree tore up its orces roots and began to move down into the failun before the forest. Its tenderity slevo half a down Sharem, beat more owninoadly it threatened to drive the rature off one or even too of the (abbrevie construct) downing.

IT GETS WORSE IN TURN 5

Realising that his few remaining Graft Knights would most likely be values soon, Jervin wheted his enormous wedge of Knights of the Realm around the keep. If he was going to have any chance to Gaim he keep he would have to destroy the many Skaven units that had emerged on that flink. The desprete Mens-starms charged the Graft Rats in the tower, hoping to ware their numbers down. The Glade Gaund charged the Gray Seer's unit and the Wild Ridders successfully charged the Charnts in the courte of the battlefield.

To exergoncy disbelief, the Night Ranners skew the Treeman. This was quickly followed by the Grey Seer's unit massacring the frenzied Glade Gaural and the Clanarts on the right fluthak finishing off the Wardancers. As expected, the last of the Graft Rights fill to the Plaque Monks. In the keep the Men-at-arms were beatm and Forced to retrear back into the courtyard. The Gaura Rats were down to just time vermin and a single Packmance, but the Men-at-arms were down to just eleven models and the Brettonnian Damsel (who had taken a wound!). Those battle-crazed vermin had won five combats in a row! Only the Wild Riders fared well, dishing out nine casualites, but still failing to break the Clannats in the centre.

Skaven players Graham and Andrew had been chortling with glee as everything went their way. but in Skaven Turn 5 the luck started to turn. The random movement of the Doomwheel fell less than half an inch short of the Knights of the Realm. Next Grey Seer Skrikus' Scorch spell wounded seven of the Knights, but they all made their armour saves! Then the Warpfire Thrower opened up, melting 11 Eternal Guard in an agonising and gruesome fashion, which cheered the ratmen right up again. The Screaming Bell ran down (and over) a unit of Peasant Bowmen and the Giant Rats in the keep scored seven kills against the Men-at-Arms causing well-mannered lervis to curse "Oh dingbats", which made everyone laugh!

Objectives at the end of Turn 5

Skaven – Holding 4 objectives and contesting the hidden one in the keep.



Bretonnia -Contesting the keep.

Wood Elves – Holding 1 hidden objective and 1 objective that isn't real (but they think it is).



CLASH ON THE WILD HEATH



The Wood Elf Spelleneaver user the Transformation of Kadon spell to morph into a Great Fire Dragon.



The Skaven players are too busy gloating to listen to Alan's wise soctical advice!



Graham (Warlord Kutt-quik) coveted the keep to greatly he often parced at it between game turns.

DESPERATE MEASURES

Refusing to lose hope, Jervis and Mat launched a desperate flurry of attacks. The Knights of the Realm, headed up by Lord Ionson himself. charged the Doomwheel. The depleted Men-atarms charged the Giant Rats and Mat's Eternal Guard and Spellweaver charged the Clanrats with the Screaming Bell. If the forces of good were going to turn the battle around, now was the time to do it. The Magic phase helped as Jervis cast Remutth on the Men-at-arms and the power of the Lore of Life added five more Men-at-Arms to the unit. Perhaps now they could finally best the Giant Rats. Mat's Spellweaver cast Transformation of Kadon, albeit the bigger version. Fistfuls of dice were rolled. with a total score of 24 to cast versus 22 to dispel - and so Mat substituted his Spellweaver with a fire-breathing Dragon!

There were a lot of combate to work out this turn. The Wild Reiders Prote the Charants and rede them down, causing a nearby Warpfire Thrower to file as well. The fermined Gainer Rats in the keeps scored a gut-wrenching nine wounds on the Men-at-arms, but Jervis, notoriously unulasly with disc, made six regmentions saves (thanks to the *EarthHool* spell). In the end the combat was a draw, but the Men-at-arms had a musician, while (naturally) the Giant Rats did out So, finally the foreions Giant Ratw urer beaten and the wicked beasts were forced to thee the keep. The Knights of the Realm tools several wounds from the risklen: Doonwheel, but destroyed it, riding straight through and into the Higgs Modes. Fundly, it was time for the fight between the Dragon with the Zternal Guard versus the Skaven and their's Streaming Bell.

DRAGON RAMPAGE

This clash of titans was bloody and exciting. We lost count of how many would-be death-blows were parried by odds-defving ward saves on both sides. 12 Clanrats fell, as did 9 Eternal Guard. The Screaming Bell made so many of its unmodifiable saves that the shouting brought onlookers over to see what the ruckus was about After surviving impact hits, Dragon's breath, Mat's General (Lord Valerin), and Battle Standard Bearer, the final Stomp attacks of the Dragon did one wound too many for Andrew to save - the bell splintered to the ground in ruin. Grey Seer Skrikus should have died too, but, calling on the Great Horned Rat, Andrew proceeded to make enough outrageous saves to leave Skrikus alive, clinging improbably to his last wound. Though beaten and their Bell destroyed, the Clantats did not break

BLOODBATH AT VOLGANOF

THE DEFIANCE OF OSTLAND

The men of the Empire streamed out of the gates, forming up beneath their many banners. Overhead, the guns of Volganof boomed, blazing bright in the gloom. The Grandmarshal Oleg von Raukov himself led the charge, fighting at the head of his bodyguard, the Stalwart Bulls. The ground soon ran red.



The Reiksguard are led by three of the mightiest heroes of the Empire, the Reiksmarshal, Kurt Helborg; the Emperor's Champion, Ludwig Schwarzhelm; and the Elector Count of Ostland, Valmir von Raukov.



ATT MATTER

Kargharak the Bloodthirster crashes into the Bechafen Halberdiers in a clash that gave hope to the defenders of Volganof.



Volgar's Shadowmen harry the foe with bowfire.

Riding north along the Gloomroad, the Reiksguard arrived late to the battle.



Color Comment

The warriors of the Fell Legion and Grogg the two-headed Giant followed hot on the heels of the attacking Daemonhost.

When the warherd of Ul-Ruk the Red burst forth from the Forest of Shadows, the tide of attackers once again reached the city walls. From the battlements, towers, turrets, and rooftops, the men of the Empire fired volley after volley of bullets, bolts, rockets and cannonballs at the foe.

IN A RATADA





All the sagas mention the Dragon, Skulex the Great, for the wyrm caused great havoc on the battlefield that day.

UTITI

When the Daemonhost of Kargharak entered the fray they drove the defenders back, step-by-step, towards the broken walls of their city. The Chaos invaders reached the walls and then, like the receding tide, were pushed back. Yet time and again, the surging Chaos attack threatened anew to push fully into the breached walls of Volganof.





The gap in the southern wall of Volganof was the site of the climactic clash between the Crimson Reapers and the Stalwart Bulls.





The Stalwart Bulls sally out of the breached wall, followed by soldiers of both Ostland and Middenheim.



Zakhar, Master of the Coven of the Eternal Eye, cast a spell that caused great breaches in the walls of the city of Volganof.



THE END IS NIGH

With victory being starthaf from under their techting notes, the Skaver triad on mont a comback. Graham debated between turning his Wardrad and all-untoxched regiment of 50 Stornwermin to face the Knipht of the Realmwhomes boards to the Realm the Real of the Plague Monts – or shead he reisely With greetly thoughts of surpsione, Graham decided heating the Mersara sems in the keep? With greetly thoughts of surpsione, Graham decided heating the Mersara sems in the keep? With greetly thoughts of surpsione, displayed reises to built by a Skalm priorid, displayed reises to Transformation of Kadow – the Dragon was again a Spellwaver.

Kutt-quik and his Stormvernin dere the Dansen and killed all hur two of the Mena-atrons, but umits are Steadfast in a building and Jervis made his Leadership text. The massive unit of Staven was denied the entry into the keep they had been counting on. As expected, the charging Knights of the Realm abaughtered the Plaque Moniss, before the great unit of Knights sharmoff fail thi into the flank of the Stormvernin, Graham would have inthe chance of winning that fight. Although the Dragon was gone, Lord Valerin was enough to tip the balance in the Eternal Guard's forour. Grey Seer Sterkins and his remaining Clanats ran away, barely escaping. To add insult to injury, the mutated tree slaughtered a uni of Clanats on the far flank, causing a unit of Stavenslaves to flee the field as well, leaving behind an uncortexted meteor.

THE FIELD IS OURS!

In the final turns the Skaven had, be satisfied with once parting shows from the Warplock Jerzails and the Warp Lightming Camoon. In the end, the Wars-starts (solution is the satisfied of the keep and Lond Jonoro's Knights of the Radius Had another meteors. Wat, shows to beach this was Electrical Caural and five Wild Rickers, managed biold is halided notificity. The Wood Eleven would have had another, but it mysteriously disappeared when Coep Seers Skrikkan field affithe meteory and caused or the haling and the disappeared when Coep seers Skrikkan had and objectives — Ric Oger and Physical and the Jerzails moved to claim the surprotes at the food of the haliding monotory from the forest.



PLAYERS' PERSPECTIVES ON THE BATTLE

Grahum Denyes: Plot one of the plan wests wellaboly forms of the first youch raphy. His Gaars Ratis were particularly effective as charing out the catele, raphy for way wirds. Unformately, 1 finited to kill the last two of the casel's defendance, and they refuted to hangle, heaving me stuck outside... and what's that noise! The thunder of charing howeve? Over 2004 Perhaps on pfonosite pile? of the battle was forcing A ady to write mean and breefing rights) before agreeing to ase my Donnheel to before an artistant to the Asso.

Jerits Johnson Tve hen playing Wurkammer for years, but I near grow trind of its a severy game tills a store. For a start freenry came up with a great scenario, but this was a oph the start – the rest came out of our a start a play, creating a marrive we will all remember. It was great to win, but I cherish the highlighter, the sdfumertive we will all encoders. It has a second weither of the Damie in the cast, the hightime charge of the knights, the transformation of the Spellwaver into Drgand All thene things meant that our game was a mensable battle, and an uniforgethe score. Andy Kornicki, is the wise and wenerable lacker, it fails to use, in this boar of defact, to so use it use all Grahum's fault He how if the broad form a couple of man-thinga, even with help from my upper-fruided rates. Other acts of incompetence include refrining to help my Plague Monkis and U handd over breading rights, and agring my bell enter by the Dragon, OK, I don't know how the versponsible for that has one, hole Tom sure he is. Lackiely I survived the bartle, to report on his dimma filters to the Londy of Dears.

Mar Wael: That was definitely a stragglehow accord version could seemingly do no wrong. Though my Elves didit really pal heirs wight arows the building. Land the straggle and when they did hit their wish, they were? anything less than multiply – Th not forget my frenzied Glale Gaunt in a kurry. Fortunately, in the end, even a property for passing indiculous numbers of ward avec couldn's are the Skene numbers of ward avec could be strateging the skene numbers of ward avec could be strateging the skene numbers of the skene numbers of the skene numbers of the skene numbers was and the skene numbers of the skene numbers of the skene skene numbers of the skene num Jercenty Via were heat here the 'make faith faith we also that the data show the 'make faith and the second second were as a second were respective. Even show for the the second second seco

CLASH ON THE WILD HEATT



LINKED BATTLES

Battles are rarely isolated events, but instead elimactic confrontations fought as part of a wider conflict. By using linked battles it is possible to string a few evening's worth of games into an ongoing and interconnected event straight from the annals of Warhammer history.

The idea of linking games together so that the outcome of one battle has a knock-on effect to another makes for great tactical and storytelling battles. Such linked games will force commanders to rethink strategies and consider the big picture of their ongoing battles. It becomes possible to flose a battle, but win the war' by keeping the ultimate victory in mind. The games become a natural story arc, with the tale continuing across multiple battles. Before long you'll have great grudges, yows of the character and personality of your heroes and regiments. In addition to exploring the narrative elements, it allows for an occasional change of pace, such as smaller or larger games, unusual scenarios or desperate last stands.

For example, two regular gaming opposants agree to plus a lished buffer. They decide the first game will be an anthush, with the Beastner symplecial and Beastner and State and State Beastner and State and State and State and State Beastner and the second turns. Such a simple table, with the survey of game one arriving as reserves in the second turns. Such a simple fills, between the games is straightforward and cavey to track. If it turn-model strang unit of Angighe Errent tubes from casualita during the corner of game one, then in the following game, waveviewing Konther Frenzen tube files for less

Although we've given a simple example, such a buffwent merening and different tactical decisions. Typically tabletup commanders are rash when it comis to seafing their minions to certain dath, however a retrast in good order will start to make a let of same if your survivors can boktery zoor forces in the next buttle. And that makes for a different, hue njoyable buffe. Lakewise, chasting down and destroying noting enemies becomes paramount, even if they will have little effect in the current battle. If they rally you will see them again in the next battle, so best destroy them while you have the chance!



There are endless possibilities to connect battles together. A clash of pickets can determine which army is out-scouled, a relief column can be delayed, or mercenaries can be recruited to your ranks. It is enjoyable to create your own linked battles as it allows you to devise an interesting angle that exploits traits of your favourite army. Picture a first scenario that features a Skaven force sneaking into an enemy camp to poison the food supply or assassinate the enemy general, or a sudden Dark Elf attack on a High Elf Watchtower - if they can silence it quickly enough, they can achieve a greater surprise in the ensuing battle. If greenskins capture a 'Stunty' baggage train in game one, then the Dwarfs will only have enough gunpowder for a single shot per unit or war machine in the next battle.

Extra points for the winner of the previous game, a deployment advantage, an opportunity to recruit a monster, set up the terrain or even choose the next scenario are all ideas you can try our. But ensure that they make the next battle more enjoyable, not less – both sides need to have a solid opportunity to win. If the odds are stacked too far in favour of one player, the game work the mach fam for either side.

Games Masters & Linked Games

Linked yames percide even nore opportunities often set ag and ren by a games master. A GM can add imprompta links and were release the battle rages. For instance, if a weir suffers grierosus dramage from an eventy bat beldly helds on, the GM might grant the sorvivers the Hatred special rafe against their face the met battle.

SOMETHING WICKED COMES TO HAGERSDORF

The Skaven want to capture the town of Hagersdorf, to enslave (or possibly devour) the entirety of its population. The Empire forces naturally want to fend off the attack and salvage as much of their town as possible.

LIKE SHADOWS IN THE NIGHT

This scenario sees the vanguard of the Skaven army slinking into the town of Hagersdorf to prepare the way for the larger army. If it all goes well, the town will be unable to defend itself against the ensuing onslaught of ratmen,

ARMIES

The Skaven player can take 1,000 points from his army list. He can ignore any restrictions on Core, Special, Rare, or even character models, however, as it is a stealth mission, only infantry can be selected. This means no Screaming Bells, Rat Ogres, weapon teams, and so on.

The Empire player can have five patrols (see overled), each composed of either infantry (up to 25 models) or eavaly (5 models). Command models, such as champions, standard bearers or musicians; can be taken. He can also have a single character, which can join any of the patrols. Empire reinforcements can join later (see special rules).

BATTLEFIELD

The gaming table is set up on an 8' by 4' table with as many buildings as you can muster, set up to form streets. Place a suitable building (or marker) at the centre of the west and east table edge to represent gatchouses. A watchtower, guardhouse and wizard's tower should be placed anywhere on the table, but not within 24" of each other.

DEPLOYMENT

The Empire player sets up first, placing all five of his patrols. Each patrol must be at least 12⁶ away from any other. Next, the Skaven player sets up 6 sewer entrances (see the Scenario Special Rules). Lastly the Skaven player deploys his troops, either placing models within 6⁶ of any table edge or touching a sewer opening.

FIRST TURN

The Skaven get the first turn.

GAME LENGTH

These two linked scenarios represent a coll-planned and siniter Showon attack on an Empire toron. There are multiple cause-and-effect linked rules that give bab players opportunities to strategise – ainning to coin the advantages they think wold help their particular rick must in the user herette



Multiple Battles

This map is used for bash of the bastles in Hagersdorf. It is important to leave room for units to manocurve in some areas of the town, but not all.



There are a walitate of different knock-on effects between games one and trea. It is possible to gaine a paint, delyoment, ar magic advantage in the spaint, delyoment, ar magic advantage in the second game. But which over stull the Skatene and for, and which would had what defend mosil? And what defend mosil? And what thomstoce during the course of the battle?

SCENARIO SPECIAL RULES

Controlling Buildings

For this scenario a unit controls a building if it is the closest unit within 6°. Fleeing units cannot control a building. A unit occupying a building always counts as controlling it.

Patrols

The Empire troops that start on the table are in the nightwark. Those welfares ensure mothing from the wilds entres within the valid. The commanding paper must may out the roate of each parted. This is the path the parter will take unless starked or the alarm is raised. An example roate could be move forward to the end of the strett, down face, move hack down the strett. Or it could simply he a path that the parter fallows. The unit's fining, however, should be noted as it is important for raisine the alarm.



Raise the Alarm

Should a patrol be attacked and not break, their cries automatically Raise the Alarm throughout the city. If a patrol in comhat breaks but is not run down they will Raise the Alarm in their next turn, before they roll to rally. Once the alarm is raised, the Empire player can control his patrols as normal and get reinforcements (see the ssecial rule, blow).

Shadows and Stealth

It is night and the Skeren roops on this move quirely without being detected. To their ability to move quirely without being detected. This means that uttil the dams in nised, patrols cannot see units of Skgren until they are within "21" the runtom existend to be just dark shadows. This means no shots or charger can be declared aquins units that are not 'sent'. Once the alarmi is raised, however, the Shadows all Statilt role is on longer used, as jumpy patrols will happily shoot or charge at anything, even shadows!

Reinforcements

Once the Empire player has managed to Raise the Alarm, he can begin to roll for reinforcements. At the start of his turn the Empire player can roll a D6. On a roll of 4+ he can bring a single unit of up to 23 infantry or 5 cavalry on from the north board edge or either guardhouse (if they are under his control).

Sewer Entrances

These markers define where the ratmen have barrowed tunnels upwards into the street. An Empire unit that is not routing or in combat can automatically destroy a sewer entrance if it is in base contact with the marker at the end of any turn. A unit that deploys from a sewer marker must have at least one model touching the marker, and no model further away than 6°.

Watchtower

This is used exactly as per the rules found on page 399. Additionally, if a Skaven unit approaches within 12° of the watchtower, they will automatically Raise the Alarm.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

The first scenario isn't really about winning or losing, it is about the implications for the second battle. See below:

Gatchouses

Whichever side controls these at the end of the first game can use that board edge as part of their deployment zone for the second battle.

Sewer Entrances

Unless these are destroyed (see above), each sewer entrance can be used to deploy a single Skaven unit at the start of the second game.

Guardhouse Buildings

For each guardhouse in Skaven control at the end of the first game, the Empire player must reduce his army by 250 points. Also see Reinforcements (above).

Watchtower

If this is in Skaven control by the end of the game, the Empire player cannot use it in the second game.

Wizard's Tower

If this is in Skaven control by the end of the game, the Empire player cannot select any Wizards in his force in the next game.



Skaten Stormeermin

ALL-OUT VERMINOUS WARFARE

Whether or not the stealth wave was able to complete any of their missions, the verminous horde is unleashed upon Hagersdorf. The streets momentarily clear, as warriors from both sides rush back to their own battlelines before advancing to meet amids the cobblestone streets.

ARMIES

The Skaven player can take 2,500 points. The Empire player can select 2,000 points plays any of the patrols that survived the previous game (and were not routing at the end of the battle). Selections can be modified by the results of game one (see the guardhouse or wizard's tower, for instance).

BATTLEFIELD

The gaming table is set up on the same 8' by 4' table as previous, however the game resets as both idds rush back to their own deployment films (or disappear to loot). The Empire players' deployment zone within 12' of the northern table edge. The Slaven must be within 12' of the southern table edge. Control of the gatchouses or severs in the previous game can provide additional deelowment areas.

DEPLOYMENT

The Empire player sets up his entire army first. The Skaven player can then deploy, using the southern deployment area and any other advantageous deployment options they may have secured (see gatehouses, sewer entrances).

FIRST TURN

Whichever side controlled more gatehouses in the first scenario gets the first turn.

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for six turns.

VICTORY CONDITIONS

This is a battle to destroy the fighting forces of either side. Use Victory Points (see page 143) to determine if the town is saved or left to the not-so-tender mercies of the ravenous ratmen!



Skaven Plague Monk



CAMPAIGNS

Linking games through a story, map, or some other method is considered the ultimate challenge to many gamers. In such campaigns, single battles are only chapters in the ongoing war and there are plenty of excuses to fight out challenging and varied tabletop games.

More so than any other kind of wargaming. campaigns offer endless scope for players to invent their own scenarios and extra rules. In a campaign, players must decide how to 'run their world', incorporating rules and concepts as they see fit Many campaigns are about conquering lands with each player controlling many different armies. Each rival faction is attempting to build up his own dominion. strength of his armies and specially built strongholds. After an initial 'land grab' such campaigns then turn bloody as armies march out from their own territory to invade their neighbours. Such battles are then fought out with miniatures on the tableton, with mans or rules governing the type of terrain and battle (anything from nitched battles to ambushes raids, or full-on sieges). Conquering armies

forces must retreat, regroup and rebuild their challenges to a battle as a commander has more decisions to make that can influence his games. Skilled generals imgight be able to find a way to bring several armies into contact with a foe, thus gaining an advantage in army size (points on the tabletop). If the enemy can be outmancevered on the grand map, on the , tabletop this might translate into a player bringing in troops from the flanks or reat.

Campaigns can be complex, including rules for lines of supply, singes, allies, spies, intrigue at court, captured prisoners and random events such as plaques or rampaign gmonsters. Alternatively a campaign can be quite pared down, with only a few parameters influencing the types of tabletop games being flogth – such as where the battle will cocer and who won the last battle.

CHECK LIST

Here is a good list of questions that campaign organisers might want to consider before launching their own linked series of battles. Different campaigns will incorporate some, none, or all of the things mentioned, but it is better to plan and agree a course of actions so players, can get pulsing with an understanding of what to expect.

- · What is the narrative behind the campaign?
- . Who can fight in the campaign? Is it open to all comers or just for a select group?
- · What size forces will be used?
- · What are the aims of the different participants?
- · Is there a full-time games master or organiser? If not, can you rotate turns?
- Is everyone available to fight battles as needed? If not, are stand-ins available?
- · Is the campaign set in a specific area?
- Will a map be needed?
- · How will movement, reinforcements and casualties be addressed?
- · How long is the campaign to last in both-narrative and 'real' terms?
- · What aspects of the campaign must be fought out?
- · How will you handle alliances, politics, and intrigue?



GETTING STARTED

Before embarking on a Warhammer campaign it is worthwhile talking about what each of the players is seeking to gain. For those wishing to get more battles in against regular opponents there is no need to belabour the point with too many extra rules considerations. For players wishing to add more of the tactics a Warhammer general might have to consider before a battle, the focus of campaign rules should be about organising armies, chain of command, recruiting and grand army manoeuvres on a large-scale map. Players most interested in developing a story within the Warhammer world might spend more time fleshing out and developing characters and environments. Of course it is more likely that a gaming group will want a bit of everything, making it important that everyor discusses what they are hoping to achieve from the campaign.

Players should be wary of adding too many layers that will create too much note-taking and leave you no time for tabletop gaming whatsoever. The homest truth is that hots of gamers start (or talk about startingt) a campigin, but very five very really get launched, and certainly most divindle or fade away rather than end with a bang. That doesn't however, stop them from being the 'holy grail' of gaming to many wargamers (several of the authors included).

There are a many ways to play campaigna as there are players. Some like to make up the rules as they go along, others will want to produce a children level pack hefere even baginning. Our advice for those just starting off with their first campaign, is that it is a good late to keep the size and acope limited – say the summer rading season when the forces of Chaos attack the Engriete backer – anther than executing the whole of the Green War Against covering the under other of the Green War stringly may and adjes to tack into the action stringly may and adjes to tack into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and adjest stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and stringly may and adjest to tak into the action stringly may and string the action string string string string string string stringly may and string string string string string string string string stringly may and string s



Mighty Empires is a mapmaking kit and campaign rules system that allorus you to take your Warhammer armies on a crusade across yast realms.

With the modular, two-sided map tiles you can build any number of different lands – from the sandy dunes of Khemri to the Chaos blighted Northern Wattes.


GAMING CLUBS & EVENTS

There are Warhammer clubs, tournaments and gaming events across the globe, with more springing up every year. These types of organised play are a great way to meet other like-minded individuals – either playing games or inst talking about the hobby.

Up out look, it has been assumed that you will be prinsing with a sample and proof of firstead, and that you will decide how to organic the games on payloy discionarily the matter for parabeles. This is certainly how we must offer plus has it will be and events of how more exciting probabilities. The main thing that differentiates equation plus from the more realizing probabilities. The main them will usually be certain concentions about note havin it ploted and which may not more its how its ploted and which may not more its how its ploted and which may not more its how its ploted and which may not more its how its ploted and which may not more its how its ploted and which may not more its how its ploted and which may not more its how its ploted and which may not more its how its how its ploted and which may not more its how its how its ploted and which may not more its how its how its ploted and which may not may not more its how its how its ploted and which may not may not more its how its how its how its how its ploted and how its how

CLUB PICK-UP GAMES

There are more and more Warhammer clubs springing up; at the time of writing there are several hundred in the United Kingdom alone. How to go about setting up a club is somewhat beyond the scope of this book, so suffice to say that you will find plenty of advice about how to do so (as well as locating an existing one) on the Games Warkshow websit. Once you find a club, you're likely to find that they have some midelines or conventions about how games of Warhammer are played. The most common and useful of these are a suggested points limit and scenario for 'nickup' games at the club. Pick-up games are ones where two players turn up at the club with an army find their opponent then and there, and have a game straight away. Because it's not possible to arrange a pick-up game in advance - indeed, the whole point is that the game isn't arranged in advance! - it makes sense for things such as the points value of the game and the somario to be used to be prestipulated. This will allow players to select a suitable army before going to the club, and get set up and playing as quickly as possible.

From experience, armins of 2,000 points each is often considered and that of a pick-up game, although anywhere from 1,500 to 3,000 points per side sill allow for an evening 's battle. For pick-up games, any of the pitched battle, described on pages 140-151 of the Rades section make excellent exerains to play. In general, it's best to signific that the games are played using either the rules straight from the rulebook, or using a select list of club 'house ruled' that are used for all pick-up games played at the club.

Although it's perfectly feasible to ask an opponent if they mind playing a different scenario or with house rules of your own devising, it's generally considered rather bad form to da so a - nobody likes to be forced to say no! Far better to play your first game using the club rules, and then if you and your opponent get along, you can arrange a second genera at future date using whatever points limits, scenarios and house rules you both agree upon.

One of the best things about a teargamer club is being able to regularly drop by with your army and get a Warhammer battle arginst a new opponent.



BRING-AND-BATTLE

A 'bring-and-battle' game is one organisational step up from a pick-up game. Generally, bringand-battle games are un at Warhammer gaming events, such as the Games Days organised round the world by Games Workshop. Such counds the world by Games Workshop. Such events will have a wide variety of different things to see and do, one of which may be bring-andbattle participation games.

As their name implies, bring-and-battle games require you to bring along your own models to the event. Most often this is an entire army built to a given points value, but sometimes it might be more specific - such as a single Core unit up to 200 points. The organisers will stipulate which scenario(s) you will play, and which house rules (if any) will be used. As bring-and-battle games usually take place at events where time is limited the points used will often be small and the scenarios chosen straight-forward to set up and play. If using armies, we recommend limiting the size of the forces involved to about 1,000-1,500 points, and using just one of the nitched battle scenarios for all of the games that are played (Battleline or Blood and Glory make excellent straightforward choices).

Once signed up to take part in a bring-andbatte game, you will be matched up against another entrant who is doing likewise. From this point on, the game works much like a club pickup game, with the cavear that the scenarios and house rules being used for the event must be followed. This is because bring-and-hattel events will often provide certificates or prizes for phayers that do exceptionally well, and it would hardly be fair to win such a prize if you were sting different rules to the other participantsl

After you have finished your game, you can either go off and look at the other things on display at the show, or sign up for another game. It is a great way to meet fellow enthusiasts and see a wide range of different armiss. If you play quickly it is perfectly possible to get in three or more games before the end of the event.

Not all Warhammer bring-and-battle events follow this format – others might be group battles where everyone is asked to bring along a few units and take sides, or join a larger host. These types of games are generally exciting affairs with many players (from a few up to a few dozen). Such gaming can get frenetic!



Most bring-and-battle events match up available players and then track their results. It is possible to play many games throughout the day against a range of different opposents

Large battles are great for

to slave but are after only



Bring-and-battle events are often part of a Games Day or a special event in a shop or club. They give players a chance to bring a few units along and ioin in the multi-adayer maybem.

TOURNAMENTS

If bring-and-harding games are one step up in organisational terms from pick-top games, then bournment games are one step up again. The biggest difference between bring aud-barding games and bournaments is the a hournment to usually an event in its own right, rather than a part of a bigger show. The two-day Throne of Sulls Grand Tournament organised by Games Workshop is a good example of this sort of event, and there are many other Warhammer tournaments organised by Bobbiysis around the world.

Before we halk about the conventions used at a convanient, it's important to make clear that Warkammer is not specifically designed for highly comparison is to such an event do so in a spirit of freshy competition, where taking part is more important than winning. Remember the dot adapt: "It matters not whether you win or low, it's how you play the came," As long are you follow this advice, a Warhammer tournament will provide some of the best gaming you will ever have, including a chance to meet other players, see magnificent armies and immerse yourself in the hobby for a whole weekend. What could be better?

As with bring-and-battle games, the organisers will announce points values, scenarios and any house rules that will be used. You will play a scheduled number of battles against a series of opponents as selected by the organisers. Most tournaments award points based on your battle results, and sometimes other aspects, such as army painting or sportsmanship. At the end of the tournament the player that scores the most points is declared the winner, to the general acclaim of the other players taking part. There are variations on this theme. One popular alternative is the 'doubles' tournament, where you play as part of a two-player team. Our website includes a number of alternative formats and, as already mentioned. there are many tournaments being run by hobbyists, each with its own unique format.



At townwaments it is possible to see and play against fantastically painted armies like Ben Johnson's amazing Ore & Goblin force.

CAMPAIGN WEEKENDS

Enjoyable as tournaments can be, many consider camping as excitent of the primacle of organised gaming events. It's difficult to describe a campaign weekend briefly, as each one is different, being designed as a 'one-off' by the event a organiser. A campaign weekend creates a series of organiga groups and battise that affect the Linked Games and Campaign chapters weather. And they do it all over a day or true, so the stary of the campaign can unfold over the course of the event.

As a participant at a campaign weekends, you will amote certain by playing as part of a team, and you will get to fight a number of hattle against players from other teams over the course of the weekend. The hattles are usually quite similar to tournament games, in that the organisers of the event will fell you how many points' not observations to bring along and if any special house rules apply. However, in a campaign there are likely to be more restrictions and house rules being used into in the case with a tournament game.

At its most extreme this can even limit the reaces that can be used – a campaign about the War of the Beard might only allow Dowaf and High EHT armise, for example. In addition there will often be special house rules and scenarios that are used to recreate specific aspects of the campaign being fought. It's common to say that a team mays on include more than one of each named character or magic item, for example.

Campaign weekends will also have a system for determining how well ach team is doing, based both on the battles they fight and the strategic objectives they achiev. More often than nor, this will be shown on a large map that is updated after each round of gaming. Sometimes a player will be called upon to fight a lattle that he card'hope to win, but by doing to he will allow his side to achieve a more important strategic objective.

It is this storytelling aspect of campaign weekends that makes them so compelling and enjoyable. Although they are very hard to run compared to other events, when done well no other form of organised play comes close.



A gaming taobend featuring a campaign in Lautria might end with a climactic battle on fantastic terrain like this one, which twas featured at a Games Day in France some years ago.



The Leatria comparing allotted everyons's array to marchinto the jungle and fight for the lost treatures of the Literathree. It presented themed battles and interesting scenario special rules, rach as quicksand, ambushes by jungle-decoiling monsters, and ancient magical temples.

GIVE IT A TRY!

A you can see, there are a wide variety of cognised Warhammer events that you can take part in. There is no lower right way 'to play, har an endless assourcest of possibilities, all well worth trying out. Each type of humle effers an excellent way to mean few opponents, see new armies and communifers in action and play your fourthe gune. Cognisional play is perturban the planet of the planet of the planet humles against. Warhammers is a difficult of the planet planets against. Warhammers in a disposed points where the cancerlastic of other states commanders often in even more rewarding than wy victory humler Norms on the fields of humle.



Overall movement and territorial gains can be tracked on a Mighty Empires map, like this one which was specially built for a Lustria campaign,







LEGENDARY BATTLES

There are many battles in the bratal Warhammer world. Most are soon forgotten, but the epic conflicts live on, inseribed in history. Such sagas are remembered, be they written in weights tomes, recited around campfires, carved upon monoliths or enshrined for the ages in everlasting monuments. Kings and champions may die, but legends live on...

The Warhammer background is a rich tapestry of conflicts. Amidst these tales stride the mightiest of heroes and villains, their actions altering the course of nations, reshaping the world through warfare and bloodshed.

Many players are inspired by famous buttles from the Warhammer background – perhaps influencing their choice of army or their collection of minitatures. It is possible to not just read about such famous battles, but to just read about such famous battles, but to armies, herces, terrain and any unique battlefeld fattures or situations. Recreating one of the Legendary Burtles of marrarity gaming. Imagine recreating the newingening signed reprints and Technis Indenga pointing signed reprints and Technis Indenga pointing the Creat War Against Chasor or gaming Ore Warleed Goring Regard's raid im Revite Auron Verster Dwarf Kang Karadach's son was shared and milled to Regard's raid im Revite gaves the main signed the threes. J Recording such scenario, huttles in the hubars, can be a Heroteahan project – but thus are legendar bored.



The challenges of recreating a famous battle are manifold. You will need to research the conflict seeking details on the size, disposition and look of the armies and their notable commanders. Where, almost invariably, something is missing or isn't fully explained, the information must be extrapolated by the players. Suitable models must be found, borrowed from friends or a staming club, and remaining elements collected and painted. The terrain that characterises the conflict must be modelled to represent the fabled site. Finally, the scenario and any special rules must be devised to create an exciting game allowing for the possibility of alternate, yet eniovable endings. One of the challenges of a Legendary Battle is to see if you can 'better' the historical results. For instance, can Malekith, the Witch King, win the Battle of Finuval Plain. instead of suffering yet another ignoble defeat?

On the following pages is an example of a Legendary Battle – an account of the Chaos Invasion of the Empire in the year 2515. In addition to providing entertaining reading, we hope it inspires you to try your hand at playing an epic battle. The spectracle of such a grand game makes such battles 'historic' for everyone lucker enough to participate in them.

FAMOUS BATTLES OF THE WARHAMMER WORLD

Accounts of many of the most hands of the Warhammer world can be found in the Warhammer World section (to peop 151) as well as within every Warhammer Armins book. Some of these, such as the Barle of Finneral Plini, have extensive background in hoth the High Flyes and DAC Heve army bookel) documenting at least tome of the troops and duranters present, as well a docriting aspects of the battle infeld Orber epic battle will have film more than a mention in the timeline or a short correives buried in the history. Lizzdo blow are just at few of the many battles' mit Machammer.

The Fall of Xahutee	The first temple-city of the Slann is destroyed by the newly risen daemonic onslaught.
Karak Eight Peaks	Dwarfs, Skaven, Orcs and Goblins battle it out above and below ground at this ancient stronghold.
Battle of the Cairns	The Lichemaster Heinrich Kemmler's attempt to make himself invincible is thwarted by Wood Elves.
Battle of Hel Fenn	An Empire army and its allies corners Mannfred von Carnstein, the last of the Vampire Counts.
Waaagh! Grom	Grom, the Paunch of Misty Mountain, beat the Dwarfs at the Battle of Iron Gate, burnt Nuln to the ground, and was finally defeated by Eltharion the Grim, at a battle outside the walls of Tor Yvresse.





They eame out of the north, bringing with them fire and ruin. Not since the Great War Against Chaos had the Empire seen so furious an invasion from the barbarian worshippers of the Dark Gods. Is this war a madman's quest for revenge, or is it the beginning of the end?

There were many signs and portents warning of the invasion from the north that culminated in the bloody battle outside the gates of the city of Volganof, but it seems obvious now only with the hindisght of history.

Every gas, when winter first shacknss its icy grips on the top of the world, warband hunch raids southwards. The only warning of their sudden attacks is the blaring of harsh horns and belowed worts to the Classo GodA and as it has always been, as table hy the fathers of the fathers of the eldest who row likes. None can ensemble when the hands were not reaged by the men of the north. The spring of 2512 brought deadlar fors and more destruction than ny could reall, use for how tables table of the present that was now the beginning, for the dread power of Class was care gaing aroung.

The first nikers were led by the Sax-kings of the tribo of Norce, arriving cores the Sax of Claus by longalpin to and the containes of Nordland and Outland. Other, more formidable warhands areas on out of the Northern Wates – the fordiading area shows the Trail County. Stores of these theories areas of the Sax of County. Stores of these theories around warrises that oppoly bench food matrix theories around warrises that oppoly bench food matrix theories around warrises that oppoly bency gains that by winged momentains, creatures of Jagrah fluc had not been singed momentains (around and Ottermut).

The following years were grimmer still. The winter prought bitter cold, but life passe. With the hands weather canie ravenous packs of unnatural warboards, leaving their hunting grounds in the fire morth to savage here al annials or mual unwary travellers. As the snows method, the raids began again, quickly supposed in the same of the same start of the same start starts and the same start of the same start of the same start bit wave deferredees. The Imperial Nava sent an armada of warships to the Sea of Claws, braving the many leviathans and sea monsters that had begun to appear in greater numbers. Admiral Kroenheim led the fleet, seeking to sink any marsuders long before they could make landfall. Nordland redoubled its coasal partols, but Ostland took the most aggressive steps.

Commanded by Valleri von Randox, the first Elector Count, the grand principality of Couldnad prepared for the enset of wark. Won Randox was everywhere, matering new state troops, holdering the locater firms, and using lin invoso in our test entermy back the locater firms, and using lin invoso in our test entermy back back and the locater firms, and using the locater firms of Newszi neith. The first counter-state, set first his 2333, remaring late in the year with the locken provor of scene longibly and the careen beam of a Genet Hall as proof of the destruction of setteril count villages. May hald locate Mankow as a true beam cardiacity would due the inter first hardware, we ensure used and to be whether the startmetion of the first log people.

But what followed in the year 2515 still causes a shudder to those who survived...

THE GREAT WAR AGAINST CHAOS

The further capacitin of the Rules of Class recorded in percent latency and a 2010-2020, Army their the inverse as the Group War, Againet Chan, Le proming durbane, the inversion of the Northern Watters marring mathematics in the material model. The start of the Start Start Start and a wanter: Allogian energy energificant data Diamons stabile wanter: Allogian energy energificant data Diamons and the Morte Start and the Start Start Start of Hamilton and the Start Start Start Start Start Start Start Start, Start Start Start Start Start Start Start Start Start, Start Start



THE ATTACKS OF 2515

The attacks on the Empire in the year 2515 were unlike anything seen in recent memory. The roiling storms within the Realm of Chaos burst forth with unbridled fury. The skies blazed with multi-coloured lightning, seeringly vibrant against the oncoming blackness. Spring meltings brought a wave of northern barbarians, although in fact this was little more than the displaced tribes that had been driven away by the growing wars further north

Encouraged by the rampant Winds of Chaos, more attacks followed. An army descended from Norsca across the Sea of Claws. It set towns along the coasts of Nordland ablaze, but was not large or bold enough to threaten the major cities and keeps. Another even larger host plunged southwards on a broad front into Kisley, causing a swathe of destruction. Although much momentum dissipated in the endless steppes, some of the farflung warbands of that wave bypassed the border forts of Ostland and caused much havoc in that province. The third attack was led by Prince Sigvald the Magnificent.

Sigvald's army blazed through Kisley and into Ostland on a three month rampage until it was finally blunted at the Battle of the Temple of Skulls, A coalition of many Imperial states had come to aid the beleaguered province of Ostland, who, beset by so many dangers had put forth a call for help. But these attacks were just a foreshadowing of what was to come.

THE HEART OF THE INVASION

The most powerful thrust, the true black-heart of the invasion, followed hard on the heels of its forerunners. This was no warm-weather raid, content merely to plunder the rich lands of the south. At its head was Lord Mortkin, a favoured scion of Chaos, a king of kings and leader of many tribes. This horde of iron-bound warriors, barbaric tribes, and hell-spawned Daemons was the most powerful army to cross the borders of the Empire in an age. Fear ran before the Chaos host and in their wake was left only smouldering ruin and grisly tributes to their bloodthirsty gods. It seemed that naught could stem this evil tide and that a new era of darkness was about to descend upon the Old World..

THEY CAME FROM THE NORTH

Past Troll Country and far into the Northern Wastes there reside barbaric tribes divided into factions beyond counting. In the Imperial year 2515 these warriors united under a single banner and began an epic tale of devastation and invasion.

WAR AT THE TOP OF THE WORLD

Near the pair gene the landscape writhed as supernatural beings strained against the every shiring velo between them and reality. So gene twas the sarge of mugical power that pare energy leaked through the harrier. Those attained as magic immerating readil the heard by how willing to listen. Armise comparable, drawn to the pomoist of energy and about the same parameters of the same strained and the functional the same strained and the same strained for ultimate power. Success, failed by limitless energy, unlanded timing imagics. The unenforming word the Readin of all almagher animed the golds. If we no novel ayes of the all almagher animed the golds. If we no novel ay est repedformant to data mattery over the gathering howless.

WHO WILL RISE TO LEAD THEM?

Anonget the mightiset of duck champions, several did not join the tunniluous calab. Archana and this cills followers, the Storeds of Chaos, were away in the Worlds Edget Mountains, seeking long-lost artifacts. Quixion, the threeheadd Sorcerer and Horozerd of Treench, had shapehilite so that he might dwell in fis-off ciles of men and was currently studying under the Dazono-added sorcerers of Andy. Lord Mortkin, the Black-iron Reaver, was mired in glowering gloom.

THE BLACK-IRON REAVER

The backwore resorts about Lot Meritis, including the tale that for even failened by a tablak king issues table a Daenoon-necesbar and here states a baloet red by The word likely of the legands in that Lot Meritiss case one of the Soa-Beng of Nerses, logislid by the large of pance. In thus, then the king remained force scopage covered in geory, so the image for source, Whon the man that was to become Lord Meritis contrard into the trae south, being dependencies.

Whatever the previous (Eq. Lett' Meretin was much revenue in the minigite lated.: These marrows posses the proof pad as perhaps years, datada, see even contenies pasael. It is that time to estimate this associated for energyment of halonger, standing down the bayes of Padsent and Patter Dangues. In this down the bayes of the forecast of these Dangues — In this citizet for the bayes of the adaption of complex and product the bayes of the bayes down the bayes of the context of the bayes of the bayes of the bayes of the bayes perhapsing language panels for his land hand may survey to follow perhapsing language panels for his land handows of the bayes of the bayes of the bard.



Knowledge of the Empirity regulat attacks along the coast of Nanca had mwelled throughout the Northern Wasten. Some rules houled in neg and indignation, others welcomed the attacks, placed to light against mean anxions for batts. Lord Markinia, hader of the Fell Lapion, and rule of many warrings, had not spoken since hearing of the raids. By chance, the coasta town of Ulferming, the place heat had note called home, had been marks to the ground. Locking himself away, he brooded deep within is fortness of blackar inn.

It is said that in a bilter fary Lord Mortkin made a part with the Chass Godk When he energed from this wield imposed solutaly, he did so with a single-minded purpose. Lord Marcins strote for the with the full might of the Fell Lagots, on step the aimless fighting, unite the bordles of Chass and lead this duration accuse, a host of Daemons, under the command of the Bolcohistrest trapting, energed at the MarcL Lord Mortkins fraces arrived upon the battefield and began to iny waste to all who would not how before thin. Zakhar, the Master of the Coren of the Eternal Esp, was the first built in the bind of the Boay frominevitary to Lord Morthin. This was are asy claim to believe, in Lord Morthin models the other changes assist with a structure of the structure of the structure of the structure of waters, i. bot of Darmon and even a mighty followed Zakhar, pielofing in Fugue Army to Lord Mortin. Many lesser lends and burbarin straige sole series a layer to there we lander, but define different of the structure to there we lander, but at length and were soon unified how controper.

KISLEV IN FLAMES

As the separate armies under Lord Mortkin began their advance they continued to absorb barbaric tribes and newly materialised Daemons into their number. Those who refused to join were crushed or driven before the oncoming host.

The lands of Kidey, still everred in melting arows, were beset by displaced reavers. The countryide was allane as warbands hald waste to all they encountered. Many nomadic hense-tribes were able to keep on the move, avoiding danger for a while, but the discordant warbands were so numerous and widespread that no few of the horsemen were trapped. Hemmed in on all sidesy their blood soon warmed the izy ground.

Through the madestrom of raiders marched a formidable spearhead, an army that angled directly for Ostland. In the ruins of the seconded town of Teskagard, Lord Mortkin paused the endless columns and commanded Zakhar to perform the Ritual of the Shriveliled Hands, an accursed spell that would help locate the Beastmen and summon them to war.

THE BEASTS OF THE WOODS

Heeding the veices of his demonic advisors, Lord Mortkin windred to re-establish the old bond with the Children of Chaos, the Beastmen. Messengers role out to seek what lay hidden in the twisted forests. Fointed along trackless paths by sinister shrvitelich and talismans taken from the doomed people of Tzeskagrad, the messengers role in search of UI-Ruk the Red, chichian of the Langest wahred in the Forest of Shudows.

Before the herd's trophy mound, riders presented the hundreds of shirvigled hands to three cowled Bray-Shamans. The Bray-Shamans foresaw darkling dreams of slaughter and nodded ascent to their leader. With a thunderous bellow, Ul-Ruk summoned the warherd. Within days many cloven hoofs marched northwards to join Lord Morekin's forces.

HEADING STRAIGHT FOR OSTLAND

Lord Mortkin held his horde together, allowing none to stray. The whispered Daemon-counsel of his many advisors told him how best to cripple the Empire, but Lord Mortkin had other ideas and heeded naught but his own plan.

THE CHAOS POWERS UNITED

As the biodiliting of the mortal lands increases, to the Ration of Chang grouts. Each food to short in our sciencifical fashion, ever gaining momentum. News, the currying mayie of Chan because a sarring table that transared to exercise generate the last, the god ranging changes, Lost the opportunity of the vacuum generate has the god ranging changes are sense in a God and the last, where every science of last the distance of the same proceed most of changes in the last of the god ranges.

There was no who had long from on the path of the Deventions, but defaults and path of path and the first sense may use one and platfor height path forwards a first flatge first prime and platform platform height path forwards a first flatge for the platform of platform for the platform of platform of platform of platform of platform flatge results. Only Hand Medical Coales Theorem of the platform of the mere making single platform of platform theory of platform flatge. Only Hand Medical Coales Theorem of the platform of platform flatge. The platform of platform of platform theory of platform for where platforms and a platform is for former of blatter transtores. Theorem and a platform of platform theory of blatter transtores. Theorem and platform theory of blatter transtores and theorem and a platform to platform theory of blatter transtores and theorem and platform theory of blatter trans-



THE CHAOS INVADERS

With a tempest from the Realm of Chaos blowing at his back, Lord Mortkin marched south, at the head of warriors beyond count – armoured barbarians, fur-clad Marauders, immortal Daemons, and hulking mutated monstrosities – all united under the banner of the Fell Legion.

THE FELL LEGION

Since his emergence in the Shadowlands, Lord Mortkin has led the Black-iron Reavers. Many more tribes have been absorbed into the army that is now known as the Fell Legion.



Army banner of the Fell Legion.



BLACK-IRON REAVERS

Now grown many regiments strong, the Black-iron Reavers form the centre of Lord Mortkin's battleline, the black heart of the Fell Legion.



One of the most common shield designs of the Black-iron Reavers.



THE CRIMSON REAPERS Lord Mortkin's bodyguard, the Crimson Reapers, have been especially blessed by the Dark Gods. They will follow their commander into hell itself.

The favoured champions of the Fell Legion band together to form a unit of shock exalely. When the power of Chaos surged forth, the Fell Legion battled Dzenoms in endless tides for three days and three nights. When the black clouds dissipated, there were so many skulls surrounding Lord Morkin and lis champions that Khorne hinneif wan pleased with the deeds of war. The God of Battles and Bloodshed gifted the regiment with mighty loggerature.



The Banner of the Brass Riders.





Hundreds will die to feed the unquenchable fury of the Blood Banner.

THE DAEMONHOST

With the lands flooded with foul energies from beyond, the Chaos Gods favoured their mortal champion with a Daemonhost led by the Bloodthirster Kargharak.



Dozens of tribes have joined Lord Mortkin, including the Beast-Flayers, the Wyrmkin, the Brethren of the Crow, the Blackaxes, and the Kin-Slavers.



Many barbarian tribes distinguished themselves through the foul skins, fetibles, or leaving iconography barne unon their shields



Refet: Device



Left: Shield

THE PLAGUE ARMY OF LORD HACKBILE

Lord Hackbile has joined Lord Mortkin's cause. Under his flybanner can be found the deadly Tainted Ones, the Putrid Skulls and the Corrupters.

THE KLUDBURGH SAVACES

Amongst the many atrocities there was one act that stood out – the Horror at Kludburgh. The culprits were a mutated regiment, noted for inhuman acts fo savagery. Even grim men accustomed to war wept openly when they saw what was done.

THE WARHERD OF UL-RUK THE RED

The distinctive red horns (daubed in blood before or during a battle) mark this Beastman as belonging to the warherd of UI-Ruk the Red.



Captured banner used as battle standard by the warkerd of Ul-Ruk the Red.

SCOURGE OF THE NORTH

The tribe known as the Scourge of the North provides the invasion with a vanguard of light horsemen.

The Scourge of the North are led by their mighty champion Volrung Axblade.

LEGENDARY BATTL

OSTLAND UNDER SIEGE

Ostland is the northermutost of the Empire's provinces. It is a harsh land that breeds brave men who are tempered by battle, or quickly slain. Although it is dominated by the Forest of Shadows as dangerous a woodland as can be found anywhere - it is the threat from the far north that Ostlanders fear the most.

THE ELECTOR COUNT IS CALLED AWAY

After the last raiks into Nenca returned home late in the year 2314 Mainir ow Raukon, the Elsener Court of Oshand, received an urgent summons from the Emperor, Karl Pranz. Tansin wars file between the Enpire and Bertonnia, due to border troubles along the Grey Mouztains. Hoping a show of strength at the coursel would intimidiate Kang Lencourer, Kan Pranz recupsed that many attend, including Mahin, its most wardlike Elsener Coursel. This took Mahine from bin lands as the invasion bagan. PLe left coursel of the province to his sons, truntaing in their jadigenent and the arranged rot the Ostforn

SONS OF THE ELECTOR COUNT

It is told that Valmir von Raukov had many offspring, but this might only be rumour spread about a warrier-leader who was often on campaign. Certainly Valmir only claimed two children as his own. His wife, the Countess Ivana, hore Valmir two sens, the heirs to the ruling threne of Ostland – Vassily and Oleg, two men of greatly different character.

Vassily was the eldest son and the man in line to inherit the rule of Ortland, Vassily was widely regarded as frail and sickly. He was, frankly, an embarrassment to his warlike fathet. Certainly Vassily was shrewd and was behind many unercupulous dealings, In several cases, such as the disastrous border agreement with Count Theoderic Gaussier of Nortfland, only military action by Vassily's woanger bordher had saved the sintation.

The younger son was more like his father, a bold leader of men and a warrior born. Since achieving manhood, Oleg had led countless patrols into the Forest of Shadows, earning well his promotion to Captain. The youngest von Raukov famously chose to fight on foot, marching at the fore of his own unit of Greatswords, the Scarlet Bulls. At the brief but bloody Battle of the North March, against the forces of Nordland, Oleg and the Scarlet Bulls turned defeat into victory by decimating several units and slaving the enemy commander - Baron Nachtmann. In subsequent campaigns Oleg tracked down and destroyed predatory herds of Beastmen near Wolfenburg and cast down their fell monolith. It was he who toppled the Skull Tower of Ravenhill, a beacon to all evil creatures that was found on the edges of the eastern hills. After such heroics, Oleg was appointed as Grand Marshal of Ostland, a senior military leader under his father. It was Oleg who led the retaliatory raids into Norsca, including the ruthless attack of 2514. The timber and leviathan-bone longhouses of the Sea-kings were cast down and the chief coastal towns of Aarvik and Ulfennik were razed



to the ground. No longer would the dragon-prowed longships launch in reaver fleets from those ports. All of Norsca cursed Oleg's name, and many were the vows of vengeance proffered to the brutal gods of those savage people.

WAR LOOMS

Not long after the Elector Count Valmir von Raukov rode southwards, even before the snows of winter had begun to melt, there were grim tales along the border of Ostland. Ferocious creatures and many warbandy were wandering the plains of Kislev. The Beastmen that dwelt in the Forest of Shadows were becoming bolder and many dark things stirred in the night.

Even as weed from the north drifted in, Oleg von Raukov wasted no time in counsel. He deployed many of the newly mastered state troops into the Ostforts along the northermnost border and then led a sizelable force into Kiskev, joining with Pitr Sergeyer, a grant Kowile (Captain) of Erengrad. Here, with his fast-moving cavalay allies, Olog hoped to confront and destroy any invades on the plains before they could reach Ostland.

BATTLE ON THE BANKS OF THE LYNSK

At first the dot alliance stead firm against the these from the oorth. Individually powerful the Class workshow that desposited the isolaliaded individually assoring the quick-moving Kalovite covaly and the translard minick from Marshall Rankow to denory the manualon pineteen. But the side advanced, headding the arrival of a new force. The first-final Kalovite to colorson might of such a for Lood Marthan's quartical, Against the dorison might of such a for anyon, a classic. Since manners, the *O* anyon even colorson methys, a classic. Since manners, the *O* anyon even all chalox, convinced the Kornik to join the Ostandors in making as stand on the hills blow the Rever Park. It was to prove and theologic

Land Markias sent the horsemen of the Scourge of the Neth tribe to his right flank. His own Fell Legions formed to the front. Human strength and steel were pitted against Chaos armour and the corrupt gifts of their patron gods. The Chaos numbers were too great: With an earth-shattering charge, the Bassa Kidens, dark knights on metal behemotish, broke through the centre of the human anny. A massacre followed.

RETREAT TO THE OSTFORTS

The shattend Wagned Laceev back for Erraynal, only to let disked also the brite hereason of the Source of the North. Lord Morfinis released the Daemon Host to chase the lenges Mondaers, The solution of the cratures – housed advisibounds the colour of blocd and gladady also Daemons atop Mondaers, The solution of the cratures – housed advisition of the solution of the solution of the solution of the Posterio of the Layaka result. The indirect particular of the Outfoor proved no definese against the fury of ruck unstand The works of the Layaka result. The indirect particular of the Neuroscience of the solution headed for the advision of the messageness were set to markly providers – this and my Ligned messageness were set to markly providers – this and my Ligned messageness were set to markly providers – this and my Ligned messageness were set to markly providers – this and my Ligned messageness were set to markly providers – this and my Ligned messageness were set to markly providers – this and my Ligned messageness set the solution of the advisory for the my Ligned messageness and the solution of the mark messageness set to markly providers – this advisory for the my Ligned messageness and the solution of the mark of the solution of the solution of the mark of the solution of the mark of the solution of the mark of the solution of the solution of the mark of the solution of the so

THE HUNT FOR VON RAUKOV

Amistis the rain came a runnaur – the field-model tool that led the northern low suesking Oleg you Runkow. Everywhere the imaders sought word of any of the wore Runkow family. After crossing the Lynak, Lord Mortlin erdered his army to spread out to search and dentry. The Dearmon of Kraghark siles on they found in the town of Zandhap, Bohsenfels was hard-pressed by the silme-encarstal variarios of LAM Hacklebs Phagu-Army and only the timely arrivol of Baron Beckburg's army out of Fedragen present another massers. Couldna was horizon to fedragen present another massers.

OSTLAND DOES NOT STAND ALONE

Although not above political squabbles, the provinces and citystates of the Empire pull together at need. With Osthand under singer, many armines were mustered from throughout that vast nation. The roads resounded to the drams of war as many armies marched north. The riverways, the great atteries of the Empire, were clogged with ships roading to aid their belaguaged bettered

ALL FORCES HEAD FOR VOLGANOF

Volganof is one of the largest cities of Ostland, but unlike the provincial capital of Wolfenburg, it is fully enclosed by a massive thick wall replete with towers and battlements.

It was to Volganof that refugees fled, filling the cramped cobblestone streets. Soldiers too straggled into the city, leaving behind them burnt and ruined forts and towns. In some cases the hounds of Chaos were at their heels, chasing the ragged survivors to the very gates of the city. So it was that Lord Mortkin heard of this battion-city and ordered all of his armies to converge upon Wolganof.



LECENDARY BATTLES

THE DEFENDERS OF OSTLAND

Pitted against the surrounding forces of Chaos, the men of the Empire relied on gunpowder, steel and their own bold resolve. Would it be enough against the unrivalled might brought to bear by the followers of the Dark Gods? If not, what would become of Ostand? Or, indeed, the Empire?

VON RAUKOV

Elector Count Valmir von Raukov is away south at the behest of the Emperor during the opening phases of the invasion. His two sons, Vassily and Oleg, rule in his absence.

Bar NC'A



It is not until the end of the conflict that Valmir and his banner bearer personally arrive on the battlefield.

THE STALWART BULLS OF CASTLE RAUKOV

The elite bodyguard of Valmir's favoured son, Oleg von Raukov, are the Stalwart Bulls. Also known as Raukov's Own, the Stalwart Bulls are recruited from proven regiments throughout Ostland.



The Stalucart Balls alone held their ground during the Bantle on the Bonks of the Lynak Rivee: There they felled many Daenous and men rallied to their bull and crossed records basener. At Volganof their deade will become the stuff of legends.





The Scarlet Curs originate from the city of Wolfenburg



THE SCARLET CURS

The Scarlet Curs, a regiment of Halberdiers out of the city of Wolfenburg, guard Vassily von Raukov. Although not known for his military prowess, Vassily will still play a part in the Slaughter at Volganof.

The Gryphon Guard are the only coarriers of the City Guard that do not carry the Ostland Bull on their shields.



shield design burne by the Volganof City Guard

The banner of the South Torzer Defenders.

The five battalions of the Volganof City Guard are the South Tower Defenders, West Tower Guard, East Tower Marchers, Black Tower-men, and the Gryphon Guard. Their duties include standing sentry, street patrols and regular marches into the Forest of Shadows to clear out Forest Gobins, bundles and Beastmen.

CITY GUARD OF VOLGANOF

The City Guard of Volganof are like their city – weathered, but unbent. They are organised into five batalions, four guarding quarters of the city. The elite fifth batalion is assigned the Gates of the Gryphon.



Banner of Vislganof, tohich hears the city's Coat of Arms

THE ARTILLERY OF VOLGANOF

The war machines that line the walls of Volganof are under the command of the Tower Captains. However, they are trained by Kannonmeister Gunther Trundlekopf, an old Engineer out of the Nuln Artillery School.

Artillery crew are clad would in black with a Scarles Ball on the right leg. 'Unevasioned' new are not allowed to wear the insignia and are derivively known as 'black legs'.

The Cannon shoren here is Of Puddings, the longserving piece that guards the Gates of the Gryphon.

VOLCAR'S SHADOWMEN

Perhaps the most famous of forest hunters are the Shadowmen led by Grimal Volgar. The Forest of Shadows is their home and the archers are skilled beyond the ken of their countrymen.



Loud cheers went up from the wealls of Volgamof when the hunting horns of the Shadoween were sounded.

OSTERMARK VOLUNTEERS

Units from Ostermark included the Bechafen Halberdiers, the Moormen Blackbolts, and Mannstein's Manticores – Swordsmen drawn from Elector Count Wolfram Hertwig's own roval retinue.



The Bechafen Halberdiers held their own against the Darmonkost



Mannstein's Manticores.



THE FERLANGEN CONTINGENT

The survivors of the attack on Ferlangen gathered under Baron Beckburg. Notable regiments included the renown swordsmen the Oxhides, the Fireloques o Ferlangen and the Sable Guard.





he Sable Guard

The Ferlangen contingent advanced far from the southgates when Oleg von Raukov sullied forth. Many soldiers were lost during the battle with the Datemonbost, and only a few regiments over returned to Ferlangen.

THE TALABHEIM RELIEF COLUMN

The neighbouring city-state of Talahheim to sent many troops across the River Talahee to the succour of Ostand. The column-led by Captain Srugmar, was marching on the Right Road when they were ambushed by Beastmen in the Forest of Shadows. Although battered, several full regiments fought their way through to Volganof, entering the city before it was fully encircled by the enemy.



The Blackhots are Beast-slayers of remoten and part of Talabheim's celebrated Talabhastion Guard.



The Horns of the Ball - The rocin convenus that guard the north towers of the city.

Black Beauty - An obsery-barrelled cannon on the voest scalls that beheaded a maranding Giant voith a single shot in the first moments of the exempt mean bideaued.

Three Thunders - Battery of Mortars deployed inside the cartain scalls.

Spinning Bertha - Both a famed Valley Gan stationed on the south tealls and a lady of ill-repute from the cheapoide.



ICENDARY BATTLES

AT THE GATES OF VOLGANOF

With growing dread the city guard atop the battlements of Volganof watched the hordes of Chaos emerge from of the Forest of Shadows. The city's walls had never been breached, but now it stood surrounded by a foc entilike any other.

THE NOOSE DRAWS TIGHT

Remore of the advancing Choos writes run runpaut through the over-conduct of we bidgmore through the that cance through the gates brought a new tail of hornerdates and the particular second and the constraints advanced, that prisoners were rate alter. Services from the runner of Behendra and Zanday clinner at the Derrosso and montrons creatures had justed the Northmes, while of the Forest of Shukan out that no runs were were the The forsurvivon from Kladhargh erited to recount the attricts are barried to the second the structure with The forsurvivon from Kladhargh erited to recount the attricts.

In this atmosphere of growing despit a solid wall of unnatural black cloud appeared over Volganof. It grew so gloony that the surrounding Forest of Shadows could harely be discerned from the watchtowers. It is something wood swayed in the trees on the edge of the cursed woods swayed and shook, as if a great body of troops and fill beasts was guthering.

To the harsh bairing of a dousand horns, Lord Mortkin supported out of the blackest halows. The was thinked to hain right by a towering Daemon, a hat-winged monotroling that travering blockollsning challenge for all to har. On the Chao, Lord's left hovered a floating island, a great hauk of ground right from the rath her float was an ensuin for Zakhar, matchless Chaos Sorcerer and muster of the Cover of the Evenal Izy. Despite the terrifying wender inspired by such fül increments, it was upon Lord Mortkin himred Hart all eyes were increatively and the second by ensuing the second by the second by draws.

THE CITY OF VOLGANOF

Abought on somely as large at Childran O angel of Wildowse to search and y GAMME, likely of Kohn Monkowski (Kohn Gamma (Kohn), Kohn Monger (Kohn), Kohn Monkowski (Kohn), Gamma (Kohn), Kohn Monger (Kohn), Kohn Monkowski (Kohn), Mounted atop a Daemon-baset made of hatred and living brass, the massive arround form of the Choss Lord was wreathed in an auro of power so deradilla to gaze upon that if straug an onlooker's sould. So much clefrich energy was being channelled into the warrior king that indiscent thans flickered around him. Here truly was the chosen champion of those who-should-norbe-named. A lood of kings, crowned in finae. From the void behind the iron helmet came an ultimatum that choole across the distance, looming bud for all to here.

"Surrender von Raukov to me, or I will crush your city. All of Volganof will die. I swear to the gods your suffering will be great. You have a single day to decide your fate."

After speaking he stared for a while upon the high walls of Volganof before turning back to the enveloping gloom.

ULTIMATUM

Stunned by the obvious might of the Chaos Lord, soon all of Volganof began to talk. From high-born nobles to soldiers, craftsman to innkeepers, there was no doubt as to whom the armoured barbarian king had referred - Oleg von Raukov, true son of the Elector Count and pride of Ostland. So outraged and overwhelming was the cry of refusal - that Oleg should not be allowed to leave the gates of Volganof - that the few cowardly dissenters who would give up their commander without a fight dared not speak their minds. This stubborn spirit, for which Ostlanders have long been famed, helped to convince Oleg you Raukov not to give himself up - for surely the ruthless invaders would only slaughter him and attack Volganof repardless? The Ostland phrase 'A wolf at the door is still a wolf' came to mind. All knew the ravenous wolves of the north would not leave without much bloodshed.

The following day, when once again, to the blast of many horns, Lord Mortkin emerged from the forest he was answered not in human voice, but with toguess of fire. Every cannon atop the walls of Volgano fired a single shot – the muzzle flashes blazing bright in the permanent dusk that had settled over the city.

At such extreme range there was little chance of a cannonball scoring a direct hit, yet the shots seemed to vanish in the shadowy murk.

Still, Volganof's answer had been made ...



ZAKHAR UNLEASHED

Lord Mortika mixed his are and flame crupted along in Mole. At this greater the woods haved as the Forst of Shadowe disopredi in hidden hore. There advanced, in cold mass, all de origitamisis roops of chans – funccial hardwire in the disoprediments in the star light means and pangly limbed. Theils harched from under the errors, along with ubbacked Minosura and packs of Grants, smanness. Durating above the caropy strond grants and the star of the strate of the strate of the origitary strate strate blocks at the verthest formed up in compariso beneath faul bances and upon which were served vertexentions to the dark poners.

As the throng halted at some unseen signal, all eyes turned to Zakhar. The chanting of his unholy acolytes increased in pace and volume as, slowly, the floating island began to rise higher. The levitating land mass began to spin. rotating on an unseen axis. Seven peals of thunder rolled across the churning black clouds. Standing tall in the middle of the coven, Zakhar reached skywards, beginning to glow with a bluish nimbus. High-pitched maniacal laughter could be heard as untold energy coursed from the heavens into Zakhar's outstretched hands. When the charge could no longer be contained, the multi-hued ball of living lightning was hurled by the Covenmaster. It struck the walls of Volganof and blasted them asunder, vapourising stone and defender alike. Seven times Zakhar's magics smote the battlements and seven times they wrought gaping holes.

FORWARD, FOR OSTLAND

As the survivor picked themselves off the ground and shock off the dust of erashed stone, a low mount could be heard from the defenders. They had placed much hope in the tail and seemingly impregnable walls of Volganof and now they had been irreparable beached before the battle had even begun. Xet even as the howls of the northern imaders begun to rise, Odge you Rakwes typedie into one of the still-smoking gaps in the once proud walls. Load, he systex:

"Hold fast, men of Ostland. Where walls fall, there must stand men. But I will not be pulled from Volganof like a beast from a trap! Who will join me in taking the fight to our for? Who will sally out with me?"

Such bravery could not be denied, and everywhere along the still-studing studies to the started Captains and emboldened champions picked up the wavery. Every Ordinade known it was better to die fighting, And so, amids the looming dark, a new plan was hashly formulated. The walls and bravaches must be manned, but to the south, against Lordi Morkin binself, there haunched as strong a counter-starka so could be mustered. The Imperial forces advanced out from the branches

ALL-OUT WARFARE

So began the Battle for Volganof. Neither force expected mercy, nor would any be given. Heroic clashes and fellhanded deeds awaited both sides and many tales and sagas celebrate (or condemn) the acts done this day.

BLOODBATH AT VOLGANOF

THE DEFIANCE OF OSTLAND

The men of the Empire streamed out of the gates, forming up benetth their many banners. Overhead, the guns of Volganof boomed, blazing bright in the gloom. The Grandmashal Oleg von Ruskov himself led the charge, fighting at the head of his bodynard, the Stalwart Bulls. The ground soon ner red.



The Reikzyward are led by three of the mightiest herves of the Empire, the Reikzywarshal, Kurt Helborg: the Emperar's Champion, Ludzaig Schwarzhelm; and the Elector Count of Ostland, Valmir von Rankov.



Karyharak the Bloodthirster crushes into the Bechafen Halberdiers in a clash that gave hope to the defenders of Vidganof.



The warrisrs of th two-headed Giant attacking Daewow

When the toarbers the Forest of Shado reached the city too

Volgar's Shadotomen harry the foe with bowfire.

Riding north along the Gloomroad, the Reikoguard arrived late to the hattle



NOF

the hordes of n breached,

f harred and a of the Chaos so dreadful to aul. So much to the warrior and him. Here who-should-notflame. From the flame. From that ad for all to hear:

erush your city. ods your suffering reide your fate."

n the high walls of eloping gloom.

news Lord, soon all own nobles to was no doubt as to preferred – Oleg unt and pride of gwas the ery of d to lave the gates enters who would it dared not speak hich Ostlanders or Oleg von why the ruthless attack Volganof at the door is still a nous wolves of the soldherd.

the blast of many to forest he was tongues of fire. of fired a single at in the permanent

chance of a shots seemed to

N-S 12=60 = 8

From his observatory, the Celestial Witzard Klass Solmann attempted to abreart the Chaos magics.

000

111

When the Daemonhost of Kargharak entered the fray they drove the defenders back, step-by-step, torsands the broken voalls of their city. All the sagas mention the Dragon, Sk Great, for the voyrm caused great hav battlefield that day.

1888888888

Perhaps tapping into stairling Winds of M channelling the very j Bright Wizard Sergo mighty twin-tailed co conflagration at the fo oping into the erratically inde of Magic or the very power of Sigmar, ard Serger Pfeiffer casts a s-tailed comet of wat the fee.

The Chaos invaders reached the walls and then, like the receding tide, users pathod back. Yet time and again, the merging Chaos attack threatened anews to path fully into the breached walls of Volganof.



The gap in the southern wall of Volganof was the site of the clash between the Crimon Reapers and the Stalwart Balls.

Clad in irron, the Doom Texters shring off camoonballs and larch toreards the battered wealls of Volganof.

ragon, Skulex the great harve on the



The Stalwart Bulls sally out of the breached wall, followed by soldiers of both Ontland and Middenheim.



Zakhar, Master of the Coven of the Eternal Eye, cast a spell that great breaches in the tealls of the city of Volganof.

THE CITY BESIEGED

At Lord Morelita's signal the Chaos involves surged for evolulanging the singup work does not of birds Or Auchinea, all angere to wing slopy. They hoped to starts, through does of molecular the sponse of birds of the singup starts of the defendence were not variing slice. Handgement discharged frierum start, almost without resulting to a sing, find a gain in the wappen, handled in surger system, and the singup startegies and the start of the sing the solar start of the sing of frame main, almost without resulting to a sing, find a gain in the solar, ready to repel the attackers with multiple valleys or blass of gargender.

But it was at the south walls, where Oleg von Rankov led his counter-statck out of the gates, that Lord Morkin put forth his real strength. It was there that he released the howing fury of Kargharak and his Daemonhost. They drove deep into the enemy and there was much shaughter. As of yet, Lord Morkin Held in check the matchless warriss of his own FBL Lozion.

MAN VERSUS DAEMON

The velops from the value of Voganof field to blant the thrust of the consulting Densons. Knghenker, encreage lepson measure, carred a swather through the Northman of his own side in his has to exp to prise with the Fee. Regiments field from the sight of such monstrous range, only to be cat down by the inhuman first his in varguest. These stallabe leight read Bloodteners, pale prancing Demonstros and many more mightmarkits centums bunger for the downson of all that men hold foce. Regiments of Wogamof Cirg Gaurd fell, sain and transplob before the conslugate.

Belind the Dermoshor followed calcular, mend logs towers moving forwards by one power or foll end-mathematic. If the Dermos could sweep all before them, the leady machines and hope the immunity wals. Show from monotons and hope the immunity wals. Show from monotons the men of the Engine were driven backwards, but thy adjutifier software strepped up to replace the size. Against after solidier strepped up to replace the size. Against strengthen the size strepped up to replace the size. Against strengthen the size strepped up to replace the size. Against strengthen the size strepped up to replace the size. Against strengthen the size strepped up to replace the size. Against booms arout at up replace the size strepped up the size strepped booms arout at up replace.

At that moment the Bechaften Hallberdien's stepped forwards into legard. Herning marched from Othermark to aid their brothers, the purple and yellow-clud oxidiare entryed the battelline in time to repeal a Bocdetter charge. Scieng faits minitors disputched, Kargharat turned his attendions to the more O'destrumark', Undanterd, the unit read their hallberdias one, presenting a forest of blades. The emraged Blochtimer struck like a thunderbolt, his impact sensing bodies high into the air and shying the unit's Captain. Yer the provad soor O'Bechaften stord firm, scilica the units of their Blochtimer struck blacks more time, scilica the units of their batters of the structure of the structure of the structure of the structure of the block black in the structure of the structure structure of the structure structure of the structure beast again and again. Soon the Greater Daemon's hide was oozing ichor from dozens of rents. With all the strength he could muster, Sergeant Oberwald drove his sword hilt-deep into the hell-spawn's chest. Incandescent with rage,

Karglarak picked up the Sergeant and squeeced. Beneth such incomparable strength and limites fury, Obervald was pulped, untercognisable in detth as ever having been a man. Yet this strocious deed only inspired the remaining Bechtare Halberdiers. They hacked the Greater Darson down. He slew many more of the Imperial soldiers in his writhing death threes, but Kargharak did not rise again.

THE BRIEFEST OF HOPES

With the downfall of their champion, the Daemonhost wavered. Again, the voice of Oleg von Raukov rang out:

"To me, to me, men of the Empire. Press forward and fear no foel Victory can be ours, fight on!"

Once again the hearts of the Orthanders and their allies ratios and more again, the Interpretal Encore presess (harmonic, One of the monttons signs there was overram – it traphed with a down is heart the manageness, but those warrises reasonable encodes the manageness, but those warrises reasonable and the strangeness of the strangeness of the transmission driven back and much relaxed, put up a fersions fight many the the Garamondo and the Stabauer Buhls. At many the transmission from the mit fight question of the backet appet the Garamondo and the Stabauer Buhls. At many the transmission from the mit fight question of the first time, the near of Viajamo Hogans heaps have the the first time, the near of Viajamo Hogans heaps have the first might live to see the two light of the sum.

THE FELL LEGION

Lord Mortkin, his armoured form full to bursting with dark energies, knew it was time to enter the fray. At last the Fell Legion advanced beneath banners of black and red. None could stand before them.

The Black-iron Reavers were all but impervious to harm beneath their hulking armour. The Crimono Reapers, wielding commons areas, clove men in totain with every blow. The walls of Volganof shook when the lumbering Juggermasts of the Brass Nicken began their fundarous charge. There flew Skales the Grean, hventhing clouds of firet upon the black and white uniformed soldiers of Ordand.

As his counter-attacking army evaporated, even Oleg von Raukov could no stop the flight to the walks. Many of the surviving selders flang down their weapons and hed, but those nearest the young Grand Marshal and his Stalwart Bulls gave ground only gradgingh: This reargurat action allowed many regiments to escape to the buttered walls of Volganof.

BA

they Rea of li gift cold

The grau Cri stro and Ran flin

Th not blo wo box str Lo an

TAk

BACKS TO THE WALL

At last, only the Stalwart Bulls remained outside the walls, and they were soon pressed back into the gap. Wrice the Black-iron Reavers charged and twice they were repelled with much loss of life. The ground was slippery with spill blood. Oleg's blade, gliebd to him by the lec Queen of Kales, shone bright and cold in the dim light. Panting heavily, the battle-worn Gregatisond's waited for the next attack.

Then the hordes parted and all saw why the defondern ware granted a brief reprive. Lord Morkin, at the head of the Crimon Reverse, had arrived. Death was in their gaze, as they strode forth into the gap. Steing through swords, platmail, and bodies, Lord Morkin made his way straight for von Raukov, who, although weary with a long day of battle, did not finde, but leagt forward to more the attack.

Three sime Okg von Rankov struck Lord Merrikin, but i was one for menti mun o dostruy the commander of the Fell Lagion. Having wordbreid the smaller march furry of desperate blows, it was into twinkesh hino. Web's a single waige that would have fields a Ganz, Lord Merrikin snore ORg, whose body crampted. Advangh morthly wounde, the vulnar time struggled to rise, to strike once more. Mercileusly, the Class Load stroke upon this, sourtillow, surged on the fibean announced heel. For a single, surreal moment, the butfriot way stilled. Then, in the distance, came a thuring of hom.

The Relief Force

At the head of the relief column the hanner of Valmir con Rankov could be seen, alongoide that of the Reikonsershal and the Emperor's Champion.



The wanguard of the relief force was made of the entire Aliderf Chapter House of the Reikspaard, sent with the Emperer's Blezing.

THE REIKSGUARD ARRIVE

Beauing from the Firster of Shalpson along the Chonemed, with many kanne all and cone of York the Espectra of the Robupted arried and the field of Share. Shaling respondent is then its frames of the result of the Share and Shalpson and Share for seconds. Also heights for several and to Abstrate Markow Research and Share and Share and Share and Share and Sharamabal of the Especial Share of the Order and Research and the Especial Share of the Order and Research and the Especial Share and Share and Share Schararching, the learner of the Espectra of the Order and Research and the Especial Share and the Advance Research anongo Philer ratio rack Markow Research and the Advance Research anongo Philer ratio rack Markow Research and the Advance Research and Research and

POWER INCARNATE

Lord Morkin stud over the body of the fallen van Nudox, graing doom spoor the braken nan. Oleg was the pride of Ordina dan lad fall dought herwely against a for the could not hope to best. In the diamate the horne of the Ruksguard trampeted dought I was as the Dumono-shipers had promised. He had been forewared they would arrive at such a time and Lord Markin had had bid sch kall of the Bastanna warkerd of U.Rak the Red to doal with them, although this command had nadked with the Bodishtiery Children of Chans.

All he had to do was give the signal for the Boastman to balance out of the social soft and the solitory was assumed. He fits poser flow in his versit, the Works of Hage samplings are much do exempt be could be also have a source of the heat start of the soliton of the soliton was only the buginning of the rule burk. Already, for to the core-distance on larger burk of Damons was starting through the core-distance on larger burk of Damons was starting through the exemption of the turbes on comparing random burned to soliton and juris has the social starting through the turbes of the starting through the social starting through the turbes of the data much evergence to security and one that part was over.

Lord Mortkin had met every challenge. He had heard a hundred thousand voices chant his name. Now all he longed for was an ending. Lord Mortkin dropped his axe. With both hands he removed the helmet from atop his head, tossing it onto the piled mounds of the fallen. Loud, he spoke these words for all to hear:

"Wergild is paid. Let Volganof burn to pay for my home of Ulfrenik. Never again will I return there. My saga is ended. I choose now to die as a man, my will my own. I go now, too late mayhap, to the halls of my fathers."

With his cath spoken, the aura about Lord Mortkin dimmed, the bitter gods, perhaps, taking back that which they had given. The Crimson Reapers awoke from their amazement too late to safeguard their lord. The tide of battle swept over the Chaos chamipon. Once again, battle was joined.

LECENDARY BATTLES

dece Bread &

As Lord Morkin fell, the vol of gloom was rent and sharing may of sun show down upon the hitchickl. The disparante armies of Chaos were instantly shorn of the driving will that had bed them together. Rannour need across the killing fields. Half of the invades, including Stalkas the Great, broke the field, some skilling into the force, or turning upon each other, setting old scores through combat. We to mighty was that host, that even bereff or half in summer, the burdle was not red exicled.

UL-RUK THE RED COMES FORTH

The Beatterful Ul-Rich the Red had watted in the work for a ging that starce crass. Bookhod bysond limits, its betted rage biolied ever, He would win to longer, instead endering has used work of the starting of the start of the start of the starting of the starting of the start of the start of the starting from the work, the Bautten tripped the scale again in froured the workers. They show the definition travers of the invokers. They show the definition travers of the invokers. They show the definition travers are start of the starters are start. The start of the start o

WHERE FALLETH THE KING?

It had been the Scarler Cars, filled with hate over the doubt of Oligon Ruskow, that had overam the dependent Lard Morifori in the breach of the southern wall. The Crimon Regress, Lord Moriforni's bodynaudt, had here not stranda and too slow to intervene. Now their folds had filles. Energied at their base, the Crimon Regress would in the file, high yeag sets to blood. We have a strange the strange of the strange of the strange based on the strange of the strange of the strange of the based on the strange of the strange of the strange of the theory had the strange of the based and the strange of the

SKULEX THE GREAT

There are may says of the lands due dering the band sensite of langer. Where the areas possible is bey dynamic pass, shall shatter of the Nertsine, we restored Bory-Shama of the shart of the Nertsine, we restored Bory-Shama of the distribution of the strength sensitive of the strength sensitive strength sensitive of the strength sensitive sensitive strength sensitive of the strength sensitive strengt remnants of the Crimson Reapers. They heeded it not. Grief-stricken, they bore the body within the walls of Volganof and there, for a time, none dared approach them.

THE CHARGE OF THE REIKSGUARD

On the Engrene's orders the Reissguard had night-matched motivaries for each Outland and control the fibe. Now that the same the size of the horder hefore hin, their indeed, Kart Hellong, did not question itsi orders, but instal belowed out the only command accessary – "charge?" Before they could the size of the instance. There stored the remaining Domens, recapified the size of the size of the Hackita and its Fingen from, and instance. The data size of the size of the size of the size of instance. The size of the size of the size of the size of the instance. The size of the size of the size of the size of the instance of the harder matched data size of the size of the instance of the size of the size of the size of the size of the instance of the size of the size of the size of the size of the instance of the size of the size of the size of the size of the instance of the size of the size of the size of the size of the instance of the size of the size of the size of the size of the instance of the size of the size of the size of the size of the instance of the size of the size of the size of the size of the instance of the size of the size of the size of the size of the instance of the size of the size of the size of the size of the instance of the size of the size of the size of the size of the instance of the size of the instance of the size of the instance of the size of

Meal-board Jaggerman strand and paved on drow the size of allow genes. The Boss Kiste, doller of outdol don't, sought to grind the peide of the Enzylie boards steel-boows. Kurt Heldong, fielding the counting thather of the damage, eddend the Redsquared to lower lances and galleyed to next than. The archishilting coldision of these units meeting uses quadids only by the while both first of their contrat. Many fift, backed down or Heldong and Ministro Rollards that the difference. Since fitting and an out of the theory of the difference site of theory and variant of the tot as sing the maximum contrast and the difference site. Redser except.

With the fall of the Brass Riders, all of the invaders who remained on the field suw their hopes of conquest vanish. There was still force fighting within the city walls, but the forces that had not penetrated into the city now began to vanish back into the forest. But was too late for the city of Volganof.

FUNERAL PYRE FOR A FALLEN LORD

While the final clubes occurred on the plains outside the gates, inside Voignoof swirled a machetron of many smaller buttles. Warkands remain the streets and doperent defenders manued hantily constructed barricades. But too many of the invaders had stormed within the walls and everywhere the city burned. Critizens and solitiers alike streamed out of the gates eager to ease the hell within the walls.

For many long hours the Crimono Respects fought of Enzpire, solidare, Resattmen and Gillow Northmen who accured them of turning trainor. But they made no effort to karee, even a site flames, grown unchecked, washed over the whole of Volganoi. Eventually the tall lowers and provad walks collapsed and the flames scored the city, atterly comming the last fulfihal remanns of the Crimon Respers. And as, in the end, the wey city of Volganoi became a funcated pyre for the last of the Fell Leains and their might Lord.

AFTERMATH

Of the sense, for two row, see the summhal and next at two real for them to new robust one seense, it is not if well failed and its Flague Array carrent faire may through the ray of Vilgang, cauping through the mathematic branches and statisfier Relifice and thread and the Flague Market and the set of the state and the state and the state of the state coupied how robust of the state. The Ressame state of states of the state coupied how robust of the state. The Ressame state of states of the state coupied how robust of the state. The Ressame state of states of the state coupied how robust of the states of the states of the state of the state of the descent of the state of the states of the state of the state of the state of the descent of the state of the states of the state of the state of the state from the state of the states of the state of the state of the state of the states of the states of the states of the states of the state of the state of the states from the state of the states of the states of the state of the state of the states of the s

The homecoming for Valmir von Rauhro was a bitter one. His forts were in ruins, his lande despoiled. He weept openly at the lass of wife and accestral home. Bat many said it was the lass of his forward on that hit the Elector Count the hardest. In meanning, Valonir remains inconcelable, Vassily, found unconscious in the ruins, has recovered his health, but has not yet found the forgromess of his father.

Refer loading the mode-reduced Realizant load in Alded Kart Holey Indion error the molecular analy, Bill of general and the samoladed Hi trend in the longiture friend and sourcade-in-arrow Lading Schwarzhicher, "I wan Alabet Lander Li down tahle, and we dreer, Batte Yang are arrival agene the handfield that sums their viewsy — g'existing two sum call its J "- and Alabet Lander J down tahle, and a weak their see and alawa batter them. There years in the group, a per ball account in bying group of Watte manner of mass trus in d^{m} .

Ludwig, a man of grin disposition and free words was thoughful for a momen — for he though likewise. Notice had sensitioned it, but if the monoding array had anough tappletes, they wigh have merchod all the ways to Atalayf. Aftar a showphiful passer Ludwig said, "Maybe shart's it? Maybe, in the end, perhaps Markiw usual's one of show... shing. Maybe he was in a mone aftar 10°

"Still," Kurt Helborg said, already patting the matter behind him, "Take some states Ladraig. The workhands will be quiet for a long time after this battle." And yet, as the coming years roodd shore, this woold not turn out to be true.



GAMING A LEGENDARY BATTLE

The sheer size of the battle that happened outside the gates of Volganof makes for a spectacular gaming event. Add to that special rules for the scenario, the characters and overarching story, and you have the makings of something legendary.

On the following pages are details of the scenario, army lists and special rules that we used to create our massive game of the Slaughter at Volganof. This will allow a useful insight into how we went about recreating the hattle.

SOME INFORMAL GUIDELINES

Before fighting our Legendary Battle we added some naram to our game. These were not strict rules, but more informal guidelines to ensure everyone played 'in character' for the battle. For instance, it was decided that, unless we all avreed it made sense to do so, characters were not allowed to join units other than the one they were most identified with. This kent iconic leaders (Oleg von Raukov) in their proper place (in the Stalwart Bulls). It might be advantageous for a player to rearrange or group together these characters, but that would not reflect the role those key individuals played in the battle. Some characters, particularly the 'bit players' in the grand story, are at least partially free to roam around as players see fit (Baron Beckburg can lead any regiment of the Ferlangen contingent for example) Army selection was given some careful thought. The key characters and famous regiments were listed out with specific numbers and upgrade ontions chosen to reflect the story. It felt

too restrictive to complete the full army list in this manner, so points strals for the remaining troops were given, leaving the players some wigde room to use their model collections. However, no estra Lord-level characters were allowed, keeping the emphasis on the main protogonists of the story (the ones listed out). Consequently, a number of special character models were used to prepresent 'normal' 'hereos of the same type.



As the scale of our bartle was large, we wanted large units. Yuch scrimpersise blocks of 40+ models, which gove the game an epic look and fiel. In many cases we simply combined two or three smaller units in a single colosal regiment. This want' always tetrically wise, but it looked grand No additional magic imme accept those lined in the Ratter Lines were taken. This allowed on to concentrate on all the units, characters and special rules we already haid in Japis

HOW OUR GAME WENT

The preparations for our Legendrup Bathe took a considerable amount of time. Maya Wathammer enclusions here in the Design Studio gat involved in the production of the bathe, but particular mention must go out to Nick Hyno, Chen Fasch and Danacar Robes, for in the end it was their task to gathe, horrow, or pairt or gathed all of the immunerable and morganic. It are as unall efforts, to say the least Special effort was made to model, pairt or oneshow signify may of the samed charactem, monsters, and regiments. More of their impressive results can be seen on the Editoring range.

One butter conside the gates of Wagner's wear long into the right. In many ways it was assist the the straty, but with important differences For-instance, as in the background, Oleg von Rankos and his bodynaril wiejed on amy insukers. However, they surprised and and by surviving the buffer (strate, flow ware only seven left, but still.). Other highlight in solution of the background, the background on their strateging strateging the strateging in the transfer that a ware back spender up in the Engine lines. Land Mortline references that the strateging of the background on the origination from the background on the Back-iron Energy and the strateging pomention thanks to remnants of the Hask-iron Energy. The constructed two prevents the a Mork iron key terms Tar

It came down to the late few traps, her Chaos wow, It should be noted that this is a varied modern to the Energiero to sin, especially ZLand Mentkin strap downs to the Dark Good smillate I as our battle feasily relieful is Tim. That a strat drus as writed the hasher (harl 2^+ und uwe is surscend). He ended the game as the only unit in the courself and smooth smilling strate of sizes points for its holdsnets. This was the deciding factor. In the end the Engines courd 21 June 4-mont points wereas to 90 for the invalues, In this shall also the Engine.

THE SLAUGHTER AT VOLGANOF

The following scenario and accompanying host of special units and characters were created to refight the overused battle outside the city of Volganof.

THE ARMIES

The armies are listed on the following pages.

THE BATTLEFIELD

The terrain for the battle is set out as shown on the map below, using a 16' by 6' table.

DEPLOYMENT

The Empire players set up first (minus Volgar's Shadowmen and the Relief Formation) in their deployment zone (see map below). The Ferlangen contingent is set up behind the Gloomroad and west of the Gloomroad Gallows.

Next, the Chaos players place models in their deployment zone (see map). Any models that do not fit on the table can be brought in as reserves. Note also that only half the Beastmen are deployed in their deployment zone. The rest will arrive using the Beastman Ambush rule. See page 471 for more details.

Finally, the Empire side can place Volgar's Shadowmen (the only Scouts allowed). The Relief Formation arrives on Turn 3.

FIRST TURN

The Empire player gets the first turn.

GAME LENGTH

The battle will last for seven turns or until one side has achieved all of its victory conditions (or you run out of time).

VICTORY CONDITIONS

Only the special victory points listed below are used. Add up the points at the end of the battle to determine who won the game (an equal amount of points on both sides is a draw). Either player can achieve an instant victory if, at the end of any game turn, he can chim every condition on his list.

POINTS

CHAOS SIDE

- · Hold the Gryphon Gates
- Hold Gloomroad Gallows
- For each unit that is inside the Courtyard 5 The points are doubled (10) if Lord Mortkin leads the unit!
- If slain, the following characters are worth 2 points each: 2 Valmir von Raukov, Oleg von Raukov, Kurt Helborg, Ludwir Schnarzhein.
- If shin, the following characters are worth 1 point each 1 Vissily von Raukov, Baron Beckburg, Sergeant Oberwald, Baron von Blatten, Captain Schwarzhelb, Captain Volgar

EMPIRE SIDE POINTS

- Hold the Gloomroad Gallows
- Hold the Gryphon Gates
- Each von Raukov alive
- If slain, the following models are worth 5 points each: Kargharak, Skulex, each of the Chaos Doom Towers
- If shin, the following models are worth 2 points each: Lord Hackbile, Ul-Ruk the Red, Lord Zackhar, Grogg



The Gryphon Gates are treated as a single building with a capacity for 50 models

THE INVADING ARMIES OF CHAOS ORDER OF BATTLE

This battle list uses the Warriors of Chaos, Daemons of Chaos and Beastmen Armies books.

THE FELL LEGION

The Fell Legion is the personal army of Lord Mortkin.

LORD MORTKIN

Lord Mortkin is a Chaos Lord. He bears the Hellfire Sword and is mounted atop a Juggernaut. He has the Diabolic Splendour Gift of the Gods and the special rules below:

Chosen Vessel of the Dark

Gods: Lord Mortkin has become a mortal conduit for the Chaos Gods. As long as he is the Chosen Vessel (see the Defying the Dark Gods below) Lord Mortkin gains the

following: +D6 Attacks (roll each combat) and a 2+ ward save. Any unit he leads is Unbreakable and, as he leads a Grand Alliance, the range of his Inspiring Presence is 24".

Defying the Dark Gods: Although seemingly a willing conduit for the Dark Gods' plans, Lord Mortkin is conflicted. Buried deep, he carries a growing urge to renounce the path of immortality, choosing instead to die as a man, as he was long ago.

At the start of each Chaos turn, roll a D6 and add the turn number. On a roll of 8 or higher, Lord Mortkin resounces the Chaos Powers. If this happens, Lord Mortkin loses his Chosen Vessel of the Dark Gods special rules.

Death of the Warrior-king: If Lord Mortkin dies every unit in the invading army must immediately pass a Leadership test at -2 or be instantly removed (they are considered to have slunk off the battlefield or destroyed each other in combat).

THE CRIMSON REAPERS

A unit of 75 Chosen. The Crimson Reapers' initial Eye of the Gods roll is automatically the Slaughterer's Strength.



The Crimon Reapers

THE BLACK-IRON REAVERS Three units of 40 Chaos Warriors.



The Black-iron Reavers

THE BLACK REAVERS

An additional 3,500 points can be chosen from the Warhammer Armies: Warriors of Chaos book, excluding any choices from the Lords category.





Packs of Chass Warhsands followed the warching armies southwards, eager for blood.



THE BRASS RIDERS

One unit of 19 Chaos Knights mounted not on Chaos Steeds, but upon Juggernauts. Each member of the Brass Riders is a Champion (so each Knight has not 2, but 3 Attacks each). The unit has a standard and musician.

THE DAEMONHOST

The Daemonhost, led by Kargharak, has been summoned to do Lord Mortkin's bidding on the battlefield. They are treated as Trusted Allies (see page 137).

KARGHARAK. DESTROYER OF CITIES

Kargharak is a Bloodthirster with a long history of joining Chaos invasions – including the destruction of Praag, large parts of Ulthuan and Lizardmen cities of antiquity. Kargharak has the Immortal Fury and Awesome Strength Daemonic Gifts.

GREATER DAEMONS

Three Lords of Change, one Great Unclean One, two Keepers of Secrets, and one Bloodthirster.

THE FLESH TAKERS

One unit of 64 Bloodletters.



The Flesh Takers

DAEMONHOST

An additional 2,500 points of can be chosen from the Warhammer Armies: Daemons book, excluding any choices from the Lords category.

THE BARBARIAN HORDES

Lord Mortkin and the Fell Legion huve absorbed many barbarian tribes into their army. The majority of these surround Volganof, but some are deployed against the southern walls. An additional 1,000 points of Marauders or Marauder Horsennen can be selected from the Warhammer Armise: Warriors of Choos army list.



A regiment from the Kin-slaver tribe.

THE WARHERD OF UL-RUK THE RED

UI-Ruk has come to join the onslaught, but he bears the Northmen no loyalty. All Beastmen treat the other contingents as Desperate Allies (see page 138). All units in the warherd have the Beastman Ambush rule, although they cannot enter the board within the city walls.

UL-RUK THE RED

Ul-Ruk the Red is a Beastlord. He is equipped with the Axe of Men, and must enter play using the Beastman Ambush special rule.

GRUK THE MAN-HATER

Gruk is a Beastman Hero who carries the Battle Banner of Ul-Ruk the Red. This former banner of men now causes Fear.

RED PRIDE One unit of 45 Bestimor

THE WARHERD

An additional 2,000 points can be chosen from the Warhammer Armies: Beastman book, excluding any choices from the Lords category.

THE PLAGUE ARMY OF LORD HACKBILE

Lord Hackbile joined the Fell Legion to repay an old debt to Zakhar. The Plague Army is a Suspicious Ally (page 138) to the rest of the Chaos force. All characters and units in the Plague Army bear the Mark of Nurgle.

LORD HACKBILE

Lord Hackbile is a Chaos Lord. He bears a Filth Mace and has the Stream of Corruption Gift of the Gods.

ONE-EYED GLUGMIR THE BESLIMED

Glugmir is an Exalted Hero who carries the Plague Army's Battle Standard – the Fly-Banner. Any enemy unit in close combat with a unit including this insect-covered banner suffers a -1 penalty to all its To Hir rolls.

THE PLACUE ARMY

An additional 2,500 points can be chosen from the Warhammer Armies: Warriors of Chaos book, excluding any choices from the Lords category.



ROGUE CHARACTERS AND FORMATIONS

Not every unit was connected to one of the army contingents.

SKULEX THE GREAT

Skulex the Great is a Great Fire Dragon (see page 487 for his profile). We used a large Apocalypse Hellstorm template (the same shape as the normal template, only $16.5^{\circ\circ}$ long with a maximum width of $5^{\circ\circ}$) for his breath weapon.

THE KLUDBURGH SAVAGES

One unit of 30 Forsaken. So atrocious is the reputation of this unit that it causes Terror.

> To represent Skulex the Great we used the Warhammer Fire Dragon available from Force World.

CHILL S

COVENMASTER ZAKHAR

Zakhar is a Chaos Sorcerer and favoured of Tzeentch. He is a level 4 Sorcerer Lord with the Mark of Tzeentch. Zakhar can also call upon the power of the Coven of the Eternal Eye.

The Gown of the Eternal Eyer Zakar is accompanied by his achytes mountat atop a levinating bank of earch. Zakhar and his cover cannot join other units and have a single combined profile – that of a Chono Sorcere Lard unit + 4 Wonds (for a tual of 2). The Cover can Hover, generates an additional D3 power dice during each Chono Magic phase and is protected by 3 + 1 word save. Once perveny sare Zakar and his Cover can cast the §30⁴ of the Sover Thunders. Unformative free you, be's already does that.

GROGG

Grogg is a two-headed Giant that has +1 Toughness and +3 Wounds. Additionally, if he does not move, Grogg can hard objects, usually large pieces of masomy he has recently destroyed, but occasionally uprosted trees or enemy war machines. These are hurled in the same way as firing a stone thrower, eccept that all misfires cause a single wound to Grogg himself.



Grogg, the two-headed Giant.

Zakhar and his Coven of the Eternal Eye floated above the battlefield atop a hunk of ground ripped from the earth by proverful magics.

DOOM ENGINES

Through the aid of his Duemonic allies, Lord Mortkin was able to persuade Hothgar, the rogue Chaos Duarf forge-sorcerer, to build engines of war to assist in the Chaos invasion. Two of the enormous invackal size towers accompany the armies deployed against the south walls of Volganof. See page 426 for rules for these metal monstrosities.

THE BROTHERHOOD OF SPAWN

Perhaps it was the upsurge in the Winds of Magic or merely the comfort of fellow cursed souls seeking release, but the Snawn, so common on the periphery of a Chaos army, began to band together, forming many loathsome regiments of mutated beasts. For this battle Spawn are allowed to form up into Skirmishing units of between 2-5 models. Roll once for the Lurching Horror rule and the whole foul Brotherhood throbs, drags and heaves itself forward at the same speed. All Spawn in a Brotherhood can add an additional +2" to their Movement roll (so a total of 2D6+2) as the sprawling, tentacled creatures push each other along. like some sort of mutated stampede.



LECENDARY BATTLEY

THE DEFENDERS OF VOLGANOF ORDER OF BATTLE

This battle list is designed to be used with the Empire Armies book.

THE FORCES OF VOLGANOF

The sons of Volganof are eager to defend their home city.

OLEG VON RAUKOV

Oleg has always been a formidable warrior, but on this day he was either touched by destiny or blessed by Sigmar. He proved more than a match for many of the Northmen and it was not until he faced Lord Mortkin that his luck ran out. Oleg is a General of the



Empire wearing Dawn Armour and bearing a magical Ice Blade, gifted to him by the Ice Queen of Kisley. All of Oleg's Attacks are at +2 Strength and the sword grants him the Always Strikes First rule. Oleg also has the following special rules:

Inspiring Ray of Hope: All Imperial soldiers within 12° of Grand Marshal Oleg von Raukov are Stubborn. Also, as Oleg leads a Grand Alliance (see page 139), the range of his Inspiring Presence is 24°.

Fateful Destiny: Oleg and the entire unit he is with re-roll all failed To Hit rolls, however, they may not do so against Lord Mortkin or any unit he has joined. Additionally, Oleg has a 2 + ward save against all attacks except those made by Lord Mortkin.

THE STALWART BULLS

One unit of 60 Greatswords. The Banner of the Stalwart Bulls gives the unit a 5+ ward save.

KRIEGSMARSHAL BARON VON BLUTTEN

Only the three Grand Marshals of Osland and the Elector Count Valmir von Raukov outrank the Baron. He is a Captain of the Empire, athough his BS is only 2 ((on depth perception having lost an eye Eghting Beastmen ages ago). He has full plut armour, a pitoda and 3 source of Power. The Baron can join any unit of City Gaued or Crubton Guard.



The Kriegsmarshal Baron Von Blatten.

THE CITY GUARD OF VOLGANOF

These troops reflect the City Guard that have joined the force that sallied forth under Oleg von Raukov.



The City Guard of Volganof

Although they finally fell against the Crimson Respers, the Stalwart Bulls fought forcely and with much honour against the invaders. An additional 3,000 points can be chosen from the Warhammer Armies: Empire book, excluding any choices from the Lords category:

At the start of each turn after the first, a single 40 strong model regiment of Halberdiers, Spearmen, or Swordsmen (with full command) can enter as reinforcements anywhere on the northern table edge.

CAPTAIN SCHWARZHELB

The fiery Captain of the South Tower Defenders is a Captain of the Empire with full plate armour, a pistol and a hand weapon. Any unit with Captain Schwarzhelb in the front rank is Unbreakable.



THE GRYPHON GUARD

Two units of 30 Swordsmen.

aptain Schwarzhelk.



The elite Gryphon Guard.

THE VOLGANOF ARTILLERY

Atop the battlements of Volganof were many artillery pieces, some of which were particularly notable. They are under the command of venerable Kannonmeister Gunther Trundlekopf – a Master Engineer.

OL' PUDDINGS

This cannon is old and almost worn smooth. Yet it still delivers shots with a deadly and well-known accuracy. The first artillery dice each turn may be re-rolled.

SPINNING BERTHA

During the battle, the barrels got so overheard on this south wall Volley Gun that civilians had to form a bucket-chain to bring enough water to cool down the whirling device. Spinning Bertha can double the amount of shots fired (simply multiply each roll of the artillery dice by two). Up to 1,500 points of any combination of Mortars, Great Cannons, Helblaster Volley Guns, or Helstorm Rocket Batteries can also be selected.

THE FERLANGEN CONTINCENT

A strong contingent of veterans marched out from Ferlangen under the command of Baron Beckburg. They begin the battle on the north-west side of the Gloomroad Gallows.

BARON BECKBURG The Baron is a Captain of the Empire.





A regiment of the Sable Guard

THE SABLE GUARD

An additional 1,000 points of Core selections and 500 points of Special selections can be chosen from the Warhammer Armies: Empire book.

OTHER OSTLAND TROOPS

Many additional regiments have joined the fight, having marched from all corners of the province.



THE KLUDBURGH MILITIA

One unit comprising 30 Free Company. This unit represents the entire surviving population of Kludburgh. They Hate all forces of Chaos.

LECENDARY BATTLE
VOLGAR'S SHADOWMEN

One unit of 20 Archers (upgraded to Huntsmen) led by Volgar, a Captain of the Empire with a longbow. Once per battle, the Shadowmen can stand and fire, unleashing a double volley – fring twice with no penalty for their multiple shots.

THE FLAGELLANTS OF THE FOREST OF SHADOWS

One unit of 50 Flagellants with a Prophet of Doom (who can only say 'I told you so' during the whole awful invasion).



The elite Hantsmen of Volgar's Shadorsmen.



The Flagellants of the Forest of Shadows.

TROOPS FROM OTHER PROVINCES

Regiments from all across the Empire marched to the aid of Ostland. Some of the more notable regiments are singled out.

THE BECHAFEN HALBERDIERS

One unit of 50 Halberdiers. They are led by Captain Volkmann. Each unsaved wound caused by the unit champion, Sergeant Oberwald, is multiplied into D6 wounds.



The Bechafen Halberdiers from Oxtermark,



THE BLACKHATS OF TALABHEIM One unit of 30 Swordsmen. After many bitterly fought battles, the Blackhats Hate Beastmen.



The Blackhats of Talabheim.

KLAUS SOLMANN

Kum Sohumur isa Level 4 Celetial Watan He ian ankaiwo To Baron von Biotan. Sohumurk tuwer in Valgund is beckeden with an observatory and a shinnaring done that can disappear at his command. He can chose its forge costed in de gruer tabecer. The beam can only be be sent by spellcasters. It reveals a meaning diagone of the Windo of confine are individual. Any compy Worder picked out by the scen come more, shoot, or can spellca in his next piloy tam undos he first rolling or on a Dio.



Vassily has the same profile as an Empire Swordsman, except with 2 Wounds. He wears light armour and bears a sword. Guarding Vassily are the Scarlet Curs, a unit of 35 Halberdiers. The Scarlet Curs and Vassily von Raukov will enter play at the start of Turn 3 from anywhere on the northern board edge.



Vanily ton Raubot:

Klaus Solmann.

SERCOV PFEIFFER, BRIGHT WIZARD

Steps's has finded to impress any of this meansy in his appendixeding in the study of magic. Thus, for except has gained more notively for his predictions for firefigito tunk might lask. They means there will be a strateging of the study of the defence of Valgarof. In the most desperse how, when the dy fireface characteristic strateging with strateging the strateging of the strateging with sublest formers thest, stopped and gain gain gain gains and the strateging of the strateging with sublest formers the stopped and strateging of the stopped formers the stopped and stopped for the stopped form the the stopped card strateging of the stopped form the stopped strateging stopped stopped stopped for the stopped strateging stopped stopped



Sergov is a Level 1 Bright Warrd. If the within σ^{0} of a Warrdow Pheist he may, none in his lifetime, hunch his *Gray of Symp* fireball. No casting roll is required – the spell has irresistible force, but does not cause a miscast. The spell is a magic missile. Place the large template anywhere within 48^o. All models touched receive is Strength 8 hit. All models within a 2D0^o range of the template suffer a Strength 7 hit.



THE RELIEF FORMATION

At the start of Turn 3 the Relief Formation arrives. They can choose to turn up anywhere on either the western table edge or the southern table edge. They can announce a charge on the turn they arrive (measuring from the table edge).

KURT HELBORG & LUDWIG SCHWARZHELM

The Reiksmarshal and the Emperor's Champion have been sent by Karl Franz to stem the tide of Chaos. They can join any unit in the Relief Formation.



Two units of 45 Reiksguard. One bears the magical Steel Standard

VALMIR VON RAUKOV AND HIS STANDARD

Elector Count Valmir von Raukov is an Empire General who bears a Runcfang, the Dragon Bow, full plate armour and rides a warhorse. His Battle Standard is carried by a Captain of the Empire who wears full plate armour and rides a warhorse.

THE RELIEF COLUMN

An additional 1,500 points of mounted models can be chosen from the Warhammer Armies: Empire book, excluding any choices from the Lords category.





Lashing Schwarzhelm







REFERENCE

The final section of the book is full of helpful, practical information,

You will find an extensive bestiary that contains the characteristic profile and troop type of just about every model currently available, so you can get playing straight away or check out just how dangerous your enemies are.

The eight battle magic spell lores are presented next – an array of sorcerous pyrotechnics that you'll have tremendous fun unleashing upon your opponent's army.

Also included are more than 80 magic items, ranging from weapons and armour to standards and protective talismans, all of which are available for use in your arms.

Finally, we have created a handy summary and a full index, so you can quickly find the rules you need during your Warhammer battles.

FIND OUT MORE

WHITE DWARF MAGAZINE

White Dwarf magazine is Games Workshop's monthly holdy supprement, an essential publication for everyone who is interested in any aspect of the Games Workshop holdy. Modelling, punting, terrain building, new rules, scenarios and more can be found within its hallowed pages. White Dwarf has loads of articles hased on different aspects of Warhammer so you can get the most out of your sames, including.

- · News on forthcoming releases.
- Exciting and informative battle reports.
- Advice on painting and assembling your models.
- · In-depth tactics articles.
- A complete list of Games Workshop stockists in your region.
- · New battles to fight.
- · Campaigns.
- · Terrain building.
- · Showcase armies.





Many Warhammer Japres are lucky enough to line masr a Games Workshop store or independent retailer or hobby shop. In addition to being places to stock up on ministures, paints and supplies, you can find out about upcoming gaming or hobby activities. Whether you are token grants are jointing attys, searching out versan gamers to bufte gainst, or seeking a nearly club to join, your local shop is the ideal starting point and can either help you directly or point you in the right direction.

Games Workshop stores can provide help and advice on painting, modelling, army-building and tactics, as well as learning the rules.



WARHAMMER ON THE WEB

Perhaps one of the best ways to find out more about Warhammer is to access the Games Workshop website. This vast reservoir of information has partitures of every Wurhammer miniature currently available, painting guides, sample array first, gesting started information and lots more. You can also find additional articles, assembly guides, scenarios, previews of upcoming new releases and a library of finatasti hobby projects you can build yourself.

The Games Workshop website also has a store locator allowing players to find the Games Workshop store or independent retailer that is nearest to their home or destination. If no shops are nearby you can find the full range of products on our safe and secure online store.

www.games-workshop.com







BATTLE REPORTS

For many years, one of the most popular series of White Dwarf articles has been the buttle report. Each one of these articles offers a slow-by-blow account of a buttle, including army lists, maps and after-match thoughts from the players. The action in question could be an important historic latule from the world of Warhammer or it could be a competitive gradge match between two masterful tableco exercats.

Battle reports offer invaluable tactical advice for the beginner and veteran alike. They provide a rare insight into a commander's head during a battle, and make for action-packed reading to bot!

FIND OUT MORE

BESTIARY

The characteristics given in the following lists allow you to start playing games of Warhammer straight away with your collection of Citadel miniatures. Once you have chosen which army you would like to collect, the next step is normally to buy the appropriate Armies book.

The Warhammer Armies books provide you with the points value of each of the models, allowing you to plan and build your army to a specific total points value. The points values are not given here, as they reflect many special rules that apply to each model but have not been included here for the sake of simplicity.

To decide what weapons and armour each model has, take a look at the miniature and agree with your opponent what each model is equipped with. Note that profiles have not been included for champion models.

Troop Types key

- In = Infantry
- WB = War Beast
- Ca = Cavalry
- MI = Monstrous Infantry
- MB = Monstrous Beast
- MC = Monstrous Cavalry Mo = Monster
- Mo = Monste Ch = Chariot
- Sw = Swarms
- Un = Unique
- WM = War Machine



BRETONNIA

	М	WS	BS	s	Т	W	I	A	Li	Type
Battle Pilgrim	+	2	2	3	3	1	3	1	8	In
Bretonnian Lord	4	. 6	3	4	4	3	6	4	9	In
Damsel	4	3	3	3	3	2	3	1	7	In
Fay Enchantress	5	4	4	3	3	3	5	1	9	MC
- Silvaron	10	5	0	4	4	3	5	2	8	
Field Trebuchet					7	4				WM
- Peasant Crew	+	2	2	3	3	1	3		5	
Grail Knight	4	5	3	4	3	1	5	2	8	Ca
- Warhorse	8	3	0	3	3	1	3	1	5	
Grail Reliquae	4	2	2	3	3	6	3	4	8	In
Green Knight	4	.7	3	4	4	3	6	4	9	Ca
- Shadow Steed	8	4	0	4	3	1	4	1	5	
Hippogryph	18	4	0	5	5	4	4	4	8	Mo
King Louen	4	7	5	4	4	3	7	5	9	In
- Beaquis	8	5	0	5	5	4	6	4	9	Mo

	м	WS	BS	s	Т	W	1	A	Ld	Type	
Knight Errant	4	3	3	3	3	-1-	3	1	7	Ca	
- Wathorie	8	3	0	3	3		3	1	5		
Knight of the Realm		4	3	3	3	1	3	1	8	Ca	
- Warhorse	8	3	0	3	3	1	3	1	5		
Man-at-arms	4	2	2	3	3		3	1	5	In	
Mounted Yeoman	4	3	3	3	3	1	3	1	6	Ca	
- Warhorse	8	3	0	3	3	1	3	1	5		
Paladin	4	5	3	4	4	2	5	3	8	In	
Peasant Bowman	4	2	3	3	3	1	3	1	5	In	
Pegasus Knight	4	4	3	3	4	2	4	1	8	MC	
- Pegasas	8	3	0	4			4				
Prophetess	4	3	3	3	3	3	3	1	8	In	
Questing Knight	4	4	3	4	3	1	4	1	8	Ca	
- Wirhorse	8	3	0	3	3	1	3		5		
Royal Pegasus	8	3	0	4	4	3	4	2	7	MB	

SEMI

DWARFS

	М	WS	BS	S		W	1	A	Ld	Type	
Bolt Thrower						3				WM	
- Artillery Crew	3	4	3	3	4		2	1	9		
- Engineer	3	4	4	3	4		2	1	9		
Cannon					7	3				WM	
- Artillery Crew	3	4	3	3	4	1	2	1	9		
- Engineer	3	4	4	3	4	1	2	1	9		
Dacmon Slayer	3	7	3	4	5	3	5	4	10	In	
Dragon Slayer	3	6	3	4	5	2	4	3	-10	In	
Dwarf Lord			4	4	5	3	4	4	10	In .	
Flame Cannon							-		-	WM	
- Artillery Crew	3	4	3	3	4	1	2	1	9		
Grudge Thrower					7	3				WM	
- Artillery Crew		+	3	3	4	1	2	1	9		
- Engineer	3	4	4		4		2	1	9		
Gyrocopter		4		4	5	3	2	2	9	Un	-
Hammerer	3	5	3	4	4	1	2	1	9	In	
Ironbreaker	3	5	3	4	4		2		9	In	-

	м	WS	BS	S	Т	W	1	A	Ld	Type
Josef Bugman	3	6	5	4	5	2	4	3	10	In
Longbeard	3	5	3	4	4	1	2		9	In
Master Engineer	3	4	5	4	4	2	2	2	9	In
Miner	3	-4	3	3	4	1	2	1	9	In
Organ Gun					7	3				WM
- Artillery Crew	3	4	3	3	4	1	2	1	9	
Quarreller	3	4	3	3	4	1	2	1	9	In
Runelord	3	6	4	4	5	3	3	2	9	In
Runesmith	3	5	4	4	4	2	2	2	9	In
Thane		6	4	4	5	2		3	9	In
Thorek Ironbrow	3	6	4	4	5	3	. 3	2+1	10	Un
 Kraggi 	3	4	3	3	4	1	2	1	9	
- Anvil Guard	3	5	3	4	4	1	2	1	9	
Thorgrim	3		6	4	5	7	4	4	10	Un
- Thronebearers	3	5	3	4			3	4		
Thunderer	3	4	3	3	4	1	2	1	9	In
Troll Slayer	3	4	3	3	4	1	2	1	10	In
Warrior	3	4	3	3	4	1	2	1	9	In

TOMB KINGS

	М	WS	BS	s	т	W	I	A	Ld	Type
Bone Giant	6	3	0	6	5	6	1	4	8	Ma
Carrion	2	3	0	3	4	2	3	2	4	WB
Charice				4	4	3				Ch
- Skeleton		3	2	3			2			
- Skeletal Steed	8	2		3			2	I		
Icon Bearer	4	4	3	4	4	2	3	2	8	In
Khulida	6	6	4	4	5	3	9	3	10	In
Liche High Priest	4	3	3	3	3	3	2	1	9	In
Liche Priest	4	3		3	3	2	2	1	8	In
- Casket Guard	4	3	3	4	4		3	2	8	
Scr. Skull Catapult					7	3				WM
- Skeleton	4	2	2	3	3	1	2	1	3	
Settra	4	7	4	5	5	4	4	5	10	In
- Chariot				5	5	5				Ch
- Skeletal Steed	8	2					2			

	М	WS	BS	S	Т	W	1	Α	Ld	Type
Skeletal Steed	8	2	0	3	3	1	2	1	5	WB
Skeleton Horseman	4	2	2	3	3	1	2	1	5	Ca
- Skeletal Steed	8		0	3	3	1	2		5	
Skeleton	4	2	2	3	3	1	2	1	3	In
Tomb Guard	4	3	3	4	4	1	3	1	8	In
Tomb King	4	6	4	5	5	4		4	10	In
Tomb Prince	4	5	4	4	5	3	3	3	9	In
Tomb Scorpion	7	4	0	5	5	4	3	4	8	MB
Tomb Swarm	4	3	0	2	2	5	1	5	10	Sik
Ushabti	5	4	0	6	4	3	3	1	10	MI



1000

EMPIRE

	M	WS	BS	5	Т	W	I	A	Ld	Type
Arch Lector	4	4	3	4	4	3	4	2	9	In
Archer	4	3	3	3	3	1	3	1	7	In
Balthasar Gelt	4	3	3	3	4	3	3	1	8	In
Battle Wizard	4	3	3	3	3	2	3	1	7	In
Captain	4	5	5	4	4	2	5	3	8	In
Crossbowman	4	3	3	3	3	1	3	1	7	In
Emperor Karl Franz	4	6	5	4	4	3	6	4	10	In
Deathclaw	6	6		5	5	4	5	4	8	Mo
Flagellant	4	2	2	3	.3	1	3	1	10	In
Free Company Fighter	4	3	3	3	3	1	3	1	7	In
General of the	4	5	5	4	+	3	5	3	9	In
Empire								_	_	
Grand Master	4	6	3	4	+		-6	+	9	Ca
- Warhorse	8	3	0	3	3	1	3	1	5	-
Grand Theogonist	4	5	3	4	4	3	4	2	9	In
Great Cannon						3				WM
- Crewman	÷	3	3	3	3	1	3	1	7	-
Greatsword	4	4	3	3	3	1	3	1	8	In
Griffon	6	5		5	5	+	5	4	7	Mo
Halberdier	4				3	1	3	1	7	In
Handgunner	4	3	3	3	3	1	3	1	7	In
Helblaster Volley Gu	1 -				7	3				WM
- Crewman	4	3	3	3	3	1	3	1	7	
Helstorm R. Battery						3				WM
- Crewman	4	3	3	3	3	1	3	1	7	
Imperial Dragon	6	6	-	- 6	6	6	3	5	8	Mo
Imperial Pegasus	8	3	-	4	4	3	4	2	6	MB
Knight of the	4	4	3	4	3	1	3	1	8	Ca
Inner Circle									ę	
- Warborse	- 8	- 3	0	3	3	1	3	. 1	5	

	M	WS	BS	S	T	W	1	A	Ld	Type
Knight	4	4	3	3	3	1	3		8	Ca
- Warhorse	8		0	3	3			1	5	
Kurt Helborg	4	7	3	4	-4	3	6	4	9	Ca
- Warhorse	8	3	0	3	3	1	3	1	5	
Ludwig	4	6	5	4	4	2	3	3	8	Ca
Schwarzhelm										
- Warborse	8	3	0	3	3	1	3	1	5	
Luthor Huss	4	5	3	4	4	2	4	2	8	Ca
- Warhorse	8	3	0	3	3	1	3	1	5	
Master Engineer	4	3	4	3	3	2	3	1	7	In
Mortar					7	3				WM
- Crewman	4	3	3	3	3	1	3	1	7	
Outrider	4	3	4	3	3	1	3	1		Ca
- Warborse	8	3	0	3	3	1	3	1	5	
Pistolier	4	3	3	3	3	1	3	1	7	Ca
- Warhorse	8	3	0	3	3	1	3	1	5	
Spearman	4	3	3	3	3	1	3	1	7	In
Steam Tank	specia	1 -		6	6	10	- 1	speci	al -	Un ,
- Engineer Cmdr.			4						10	Un
Swordsman	4	4	3	3	3	1	4	1		In
The War Altar				5	5	5				Ch
- Warhorse	8	3		3			3	1	5	
Warrior Priest	4	4	3	4	4	2	4	2	8	In
Wizard Lord	4	3	3	3	4	3	3	1	8	In



HIGH ELVES

	М	WS	BS	S	Т	W	Ι	Å	Ld	Type
Alith Anar	5	7	7	4	3	3	9	4	10	In
Archer	5	4	4	3	3	1	5	1	8	In
Archmage	5	4	4			3	5		9	In
Bolt Thrower					7	3				WM
- Crew	5	4	.4	3	3	1	5	1	8	
Caradryan	5	6	6	+				3	9	In
Dragon Mage	5	4	4	3	3	2	6	2	8	In
Dragon Prince	5	5	4	3	3		6		9	Ca
- Elven steed	9	3	0				4	1	5	
Ellurian Reaver	5	4	4	3	3	1	5	1	8	Ca
- Elven steed	9	3	0	3	3	1	4	1	5	
Eltharion	5	8	6	4	3		8	4	10	In
- Stormwing	6	6	0	5		5		4	8	Mo
Great Eagle	2	5	0	4	4	3	4	2	8	MB



	м	WS	BS	s	Т	W	I	A	Ld	Type
Griffon	6	5	.0	5	5	4	5	4	7	Mo
Korhil	5	6	6	4	3	2		3	9	In
Lion Chariot				5	4	4				Ch
- Crew		5	4	4			5	1	8	
- War Lions	- 8	5		5			4	2	-	
Mage	5	4	4	3	3	2	5	1	8	In
Moon Dragon	6	6	0	6	6	6	3	5	8	Mo
Noble	5	6	6	4	3	2	7	3	9	In
Phoenix Guard	3	5	4	3	3	1	6	1	9	In
Prince	5		6	4	3	3	8	4	10	In
Sea Guard	5	4	4	3	3	1	5	1	8	In
Shadow Warrior	5	5	4				5	1	8	In
Spearman	5	4	4	3	3	1	5	1	8	In
Silver Helm	5	4	4	3	3		5	4	8	Ca
- Elven steed	9	3	0	3	3	1	4	1	- 5	
Star Dragon	- 6	7	0	7	6	7	2	6	9	Mo
Sun Dragon	6	5	0	5	6	3	4	4	7	Mo
Sword Master	5	6	4	3	3	1	5	2	8	In
Techs	5	3	3	2	2	3	5	1	10	In
Tiranoc Chariot				5	4	4				Ch
- Crew		- 4	-4	3			5	1	8	
- Elven steed	9	3		3			4			
Tyrion	5	9		4		4	10	4	10	MC
- Malhandir	10		0	4	3	1	5	2	7	
White Lion	5	5	4	4	3	1	5	1	8	In

WOOD ELVES

	м	WS	BS	5	т	W	I	A	Ld	Type
Branchwraith	5	6	0	4	4	2	8	3	8	In
Dryad	5	- 4	0	4	4	1	6	2	8	In
Drycha	5	7	4	5	4	3	8	5	8	In
Eternal Guard	5	5	4	3	3	1	5	1	9	In
Forest Dragon	6	6	0	6	6	6	3	5	8	Mo
Glade Guard	5	4	4	3	3	1	5	1	8	In
Glade Rider	5	4	4		3	1	5		8	Ca
- Elven Steed	9	3	0	3	3	1	-4	1	5	
Great Eagle	2	5	0	4	4	3	4	2	8	MB
Great Stag	9	5	0	5	4	3	4	2	7	MB
Highborn	5		6	4	3	3	8	4	10	In
Naestra	5	6	6	4	3	2		3	9	In
- Arahan	5	6	6	4	3	2	7	3	9	In
Noble	5	6	6	4	3	2	7	3	9	In

	М	WS	BS	s	Т	W	I	A	Ld	Type
Orion	9	8	5	5	5	6	9	6	10	MI
- Hound	9	4	0	4	3	1	4	1	6	WB
Spellsinger	5	4	4	3	3	2	5	1	8	In
Spellweaver	5	4	4	3	3	3	5	1	9	In
Tree Kin	5	4	θ	5	5	3		3	8	MI
Treeman Ancient	5	5	0	6	6	6	2	5	9	Mo
Treeman	5	3	0	6	6	6	2	5	8	Mo
Unicorn	10	5	0	4	4	3	5	2	8	MB
Wardancer	5	6	4		3	1	6	1	8	In
Warhawk Rider	5	4	4	3	3	2	5	1	8	MC
- Warhawk	1	4	0	4	3		5	1	5	
Waywatcher	5	4	5	3	3	1	5	1	8	In
Wild Rider	5	5	4	4	3	1	5	1	9	Ca
- Elven Steed	9	3	0	3	3	1	4	1	5	

SE O S

LIZARDMEN

	м	WS	BS	S	Т	W	I	A	Ld	Type
Ancient Stegadon	6	3	0	6	6	5	1	3	6	Mo
- Skink Crew	6	2		3	2		4		6	
Barbed Razordon	6	3	3	5	4	3	4	2	4	WB
- Skink Handler	6	2	3	3	2	1	4	1	6	
Carnosaur		3	0		5	5		4	5	Mo .
Chakax	4	5	0	5	5	2	3	4	8	In
Chameleon Skink	6	2	4	3	2	1	4	1	6	In
Cold One Rider	4	4	0	4	4	1	2	2	8	Ca
- Cold One	7	3	0	4	4	1	2	1	3	
Gor-Rok	4	5	0	5	5	2	3	4	8	In
Jungle Swarm	5	3	0	2	2	5	1	5	10	Sw
Krog-Gar	4	6	3	5	5	3	+	5	8	In
- Grymloq		3	0		5	5	2	5	5	Mo
Kroxigor	6	3	0	4	-4	3	1	3	7	MI
Lord Kroak	+		3	3	5	6	1		9	In
Lord Mazdamundi	4	2	3	3	4	5	2	1	9	In
- Zhaq	6	3	0	6	6	5	1	3	6	Mo
Oxyotl	6	4	5	4	3	2	5	3	7	In
Salamander	6	3	3	5	4	3	4	2	4	WB
- Skink Handler	6	2	3	3	2	1	4	1	6	

	М	WS	BS.	S	Т	W	I	A	Ld	Type
Saurus Oldblood	4	6	0	5	5	3	4	5	8	In
Saurus Scar-Veteran	4	5	0	5	5	2	3	4	8	In
Saurus Warrior	4	3	0	4	4	1	1	2	8	In
Skink	6	2	3	3	2	1	4	1	6	In
Skink Chief	6	4	5	4	3	2	6	3	7	In
Skink Priest	6	2	3	3	2	2	4	1	6	In
Skink Skirmisher	6	2	3	3	2	1	4	1	6	In
Slann Mage-Priest	4	2			4	5	2	1	9	In
Stegadon	6	3	0	5	6	5	2	4	6	Mo
- Skink Crew	6		3	3	2		4	1	6	
Tehenhauin	6	4	4	4	3	3	6	3	8	In
- Tide of Serpents		2		2			2	D6		
Temple Guard	4	4	0	4	4	1	2	2	8	In
Terradon Rider	6	2	3	3	3	2	4	1	6	MC
- Terradon	2	3	0	4	3	1	2	1	3	
Terradon	2	3	0	4		1	2	1	3	MB
Tetto'eko	6	2	3	2	2	2	4	1	6	In
Tiktaq'to	6	4	5	4	3	2	6	3	8	MC
- Zwup	2	3	0	4	3	1	2		3	

OGRE KINGDOMS

	м	WS	BS	S	т	W	I	A	Ld	Tipe
Bruiser	6	5	3	5	5	4	3	4	8	MI
Butcher	6	3	2	4	5	4	2	3	7	MI
Gnoblar	+		3	2	3	1	3		5	In
Gorger	6	3	0	5	5	4	2	4	8	MI
Greasus	4	6	3	5(10)	16	6	1	3	9	Mo
Hunter	6	5	4	5	5	4	3	4	9	MI
- Sabretusk	8	4	0	4	4	2	4	3	4	WB
Irongut	6		2	4	4	3	2	3	8	MI
Leadbelcher	6	3	3	4	4	3	2	3	7	MI
Maneater	6	4	4	5	4	3		4	8	MI
Ogre Bull	6	3	2	4	4	3	2	3	7	MI
Scraphancher				5	5	5				Ch
- Gnoblar Scrappers		2		2			3	6	5	
- Rhinox	6	3		5			2	-3		

	-								-	states and so that the
	M	WS	BS	s	Т	W	1	A	Ld	Type
Slaughtermaster	6	4	3	4	5	5	3	4	8	MI
Slavegiant	6	3	3	6	5	6	31	pecial	110	Mo
Skrag	6	5	3	5	6	5	3	4	9	MI
Trapper	4	2	3	2	3	1	3	1	5	In
Tyrant	6	6	4	5	5	5	+	3	9	MI
Thetee	7	3	0	5	4	3	4	3	7	MI



DARK ELVES

		-	-		1	-				-
11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	М	WS		S	T	W	Ι		Ld	Type
Assassin	5	9	9	4	3	2	10	3	10	In
Black Ark Corsairs	5	4	-4	3	3	1	5	1	8	In
Black Dragon	6	6	0	6	6	6	3	5	8	Mo
Black Guard	5	5	4	3	3	1	6	2	9	In
Cauldron of Blood (Hag)	3	4	+	3	3	1	6	2	8	Un
	22	199		10.0		100	1923	25.83	1273	
Cold One Chariot				5	5	4				Ch
- Charioteer		5	-4	4			6	1	9	
- Cold One	7	3	0	4			2	1	3	
Cold One Knights	5	5	4	4			6	1	9	Ca
- Cold One	7	3	0	4	4	1	2	1	3	
Crone Hellebron	5	7	6	- 4	3	3	9	4	10	In
Crossbowman	5	4	4						8	In
Dark Pegawas	8	3	0	-4	4	3	4	2	6	MB
Dark Rider	5	4	+	3	3		5	1	8	Ca
- Dark Steed	9	3	.0	3	3	1	4	1	3	
Death Hag	5	6	6	4	3	2	8	3	9	In
Dreadlord	5	7	6	+	3	3	8	4	10	Is
Har Ganeth	5	5	4	4	3	1	5	1	8	In
Executioners										
Harpy	5	3	0	3	3	1	5	2	6	In

337 3

	М	WS	BS	S	Т	W	I	A	Ld	Type
Wir Hydra	6	4	0	5	5	5	2		6	Mo
- Beistmaster	6	4	4	3	3	1	5	2	8	
Kouran	5	5	4	3	3	1	6	3	9	In
Lokhir Fellheart	5	6	6	4	3	2	7	3	9	In
Malekith	5	8	6	5	-4	3	8	4	10	In
Malus Darkblade	5	6	5	4	3	2		3	9	Ca
- Spine	7	3	0	4	4	1	2	2	4	
Manticore	6	5	0	5	5	-4	5	4	5	Mo
Mister	5	6	6	4	- 3	2		3	9	In
Morathi	5	5	4	3	3	3	6	3	10	In
- Sulephet	8	-4	0	-4	4	3	4	3	6	MB
Reaper Bolt Throwes					7	3				WM
- Crew	5	4	4	3	3	1	5	1	8	a serie
Shade	5	5	5	3	3	1	5	1	- 8	In
Shadowblade	6	10	10	4	3	2	10	3	10	In
Sorceress	5	4	4	3	3	2	5	1	8	In
Supreme Sorceress	5	4	4	3	3	3	5		9	In .
Tullaris of	5	5	4	4	3	1	5	2	8	In
Har Ganeth										
Warnor	5	4	4	3	3	1	5	1	8	In
Witch Elf	5	4	4	3	3	1	6	1	8	In

SKAVEN

	М	WS	BS	s	т	W	I	A	LD	Type
Assassin	6	6	5	4	4	2	8	3	7	In
Bonebreaker	6	4	3	5	5	4	3	5	5	MB
Censer Bearer	5	3	3	3	4				5	In
Chieftain	5	5	4	4	4	2	6	3	6	In
Claseat	5	3	3	3	3	1	4	1	5	In
Deathmaster	6	8	6	4	4	2	10	6	8	In
Snikch										
Doomwheel	3D6			6	6	5				Un
- Crew		3	3	2			4	2D6	7	- 12
Giant Rat	6	3	1	3	3	1	4	1	3	WB
- Packmaster	6	3	3	3	3	1	4	1	5	In
- Master Moulder	6	5	3	4	4	2	5	2	6	In
Great Pox Rat	6	3	3	4	4	1	5	2	2	WB
Grey Seer	5		3	3	4	3	5	1	7	In
Gutter Runner	6	4	4	3	3	1	5	1	7	In
Hell Pit Abornination	1 3D6	3	1	6	5	6	-4	•	8	Mo
Ikit Claw	5	5	3	5	4		- 3	2	7	In
Jezzail Team	5	3	3	3	3	1	3	2	5	In
Lord Skrolk	5	6	4	4	5	3	6	4	7	Is
Night Runner	6	3	3	3	3	1	5	1	6	In
Plaguechaw Catapa	it -				6	4				WM
- Plague Monk Co	ews .		3	3	4	1	3	D6	7	
Plague Furnace				5	6	6				Un
- Plague Monk Cr		3	-	3	-	-	3	6	-	-
Plague Monk	5	3	3	3	+	1	3	15	5	In
Plague Priest	5	5	3	4	5	2	5	3		In
Poison W. Globadi		3	3	3	3	1	4	1	5	In
Queek Headtaker	5		4	4	-4	3	7	6	8	In
Rat Ogre	6	.3	1	5	4	3	4	3	5	MI
- Packmaster	6	3	3	3	3	1	4	1	- 5	In
- Master Moulder	6	3	3	4	4	2	5	2	6	In

230000

	м	WS	BS	s	Т	W	1	A	LD	Type
Rat Swarm	6	3	θ	2	2	5	4	5	10	Sw
Screaming Bell				5	6	6				Un
- Rat Ogre Crew		3		5			4	3		
Skavenslave	5	2	2	3	3	1	4	1	2	In
Sloweel Gnawtooth	6	5	3	4	4	2	6	2	6	In
Stormvermin	5	4	3	3	3	1	5	1	5	In
Thanguel	5	3	3	3	4	3	6	1	7	In
- Boneripper	5	3	1	5	5	3	1	4	10	MI
Throt the Unclean	6	6	3	4	4	3	6	4	7	In
Tretch Craventail	5	5	4	4	4	2	6	3	6	In
Vermin Lord	8	8	4	6	5	5	10	5	8	Mo
War-litter	5	4		4			5	4		In
Warlock Engineer	5	3	3			2	4	1	5	In
Warkerd	5	6	4	4	4	3	7	4	7	In
Warp Ltng, Cannon			-	-	6	4				WM
- Engineer & Crew		3	3	3	3	1	3	3	7	
Weapon Team		-3	3	3	3	1	3	2	5	In



BEASTMEN

	М	WS	BS	s	Т	W	1	A	Ld	Type
Beastlord	5	6	3	5	5	3	5	4	9	In
Bestigor	5	4	3	4	4	1	3	1	7	In
Bray-Shaman	5	+	3	3	4	2	3	1	7	In
Centigor	8	4	3	4	4	1	2	2	7	Ca
Chaos Spawn	2D6	3	0	4	5	3	21	36+	110	MB
Chaos Warhound	7	4	θ	3	3	1	3	1	5	WB
Cygor	7	2	1	6	5	5	3	5	8	Mo
Doomball	6	6	3	6	5	5	5	5	8	MI
Ghorgon	7	4	0	6	6	6	3	6	10	Mo
Ghorros	8	.5	3	5	4	2	3	4	8	Ca
Giant	6	3	3	6	5	6		pecis	d 10	Mo
Gor	5	4	3	3	4	1	3	1	7	In
Gorebull	6	5	3	5	5	4	4	4	7	MI
Gorthor	5	7	3	5	5	3	5	5	9	In
- Bagrar		-4	3	4			4	2	7	
Great Bray-Shamar	15	5	3	4	5	3	4	2	8	In
Harpy	5	3	0	3	3	1	5	2	6	In
Jabberslythe	8	4	4	5	5	5	3	5	9	Mo
Khazrak	5	7	1	5	5	3	5	4	9	In

	M	WS	BS	S	Т	W	Ι	A	Ld	Type
Malagor	5	5	3	4	5	3	4	2	8	In
Minotaur	6	4	3	5	4	3	3	3	7	MI
Moonclaw	<	1	3	4	4	2	3	3	7	In
- Umbralok		3	0	4	4	1	2	3	6	WB
Morghur	5	6	3	4	5	2	4	3	8	In
Razorgor Chariot				5	5	5				Ch
- Bestiger		4		4						
- Got		4	3	3			3			
- Razorgor	7	3		5			2	4		
Razorgor	7	3	0	5	5	3	2	-4	6	MB
Slagtongue	5	4	3	3	4	2	3		7	In
Taurox	6	6	3	6	6	5	5	6	8	MI
Taskgor Chariot				5	4	4				Ch
- Bostigur		+	3	4						
- Gor		4	3	3			3			
- Tuskgor	7	3		4			2	1		
Ungor	5	3	3	3	3	- 1	3	1	6	In
Ungrol	5	4	4	4	4	2	4	2		In
Wargor	5	5	3	4	5	2	4	3	8	In

22.0

ORCS AND GOBLINS

	М	WS	BS	5	Т	W		A	Ld	Type
Arbag the Slaughterer			3	5	5	3		4	9	In
- Skullmuncha	4	5	0	6	5	5	3	3	6	Mo
Black Orc Big Boss	4	6	3	4	5	2	3	3	8	In
Black Orc Warboss	4	7	3	5	5	3	4	4	9	In
Black Orc	4	4	3	4	4	1	2	1	8	In
Boar Boy	4	3	3	3	4	1	2	1	7	Ca
- Boar		3	0		4	1	3	1	3	
Familie	2D6			5	3	1	3	D6	10	Un
Giant Wolf	9	3	0	3	3	1	3	1	3	WB
Giant	6	3	3	6	5	6	3 :	pecia	110	Mo
Gigantic Spider	7	- 3	0	+	4	3	4	3	-7	MB
Goblin	4	2	3	3	3	1	2	1	6	In
Goblin Big Boss	4	4	3	+	4	2	3	3	7	In
Coblin Doom	-		-		7	3				WM
Diver Catapult										
- Goblin crew	4	2	3	3	3	1	2	1	6	
Goblin Great Shaman	4	2	3	3	4	3	2	1	7	In
Goblin Rock Lobber					7	3				WM
- Goblin crew	4	2	3	3	3	1	2	1	6	
- Orc Bully	4	3	3	3	4	1	2	1	7	
Goblin Shaman	4	2	3	3	3	2	2	1	6	In
Goblin Spear Chucka					7	3				WM
- Goblin crew	4	2	3	3	3	1	2	1	6	
- Orc Bully	4	3	3	3	4	1	2	1	7	
Gobhn Warboss	4	5	3	4	- 4	3	4	4	8	In
Goblin Wolf Chariot				5	-4	3				Ch
- Goblin		2	3	3			2	1	6	
- Giant Wolf	9	3		3			3	1	3	
Goblin Wolf Riders	4	2	3	3	3		2	1	6	Ca
- Giant Wolf	9	3	0	3			3	1	3	
Gorbad Ironclaw	4	7	3	5	5	3	5	4	10	Ca
- Gnarla	7	3	0	4	4		3		3	
Great Cave Squig 3	3D6	4	0	5	4	3	3	3	3	MB

		WS	BS	S	Т	W	Ι	A	Ld	Type
Grimgor Ironhide	4	8	1	5	5	3	5	7	9	In
Grom	4	5	3	4	4		4	4	8	In
- Niblit		3		3			2	1		
Night Goblin	÷	2	3	3	3	1	3	1	5	In
Night Goblin	4	4	3	4	4	2	4	3	6	In
Big Boss				80						
Night Goblin	4	2	3	3	4	3	3	1	6	In
Great Shaman	_	_		_	_	_	_	_	_	
Night Goblin Shama		2	3	3	3	2	3	1	5	In
Night Goblin Warbos		5	3	4	4		5	4		In
Orc	4	3	3	3	4	1	2	1	7	In
Orc Big 'Un	4	4	3	4	4	1	2	1	7	In
Orc Bag Boss	4	5	3	4	5	2	3		8	In
Ore Boar Chariot				5	5	4				Ch
- Orc		3		3			2	1	7	
- Boar	7	3		3			3	1		
Orc Great Shaman	4	3	3	4	5		2		8	In
Orc Shaman	4	3	3	3	4	2	2	1		In
Orc Warbons	4	6	3	5	5	3	4	4	9	In
Savage Orcs	Se	rase	Ores	of					ame	
	pro	files	as th	te ce	rres	pond	ing 1	nom	ul' C	Irc.
Skarsnik	4	5	3	4	4	6	5	4	8	MB
- Gobbla		5		6			4	4		
Snotling base	4	2	0	2	2		3		4	Św
Sooting Pump Wagoe	2De			4	4	3				Ch
- Snotling Crew				2			3	3	4	
Spider Rider	4	2	3	3	3	1	2	1	6	Ca
- Giant Spider	7	3	0	3	3	1	4	Ĩ.	2	
Squig Hopper	3D6	4	0	5	3	1	3	2	5	Ca
Squig	4	4	0	5	3	1	3	2	3	WB
Troll	6	3	2	5	4	3	1	3	4	MI
Weyern	4	5	0	6	5	<	3	3	6	Mo

BESTLAR

3800

DAEMONS OF CHAOS

O Con Stores

	M	WS	RS	5	-	W	I		LD	Tipe
Beast of Nurgle	6	3	0	4	ç	4	ŝ	D6+1	7	MB
Blood Chariot		-		c	5	1	ŵ	20112	1	Ch
- Juggernaut		s		5			2	2		
Burning Chariot		-		4	4	4			-	Ch
- Screamer	1	3		3			4	1	7	
Bloodletter	5	5	0	5	3	1	4	1	7	In
Bloodthirster	8	10	0	6	6	5	9	7	9	Mo
The Blue Scribes	1	3	0	3	3	3	2	3	7	Ca
The Changeling	4		0							In
Chaos Fury	4	3	0	4	3	1	4	1	2	In
Daemonette	6	5	0	3	3	1	-5	2		In
Daemon Prince	8	8	0	5	5	4	7	5	8	Mo
Disc of Tzeentch			0				4	1	7	WB
Epidemius	4	5	0	4	6	2	3	3	8	In
- Palanquin	4	3	0	3			3	6		
Fiend of Slaanesh	10	4	0	4	4	3	6	4		MB
Flamer	6	2	4	5	4	2	4	2	7	In
Flesh Hound	8	5	0	5	4	2	4	2		WB
Great Unclean One	6	4	0	6	6	-10	4	4	9	Mo
Herald of Khorne	5	7	0	6	4	2	6	3	8	In

	-			-	-					
	М	WS	BS	S	Т	W	In	A	LD	Type
Herald of Nurgle	4	5	0	5	5	2	2	3	8	In
Herald of Slaanesh	6	7	0	.4.	3	2	7	4	8	In
Herald of Tzeentch	4	3	4	3		2	3	2	8	In
Juggernaut	7	5	0	5	4	3	2	2	7	MB
Kairos Fateweaver	8	1	0	5	5	5	1	1	9	Mo
Karanak	8	5	θ	5	4	2	4	4		WB
Keeper of Secrets	10	9	θ	6	6	5	10	6	9	Mo
Ku'gath Plaguefathe	r4	4	0	6	6	10	4	4	9	Mo
Lord of Change	8	6	4	6	6	5	6	5	9	Mo
The Masque	10		0	4	3	2		5	8	In
Nurgings	4	3	0	3	3	3	3	3	7	Su
Palanquin	4	3	0	3	3	1	3	6	7	In
Pink Horror	4	3	0	3	3	1	3			In
Plaguebearer	4	3	0	4	4	1				In
Screamer	1	3	0	3	3	1	4	1	7	WB
Seeker Chariot				5	4	4				Ch,
- Steed of Slaanesh	10	- 3		3			5	1	7	
Skarbrand	8	10	0	6	6	5	10	7(8)	9	Mo
Skulltaker	4	9	0	6	4	2	9	4	8	In
Steed of Slaanesh	10	3	0	3	3	1	5	1	7	WB

VAMPIRE COUNTS

	М	WS	BS	s	Т	W	1	A	Ld	Type
Abyssal Terror	6	4	0	5	5	4	2	3	4	Mo
Bat Swarm	1	3	0	2	2	4	1	4	3	Sw
Black Ceach				5	6	4				Ch
- Cairn Wraith		3		3			2	3	3	
- Nightmare	8	3		4			2	1		
Black Knight	4	3	0	-4	-4	1	3	1	6	Ca
- Skeletal Steed	8	2	0	3	3	1	2	1	3	
Blood Knight	4	5	3	5	4	1	4	2		Ca
- Nightmare	8	.3	0	-4	-4	1	2		3	
Cairn Wraith	6	3	0	3	3	2	2	3	5	In
Corpse Cart	4	2	0	2	4	3	1	2D6		Mo
Count Mannfred	6	7	5	5	5	3(5)	7	4	10	In
Crypt Ghoul	4	3	0	3	4	1	3	2	5	In
Dire Wolf	9	3	0	3	3	1	3	1	3	WB
Fell Bat	1	3	0	3	3	2	3	2	3	WB
Grave Guard	4	3	0	4	4	1	3	1	6	In
Hellsteed	8	3	0	4	4	1	2	1	3	WB
Isabella von Carstein	6	4	4	4	4	2	6	2	7	In

	М	WS	BS	S	Т	W	1	A	Ld	Type
Konrad von Carstein	6		4	5	4	2	6	3	6	In
Manufred the Acolyte	6	6	4	5	4	2	6	3	7	In
Necromancer	4	3	3	3	3	2	3	1	7	In
Skeleton	4	2	2	3	3	1	2	1	3	In
Spirit Host	6	3	θ	3	3	4	1	4	4	Su
Tomb Banshee	6	3	0	3	3	2	3	1	5	In
Vampire Lord	6	7	5	5	5	3		4	10	In
Vampire	6	6	4	5	4	2	6	3	7	In
Varghulf	8	5	θ	5	5	4	2	5	4	Mo
Vlad von Carstein	6	7	5	5	5	3		5	10	In
Wight King	4	-4	0	4	5	3	4	3	9	In
Zombie Dragon	6	6	0	6	5	5	2	5	4	Mo
Zombie	4	1	0	2	2	1	1	1	2	In



ARCANE CREATURES

The profiles given below are included for use with the Transformation of Kadon spell from the Lore of Beasts.

М	WS	BS	S	Т	W	1	Α.	Ld	Tipe	SPECIAL RULES
6	4	0	5	5	5	2	7	8	Mo	Large Target, Terror, 4+ Scaly Skin, Regenerate, Breath Weapon (Strength 4)
6	7	0	7	7	10	5	4D6	6	Mo	Terror, Poisoned Attacks, Fly, Frenzy, Random Attacks (4D6) Breath Weapon (Strength 4)
6	5	0	5	5	+	5	4	5	Mo	Large Target, Terror, Killing Blow, Fly, Frenzy
6	5	0	5	6	5	4	4		Mo	Large Target, Terror, 4+ Scaly Skin, Breath Weapon (Strength 2), Fly
6	8	0	8	8	8	1	8	9	Mo	Terror, 2+ Scaly Skin, Breath Weapon (Strength 5), Fly
	M 6 6 6	M WS 6 4 6 7 6 5 6 5	M WS BS 6 4 0 6 7 0 6 5 0 6 5 0	M WS BS S 6 4 0 5 6 7 0 7 6 5 0 5 6 5 0 5	M WS BS S T 6 4 0 5 5 6 7 0 7 7 6 5 0 5 5 6 5 0 5 6	M WS BS S T W 6 4 0 5 5 5 6 7 0 7 7 10 6 5 0 5 5 4 6 5 0 5 6 5	M WS BS S T W I 6 4 0 5 5 5 2 6 7 0 7 7 10 5 6 5 0 5 5 4 5 6 5 0 5 6 5 4	M WS BS S T W I A. 6 4 0 5 5 5 2 7 6 7 0 7 7 10 5 4D6 6 5 0 5 5 4 5 4 6 5 0 5 6 5 4 4	M WS BS S T W I A Ld 6 4 0 5 5 5 2 7 8 6 7 0 7 7 10 5 4D6 6 6 5 0 5 5 4 5 4 5 6 5 0 5 6 5 4 4 7	M WS BS S T W I A Ld Tppe 6 4 0 5 5 5 2 7 8 Mo 6 7 0 7 7 10 5 4D6 6 Mo 6 5 0 5 5 4 5 4 Mo 6 5 0 5 5 4 4 7 Mo 6 5 0 5 6 5 4 4 7 6 8 0 8 8 1 8 9 Mo

WARRIORS OF CHAOS

	М	WS	BS	S	Τ	W	I	A	Ld	Type
Archaon	+	9	5	5	5	4		5	10	MC
- Dorghar	8	4	0	5	5				9	
Chaos Dragon	6	6	0	6	6	6		6	8	Mo
Chaos Knight	+	5	3	4	4		5	2	8	Ga
- Chaos Steed	8	3	0	4	3			1	5	
Chaos Lord	4	8	3	5	5	3		5	9	In
Chaos Sorcerer	+	5	3	4	4	2	5	2	8	In
Chaos Spawn	2D6	3	0	4	5		2	D6+1	10	MB
Chaos Warhounds	7	4	0	3	3	1	3	1	5	WB
Chaos Warrior	-4	5	3	4	4	1	5	2	8	In
Chaos Warshrine	4	5	3	4	6	4	5	5	8	Mo
Charice				5	5	4				Ch
- Warrices		5	3	4				2	8	
- Chaos Steeds	8	3		4						
Chosen	-4	6	3	4	4	1	5	2	8	In
Daemonic Mount	8	4	0	5	5	1	3	2	8	MB
Daemon Prince	8	8	0	5	5	4		5	8	Mo
Disc of Tzeentch	1	3	0	3	3	-1	4	1	7	WB
Dragon Ogre		4	2	5	4	4	2	3	8	MB
Esalted Hero	4	7	3	5	4	2	6	4	8	In
Festus	4	4	2	4	4	2	2	2	8	In
Forsaken	6	4	0	4	4	1	4	D3+1	8	In

	Μ	WS	BS	S	Т	W	I	A	Ld	Type
Galrauch	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	9	Mo
Giant	6	3		6	5	6	3	specia	110	Mo
Hellcannon	6	4	3	5	6	5	1	5	4	Mo
- Chaos Dwarfs	3	4	3	3	4	1	2	1	9	
Juggermaut		5	0	5	4	1		2	7	MB
Kholek	8	8	3	8	6	8	1	7	9	Mo
Manticore	6	5	0	5	5	4	5	4	5	Mo
Marauder	- 4	4	3	3	3	1	4	. 1		In
Marauder Horsen		4	3	3	3	1	-4	1		Ca
- Warhorse	8	3	0	3	3	1	3	1	5	
Ogre	6	3	2	4	4	3	2	3	7	MI
Palanquin	-4	3	0	3	3	1	3	6		In
Prince Sigvald	- 4	8	3	5	4	3	8	5	10	In
Scyla Anfingrimm	3D6	4	0	5	5	4	3	D6+2	10	MB
Shaggoth	7	6	3	6	5	6	4	5	9	Mo
Sorcerer Lord	4	5	3	4	4	3	5	3	8	In
Steed of Slaanesh	10	3	0	3	3	1	5	1		WB
Throgg	6	5	2	6	5	4	2	5	8	MI
Troll	6	3	1	5	4	3	1	3	4	MI
Valkia	4	9	3	5	5	3	8	6	9	In
Vilitch	4	5	1	5	4	3	5	3	8	In
Wulfrik	4	8	3	5	4	2	7	4	8	In



THE LORES OF MAGIC

Wizards are a formidable force on the battlefield, able to wreak incredible destruction, weaken or strengthen other warriors, or summon terrible beasts to fight at their side. We've already covered the rules for the Magie phase - in this chapter, we'll discuss how spells are generated, and present the eight Battle Magie spell lores.

SPELL GENERATION

Before you deploy your Wizards, you need to determine which spells they know. The usual method for selecting spells is for each player to randomly generate spells for each Wizard.

When you chose your army, you should have selected which Leve of Magic ach of your Wanzels is going to use (i you haverh, shane on you. Go back, choose now and remember to do it popely for your next game). This will sometime be one of the Lores of Battle Magic – the eight not commonly used sovercoss disciplines included in this rulebook, but may Wanzels have next-specific spell lores to choose from as well, as described in the appropriate Warkammer Armiss book.

The spells a Wizard knows are determined by rolling dice and consulting the Lore of Magic in question. This is done openly, so both you and your opponent will be aware of the spells each Wizard has generated. If your army includes more than one Wizard, you can choose the order in which you generate their spells.

Regardless of the Lore of Magic your Wizard has chosen to use, you'll notice that the spells are numbered between one and six. To randomly generate the Wizard's spells roll a D6 for each of his Wizard levels and consult the chosen lore to see what spells have been generated.

Ordinarily, each spell can only be known once in the same army. The only exceptions are where a spell is not generated randomly, such as:

 If a model has no choice over which spell(s) it knows, either because it is fixed by the model's rules, or because if has 'bought' a specific spell as part of army selection. If the army book or spell lore clearly states that a model can exchange another spell for the spell in question.

Otherwise, if you roll a spell twice (whether for the same Warard or for a different Wirard in the army) you must normally replace the duplicate spell with another of your choice from the same Lore. If you cannot, because all the other spells have already been taken by other Wizards, for example, then this certs apell do is lost.

SIGNATURE SPELLS

Some Lores of Magic have signature spells. A signature spell is so intrinsic to the lore's character that we can assume that any practitioner of that lore will know how to cast it. After choosing replacements for doublicat spells, a Wizard can always choose to substitute one of the spells he rolls with the signature spell of a lore—even if another Wizard in the same army already knows the signature spell.

Regardless of the spells your Wizards have generated, it's worth making a note on your army roster – its all too easy to forget which Wizard has exactly which spells otherwise!

Jereis han 2 Level 4 Caletait Wann, due horme, and film on the Lore of Harrow. When the Witzer dis algebra, Depris with fine data to generate this diself Level 1, L. 2, and 4, Jung serversing Harmanic Convergence, Winel Batts and Fron Unsearch Thandwitchesh for al algebra split in the Constant Thandwitchesh for al algebra split in the Unsearch Thandwitchesh for all algebra split in the Unsearch Thandwitchesh for all for algebra Egylandy Leveis amonts to get hind for Manhara Battaneous, Thandwitche for al algebra Battaneous Thandwitche for algebra Battaneous Thandwitchesh for the Lore of Battaneous for the instants to get hind for Loren Battaneous for the instants are public to get the top for the loss of



Beastman Bray-chaman

Icechard Rlizzard on figuring that Chain Lightning will vive him all the zap he requires. Jervis exchanges his remaining Urannon's Thunderbolz. leaving him with Iceshard Blizzard, Harmonic Conternance Wind Rlast and Chain Linksteiner H Jervis had another Celestial Wizard in his arms that Wizard would only be able to learn the vemaining stells from the Love of Hostons and the simature stell 'Iceshand Blizzand'.

LORE ATTRIBUTES

Some Lores of Magic, including those presented in this book have something called a 'lore attribute'. This is essentially a grouping of one or more special rules that are applied to certain spells for that lore. A lore attribute might give certain spells an extra effect against a particular troop type, or alter the way a spell behaves. Regardless of the detail, a lore attribute only has an effect on spells from its own lore.



THE LORES OF BATTLE MAGIC

Each lore presented on the following pages is but a splinter of the pure maric practiced by the High Elves: one focused shard of magical energy, with a particular trait all of its own. The Lore of Fire, for example, is chiefly a repository of raging and destructive spells, whilst the Lore of Life specialises in spells of protection and healing. Each of the eight lores harnesses energy from one of the divisions in the Winds of Magic. Some kinds of energy are denser than others and sink low to permeate the ground, others are more rarefied, billowing like high clouds through the upper atmosphere.

Your choice of lores will depend on how you want to use your Wizards, and also upon how many you plan to field. Presented on the following pages are eight magical lores, the eight sorcerous traditions as taught by the High Elves to the Wizards of the Empire. Although many of the Warhammer world's races practise their own magical traditions and thus have their own spell lores (as detailed in the relevant Warhammer Armies book), most also have some understanding of at least one of the eight lores described in this section.

The Lore of Fire has its basis in powerful ranged attack spells. designed to wreak massive damage on your fors. If you see your Wizards as essentially manical artillery' then the Lore of Fire is probably the one for you

The Lore of Beasts is dominated by augmentative spells that grant your models extra capabilities. It's best chosen if your army intends to win its battles in close combat, as a few timely spells from the Lore of Beasts can transform mediacre troops into fearsome battle winners.

The Lore of Metal is based around the manipulation and transformation of metals. As you might expect, enemies that rely heavily on armour should beware the Lore of Metal, as its spells either ignore armour, or turn it against its wearer with horrendous consequences.

The Lore of Light can broadly be described as protective magic, granting defensive honuses to your troops It also contains a few 'exorcism' spells that can banish Undead and Daemonic creatures



The Lore of Life unleashes the nomer of the natural world. It is primarily a defensive lore, with an array of spells that heal your troops and augment their resilience.



The Lore of Heavens manipulates the forces of the sky. harnessing destructive weather or drawing upon the predictive power of astrology to alter probabilities - it's particularly effective against flying enemies.



The Lore of Shadow is a force of illusion and decention, relying chiefly on phantasmal attacks to sap the enemy's will (or ability) to fight.



Last, but not least, The Lore of Death has a formidable battery of short-ranged damage spells that

specialise in zapping enemy characters. Death magic is more destructive even than Fire magic. but the Wizard has to be pretty close to his foe (perhaps dangerously close) to use the Lore of Death to its full, fearsome potential.





KINDLEFLAME (Lor Antribut

Fire fields fire, and two blazes together are more dangerous that two appet All of the spells in the Lore of Fire are Flaming Atrucks. In addition, if a direct damage or magic missile spell from the Lore of Fire is act at a unit that has already been hit by a direct damage or magic missile spell from the Lore of Fire in the same Magic phase (even if the spell was easi by a different Wanard) the casting Wanad data >10.10 bits (conting trend.

FIREBALL (Signature Spell)

The Wizard conjures a reiling ball of magic flame and hurls it at a nearby for.

Firsthalf is a magic missile with a range of 24° and causes D6 Strength 4 hits. The Wirard can choose to ottend the range of this spell to 34° and the number of hits to 2D6. Hit does on, the causing value is increased to 10+. Alternatively, the Wirard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 44° and the number of hits to 3D6. If the does so, the causing value is increased to 18+.

1 CASCADING FIRE-CLOAK Cast on 5+

A shield of flame appears around the Wizard, scorching nearby foes.

Remains in play: Caucading Fire-Cload is an augment spell cast upon the Wizard and his unit (if any). At the end of each Magic phase, any enemy unit in base contact with the target immediately suffers 2D6 Strength 4 hits.

2 FLAMING SWORD OF RHUIN Cast on 8+

The Wizard ensorcels his allies' weapons, making them burn with a savagely hungry flame.

Family Showed of Rhain's in an anyment speel with a range of 24° . The target unit has a + 1 berow when realing to wound with all shooting and close combat attacks until the start of the caster's next Majke phase. The target unit also coasts as laving both magical tanks and the Flaming Artacles speels line. The Witaed can choose to extend the range of this spell to 48° . If he does so, the casting values is increased to 11+.

3. THE BURNING HEAD

Cast on 10+

Cast on 5+

A cackling visage, coreathed in flame, appears before the Wizard. With a final screech of glee, it bounds towards the enemy.

The Barney Hoad's is a direct damage spell. Extend a straight line, 19% in length, when the caster's front are and directly pury from his base. Each model in the way (determined as for a bouncing cannobally suffers a Strength 4 hit. A unit that suffers one or more causalities from the Borning Hoad must like a Panit text. The Wirzed caushies the other Borning Hoad's bound the a Panit text. The Wirzed on, the casting units in increased to 154 \cdot

4. PIERCING BOLTS OF BURNING Cast on 10+

Focusing all his mystical might, the Wizard strikes his for with a fluerry of incandescent missiles.

Pierring Balzi of Barwing is a magic missile with a range of 24" and causes DJ Strength 4 hits for each rank of five or more models in the target unit. The Wizard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 48". If he does so, the casting value is increased to 134.

5. FULMINATING FLAME CAGE

Cast on II+

Searing rods of magical flame shoot from the Wizard's outstretched hands, trammelling his chosen foe in a fiery prison.

Foliniating Flam: Cap' is a besi spell with a range of 24°. The target unin immediately useful for De Strength 4 his. In addition, if the target anit moves for any ranson, every model in the unit suffers in immediate Strength 4 his and the spell ends. If the unit does not move, Foliniante, Flam: Cap automatically cases at the start of the range of this spell to 44°. If he does so, the casting value is increased to 14+.



6. FLAME STORM

Cast on 13+

A column of rolling flame bursts from the battlefield, the roar of its creation almost droconing out the screams of its victims.

Flam: Snow is a direct damage spell. Place the small round template anywhere within 30° of the Wirand – it then seatures Do". All models hit by the template suffer 3 strength 4 hit. The Wirand can choose to create a larger confligration, using the large template rather than the small template. If he does so, the casting value is increased to 16° + and the template seatures 2Do" rather than De".



WILDHEART (Low Attribute)

Spells from the Lore of Beasts are easier to cast on beasts, or creatures' attanced to the wildemess. If a spell from the Lore of Beasts is targeted on one or more units of war beasts, cavalry, monstrous heasts, monsterous cavalry, chairios, monsters, waarns or any unit from Warhammer Armiece Beastmen, then the causing difficult of the spell is reduced by 1.

WYSSAN'S WILDFORM (Signature Spell) Cast on 10+

The Wizard unleashes the beast within, shaping its fury to transform his allies in to bestial forms.

Wissaw? Wildforw is an augment spell with a range of 12°. The target unit gains +1 Strength and +1 Toughness until the start of the caster's next Magic phase. The Wizard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 24°. If he does so, the casting value is increased to 13+.

1 THE FLOCK OF DOOM

Cast on 5+

Curt on St.

With a mighty bellow, the Wizard invokes Corvus the Crow Lord, summoning his servants to peck at the foe's eyes.

The Flock of Doow is a magic missile with a range of 24° and causes 2D6 Strength 2 hits. The Wizard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 48°. If he does so, the casting value is increased to 8+.

2. PANN'S IMPENETRABLE PELT

Calling upon the beast-spirits of the wild, the Wizard sheathes his " vulnerable flesh in unvielding for and hide.

Paw? Inpostrable Pdr's an augment spell that is cast upon the Wizard or another friendly character within 12%. The target gains +3 Toughness within 12% (and the start's next Angles phase. The Wizard can choose to instead have his spell target all friendly characters within 12% (including himself). If he does so, the casting value is increased to 16+.

3. THE AMBER SPEAR

Cast on 9+

Sounding a gnarled horn, the Wizard summons a glowing amber spear. Seizing hard upon the spear's translucent shaft, he hurls it at the for with uncanny accuracy.

The dense Space is a magic minite with a range of 24°. It infifts a single Strength 6 bit that causes Multiple Wands (D3) and then pretritter ranks in the same manner as a due from a both throses if the first model is shin – the Strength of the hit is enduced by 1 for each subsequent track. However serves are not perimidel against wounds caused by the Adome Space. The Winard can itempts a call first ha larger, Adodities pere that infifts a Strength 1 bit, caused Multiple Wounds (D6). If he does so, the casting value is interested to 154–

4. THE CURSE OF ANRAHEIR

Cast on 10+

At the Witzard's command, nebulous nature spirits assail the for, claring at them with hands not nearly as insubstantial as they appear.

The Gause of Annahole is a hex with a range of Me. The target unit suffices a -1 penulty in to To Hit relative to the into showing and close constant analysis) with the start of the caster's next Magic phase. In addition, the unit trents all territing to the close of the start addition, the unit trents all territing to and the line maps of this addition, the add the line line maps of the transport of the addition at a 1. The Wiznel can choose to extend the range of this applie 10 = 72°. If the does so, the casting value is increased to 13.4-

5. THE SAVACE BEAST OF HORROS Cast on 10+ The beast within is a formidable thing if unleashed to its full patential.

The Serage Boat of Horror is an sugment spell with a range of 12" and is cate a friendly character, which can be the Watard himself. The model gains - 45 Strength and - 45 Attacks until the start of the caster's next Magic plane. The Witard can choose to instead have his spell target all friendly characters within 12" (including himself). If he does so, the casting value is increased to 20+.

6. TRANSFORMATION OF KADON Cast on 16+

Kadon was a master of forms, able to shift his shape to that of any monster. One day he found that he could not change back.

Remains in play. The Transformation of Kadon is an augment spell that can only be cast upon the Wizard, and only if he is on foot. Whilst the spell is in effect, the Wizard transmogrifies himself into one of the following monsters: Feral Manticore, Black Hydra, or Horned Dragon. If the Wizard is in a unit, he can remain within the unit, even though he is now technically a monster (although you may have to reorder the unit a little to make him fit - see page 98 for some guidance). If he cannot be placed because there is not enough room. the spell does not work. Whilst transformed, the Wizard cannot channel or cast spells, and all of his maric items and mundane equipment (armour, weapons, etc.) temporarily stop working. Any wounds suffered by the Wirard are carried over between transformations. The Wizard can choose to cast a more powerful version of the spell, and become a Mountain Chimera or a Great Fire Dragon. If he does so, the casting value increases to 20+. Profiles for these monsters can be found at the end of the Bestiary

METAL Cold Magie, Aldeny, Transmassy

SEARING DOOM (Signature Spell) Cast on 10+ A scintillating spray of sizzling silver slivers skips from the Wizard's outstretched fingers.

Searing Doow is a magic missile with a range of 24" and causes D6 hits. The Wizard can choose to have the spell instead inflict 2D6 hits. If he does so, the casting value is increased to 20+.

1 PLAGUE OF RUST

Cast on 7+

At the Wizard's command, the armour of the enemy begins to rot, shedding areas in clouds of tiny flakes.

Plagse of Rust is a hex with a range of 24°. The target's armour suris lowered by one point for the rest of the game (e.g. a model with light armour and held will only have a 6 + wave). Plagwe f Rust can be repeatedly cast on the same target, reducing its armour wave by a further -1 each time. The Warad can choose to extend the range of this spell to 48°. The does so, the casting value is increased to 10+.

2. ENCHANTED BLADES OF AIBAN Cast on 9+

The Wizard sends powerful magic coursing over his allies" wapons, making them infinitely stronger and sharper than before.

Evaluated Blade of Aldon is an suggestert upol with a range of 24^o. The target unit has a +1 boms when rolling to hit with all shooting and close combat tarkeds usual the start of the caster's next Magic phase. All of their attacks also count as both magical attacks and have the Armour Pereirag peccial rule. The Warnel can choose to extend the range of this spell to 44^o. If he does so, the casting value is jurnersed to 12-th.

3. GLITTERING ROBE

Cast on 9+

Shaping a sigil of power, the Wizard conjures a gaudy (but effective) cloak of shimmering scale to protect his allies.

Glittering Role is an augment spell with a range of 12". The target unit has the Scaly Skin (5+) special rule until the start of the caster's next Magic plase. The Wazard can choose to instead have his spell target all friendly units within 12". If he does so, the casting value is increased to 16+.

METALSHIFTING (Lorr Attribut

Learns in the defaux paper a bill default, and big similar and default paper and the de

4. GEHENNA'S GOLDEN HOUNDS Cast on 9-

Blowing on a glimmering golden vohistle, the Wizard summons a maxime pair of clockwork hounds, which bound after his chosen prey and drag it screaming to its doom.

Galeward's Galdes Humank is a direct dumage spell with a range of 12° K. Choose a single enemy model within range – it suffers Do hits. This spell can be most bu single out a character in a unit, although the character is allowed to make a "Look Out SHI" roll for each of the bits (representing his commade addrefinding him from the househs). The Wizard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 2+°. If the does not he costing value in increased to 12+.

5. TRANSMUTATION OF LEAD

Cast on 12+

As the Wizard gestures at his foes, their weapout become much hearther and combersome – twice the burden they were but moments before.

Transmutation of Lead is a hex with a range of 24°. The target suffers a -1 penalty to its Weapon Skill, Ballistic Skill and armour saves until the start of the caster's next Magic phase. The Wizard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 48°. If he does so, the casting value is increased to 15+.

6. FINAL TRANSMUTATION

Cast on 15+

20. C.C.C.C.

The Wizard unleashes a hail of magical energy, transmuting the Besh of his fors to unliving golden statues.

Final Transmatation is a direct damage spell with a range of 18°. Roll a D6 for every model in the target unit – on a 5 + it has been turned to gold and is removed as a casualty, with no saves of any kind allowed. Models with more than one wound on their profile are only affected on a roll of 6.

In addition, any enemy unit within 12° of the target at the start of their following turn (including the target itself) must test for Spanjship in order to overcome the late of the riches that have appeared in their vicinity. The Wizard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 36'. If the does so, the casting value of the *Final Transmattaria* is increased to 184 ·

JIGHT White Winandry Soulberting Guardian Manie

THE LORE OF

SHEM'S BURNING GAZE (Signature Snell) Cast on Sa Bolts of cleansing energy fly from the Wizard's hands, searing exil wherever they strike

Shew's Barnine Gaze is a mapic missile with a range of 24" and causes D6 Strength 4 hits (which count as Flaming Attacks). The Wizard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 48" and increase the Strength from 4 to 6. If he does so, the casting value is

1 PHÁ'S PROTECTION

Cast on 64

The Wizard calls upon the beneficent Guardian of Lieht to protect

Phil's Protection is an augment spell with a range of 24". All attacks against the target unit (shooting or close combat) suffer a -1 penalty to hit until the start of the caster's next Masic phase. Shooting attacks that do not use Ballistic Skill must roll 4+ on a D6 before firing or the shot(s) is lost. The Wirard can choose to have this spell affect all friendly units within 12". If he does so, the casting value is increased to 12+.

2 THE SPEED OF LIGHT

Cast on 8+

Light knows no burden of flesh, and nor do those that receive its blessing.

The Speed of Light is an augment spell with a range of 24". The target unit has Weapon Skill 10 and Initiative 10 until the start of the caster's next Magic phase. The Wizard can choose to instead have his spell affect all friendly units within 12". If he does so, the casting value is increased to 16+.

3 LIGHT OF BATTLE

Cast on 9+

Reaching into the Wind of Hush, the Wittand drames forth ennobling energies to steady faint hearts.

Light of Battle is an augment spell with a range of 12". If fleeing, the target rallies immediately. Additionally, the target will pass all Leadership tests (regardless of modifiers) until the start of the caster's next Magic phase. The Wizard can instead choose to have his spell target all friendly units within 12". If he does so, the casting value is increased to 18+

FXORCISM (I and Ameliana)

Light Music excels at the screening and distruction of supernatural creatures - foul creatures from the Realm of Chaos and the unquiet dead car from the Lore of Light inflicts a number of hits on an energy unit, it will cause an estra D6 hits (e.g. 2D6 hits would become 3D6 hits) if the target is Undead or a Darmon

4 NET OF AMYNTOK

Cast on 10

The levendary Net of Amontok space ramoured to have been spore to hold the Great Deceiver itself.

Not of Amountsk is a bey with a range of 24". The target unit must pass a Strength test every time it moves (included moving as a charger, fleeing, pursuing, moving compulsorily, etc.) or shoots or casts spells until the start of the caster's next Mapic phase. If the test is passed, the target acts normally. If the test is failed, the unit is unable to perform the desired action, remaining in place and taking D6 Strength 4 hits from the net's barbs of light. The Wizard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 48". If he does so, the casting value is increased to 13+.

5. BANISHMENT

Cast on 10+

The parest light can destroy anything tainted by darkness,

Banishment is a manic missile with a range of 24" - the target suffers 2D6 hits. The Strength of the hits is equal to 4 plus the number of Wittards that know snells from the Lore of Light within 12" of the caster (not counting the caster himself). Successful ward saves taken against Realishment must be re-rolled. The Wirard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 48". If he does so, the casting value



6. BIRONA'S TIMEWARP

Cast on 12+

The Wizard infuses his allies with Light Magic, freeing them from the passage of time and speeding their actions

Birma's Timetoarp is an augment spell with a range of 12". The target's Movement is doubled, and its Attacks increased by 1 until the start of the caster's next Magic phase. The unit also gains the Always Strikes First special rule until the start of the caster's next Marric phase. The Wigard can choose to instead have his spell target all friendly units within 12". If he does so, the casting value is



LIFEBLOOM (Lore Attribute)

Life nook inte eccase to propage, and even the casting of the simplest of spelic are bring forth the full bloom of renewal. Its wholesome energies can immigrante and how, relating the whole boosts and stanching blood hos. When a spell from the Lore of Life is successfully care, the Waned (or another freendly model within 127) instantly recovers a single Would lost enfort in the Life.

EARTH BLOOD (Signature Spell) Cast on 8+

Tapping into the Winds of Magic, the Wizard creates a charm of rebirth that bestress great resilience upon himself and his companious.

Earth Blood is an augment spell that is cast upon the Wizard and his unit (if any). They have the Regeneration (5+) special rule until the start of the caster's next Magic phase.

1 AWAKENING OF THE WOOD Cast on 6+

Trees have long and tavathful memories, needing only a little magical encourarement to lash out with root and branch.

Acoakening of the Wood is a direct damage spell with a range of 18" and causes D6 Strength 4 hits. If the target is even partially within a forest, the number of hits is increased to 2D6.

2 FLESH TO STONE

Cast on 8+

The Winard transmutes his allies' mortal form to unyielding rack.

Flow to Stone is an augment spell with a range of 24°. The target unit has +2 to its Toughness value until the start of the caster's next Mapic phase.

3. THRONE OF VINES

Cast on 8+

The Wizard fashious for himself a realking throne of vine and bracken, to renew and strengthen his connection with the living world.

Remains in play. Throw of Viver is an augment spell cast upon the Wizard. Whilst the spell is in effect, every time the Wizard miscasts, roll a dice. On a 2+, the miscast is ignored.

Furthermore, the Wizard's castings of the following spells have the additional benefits given below (it does not change the effects of swells that have already been cast):

- Earth Blood grants Regeneration (4+) rather than Regeneration (5+).
- · Attackening of the Wood instead inflicts hits at Strength 6.
- · Flesh to Stone instead adds +4 Toughness.
- · Reprotech instead restores D6+1 wounds worth of models.
- · Shield of Thorny instead hits at Strength 4.

4. SHIELD OF THORNS

Cast on 9.

At the Wittard's command, crataling brambles burst from the ground, forming a living barrier around his allies.

Remains in play. Shidd of Thorw is an augment spell with a range of 24". At the end of each Magic phase, any enemy unit in base contact with the target suffers 2D6 Strength 3 hits.

5. REGROWTH

Cast on 12+

Invoking the name of Dathandor, lord of the ancient wilddrives, the Witand infast his faller friends with fresh life, closing research and healing broken bone: with supernatural speed.

Remote is an augment spell with a range of 24". The target unit instantly recovers D3+1 Wounds' worth of models slain earlier in the battle (cavalry count as 2 models). The wounds in the unit are repained in a strict order. First, the champion is resurrected, and then the musician (standard bearers are never resurrected - if the bearry's been slain, the banner is gone for good), displacing rankand-file models as required. Then rank-and-file models with multiple Wounds (including command figures) are healed to their starting value. Finally, any remaining wounds resurrect rank and file models (in the case of multiple wound rank and file models, the first resurrected models must be fully healed before another can be resurrected, and so on). These models are added to the front rank until it reaches at least five models - additional models can then be added to the front or rear rank. If the unit already has more than one rank, models can only be added to the rear rank. Reprotech cannot take a unit beyond its starting size, and cannot be used to heal characters or their mounts. The Wizard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 48". If he does so, the casting value of Revealed to 15+.

6. THE DWELLERS BELOW

Cast on 18+

Gnarled creatures energy from the ground, their steely strong forgers tearing at the fues' flesh, clatching their linds and dragging them down to tobo knows what fate.

The Detailer's Bolove is a direct damage spell with a range of 12°. Every model in the target unit must pass a Strength test or be shain, with no saves of any kind allowed. The Wizard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 24°. If he does so, the casting value is increased to 21 4.



ICESHARD BLIZZARD (Signature Snell) Cast on 7+

Razor-sharp shards of sice harl from the chill skies to blind and dishearten the for.

Ionizer Kitszarf is a bes with a range of 24°. The mapt suffers a -1 modifier to all To Het rule (both shooting and close combar) and to is a Landenbay multi be start of the castr's not Majie plane. Shooting antick that do not use Kallinis (Sall must rill +4 on a 126 before imig, or the shoity) is soft. The Wands on choose to estand the range of this spell to 44°. If he does so, the casting value is increased to 10+4°.

1 HARMONIC CONVERGENCE

Cast on 6+

Divining ampicious right, the caster guides the minds of his fellows marriers,

Harosovic Convergence is an augment spell with a range of 24°. Until the start of the caster's next Magic phase, the target re-rolls all To Hirt, To Wound and armour save rolls of 1. The caster can choose to have this spell target all friendly units within 12°. If he does so, the casting value is increased to 12+.

2. WIND BLAST

Cast on 7+

The Wizard seizes the tainds of the battlefield, directing them against the field

What Mair is a mapic involve with a range of 24°. The target is 'poshed D1+1' divergence ways from the catter of fewor not change fixing). If the target unit course into contact with improved terminit is throwy 1° away and here. The Strength T and and the D1 Strength 1 has the D1 strength 1 has the dim dim D1 Strength 1 his. The catter can choose to normate with strength 1 with The catter can choose to summary a marge realist which the target target the target marget 1 his transmitting the target target target the target target the target target the target target target the target t

3. CURSE OF THE MIDNIGHT WIND Cast on 10+

Only three words of this ancient tongue are known in modern days; three words to unleash a carse that was old when the world was young.

Curve of the Middight Wind's a here with a range of 24°. The target must re-roll all 6s when rolling to hit, to wound and armour surves until the start of the caster's next Magic phase. The Wirard can instead choose to have this spell target all enemy units within 12°. If the does so, the casting value is 20+.

ROILING SKIES (Lorr Attribute)

Spells from the Lore of Heavens manipulite the ethers of the skies. Even a single cantrip can upper the delicate balance of the heavens, unleading waves of face that buffer and paramel skyloard orestatures. When a spell from the Lore of Heavens targets an ensumy flying unit or a model with the Fly special rule, the target suffers Do Strength 4 hs, in addition to any other effects caused by the spell.

4. URANNON'S THUNDERBOLT

Cast on 10+

With a crack of shunder, she Wizard calls docon an almighty hall of lightning and hurls is at the enemy.

Urannov? Thunderbul is a magic missile with a range of 24" that causes D6 Strength 6 hits. The Wirard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 48". If he does so, the casting value is increased to 13+.



5. COMET OF CASANDORA

Cast on 12+

Reaching out across the Winds of Magic into the highest heavens, the Wizard drates a scandering meteorite deten seconds the battlefield.

This spil is care upon any final point on the tabless. Funce a sublements over the strength ends of the solic is ideal for the Foren is generated and the strength ends of the strength end of papers' following the days franks. On a score of 1 of a other and the papers is a strength partice. On a score of 1 of a other and the score strength endory. All uses first endors which are within a 120° or mersky, by the counter. Each out strenck by the courter table to be score to the the experiment. Each out strenck by the courter table to be strength endorse and the score of the score of a 4.00 be strength endorse which endorses the score of the score of the score strength endorse rules counter. Our care the courter the courter strengt which counter rules the max and two counters are added ends there. Notes that the start of the courting which is increased to 34.00.

6. CHAIN LIGHTNING

Cast on 15+

Lightning hursts from the Witzard's hands and arcs across the battlefield, leaping from for to for with crackling fury.

Claim Lightning is a direct damage spell with a range of 24°. Claim Lightning causes Dis Strength 6 kins. Does the damage has been resolved, poil a Die on a 3 or more, choose an energy within 6° of the initial target – the hightning lenges to that taut, which suffers D is Strength 6 kins. Keep rolling for farther victims (scale within 6° of the targets (sum can only be the target of Classis Lightning once per Magic rehase).

THE LORS OF MACK



SMOKE AND MIRRORS (Lore Attribute)

Shalow Witzerds are matters of illusion and displacement, able to melt unsy sim the mat as if they had search been there at all. Their spelis often have more careting of relayourtains were mist the larger secrets, associated and anseen by the enemy. After a spell from the Lore of Shadow is successfully care and models, the careting Wixed can choose to immediately snep places with a fixedly character of the same troop page asysteme within 18°.

MELKOTH'S MYSTIFYING MIASMA Cast on 5+ (Signature Spell)

The Wizard creates a numbing fog that causes his foolish foe to listlessly stagger and stumble.

Midelsh Applying Manaw in a be with a range of 44°. The trapy unit, Weapon Sills, Billishi Sill, Jindiwiro or Movement (you choose which) in reduced by D3 (you minimum of 1) until the nardine careful wears and place plane. The Minerel can choose to cart more powerful version of this spell that instead reduces all four dumateristics (slow) for all D3 for each. - make one red and apply it to all Sure dumateristics). If the does so, the carding value of Midelsh Mattifier Manaw in increments to 10-4.

1. STEED OF SHADOWS

Cast on 5+

A coal-black, insubstantial drake materialises to carry a hero away on wings of night.

Steed of Shadows is an augment spell that can be cast on the Wazard or a friendly character within 12°. The target immediately makes a move using the Fly special rule as if it were the Remaining Moves sub-phase.

2. THE ENFEEBLING FOE

Cast on 10+

Deceived by the Grey Wizard's wiles, the enemy's burdens lie impossibly heavy upon their shoulders.

Remains in play. The Exfering For is a hex spell with a range of 18". All models in the target unit have their Strength reduced by D3 (to a minimum of 1) for the duration of the spell. The Wizard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 36". If he does so, the custing value of the Exfering for is increased to 13+.

3. THE WITHERING

Cast on 13+

The Wizard reaches into the minds of the foe, instigating nebulous images of weakness and doubt.

Remains in play. The Winkering is a hex with a range of 18° . All models in the target unit have their Toughness reduced by D3 (to a minimum of 1) for the duration of the spell. The Winard can extend the range of this spell to 36° . If he does so, the casting value is increased to 16° .

4. THE PENUMBRAL PENDULUM Cast on 134

A ghostly razor-edged pendulum materialises in the air above the Wizard. On his imple word of command, the pendulum recings towards the energy, picking up speed as it does so. It the pendulum real enough to kill or is it just a emjoure's trick? Only a fool would and in its path to find out.

The Passworked Pandalam is a direct damage spell. Ratend a straight line, 6De² in length, directly away from the caster. Each model in the way (daterminical as for a bouncing canonoball) must you an Indirative text or suffer a Straight 10 lint causing Multiple Wonnder (20)). The Witzen can choose to double the Pansalvall Pandalam) range (multing the distance twice the total rolled). If the does so, the casting value of the spell in increased to 1814.

5. PIT OF SHADES

Cast on 14+

The Witzard opens a vortex to the infamous Pit of Shades. Terrified tearrives fall screaming through the portal, planmeting to a dimension filled with shadow and the incessant voailing of 'those who deadl browd'.

Fig of Salach is a direct damage spell. Place the small round template anythere within 2^{-4} – its the scatter Dor. All models underneath the translate must pass an Initiative tot or be dragged to their DOOMI (remove them as casualise with no saves of any kind allowsh). The Wared can choose to create a vater portal, using the ages template nather than the small removale. If the does so, the casting value is increased to 17+ and the template scatters 2D6⁶⁷ ender than D8⁻⁷.

6. OKKAM'S MINDRAZOR

Cast on 18+

The Wizzard summons phantasmal ecoapons for his allies that shred the folds of consciousness and yeason. Victims of these mindrazor believe themselves slain, and so they die.

Obtain's Mandemary is an suggestent spell with a range of 18° and lates until the start of the control ways phase. Models in the target with all close control attacks while the spell remains in effect (any Storugh bounses from weapons are givened). The Wards can choose to extend the range of this spell to 36°. The does so, the continue values of Ochiany' Markamar in increased to 21+.



LIFE LEECHING (Lore Attribute)

Winnels who practise the magic of death can channel the life-force of frees into their spells. When a Lore of Death spell is meshed, reli a Do for each summed woord caused by the spell (models removed by the Parple San of Xernes each add a mmber of date equal to their Wounds characteristic). For each 5 or 6 rolled on these additional date, the Warnd immediativy adds a date to his army's gover pool.

SPIRIT LEECH (SIGNATURE SPELL) Cast on 7+ The Wizard extends an ebon hand trecards the chosen fae, leeching its third through tainted corrers

Specif Look is a direct damage spell with a range of 12⁺ that targets a single enemy model (even a character in a unit). Both caster and any anger will a 10- and their respective numofield Landership values. For every point the caster wiss by the target suffer a wornd, with one arrows rave allowed. The Waractel can choose to extend the range of this spell to 24⁺. If he does so, the casting value is increased to 10⁺.

L ASPECT OF THE DREADKNIGHT Cast on 4+ An invisible aura of horror surrounds the Wizard's allies. Only the bravest foes will note stand before them.

Aport of the Druadbuight is an augment spell with a range of 24°. The target unit causes Fear until the start of the caster's next Magic phase. The Winard can choose to make the target even more horrifying if he wishes, and cause Terror, rather than Fear. If he does so, the casting value is increased to 9+.

2 THE CARESS OF LANIPH

Cast on 6+

Laniph was an Arabyan sorceress whose ardent passions were eclipsed only by her capriciousness. It takes little effort to call her back from the spirit world to caress a new lover of the caster's clossing...

The Game of Langib is a direct damage spell with a range of 12° dust tregtes a single energy model (even a character in a unit). If successfully cast, the target ouffers a number of hits equal to 2D6 minus hin own Strength. Hits from the Game of Langib case a wound on a roll of 4+, with no arrow awas slowed. The Winzed case choose to extend the range of this spell to 24°. If he does so, the extint walks is increased to 24+.

3. SOULBLIGHT

Cast on 9+

Harnessing the sickly power of Shyish, the Wizard weakens his fees' will to survive the battle.

Southlight is a hex spell with a range of 24°. The target has -1 Strength and -1 Toughness (to a minimum of 1) until the start of the caster's next Magic phase. The Wirard can choose to have this spell target all enemy units within 24° – in which case the casting value is 18+.

4 DOOM AND DARKNESS

Cast on 10+

Spirits of the departed assail the caster's foes, sapping their resolve

Remains in play. Down and Darkness is a hex spell with a range of 24". The target suffers a -3 penalty to its Leadership. The Wizard can choose to extend the range of this spell to 48". If he does so, the casting value is increased to 13+.

5. THE FATE OF BJUNA

Cast on 13+

Bjuma totas a mighty totarrior, so the story goes, but famously never smilled – leastroays not until the trickter god cursed him to laugh until his sider raptured and split. Tellers of this tale curnes agree turbane fate totas correse: Bjuma's, or the servants tobo had to clean up the mest.

The fate of Byons is a direct damage spell with a range of 12² and targets a single enemy model (even a character in a unit). The target suffers a number of bits equal to Dis Minus his own Teophness. Hits from the Fate of Byons cause a wound on a roll of 2+, with no armour areas allowed. If the target survives, he is subject to SpacifyIT for the remainder of the game.

6. THE PURPLE SUN OF XEREUS Cast on 15+

A colossal orb of parple-adged darkness materialises upon the battlefield. Those who do not escape its touch are turned to inert and unfeeling crystal.

Remains in play. The Purple Suu is a magical vortex that uses the small round template. Once the template is placed, the player then nominates the direction in which the Purple Sun will move To determine how many inches the template moves, roll an artillery dice and multiply the result by 3. Any model touched by the template must pass an Initiative test or be slain outright with no saves of any kind allowed. If the result on the artillery dice is a misfire, centre the template on the caster and roll a scatter dice and a D6. The template moves the number of inches equal to the result of the D6, in the direction shown on the scatter dice (if you roll a Hit!, use the little arrow shown on the Hit! symbol). In either event, in subsequent turns, the Purple Sun travels in a random direction and moves a number of inches equal to the roll on an artillery dice. If a misfire is rolled in subsequent turns, the Purple Sun collapses in upon itself and is removed. A particularly brave Wizard can infuse the Purple Saw of Xerray with more power, so that it uses the large round template instead. If he does so, the casting value is 25+.

THE LORES OF MACIC



MAGIC ITEMS

The Warhammer world is rich in magical artefacts and holy relies of great power. Soul-drinking swords, impenetrable suits of armour, ancient tomes of sorcerous knowledge and lost rings of incalculable might – many a war has been fought solely for the possession of such treasures and the power they bestow.

SELECTING MAGIC ITEMS

Each Verhammer Armis book describes in detail the many direct kinds of magic item that each army can use. Here we shall causine the magic items what we commonly used by all races. Where a model has the option of choice in his army line entry, as will ary retrictions on one or more magic items, it will be clowly stated in his army line entry, as will ary retrictions on the magic items be can take. If a magic item is have been deep and on the line arming item have been deep and on the line of the states of the state of the state of the states of the states of certain magic items, which is reflected in their points value.

In addition to any specific restrictions noted in the relevant Warhammer Armies book, there are rules that govern the selection of all magic items, regardless of the bearer's allegiance. These can be summarised as follows:



can only have one of each in your army unless otherwise stated in the maric item's rules.

appendix as 'common' I mean to say that they

sense. Even the least potent magic item is a

sorcery, and is extremely rare. A fortunate

world and not that they are commonplace in any

dangerous device, steeped in the fickle powers of

hoarder of trinkets can consider himself lucky to

see one example of a particular 'common' magic item in his lifetime, if at all.

Whilst I describe the magic items in this

UNIQUE Magic items are considered to be unique - you



High Elf Magi

BALANCE OF POWER

Usually, only characters can carry mapic items, Each model can only carry one of each type of manic item Manic items are divided into six categories: Magic Weapons, Magic Armour, Talismans, Enchanted Items, Arcane Items and Marie Standards, Each category covers a narticular kind of item and 'family' of effects -Manie Weapons my honuses to a model's fighting skill, for example, whilst Talismans provide protection. A model can only ever choose one item from each category. If he were to do otherwise, the magical emanations from two similar types of item would overlap, cancel out and ultimately explode in a suitably messy fashion (although it would probably look very spectacular, so it wouldn't be a complete loss). The only exceptions to this rule are some special characters, who might well have two magical wrapons, for example. In these (rare) cases, we assume that magical safeguards have been built in to the items so that both can be borne by the

MAGICAL INTERFERENCE

Wrands cannot chose magic armoru unless the phare an option for hormal' armour. Magic is the ettil of dreams and nebulosus imigiations, and netsus uncasily locagicide the physical. There is litelts more real and physical than wrought enalt, and its transciss settable; casts a peculiar and unyielding thadow in a Warad's wind. A sa enalt, most Waradi-annot widel the Winds of Magic if they wear armour of any kind – their embrace – and so cannot chose an item of Magic-Armour.

The only exception to this is when a Wizard has armour as part of his standard equipment or an option for "normal" armour, such as light armour, or a shield. Such sorcerers have trained their mind to focus and can wear armour without confusion or penalty. The chief examples of this kind of Wizard are the dread Chaos Sorcerers of the frozen north.

MAGIC WEAPONS

Magic weapons are artefacts of bloodshed, pure and simple – they grant the wielder extra abilities or an increased characteristic profile so that he might better slay his enemies.

Unless otherwise stated, a magic weapon is treated as a hand weapon, and follows the rules for such, with these exceptions:

- A magic weapon cannot be used alongside an additional hand weapon to gain an extra attack.
- A magic weapon cannot be used alongside a shield to gain a parry save.

PAIRED WEAPONS

S

FI

SI

5

Paired weapons are Magic Weapons that are bought as a pair. In addition to their other effects, paired weapons grant the bearer the Extra Attack special rule.

IANT BLADE lose combut attacks made with this st solved at +3 Strength.	60 points word are	BERSERKER The bearer has never lose his
WORD OF BLOODSHED he wielder has +3 Attacks.	60 points	SWORD OF Close combat resolved at +
BSIDIAN BLADE rmour saves cannot be taken against rused by the Obsidian Blade.	50 points wounds	COLD SICI Attacks from 1 Initiative 10.
CRE BLADE lose combat attacks made with this st solved at +2 Strength. WORD OF STRIFE		SWORD OF Attacks made +1 bonus to 1
his wielder of the Sword of Strife has	s +2 Attacks.	BITING BL. Close combat
ENCER'S BLADES aired weapons. The bearer has Weap WORD OF ANTI-HEROES he bearer has +1 Strength and +1 / erry enemy character in base contact	30 points Attack for with him or	armour piercia RELIC SWC Attacks made wound on a 5- lower result.
s unit. These bonuses are calculated ch round of close combat and last ur PELLTHIEVING SWORD		SHRIEKING The bearer ca
Wizard that suffers unsaved wound pellthieving Sword loses one of his sp letermined randomly) for each unsav	s from the cells red wound.	TORMENTO A monster or wound from the special rule for
WORD OF SWIFT SLAYING he wielder of the Sword of Swift Slay hways Strikes First special rule.	25 points sing has the	WARRIOR H
WORD OF BATTLE he wielder has +1 Attack.	20 points	from Warrior each unsaved

WHAT'S IN A NAME?

The magic weapons listed below often have a name that describes them as specifically being a smooth or another particular type of wapon. This doesn't mean that the model has to have a sword to use the 'Ogre Blade'. We can simply assume that his axe, hammer or other suitable hand weapon has the same properties and is, for example, an 'Ogre Axe'.

FM USING THIS ONE

A character that has a magic close combat weapon cannot use any other close combat weapons (his magic weapon is his pride and joy, and he's sure as suntile going to use it). If a character has more than one magic weapon, he must choose which one to use at the start of the combat (unless a rule specifies that both can be used at the same time) — the chosen weapon must be used for the duration of the combat.

BERSERKER SWORD The bearer has the Frenzy special rule an never lose his Frenzy.	20 points d can
SWORD OF MIGHT Close combat attacks made with this swo resolved at +1 Strength.	20 points rd are
COLD SICIL SWORD Attacks from the Gold Sigil Sword are m Initiative 10.	15 points ade at
SWORD OF STRIKING Attacks made with the Sword of Striking +1 bonus to hit.	15 points receive a
BITINC BLADE Close combat attacks made by the Biting armour piercing.	10 points Blade are
RELIC SWORD Attacks made with the Relic Sword will a wound on a 5+, unless they would norm lower result.	10 points lways ally need a
SHRIEKING BLADE The bearer causes Fear.	10 points

TORMENTOR SWORD 5 points A monster or character that suffers an unsaved wound from the Tormentor sword has the Stapidity special rule for the rest of the game.

WARRIOR BANE 5 points A monster or character that suffers unsaved wounds from Warrior Bane permanently loses one Attack for each unsaved wound (to a minimum of Attacks 1).



Ducarf Than



Queen Khalidi

MAGIC ARMOUR

This section contains enchanted suits of armour – majcial breastplates, ensorcelled shields, and so on. Only the most influential characters will be clad in magical armour from top to toe. Most characters might have a single piece of magical armour, which they combine with ordinary pieces of equipment.

Except where otherwise stated, magical suits of armour and shields follow the same rules as

ARMOUR OF DESTINY 50 points Heavy armour. The Armour of Destiny grants the wearer a ++ ward save.

TRICKSTER'S HELM 50 points The wearer counts his armour save as being one point higher than normal. Any successful roll to wound made against the wearer of the Trickster's Helm must be re-rolled.

ARMOUR OF SILVERED STEEL 45 points The Armour of Silvered Steel grants its wearer a 2+ armour save that cannot be improved by any means.

ARMOUR OF FORTUNE 35 points Heavy armour. The Armour of Fortune grants the wearer a 5+ ward save.

HELM OF DISCORD 30 points The water consts his amoust was to being one point higher than normal. In addition, at the water of each Close Combat phase, choose as energy character in base contact with the barer or his unit. That character must immediately that a Landenship test. If the tori is field, the character succumb to the holm's sibilitari withops of malica and jacknuy; In this Close Comba phase, the vicim cannot make attacks and is his reasoninging): mundane ones but keep in mind that:

- A model can only have one suit of armour and one shield, so if you give a model a magical suit of armour or a magical shield, it replaces any mundane equivalent already worn by the model.
- A magic shield is treated as a normal shield, but cannot be used alongside a hand weapon to gain a parry save.

CLITTERING SCALES . 25 points Light armour. Enemics suffer a -1 to hit penalty when attempting to strike the wearer in close combat.

SHIELD OF PTOLOS 25 points Shield. The bearer has a 1+ armour save against shooting attacks.

SPELLSHIELD 20 points Shield. The bearer gains Magic Resistance (1).

GAMBLER'S ARMOUR 20 points Heavy armour. The Gambler's Armour grants the wearer a 6+ ward save.

DRACONHELM 10 points The wearer counts his armour save as being one point higher than normal. The wearer has a 2+ ward save against flaming attacks.

ENCHANTED SHIELD 5 points Shield. The bearer counts his armour save as being two points higher than normal, rather than the usual one point that a shield would normally grant.

CHARMED SHIELD 5 points Shield. One use only. The first hit suffered by the

Shield. One use only. The tirst nit suffered by the bearer of the Charmed Shield is discounted on a roll of 2+.



TALISMANS

The Talismans category includes charms, amulets and other tokens of protection.

TALISMAN OF PRESERVATION The Talisman of Preservation grants the be ward save.	45 points sarer a 4+	OBSIDIAN TRINKET The Obsidian Trinket grants Magic Resistan	15 points ce (1).
OBSIDIAN LODESTONE The Obsidian Lodestone grants Magic Re		TALISMAN OF PROTECTION The Talisman of Protection grants the bearer ward save.	15 points a 6+
TALISMAN OF ENDURANCE The Talisman of Endurance grants the beat ward save.		SEED OF REBIRTH The beaver of the Seed of Rebirth has the Regeneration (6+) special rule.	10 points
OBSIDIAN AMULET The Obsidian Amulet grants the bearer M Resistance (2).	30 points lagic	DRAGONBANE GEM The bearer of the Dragonbane Gem has a 2 save against flaming attacks.	5 points + ward
DAWNSTONE The bearer re-rolls failed armour saves.	25 points	PIDGEON PLUCKER PENDANT This item grants the bearer a 5+ ward save wounds caused in close combat by models t the Fly special rule.	against
OPAL AMULET One use only. The Opal Amulet bestows a save against the first wound suffered by the after which its power fides and it cannot be during the game.	e bearer,	the Fity special rule. LUCKSTONE One use only. The Luckstone allows the bearer to re-roll a single failed armour s	5 points

MAGIC STANDARDS

Some units are allowed to carry magic banners, as detailed in their army list entry. A Magic Standard can only be carried by a standard bearer, as shown in the army list in the relevant Warhammer Armies book. The only character permitted to carry a Magic Standard is the army's Battle Standard Bearer.

RAMPACER'S STANDARD 55 points A unit with this magic standard can re-roll its charge distance dice.

WAILING BANNER 50 points A unit with this banner causes Terror in its enemies.

RANGER'S STANDARD 50 points A unit with the Ranger's Standard has the Strider special rule.

RAZOR STANDARD 45 points Models in a unit with the Razor Standard have the Armour Piercing special rule.

WAR BANNER 35 points A unit with this banner adds +1 to combat resolution.

BANNER OF SWIFTNESS 15 points Models in a unit with the Banner of Swiftness have +1 to their Movement characteristic. LICHEBONE PENNANT 15 points Models in a unit with the Lichebone Pennant have Maric Resistance (1).

STANDARD OF DISCIPLINE 15 points Models in a unit with the Standard of Discipline have +1 Leadership, but cannot use the General's Inspiring Presence special rule.

BANNER OF 10 points ETERNAL FLAME Models in a unit with the Banner of Eternal Flame have Flaming Attacks.

GLEAMING PENNANT 5 points One use only. A unit with the Gleaming Pennant can re-roll its first failed Leadership test.

SCARECROW BANNER 5 points A unit with the Scarecrow Banner causes Fear in models with the Fly special rule.



Lizardman Standard Bearer

ARCANE ITEMS

Arcane items are items that enhance a Wizard's magical nowers in some fashion. Only a character with a Wizard level can carry an Arcane Item Characters with no sensitivity to

magical essences and mysteries will either find an Arcane Item useless and inert or have their brains sucked out through their cars should they try to use it.

BOOK OF ASHUR

FEEDBACK SCROLL

50 points One use only When an energy spell has been cast, a

The spell is cast as normal, but, after the spell has the snell. The casting Wigard takes a wound for every result of 5+ rolled, with no armour saves allowed.

SCROLL OF LEECHING 50 points

One use only. When an enemy spell has been cast, a Wizard who has a Seroll of Leeching can read it instead of attempting to dispel the spell. The spell is cast as normal but after the snell has been resolved. the hearer of the scroll adds a number of dispel dice to spell (remember that your disnel pool cannot exceed 12 dice)

SIVEURS HEX SCROLL

attempting to dispel the spell. The spell is cast as normal, but a portion of the spell's energy is or under his wizard level on a D6. If he fails, an amphibian transformation takes hold and he becomes a small, slimy toad! Whilst transformed, the wizard cannot channel or cast spells, all of his magic items and mundane equipment (armour, weapons, etc.) are reduced to 1 (except for his wounds, which are unaffected) His controlling pharr can roll a D6 at the start of each of his subsequent magic phases; the to his normal form (but still attempts to eat fires for several days afterward).

POWER SCROLL

35 points One use only A Power Scroll can be used when the Wizard makes a casting attempt. During that casting force (and a miscast).

WAND OF IET 35 points One use only. The bearer can increase one of his casting results by an additional +D6, after other casting dice have been rolled. This extra power dice can contribute to casting a spell with irresistible force

FORRIDDEN ROD

70 points

50 points

One use only. The forbidden rod adds + D6 dice to the power pool at the start of the caster's own magic phase, but also inflicts D3 wounds on the bearer (with

TRICKSTER'S SHARD

25 points

35 points

One use only. Declare you are using this item at the start of one of your magic phases. For the duration of the phase, when one of the bearer's spells is dispelled by an enemy wizard, roll a D6. On a 5+, that wizard suffers a wound with no armour saves allowed.



EARTHING ROD 25 points One use only. If the wizard rolls on the miscast table

DISPEL SCROLL

25 noints

One use only. When an enemy spell has been cast, a wizard who has a dispel scroll can read it instead of attempting to dispel the spell by using dispel dice. This automatically dispels the enemy spell; no dice roll is required. Note that even a dispel scroll will not Note also that a dispel scroll cannot be used to dispel spells that remain in play other than at the moment

POWER STONE

One use only. The Wizard can declare that he is using he does so, two extra dice are added to the power dice that he is going to roll (you still need to roll at least

SCEPTRE OF STABILITY

15 points

15 points

20 points

of his dispel results by an additional + D6, after his other dispel dice have been rolled. This extra dispel dice can contribute to dispelling with irresistible force.

CHANNELLING	STAFF	15 points
The Wizard adds +	1 to all of his channeling	attempts.

SCROLL OF SHIELDING

Wizard who has a Scroll of Shielding can read it instead of attempting to dispel the spell. The spell is cast as normal, but the target of the spell is granted a 4+ ward save against any wounds caused by the spell.



Wind Elf Saellweaver

ENCHANTED ITEMS

The Enchanted Items category includes all manner of wonderful artefacts too unique or ameific to be included in another category.

WIZARDING HAT

The wearer is treated as being a Level 2 Wizard who can use a randomly chosen spell lore. However, he also has the Stupidity special rule.

100 points

FOZZRIK'S FOLDING FORTRESS 100 mints After deployment zones have been agreed, but before the armies have been deployed, place a similar size) in your deployment zone to represent building (see page 126 for details).

If you do not have a suitable building to place, you

ARABYAN CARPET 50 points Infantry or monstrous infantry models on foot only. The owner of this magical carpet has the Fly special rule. However, he cannot join units,

CROWN OF COMMAND 35 noints The bearer of the Crown of Command has the Stubborn special rule.

HEALING POTION 35 points One use only. The Healing Potion can be drunk at the start of the controlling player's turn. The the battle.

FEATHERFOE TORC 35 points Flying creatures (and their riders) must re-roll successful rolls to hit against the bearer (and any unit he is with) in close combat.

RUBY RING OF RUIN 25 noints Bound spell (power level 3). The Ruby Ring of Ruin contains the Fireball spell (see the Lore of Fire).

They are often amongst the most prized magical items to possess.

THE TERRIFYING MASK OF EEE 25 points The wearer of this mask causes Terror. However, other models can never use his Leadershin.

POTION OF STRENCTH One use only The Potion of Strength can be drunk at the start of any player's turn. The imbiber has +3 Strength until the end of the turn.

POTION OF TOUGHNESS 20 points One use only. The Potion of Toughness can be drunk at the start of any player's turn. The imbiber has +3 Toughness until the end of the turn.

THE OTHER TRICKSTER'S SHARD

15 points

Models in base contact with the bearer (friends and

IRONCURSE ICON

5 points The character (and any unit he is with) gain a 6+



POTION OF FOOLHARDINESS 5 points One use only. The Potion of Foolhardiness can be drunk at the start of any player's turn. The imbiber has the Immune to Psychology and the Devastating Charge special rules until the end of the player turn.

POTION OF SPEED 5 points One use only. The Potion of Speed can be drunk at the start of any player's turn. The imhiber has +3







SUMMARY

PLAYER TURN

1 MOVEMENT PHASE

Under normal circumstances, each unit can act in just one of the following sub-phases:

- Start of Turn
- i. Charge
- iii. Compulsory Moves
- w. Remaining Moves

2 MAGIC PHASE

Roll for Winds of Magic, then follow the steps below until the player cannot, or does not wish to, cast any more spells:

- i. Cast
- i. Dispe
- iii. Spell Resolution
- v. Next Spell



3. SHOOTING PHASE

Work through each unit that wishes to shoot, one by one, following the steps below:

- . Nominate Unit to Shoot
- ii. Choose A Target
- iii. Roll to Hit
- iv. Roll to Wound
- v. Take Saving Throws
- vi. Remove Casualties

4 CLOSE COMBAT PHASE

The player whose turn it is decides which order to resolve close combats, each time following the steps below:

- Fight a Round of Close Combat
- Calculate Close Combat Result
- Loser takés a Break Test
- Flee and Pursue

MOVEMENT

MOVEMENT TYPES SUMMARY

All Movement is calculated at the speed of the slowest model in the unit.

Normal Move	=	Movement Characteristic
March Move	-	Movement Characteristic x 2
Charge Roll	=	Movement Characteristic + 2D6*
Flee Roll Pursue Roll	-	2D6* . 2D6*

 If the unit has the Smiftstride special rule, roll 3D6 and use the two highest disc scores.

SHOOTING

TO HIT

Ballistic Skill 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 To Hit score 6 5 4 3 2 1 0 -1 -2 -3

SHOOTING MODIFIERS

Moving and Shooting	-1
Firing at Long Range	-1
Standing and Shooting	-1
Target Behind Soft Cover	-1*
Target Behind Hard Cover	-2*
Target has Skirmishers special rule	-1

 If the target is in bath soft and hard cover, see only the hard cover modifier.

7+ TO HIT

- 6 followed by a 4, 5 or 6
- 6 followed by a 5 or 6
- 6 followed by a 6
- 10+ Impossible!





Empire Price

COMBAT

COMBAT	RESULT	POINTS	

Wounds Inflicted	+1 combat result for each wound inflicted.
Charge!	+1 combat result if the unit charged.
Extra Ranks	+1 combat result for each extra rank with at least five models, to a maximum of +3.
	Count the highest rank bonus on your side in the fight.*
Standard	+1 combat result for one or more standard bearers.
Flank Attack	+1 combat result if your unit is fighting the enemy unit's flank.**
Rear Attack	+2 combat result if your unit is fighting the enemy unit's rear.**
The High Ground	+1 combat result if one or more of your units charged downhill.
Battle Standard	+1 combat result for one or more Battle Standard Bearers.
Overkill	+1 combat result per excess wound caused in a challenge, to a maximum of +5.
Cannot be claimed by units a	that are being attacked in the flank or rear by enomies that themselves have one or more entry rank.

** Can only be claimed once per facing, per unit

TC	H	IIT	CH/	ART							
					TARCE	TS W	EAPON	SKILL			
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
	1	4+	4+	5+	5+	5+	5+	5+	5+	5+	5+
E	2	3+	4+	4+	4+	5+	5+	5+	5+	5+	5+
SKILL	3	3+	3+	4+	4+	4+	4+	5+	5+	5+	5+
ATTACKER'S WEAPON	4	3+	3+	3+	4+	4+	4+	4+	4+	5+	5+
VEAL	5	3+	3+	3+	3+	4+	4+	4+	4+	4+	4+
A S	6	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	4+	4+	4+	4+_	4+
XB	7	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	4+	4+	4+	4+
ITAG	8	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	44	4+	4+
×	9	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	4+	4+
	10	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	3+	4+

ARMOUR SAVES

Armour	baving Throw
None	None
Light armour	6+
Light armour and shield	5+
Heavy armour	5+
Heavy armour and shield	4+
Mounted + no armour	6+*
Mounted + light armour	5+*
Mounted + light armour and	shield 4+*
Mounted + heavy armour	. 4+*
Mounted + heavy armour an	d shield 3+*
* If the model's mount has bardine, these a	mer instrume in our toin

ARMOUR SAVE MODIFIER TABLE

Strength								
Modifier	-1	-2	-3	-4	÷.	h	.7	

					TARC	ETS 1	OUCH	NESS			
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
	1	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+
_	2	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+
CTH	3	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+
REN	4	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+	6+
AITACKERS STRENGTH	5	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+	6+
KER	6	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+	6+
TAC	7	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+	6+
IV	8	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+	6+
	9	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+	5+
	10	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	2+	3+	4+

PANIC

A unit immediately takes a Panic test when:

- · A unit suffers 25% casualties.
- · A friendly unit is destroyed within 6".
- · A friendly unit fails a break test within 6".
- · It is fled through by a friendly unit.

Only one Panic test is taken per phase.



MAGIC

GENERATING POWER AND DISPEL DICE

- i. Roll 2D6 for Winds of Magic.
- ii. Power Pool = total result.
- iii. Dispel Pool = highest scoring dice result.
- iv. Every Wizard channels one extra dice on the roll of a 6.
- v. Neither the power nor the dispel pool can exceed 12 dice.

CASTING SUMMARY

If the dice roll + caster's Wizard level (the casting total) beats the spell's casting value, the spell is cast.

However ...

- · ... if the total dice roll is less than 3, the spell fails.
- ...if two or more 6s are rolled, the spell is both cast with irresistible force, and miscast.
- · Spells cast with irresistible force cannot be dispelled.



DISPELLING SUMMARY

If the dice roll + dispelling Wizard's level (the dispel total) beats the spell's casting total, the spell is dispelled.

However...

- ... if the total of the dice roll is less than 3, the dispel fails.
- ...if the dispel attempt contains two or more 6s, the dispel automatically succeeds.

SPELL TYPES	DIRECT DAMAGE	MAGIC MISSILES	AUGMENT	HEX	MAGICAL
Lie within forward are?	Y	Y	N	N	Y
Needs line of sight?	N	Y	Y	Y	Y.
Must be within range?	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y
Can be targeted into combat?	N	N	Y	Υ.	n/a
Targets friends	N	N	Y	N	n/a
Targets enemies	Y	Y	N	Y	n/a

MISCAST TABLE

2D6 RESULT

- 2-4 Dimensional Caseade, Centre the large round template over the Wizard – every model undernearth the template (including the Wizard) suffers a Strength 10 hit. Once the damage has been resolved, roll a 30-6. On the score of 3 or less, the Wizard is removed as a casualty: On a roll of 4-6, D6 dice are lost from the overer zool instead.
- 5-6 Calamitous Detonation. Centre the small round template over the Wizard – every model underneath the template (including the Wizard) suffers a Strength 10 hit. Additionally, D6 dice are lost from the power pool.

2D6 RESULT

- Detonation! All models in base contact with the Wizard (bat not the Wizard himself) suffer a Strength 10 hit. Additionally, D6 dice are lost from the power pool.
- 8-9 Magical Feedback. The Wizard and every model on the same side that can generate power or dispel dice suffer a Strength 6 hit. Additionally, D6 dice are lost from the power pool.
- 10-12 Power Drain. The Wizard's level is reduced by D3, to a minimum of 0 and he forgets a single spell for each Wizard level loss (the first is the spell that was miscast – other spells lost are determined randomly). The Wizard cannot attempt to cast further spells this plase.

REFORMING						
TYPE	WHEN	Ld TEST?				
'Normal' Reform	Before moving	No				
Swift Reform	Test after making a normal reform	Yes*				
Combat Reform (lost fight)	After passing Break test	Yes**				
Combat Reform (won/drew fight)	After enemy has passed Break test	No				
Restrain and Reform	After enemy has fled from combat	Yes				
Restrain and Reform	After wiping out all combat enemies	No				

BLACK POWDER WAR MACHINE MISFIRE CHART

D6	(FS	

- 1-2 Destroyed! The war machine is destroyed.
- 3-4 Malfunction. The war machine cannot fire this turn or the next.
- 5-6 May Not Shoot. The war machine can shoot as normal again next turn.

TROOP TYPES							
	RANK WIDTH	HORDE WIDTH	SUPPORTING ATTACKS	SWIFT- STRIDE?			
Infantry	5	10	1	No			
War Beasts	5	10	1	Yes			
Cavalry	5	10	1*	Yes			
Monstrous Infantry	3	6	Up to 3	No			
Monstrous Beasts	3	6	Up to 3	Yes			
Monstrous Cavalry -	3	6	Up to 3*	Yes			
Monsters	n/a	n/a	n/a	No			
Chariot	n/a	n/a	No	Yes			
Swarms	5	10	1	No			
* The mount of	ier not make	apporting alla	da.				

STONE THROWER MISFIRE CHART

D6 RESULT

- 1 Destroyed! The war machine is destroyed.
- 2-3 Disabled. The stone thrower suffers a wound and cannot fire this turn or the next
- 4-6 May Not Shoot. The war machine can shoot as normal again next turn.

ALIIES CHART	TRUSTED	SUSPICIOUS	DESPERATE
Can use allied General's Inspiring Presence	Yes	No	No
Can use allied battle standard's Hold Your Ground	•	No	No
Can be joined by allied characters	Yes	No	No
Cause Panic tests in allies	Yes	Yes	No
Are treated as friendly units for the purposes of spells	lis	Yes	No
Have to take Dangerous Terrain tests when fleeing through allies	No	No	Yes
Can use allied battle standard if the same race	Yes	No	No

* Only if they are chosen from the same Armies book

SUMM

INDEX

2000

l" apart																		
7+ to hit																1	10	

1 2 3 1 0 6 6 8 8 7 8 7
0 1 0 6 6 8 8 7 8 7
106688787
06688787
06688787
6688787
88787
88787
8787
8
7
7
6
4
6
66
19
18
50)
24
57
43
83
86
05
32
34
33
z
4

Ballistic skill (BS)	
Rune Stone	
Barding and movement	
Basic rules and advanced rules	
The Battle Standard Bearer	
The Battlefield	
Berserk Race	
Bestiary	Reference
Blazing Barricade	
Blessed Bulwark	
Bolt Theorem	
Boosted spells	
Bound spells	
Bow	
Brace of pistols	
Break test	
Breath Weapons	
Bridges and other crossings	
Broken concentration	
Buildings	
Close combat resolution	
Defender last	
Fighting the assault	
Garrinning a building	

an I charge:
an I charger
Grapeshat
ast
Cating Board Spells
Carting Value
Chairing a larger
Irresistible force
Misoatt
Nut mangh percer!
Proor limit
The Pomer Paul
Casualties
Cavalry
Challenges
Relation a challener
Champions
Channelling Dispel dice
Channelling Power dice
Character models
Character mounts
Ridden monsters
Characteristic tests
The Characteristics Profile
Characteristics of models
Characteristics of zero
Characters
Characters and amits
Characters in fixing anti-
Low characters
Alipsing to the enemy
Aligning to the enemy
Charge range Charging a fleeing enemy
Charging more than one unit
Declare charge
Eailed charge
Multiple charges on a smit
Redevening the charge
Charge reaction
Charge reaction: (baildings)
Charlots
Charled Fit
Choosing your army
Close combat
Annabias a building
DATE HE
p.0 Tottiond
Examples starts
Webs can atrike?
Who can strike? (building)
Conbat reform
Combat result

Break test
Charge!
Charging (realight combatt)
Disruption
Extra ranks
Extra ranks (multiple combatt)
Flank attack
Flank attack (multiple combatt)
The high ground
The high ground (multiple combatt)
Oterkil'
Rear attack
Rear attack (maliple combatt)
Standard
Standard (multiple contrats)
Woundr inflicted
ombined units
Command groups
ompulsory moves
over
leossbow
33
33
Jangerous terrain
Deployment
Alternating anits
Attenuing and Deployment special rules
Asobasherz
Scentz
Scould
Desperate Allies
Desperate Alles
Devisioning Charge
Distel
Dippl ditr
Diage Inter
Dipe new
Dipeling Bood spells
D' B' white investment for the second
Disruption
Dividing Attacks
Durlicate choices
Dwarf Brewhouse
Deal Developer
Earthblood Mere
Ehun Waystone
Enemy sighted!
Ethaneni
Excess wounds
Extra Attack
Failed charge
Fast Cavalry
Existend flight
Bears 123
Fighting a Warhammer battle
Engin Teo Pasky

Fire on the march
Fire Throwers
First turn
Flail
Flammable
Flank charges
Flee and pursue
Flee!
Diraction of Sinht
Flad chrough
Fleeing off the battlefield
Roll to flee
Fly
Flying Gatadry
Forests
Form on mel
Forming units
Frazile Alliances
Free reform
Frenzy
Game length
The General
General Principles
Ghost Fence
Grand Alliance
Grand Amay
Grapeshot
Great weapon
Halberd
Hand weapons
Hand torapon and shidd
Handgun
Hard cover
Hatred Haunted Mansion
Heros: Killing Diow Hills
Hold
Hold your ground!
The horde
Hover
Idel of Gork (or possibly Mork)
Ignores Cover
Immune to Psychology
Impact Hits
Impassable terrain
Indirect fire (Some Throwers)
Infantry
Initiative (I)
Insane courage
Impiring presence
Irresistible force
Javelin
Joining a unit
Khemrian Quicksand
Killing Blow

The second second

Large Target	
Leadership (Ld)	
Leadership (Lu)	
Leaving a unit	
Lerving a unit	
Line of sight	
Longbow	
"Look Out Sr!"	
"Losk Out Se!"	
The Lores of MagicReference	
Magic	
Marie Items Reference	
Magic Circle	
Magic Resistance (1-3)	
Manocuvres	
Marchiner	
Marshland	
Measuring distances	
Miscasts	
NIRCES	
Misfire charts Black Ponder War Machine	
Black Ponder War Machine	
Store Throtter	
Missile weapons	
Mist-wreathed Swamp	
Models & units	
Models and base sizes	
Modifying dice rolls	
Monster and Handlers	
Monsters	
Master Parties table	
Ridden monsters	
Slain riders or mounts	
Monstrous Beasts	
Monstrous Brass	
Monstrous Cavalry	
Monstreau Cartalry mount	
Monstrous Infantry	
Monstrous ranks	
Morning star	
Move or Fire	
Movement	
Lose models and meterment	
Merce chargers	
More floring unit(s)	
More paraers	
Moving and shoating	
Moving backmards	
Moning from	
Moring (fyers	
Morring of the board	
Moring idenary	
Movement Allowance (M)	
Multi-wound models & multi-wound weapons45	
Multipart buildings	
Multiple close combats	
Multiple combat results	
Multiple combaty and break texts	
Multiple Shots	
Multiple Wennels	
Musicians	
Mysterious terrain	
Nehekharan Sphynx	
01 I III	
Obstacles	
Oven ground	
Obstacles	

NDEX INDEX

Panic
Parry save
Pistol
Points values
Poisoned Attacks
Power dice
Nat rough percer!
Poper limit
The Power Pool
Pursuit
Descrit (multiple day combits) 60
Roll to partne
Ouick to Fire
Rally
Random Attacks
Random Movement
Randomising
Page 19, 41, 89
Re-roll
Rear charges
Defens 14
Combat reform
Frac refere
Refusing a challenge
Regeneration
Reinforcements
Remaining Moves
Remains in Play spells
Removing casualties
Requires Two Hands
Reserves
Restrain
Restraining units reform
Ridden monsters
Rivers
Roll To Hit
7+ m hit
Roll To Wound
Roll-off
Saving throws
Genalry
Charisti
Parry sata
Ward saver
Scaly Skin
Scatter
Scenario special rules
Scouts
Scree Slope
Sea Creature
Shields
Shooting
7+ zs hit
Chonse a target
Cover
Long range
Rangy
Remote canualties
Roll To Hit
Roll To Wessel
Skeeting and panie
Shootier at a parring smit

Shooting at lone characters
Shooting at ridden monsters
Shooting into combat
Shooting modifiers
Volley fire
Who can shoot?
Shortbow
Sigmarite Shrine
Sinister Statue
Skirmishers
Sling
Slow to Fire
Sniper
Soft cover
Sorcerous Portal
Spear
Special characters
Special rules
Special weapons
Spells
Bound Spells
Cast
Choosing a target
Casting Value
Irresistible force
Miscasts
Remains in Play spells
Spell duration
Spells and panic
Split profiles and striking order
Squish!
Stand and shoot
Standard bearers

Standards
Start of Turn
Steadfast
Stomp
Stone Throwers
Firing indirectly
Stone Thrower Misfire chart
Strength (S)
Strider
Stubborn
Stupidity
Supporting attacks
Suspicious Allies
Swarms
Swift reform
Swiftstride
Templates
Templates (buildings)
Templates (characters)
Temple of Skulls
Terrain
Terror
Throwing axes
Throwing weapons
Thunderstomp
Toughness (T)
Tower of Blood
Troop types
Trusted Allies
The Turn
Two special close combat weapons
Two hand weapons





Art Director: John Blanche. Art: Alex Boyd, Kevin Chin, Paul Dainton, Dave Gallagher, Neil Hodgson, Nuala Kinrade, Adrian Smith. Book Design: Carl Dafforn, Emma Parrington, Mark Raynor. Photography: Glenn More. 'Eavy Metal: Neil Green, Kornel Kozak, Darren Latharn, Keith Robertson, Joe Tomaszewski, Anja Wettergren, Kirsten Williams, Tom Winstone. Games Development: Alessio Cavatore, Robin Cruddace, Graham Davey, Andy Hoare, Jervis Johnson, Phil Kelly, Andrew Kenrick, Jeremy Vetock, Matthew Ward. Hobby Team: Dave Andrews, Nick Bayton, Mark Jones, Chad Mierzwa, Chris Peach, Duncan Rhodes. Miniatures Design: Mike Anderson, Giorgio Bassani, Trish Carden, Juan Diaz, Martin Footitt, Jes Goodwin, Colin Grayson, Mark Harrison, Alex Hedström, Matt Holland, Neil Langdown, Aly Morrison, Brian Nelson, Kris Jaggers, John Michelbach, Melissa Roberts, Rachel Ryan, James Shardlow, Kris Shields, Ian Strickland, Madeleine Tighe.
Special Thanks to: Rick Priestley, Alan Merrett, Leo Baker, Christian Byrne, Zak Gucklhorn, Talima Fox, Paul Gayner, Robert Gogin, Peter Gosling, Simon Grant, Stephan Hess, Matthew Hutson, Ben Johnson, Mark Latham, Martin Morrin, Richard Packer, Jim Sowter, Ian Strickland, Gabrio Tolentino, Matt Toone, Adam Troke.

Produced by Games Workshop

Copyright Games Workshop Limited 2009. Games Workshop, the Games Workshop logo, GW, Warhammer, the Warhammer logo, Citadel, the Citadel Device and all associated marks, logos, names, places, characters, creatures, races and race insignia, illustrations and images from the Warhammer world are either ®, TM and/or © Games Workshop Ltd 2000-2009, variably registered in the UK and other countries around the world. All Rights Reserved.

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise, without the prior permission of the publishers.

This is a work of fiction. All the characters and events portrayed in this book are fictional, and any resemblance to real people or incidents is purely coincidental.

British Cataloguing-in-Publication Data. A catalogue record for this book is available from the British Library. Pictures used for illustrative purposes only.

Certain Citadel products may be dangerous if used incorrectly and Games Workshop does not recommend them for use by children under the age of 16 without adult supervision. Whatever your age, be careful when using glues, bladed equipment and sprays and make sure that you read and follow the instructions on the packaging.

UK Games Workshop Ltd., Willow Rd, Lenton, Nottingham, NG7 2WS

NORTHERN EUROPE Games Workshop Ltd., Willow Rd, Lenton, Nottingham, NG7 2WS

NORTH AMERICA Games Workshop Inc, 6711 Baymeadow Drive, Suite A, Glen Burnie, Maryland, 21060-6401

AUSTRALIA Games Workshop,

23 Liverpool Street, Ingleburn, NSW 2565

INDEX

HARAAAER

A World of Chaos. A Time of Heroes. An Age of War.

Enter, if you dare, the Warhammer world – a strange and dangerous realm, riven with battle, bloodshed and slaughter, twisted beyond sanity by the warping power of Chaos. Warhammer, the Game of Fantasy Battles, puts you in command of a force of mighty warriors, monsters and war engines. With armies of Citadel miniatures, you will wage war over a tabletop battlefield, unleashing wild magic, darkening the skies with arrows and smashing aside your enemies with sword and claw.

This book contains all the information you need to become the general of a Warhammer army, including full rules for fighting out Warhammer battles, a history of the world and the races and armies that fight over it, examples of hundreds of gloriously painted Citadel miniatures, and advice on how to start your own all-conquering army.

